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THE DE LA GUERRA COLLECTION

CALENDAR OF DOCUMENTS

IN THE SANTA BÁRBARA MISSION ARCHIVE-LIBRARY

By MAYNARD J. GEIGER., O.F.M., PH.D.

(This typescript-index of the 75,000 pages of documentation, updated and revised from the published

edition of 1947, enumerates, describes and otherwise comments on the valuable collection of

historical materials housed at Santa Bárbara Mission Archive-Library.)

This collection belonged to José Antonio de la Guerra y Noriega (1779-1858), famed captain of the

Spanish army and commandant of the Santa Barbara Presidio (1806-1842) and to his successors. He

was also treasurer for the Franciscan missionaries of California, which accounts for the many letters

of the missionaries in this series that were sent to him. These documents remained in the hands of the

de la Guerra family until 1967, when Father Joseph Thompson, O.F.M., great-grandson of Captain de

la Guerra, died. A few years prior to his death, Father Thompson had deposited the collection at the

Henry E. Huntington Library, San Marino, California, with the proviso that upon his death, they be

transferred to the Santa Barbara Mission Archive-Library and remain there permanently as a

significant contribution to the story of Spanish, Mexican and early American Californiana.
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HISTORY OF THE SANTA BÁRBARA DE LA GUERRA FAMILY DOCUMENTS

by MAYNARD F. GEIGER, O.F.M.

[Reprinted from 'Southern California Quarterly,' Fall, 1972, Vol. LIV, No. 3]

On October 24, 1792, a young lad of thirteen years embarked at Cádiz, Spain, for America. He

would spend the rest of his life, until his demise, February 11, 1858, along the shores of the Pacific.

Born in the mountains of northern Spain, at Novales, in the province of Santander, March 6, 1779, he

received the names José Antonio Julián. His father was a de la Guerra, his mother a Noriega. Their

genealogy can be traced back to the early fourteenth century. 1 José was of the sangre azul of

Christian Spain and there was warrior blood in his veins. The family name, de la Guerra, proclaimed

the fact, and the coat-of-arms reflected it.

At the age of nineteen he became a soldier in Mexico and served there and in California, rising

from cadet to captain. Coming to California in 1801, he lived through the Spanish, Mexican and early

American periods. At Santa Barbara, in 1804, he married Antonia María Juliana Carrillo, daughter of

Raymundo Carrillo and Tomása Lugo, thus joining two of California's most prominent families.

Thirteen children were born to this couple, nine surviving him in death. 2 His son, Pablo, became the

most prominent and it was he who, with his father, is chiefly responsible for the preservation of the de

la Guerra documents.

José Antonio Julián de la Guerra came to Santa Barbara in 1815 as commander of California's

fourth and last presidio, founded on April 21, 1782. 3 With the exception of two visits to Mexico on

official military and political affairs, de la Guerra remained at Santa Barbara in his military capacity

and later retirement until his death. It was in 1815 that de la Guerra brought with him the documents

he had gathered in his earlier years. This nucleus was continually augmented until 1858. At first they

were housed in the comandancia, part of the presidio. Subsequently, they were transferred to the

house he built on present De La Guerra Street into which he moved on January 1, 1828. 4 There these

documents remained until 1934. José’s papers were later complimented by those of his son Pablo and

by other members of the family.

When H. H. Bancroft and one of his assistants, Edward F. Murray, visited Santa Barbara in

1874, the great collector and historian had Murray transcribe the mission documents held by Mission

Santa Bárbara, which form twelve large volumes in the Bancroft Library at the University of

California, Berkeley. In his work Murray was aided by Francis Alphaeus Thompson, 5 son of

Alphaeus B. Thompson, and father of the Reverend Joseph Thompson, O.F.M., of whom more will

be said later. 6

While Murray was engaged in his mission transcriptions, he paid a visit to the de la Guerra

home in September, 1876, to ascertain if the family had a collection of historical material. He was

shown the papers, but there was a disinclination to allow them to be taken to San Francisco for

copying. Murray wrote to Henry L. Oak, Bancroft's librarian, January 25, 1877, saying: “It is even

doubtful if I can get permission to take them to my room for convenience in copying. They are kept in

an old dusty and dimly lighted attic, or alto, and there I expect I shall be obliged to do my work.” 7

Murray added that the old Hispanic families distrusted the Yankees and could not consider them to

have any other view than that of pecuniary gain.
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Nothing was accomplished on that visit, but Murray was back in Santa Barbara again in

August, 1877. By October he had obtained permission to have access to the family papers through

Thomas D. Dibblee, who had married into the de la Guerra family and who was executor of José de la

Guerra's will. 8 These transcripts in seven volumes may be found today in the Bancroft Library under

the title: “Documentos del Señor Capitán Comandante de Santa Barbara Don José de la Guerra y

Noriega durante las Dominaciones Española y Mexicana. ”

In 1934 Father Joseph Thompson, O.F.M., great grandson of José de la Guerra, went to Santa

Barbara to see his cousin, Delfina de la Guerra, daughter of Pablo, who was living in the ancestral

house. He was aware that Delfina had some family papers but was not acquainted with their content

or extent. When Father Thompson entered the room, he found Delfina seated at a table and at her side

he noticed a large, old-fashioned straw laundry basket filled to its rim with papers seemingly thrown

in topsy-turvy.

He asked her specifically if she had the will of José, her grandfather. In answer to his question

she pointed to the basket and said: “It's there some place.” To his utter amazement she continued:

“These are my grandfather's papers. I do not know what to do with them. They are on my hands.

Have you any suggestions?”9 This discovery was like sighting some unknown land. Astounded,

Father Thompson assured his cousin that he would be glad to assume the responsibility for them and

stated that eventually they would find their way into the Santa Bárbara Mission Archive-Library to be

safeguarded since her grandfather had been the treasurer of the mission padres, their friend, adviser

and defender. For his faithful service his mortal remains had been buried in the crypt beneath the

sanctuary of the old mission. Father Thompson later recalled that when he had finished, “her eyes

filled with tears, she exclaimed ‘Gracias a Dios.’ ” Delfina then informed him that there was also a

large box containing the rest of the papers in the Dibblee home in care of her two nieces and that he

could go there and claim them, which he subsequently did.

After being informed that the documents had been placed in the mission safe, Delfina wrote to

her cousin: “I thank you for the great interest you have taken in the work you are doing with the

documents I had so religiously tried to keep and often wondered whom I could trust with them to

make use of and make known what our dear grandfather had done for California and I feel that you

were a Godsend to us as well as to the de la Guerra family.”10

When Father Thompson received this priceless collection, he said to Delfina: “Cousin Delfina,

how can I ever adequately thank you for this rich gift? Have you any request of me?” She replied:

“Yes, cousin, I have a request of you. I want my body to be placed near my grandparents, Don José

and Doña María Antonia and my father, Don Pablo” 11 This request was granted when Father

Thompson performed the funeral rites for Delfina in April 1953. 12 She had lived in the de la Guerra

house for seventy years, and, true to her wish, she was laid next to Father Thompson’s mother in the

vaults of the mission cemetery. 13

Father Thompson had various assignments as a Franciscan priest since his ordination in 1912,

principally in California and Arizona. From 1932 until his death on May 16, 1967, he was stationed at
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St. Joseph’s Friary, Los Angeles, as chaplain of the Los Angeles County Jails and Honor Farms. In

his spare time he worked on the de la Guerra documents intensely, visited other California archives

and made a trip to Mexico. 14 This he did in preparation for the biography of his great-grandfather

which appeared in 1961 under the title El Gran Capitán: José de la Guerra. With proper permission,

the de la Guerra Collection had been transferred from the safe at Mission Santa Bárbara to a safe in

St. Joseph’s Friary to facilitate his use of the material.

A few years before his death, Father Thompson placed the collection in the Henry E.

Huntington Library, San Marino, on consignment, having drawn up a document which stated that in

the event of his death, the collection was to be handed over to the archivist of Mission Santa Bárbara

upon his request. Meanwhile the task was given to Miss Haydée Noya, expert Spanish linguist and

skilled librarian, to classify and organize the various documents (about 2,000 in number and

containing about 12,000 pages). This called for meticulous labor and consuming dedication. Her

finished work was admirable. 15 The documents were arranged in alphabetical order, the

communications of each author to the respective recipients being placed in a separate folder (or

several if the letters were numerous). The folders were numbered from 1 to 1168 with the names of

the author and the recipient noted. Also included were pertinent cross references. The folders filled

four drawers of letter-size files and nine library boxes of legal size documents referring especially to

land titles, personal papers and miscellaneous items.

When this labor of classification was finished in 1968, the papers were delivered to the new

Mission Santa Bárbara Archive-Library facility together with a complete set of microfilm. Since that

time the originals have also been photocopied at Santa Barbara. The originals and microfilm copies

are preserved in an air-conditioned vault. The photocopies are in the archive proper which is

air-conditioned and under humidity control. Researchers use the photocopies because a significant

number of the originals are very fragile.

The next task at Santa Barbara was also a formidable one. In the course of a year or so the

archivist Fr. Maynard Geiger, O.F.M. examined the entire collection in order to familiarize himself

with the contents. He then prepared a calendar of the entire collection to save researchers valuable

time. This descriptive cataloguing resulted in 817 pages of typewritten material, double-spaced,

which were contained in four large-sized loose-leaf binders. [NOTE: the calendar is on-line] The

particular value of this calendar is that the contents of each document are spelled out so that any

researcher in a single day or two can determine if a document is pertinent to his interest without

serious loss of time. The detailed description of a document may range from one to twenty-five lines,

the average being about five. Examples may suffice to give an idea of content descriptions:

Folder 1.

Sept. 31, 1816. San Francisco.

Fray Ramón Abella, O.F.M., to José de la Guerra y Noriega (hereinafter José de la Guerra)

asking him to certify the letter he sent in favor of Agustín de Hijar. 1 p.

Folder 262.

Dec. 16, 1835. Tepic.

Antonio Maria de Ercilla to José de la Guerra on his arrival at Tepic; on a letter received
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from Mateo Uruchurtu of Hermosillo; on money and mercantile matters; on General Mejia's

coming to Tampico with some Americans from New Orleans; on a new law taxing 1% on

each finca; the beginning of a census; on taxes collected in Jalisco and Guadalajara; Santa

Anna’s presence in San Luis Potosí; continuance of war in Spain; over 900 religious houses

suppressed by Queen Isabella, San Ildefonso, July 25, 1835; Domingo Danglada in Tepic;

Fathers Tomás Esténaga, O.F.M. and Francisco Ibarra, O.F.M. (“Napoleon”), in Guaymas,

Sonora; the death of Governor José Figueroa; on not having received a copy of the new

Constitution of Mexico; the ships, Quintanilla and Centro America bought as coast guard

vessels, Captain José Martinez, formerly in charge of the Asia, in command; sending De la

Guerra the newspaper of Nov. 18, 1834, containing the list of religious houses suppressed in

“our disgraced Spain.” Mentioned are a Severiano, a Varela of Pitic, a Sánchez, Antonio

Apalategui, Juan de Maitorena, Fathers José María de Zalvidea, O.F.M., Buenaventura

Fortuny, O.F.M., Narciso Durán, an Antonio (Jimeno, O.F.M.?), Anastasio (Carrillo?), Padre

Francisco Ibarra and others. 4 pp. 16

The reading of the de la Guerra letters, diaries, accounts, petitions, statistics, and reports is like

perusing the newspapers for a century and a quarter, covering North and South America, Europe, and

at times Asia. Though an individual document here and there may have little historical value, the

totality is extremely impressive on the life of the times. Some documents are official, others personal.

They go through the gamut of all human interests and reflect throughout the activities, aspirations and

accomplishments of the era.

According to Father Thompson’s account, among the de la Guerra documents there are over

600 letters from fifty missionaries of both Upper and Lower California ; over 200 letters from

Spanish and Mexican governors of California; royal decrees from King Ferdinand VII, letters and

decrees from the viceroys of Mexico; letters, decrees and passports from Mexican presidents; drafts,

invoices, trials, cross-examinations; vast commercial correspondence; reports on contraband activity,

shipping, logs of ships engaged in the hide and tallow trade; census and presidio reports; documents

of appointment and promotion; confidential communications; Indian difficulties; records of travel.

For the American period there are many records in Spanish and English, especially those of Pablo de

la Guerra touching on the politics of the time. Added to these are many land case papers and personal

items of the family.

Bancroft states that the de la Guerra Collection, “copies of which I was permitted to make at the

kindness of Mr. Dibblee, executor of the estate, are the most extensive and valuable archive in

California except those of Vallejo. 17 Miss Noya declared to this writer that the collection was the

finest group of Californians documents she had ever handled in her long career at the Huntington.

To summarize, the researcher can find the de la Guerra Collection in the following depositories:

the Santa Bárbara Mission Archive-Library has the original collection, as well as a complete

microfilm and photocopy of the same; the Bancroft Library, Berkeley, has the transcripts made in

1877; the Huntington Library holds a photocopy and microfilm of the entire collection, as well as a

copy of Fr. Maynard Geiger’s calendar of the papers; the museum of the Santa Barbara Historical

Society has a microfilm of the Bancroft transcripts and a partial microfilm of the original material,

which was donated by Father Thompson, and the Academy of American Franciscan History,
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Washington, D.C., has a microcopy of the original collection also supplied by Father Thompson.

NOTES

1 A copy of the family genealogies of the de la Guerra and Noriega families is in the Santa Bárbara

Mission Archive-Library (hereinafter SBMAL).
2 More detailed data on de la Guerra may be read in Rev. Joseph Thompson, O.F.M., El Gran

Capitán: José de la Guerra (Los Angeles, 1961), (hereinafter El Gran Capitán).
3 Date given on the title page of the Register of Burials of Presidio Santa Barbara by Fray Junípero

Serra, O.F.M., SBMAL.
4 Date given in Casa de la Guerra, Santa Barbara, Manuscript, SBMAL, prepared by Father

Thompson as a follow-up volume to El Gran Capitán. It contains data on the history of the house and

the children and employees of the captain.
5 Francis Alphaeus Thompson, a son of Alphaeus B. Thompson and Francisca Carrillo of Santa

Barbara, was baptized at Mission Santa Bárbara, September 17, 1836. Entry Number 1176, First

Book of Baptisms, in Our Lady of Sorrows Rectory, Santa Barbara. Certified copy in the SBMAL.
6 Father Joseph Thompson, O.F.M., was born at Ventura, California, May 11, 1887, and was baptized

at the mission there September 11, the same year, and given the name of Alphaeus. He was given the

name Joseph upon entering the Franciscan Order in 1905. Catalogus Provinciae Sanctae Barbarae

Ordinis Minorum (Oakland, 1967), p. 8.
7 Hubert H. Bancroft, Literary Industries (San Francisco, 1890), p. 519, and cited in El Gran Capitán,

p. 234a.
8 Dibblee was a native of New York, a lawyer by profession, who came to California in 1859,

engaged in sheep raising in Los Angeles and Santa Barbara counties. He died at Santa Barbara in

November, 1895. He was married to Francisca de la Guerra, a daughter of Pablo de la Guerra and

Josefa Moreno. They had six daughters and two sons. In Santa Barbara he lived at Punta del Castillo

(Fort Point) overlooking Santa Barbara. “He was very thorough in all he undertook. An excellent

businessman, a thorough stockraiser, a thorough lawyer and an upright man in every transaction. He

was what has been called a gentleman of the old school. Courtly, liberal in his views, tolerant of the

opinions of others, Mr. Dibblee was an ornament to the society of this place. He was a scholarly man,

a deep reader and a profound thinker. His opinion as to any legal question was always eagerly sought

and when given was accepted as fact.” Santa Barbara Daily News, November 25, 1895. Copy in

SBMAL.
9 Casa de la Guerra, Manuscript.
10 All three are buried in the vault of the mission beneath the sanctuary. José de la Guerra died

February 11, 1858; Maria Antonia, his wife, on December 26, 1843, and their son, Pablo, February 5,

1874. These crypts were opened in August 1911, and those buried therein identified. House Chronicle

of Mission Santa Bárbara, 1885-1915, pp. 190-191, SBMAL.
11 Delfina de la Guerra died April 26, 1953, at the age of ninety-two. She had never married. De la

Guerra File, SBMAL.
12 Casa de la Guerra, Manuscript.
13 Father Thompson’s mother, though called Anita throughout her life was baptized María

Concepción Ramona. She was born in Santa Barbara, December 16, 1849, the daughter of Francisco

de la Guerra and María Concepción Sepúlveda. She was a granddaughter of José de la Guerra and
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María Francisca Carrillo. Volume II, Register of Baptisms, Our Lady of Sorrows Rectory, Santa

Barbara, Entry No. 265. Certified copy in the SBMAL.
14 More detailed data on Father Thompson may be found in Provincial Annals (Summer 1967), pp.

33-39. Copies in SBMAL.
15 The organization of the collection effected by Miss Noya has been retained in the SBMAL.
16 Frequently in these letters given or family names are used alone making it difficult identify the

persons known to the writer and recipient. Where the person’s identity probable, the missing name is

placed in brackets followed by a question mark. Where the person is not known, the name is left as in

the letter without attempted identification.
17 Cited in El Gran Capitán, p. 234.

DLG 1

Letter 1
Sept. 30, 1816. San Francisco.

Fray Ramón Abella, O.F.M., to José Antonio de la Guerra y Noriega (hereinafter José de la Guerra)

asking him to certify the letter he sent in favor of Agustín de Hijar. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 1

Letter 2

Aug. 22, 1835. San Luis Obispo.

Abella to de la Guerra concerning sínodos. [Henry] Virmond and a certain "Federico" mentioned.

Poor crops at San Luis Obispo. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 1

Letter 3
Nov. 22, 1835. San Luis Obispo.

Abella to de la Guerra on having received two letters from de la Guerra; sending two mules to him

through Manuel Jimeno; asks for certain goods to distribute among the Indians giving him personal

service. Asks for chocolate, a barrel of aguardiente (brandy) and two of wine. His relationship with

Jimeno. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 1

Letter 4
May 3, 1836. San Luis Obispo.

Abella to de la Guerra on letters received from de la Guerra and from [Antonio] Ercilla and [Antonio]

Apalategui, the latter two of which he is forwarding; his request to the administrator of the mission

for four mules and accompanying gear; his need for Mass wine, table wine and brandy; his lack of

chocolate for about half a year, and of leaf tobacco; his forwarding clothes of Domingo Amado then

living in San Diego. He would like to leave San Luis Obispo. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 1

Letter 5
July 9, 1836. San Luis Obispo.

Abella to de la Guerra on Manuel Jimeno bringing him three barrels; his relationship with him; on

sínodos. Gives his age as seventy-three, expecting to die soon; his permission to retire and concerning

a debt of Urbano Sánchez. Antonio Ercilla mentioned. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 1

Letter 6
July 19, 1836. Santa Ines.

Abella to de la Guerra giving his reasons for being at Santa Ines particularly to bid adieu to Father

[Marcos Antonio] Vitoria, O.F.M., whose health is quite bad. Should Vitoria die, Abella would be the

oldest of the missionaries. Treats of a money matter concerning the Indians. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 1

Letter 7
Aug 17, 1836. San Luis Obispo.

Abella to de la Guerra concerning a letter received dated Aug. 3; the presence of a frigate, California,

in San Luis Obispo Bay; will bring cheese from San Miguel for de la Guerra; business matters with

[José Antonio] Menéndez and a certain "Portuguese". He does not wish to leave California because of

his age. Spanish. 2 pp.
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DLG 1

Letter 8
March 12, 1838. San Luis Obispo.

Abella to de la Guerra on wine and brandy; on sending a letter through an unnamed native of Sonora

who had been a captive among the Apaches for many years; on a note book he had taken with him

from Carmel and returned to Father [José María Refugio Suárez del] Real, O.F.M.; on a certain

Señora Boronda in Santa Barbara married to an Englishman, and formerly to a Cota [José Manuel],

who owes a debt to Mission Carmel. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 1

Letter 9
June 14, 1838. San Luis Obispo.

Abella to de la Guerra on certain Masses being said, Victor Aroio (sic) [Arroyo], and several Indians

being sent to Santa Barbara with three empty casks who are to bring to him three barrels of wine and

one brandy; the bad state of the mission buildings; seeds needed for planting; clothing needed to

attract pagan Indians and to clothe Christians; list of vegetables sent to de la Guerra. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 2

Letter 1
Aug. 31, 1820. San Carlos.

Abella to Fray Luís Antonio Martínez, O.F.M., recalling the former's name,day and inviting the latter,

José de la Guerra, [José María?] Estudillo, [José Antonio?] Navarrete, [Antonio del] Valle and the

chief artilleryman and alférez to Carmel. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 3

Letter 1
Sept. 26, 1853. San Buenaventura.

Isidro Abiols to José de la Guerra stating that M[Manuel] R[Rodríguez] de Poli had presented a

request for the purchase of lumber to build a house in Santa Barbara. Wants to know how much and

of what kind. Is soon going to a ranch to harvest corn. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 4

Letter 1
May 13, 1847. Monterey.

José Abrego to Pablo de la Guerra giving news from Monterey; on money received from [José

Antonio] Aguirre; state of the weather. Tells him to say nothing about "our protectors." Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 4

Letter 2
July 26, 1848. Monterey.

Abrego to Pablo de la Guerra concerning ranch matters in the area; [Juan Bautista] Alvarado

mentioned; people leaving for the gold rush. "I assure you that within two months not a hundred men

will remain in Monterey." Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 4

Letter 3
Aug. 7, 1848. Monterey.

Abrego to Pablo de la Guerra on receiving official news of peace between the United States and

Mexico. Californians may choose either American or Mexican citizenship; Men still going to the gold

diggings. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 4

Letter 4
Jan. 25, 1854. Monterey.

Abrego to Pablo de la Guerra concerning news of members of the [Lorenzo] de la Guerra family

through a letter received by Malarín from [Lorenzo] Barbieri, a painter, at Acapulco; communicating

news of the death of [Manuel] Jimeno in Mexico City. Mentioned are Doña Teresa [Hartnell],

[David] Spence and Carolina [Jimeno]. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 4

Letter 5
Febr. 15, 1856. Monterey.

Abrego to Pablo de la Guerra concerning the proposed division of Monterey County and asking for a

law that public matters be discussed in Spanish and English. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 5

Letter 1
Sept. 17, 1825. Morelos, Mexico.

Flaminio Agasini to José de la Guerra sending him a letter to be given to [Luís Antonio] Argüello.

Speaks of sailing soon. Spanish. 1 p.
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DLG 6

Letter 1
No folder

DLG 7

Letter 1
Nov 6, 1834. Santa Barbara.

José Antonio Aguirre to José María Castaños of Tepic concerning a bill of exchange for 1500 pesos

with Castaños as debtor and made out in favor of José de la Guerra. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 8

Letter 1
June 7, 1834. Los Angeles.

José Antonio Aguirre to José de la Guerra on unhappy news concerning the latter the nature of which

is not disclosed; on a business deal with regard to Rancho San Pedro; interests of Santiago Johnson;

concerning a bill of exchange against José María Castaños of Tepic, Aguirre's intention of coming to

Santa Barbara. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 8

Letter 2
Sept. 24, 1834. San Gabriel.

Aguirre to José de la Guerra asking him to tell Tomás Robins to take command of Aguirre's

brigantine Pacífico; to make a voyage to Lima and return, or in case of his declining, to seek another

experienced pilot. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 8

Letter 3
Oct. 16, 1834. Los Angeles.

Aguirre to José de la Guerra concerning his interview with Tomás Robins. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 8

Letter 4
March 25, 1835. Los Angeles.

Aguirre to José de la Guerra on repairing his ship at San Pedro and putting it in readiness to receive

cargo; an accident to his leg rendering him unable to walk; asks de la Guerra to inform [José Antonio]

Ercilla on the condition of his ship. Mentions Abel [Stearns], [Domingo] Danglada and San Pedro.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 8

Letter 5
July 17, 1835. Aboard ship. [San Pedro]

Aguirre to José de la Guerra about to sail; José Bandini to hand over to de la Guerra 161 hides cared

for by Enrique Fitch; accounts to be settled on Aguirre's return. Sends greetings to Fathers [Narcisco]

Duran, O.F.M., [Antonio] Jimeno, O.F.M., and friends. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 8

Letter 6
July 11, 1844. Santa Barbara.

Aguirre tells José de la Guerra he intends to go to San Diego to regain his health; asks de la Guerra to

care for his house and effects and gives him power of attorney to handle affairs in case of his death

and to confer with Cesareo de Lataillade should he arrive in time. His pending business deals in

Sonora and other parts of Mexico have been put into the hands of the Spanish vice-consul, Domingo

Danglada; his partnership with Miguel Pedrorena effected in Los Angeles. Praises de la Guerra for his

effective friendship. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 8

Letter 7
Oct. 3, 1844. San Diego.

Aguirre tells José de la Guerra of the improved health and apprizes him concerning a debt owed him

by Ignacio del Valle of Rancho San Francisco. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 8

Letter 8
Oct. 19, 1844. San Diego.

Aguirre to José de la Guerra on a letter received from de la Guerra dated Oct. 10; Aguirre's complaint

against Ignacio del Valle; concerning debts owed by Carlos Carrillo, Anastasio Carrillo, Don Joaquín

[Carrillo] and [Teodoro] Arrellanes. He sends $50.00 to Fray Narciso Durán, O.F.M., as an alms to be

used for the Propagation of the Faith. Spanish. 3 pp.
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DLG 8

Letter 9
March 1, 1854. San Diego.

Aguirre to José de la Guerra on the receipt of de la Guerra's letter of Jan. 27, his pleasure on hearing

that Fathers [José Joaquín] Jimeno, O.F.M., and [Francisco] Sánchez, O.F.M., are attempting to

establish an apostolic college at Santa Barbara. Expresses his willingness to be associated with the

work of the institute, and to part with his house in Santa Barbara for that purpose under most

favorable circumstances despite what it cost him; his obligation to his family prevents him from being

generous with his money. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 8

Letter 10
March 23, 1854. San Diego. ,

Aguirre to José de la Guerra stating that for the present he cannot sell his house even in favor of the

apostolic college but can rent it for a while under certain conditions. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 9

Letter 1
July 31, 1835. La Paz.

Aguirre to Domingo Danglada concerning 2,720 pesos in relation to Fray Francisco González de

Ibarra, O.F.M. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 10

Letter 1

Sept. 15, 1850. San Diego.

Aguirre to Pablo de la Guerra on receiving his letter of Aug. 28; Cesareo Lataillade's account,

mention of Salvador Munrás of Monterey and Cretín [Julio Cretaine?]; a purchase made by Pablo de

la Guerra for which he congratulates him; the latter's accounts with Aguirre cancelled; his

determination to ask [Estevan] Munrás for the books de la Guerra left him; his enquiry concerning

Vol. VI of the memorias received from Danglada.; asks where Joaquín Carrillo can be found and tells

of a new ship line to be inaugurated between California and Mazatlán and San Blas. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 10

Letter 2
Aug. 17, 1855. Los Angeles.

Aguirre on the cancellation of debt which the former cannot do because he is in straightened

circumstances; is living at San Pedro with his family; asks him to return the book on Trafalgar which

he had loaned him. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 10

Letter 3
March 1, 1860. San Diego.

Aguirre to Pablo de la Guerra on receiving his letter of Nov. 2, 1859, concerning a request made to

the governor. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 10

Letter 4
March 242, 1860. San Diego.

Aguirre thanking Pablo de la Guerra for a favor; his complaint against judges. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 11

Letter 1
Febr. 11, 1840. San Luis Rey.

José Antonio Aguirre to Fray Francisco González de Ibarra, O.F.M. A statement by Carlos Baric on

having received 1,600 pesos from Ibarra. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 11

Letter 2
Febr. 9, 1840. San Diego.

Aguirre to Ibarra concerning an order for payment given by [James] Scott and [John] Wilson and

given to [Miguel] Pedrorena by Aguirre; an account of Aguirre with Luís Vignes; an order for

payment toward the Pious Fund asking Ibarra to sign if he wished. Cites Durán, O.F.M., Ventura and

Ramón. His intention to go to San Pedro. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 11

Letter 3
Sept. 20, 1840. San Pedro.

Aguirre to Ibarra referring to a letter of Sept. 17 and on sending goods. Mentions habits purchased by

Fathers Jimeno, O.F.M., [Blas] Ordaz, O.F.M., and [Tomás] Esténaga, O.F.M. Gives details of items

sent. Spanish. 2 pp.
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DLG 11

Letter 4
Jan. 10, 1841. San Diego.

Aguirre to Ibarra sending him a statement of articles sent to him. Is sending his ship, Guipuzcoana, to

Callao soon. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 11

Letter 5
Aug. 23, 1842. Santa Barbara.

Aguirre to Ibarra sending him articles through Captain Snook [Joseph Francisco]. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 11

Letter 6
Jan. 21, 1843. San Diego.

Aguirre to Ibarra who is sending him a box of "cha" (tea) and vestments brought from Lima. Spanish.

2 pp.

DLG 12

Letter 1
Febr. 22, 1858. San Diego.

Aguirre to Francisco de la Guerra and brothers sending them his condolence upon the death of their

father, José de la Guerra, his friend of many years, who had died on Febr. 11, 1858. He praised him as

a man of character. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 13

Letter 1
Febr. 20, 1815. San Borja.

Tomás de Ahumada, O. P., to José de la Guerra concerning the desire of Fray José Martínez, 0.P., of

finishing a church, establishing ranches, and doing "all things new." He asks de la Guerra to send the

moulds used in painting the church at San Diego and three hundred heifers, to be paid for with brandy

and mescal or by a bill of exchange via Loreto. The cattle are to be sent to Santo Tomás. He also asks

for tallow and blankets. Sends greetings to the family. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 13

Letter 2
Aug. 20, 1815. Mulegé.

Ahumada to de la Guerra sending the latter a sack of majoram. Opines that the governor is already at

Monterey. Invites de la Guerra to Loreto where the weather is good. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 13

Letter 3
Oct. 23, 1815. Mulegé.

Ahumada to de la Guerra assuming that he has received the majoram. The weather is cold. The

blankets have not arrived. In the gulf of Mulegé a Yaqui has been killed by a shark. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 13

Letter 4
Dec. 3, 1815. Mulegé.

A few lines of greeting. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 13

Letter 5
Dec. 31, 1815. Mulegé.

Ahumada to de la Guerra on the death of the latter's mother. Thanks him for the blankets. Will send

an abundance of majoram. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 13

Letter 6
May 20, [1818].

Ahumada to de la Guerra on news concerning the new governor; that de la Guerra is to visit Lower

California. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 13

Letter 7
Sept. 25, [1818].

Ahumada to de la Guerra on the death of Dona Tomása. on receiving the blankets. Speaks of de la

Guerra's compadre, Pedro, and of Fray Pablo Zarate, O.P. Spanish. 2 pp.
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DLG 13

Letter 8
Jan. 6, 1818. Mulegé.

Ahumada to de la Guerra thanking him for sending him thread for his habit; his extreme need owing

to the loss of 464 pesos destined for him on the ship, San Telmo; his receipt of a letter from Francisco

Santa María that the ship of [José Antonio] Núñez was lost with its cargo but that the people were

saved; losses sustained by the Núñez brothers and Ahumada; asks for the name of a certain remedy

for curing vertigo. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 13

Letter 9
June 10, [1818?]. Mulegé.

Ahumada to de la Guerra congratulating him on becoming a captain and prophesying that he will be

governor at Loreto; Ahumada has built a launch to communicate with the mainland; was not able to

send someone to obtain the bale de la Guerra had sent him; speaks of his compadre, Pedro, who

frequently accompanies the packtrain. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 13

Letter 10
Dec. 14, 1818. Mulegé.

Ahumada to de la Guerra on not having received any mail for five months; soldiers have arrived with

writing paper for the presidios; received three varas of serge sent by Fray Antonio Ripoll,O.F.M.

through the charity of de la Guerra. The launch, Santa Rosalía, arrived from Río Yaqui and Guaymas

with corn, blankets and chocolate. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 14

Letter 1
March 13, 1854. San Francisco.

M. Ainsa to Philip T. Herbert recommending to the latter his brother-in-law, Mr. Biven, and a Mr.

Casanueva, as competent translators of laws. English. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 15

Letter 1
July 18, 1848. Los Angeles.

Gregorio de Aguirre to José de de la Guerra concerning a draft of 1500 pesos in favor of Richard

Den. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 15

Letter 2
Aug. 28, 1848. San Pedro.

Aguirre to de la Guerra concerning a certain matrimonial investigation and a business deal with

[John] Wilson. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 16

Letter 1
Apr. 11, 1854.

Próspero Alegrilla to de la Guerra asking for 50 pesos. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 17

Letter 1

Nov, 5, 1851. Monterey.

Archbishop Joseph Sadoc Alemany to José de la Guerra announcing his arrival in Monterey; his

finding the college of nuns in a flourishing condition; his desire to buy a house for the nuns; Don

Manuel Jimeno and Doña Angustias de la Guerra's willingness to sell their house to him but he still

help of pious persons to purchase it; asks de la Guerra, because of his well-known charity, to

contribute towards it. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 17

Letter 2
Jan. 31, 1856. San Francisco.

Alemany to José de la Guerra praising him for his "just and high esteem" towards the "very

distinguished and venerable pastor and vicar general, Padre José [María] González [Rubio], O.F.M."

States he will try to carry out the petition and instructions he had received; he hopes that Bishop Amat

will be able to fulfill the desires of the petitioners without violence to González [Rubio]; states that it

would be a calamity after establishing the college with so much publicity that all would have been

sacrificed now because of the general indisposition of the father prefect and the going away of

González Rubio. Spanish. 2 pp.
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DLG 18

Letter 1
Febr. 21, 1852. Monterey.

Alemany to Pablo de la Guerra giving a commendation in favor of Patrick Morris who had done

favors for him. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 18

Letter 2
Sept. 21, 1853. San Francisco.

Alemany to de la Guerra on a communication from Rome pointing out inconveniences of changing

from tithes to a sum of money. He sees no way clear but to follow the current custom but forsees a

change. He will soon ordain a Catalonian and a Mexican. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 18

Letter 3
Oct. 15, 1853. San Francisco.

Alemany to de la Guerra answering the latter's letter of Sept. 25, on the matter of tithes. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 18

Letter 4
June 74, 1854. San Francisco.

Alemany to Pablo de la Guerra concerning a letter from M. G. Meade of New York who has two

children of Angustias de la Guerra under her educational supervision; on Alfred Robinson placing

them in a school detrimental to their Catholic faith; states that Bishop [Tadeo] Amat has finally been

consecrated in Rome whence he will sail for Monterey. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 18

Letter 5
Nov. 10, 1854. Pueblo de San Jose.

Alemany to Pablo de la Guerra including a letter of same date for Gustavo Touchant, also one for

Pedro Ramírez, a counsellor of the state who wrote to Alemany that he had $600.00 for the latter 's

disposition; asks Pablo to receive it in favor of a certain person in New York; also a letter for the

sister of Don Manuel [Jimeno]. His brother is Fray Antonio Jimeno living at San Diego friary in

Mexico. Alemany asks de la Guerra to work in favor of the Sisters of Charity, in the legislature.

Includes copy of a letter to Mexican authorities giving character testimonial to Pablo and his sister,

Angustias Jimeno, who intends to visit Mexico. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 18

Letter 6
Jan. 7, 1856. San Francisco.

Alemany to Pablo de la Guerra thanking him for arranging to have one of Alemany's priests to be

chaplain of the senate. Rev. Mr. Gallagher, however, stating his important duties will not allow him to

leave San Francisco. English. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 18

Letter 7
Febr. 12, 1856. San Francisco.

Alemany to Pablo de la Guerra on receiving a letter of Febr. 8th. He states that he will do everything

possible to retain Father González Rubio in California even by writing to Zacatecas. He declares that

the "precious remains" of Padre Junípero Serra, O.F.M. lie in the sanctuary of the church in Carmelo

on the gospel side; adding that this is his firm conviction after many investigations he made among

people known for their maturity and honor. The legislature will not probably deal with this matter but

a just tribute should be given to the "well merited founder of California." Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 18

Letter 8
Febr. 15, 1856. San Francisco.

Alemany to Pablo de la Guerra asking the latter that since the San Francisco Orphan Asylum, a

Protestant institution, is asking the legislature for an appropriation, his own Catholic orphans should

not be overlooked in obtaining similar benefits. Is willing to submit a formal petition if necessary. He

speaks of the Catholic Orphan Asylum in San Francisco under the Sisters of Charity and another at

San Rafael. He states that the priest at Monterey cannot obtain more information concerning the

remains of Father Serra beyond what Alemany has given to Pablo. Spanish. 2 pp.
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DLG 18

Letter 9
Febr. 22, 1856. San Francisco.

Alemany to Pablo de la Guerra reporting that the pastor of Monterey went to Carmelo with Francisco

Pacheco and other persons and they found it impossible to decide anything[concerning the location of

Serra's grave] for the entire place was covered with rubble. It will cost about $150.00 to remove it,

Possibly Bishop [Tadeo] Amat whom he is expecting to arrive soon, will restore the mission. Spanish.

1 p.

DLG 18

Letter 10
Sept. 20, 1856. San Francisco.

Alemany to Pablo de la Guerra stating that while he does not wish to meddle in political affairs, he is

interested in having elected a superintendent of public instruction who is liberal and impartial.

Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 18

Letter 11
Oct. 10, 1858. San Francisco.

Alemany to Pablo de la Guerra thanking him for wine and praises the members of the de la Guerra

family for its manner of treating the ministers of the Church. Sends a relic to Elena Ana [Robinson].

Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 18

Letter 12
Dec. 27, 1860. San Francisco.

Alemany to Pablo de la Guerra introducing Chr. A. Urig, who would like to meet Pablo. He is "a nice,

intelligent and honorable member of our Church." English. 1 p.

DLG 18

Letter 13
March 8, 1861. San Francisco.

Alemany to Pablo de la Guerra asking the latter if he knows anything about robberies and deaths at

San José del Cabo about 1830. He inquires about a possible law which might oblige priests to pay or

collect registries of marriages, stating it would be best for the counties to collect. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 18

Letter 14
Jan. 9, 1864. San Francisco.

Alemany to de la Guerra excusing himself for not answering letters sooner. Asks concerning

placement of a girl. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 19

Letter 1
Nov. 20, 1859. San Francisco.

Alemany to Lázaro de la Garza, Archbishop of Mexico, recommending Pablo de la Guerra and his

sister, Angustias, who are going to Mexico. De la Guerra is a state senator, "a most honorable man"

and both are members of "one of the most respectable families of California." Writes that his

cathedral will soon be finished. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 20

Letter 1
July 27, 1856.

Alemany to Angustias de la Guerra answering her letter of July 23 concerning admission of her

daughters to the nuns' school in Benecia. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 21

Letter 1
No date

R. M. Allison to Pablo de la Guerra on his disappointment in not being able to meet Pablo. Speaks of

political matters on the local level. Needs $60.00 to do a canvas. English. 2 pp.

DLG 22

Letter 1
Nov. 19, 1820. San Francisco.

Fray José Altimira,to José de la Guerra; a letter in a personal, familiar tone. Mentions Fathers Blas

Ordaz and [Juan] Cabot, O.F.M., accompanying the father prefect on his way to San Rafael. Spanish.

2 pp.



8/26/2009 Page 15

DLG 22

Letter 2
Jan. 22, 1821. San Francisco.

Altimira to de la Guerra acknowledging a letter and sending condolences on the death of his father

and an elder brother. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 22

Letter 3
March 21, 1821. San Francisco.

A short personal note from Altimira to de la Guerra. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 22

Letter 4
May 22, 1821. San Francisco.

Altimira to de la Guerra asking for wine, lemons or sour oranges. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 22

Letter 5
July 16, 1821. San Francisco.

Altimira to de la Guerra sending barrels for wine and asking for some sour oranges. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 22

Letter 6
Sept. 22, 1821. San Francisco.

Altimira to de la Guerra thanking him for wine sent. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 22

Letter 7
May 23, 1822. San Francisco.

Altimira to de la Guerra answering a letter concerning Maria del Carmen García. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 22

Letter 8
Sept. 31, 1822. San Francisco.

Altimira to de la Guerra concerning the Indian, Simón Mago. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 23

Letter 1
Jan. 9, 1813.

Francis Xavier Alvarado to José de la Guerra concerning 200 pesos his brother had loaned to

Governor Pablo Vicente Solá. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 24

Letter 1
Jan. 4, 1837. Santa Barbara.

Juan Bautista Alvarado to José de la Guerra copying the statement made to Domingo Carrillo

concerning the distribution of moveable property belonging to Rancho San Julian. This document has

the printed statement on it: "Gobierno Supremo del Estado Libre y Soberano de la Alta California."

Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 24

Letter 2
Apr. 7, 1837. Santa Barbara.

Alvarado to de la Guerra sending him two lists approved by the government of the moveable goods of

[San Julian Rancho?]. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 24

Letter 3
Aug. 25, 1840. Monterey.

Alvarado to de la Guerra on sending on the ship, Index, belonging to Diego Scott, ammunition to

assist de la Guerra's military district in campaigns against the Indians. Alfred Robinson is authorized

to give de la Guerra powder; the juez de paz of Santa Barbara has sent to Alvarado a denunciation

made by Joaquín Peres; Alvarado is sending Captain Villa to defend Los Angeles against

pronunciados. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 25

Letter 1
Jan, 2, 1839, Santa Barbara.

Alvarado to Pablo de la Guerra appointing the latter director of the customs house at Monterey with

annual salary of 1,500 pesos. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 25

Letter 2
Nov. 11, 1842. Alisal.

Alvarado to Pablo de la Guerra. A fragment of five lines. Spanish. 1 p.
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DLG 25

Letter 3
Febr. 9, 1856. San Francisco.

Alvarado to Pablo de la Guerra concerning the township of San Pablo in Contra Costa County, its

dependence on Martínez, the county seat four leagues away and difficult to reach over hills especially

in winter. As a result the inhabitants have gotten up a petition to the legislature asking that San Pablo

be aggregated to Alameda County. Alvarado and his family live at San Pablo. He asks de la Guerra to

detain the proposed bill in the legislature of moving the county seat of Alameda County from

Alvarado to San Leandro until the request of the people of San Pablo is heard. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 25

Letter 4
Febr. 13, 1860. San Pablo.

Alvarado to de la Guerra introducing Señor Emeric whom he describes as "one of the most

respectable citizens of the County of Contra Costa." Emeric has been chosen to represent Contra

Costa County against a bill sponsored by a certain Gilman. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 26

Letter 1
Aug. 30, 1845. Monterey.

Alvarado to Rafael Pinto assigning him to the office of sub-treasurer in San Francisco to replace

Benito Díaz. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 27

Letter 1
March 8, 1852. San Francisco.

Alvarado to Antonio María de la Guerra sending a testimonial letter in behalf of Juan Adriano Martré,

a lawyer and friend of Alvarado, requesting that he be presented to the governor in hope of obtaining

the office of notary "since he is the only one in San Francisco with whom we deal for the sale of land

and other necessary writings in our language." Countersigned by José Castro. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 28

Letter 1
Jan. 18, 1867. San Pablo.

Juan C. Alvarado to Pablo de la Guerra proposing to oppose Romualdo Pacheco for the governorship

because "having been elected state treasurer he has done nothing absolutely in favor of his

countrymen to merit their approval." Alvarado states that he feels Pablo would be in favor of Pacheco

both being natives of the same county. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 29

Letter 1
Sept. 14, 1821.

María Rufina (Hernández) Alvitre to José de la Guerra asking him to help her out in her difficulties.

Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 30

Letter 1
Nov. 10, 1856. Santa Barbara.

Bishop Tadeo Amat to José de la Guerra commending Mr. Verret who had been commended by

Father Blaine of San Francisco as a person in whom one may place his "full confidence." He is

seeking to cultivate a garden. Asks de la Guerra to aid him. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 31

Letter 1
Febr., 5, 1858. Santa Barbara.

Bishop [Tadeo] Amat to Antonio de la Guerra who is without money to pay a bill for work done for

the Sisters of Charity; asks de la Guerra to give an order to a Mr.[Isaac?] Sparks who had subscribed

$25.00 but who has not yet paid it. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 31

Letter 2
July 18, 1861. Santa Barbara.

Amat to Antonio María de la Guerra stating that the Sisters of Charity on his advice are to hold a

meeting with competent and interested Santa Barbara persons concerning their continued presence in

Santa Barbara; invited de la Guerra to be present at a meeting at the sisters' home on Thursday, the

25th. Spanish. 1 p.
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DLG 32

Letter 1
July 18, 1861. Santa Barbara.

Amat to Pablo de la Guerra. The same as above. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 33

Letter 1
Febr. 5, 1816. San Carlos.

Fray Juan Amorós, to José de la Guerra on financial matters. Makes reference to a schooner and

captain and to the deterioration of a frigate. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 33

Letter 2
Aug. 6, 1816. San Carlos.

Amorós to de la Guerra on receiving his letter; rejoices over his safe arrival; on financial matters;

refers to an English schooner soon to depart from Monterey, and to the feast of

Porciuncula. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 33

Letter 3
Apr. 25, 1817. San Carlos.

Amorós to de la Guerra concerning the Feast of St. Mark and the procession held at Carmel; his

returning some blankets. He is not surprised that strangers charge a high price for their goods but he is

surprised that Californians charge them a high price for items that are abundant in the territory. He

does not think that strangers should be taken advantage of. It is a matter of conscience and Spanish

honor. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 33

Letter 4
Aug. 14, 1820. San Rafael.

Amorós to de la Guerra calling San Rafael his "pleasing desert." Expresses his happiness over de la

Guerra's safe return from Mexico, Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 34

Letter 1
Dec. 4, 1860. Sacramento City.

J. Anderson to Pablo de la Guerra stating that he is a candidate for clerk of the assembly which he

held before and is soliciting de la Guerra's support. De la Guerra had spoken to General [José María]

Covarrubias favorably before and the former supported him. He fears Covarrubias is against him for

having been a Know- Nothing at one time. Anderson supported the Douglas ticket in the late election.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 35

Letter 1
Aug. 4, 1860. Novales, Spain.

Manuel Anguisola to Francisco de la Guerra stating that he had sold cattle and other items to a certain

Camino for 16,000 duros but had received only 10,000. He asks help to reclaim the rest for he is in

need. This document is also signed by Gaspar de la Guerra, followed by a note written and signed by

J. M. Loureyro. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 36

Letter 1
Jan. 20, 1846. San Juan Bautista.

Fray José Antonio Anzar, O.F.M., to Pablo de la Guerra announcing that he had succeeded in his

commission to ask for the hand of Josefa Moreno in marriage as Pablo's future wife. Gives full

description of the interview. Pablo suspected a rival, one Suñol, but Josefa and her parents preferred

Pablo. Josefa was nicknamed "Quitona." Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 37

Letter 1
Aug. 19, 1845. Monterey.

Francisco Araízu to the commandant of the customs house guard concerning the arrest of a sailor.

Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 38

Letter 1
Apr. 25, 1823. Aboard the Aguila, Santa Barbara.

Antonio de Arana to Fray Luís Antonio Martínez, O.F.M., stating that that he arrived at Santa Barbara

the previous day and delivered the mail Martínez had given him as well as the 2,200 duros for Fray

Antonio Ripoll, O.F.M. He expects to go on to San Juan Capistrano. Spanish. 1 p.
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DLG 39

Letter 1
Sept. 18, 1834. San Gabriel.

Buenaventura Araujo to José María Hijar concerning a request made by two Indians.

Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 40

Letter 1
June 8, 1815. Zacatecas.

Fausta del Arco to Angel de la Cuesta on a money matter. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 41

Letter 1
Jan. 25, 1821. Guadalajara.

Gervasio Argüello to José de la Guerra on having received his letter of Oct. 21, learning of de la

Guerra's safe arrival in California; on conditions in Mexico and Peru. He mentions General Cochrane;

talk of revolution and independence. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 41

Letter 2
May 1, 1829. Guadalajara.

Argüello to de la Guerra on the death of the former's mother on the past 12th, due to a fever, and

dying in a Christian manner. Mentions José La Madrid, Gregorio de 1a Peña and his sister,

Concepción, relative to a financial matter. Rain is scarce in California. The law for the expulsion of

missionaries and Spaniards is mentioned though certain exceptions will be made. Asks de la Guerra

to notify others of his mother's death. Colonel García is named commandant general of Upper

California. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 42

Letter 1
Dec. 9, 1824. Guadalajara.

Gervasio Argüello to his brother, Santiago, on receiving his letter of June 19, 1824, and the news of

the pacification of the Indians in their revolt. Speaks of the Holy Alliance and its intention to

reconquer Mexico. The ecclesiastical state is in a very unhappy condition. The bishop of Guadalajara

died on Nov. 28, 1824, The treasury is short of funds, with lack of money to pay the troops. He is

sending two calendars, one for de la Guerra, the other for Santiago. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 43

Letter 1
Dec. 1812.

Hoja de servicios of José de la Guerra at the age of 35. Signed by José Argüello. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 44

Letter 1
No folders 44-46.

DLG 47

Letter 1
Nov. 9, 1814. Santa Barbara.

José Dario Argüello to José Díaz, captain of the brigantine, Santa Eulalia allowing him to be in port

because of the lack of water and food and allowing a release of 4,000 pesos to be dispensed by Lieut.

José de la Guerra. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 48

Letter 1
March 8, 1814. Loreto.

José Dario Argüello to José de la Guerra telling of his, arrival on Febr. 14, without incident. Spanish.

2 pp.

DLG 48

Letter 2
Nov. 9, 1814. Santa Barbara.

Argüello to Viceroy Felix María Calleja announcing that on Sept. 25, the brigantine, Santa Eulalia,

arrived at San Francisco under Captain José Díaz from Manila. It had been destined for the Russian

settlements but was unable to reach them because of bad weather and was short of water and food, so

the ship visited Monterey, San Diego, and Santa Barbara. Aid was given to the extent of 4,000 pesos

charged to the habilitado general. Spanish. 4 pp.
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DLG 48

Letter 3
Apr. [20?] 1815.

Argüello to José de la Guerra answering his letter congratulating him on his new position about which

however he is not too happy because of his health, advanced age, climate and diminished salary.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 48

Letter 4
Febr. 12, 1818. Loreto.

Argüello to de la Guerra on the latter's silence; the former's account; his sad condition for lack of

certain foods; on news from Sonora concerning a certain Esmit (Smith?). Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 48

Letter 5
Dec. 18, 1818. Loreto.

Argüello to de la Guerra on ships; insurgents; he is without armaments or powder; his pay is in

arrears. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 48

Letter 6
Jan. 30, 1819. [Loreto?].

Argüello to de la Guerra on news received on the sack of Monterey and the burning of the Ortega

Rancho; conditions in Lower California. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 48

Letter 7
March 9, 1819. Loreto.

Argüello to de la Guerra referring to insurgents; the drowning of fifteen people in a launch; his pay in

arrears. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 48

Letter 8
Febr. 9, 1820. Loreto.

Argüello to de la Guerra on his desire to retire; is in poor health; cannot live in Loreto; wishes to be

buried at the monastery of Nuestra Señora del Pueblito (near Querétaro); much misery in Lower

California; only one ship available. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 48

Letter 9
Apr. 10, 1821. Loreto.

Argüello to de la Guerra on the latter's trip to Mexico; many people with the cold at Loreto; his own

illness. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 48

Letter 10
Oct. 6, 1821. Loreto.

Argüello to de la Guerra on his illness; political conditions in Lower California. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 48

Letter 11

Jan. 5, 1822. Loreto.

Argüello to de la Guerra on the latter's silence; states that all America is now under the Trigarante

Imperio: Yucatan and Guatemala now under Mexico; Gervasio [Argüello] is to bring letters. Spanish.

2 pp.

DLG 48

Letter 12
Apr. 16, 1822. Comundú.

Argüello to de la Guerra on his continuing illness; Santiago to bring news; the testament of a certain

Felipe; two warships of Admiral Cochrane sacked Lower California and robbed all his silver; does

not know the state of the archives; describes the armament of the warships; [Agustín] Iturbide

emperor. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 48

Letter 13
Jan. 6, 1825. Guadalajara.

Argüello to de la Guerra on his physical condition; cannot return to California; money owed him by

the government; on money sent by De la Guerra; happenings in Guadalajara; the state of Lower

California. Spanish. 3 pp.
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DLG 48

Letter 14
Undated.

Argüello to de la Guerra on ammunition; on communicating with a certain Ruíz concerning mules to

be used in transportation; on distribution; on dealings with a Russian at Bodega. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 48

Letter 15
Undated, but after 1814.

Argüello to de la Guerra on aid needed by artillerymen; a new captain at the presidio by name of

Ramón de la Roca; on a letter received from the habilitado general. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 49

Letter 1
Aug. 20, 1815. Santa Barbara.

José Argüello to José de la Guerra certifying that the latter had been elected habilitado general for

both Californias in August; 1810, that de la Guerra had been captured by insurgents in San Blas,

Mexico; was released by José de la Cruz and that in Tepic he proved himself valiant in the defense of

the city. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 50

Letter 1
Apr. 6, 1821. Loreto.

Argüello to José Manuel Ruíz on the miserable position he has found himself as governor for the past

six years. Spanish. 6 pp.

DLG 51

Letter 1
July 29, 1818. San Francisco.

Luís Antonio Argüello to José de la Guerra on receiving the hoja de servicios of alférez Santiago

Argüello. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 51

Letter 2
Apr. 21, 1820. San Francisco.

Argüello to de la Guerra explaining his silence because of illness; acknowledging receipt of two

calendars, referring to diligencias matrimoniales of one Maitorena; on pirates in the area; and the

poverty of the soldiers. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 51

Letter 3
Aug. 12, 1820. San Francisco.

Argüello to de la Guerra on the latter's arrival at Monterey; the sad condition of the presidios and the

soldiers; and commenting on the little value of the 36,000 pesos de la Guerra had brought for the

relief of the presidios. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 51

Letter 4
May 27, 1822. [San Francisco?].

Argüello to de la Guerra on the former's receiving permission to marry; the arrival of an English

brigantine from Asia with Don Antonio Quartara and two other Spaniards as passengers. Spanish. 2

pp.

DLG 51

Letter 5
Aug. 2, 1823. Monterey.

Argüello to [de la Guerra?], a copy of the letter sent to the alcalde of Los Angeles concerning

irregular orders sent to him. Cites Article I of the Constitution. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 51

Letter 6
Aug. 12, 1822. San Luis Obispo.

Argüello to de la Guerra wishing to see the latter stating that he cannot come farther south than Santa

Ines where he believed his bride was, but who was in Santa Barbara according to Fray [Francisco

Xavier] Uría, O.F.M. Asks de la Guerra to facilitate her going to Santa Ines. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 51

Letter 7
Sept. 27, 1823. Monterey.

Argüello to de la Guerra concerning duties on whalers; granting permissions for the soldiers,

Alvarado, Duarte and Rubio, and promising to send lumber requested. Spanish. 3 pp.
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DLG 51

Letter 8
Sept. 27, 1823. Monterey.

Argüello to de la Guerra stating that tariffs collected at the port of San Pedro are under the

jurisdiction of the habilitado of San Diego. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 51

Letter 9
Oct. 10, 1823. Monterey.

Argüello to de la Guerra stating that he is sending to him José Ignacio Olivas in custody of Captain

José Romero, to be judged for having robbed a soldier at Purisima of seven pesos. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 51

Letter 10
Oct. 20, [1823?]. San Francisco.

Argüello to de la Guerra concerning financial matters of various persons. Expresses his distrust of

blood-letting and of the físicos who perform it. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 51

Letter 11
Dec. 4, 1823. Monterey.

Argüello to de la Guerra delegating the latter in his name to handle complaints of the citizens of Los

Angeles because of distance. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 51

Letter 12
Febr. 16, 1824. Monterey.

Argüello to de la Guerra asking that accounts of Presidio Santa Barbara concerning derechos

nacionales be reported to Monterey. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 51

Letter 13
Febr. 24, 1824. San Francisco.

Argüello to de la Guerra concerning the report of José [Mariano] Estrada on the Indian outbreak at

Missions San Luis Obispo and Purisima. Asks de la Guerra to handle the situation. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 51

Letter 14
March 10, 1824. Monterey.

Argüello to de la Guerra concerning the Indian uprising at missions Santa Ines and Purisima. Is

sending soldiers and a cannon under José Mariano Estrada. Cites document of instructions. Spanish. 3

pp.

DLG 51

Letter 15
March 31, 1824. Monterey.

Argüello to de la Guerra complaining about having received no further news on the Indian uprising.

Investigation is to be made on the authors of the uprising at Santa Barbara. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 51

Letter 16

Apr. 15, 1824. Monterey.

Argüello to de la Guerra sending the latter a copy of his orders to Captain Pablo de la Portilla in

regard to military operations in the Santa Barbara area. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 51

Letter 17
Apr. 20, 1824. Monterey.

Argüello to de la Guerra on the distribution of money to the military. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 51

Letter 18
Apr. 20, 1824. Monterey.

Argüello to de la Guerra on three Indians of Presidio San Diego being liberated after their six months'

confinement. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 51

Letter 19
May 5, 1824. Monterey.

Argüello to de la Guerra concerning Narciso Fabregat and his military activity at the lake of

Buenavista. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 51

Letter 20
June 2, 1825, Monterey.

Argüello to de la Guerra telling him about his bad health; on his conclusion of negotiations

concerning presidios and missions and the needs of the troops. He asks him to send two presidials to

San Blas. Spanish. 3 pp.
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DLG 51

Letter 21
Oct. 1, 1825. Monterey.

Argüello to de la Guerra on sending a corporal, three soldiers and animals to meet the commandant

general, on permission for corporal Avila; soldiers Pablo Béjar and Francisco Lugo to go to Los

Angeles; the presence of the brigantine, Santo Tomás at Monterey; the visit of María Soledad to her

sister in Santa Cruz. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 51

Letter 22
Oct. 15, 1825. Monterey.

Argüello to de la Guerra on military matters; aid from Loreto; fewness of bishops in Mexico; on

communications; and a confidential statement concerning payments to be made to the military.

Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 51

Letter 23
Oct. 26, 1825. Monterey.

Argüello to de la Guerra on the commandant general's order for the former to come to San Diego and

his declining to do so for reasons of poor health. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 52

Letter 1
Aug 2, 1823. Monterey.

Luís Antonio Argüello to [Manuel Gutiérrez] charging him with overstepping his authority as a

civilian in military matters. Copy as of Aug. 6, 1825. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 53

Letter 1
Apr. 12, 1823. Monterey.

Decree concerning taxes and the payment of government officials. Signed by Argüello. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 53

Letter 2
Jan. 31, 1824. Monterey.

Argüello denouncing the abuse of travelling from place to place without a passport and citing

punishments to be meted out in future for nonobservance. Spanish. 1 p. Signed by Argüello.

DLG 53

Letter 3
Jan. 31, 1824. Monterey.

Similar to above but citing consultation with Padre Vicente Sarría, O.F.M., on the matter. Signed by

Argüello. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 53

Letter 4
Jan. 8, 1824. Monterey.

Plan for the government of California agreed upon by the diputación. Signed by Argüello. Spanish. 4

pp.

DLG 53

Letter 5
Jan. 17, 1827. Monterey.

Measures proposed by Argüello to the diputación on Jan. 7, concerning the tranquility of the territory.

Is California in favor of the federal system of government and if not, what other form would be

acceptable? Signed by Argüello. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 54

Letter 1
Santa Clara, July 18, 1859.

Luís A. Argüello , son of the governor, to Miguel de la Guerra concerning delivery of a horse

requested by the latter. Followed by a note of María de Los Angeles B. de Argüello. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 55

Letter 1
Apr. 20, 1818. Loreto.

María de la Concepción Argüello to José de la Guerra on a letter received; the illness of her brother,

Francisco, and other family items. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 55

Letter 2
Jan. 20, 1829. Guadalajara.

Concepción Argüello to de la Guerra on the desire of her mother to come to California despite her

illness. Spanish. 3 pp.
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DLG 55

Letter 3
1835.

Concepción Argüello to de la Guerra on the state of her family; on a letter from Fray Narciso Durán,

O.F.M.; Concepción's request to give 86 pesos, 6 1/2 reales to Julián Argüello, and the same amount

to Antonio María Osio of Los Angeles for Salvador Osio, asking receipts for the same. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 55

Letter 4
Jan. 11, 1835. Los Angeles.

A receipt by Antonio Maria Osio for 86 pesos, 6 1/2 reales from Concepción Argüello received

through José de la Guerra. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 55

Letter 5
Oct. 16, 1814. Santa Barbara.

Concepción Argüello to de la Guerra asking pardon of the family, the reasons not being given.

Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 55

Letter 6
May 5, 1829.

Concepción Argüello to [José de la Guerra? on receiving a letter from Gregorio de la Peña with a

libranza. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 56

Letter 1
Dec. 4, 1816. San Diego.

Santiago Argüello to José de la Guerra answering two letters concerning the shipment of articles.

Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 56

Letter 2
March 31, 1818. San Buenaventura.

Argüello to de la Guerra; on letter writing and concerning his esteem for de la Guerra. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 56

Letter 3
May 4, 1818. San Gabriel.

Argüello to de la Guerra on the return of the soldiers, Patricio and José Manuel; his leaving for San

Diego; the delay caused by the rise of rivers; asking to be corrected and counseled when in error.

Mentions Fray Antonio Menéndez, O. P., twice. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 56

Letter 4
Aug. 28, 1818. San Diego.

Argüello to de la Guerra concerning accounts. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 56

Letter 5
Dec. 21, 1818. San Diego.

Argüello to de la Guerra on the manner of his being received in San Diego and on the ships of

[Hippolyte] Bouchard. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 56

Letter 6
Apr. 22, 1819. San Diego.

Argüello to de la Guerra on three letters received from the latter; on mercantile and money matters;

his dealings with Fray José Sánchez, O.F.M., of Mission San Diego. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 56

Letter 7
May 21, 1819. San Diego.

Argüello to de la Guerra on mercantile matters; his shipping seeds of sweet oranges from Panama to

Fray Antonio Ripoll, O.F.M., of Mission Santa Barbara. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 56

Letter 8
July 13, 1819. San Diego.

Argüello to de la Guerra concerning his proposed transfer to San Francisco, to which he has no

objection. He considers San Diego a place of exile. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 56

Letter 9
Nov. 11, 1819. San Diego.

Argüello to de la Guerra reiterating his esteem for de la Guerra; sends a warrant for goods and deals

with accounts. Spanish. 3 pp.
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DLG 56

Letter 10
Dec. 31, 1819. San Diego.

Statement on receipts and discounts pertinent to the habilitación of Presidio Santa Barbara. In hand of

Argüello and signed by him. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 56

Letter 11
Apr. 29, 1820. San Diego.

Argüello to de la Guerra concerning orders for payments; the latter's arrival at San Blas; expresses his

hurt at not having received letters and makes inquiries concerning requests he had made. Spanish. 2

pp.

DLG 56

Letter 12
Aug. 19, 1820. San Diego.

Argüello to de la Guerra on the latter's return to California; on requests he had made before the latter's

leaving for Mexico; and the presence of his wife, Pilar, at Santa Barbara. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 56

Letter 13
Oct. 3, 1820. San Diego.

Argüello to de la Guerra on his desire to leave San Diego and to speak to the governor; on Pablo de la

Portilla being made commandant of arms at San Diego; on Pilar (his wife) about to leave Santa

Barbara for San Diego; Machado's leaving a ranch and a certain Joaquín's account. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 56

Letter 14
Nov. 22, 1820. San Diego.

Argüello to de la Guerra answering his letter of Nov. 16, promising to obey the regulations

concerning derechos reales, and a draft for San Blas. Argüello is suffering from a fever. Spanish. 3

pp.

DLG 56

Letter 15
Febr. 6, 1821. San Diego.

Argüello to de la Guerra concerning a draft; financial matters; his thinking of giving up his office as

habilitado. He has written to the padres of Mission Purisima asking for two mufflers. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 56

Letter 16
Apr. 10, 1821. San Diego.

Argüello to de la Guerra on receiving his letter of March 21, defending himself against a rebuke or

complaint and protesting his esteem for de la Guerra; writes concerning accounts; punishment for a

soldier, Ortiz; asks that the office of habilitado be given to a certain Domingo and that he, Santiago,

be transferred to Santa Barbara. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 56

Letter 17
July 4, 1821. San Diego.

Argüello to de la Guerra declaring that he desires to be guided in his operations by de la Guerra's

counsel and asking the latter's help in solving a matter between himself and his commander. Spanish.

4 pp.

DLG 56

Letter 18
Febr. 14, 1821. San Diego.

Argüello to de la Guerra on giving certain animals to Gervasio Ayala. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 56

Letter 19
Dec. 10, 1822. San Diego.

Short note on giving a receipt for 80 pesos. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 56

Letter 20
Jan. 14, 1823. San Diego.

Argüello to de la Guerra on financial matters and on a game of chance with money as stakes. Spanish.

3 pp.

DLG 56

Letter 21
June 9, 1823. San Diego.

Argüello to de la Guerra concerning the collection of derechos. Spanish. 3 pp.
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DLG 56

Letter 22
Febr. 15, 1825. San Diego.

Argüello to de la Guerra on receiving four letters from the latter; on the deaths of Dominican

missionaries in Lower California due to a pest; oath to the Constitution taken at the presidio. Spanish.

4 pp.

DLG 56

Letter 23
May 25, 1825. San Diego.

Argüello to de la Guerra on the desertion of soldiers from Mazatlán. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 56

Letter 24
Febr. 22, 1830. San Diego.

Argüello to de la Guerra concerning an account of Juan Bandini. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 56

Letter 25
Jan. 15, 1841. Los Angeles.

Argüello to de la Guerra on the transfer of cattle. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 56

Letter 26
Febr. 1, 1841. Los Angeles.

Argüello to de la Guerra on granting some soldiers under Roberto Pardo to serve in the former's

prefecture. Mentions Nicolás Fink. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 56

Letter 27
Febr. 5, 1841. Los Angeles.

Argüello to de la Guerra thanking him for sending soldiers; on handing over cattle; drought in the Los

Angeles area; hurricane winds and a general fire; the illness of Señora Juana Anastasia. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 56

Letter 28
Apr. 14, 1841. Los Angeles.

Argüello to de la Guerra on alférez Roberto Pardo and his soldiers leaving Los Angeles for Santa

Barbara; asking de la Guerra to thank them for their services. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 56

Letter 29
June 24, 1841. Los Angeles.

Argüello to de la Guerra on the stabbing of Commander José A. Gastaleta by Juanita Gastelum on

June 10. The news was given by Alférez Armenta. Scandal was involved. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 56

Letter 30
1841

Argüello to de la Guerra defending the latter as always; treats of political matters; moral conditions in

Los Angeles; the unhappy decline of Missions San Gabriel and San Juan Capistrano whose lay

majordomos have turned them into "refined brothels." Spanish. 5 pp.

DLG 56

Letter 31
Aug. 23, 1849. San Diego.

Argüello to de la Guerra concerning Rancho de las Pulgas. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 56

Letter 32
Oct. 9. San Juan Capistrano. The next 27 letters have only the day & month, no year

Argüello to de la Guerra concerning his unhappiness in being stationed at San Diego; his difficulties;

asks for counsel; mentions Estudillo, and names Mexican state independence. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 56

Letter 33
San Diego 26.

Argüello to de la Guerra on Juan Germán's payment of 26 pesos to de la Guerra; asking de la Guerra

to leave him certain articles in the event he is taking a trip, and his need to sell otter skins to provide

clothing for his children. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 56

Letter 34
Oct. 30, San Diego.

Argüello to de la Guerra asking the latter the amount he owes him and informing him that, in the

event of his death, he leaves two barks at San Quentín, Lower California. Spanish. 2 pp.
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DLG 56

Letter 35
San Diego, Dec. 17.

Argüello to de la Guerra stating that his father-in-law is in danger of death; that his wife, Pilar, has

given birth to a child, of whom José Antonio Carrillo is the godfather; the arrival of Viceroy [Juan]

O'Donojú in Mexico to compose matters between that country and Spain. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 56

Letter 36
San Diego Aug. 16.

Argüello to de la Guerra sending him a drawing of the Mexican flag. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 56

Letter 37
San Diego. May 10.

Argüello to de la Guerra on various items relating to Mexico and South America; asks the

whereabouts of Laserna Contarac and other officers of a Spanish squadron; states he witnessed the

capitulation between Contarac and General Sucre, mentions the brigantines Pescuela and Ester, and el

Conde de San Simón with a frigate at Soto la Marina. The governor is given powers of inspection

while Morales and Peramás are deprived of them. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 56

Letter 38
San Diego, Nov. 29.

Argüello to de la Guerra stating that he is impressed with the latter's counsel with the result that the

former intends remaining at San Diego. Congratulates de la Guerra on the birth of a child. Estudillo

has difference with him. Mentions Agustín Iturbide. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 56

Letter 39
San Gabriel. 21.

Argüello to de la Guerra concerning his fear of going to San Diego because of a dispute between the

captain and two sergeants and Estudillo. Reports the presence of a schooner in the area of the islands

and a large bark beyond the islands which is perhaps spying. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 56

Letter 40
Dec. 8.

Argüello to de la Guerra on receiving two letters. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 56

Letter 41
San Diego 6.

Argüello to de la Guerra. A note concerning a report. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 56

Letter 42
San Diego, Vespers of the Feast of San Diego.

Argüello to de la Guerra concerning accounts, with a short statement on Maricopa and Opata Indians.

Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 56

Letter 43

Without place or date.

Argüello to de la Guerra announcing that he and all of his soldiers have delegated de la Guerra as

interim governor of the province; on prices on certain articles. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 56

Letter 44
San Diego. Febr. 25.

Argüello to de la Guerra sending him news items to be passed on to the governor. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 56

Letter 45
San Diego. Sept. 12.

Argüello to de la Guerra concerning a certain Enrique and asking de la Guerra to return the drawing

of the flag he had sent him; on payment of derechos. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 56

Letter 46
San Diego. Aug. 16, [1821?]

Argüello to de la Guerra on a cordillera of the Dominican padres; the non-adoption by the Spanish

Cortés of the Treaty of Córdoba; the election of Agustín Iturbide as emperor of America; the request

of Sr. Canonigo on the productions of the land; the proposed meeting of the Dominicans at San

Vicente to take the oath of allegiance before a judge. Spanish. 3 pp.
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DLG 56

Letter 47
San Diego. Oct. 12.

Argüello to de la Guerra complaining about the latter's silence; reminds him of various requests made.

Has given up smoking for want of tobacco. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 56

Letter 48
San Gabriel. Nov. 2.

Argüello to de la Guerra stating that Joaquín de la Torre is to replace Don Carlos as habilitado.

Requests certain items. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 56

Letter 49
San Diego. July 27.

Argüello to de la Guerra announcing the birth of another child. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 56

Letter 50
San Diego. May 7.

Argüello to de la Guerra rendering thanks for favors, complaining about his difficulties. Spanish. 3

pp.

DLG 56

Letter 51
San Diego. July 13.

Argüello to de la Guerra concerning otters. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 56

Letter 52
Aug. 23.

Argüello to de la Guerra on notices received; the Dominican meeting; on prices. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 56

Letter 53
San Diego, Feast of the Holy Cross. [After 1815].

Argüello to de la Guerra concerning a libranza. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 56

Letter 54
San Diego. June 4.

Argüello to de la Guerra stating he has permission to go to Santa Barbara to liquidate his accounts; on

mountain lions damaging a herd and concerning barrels. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 56

Letter 55
Retiro de la Victoria. July 22.

Argüello to de la Guerra stating that he is at his retiro to cultivate the land and sustain his family.

Mentions [José María] Covarrubias and Tomás Yorba. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 56

Letter 56
San Diego. May 9.

Argüello to de la Guerra on sending a libranza, Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 56

Letter 57
San Diego. Aug. 31.

Argüello to de la Guerra asking that Carlos Carrillo see him at San Gabriel or Los Angeles on the

eighth of the month. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 56

Letter 58
San Diego. March 4.

Argüello to de la Guerra complaining about not receiving letters from the latter and asking for two

arrobas of seeds for planting. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 57

Letter 1
No folder

DLG 58

Letter 1
Sept. 2, 1849. Los Angeles.

Manuel Amario to Pablo de la Guerra concerning a theater in the salon of Abel [Stearns?]; on the help

Pablo had given him by letters of introduction to Ignacio Valle and Agustín Olvera. Asks him to

confirm or deny as to whether arms had to be taken up in the place of his residence. Spanish. 2 pp.
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DLG 59

Letter 1
Apr. 28, 1852. San Buenaventura.

Agreement between José de Arnaz and Manuel Antonio Rodríguez de Poli re certain clauses in the

deed of sale of ex-mission San Buenaventura, executed by Arnaz in favor of Rodríguez de Poli, Aug.

29, 1850. Certification of filing in English. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 60

Letter 1
March 12, 1869. Santa Clara.

José de Arqués to Pablo de la Guerra on sending the latter canaries and parrots; on social matters of

the family; a proposed meeting in the "salón de cascarones" at Mission San Luis Obispo; his building

activities in Santa Clara. Spanish. 1 pp.

DLG 61

Letter 1
Oct. 15, 1801. Loreto.

José Joaquín Arillaga to Raimundo Carrillo sending him a copy of an agreement in favor of the

gunner's mate of San Blas; on Joaquín Sánchez, who is sailing on the Concepción for Monterey.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 61

Letter 2
Nov. 3, 1810. Loreto.

Arillaga to Raimundo Carrillo sending him a copy of a communication from the viceroy of Aug. 12,

1801, declaring that Joaquín Sánchez is going to California to raise hemp. Includes a list of tools to be

used in the project. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 62

Letter 1
Nov. 14, 1801. Loreto. 37 letters of Arillaga to José de la Guerra, 1801-1803.

Arillaga to José de la Guerra proposing the latter for the Presidio Santa Barbara to succeed Raimundo

Carrillo at the end of the year. Sergeant Gabriel Moraga and the cadet Fernando de Toba mentioned.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 62

Letter 2
July 18, 1803. Loreto.

Arrillaga to de la Guerra on the latter's return from Branciforte and San Jose hoping that a church will

be built at the latter place, and referring to money matters. Spanish. Document partly torn. 4 pp.

DLG 62

Letter 3
Aug. 20, 1803. San Xavier.

Arrillaga to de la Guerra commending him for giving liberty to a pagan and for punishment meted out

to one Gomalo; his assistance given to a certain Macario in the matter of raising hemp; concerning

which there is some opposition at San Blas; mentions his relations with Sánchez; the deceased Father

President [Lasuén, O.F.M.,]; the gratuities given officials, voluntarios. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 62

Letter 4
March 23, 1804. Loreto.

Arrillaga to de la Guerra granting him permission to marry María [Antonia] Carrillo citing the

permission of the viceroy. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 62

Letter 5
Nov. 16, 1804. Loreto.

Arrillaga to de la Guerra thanking him for his congratulations at his appointment as governor and his

reaction of not being too pleased with the appointment. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 62

Letter 6
Jan. 19, 1806. Soledad.

Arrillaga to de la Guerra announcing his intention to visit Presidio Monterey and asking him to

provide for him for several days. Partly torn at upper edge. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 62

Letter 7
June 5, 1806. Santa Clara.

Arrillaga to de la Guerra placing him in command of Presidio Santa Barbara. Spanish. 3 pp.
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DLG 62

Letter 8
June 9, 1806. Santa Cruz.

Arrillaga to de la Guerra praising him for an action taken. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 62

Letter 9
June 30, 1806. Monterey.

Arrillaga to de la Guerra announcing that the viceroy had placed de la Guerra in charge of Presidio

Santa Barbara as lieutenant; José Estudillo becomes a cadet, Gabriel Moraga alférez at San Francisco

and José Mariano Estrada of Loreto joins the Presidio force at Monterey. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 62

Letter 10
Aug. 7, 1806. Monterey.

Arrillaga to de la Guerra sending a copy of the viceroy's letter of May 5 allowing the soldier, Rafael

Arriola, to go to San Blas to be reemployed there. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 62

Letter 11
Aug. 28, 1806. Santa Barbara.

Arrillaga to de la Guerra on the arrival of the frigate, Concepción; Argüello and his family to embark

at Monterey; praising de la Guerra for a certain matter; an expedition to leave on the morrow under

[Gabriel] Moraga. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 62

Letter 12
Sept. 4, 1806. San Gabriel.

Arrillaga to de la Guerra asking him to give the cadet, José Raimundo Estrada, a place in the first

opening available. The habilitado is to be given ten pesos monthly besides his salary. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 62

Letter 13
Sept. 10, 1806. San Juan Capistrano.

Arrillaga to de la Guerra on certain Russians to be taken aboard the Concepción to San Blas to be at

the disposal of the viceroy; on an Indian gardener for the governor; the need for giving certain

accounts for July; five soldiers to be sent to the guard at San Luis Obispo and San Miguel; conclusion

of the fiesta "the fandango lasting until sunrise." Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 62

Letter 14
Sept. 26, 1806. San Diego.

Arrillaga to de la Guerra concerning a Peruvian ship taken by the English at San Blas, a letter

concerning Mariano Castro; various small matters. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 62

Letter 15
Oct. 8, 1806. San Diego.

Arrillaga to de la Guerra asking him to accept the position as lieutenant at Presidio San Diego rather

than at Santa Barbara with Raimundo Carrillo as captain and telling him to be frank in his answer;

refers to Archuleta and to Estudillo and his wife. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 62

Letter 16
Nov. 15, 1806. San Diego.

Arrillaga to de la Guerra concerning the recruit, Juan José Franco, whom he had brought with him

from Mexico. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 62

Letter 17
Nov. 15, 1806. San Diego.

Arrillaga to de la Guerra on the latter showing no repugnance in going to San Diego; his sending on a

certification de la Guerra had sent him; asking him to have Vallejo to have lumber cut for an

esplanade; news from Europe. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 62

Letter 18
Nov. 19, 1806. San Diego.

Arrillaga to de la Guerra on forwarding a message through Gabriel Moraga. Spanish. 1 p.
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DLG 62

Letter 19
Jan. 7, 1807. San Diego.

Arrillaga to de la Guerra announcing that alférez Ignacio Martínez is to hand over the accounts of

Presidio San Diego to José de la Guerra as the new habilitado. Arrillaga authorizes de la Guerra to

proceed with detailed investigations. Mentioned are alférez Francisco María Ruíz and habilitado

Manuel Rodríguez. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 62

Letter 20
Febr. 17, 1807. Santa Barbara.

Arrillaga to de la Guerra stating that the viceroy had appointed lieutenant José Raimundo Carrillo as

commandant of Presidio Santa Barbara. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 62

Letter 21
Febr. 26, 1807. Monterey.

Arrillaga to de la Guerra acknowledging receipt from the latter the of the hoja de servicios of the

alférez, cadet and sergeant of de la Guerra's company (San Diego) and an account of the battery at the

Punta de Guijarros. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 62

Letter 22
March 3, 1807. Santa Barbara.

Arrillaga to de la Guerra notifying him that he is on the way to Monterey; on a payment to be made to

Padre Ramón [Abella? Olbés?], O.F.M., that Arrillaga owes him; asks for the measurements of the

esplanade at the Punta de Guijarros; on gacetas; and the request of Joaquín Sánchez for retirement.

Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 62

Letter 23
Apr. 30, 1807. Monterey.

Arrillaga to de la Guerra concerning the transfer of a corporal and five soldiers from San Diego to

Loreto; asking him to carry out the formalities and to determine the limits of jurisdiction between

Upper and Lower California. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 62

Letter 24
Apr. 30, 1807. Monterey.

Arrillaga to de la Guerra concerning instructions given to sergeant José Pico; the need for each soldier

to have eight horses, one a beast of burden; the lack of sufficient horses and mantles; on gambling,

review of troops, and the prohibition against soldiers carrying the mail going beyond the limits of the

mission nearest the presidio without special permission. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 62

Letter 25
May 1, 1807. Monterey.

Arrillaga to de la Guerra on receiving a gaceta and his reaction to the news therein; the case of an

unnamed corporal; the coming of a cadet to Presidio San Diego; permission given to de la Guerra to

go to San Miguel in Lower California to deliver the soldiers requested and to determine the limits

between Lower and Upper California; and on lumber for the esplanade of Punta de Guijarros.

Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 62

Letter 26
July 20, 1807. Monterey.

Arrillaga to de la Guerra on receiving the accounts of the habilitación of Presidio San Diego during

the tenure of Ignacio Martínez. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 62

Letter 27
May 6, 1809. Monterey.

Arrillaga to de la Guerra concerning accounts and personalities at Presidio San Diego. Mentioned are

Carrillo, Ruíz, Martínez and Pico. Spanish. 4 pp.
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DLG 62

Letter 28
Aug. 1, 1809. Monterey.

Arrillaga to de la Guerra on the departure of two barks; remarking on the case of an unnamed soldier

for whom Estudillo is jurisconsult; and Martínez, the fiscal. He is sending de la Guerra a barrel of

salmon on the Concepción. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 62

Letter 29
July 3, 1810. Monterey.

Arrillaga to De la Guerra: a personal letter of reflection. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 62

Letter 30
Aug. 31, 1810. Monterey.

Arrillaga to de la Guerra sending the latter his passport going to Mexico as habilitado general.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 62

Letter 31
Oct. 1, 1810. Monterey.

Arrillaga to de la Guerra commenting on the number of expedientes of the real audiencia; on

receiving a certification from Father Sánchez, O.F.M.,; on permission to bring two pieces of furniture

from Lower California; on an unnamed missionary who is in too many "borucas;" and a clock of

Arrillaga's to be taken to Mexico to be fixed. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 62

Letter 32
Nov. 4, 1810. Monterey.

Arrillaga to de la Guerra wishing him a happy journey to Mexico and asking him to return to him the

reglamento de montepío which he had loaned to him. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 62

Letter 33
Dec. 4., 1812. Monterey.

Arrillaga to de la Guerra stating that the latter can remain in San Diego as long as he desires and has

permission to come to Monterey to speak with Father [Vicente] Sarría, O.F.M. He is unaware that he

has been made a brigadier general. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 62

Letter 34
Apr. 3 - May, 1814. Monterey.

Arrillaga to de la Guerra wishing him a happy journey and asking him to make certain purchases.

Señor [Nicolás] Noé mentioned. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 62

Letter 35
June 2, 1813. Monterey.

Arrillaga to de la Guerra on purchases. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 62

Letter 36
July 5, 1815. Monterey.

Arrillaga to de la Guerra appointing him again as habilitado of San Diego. Lieutenant Francisco

María Ruíz mentioned. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 63

Letter 1
Aug. 3, 1810. Monterey.

Passport given to de la Guerra by Arrillaga as habilitado general of the Californias. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 64

Letter 1
March 31, 1818. San Juan Bautista.

Felipe Arroyo de la Cuesta, O.F.M., to José de la Guerra sending congratulations. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 64

Letter 2
May 2, 1818.

Arroyo de la Cuesta to de la Guerra sending congratulations. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 64

Letter 3
Nov. 27, 1829. San Juan Bautista.

Arroyo de la Cuesta to de la Guerra concerning a revolt of troops at Monterey and father prefect's

presence at San Juan Bautista because of De la Cuesta's rheumatism. Spanish. 2 pp.
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DLG 64

Letter 4
Oct. 20, 1829. San Juan Bautista.

Arroyo de la Cuesta to de la Guerra on money matters; his need for galón; the rumor that Spain will

recognize Francisco de Paula. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 65

Letter 1
Aug. 11, 1820. San Juan Bautista.

Arroyo de la Cuesta to José María Estudillo sending him flour but no pears. Unhappy news from

Spain. Arroyo is alone, ill and tormented by lice. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 66

Letter 1
Jan. 29, 1812. epic.

Joaquín de Astiazarán to José de la Guerra concerning merchandise. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 66

Letter 2
Jan. 31, 1812. Tepic.

Astiazarán to de la Guerra concerning merchandise; various ships at San Blas from Panama and

Guayaquil; roads leading to Mexico are intercepted. Mentioned are Nicolás Noé, alférez Mateo

Plovón, the frigate Flora, Leonardo Pintado, Fray Pedro Panto, O.F.M., Juan de Martiarena, and

Angel de la Cuesta. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 66

Letter 3
Oct. 20, 1813. Tepic.

Astiazarán to de la Guerra on hearing from Juan de Martiarena on the earthquakes in California

(1812); merchandise and news of the war in Spain and Mexico. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 66

Letter 4
May 25, 1814. Tepic.

Astiazarán to de la Guerra on transactions and the war in Spain. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 66

Letter 5
Nov. 16, 1814. Tepic.

Astiazarán to de la Guerra on commercial transactions. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 66

Letter 6
Nov. 16, 1814. Tepic.

Astiazarán to de la Guerra on commercial transactions; a Spanish ship at Acapulco, another at

Manila; the frigate, La Princesa, in a ruined condition at San Blas; the latter place becoming a "noble

y real ayuntamiento" on Aug. 22, 1813, with Astiazarán as chief regidor. Mentions Fray Marcos

Amestoy, O.F.M., and the frigate, Tagle. Amestoy adds a personal note stating his health has

improved. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 66

Letter 7
May 17, 1815. San Bias.

Astiazarán to de la Guerra stating that Fray Marcos Amestoy, O.F.M., recently left for Guadalajara

somewhat improved in health; treats of mercantile matters; the new governor of California, Pablo

Solá, of Toluca, arrived the day before at Tepic; the annulment of the title of San Blas, by the king,

given by the regency and the Cortés; news of the proximate arrival of the new viceroy, [Francisco

Javier] Venegas. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 66

Letter 8
May 30, 1815, Tepic.

Astiazarán to de la Guerra sending him a box of chocolate by way of the corvette, Paz. Pedro de

Negrete is owner of the ship. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 66

Letter 9
Nov. 28, l815. Tepic.

Astiazarán to de la Guerra concerning a libranza; the war; the parish priest of San Blas being

decorated with the Cross of Isabela for his services. Pedro Negrete mentioned. Spanish. 3 pp.
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DLG 66

Letter 10
Aug. 21, 1816. Tepic.

Astiazarán to de la Guerra on the San Carlos ready to sail for Acapulco to pick up the memorias of

the California missions; a note of sympathy to de la Guerra on the death of his mother; De la Guerra's

missive being sent to Guadalajara; scant news from Spain; the presence of the king in Madrid; little

military action in Mexico. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 66

Letter 11
May 4, 1819. Tepic.

Astiazarán to de la Guerra announcing that the frigate, Reyna de los Angeles, under José Bandini, is

sailing for California; on a bill owed by De la Guerra; Astiazarán's marriage in March to María del

Carmen Iñigo; the death of Queen Isabel Francisca Braganza on Dec. 26, 1818, her death being

commemorated by a six month period of mourning at Tepic; corsairs seen in San Blas waters.

Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 66

Letter 12
Nov. 20, 1819. Tepic.

Astiazarán to de la Guerra on hearing of his arrival on the Reina de los Angeles and his offer to be of

service to him. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 66

Letter 13
July 26, 1820. Tepic.

Astiazarán to de la Guerra asking for four otter skins, gives names of men comprising the

ayuntamiento of Tepic; announces the adherence of the king of Spain to the Constitution. Spanish. 3

pp.

DLG 66

Letter 14
Jan. 30, 1821. Tepic.

Astiazarán to de la Guerra thanking him for sending him six otter skins; is sending him gacetas from

Spain; news from Mexico; the arrival of Admiral Cochrane in South America; on the birth of a

daughter who died shortly thereafter but baptized; and mercantile matters. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 66

Letter 15
May 31, 1822. Tepic.

Astiazarán to de la Guerra on otter skins; the independence of Mexico; [Agustín] Iturbide emperor. Is

expecting another child. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 67

Letter 1
March 21, 1854. San Francisco.

F. B. Austin, Nathaniel Gray and William H. Manlett to Pablo de la Guerra concerning a bill in the

California senate "To Encourage the Establishing of a Rural Cemetery." The above- mentioned

signers had purchased land on Lone Mountain (San Francisco) to be used as a burial place. English. 3

pp.

DLG 68

Letter 1
c. 1815.

Guadalupe Avila to José de la Guerra asking for a loan. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 69

Letter 1
Jan. 14, 1857. San Miguelito.

Miguel Avila to Pablo de la Guerra concerning the request of a number of people of San Luis Obispo

for his house and a portion of land for the benefit of the city; asks de la Guerra to prevent this since a

deputy, Graves, is to propose it to the State Assembly. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 69

Letter 2
Jan. 24, 1860. Puerto de San Luis.

Avila to de la Guerra concerning the attempt of others to take away his property. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 69

Letter 3
Febr. 8, 1860. San Miguelito.

Avila to de la Guerra on the same matter. Spanish. 6 pp.



8/26/2009 Page 34

DLG 69

Letter 4
March 22, 1861. San Luis Obispo.

Avila to de la Guerra complaining against the county assessors for arbitrary taxes being place on his

property. Asks aid in the matter. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 70

Letter 1
May 4, 1868. San Francisco.

A telegram from Samuel Beach Axtell to de la Guerra advising the latter that he had been

unanimously elected as a member of Axtell's Congressional Committee and urging him to accept.

English. 1 p.

DLG 71

Letter 1
Dec. 19, 1857.

Emigdia Valencia Ayala to José de la Guerra asking aid to the amount of 40 pesos because of her

need. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 72

Letter 1
April 9, 1861. Stockton.

Eliza I. Aylsworth to Pablo de la Guerra asking him not to vote for the transfer of Elk Island since she

does not want to lose it. English. 1 p.

DLG 73

Letter 1
Sept. 13, 1818. San Gabriel.

Juan Salvador Azpiroz to José de la Guerra concerning a contract regarding tallow of June 26, 1818.

Persons mentioned: Carrillo, Patricio Pico, Ignacio Martínez, Captain García and Mariano Cota.

Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 73

Letter 2
Sept. 24, 1818. San Gabriel.

Azpiroz to de la Guerra giving his and the background of his parents in Spain; mercantile and

financial matters. Persons mentioned: Pico, [Teodoro?]Arellanes, Julio Verdugo, Manríquez and

[José Antonio] Aguirre. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 73

Letter 3
Oct. 5, 1818. San Gabriel.

Azpiroz to de la Guerra on sending him two signed contracts; on giving six arrobas of tallow to the

Manríquez, and another amount to the comisionado of Los Angeles. Expresses his loyalty to

Ferdinand of Spain. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 74

Letter 1
Sept. 25, 1857. Sacramento.

John Walter Bagley to Pablo de la Guerra who had served in the legislature in 1854 and is now a

candidate for secretary of the senate; asks de la Guerra to use his influence with senator-elect;

[Romualdo] Pacheco, to obtain the position for him. A David Mahony is an interested backer of

Bagley. Edward Goreau, on a separate page, makes the same request in favor of Bagley. English. 2

pp.

DLG 75

Letter 1
Oct. 8, 1857. Los Angeles.

Arcadia (Bandini) Stearns Baker to Elena Robinson recalling a visit of the latter to Los Angeles and

sending greetings to various persons. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 76

Letter 1
June 1, 1850. San Francisco.

Drury P. Baldwin to Pablo de la Guerra asking he is willing to have Drury for his agent for Squatters,

taxation of foreign miners, and Indian killings briefly treated. English. 3 pp.

DLG 77

Letter 1
Sept. 3, 1861. Sacramento.

A. A. H. Ball to Pablo de la Guerra inviting him to attend the festivities of the Sacramento Pioneer

Association. English. 1 p.
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DLG 78

Letter 1
Sept. 25, 1819. San Luis.

José Bandini to José de la Guerra forwarding a letter from Juan Salvador Azpiroz. Hopes to be in

Santa Barbara in October. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 78

Letter 2
Oct. 5, 1819. San Luis.

Bandini to de la Guerra on learning of the latter's intention of going to Mexico on Bandini's ship.

Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 78

Letter 3
Oct. 20, 1819. Aboard the frigate, Reina.

Bandini to de la Guerra on receiving from the latter a letter and twelve barrels to be delivered to the

alcalde of San Pedro. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 78

Letter 4
Oct. 28, 1819. Aboard the Reina at San Pedro.

Bandini to de la Guerra announcing the proximate date of departure. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 78

Letter 5
Oct. 29, 1819. Aboard the Reina at San Pedro.

Bandini to de la Guerra announcing the date of departure early in November. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 79

Letter 1
March 26, 1825. San Diego.

Juan Bandini to José de la Guerra on the latter's surprise on not hearing from Bandini and Bandini's

surprise on not having his letters to the government answered. Partly torn. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 79

Letter 2
March 6, 1830. San Diego.

Bandini to de la Guerra on his return to San Diego from Santa Barbara and his several interviews with

Fray Vicente Pascual Oliva, O.F.M., in reference to money matters. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 79

Letter 3
July 6, 1830. San Diego.

Bandini to de la Guerra concerning Oliva and money matters. Water-stained and difficult to read in

places. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 79

Letter 4
Febr. 7, 1831. San Diego.

Bandini to de la Guerra on financial matters. Oliva and Fray Luís Martínez, O.F.M., mentioned.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 79

Letter 5

Jan. 17, 1842. Rancho de San Juan del Rio.

Bandini to de la Guerra on the poor mail service. Miguel Palacios mentioned. Partly water-soaked.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 79

Letter 6
Jan. 30, 1842. Rancho de San Juan del Rio.

Bandini to de la Guerra concerning [Miguel] Palacios; a strayed letter; his misfortunes, losses, debts;

and his position as inspector of customs houses. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 79

Letter 7
July 5, 1842. San Juan Capistrano.

Bandini to de la Guerra concerning his involvement in a financial matter at Mission San Juan

Capistrano, Fray José María Zalvidea, O.F.M., had entrusted Victor Janssens with 117 ounces of

gold, who buried it in the mission, and departed for Monterey. Zalvidea disturbed over Janssens' long

absence called in Bandini who found it, with six ounces missing. Bandini entrusted the money to

Abel Stearns, and Bandini soon found himself a target of accusations. He received a stern letter from

Fray Narciso Durán, O.F.M., which angered Bandini who declares his determination to seek

satisfaction. Spanish. 6 pp.
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DLG 80

Letter 1
June 21, 1834. Acapulco.

Juan Bandini to Miguel Palacios: a promissory note for 1,012 pesos, 7 reales, followed by assignment

of the note by Palacios to José de la Guerra and dated Febr. 12, 1841. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 81

Letter 1
Febr. 21, 1866. San Buenaventura.

Thomas Robert Bard to Charles E. Huse and Thomas Sprague concerning partition of Rancho La

Colonia. English. 1 p.

DLG 81

Letter 2
Nov. 9, 1867. Ojai.

Bard to Huse asking him concerning a statement he made with regard to Mr. Scott's title to Rancho

La Colonia. Mentioned are Misters Packard and [Thomas] Sprague. English. 2 pp.

DLG 81

Letter 3
Nov. 15, 1867. Ojai.

Bard to Huse on having received from him the explanation requested on ownership of Rancho La

Colonia. Gives details on the land. Mentioned are: Camarillo, Omart, Sprague, the California

Petroleum Company, Ranchos Simi; Las Posas and San Francisco. English. 3 pp.

DLG 82

Letter 1
Sept. 8, 1873. San Buenaventura.

Thomas Robert Bard to Francis Alexander Thompson on their defeat in recent elections. English. 2

pp.

DLG 83

Letter 1
May 22, 1829. Tepic.

Eustace Barron to José de la Guerra on receiving documents concerning the schooner, Dorotea,

wishing him a happy return to California and sending greetings to a certain Narváez. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 84

Letter 1
Jan. 3, 1856. Boston.

John F. Bartlett to Antonio Jimeno, O.F.M. Just a chatty letter. English. 3 pp.

DLG 85

Letter 1
Dec. 6, 1821. Monterey.

Gerónimo Basterra to José de la Guerra asking him if he has any otter skins and, if so, what is their

price. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 86

Letter 1
Jan. 3, 1861. San Francisco.

Benjamin Lloyd Beall to Pablo de la Guerra introducing William McQueen applying for position of

page in the senate. English. 1 p.

DLG 87

Letter 1
Sept. 18, 1863. Los Angeles.

Charles A. Beebe to Pablo de la Guerra recommending the latter as a candidate for district judge.

English. 1 p.

DLG 88

Letter 1
March 3, 1855. San Francisco.

Alejandro Bellangé to Pablo de la Guerra on a debt of the Mexican government owed to Cesareo

Lataillade. Includes a letter in French dated Febr. 2, 1855. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 88

Letter 2
March 18, 1855. Mexico.

Bellangé to Pablo de la Guerra on the same matter. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 88

Letter 3
May 11, 1855. Mexico.

Bellangé to de la Guerra on the same matter. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 88

Letter 4
June 5, 1855. Mexico.

Bellangé to de la Guerra on the same matter. Spanish. 2 pp.
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DLG 88

Letter 5
June 5, 1855. Mexico.

Bellangé to de la Guerra on the same matter. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 88

Letter 6
July 4, 1855. Mexico.

Bellangé to De la Guerra: on the same matter. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 89

Letter 1
Febr. 2, 1855. Mexico.

Alejandro Bellangé to Eugenia Lataillade on the same matter. French. 3 pp.

DLG 90

Letter 1
June 9, 1869. San Francisco.

Nathaniel Bennett to Pablo de la Guerra stating that he is a candidate for judge of the supreme court

in a Republican district and asking for his support. English. 1 p.

DLG 91

Letter 1
Dec. 23, 1800. Mexico.

Viceroy Felix Berenguer de Marquina to José de la Guerra appointing him as interim alférez of the

presidio company of Monterey. Partly printed. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 92

Letter 1
March 25, 1808. San Blas.

Francisco de Paula Bermúdez to José de la Guerra on the death of Manuel de Cárcova; on a favor

asked for on Nov. 12, 1807; and asking for some pearls for a necklace for his wife who is a daughter

of the deceased regent of Quito. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 93

Letter 1
June 25, 1855. Mission Dolores.

Carmen (Ciboria) Bernal to Francisco de la Guerra recommending to him Martín María Erro who had

spent some time in San Francisco, and asking him to aid him should he be in need. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 94

Letter 1
Febr. 23, 1854. Chico.

John Bidwell to Pablo de la Guerra on the election of a senator in the coming winter to [William M.]

Guin. Condemns certain legislation passed and indicates corruption. English. 2 pp.

DLG 94

Letter 2
Jan. 25, 1861. Chico.

Bidwell to de la Guerra indicating interest in the appointment of Dr. W. P. Tilden, a member of the

assembly, as resident physician at the insane asylum in Stockton. Sends greetings to José María

Covarrubias and Andrés Pico. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 94a

Letter 1
Oct. 24, 1854. Sacramento.

Governor John Bigler to Pablo de la Guerra sending a passport to the latter who is going to Panama,

Havana, New Orleans and Mexico. Partly printed. English. 2 pp.

DLG 95

Letter 1
Oct. 1, [1856?] San Francisco.

Frederick Billings to Pablo de la Guerra asking him not to decline the office of elector. English. 1 p.

DLG 95

Letter 2
[March?] 1861. San Francisco.

Billings to de la Guerra concerning Billy Williamson, a candidate for sergeant-at-arms of the senate.

Proposes Pablo as president of the senate. English. 1 p.

DLG 96

Letter 1
Oct. 17, 1855. San Francisco.

Rasey Biven to de la Guerra asking him to be favorable to him for the position of secretary of the

senate. English. 1 p.

DLG 97

Letter 1
May 7, 1859. Santa Barbara.

H. B. Blake to Pablo de la Guerra notifying him that he is elected as a delegate to represent the county

of Santa Barbara at the next state convention. English. 1 p.
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DLG 98

Letter 1
Febr. 4, 1861. San Luis Obispo.

José Mariano Bonilla to Pablo de la Guerra advising him that José Múñoz, county judge, has gone to

his ranch at Guadalupe, Santa Barbara County, and should resign his judgeship. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 99

Letter 1
Dec. 23, 1871. Sacramento.

Governor Newton Booth to Francis Alphaeus Thompson commissioning him as county clerk of Santa

Barbara. Has the seal of the state upon it. Partly printed. English. 2 pp. Document filed March 14,

1872.

DLG 100

Letter 1
Febr. 23, 1861. San Luis Obispo.

William E. Borland to Pablo de la Guerra asking him to use his influence in having him appointed

county judge to succeed Múñoz. English. 2 pp.

DLG 100

Letter 2
March 23, 1861. San Luis Obispo.

Borland to de la Guerra thanking him for aiding him on being appointed judge. English. 2 pp.

DLG 101

Letter 1
Oct. 17, 1868. Santander, Spain.

Francisco Botija to Pablo de la Guerra concerning property of the de la Guerra family in Spain.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 102

Letter 1
Oct. 30, 1860. San Francisco.

Bennet Trice Bradley to Pablo de la Guerra asking support for the position of secretary of the senate.

English. 1 p.

DLG 103

Letter 1
Apr. 20, 1856. San Francisco.

Joseph Lancaster Brent to Pablo de la Guerra on an agreement between them concerning titles of José

de la Guerra. $375.00 are to be sent to Dr. H. R. Myles of Los Angeles. English. 1 p.

DLG 103

Letter 2
Nov. 7, 1856. Los Angeles.

Brent to de la Guerra on the dimissal of the cases of Simi and San Julian by the attorney general. He

encloses a letter for Judge Joaquín Carrillo. English. 2 pp.

DLG 103

Letter 3
May 25, 1857. Los Angeles.

Brent to de la Guerra on the cost in the land cases of Jose, his father. States that if Pablo is not

interested in the lieutenant governorship, he ought to run for senator. Bill for professional services is

$1,052.00. English. 3 pp.

DLG 103

Letter 4
July 9, 1857. Los Angeles.

Brent to de la Guerra acknowledging receipt of $1,000.00 with regard to land cases he handled for

him. English. 1 p.

DLG 104

Letter 1
July 9, 1865. Santa Barbara.

Samuel Bevier Brinkerhoff to Pablo de la Guerra asking him and his brother, Francisco, to meet with

other residents for a caucus on a united county and district ticket for offices to be filled in the next

election. English. 1 p.

DLG 105

Letter 1
Sept. 22, 1856. San Francisco.

David Colbreth Brdderick to Pablo de la Guerra on politica1 issues on which both of them lost.

Mentioned are Generals [José María] Covarrubias and Pico, [John B.] Frisbie, Olivera, George

O'Doherty, Wilson and Mariano Pacheco. English. 2 pp.
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DLG 105

Letter 2
Dec. 16, 1856. San Francisco.

Broderick to de la Guerra concerning "the great senatorial battle" to take place during the first week

of the coming session. English. 1 p.

DLG 106

Letter 1
Febr. 15, 1831. Liverpool, England.

James Brotherston to José de la Guerra concerning the inability of having his son, Juan José, study

medicine due to shortness of funds allocated for his education. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 106a

Letter 1
Dec. 12, 1851. Santa Barbara.

James W. Burrough to Pablo de la Guerra sending him a certificate of election as senator from

Counties San Luis Obispo and Santa Barbara. English. 1 p.

DLG 107

Letter 1
March 6, 1841. Mexico.

President Anastasio Bustamante to José de la Guerra granting him permission to retire from the army.

Partly printed. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 108

Letter 1
March 12, 1815. San Miguel, Lower California.

Fray Felix Caballero, 0.P. to José de la Guerra concerning a libranza. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 108

Letter 2
Apr. 23, [1815?]. San Miguel, Lower California.

Caballero to de la Guerra sending him a saw and asking for sickles the blacksmith may have made.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 109

Letter 1
Sept. 9, 1816. Mission Purisima.

Fray Juan Vicente Cabot, O.F.M., to Fray Antonio Ripoll, O.F.M., of Santa Barbara, on the coming

novena to St. Michael; on sending biscuits he himself had made; and bacon prepared by the father

president; Fray Luís Gil y Taboada, O.F.M.; and thanking Ripoll for avalarios. Fray Antonio

Rodríguez, O.F.M., is mentioned. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 110

Letter 1
Aug. 4., 1816. San Miguel.

Juan Cabot, O.F.M., to José de la Guerra on sending through the corporal Leyva, a book to Ripoll and

socks to a cadet. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 110

Letter 2

March 6, 1818. San Miguel.

Cabot to de la Guerra concerning an expedition into the Tulare. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 110

Letter 3
May 23, 1818. San Miguel.

Cabot to de la Guerra on the presence of Christian Indians in the Tula region, and on his going to

Telame on two former occasions. Mentions Bubal, Choimoc and the Sierra Nevada. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 110

Letter 4
March 17, 1819. San Miguel.

Cabot to de la Guerra congratulating him on the most recent honor bestowed upon him. Padre Juan

[Amorós], O.F.M., is ill. Sends greetings to Ripoll. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 110

Letter 5
May 31, 1819. San Francisco.

Cabot to de la Guerra announcing his presence in San Francisco which he characterizes as "this exile

of winds and misery;" the president of the missions is at San Rafael where he is going on the morrow.

[Ramón]Abella, O.F.M., is going to Carmel; [Luís Gil y] Taboada, O.F.M., is to be with Cabot and

[Juan] Amorós, O.F.M., is assigned to San Rafael; Cabot is asking to return to the college in Mexico.

Spanish. 2 pp.
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DLG 110

Letter 6
Aug. 31, 1819. San Francisco.

Cabot to de la Guerra on articles received. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 111

Letter 1
Nov. 3, 1815. San Antonio.

Pedro Cabot, O.F.M., to José de la Guerra on aid given to Carlos and Anastasio Carrillo. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 111

Letter 2
Nov. 27, 1815. San Antonio.

Cabot to de la Guerra on receiving notice of death of the latter's mother; sends condolence and

promises Masses. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 111

Letter 3
Dec. 15, 1815. San Antonio.

Cabot to de la Guerra sending him an account. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 111

Letter 4
Apr. 7, 1818. Soledad.

Cabot to de la Guerra sending him congratulations on his promotion as captain. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 111

Letter 5
Aug. 13, 1820. San Antonio.

Cabot to de la Guerra concerning an inventory of San Antonio. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 112

Letter 1
Aug. 13, 1821. San Antonio.

Cabot to the missionaries of San Miguel and San Luis Obispo on the imprisonment of Fernando VII,

the proclamation of [Agustín] Iturbide for independence; on news from Mexico from Fray Juan

Cortés, O.F.M., conditions in Spain; Fray Arroyo de la Cuesta, O.F.M., and Fray Ramón Olbés,

O.F.M., in Monterey, the former for reasons of health, the latter to go to Mexico with Bandini.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 113

Letter 1
July 20, 1836. San Fernando.

Cabot to Fray Narciso Durán, O.F.M., concerning a letter of the commandant general. Cabot declines

considering any prelacy either for the position of president or bishop; his desire to retire is firm.

Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 114

Letter 1
Febr. c. 1850

Petition of the citizens of Southern California to the United States Congress to be released from the

newly enacted Constitution. A draft. Fragment of one page missing. Spanish. 6 pp.

DLG 115

Letter 1
Oct. 27, 1824. Monterey.

Appointment of José de la Guerra, José Aruz and José Antonio Carrillo by the diputación of

California to investigate the Indian uprising at Missions Santa Barbara, Santa Ines and Purisima.

Signed by Governor Luís Antonio Argüello, the members of the diputación and its secretary. Spanish.

2 pp.

DLG 116

Letter 1
Oct. 21, 1863.

Election returns of the First Judicial District for district judge: counties of Los Angeles, Santa

Barbara, San Bernardino, San Diego and San Luis Obispo. Pablo de la Guerra received the highest

number of votes. English. 1 p.

DLG 117

Letter 1
Febr. 18, 1827. San Diego.

Record of a meeting at which José de la Guerra was elected diputado to the national congress, with

Gervasio Argüello as alternate. Spanish. 2 pp.
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DLG 118

Letter 1
Oct. 16-19, 1834. Monterey.

Record of two meetings resulting in the election of José A. Carrillo as deputy to the national congress

with Mariano G. Vallejo as alternate. Incomplete. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 119

Letter 1
Apr. 3-21, 1857.

Joint resolution, No. 10, of the California legislature relative to agricultural affairs. English. 3 pp.

DLG 120

Letter 1
March 31, 1866.

An act of the California legislature to amend an act relating to the First Judicial District. Copy

certified by B. B. Redding, secretary of state. Bears state's seal. English. 3 pp.

DLG 121

Letter 2
Oct. 15, 1860. San Buenaventura.

Juan Camarillo to Antonio María de la Guerra on a business matter he had come to see him about in

Santa Barbara and which he turned over to Charles E. Huse. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 122

Letter 1
Oct. 29, 1859. San Francisco.

A. C. Campbell to Pablo de la Guerra petitioning him to favor H. C. Clarkson as sergeant-at-arms for

the senate. English. 1 p.

DLG 123

Letter 1
Jan. 24, 1860. San Quentin Prison.

Peter Campbell, resident physician, to Governor John Gately Downey, asking executive clemency for

William Jordan who has been ill for over two years, is incurable and inoffensive. English. 1 p.

DLG 124

Letter 1
Jan. 25, 1844. Santa Barbara.

Joaquín A. Y. Conalejo to José de la Guerra asking for aid for a person entrusted to him. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 125

Letter 1
March 11, 1848. Los Angeles. The Canon Perdido or Los Cannon Affair at Santa Barbara

Andrés Pico to Francisco de la Guerra. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 125

Letter 2
Apr. 2, 1848. Los Angeles.

Jonathan Drake Stevenson to Francisco de la Guerra. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 125

Letter 3
Apr. 4, 1848. San Fernando.

Andrés Pico to Francisco de la Guerra. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 125

Letter 4
Apr. 12, 1848. Monterey.

William Tecumseh Sherman to Francisco de la Guerra. English and Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 125

Letter 5
Apr. 12, 1848. Santa Barbara.

Francisco de la Guerra to Andrés Pico. Draft of a letter in the hand of Pablo de la Guerra. Spanish. 2

pp.

DLG 125

Letter 6
Apr. 18, 1848. Santa Barbara.

Examination of Juan Rodríguez, José Jenaro Alvarez and Bernarda Ruíz de Rodríguez re

contemplated revolt of the Californians. Contemporary copy in hand of Pablo de la Guerra. Signed by

Stephan Clark Foster and José Genaro Alvarez. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 125

Letter 7
Apr. 18 and 20, 1848. Santa Barbara.

Account of Captain Francis J. Lippett containing sworn statements of Pedro C. Carrillo and Pedro

Catarino Carrillo re proposed insurrection of the Californians. Cc. in hand of Pablo de la Guerra.

Spanish. 4 pp.
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DLG 125

Letter 8
Apr. 20, 1848. Santa Barbara.

Francisco de la Guerra to Sherman. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 125

Letter 9
Apr. 22-23, 1848. Santa Barbara.

Examination of witnesses on a contemplated revolt of the Californians: Andrés, a Christian Indian;

Felipe Peña; the Indians Bernabé, Bruno and Alejo Chates; José Carrillo and Francisco de la Guerra.

Signed by Lippett. Spanish and English. Spanish. 19 pp.

DLG 125

Letter 10
Apr. 24, 1848. Santa Barbara.

Examination of Teodoro Arellanes on contemplated revolt of the Californians. Incomplete. Spanish. 2

pp.

DLG 125

Letter 11
Apr. 27, 1848. Monterey.

Sherman to Francisco de la Guerra exonerating him from implication in the Lost Cannon affair and

expressing the need for preserving tranquility in the country. The missing gun is still to be accounted

for. Spanish. 6 pp.

DLG 125

Letter 12
Apr. 27, 1848. Monterey.

Sherman to Stevenson. Spanish translation. 1 p.

DLG 125

Letter 13
May 19, 1848. Santa Barbara.

Francisco de la Guerra to Sherman. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 125

Letter 14
June 21, 1848. Santa Barbara.

Lippett to José Antonio Aguirre ordering the latter not to leave Santa Barbara with his ship and

possessions until he pays $40.00 as bond to secure the payment of his assessment as a military

contribution of the citizens of Santa Barbara. English. 1 p.

DLG 125

Letter 15
July 1, 1848. Santa Barbara.

Receipt for $12.00 from José de la Guerra for the initial tax imposed by Governor Mason on the Lost

Cannon affair. Signed by Pedro Catarino Carrillo. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 125

Letter 16
July 2, 1848. Santa Barbara.

Stevenson to José de la Guerra on payment of his tax on the Lost Cannon affair. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 125

Letter 17
July 4, 1848. Santa Barbara.

Stevenson to José de la Guerra: a receipt for $45.00 on a fine imposed for the Lost Cannon affair.

Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 126

Letter 1
Oct. 14, 1798. Mexico.

Manuel Cárcaba to José de la Guerra on his appointment as cadet of the presidial company of

California. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 127

Letter 1
March 6, 1813. San Blas.

José Cardoso to José de la Guerra on money owed him to be paid in otter skins. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 127

Letter 2
Apr. 5, 1814. San Blas.

Cardoso to de la Guerra on receiving payment; on the war in Spain; the death of a Señor Vega, whose

wife, Paula, is to sail on the Tagle to California. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 127

Letter 3
March 2, 1824. Tepic.

Cardoso to de la Guerra on a commercial matter, Cardoso is in charge of the Naval Academy at Tepic

and offers entrance there to any of De la Guerra's sons should they be interested. Spanish. 3 pp.
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DLG 128

Letter 1
Nov. 14, 1868. Sacramento.

Joseph D. Casey to Pablo de la Guerra asking him for a position in Southern California as a shorthand

writer. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 129

Letter 1
Febr. 10, 1802. Aranjuez, Spain.

Appointment of José de la Guerra as alférez at Monterey. Document is partly printed. King's

signature is stamped. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 130

Letter 1
March 22, 1807. Aranjuez.

Appointment of José de la Guerra as lieutenant of the presidial company of Santa Barbara by King

Carlos IV. King's name is stamped. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 131

Letter 1
Apr. 28, 1857. Santa Barbara.

Henry Carnes to Antonio de la Guerra asking for direction concerning an order to hand over the arms

of the former Santa Barbara mounted riflemen. English. 2 pp.

DLG 132

Letter 1
Nov. 10, 1809. San Carlos.

Fray Baltasar Carnicer, O.F.M., to José de la Guerra concerning an account of de la Guerra with

Mission San Carlos. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 133

Letter 1
Apr. 24, 1818. Santa Ines.

Anastasio Carrillo to José de la Guerra giving the names of five vaqueros added to the mission.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 133

Letter 2
Nov. 1, 1820. Los Angeles.

Carrillo to de la Guerra on various persons. Named are: Francisco Avila, Antonio María Lugo, Pedro

Valenzuela, Antonio Briones, Bartolo Tapia and Rafael García. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 133

Letter 3
1821. [Los Angeles].

Carrillo to de la Guerra on the arrival of a certain Leandro with twenty mules and wine. A new church

to be completed in autumn. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 133

Letter 4
Febr. 17, 1821. San Fernando.

Carrillo to de la Guerra stating it is his firm belief that Xavier Higuera took the spurs of Juan

Sánchez. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 133

Letter 5
Apr. 20, 1821. Los Angeles.

Carrillo to de la Guerra sending him an account of the tithes. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 133

Letter 6
June 23, 1821. Los Angeles.

Carrillo to de la Guerra explaining his silence by reason of his presence at San Pedro looking after

port duties. Treats of testaments and cumplimiento de iglesia. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 133

Letter 7
June 24, 1821. Los Angeles.

Carrillo to de la Guerra concerning an inquiry on the relationship between the Sánchez and

Domínguez families. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 133

Letter 8
June 26, 1821. Los Angeles.

Carrillo to de la Guerra concerning a controversy about the local aqueduct. The garden of Bartolo

Tapia is mentioned. Since the guardhouse and jail are in disrepair, he asks permission to work on

those since fifty Indians had arrived from San Luís Rey, and meanwhile to collect lumber, tiles and

bricks for the church for the coming year. Spanish. 2 pp.
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DLG 133

Letter 9
July 9, 1821. Los Angeles.

Carrillo to de la Guerra concerning a certain Moreno and his wife. The latter has given her house and

garden to the Anastasio alcalde Anastasio Avila, for a year, and asks permission to go to Rancho

Santa Ana where her husband works and where she can be sustained. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 133

Letter 10
Aug. 5, 1821. Los Angeles.

Carrillo to de la Guerra on sending Anastasio Avila and others to investigate the matter of Indians

damaging the herds of Bartolo Tapia. In the past week one Indian was captured with horses belonging

to various individuals. The Indian was sent to Mission San Gabriel. Carrillo is sending to de la Guerra

the testament of José María Verdugo who is ill. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 133

Letter 11
Aug. 27, 1821. Los Angeles.

Carrillo to de la Guerra stating that the church cannot be finished this year. Lumber is being gathered

and tiles fashioned. Also that the jail and guardhouse be repaired. Sends a certain Briones to de la

Guerra and a certain Villa to San Buenaventura. Sends list of those fullfilling their Easter duty and

giving tithes. An Indian prisoner is ill and cannot be sent north. Juan Pérez and a Peralta are

mentioned. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 133

Letter 12
Sept. 26, 1821. Los Angeles.

Carrillo to de la Guerra on Andrés Ibarra being handed over to Carrillo as a prisoner in chains by the

corporal of the guard of Mission San Gabriel. Carrillo is sending his investigations in the case to De

la Guerra. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 133

Letter 13
Sept. 26, 1821. Los Angeles.

Carrillo to de la Guerra notifying him on the appearance of two ships at San Pedro. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 133

Letter 14
Nov. 9, 1821. Los Angeles.

Carrillo to de la Guerra on two prisoners from an American ship being held who were arrested at the

beach of Maligo. Mentioned are Anastasio Avila, Ignacio Valencia and Patricio Pico. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 133

Letter 15
Nov. 27, 1821. Los Angeles.

Carrillo to de la Guerra on the capture of two men from an American ship at the beach of Maligo.

Patricio Pico mentioned. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 133

Letter 16

Jan. 1822. Los Angeles.

Carrillo to de la Guerra concerning various items handed over to several persons. The brigantine, San

Francisco, has sailed for the islands. Carrillo is lacking writing paper. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 133

Letter 17
Jan. 2, 1822. Los Angeles.

Carrillo to de la Guerra stating that he has Vicente Sánchez in jail for having injured Jacinto Reyes,

Antonio María Nieto and Antonio Reyes. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 133

Letter 18
Jan. 14, 1822. Los Angeles.

Carrillo to de la Guerra on his naming a José Antonio as a secretary. Enrique Sepúlveda and a certain

Castro supply at Mission San Gabriel. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 133

Letter 19
Jan. 25, 1822. Los Angeles.

Carrillo to de la Guerra sending to him Vicente Sánchez under a guard of five men. His defense

attorney is the sergeant, Francisco Xavier Alvarado. Mentioned is Joaquín Maitorena. Various

documents are being sent along. Spanish. 2 pp.
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DLG 133

Letter 20
Febr. 3, 1822. Los Angeles.

Carrillo to de la Guerra on forwarding a note and invoice of sergeant Dámaso Rodríguez; on freeing

certain prisoners arrested by the governor; on the illness of the retired soldier, Máximo Alanis.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 133

Letter 21
Febr. 11, 1822. Los Angeles.

Carrillo to de la Guerra on a request make certain purchases. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 133

Letter 22
Febr. 21, 1822. San Fernando.

Carrillo to de la Guerra on the corporal, Salazar in pursuit of runaways; scandal given by a certain

Nemesio at Presidio Santa Barbara whose reputation was good in Los Angeles; and on a New Year's

Eve party at Carrillo's house. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 133

Letter 23
Febr. 25, 1822. Los Angeles.

Carrillo to de la Guerra sending him four horses and a saddle which had been taken from Gervasio

Ayala by runaway Indians. A certain Machado is very ill. An unnamed Indian shot by Ballesteros is

improving. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 133

Letter 24
Febr. 27, 1822. Los Angeles.

Carrillo to de la Guerra concerning cattle of Los Angeles and of Mission San Gabriel at Las Lagunas.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 133

Letter 25
June 18, 1822. Los Angeles.

Carrillo to de la Guerra on returning a published indult; on cattle, a list of the inhabitants of Los

Angeles who complied with their Paschal duty; money matters. Persons mentioned are a Verdugo,

Antonio [Rellis?], Sergeant Guillermo Cota and Manuel Gutiérrez. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 133

Letter 26
June 26, 1822. Los Angeles.

Carrillo to de la Guerra on mercantile matters. Mentioned are Dolores and Patricio Sepúlveda. Will

soon send Indian, Isidoro, who is ill, in the custody of a certain Nemesio. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 133

Letter 27
Nov. 18, 1822. Los Angeles.

Carrillo to de la Guerra on mercantile matters. Mentioned is Ignacio Mancisidor. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 133

Letter 28
Febr. 23, 1825. Los Angeles.

Carrillo to de la Guerra concerning an order to recruit twenty-five men for military service at San

Francisco and Monterey. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 133

Letter 29
June 11, 1825. Los Angeles.

Carrillo to de la Guerra concerning an investigation made on the holdings of Dolores Sepúlveda.

Mentioned are William Hartnell, a Lugo, Luís Palomares, Tomás Yorba and Antonio María Nieto.

Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 133

Letter 30
June 11, 1825. Los Angeles.

Carrillo to de la Guerra on the estate of Dolores Sepúlveda. Mentioned are Patricio Sepúlveda and

Antonio M. Nieto. Hilario Ruíz, a retired soldier, and his son, José, are going to Santa Barbara to see

de la Guerra. Carrillo is sending along a request made by Anastasio Avila. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 133

Letter 31
July 17, 1825. Los Angeles.

Carrillo to de la Guerra on mercantile matters and accounts. Mentioned are Gutiérrez, Patricio

Ontiveros, Orixa, Avila, Briones, the ship María Ester, and San Pedro. Spanish. 3 pp.
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DLG 133

Letter 32
July 22, 1825. Los Angeles.

Carrillo to de la Guerra on mercantile matters and accounts. Speaks of a tutorship of a Patricio by a

certain Molillo. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 133

Letter 33
July 23, 1825. Los Angeles.

Carrillo to de la Guerra on giving certain papers to Avila, on purchases made, tutorship for Patricio,

and his inability to obtain recruits. Partly torn. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 133

Letter 34
July 30, 1823. Los Angeles.

Carrillo to de la Guerra on cattle; a tutorship and mercantile matters and indianilla (printed cotton?).

Mentioned are Sánchez, the Verdugos, Pedro Feliz, the Machados, Gutiérrez, Juan Pérez, the Yorbas.

Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 133

Letter 35
Aug. 14, 1825. Los Angeles.

Carrillo to de la Guerra concerning Francisco Sepúlveda and an Aguilar. Is busy making out the

inventory of Sepúlveda. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 133

Letter 36
July 3. No year.[Los Angeles?)

Carrillo to de la Guerra on releasing an unnamed prisoner, and prices. Mentioned are Verdugo and

Lugo. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 134

Letter 1
Dec. 6, 1823. San Luis Obispo.

Anastasio Carrillo to Fray Luís Martínez, O.F.M., sending him a receipt for 300 pesos of silver on an

account and by order of Capt. Luís Argüello. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 135

Letter 1
July 6, 1854. Santa Barbara.

An agreement between Anastasio Carrillo and Pablo de la Guerra for the former to pay the latter half

the sum of money he should receive from the U.S. Government for a piece of land to be used for

erecting a lighthouse on his Rancho Punta de la Concepción. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 136

Letter 1
May 24, 1860. Santa Barbara.

Anastasio Carrillo to Milton S. Latham concerning a lighthouse on his rancho, Punta de la

Concepción English. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 137

Letter 1
Dec. 2, 1818. Santa Ines.

Carlos Antonio Carrillo to José de la Guerra on his arrival at Santa Ines with thirty soldiers including

corporal Vicente Villa. Is to join others in the sierra. Mentions Padre [Francisco Xavier] Uría, O.F.M.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 137

Letter 2
Apr. 2, 1831. Tepic.

Carrillo to de la Guerra on his arrival at Tepic; manner of his reception; imprisonment of Guerrero;

revolution in France; conditions in Mexico; death of Maitorena; on a certain Navarro; on opinions of

deputies concerning the California missions; mercantile matters; money matters. Names a certain

Correa; King Louis XVIII; Philip, Duke of Orleans; a "certain Joaquín, Altamirano and [Eustaquio]

Barron. Spanish. 8 pp.

DLG 137

Letter 3
[Apr. 2, 1831]. [Tepic?]

Carrillo to de la Guerra on commercial matters; his intention of going to Guadalajara on the morrow;

on returning letters to Maitorena; on forwarding one to [William] Hartnell. Mentioned are José

Narváez, Haminio Aiya, Francisco Soler, Machado, Solís, Mistrom; a certain Raimundo, Bejar and

Altamirano are in jail. Spanish. 4 pp.
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DLG 137

Letter 4
July 12, 1831. Mexico.

Carrillo to de la Guerra concerning a matter he was taking care of for the latter. States that Juan

Martiarena and Eustaquio Barron, the American consul, are friendly him. Thanks those who elected

him to congress. Incomplete. Spanish. 14 pp.

DLG 137

Letter 5
Sept. 14, 1831. Mexico.

Carrillo to de la Guerra stating that he is attending the sessions of Congress and asks that a certified

statement in duplicate be sent him concerning his place of residence in California. Treats of the

expulsion of Spaniards. States that the Senate is beginning to deal with the sale or rental in California

of the Pious Fund, which he asked to be suspended. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 137

Letter 6
Sept. 28, 1831. Mexico.

Carrillo to de la Guerra on mail received from California; on the Pious Fund, and his defense of it;

troop movements in Mexico; candidate for presidency; expulsion of Europeans; asking again for

documents in triplicate as to his place of residence in California, so he can collect his salary.

Mentioned are the schooner, Guadalupe, the missionaries of California in general, Orizaba, Córdoba,

San Luís Potosí, the minister of Relaciones, Bravo, General Terán, [Antonio López de] Santa Ana,

and [José María] Echeandía. Spanish. 8 pp.

DLG 137

Letter 7
Oct. 14, 1831. Mexico.

Carrillo to de la Guerra concerning his many friends as well as enemies relative to the Pious Fund;

considers Mexico "a great place of confusion;" and on the tribunal of justice. Confidentially informs

him that he has been offered the governorship of California and asks his advice; repeats his request

for documents in triplicate as to his place of residence in California; and the Congress' dealing with

the matter of bankruptcy. Minister [Lucas] Alamán is mentioned. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 137

Letter 9
Oct. 23, 1831. Mexico.

Carrillo to de la Guerra telling him of the heavy burden of his office; his recommendations to

Congress on the Pious Fund; the lack of the proper administration of justice in California; and on his

inability to collect his salary. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 137

Letter 10
c. 1832.

Carrillo to de la Guerra on the outbreak of cholera morbus causing many deaths in Spain, France, the

United States and other countries. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 137

Letter 11
1832?

Carrillo to de la Guerra on Tampico, Córdoba and Orizaba declaring for Santa Ana; on illness in the

Mexican army, state of the treasury; military developments; his defense of the Pious Fund; and his

political activities. General [Francisco] Moctezuma and Terán mentioned. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 137

Letter 12
May 31, 1831-May 6, 1832. San Blas.

An account of expenses of Juan José de la Guerra y Noriega written by Carlos Antonio Carrillo.

Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 137

Letter 13
May 12, 1832. Mexico.

Carrillo to de la Guerra on the political situation in Mexico, various areas proclaiming in favor of

Santa Ana; on [José] Figueroa's appointment as governor of California; his opinion of him; the

missions and the lack of pay. [Anastasio] Bustamante mentioned. Incomplete. Spanish. 4 pp.
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Letter 14
c. Apr., 1832. Mexico.

Carrillo to de la Guerra on political matters in Mexico; Figueroa's appointment to California;

[Manuel] Victoria mentioned. Torn along edges. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 137

Letter 15
May 15, 1832. Mexico.

Carrillo to de la Guerra on Figueroa's appointment and his qualities. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 137

Letter 16
Apr. 21. 1832. Mexico.

Carrillo to de la Guerra on Figueroa's being named governor of California; report on his character;

Gómez de la Madrid, deputy from Sonora; Bustamante; the unwillingness of Mexico to divide

military and political authority in California; asks not to be elected diputado again; guerrilla warfare;

concerning Santa Ana and a certain Calderón; Terán and Solís loaning the government 400,000 pesos;

his request to de la Guerra to give Figueroa two horses and two mules to gain his good will; ten

Franciscans from Zacatecas coming to California; San Fernando having very few friars left: Carrillo's

desire to return to California. Spanish. 8 pp.

DLG 137

Letter 17

April 14, 1832. Mexico.

Carrillo to de la Guerra on Juan de la Guerra returning home; on his own period of service still to last

ten months and his desire to return home; on Santa Ana and Calderón; his pay in arrears; the

government's difficulty in borrowing money; Figueroa; and revolutionaries in Mexico. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 137

Letter 18
March 15, 1832. Mexico.

Carrillo to de la Guerra on Wilmot's [Virmond?] arrival from Acapulco and his visit with him in

Mexico; political matters in Mexico and California; and the possible naming of [Agustín] Zamorano

as political chief in California. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 137

Letter 19
Jan. 28, 1832. Mexico.

Carrillo to de la Guerra on conditions in California; reasons for discontent; procedures of the

governors; the proposal for sending 200 or 250 troops to California and the accompanying

difficulties; and the need for withdrawing the Mazatlán company under [Pablo de la] Portilla.

Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 137

Letter 20
Jan. 22, 1832. Mexico.

Carrillo’s draft of a claim presented to the Congress for travel allowances due to José de la Guerra

when he went as deputy to Mexico from California in 1828. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 137

Letter 21
Jan. 22, 1832. Mexico.

Carrillo to de la Guerra on receiving the latter's letter of Sept. 17, 1831; his disappointment in not

hearing from others; on meeting a certain Juanillo [De la Guerra's son, Juan]; his placing him in a

position; his transportation to Liverpool; Santa Ana's pronouncement in Vera Cruz; financial matters;

Carrillo’s relations with the government; the status of the missions to be unchanged; the death of

[Romualdo] Pacheco; family matters. Spanish. 10 pp.

DLG 137

Letter 22
Apr. 9, 1845. Los Angeles.

Carrillo to de la Guerra on a prisoner's escape in Los Angeles. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 137

Letter 23
No Date

Copy of an announcement of marriage between Raimundo Carrillo and Dolores Ortega. An invitation

sent to Captain José Antonio de la Guerra y Noriega. Spanish. 1 p.
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Letter 1
Apr. 25, 1831. Mexico.

Carlos Antonio Carrillo to [Manuel Victoria?] opposing the secularization of the California missions.

Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 139

Letter 1
c. 1831.

Carlos Antonio Carrillo to María Josefa (Castro) Carrillo: a short note of remembrance. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 139

Letter 2
c. 1832. Mexico.

Carrillo to M. J. Carrillo on his relations with the government officials of Mexico; his receiving his

pay; the subsiding of the revolution in the south; asks to be informed concerning his California

interests; his desire to return home; greetings to the family. Incomplete. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 140

Letter 1
May 27, 1848. Santa Barbara.

Carlos Antonio Carrillo to Miguel de la Guerra concerning a horse. Mentioned are José María López

and Julian Estrada. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 141

Letter 1
Without month or year. San Gabriel.

Domingo Antonio Ignacio Carrillo to José de la Guerra concerning a request from the latter; on tallow

and cattle. References to San Diego. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 141

Letter 2
Nov. 14, 1816. San Diego.

Carrillo to de la Guerra on arriving at San Diego during fiesta and short, unimportant items. Spanish.

2 pp.

DLG 141

Letter 3
June 7, 1821. San Diego.

Carrillo to de la Guerra on his contentment at having been a member of the military company of

Santa Barbara while his position at San Diego is less desirable; on a mule to be sent to de la Guerra;

Santiago Argüello's coming to Santa Barbara; Fray Fernando Martín's, [O.F.M.] anger at de la Guerra

for not answering a letter. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 141

Letter 4
July 1, 1821. San Diego.

Carrillo to de la Guerra on his supplying for Santiago Argüello; his house being flooded, and a few

minor items. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 141

Letter 5
June 8, 1821. San Diego.

Carrillo to de la Guerra on living conditions at the presidio; scarcity of food; Argüello's going to

Santa Barbara. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 141

Letter 6
Sept. 12, 1821. San Diego.

Carrillo to de la Guerra on disciplining the soldier, Tiburcio Valenciano. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 141

Letter 7
Oct. 23, 1822. San Diego.

Carrillo to de la Guerra on the shortage of paper and Capt. Pablo de Portilla's going into the sierra on

the basis of an Indian report of arm-bearing men in the interior. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 141

Letter 8
Apr. 5, 1832.,Santa Barbara.

Carrillo to de la Guerra on the non-collection of tithes for six years. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 141

Letter 9
Apr. 5, 1834. Santa Barbara.

Carrillo to de la Guerra quoting a letter of the commandant general of Jan. 26, 1833, and subscribed

to by Figueroa, June 4, 1833, passed on to Carrillo concerning pay to be given to those of the army

which had been suspended on May 10, 1827. Spanish. 2 pp.
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Letter 10
May 20, 1834. Santa Barbara.

Carrillo to de la Guerra relative to titles. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 141

Letter 11
May 30, 1834. Santa Barbara.

Carrillo to de la Guerra relative to titles. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 141

Letter 12
July 1, 1835. Santa Barbara.

Carrillo to de la Guerra concerning a chair to be made for María Antonia, on the future marriage of

Joaquín to Manuela Carrillo. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 141

Letter 13
July 15, 1835. Pueblo de los Berros.

Carrillo to de la Guerra concerning a chair for María Antonia; on his reported appointment as

lieutenant; [Antonio José] Cot's arrival at El Cojo; his own return from San Luis Obispo; Padre

Arroyo de la Cuesta's [O.F.M.], walking with some difficulty. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 141

Letter 14
July 15, 1835. Pueblo de los Berros.

Carrillo to De la Guerra on the sale of a horse. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 141

Letter 15
July 20, 1835. Berros.

Carrillo to de la Guerra on receiving certain fabrics from Cot to be used on a chair; the sale of a horse;

and business matters between Iglesias and Cot. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 141

Letter 16
July 25, 1835. Berros.

Carrillo to de la Guerra concerning a horse. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 141

Letter 17
Aug. 29, 1835. Berros.

Carrillo to de la Guerra on a business transaction. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 142

Letter 1
Jan. 4, 1827. San Diego.

Domingo Carrillo. A receipt for 1,500 pesos advanced by Padre Antonio Peyrí, O.F.M., of Mission

San Luis Rey, for the payment of salaries of the mission guard. Countersigned by José María

Estudillo and Governor [José María] Echeandía. Followed by an order by Peyrí, Aug. 27, 1827, that

the reimbursement be made by the Mexican government to José de la Guerra. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 143

Letter 1

Apr. 2, 1848.

Guillermo Carrillo to José de la Guerra asking for a loan of twenty pesos. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 143

Letter 2
Jan. 26, 1861. Santa Barbara.

Carrillo to Pablo de la Guerra on the latter's becoming president of the Senate; on a Mass of

thanksgiving to be said for him; personal matters and on the latter's meeting with General [José

María] Covarrubias. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 143

Letter 3
March 22, 1861. Santa Barbara.

Carrillo to Pablo de la Guerra on the birth of a child of the latter, Doctors [James] Ord and [Thomas?]

Shaw in attendance. Mentions death of Nazario Quijada. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 144

Letter 1
June 14, 1835. Purisima,

Joaquín Carrillo to José de la Guerra asking him for advice. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 144

Letter 2
June 11, 1835. Purisima

Carrillo to de la Guerra on an undisclosed matter relative to the father president. Spanish. 1 p.
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Letter 3
June 28, 1835. Purisima

Carrillo to de la Guerra asking for two pairs of shoes and concerning an undisclosed matter. Spanish.

1 p.

DLG 144

Letter 4
July 6, 1835. Purisima.

Carrillo to de la Guerra on an undisclosed matter. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 144

Letter 5
July 17, 1835. Purisima

Carrillo to de la Guerra thanking him for a favor granted. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 144

Letter 6
Aug. 1, 1835. Purisima.

Carrillo to de la Guerra on [Fray Marcos Antonio] Victoria's remaining at Purisima. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 144

Letter 7
Aug. 6, 1835. Purina.

Carrillo to de la Guerra explaining a personal matter. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 144

Letter 8
Aug. 9, 1835. Purisima.

Carrillo to de la Guerra on a personal matter; will see him see on the 10th; is sending him two pairs of

shoes through sergeant Juan Pablo. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 144

Letter 9
May 29, 1836. Berros.

Carrillo to de la Guerra asking his advice on a business matter. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 144

Letter 10
Jan. 17, 1838. Purisima.

Carrillo to de la Guerra on writing to José Antonio Aguirre asking him to pay José Antonio Ercilla on

account. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 144

Letter 11
June 12, 1838. Purisima.

Carrillo to de la Guerra sending a message on a financial matter through Nicolás Robles. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 144

Letter 12
Sept. 14, 1838. Purisima.

Carrillo to de la Guerra asking that twenty pesos be remitted to the former through a José Antonio.

Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 144

Letter 13
Apr. 30, 1844.

Carrillo to de la Guerra asking for a loan of ten pesos. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 144

Letter 14
July 1, 1835. Pueblo de los Berros.

Carrillo to de la Guerra on Padre Victoria's need for Mass wine asking de la Guerra to supply. He,

Carrillo, gave him some but most of what he had had turned into vinegar. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 144

Letter 15
Without date or place.

Carrillo to de la Guerra asking him for a loan of 250 pesos in silver. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 144

Letter 16
Apr. 12, 1854.

Carrillo to de la Guerra announcing the funeral of his wife, Manuela Carrillo. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 145

Letter 1
July 6, 1835 - ca. April 12, 1854. Purisima and Pueblo de los Berros.

Fifteen letters from Joaquín Carrillo to José de la Guerra y Noriega. Spanish. 20 pp.

DLG 146

Letter 1
Jan. 22, 1840. Santa Barbara.

Certification of registration of two cattle brands and one earmark of José de la Guerra, by Joaquín

Carrillo. Spanish. 1 p.
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Letter 1
March 19, 1849. Santa Barbara.

Joaquín Carrillo to Francisco de la Guerra; a short personal note. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 148

Letter 1
Nov. 24, 1849. Santa Barbara.

Joaquín Carrillo to Pablo de la Guerra congratulating him on becoming senator for the Santa Barbara

district. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 148

Letter 2
June 19, 1851.

Carrillo to de la Guerra on the sad condition of ranchos and families; on robberies committed in the

Santa Ines district. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 148

Letter 3
Sept. 3, 1857. San Luis Obispo.

Carrillo to de la Guerra concerning a scandalous election. (Brinca Casas- Brinkerhoff). Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 148

Letter 4
Apr. 9, 1860. Santa Bárbara.

Carrillo to de la Guerra concerning the cases of certain the demented people being sent to Stockton

asylum. Does not think that the county should be responsible for those from other areas. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 148

Letter 5
Jan. 27, 1861. Santa Barbara.

Carrillo to de la Guerra on recommending to him Emela R. de Deligne and asking that Halleck,

Peachy and Billings give her 100 pesos on Carrillo's account. Felicitates de la Guerra on his new post.

Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 149

Letter 1
Nov. 4, 1818. San Diego.

José Antonio Ezequiel Carrillo to José de la Guerra concerning accounts. Is thinking of asking the

governor for his passport to go to Mexico. Mentions Domingo [Carrillo?] being at San Luis Rey.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 149

Letter 2
Nov. 24, 1820. Los Angeles.

Carrillo to de la Guerra on his arrival from San Pedro; on mercantile matters. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 149

Letter 3
Febr. 3, 1821. Los Angeles.

Carrillo to de la Guerra on mercantile matters. Mentioned are Rancho Santa Ana and Nieto and

Patricio Pico. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 149

Letter 4
June 5, 1821. Los Angeles.

Carrillo to de la Guerra on mercantile matters, tithes and the building of a church in Los Angeles.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 149

Letter 5
June 18, 1821. Los Angeles.

Carrillo to de la Guerra on handing over tallow to Juan Malarín; on being deceived by certain

Angelinos; on leather containers; his intention of going to San Diego on the morrow. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 149

Letter 6
Jan. 24, 1822. Los Angeles.

Carrillo to de la Guerra on accounts, the arrival of the brigantine, San Francisco, at San Pedro.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 149

Letter 7
July 4, 1821. San Diego.

Carrillo to de la Guerra on collecting tallow. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 149

Letter 8
Febr. 13, 1822. Los Angeles.

Carrillo to de la Guerra on tallow. Spanish. 1 p.
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Letter 9
Febr. 18, 1822. Los Angeles.

Carrillo to de la Guerra on Nemesio Domínguez bringing four barrels of brandy north in exchange for

cattle in case money is not available. Asks for a passport. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 149

Letter 10
July 16, 1822. Los Angeles.

Carrillo to de la Guerra on cattle; on the unwillingness of the latter to allow 200 pesos to be put on his

account; defending his honor; sending three otter pelts; other mercantile matters; Patricio Pico

mentioned; his inability to collect 400 pesos from Monterey; asks de la Guerra to do so should he go

north. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 149

Letter 11
Aug. 1, 1822. Los Angeles.

Carrillo to de la Guerra on cattle; financial matters; reference to Padre Antonio [Ripoll?] and asking if

it is necessary to ask the governor to be exempt from mechanical labors in Los Angeles except with

regard to the church. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 149

Letter 12
Oct. 10, 1822. Los Angeles.

Carrillo to de la Guerra on tithes; Francisco Avila is collecting them. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 149

Letter 13
Apr. 8, 1823. Monterey.

Carrillo to de la Guerra concerning the "imperfect trinity" of [Juan] Malarín, Estrada and Don Luís.

No session held for twenty-four days. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 149

Letter 14
June 5, 1823. Los Angeles.

Carrillo to de la Guerra on mercantile matters. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 149

Letter 15
July 12, 1824. Los Angeles.

Carrillo to de la Guerra on money matters. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 149

Letter 16
Febr. 20, 1825. Los Angeles.

Carrillo to de la Guerra on money matters. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 149

Letter 17
Apr. 12, 1825. Los Angeles.

Carrillo to de la Guerra concerning the vineyard of a certain Morales. Mentioned is Ana Pinto.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 149

Letter 18
Apr. 10, 1845. Los Angeles.

Carrillo to de la Guerra on the escape of prisoners. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 149

Letter 19
May 11, No year. San Diego.

Carrillo to de la Guerra on the severe illness of his mother. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 149

Letter 20
Sept. 26. No year. Los Angeles.

Carrillo to de la Guerra on the frigate arriving on the 25th, and on sending tallow. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 149

Letter 21
Sept. 14. No year. Los Angeles.

Carrillo to De la Guerra on arriving from San Juan Capistrano with Malarín; on tallow obtained there;

on mercantile matters. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 149

Letter 22
Aug. 16. No year.

Carrillo to de la Guerra on tallow, money and mercantile matters. Mentioned are Padres Antonio

[Ripoll?] and "Napoleon" [Ibarra], O.F.M. Spanish. 3 pp.
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Letter 1
Febr. 6, 1829. San Diego.

José Antonio Ezequiel Carrillo to Fray Antonio Peyrí, O.F.M., concerning a matter of friction

between them. Spanish. Contemporary copy. 2 pp.

DLG 151

Letter 1
Febr. 2, 1834. Santa Barbara.

José Gertrudis Carrillo to José de la Guerra on a family matter. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 151

Letter 2
May 18, 1834. San Buenaventura.

Carrillo to de la Guerra concerning a debt. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 151

Letter 3
June 11, 1848. Santa Barbara.

Carrillo to de la Guerra concerning a dispute over cattle at Rancho San Julian. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 152

Letter 1
Dec. 2, 1845. Santa Barbara.

José Gertrudis Carrillo to [Pio Pico?) on not recognizing the latter as the authority over the people of

Santa Barbara. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 153

Letter 1
Febr. 8, 1861. Santa Barbara.

José Gertrudis Carrillo to Pablo de la Guerra congratulating him on the office bestowed upon him.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 154

Letter 1
c. May 21, 1804.

José Raimundo Carrillo to his daughter, María Antonia, as her wedding day approaches encourages

her to lead a good Christian life; sends greetings to other members of the family. Typewritten Tr.

from BL. Vol. IV, p. 13452 in Documentos Varios. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 154

Letter 2
July 22, c. 1806. Santa Barbara.

Carrillo to María Antonia wishing her and her husband well, and asking [José Antonio de la Guerra y]

Noriega to send him certain documents and goods. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 155

Letter 1
Nov. 26, 1859. San Luis Obispo.

Juan Carrillo to Pablo de la Guerra introducing to him Mr. B. Henry, elected to the California

legislature. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 156

Letter 1

August, 1844. San Pedro.

Pedro Catarino Carrillo to José de la Guerra on taking a house at San Pedro under certain conditions;

asking for the office of treasurer at the port through the aid of Pablo de la Guerra and the government;

mentions his modest pecuniary circumstances. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 157

Letter 1
Jan. 13, 1861. Santa Barbara.

Carrillo to Pablo de la Guerra asking him for the continued appointment of himself as surveyor of

Santa Barbara rather than giving it to Alphaeus B. Thompson. Senator Latham and Governor Downey

mentioned. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 157

Letter 2
March 30, 1873. Los Angeles.

Carrillo to de la Guerra on receiving a telegram of felicitation; Pablo's poor health; his desire to visit

Santa Barbara; hopes for favorable judgment on his land at San Diego; his wish to settle in Santa

Barbara; illness among horses; newcomers to Los Angeles disgusted with the place and displeased

over high price of land. Mentioned are Dionisio Botiller, Manuel Coronel, and Camello's son, Alfred,

who has gone to Mexico. Spanish. 4 pp.
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Letter 1
Oct. 28, 1875. Los Angeles.

Pedro Catarino Carrillo to Francis Alexander Thompson on the arrival of Ramón de la Riva from

Lower California, and his injury sustained in an accident; Riva's need of Thompson as interpreter at

San Buenaventura on Nov. 1, when the question of Rancho Santa Ana will be discussed; Carrillo to

go with him to San Buenaventura by steamer. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 159

Letter 1
June 20, 1836. Santa Barbara.

Raimundo Carrillo to Anastasio. Carrillo concerning the majordomo ship of Mission Santa Barbara.

Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 160

Letter 1
Sept. 10, 1848. Santa Barbara.

Raimundo Carrillo to José de la Guerra asking for a loan of forty pesos in silver before going on a

journey and for his family's needs. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 161

Letter 1
Febr. 12, 1852. Santa Barbara.

Raimundo Carrillo to Pablo de la Guerra begging pardon for not returning a sum of money owed him

the day before. Treats of cattle. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 161

Letter 2
Jan. 20, 1856. Santa Barbara.

Carrillo to de la Guerra on his father going to the United States (sic;); Burton being elected treasurer;

Carrillo's personal difficulties; school funds lacking; his daughter bringing home from church the

news of Father González Rubio's, [O.F.M.] recall to Mexico, a source of sorrow to all. Carrillo

describes González Rubio as a "religious so useful and whose virtue is exemplary," a person who

aided Barbareños in their spiritual needs "with the activity and sweetness of his genius and talent;"

the last sacraments have been received by Padre José Jimeno, O.F.M., who, with González Rubio, is

characterized as "two exemplary men." Mentioned are the judge, the mayor, Francisco de la Guerra,

Antonio M. Estevan Ortega, the González family, Nemesio and a Padre Ayala. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 161

Letter 3
Nov. 25, 1859. Santa Barbara.

Carrillo to de la Guerra on Guillermo Castro's offering the former 500 pesos gratuitously on a former

occasion and his (Castro's) refusal to answer Carrillo's letters. Is in need. Mentions the death of

Cristóbal Valencia. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 161

Letter 4
Febr 8, 1860. Santa Barbara.

Carrillo to de la Guerra directed to the latter in Sacramento where Pablo had attended a ball, and

telling him of a dance that was held in Santa Barbara that lasted until 8:30 in the morning. Also treats

of a land matter relative to Punta de la Concepcion. Addresses de la Guerra as "Caifas." Spanish. 3

pp.

DLG 161

Letter 5
March 23, 1860. Santa Barbara.

Carrillo to de la Guerra complaining about the amount of money Barbareños spend on dances and

little for religious supports; speaks of Holy Week; treats of the possibility of receiving an annual

salary of 2,000 pesos; mentions Pablo's wife, a Don Francisco and a Queremón [Carrillo]. Addresses

him as "Caifas." Spanish. 3 pp.
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Letter 6
Febr. 8, 1861. Santa Barbara.

Carrillo to de la Guerra on a High Mass being sung on the occasion of Pablo being elected president

of the Senate; compliments from the parish priests; a visit of Francis Thompson who is to be captain

of the port of Santa Barbara; on Guillermo Castro's being of possible help to Raimundo in his need;

the beginning of Civil War in the United States and hoping it will not reach California. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 162

Letter 1
c. 1810.

Tomása Ignacia (Lugo) Carrillo to Francisco Xavier de Lizana y Beaumont: a petition for a pension

as the widow of Captain José Raimundo Carrillo. This is a draft partly in the handwriting of José de la

Guerra y Noriega. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 163

Letter 1
Apr. 23, 1855. Sacramento.

Francisco Casanueva to Pablo de la Guerra congratulating him on a speech he delivered. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 164

Letter 1
July 28, 1851 San Francisco.

Eugene Casserly to Pablo de la Guerra stating that since his printing establishment was entirely

destroyed, he is returning to the practice of law, his interest being in land titles; has the backing of

Archbishop [José Sadoc] Alemany; is handing out business cards in Spanish containing the

approbation of Alemany and Pablo de la Guerra; he criticizes the land laws; fears for the fate of the

Californios with regard to their lands; John C. Spencer's declining office as comissioner and the

probable appointment of Hiram Ketchum, the former being an able person, the latter a bigot. Spanish.

3 pp.

DLG 164

Letter 2
Sept. 17, 1860. San Francisco.

Casserly to de la Guerra on the latter's nomination as elector for the Democratic State Convention,

and the politics in the move. Named are Judge Norton, Douglas, Dr. Gwin, Gov. Downey, Getschell

and Drower of Los Angeles, the Breckenridge party, [Antonio] Coronel, and Don A. Pico. English. 5

pp.

DLG 164

Letter 3
June 9, 1861. San Francisco.

Casserly to de la Guerra stating that he, Casserly, would probably be a candidate for governor of

California at the state conventions; J. Couness, Esq. is also in 'the run;' Asks Pablo for his views. José

Antonio, Pablo's nephew, is mentioned. Letter is marked "Private." English. 2 pp.

DLG 165

Letter 1
Dec. 4, 1843. Monterey.

Manuel Castañares to Pablo de la Guerra citing a communication from the governor of California in

which Pablo de la Guerra is to succeed Castañares as customs house director, while Castañares is to

become California's sole representative in Mexico. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 166

Letter 1
May 5, 1859. Tepic.

Joaquín Castaños to Pablo de la Guerra concerning the Almaden mine. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 167

Letter 1
May 6, 1850. Tepic.

José María Castaños to Pablo de la Guerra on sending books to Angustias de la Guerra; on conditions

in Mexico, and mentions Queen Isabela II in Spain. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 167

Letter 2
Apr. 10, 1852. Tepic.

Castaños to de la Guerra on personal and family matters. Spanish. 4 pp.
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DLG 167

Letter 3
May 22, 1855. Tepic.

Castaños to de la Guerra on the latter's travels; answering two of De la Guerra's letters; and stating his

opinions on the times and conditions of life. Spanish. 11 pp.

DLG 168

Letter 1
Jan. 16, 1854. Mazatlán.

Castaños to Angustias de la Guerra on reasons for his silence; his connection with the Ministerio de

Fomento; the government's improvement in its customs houses management; asks about relatives; his

business dealings with a certain Stevenson. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 169

Letter 1
May 10, 1864. San Francisco.

León de Castilla to Pablo de la Guerra on the former's neglect to write; on personal affairs; conditions

in Mexico. Mentions Emperor Maximilian. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 170

Letter 1
May 3, 1839. Santa Barbara.

Andrés Castillero to José de la Guerra sending him Vol. I of the Ordenanzas containing the law of

Febr. 15, 1831. Written and signed for Castillero by J. A. Garraleta. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 171

Letter 1
Dec. [c. 5.], 1836.

Luís del Castillo Negrete to the alcaldes and ayuntamiento of Los Angeles on the chaotic conditions

of California. Negrete is anti-Alvarado. Spanish. 14 pp.

DLG 172

Letter 1
Febr. 9, 1846. Mexico.

Joaquín M. del Castillo y Lanzas to José de Arnaz, issuing a passport visa by M. de Echeguren,

Spanish vice-consul, Mazatlán, May 25, 1846. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 173

Letter 1
Nov. 22, 1860. San Francisco.

Castle and Freeborn to Antonio María de la Guerra enclosing an invoice of goods shipped on the

Senator. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 174

Letter 1
Dec. 26, 1859. San Francisco.

Guillermo Castro to Pablo de la Guerra recommending to him Edwin R. Campbell, state registrar for

the past two years. He is a candidate for secretary of the senate. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 175

Letter 1

May 7, 1840. Santa Barbara.

José Castro to José de la Guerra on taking prisoners to Mexico, and on the need for stopping at Santa

Barbara. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 176

Letter 1
Aug. 4, 1845. Los Angeles.

José Castro to José Abrego: an order to pay José de la Guerra 200 pesos. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 177

Letter 1
Apr. 27, 1846. Monterey.

José Castro to Pablo de la Guerra on the possibility of war with the United States. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 177

Letter 2
July 2, 1846. Santa Clara.

José Castro to Benito Díaz, receiver of the San Francisco customs house, ordering him to hand over

the tonnage of the English ship, Vancouver, to José Antonio Carrillo. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 178

Letter 1
May 28, 1846. Santa Clara.

José Castro to Benito Díaz regarding tonnage of the Inglesa. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 179

Letter 1
Aug. 18, 1819. Monterey.

José Simeon Juan Castro and María Antonia (Pico) Castro to José de la Guerra notifying him of their

marriage. Spanish. 1 p.
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DLG 180

Letter 1
Apr. 20, 1816. Lima.

José Cavenecia to José de la Guerra stating that four corsairs of the insurgent government of Buenos

Aires appeared on the coast of Peru, and that six armed vessels went in pursuit of them. Owing to

their presence in Pacific waters he is not able to send any of his own ships to California. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 180

Letter 2
July 6, 1820. Lima.

Cavenecia to de la Guerra concerning an exchange of goods through the offices of Antonio José Cot.

States that most of the corsairs have disappeared from the Peruvian coast. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 181

Letter 1
Apr. 21, 1871. Sacramento.

Thomas N. Cozneau, adjutant general, to Pablo de la Guerra informing him that a very large number

of exempt certificates, formerly issued to members of the National Guard, are now restricted. He is

forwarding to him a copy of the new regulations. English. 3 pp.

DLG 182

Letter 1
Nov. 9, 1836. Mexico City.

Gaspar Ceballos to José de la Guerra on having received a draft for De la Guerra's brother, states he is

forwarding it through his nephew, Domingo, who is going to Bordeaux to study medicine, who in

turn will give it to C. Mauricio Santos de la Madrid, a resident of Novales, and a neighbor of the de la

Guerras. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 183

Letter 1
Febr. 26, 1850. Los Angeles.

Eulogio de Cells to José de la Guerra on the birth of a son; on cattle; the discovery of a gold mine at

Las Amazonas about 200 miles from Mexico. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 183

Letter 2
Aug. 9, 1853. Comillas.

De Celis to de la Guerra on his arrival in S pain, giving news of the de la Guerra family, and stating

that the country is unchanged in its customs. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 183

Letter 3
June 14, 1856. San Francisco.

De Celis to de la Guerra stating that he may soon go to Europe; giving news concerning a relative of

de la Guerra's in Spain; and commenting on a certain misuse of money once sent to Spain. Spanish. 4

pp.

DLG 183

Letter 4
Aug. 16, 1856. New York.

De Celis to de la Guerra stating that since the presidency may be given to Mr. Arreport, their mutual

friend, and which is of interest to California, he asks de la Guerra to influence his relatives and

friends in his favor. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 184

Letter 1
March 30, 1872. Los Angeles.

Eulogio de Celis to Pablo de la Guerra on his being consulted concerning the publication of a weekly

newspaper in Spain, towards which he gave his aid. He commended it to Judge Sepúlveda, Agustín

Olvera and Antonio Coronel. Its purpose was the "protection, instruction and defense of our race in

particular and the interests of Southern California in general." Suggests to de la Guerra to use his

influence in promoting it. Subscription was $5.00 a year. Asks de la Guerra to contribute articles.

This paper became La Crónica. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 185

Letter 1
Febr. 21, 1860. Santa Barbara.

Guadalupe (Ortega) Chapman to Pablo de la Guerra asking him if the petition in Spanish and English

signed by various Angelinos in favor of her son, José Juan, to be placed in liberty, had arrived. It had

been sent by stagecoach while another was sent to Andrés Pico. Spanish. 1 p.
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DLG 186

Letter 1
Febr. 24, 1860. San Luis Obispo Landing.

John Culbertson Cisna to Pablo de la Guerra on the need of a breakwater at the landing. Cisna asks de

la Guerra five pointed questions on the breakwater since de la Guerra had written to M. Avila that if

he opposed the breakwater he would kill the bill in the senate, though he himself saw the advantages

of the breakwater. English. 3 pp.

DLG 187

Letter 1
June 13, 1867. San Francisco.

Rudolph Alexander Cohen to Pablo de la Guerra on sending him a draft for $500.00. States that

Graham became governor in the Convention and that Pacheco had a lead over Pico. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 187

Letter 2
Sept. 4, 1867. San Francisco.

Cohen to de la Guerra on business and money matters; political conditions in San Francisco; states

that [Henry Huntley] Haight will win over Graham. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 187

Letter 3
Jan. 4, 1868. San Francisco.

Cohen to de la Guerra concerning Benjamin Hayes, deputy from the San Diego district, who wishes

to have a bill passed relating to the division of a judicial district. He told Hayes to contact de la

Guerra. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 187

Letter 4
Sept. 8, 1868. San Francisco.

Cohen to de la Guerra concerning a debt to Hellman and to Newmark and Co. Asks him to send him a

list of things he needs. Has not heard from him concerning a division of the judicial district of San

Diego. The bill is due to [Phineas] Banning. Another bill for reduction in salaries to $4.000.00 a year

is probably due to [Charles] Fernald. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 188

Letter 1
Nov. 6, 1862. Santa Barbara.

Rudolph Alexander Cohen to Pablo de la Guerra concerning debts; is willing to allow further credit to

him until June 1, 1863 if Cohen's money is secured by Gaspar Oreña; merchandise is high and Cohen

has to buy it with ready cash. English. 2 pp.

DLG 189

Letter 1
Dec. 15, 1852. Washington, D.C.

George F. Comstock to Pablo de la Guerra sending him a copy of "An Act to provide for the

appointment of a solicitor of the Treasury." Printed but signed by Comstock. English. 1 p.

DLG 190

Letter 1

March 17, 1852. Sacramento.

Martin E. Cooke to Pablo de la Guerra stating that legislation is proceeding slowly; and announces

that Judge Hall, a land commissioner, stated that the Land Commission will meet in Los Angeles in

the coming summer to adjudicate titles in that area. Partly damaged. English. 2 pp.

DLG 191

Letter 1
Febr. 9, 1861. San Francisco.

Frederick Combs to Pablo de la Guerra stating that he had called on General [Mariano Guadalupe]

Vallejo at Sonoma soliciting his interest in Combs running for senator. Combs asserts that he can do

much for the people of Spanish descent in California. English. 3 pp.

DLG 192

Letter 1
May 7, 1854. Monterey.

Encarnación (Vallejo) Cooper to Pablo de la Guerra: a short note. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 193

Letter 1
Oct. 1, 1859. Monterey.

Juan Bautista Rogers Cooper to Pablo de la Guerra asking for a barrel of wine he wishes to send to a

friend. There is also a paragraph about a certain "Anita." Spanish and English. 2 pp.
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DLG 194

Letter 1
Dec. 21, 1869. Sacramento.

Antonio Francisco Coronel to Ascención (Sepúlveda) Mott on hope of recovery of Juan de la Guerra.

A telegram. English. 1 p.

DLG 195

Letter 1
Dec. 22, 1869. Sacramento.

Coronel to Romualdo Pacheco stating that Juan de la Guerra is out of danger. A telegram. English. 1

p.

DLG 196

Letter 1
Dec. 5, 1869. Sacramento.

Manuel Francisco Coronel to Ascención Mott stating that Juan de la Guerra met with an accident, his

skull fractured, but out of danger. A telegram. English, 1 p.

DLG 196

Letter 2
Dec. 17, 1869. Sacramento.

Manuel F. Coronel to Concepción Mott stating that Juan de la Guerra is pronounced incurable by his

doctor. A telegram. English. 1 p.

DLG 197

Letter 1
Dec. 17, 1869.

Manuel Coronel to Thomas D. Mott on Juan de la Guerra's accident. A telegram. English. 1 p.

DLG 198

Letter 1
Jan. 7, 1824. San Fernando College, Mexico.

Fray Juan Cortés, O.F.M., to the missionaries of Mission San Luis Obispo concerning the debt it owes

to San Fernando College and which was paid by Mission Santa Barbara. The latter mission now

claims it and since the college cannot pay because of lack of sínodos since 1811. San Luis Obispo is

to reimburse Santa Barbara. With this is another document by Cortés ordering San Luis Obispo to pay

Santa Barbara 625 pesos, and 5/8 reales, Jan. 7, 1824. Fray Antonio Ripoll, O.F.M., Santa Barbara,

Sept. 10, 1824, acknowledges receipt for that amount. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 199

Letter 1
May 6, 1820. Monterey.

Juan Antonio de Cortina to José de la Guerra announcing his arrival from Lima, San Blas and

Mazatlán where he took on a brigade of artillery men for service in California. He set out from

Callao, while insurgents were blocking the port. Is sending him certain articles and their invoices. His

men need to be provided for. A speedy answer is requested. Mentions the Cleopatra. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 200

Letter 1
March 1874.

Soledad de Gómez de Cortina to Angustias de la Guerra on the deaths of her brothers Don Antonio

and Don Pablo. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 200

Letter 2
July 20, 1877.

Cortina to Angustias on family affairs, familiar in tone. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 200

Letter 3
Without date or year.

Manuela Cortina to Angustias. Light ink. Almost impossible to read. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 200

Letter 4
Without date or year.

Manuela Cortina to Angustias with a note by Soledad. A short friendly letter. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 201

Letter 1
Apr. 6, 1875.

Soledad Alalid de Gómez to Carolina Jimeno, a familiar letter mentioning relatives. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 202

Letter 1
1857

Eli Corwin to the committee on agriculture in the Senate and Assembly of California concerning

funds given by the state to the Agricultural Society. English. 4 pp.
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DLG 203

Letter 1
Sept. 16, 1820. Monterey.

Antonio José Cot to José de la Guerra announcing his arrival at Monterey from Callao, Peru; on the

brigantine, Europa, for the purpose of trade; has commercial relations with a certain Yllas and [José

Antonio] Aguirre; excuses himself for not being able to supply de la Guerra with the kind of cloth he

wanted; forwards a letter from José Cavenecia. Will come to Santa Barbara. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 203

Letter 2
July 18, 1822. Monterey.

Cot to de la Guerra announcing his arrival from Callao on the English frigate, Claudine, and stating

that his entire supply of goods had been captured; is seeking to take fruit to Lima which, if he cannot

obtain, he will sail for Asia. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 203

Letter 3
Oct. 15, 1822. San Gabriel.

Cot to de la Guerra on receiving 400 pesos from Joaquín Maitorena. Outlines a business deal

concerning tallow. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 203

Letter 4
June 14, 1830. Lima.

Cota to de la Guerra on his arrival at Lima after seventy-two days out from Santa Barbara; the death

of his father-in-law; political, military, economic and social conditions in South America; the status

of Spain and of Spaniards in South America; sad state of affairs in Lima. Mentioned are Buenos

Aires, General Prieto, General Freite, Province of Concepción, Columbia, Venezuela, General

Bolivar, Señores Abadia and Arizmendi, the King of Spain and Cádiz. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 203

Letter 5
July 21, 1830. Lima.

Cot to de la Guerra on sending letters by the Dorotea, a Mexican schooner bound for Mazatlán; the

owner being a certain Machado; states that Fray Luís [Martínez, O.F.M.] is about to sail on a ship

destined for Gibraltar and Cádiz; conditions in South America unchanged; a reported movement of

Spaniard soldiers destined for South America; the brigantine, Ayacucho, mentioned. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 203

Letter 6
June 3, 1832. Lima.

Cot to de la Guerra on the arrival of El Eliza; his inability to carry out a project announced to de la

Guerra by Mancisidor; the presence of Juan de la Guerra at Tepic; on receiving from California the

news of the death of [Romualdo] Pacheco, and the wounding of Governor [Manuel] Victoria; on a

letter received from Fray Antonio Ripoll, O.F.M., in Palma, Mallorca, and another from Fray Luís

Antonio Martínez, O.F.M., dated Madrid, Oct. 20, 1831; his difficulty in obtaining the silk requested;

the existence of an "Octavian Peace;" Mentions the ships, Ayacucho, Eliza and Catalina, a convoy

from the Sandwich Islands; the schooner, Veloz Manuela, captained by Antonio Pintado. Spanish. 4

pp.

DLG 203

Letter 7
Febr. 25, 1834. Lima.

Cot to de la Guerra on President Agustín Gamorra's termination of office; the election of General Luís

José Orbegoso as temporary president; the military declaring for General Pedro Bermudes to the

disgust of the people; political antagonism between the coast and the sierra; commerce in a state of

paralysis; death of the king of Spain, Sept. 29, 1833; the reign being in the hands of the queen.

Spanish. 4 pp.
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DLG 203

Letter 8
Febr. 25, 1834. Lima.

Cota to de la Guerra on receiving his letter through Menéndez and Bourke; on the death of Juan de la

Guerra; the arrival of Anderson and Mancisidor in Liverpool; on receiving a letter from Fray Luís

Martínez, O.F.M., of Madrid, who is in good health and continually thinking of California; the arrival

of the frigate Rosa, formerly the Tagle, at Valparaíso; the sad political situation in Peru. Partly torn.

Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 203

Letter 9
Oct. 7, 1834. Monterey.

Cota to de la Guerra on his arrival in California on the Rosa and his intention of going to San Luis

Obispo, El Cojo and Santa Barbara. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 203

Letter 10
Jan. 16, 1835. Aboard the Rosa.

Cota to de la Guerra of [Alfred] Robinson’s ship expected to arrive and on receiving mail from de la

Guerra. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 203

Letter 11
Jan. 18, 1838. Los Angeles.

Cot to de la Guerra on his arrival at San Pedro by ship; his business visit with Antonio María Lugo;

on a payment from the Russians to be sent to him by Antonio Suñol. Mentions Miguel Pedrorena,

Capt. Hinchell and Fray Tomás Esténaga, O.F.M. of San Gabriel, a certain Menéndez and Juan

Malarín. Spanish. 6 pp.

DLG 203

Letter 12
Jan. 22, 1838. Los Angeles.

Cot to de la Guerra on a money matter. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 203

Letter 13
Jan. 24, 1838. Los Angeles.

Cot to de la Guerra on commercial and money matters. Mentioned are José Antonio Aguirre, Fray

Tomás Esténaga, O.F.M., [Miguel] Pedrorena, Julián Williams, P. Carrillo, [Eulogio de] Celis and

Menéndez. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 203

Letter 14
Febr. 6, 1835. San Diego.

Cot to de la Guerra on a debt owed by Fray Tomás Esténaga; an account of Fray Ramón Abella,

O.F.M.; other money and mercantile matters. Mentioned are Fray Narciso Durán, O.F.M., Miguel

Pedrorena, Menéndez and [Eulogio de] Celis. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 203

Letter 15

Nov. 12, 1838. Lima.

Cot to de la Guerra on the complicated political and military situation in Peru, and the political

situation in Spain. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 203

Letter 16
June 12, 1846. Los Angeles.

Cot to de la Guerra on the former's illness; Masses to be said; on dealing with the Spanish

vice-consul; his intention of coming to Santa Barbara. Mentioned are Juan Warner, Señor [Henry]

Mellus and Rancho de San Jose, (Warner's Ranch). Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 203

Letter 17
July 8, 1846.

Cot to de la Guerra on the sale of cattle; the placing of cattle at San Jacinto. Mentioned are [José

Antonio] Aguirre, [Manuel] Requeña, [Miguel] Pedrorena and Estudillo. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 203

Letter 18
Dec. 4, 1847. Los Angeles.

Cot to de la Guerra explaining his loan to [John] Fremont; on Estudillo's inheritors; financial matters;

his restoration to health. Sends greetings to Fray Narciso Durán, O.F.M. Spanish. 4 pp.
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DLG 203

Letter 19
Aug. 23, 1848. Los Angeles.

Cot to de la Guerra on his dealings with Ercilla and several other matters not clearly recognizable.

Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 203

Letter 20
Sept. 25, 1848. Los Angeles.

Cota to de la Guerra on money matters. Mentioned are Fremont and Ercilla. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 203

Letter 21
Oct. 10, 1848. Los Angeles.

Cota to de la Guerra on Yndart's going to San Diego and on financial matters. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 203

Letter 22
Nov. 22, 1848. Los Angeles.

Cota to de la Guerra on business matters; de la Guerra's illness; the appearance of a meteor on the

previous Friday. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 203

Letter 23
Apr. 3, 1849. Los Angeles.

Cot to de la Guerra asking advice on certain judicial matters and on money matters. Mentioned are

[James] Scott and [John] Wilson. Spanish. 7 pp.

DLG 203

Letter 24
Apr. 9, 1849. Los Angeles.

Cot to de la Guerra concerning liquidation of the firm of Antonio Malaguido of Lima. Cot is asked to

send him documents concerning Stefano Splivolo. De la Guerra is to send them to Ward and Smith in

San Francisco through Dr. Richard Den. Yellow fever has broken out in Lima, colera morbus in the

United States; news from Lima; the probable population of California in 1852 to be about 200,000;

Pablo de la Guerra to be told that the State Convention will be held at Monterey about August 1.

Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 203

Letter 25
Apr. 23, 1849. Los Angeles.

Cota to de la Guerra on the death of Cesareo Lataillade; commercial matters; and forthcoming

elections in Los Angeles. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 203

Letter 26
May 1, 1819. Los Angeles.

Cota to de la Guerra on the death of Juan Bautista Leandro in Los Angeles in 1843, and the naming of

his widow, Francisca Oribe, as administrator of his effects. Mentioned is Rancho de los Coyotes.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 203

Letter 27

May 21, 1849. Los Angeles.

Cot to de la Guerra on a communication from [José María] Covarrubias; discusses a matter of rather

obscure nature; news from Lima. Mentioned are his family, [Henry] Mellus and Yndart. Spanish. 4

pp.

DLG 203

Letter 28
May 27, 1849. Los Angeles.

Cot to de la Guerra explaining why he did not stop off at Santa Barbara; the testament of Ercilla; his

loan to Fremont; on handing over an order for payment to Señor Valle. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 203

Letter 29
July [23], 1850. Los Angeles.

Cot to de la Guerra on sending him some minted gold through Domingo Pujol, to be placed on

account of the deceased Ercilla; Andrés Pico's coming to Santa Barbara soon. Mentioned are Yndart

and [James?] McKinley. Partly torn. Spanish. 2 pp.
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DLG 203

Letter 30
Aug. 1, 1850. Los Angeles.

Cot to de la Guerra on the visit of Pujol and Andrés Pico; coastwise shipping to be delayed; a letter

from Yndart from Acapulco; a newspaper report on invasion of Cuba by Spanish troops under

General Narciso López; Alfred Robinson's arrival at San Diego on the Panama; California's

admission as a state not to take place during the present session of Congress. Partly torn. Spanish. 3

pp.

DLG 203

Letter 31
Sept. 2, 1850. Los Angeles.

Cot to de la Guerra on receiving a communication from a certain Gaspar; on a testament; an account.

Mentioned are Domingo Pujol, Fernando Sepúlveda, Señor Rodríguez de Poli, [Gaspar?] Oreña,

Menéndez and a certain Juan Ignacio. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 204

Letter 1
Oct. 21, 1824. Santa Barbara.

Antonio José Cot to Fray Luís Antonio Martínez, O.F.M. on the departure of Zubillaga; Cot's going to

San Gabriel; on a deposit of from eight to ten thousand pesos made at Presidio Santa Barbara; on

Martínez offering hides to [William] Hartnell. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 205

Letter 1
Jan. 24, 1838. Los Angeles.

Cot to Fray Tomás Esténaga, O.F.M. sending him a note from the father president [Durán] asking

Esténaga to send him the 100 pesos he owes and sending a receipt through José Ramón Rodríguez.

José de la Guerra mentioned. Partly torn. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 206

Letter 1
June 15, 1830. Lima.

María Estebáñez de Cot to María Antonia Carrillo de Noriega on her arrival at Lima, June 1, after

seventy-two days at sea; on the death of her father on Oct. 25, 1829, and recalling the happy days she

spent at Santa Barbara. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 206

Letter 2
June 6, 1831. Lima.

Estebáñez de Cot to M. A. Carrillo de Noriega on a letter received from her with news of the family;

on the birth of a son who was named José Antonio and baptized by Fray Luís Martínez, O.F.M.;

Martínez' sailing for Europe on Sept. 12; news concerning her family. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 206

Letter 3
June 2, 1832. Lima.

Estebáñez de Cot to M. A. Carrillo de Noriega on family matters, a visit of Antonio Pintado, the death

of Joaquín Yorba, husband of Isabel. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 207

Letter 1
June 5, 1838.

Francisco Cota to José de la Guerra on an account. Named are Manuel Jimeno and [José Antonio]

Aguirre. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 207

Letter 2
May 16, 1839. Santa Ines.

Cota to de la Guerra on giving Tomás Spacala 568 pesos, 1 real, to be given to the father prefect. Is

sending on an account. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 207

Letter 3
June 15, 1839. Santa Ines.

Cota to de la Guerra on giving Thomas Park eighty-four pesos. Mentioned is a Jimeno. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 208

Letter 1
No Folder.
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DLG 209

Letter 1
April 21, 1817. Los Angeles.

Guillermo Cota to José Palomares answering an oficio of the same day concerning Tiburcio Soto.

Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 210

Letter 1
May 30, 1817. Los Angeles.

Guillermo Cota to José de la Guerra on freeing Antonio Briones as ordered; on Briones and Tiburcio

Soto having complied with the Paschal precept; the cutting of timber, Mentioned are Francisco Soto,

Rubio, [Miguel] Pollorena, Manuela Fernández, Guillermo Soto, Sergeant Alvarado, José Burmúdez

and Bartolo Tapia. Spanish. 14 pp.

DLG 210

Letter 2
Febr. 16, 1823. Los Angeles.

Cota to de la Guerra on the case of the soldier, Justo Mafia, and Juana Alvarado. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 210

Letter 3
Febr 18, 1823. Los Angeles.

Cota to de la Guerra on taking a census of the inhabitants of Los Angeles and its environs and giving

the result to the padres of Mission San Gabriel to be used as a basis for determining compliance with

the Paschal precept. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 210

Letter 4
Aug. 17, 1823. Los Angeles.

Cota to de la Guerra forwarding declarations made against Antonio María Nieto, and on orders

received and given. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 210

Letter 5
Sept. 6, 1823. Los Angeles.

Cota to de la Guerra concerning justice to be done to sergeant Anastasio Carrillo. Involved is

Francisco Alvarado. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 210

Letter 6
July 26, 1824. Los Angeles.

Cota to de la Guerra concerning recruits. Mentioned are Anastasio Carrillo, Domingo Oliva, and

Andrés Duarte. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 210

Letter 7
Jan. 29, 1825. Los Angeles.

Cota to de la Guerra on handing over thirty hides to Guillermo Logan; on brandy and horses.

mentioned is Vicente Pico. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 210

Letter 8
July 22, 1825. Los Angeles.

Cota to de la Guerra on being sent to San Pedro as a guard because of the presence of ships. This is

followed by a statement of Anastasio Carrillo, Los Angeles, Aug. 11, 1825. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 211

Letter 1
Aug. 11, 1823. Los Angeles.

Guillermo Cota to Manuel Gutiérrez on soldier Antonio Nava Nieto proceeding from San Diego with

two prisoners. Cota is in charge of retired soldiers and artillery men. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 212

Letter 1
Oct. 8, 1823. Los Angeles.

Guillermo Cota reporting on the number of cattle and horses with names of owners in the Los

Angeles jurisdiction. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 213

Letter 1
Sept. 26, 1851. San Francisco.

Cave Johnson Couts to Pablo de la Guerra asking the latter to use his influence in his being appointed

U. S. marshal for the southern district of California. José Antonio Aguirre mentioned. English. 2 pp.
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DLG 214

Letter 1
June 26, 1845. Los Angeles.

José María Covarrubias to José de la Guerra on the death of his daughter Delfina, who is to be buried

at San Gabriel; announces the death of María Concepción Argüello, a sister-in-law of [Eulogio de]

Celis. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 214

Letter 2
July 18, 1845.

Covarrubias to de la Guerra on a matter favorable to Señor Valle; on Anastasio Carrillo being made

sub-prefect of the Santa Barbara district; on [Juan Bautista] Alvarado being placed in charge of troops

in the north to campaign against uncivilized Indians and to visit military quarters, while Pablo de la

Guerra is made administrator of the customs house succeeding Alvarado, which appointment for the

present remains confidential. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 215

Letter 1
June 19, 1851. Santa Barbara.

Covarrubias to Pablo de la Guerra on Indian raiders from the San Joaquín Valley robbing in Santa

Barbara County. Asks the governor and de la Guerra for protection. Doña Angustias de la Guerra is

leaving for Monterey by steamer. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 215

Letter 2
Apr. 28, 1854. Santa Barbara.

Covarrubias to de la Guerra on sending a note to Governor [John] Bigler containing the names of

individuals to form the staff of the Fourth Division of which he is head; asking that the governor be

contacted to learn if the proposed men have been officially named. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 215

Letter 3
Apr. 30, 1854. Santa Barbara.

Covarrubias to de la Guerra referring to his letter of Apr. 28. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 216

Letter 1
Jan. 18, 1861. Sacramento.

Covarrubias to Joseph B. Lamar thanking him for his felicitations on former's election; expresses his

sorrow over latter's defeat; cannot support Dr. L. Price since he has already been committed to

someone else. English. 1 p.

DLG 217

Letter 1
June 20, 1851. San Francisco.

Elam Covington to Pablo de la Guerra introducing George E. Sherwood concerning a garden.

English. 1 p.

DLG 217

Letter 2

Jan. 28, 1851. San Francisco.

Elam Covington to Pablo de la Guerra on the activity of the U.S. Land Commission and its possible

future plans to come south. English. 2 pp.

DLG 217

Letter 3
Sept. 9, 1851. San Jose

Covington to de la Guerra stating that he cannot be senator unless he resigns his office as marshal.

English. 1 p.

DLG 217

Letter 4
Nov. 9, 1851. San Francisco.

Covington to de la Guerra on having conferred with Dr. Randall in Monterey; informing de la Guerra

that court is to be held in Los Angeles in December to consider land cases; Pablo as marshal will have

absolute power in choosing juries; if de la Guerra does not resign his office as marshal, Covington

will go south to live there. English. 3 pp.
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DLG 217

Letter 5
Nov. 23, 1851. Los Angeles.

Covington to de la Guerra on his arrival in Los Angeles, and stating that since there would be little

work for him there until the spring, he would like to continue his job as engraving clerk for the

Senate. English. 1 p.

DLG 217

Letter 6
Febr. 9, 1852. San Francisco.

Covington to de la Guerra stating that he does not know when the Land Commission will go south; is

sending a draft to cover future expenses. English. 1 p.

DLG 217

Letter 7
Febr. 25, 1852. Sacramento.

Covington to de la Guerra concerning a requisition for the Land Commission; a petition to be formed

by the legislature asking the president to order the Land Commission to go to Los Angeles; money

from the Innes estate retained by Covington. English. 2 pp.

DLG 217

Letter 8
Apr. 15, 1853. Benecia,

Covington to de la Guerra on making up the marshal's returns of the southern district of California

and his submitting them to Judge Hoffman; little business in Monterey county for U. S. Courts; is

going to Monterey to libel the steamship McKim; Judge Hoffman to have a short term at Monterey;

de la Guerra to send $500.00 for court expenses at Monterey; and asks de la Guerra to loan him

$2,000.00 to carry on an unnamed business in association with an unnamed partner. English. 4 pp.

DLG 217

Letter 9
May 9, 1853. Benecia.

Covington to de la Guerra on receiving information from Judge Hoffman that he will hold court at

Monterey on the first Monday in June; Covington will have to seize the steamer McKim laid up there;

money needed for court use. English. 2 pp.

DLG 217

Letter 10
May 28, 1853. San Francisco.

Covington to de la Guerra stating that he is going to court at Monterey; has made out accounts of

expenses for the Southern District Court; will go to Los Angeles at the end of June; papers he has

concerning De la Guerra; sorry to hear that de la Guerra cannot loan him the $2,000.00 requested;

thinks Santa Barbara should be well represented at the Benecia convention for nomination of a

governor. English. 3 pp.

DLG 217

Letter 11
Aug. 22, 1854: Sacramento.

Covington to de la Guerra on legal and financial affairs. English. 1 p.

DLG 217

Letter 12
Nov. 13, 1854. Sacramento.

Covington to de la Guerra concerning final decision on accounts submitted to Washington by

California courts; a refund is due to de la Guerra and to [Alexander] S. Taylor, late clerk of the

district court. English. 1 p.

DLG 217

Letter 13
May 14, 1855. San Francisco.

Covington to de la Guerra sending him an enclosed letter. English. 1 p.

DLG 218

Letter 1
June 30, 1815. Mexico.

An account of books ordered by José de la Guerra signed by Bernardo Crespo. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 219

Letter 1
Dec. 22, 1845. Los Angeles.

Manuel Crespo to Pio Pico interceding on behalf of José Antonio Carrillo, who had been banished

from California by Pico. Spanish. 4 pp.
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DLG 220

Letter 1
Nov. 18, 1844 Los Angeles.

Julio Cretaine to José de la Guerra concerning a draft. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 221

Letter 1
July 22, 1812. San Blas.

Marcelo Croguer signs a letter of credit. The document is signed at various times until Febr. 20, 1824,

in favor of José de la Guerra. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 221

Letter 2
Sept. 5, 1812. San Blas.

Croguer signs a letter of credit in favor of de la Guerra. Signed the last time on Febr. 20, 1824.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 221

Letter 3
June 5, 1819.

Croguer to de la Guerra notifying him that the San Carlos or Reina de los Angeles is soon to sail and

is bringing lumber and other articles de la Guerra had ordered. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 222

Letter 1
Febr. 7, 1821. San Bias.

Croquer to de la Guerra concerning lumber and other items requested by de la Guerra. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 223

Letter 1
March 21, 1861. Sacramento.

Rev. James Croke, vicar general, to Pablo de la Guerra asking the latter to visit him to consult with

him on important business interests of Archbishop [Alemany] of San Francisco. English. 1 p.

DLG 224

Letter 1
Jan. 4 - 5, 1830. Rosario, Mexico.

José de Cubillas to Ignacio Núñez: a petition for a judicial investigation to legally certify the loss of

the schooner, San José, formerly El Señoriano, and the resulting proceedings. Certified copy signed

by Núñez, Andrés A. Valenzuela and Francisco Patiño. Spanish. 16 pp.

DLG 225

Letter 1
June 6, 1830. Tepic.

Cubillas to José de la Guerra concerning the loss of his ship and his inability to ship tallow; on money

matters and ships. Signature cut out of document. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 225

Letter 2
Apr. 12, 1831. Tepic.

Cubillas to de la Guerra on money matters. Makes a reference to La Biblia del Padre Scio. Partly torn.

Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 226

Letter 1
March 20, 1821. Monterey.

Juan de Cubillas to José de la Guerra announcing his arrival and on goods to be sent to him. Spanish.

1 p.

DLG 227

Letter 1
Febr. 8, 1874. La Vega.

Román de la Cuesta to Josefa (Moreno) de la Guerra on the death of Pablo de la Guerra. Spanish. 2

pp.

DLG 228

Letter 1
Jan. 27, 1830. Santa Barbara.

Miguel de Culebras to Fray Marcos Antonio Victoria, O.F.M., concerning a barrel of wine. Spanish. 2

pp.

DLG 229

Letter 1
Febr. 20, 1861. San Francisco.

William Dames to Pablo de la Guerra complaining of squatters. English. 2 pp.

DLG 230

Letter 1
Oct. 29, 1869. San Luis Obispo.

Charles W. Dana to de la Guerra giving him a certificate of his election as judge. English. 2 pp.
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DLG 231

Letter 1
Apr. 4, 1880. Paris.

Richard Henry Dana to Rebecca Ruth (Ord) Peshine sending regards and learning of his son's

presence in California. Photograph. English. 2 pp. Three copies.

DLG 232

Letter 1
March 11, 1850. Nipomo.

William Goodwin Dana to José de la Guerra concerning a request for brandy and wine. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 233

Letter 1
Aug. 14, 1843. Tepic.

Domingo Danglada to José de la Guerra on commercial matters. Mentioned are Antonio Trana and

Alfred Robinson. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 233

Letter 2
Jan. 7, 1850. Tepic.

Danglada to de la Guerra on business matters. Mentioned are: Juan José Amat, Malagrida Compañía,

and Cesareo (Lataillade?). Spanish. 6 pp.

DLG 233

Letter 3
Apr. 11, 1850. Mazatlán.

Danglada to de la Guerra on liquidation of the accounts of Cesareo Lataillade. He intends to go to San

Francisco. Mentioned are Pecker, Porre y Compañía, and Gregorio Ajuna. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 233

Letter 4
Nov. 11, [no year). Tepic.

Danglada to de la Guerra on money matters. Mentioned is Antonio Arana of Durango. Partly torn.

Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 234

Letter 1
Febr. 7, 1850. Tepic.

Domingo Danglada to Pablo de la Guerra including four statements on accounts. Mentioned are: José

de la Guerra, Juan José Amat, María Antonia de la Guerra, Malagrida y Compañía, Estevan Splivalo,

Cesareo Lataillade, Pascual García, Isidro Corona, Cayetano García, Juan Santos Caso and a number

of others. One page torn. Spanish. 16 pp.

DLG 234

Letter 2
March 24, 1851. San Francisco.

Danglada to de la Guerra on the leave-taking of Erastus D. French from José Antonio Aguirre's ranch

of Tejon, whom [José Antonio] Aguirre had hired for five years to brand cattle. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 234

Letter 3

Sept. 20, 1856. Santa Barbara.

Danglada to de la Guerra on returning to the latter the five account books of Cesareo Lataillade.

Mentioned are: Gaspar Oreña, Juan José Amat, Rancho de Cuyama, [Rancho] Zaca and [Rancho]

Espada. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 235

Letter 1
Dec. 21, 1834. Los Angeles.

Rafael Danglada to Josh de la Guerra concerning a non- compliance with a legal order. Asks de la

Guerra's opinion. Mentioned are Juan Malarín and Francisco Torres. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 235

Letter 2
Jan. 24, 1835. Los Angeles.

Danglada to de la Guerra on the former being called to court at Monterey on Jan. 30; Antonio

Apalategui appointed as his lawyer. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 236

Letter 1
May, 1884. Berkeley.

Sherman Day to George Frisbie Hoar. Typewritten copy of an extract from Hoar's Autobiography of

Seventy Years in which he compares Daniel Webster to Pablo de la Guerra in appearance. English. 1

p.
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DLG 237

Letter 1
Apr. 18, 1857. Santa Barbara.

C. S. Dean to Antonio María de la Guerra announcing that Francisco Carrillo has been elected pro

tem president of the city council. English. 1 p.

DLG 238

Letter 1
Sept. 17, 1858. San Francisco.

P. De la Torre, U.S. attorney, to Pablo de la Guerra asking him to send him from the de la Guerra

papers the document of the Mexican government giving to Pedro Chaboya title of land near San José

called La Poza de San Juan Bautista. English. 6 pp.

DLG 239

Letter 1
Nov. 15, 1846. Los Angeles.

Richard Somerset Den to José de la Guerra concerning 500 pesos in favor of the former which are to

be paid to Daniel Hill and for which a receipt is to be given. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 239

Letter 2
Nov. 18, 1846. Los Angeles.

Receipt by Den to de la Guerra for 80 pesos in silver for his intended visit to San Luis Rey to visit

Fray José de Zalvidea, O.F.M. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 240

Letter 1
Febr. 21, 1861. Santa Barbara.

Thomas Dennis to Johnson Price, secretary of state, claiming reimbursement of travel money from

Santa Barbara in relation to election returns. English. 1 p.

DLG 241

Letter 1
Febr. 21, 1861. Santa Barbara.

Dennis to Pablo de la Guerra stating that no money was appropriated for paying the person bringing

election returns from Santa Barbara to the capital. English. 1 p.

DLG 241

Letter 2
May 14, 1861. San Francisco.

Dennis to de la Guerra concerning a bill to be passed to secure a prompt collection of revenue. The

collecting officer should have reasonable compensation. English. 1 p.

DLG 241a

Letter 1
Dec. 27, 1850. Washington. D.C.

W. S. Derrick to Pablo de la Guerra: a notice of his appointment as U. S. marshal. Photograph.

English. 1 p.

DLG 242

Letter 1

June, 1819. Tepic.

Isidro Díaz to José de la Guerra on financial matters. Mentioned are Juan José de Zestaje and the

frigate, Reyna de los Angeles. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 242

Letter 2
June 6, 1825. Tepic.

Díaz to de la Guerra on financial matters. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 243

Letter 1
May 3, 1807, Frigate Princesa.

Benito Díaz Fernández de la Vega to José de la Guerra reporting on his safe arrival at San Blas after

forty-six days at sea. Treats of a matter that is not very clear. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 243

Letter 2
March 24, 1808. San Blas.

Fernández de la Vega to de la Guerra on commercial matters. Spanish. 4 pp.
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DLG 243

Letter 3
Jan. 11, 1814. San Blas.

Fernández de la Vega to de la Guerra on the Mexican revolution; the taking of Acapulco by Morelos;

Vera Cruz cut off; deaths of Minard, Pujet, Carrasco and Felipe García, Fathers Villaverde, Ximénez,

and others; Fernández, captain of the Tagle, named elector of the San Blas partido for the Cortés;

debts owed to him; news from Spain that most of the French have been driven out and the emperor

(sic) of Germany declaring war. Inquires about Noé. Spanish. 8 pp.

DLG 244

Letter 1
Oct. 22, 1860. San Quentin Prison.

Gregorio Dimas to Pablo de la Guerra asking him to work for his freedom. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 244a

Letter 1
Nov. 3, 1815. San Diego.

Cristóbal Domínguez to José de la Guerra on a matter between himself and Manuel Gutiérrez about

which he had conferred with de la Guerra; sending him six certifications; on 600 head of cattle sold to

Mission San Fernando; on other animals. Mentioned is Antonio Ignacio Avila. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 244a

Letter 2
Febr. 28, 1823. San Diego,

Domínguez to de la Guerra sending him six certifications on as many persons and on a certain

Gutiérrez annuling a testament. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 245

Letter 1
July 23, 1860. San Francisco.

John Gately Downey to Pablo de la Guerra on the Baltimore Convention and its dismembering of the

democratic party; in favor of Breckenridge. Downey hopes de la Guerra and his friends will support

Douglas. English. 1 p.

DLG 245

Letter 2
July 28, 1860.

Downey to de la Guerra concerning a $15,000.00 appropriation; a prison matter; his ideas on the

break-up of the Democratic Party; believes Douglas won the election, and that nearly all, except

federal employees, are in favor of Douglas. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 245

Letter 3
Aug. 29, 1860. Sacramento.

Downey to de la Guerra stating that having consulted the supreme court of California there is no

vacancy for a judgeship; $15,000.00 are being sent to the president of the board of supervisors; Pablo

is urged to accept nomination as elector on the Douglas ticket; [William M.] Gwin is not a candidate

for the senate; Downey is for Douglas and against Gwin; is against Brint for assemblyman. English. 2

pp.

DLG 245

Letter 4
Sept. 10, 1860, Sacramento.

Downey to de la Guerra on the convention held; Pablo being nominated one of the presidential

electors; urging him to do all possible in favor of Breckenridge, especially in Los Angeles; on a travel

expense account allowed; lighthouse keeper job already given to someone; offers job on scales,

weights and measures to a friend of Pablo. English. 2 pp.

DLG 245

Letter 5
Sept. 29, 1860. Sacramento.

Downey to de la Guerra on the latter's name being presented at the convention; thinks Republicans

will have control of national affairs for the four next years; asks de la Guerra not to withdraw his

name. English. 4 pp.
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DLG 245

Letter 6
Oct. 8, 1860. Sacramento.

Downey to de la Guerra stating that he is preparing the ground to have the latter elected as senate

president; feels [Abraham] Lincoln will be elected president; urges de la Guerra to go to Los Angeles,

in which Downey is interested election-wise. Downey assessed $50.00 by executive committee and

states that if he was assessed he should forget about it. English. 3 pp.

DLG 245

Letter 7
Dec. 3, 1860. Sacramento.

Downey to de la Guerra on the latter being lined up for president of the senate; mentions various

politicians and party rivalry; feels certain that Lincoln won the election. English. 4 pp.

DLG 245

Letter 8
March 25, 1861. Sacramento.

Downey to de la Guerra asking him to come to his office to talk over some important business.

English. 1 p.

DLG 245

Letter 9
Dec. 16, 1861. Sacramento.

Downey de la Guerra on state prisons; de la Guerra to call senate to order; his conversation with a

director of a loan society who may help de la Guerra to get his estate out of debt. English, 1 p.

DLG 246

Letter 1
Aug. 11, 1861. Sacramento.

Downey to Charles H. Johnson asking the latter to see Pablo de la Guerra if Johnson intends to run

for governor; on [Romualdo] Pacheco unwillingness to be governed by de la Guerra's advice; is also

to see a Mr. Maguire. Downey will write to Pablo de la Guerra in a confidential letter. English. 2 pp.

DLG 247

Letter 1
Aug. 13, 1861. Sacramento.

Downey to Antonio María de la Guerra authorizing him to raise a company of mounted native

Californians to act as protectors of the Overland Mail between Carson Valley and Great Salt Lake

City; the number of men to be between seventy-nine and ninety-five; horses and equipment to be

supplied by the government; de la Guerra is to be commander and Francisco Guirado first lieutenant.

Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 248

Letter 1
Nov. 27, 1863. Los Angeles.

William G. Dryden and eight others, members of the Los Angeles bar, to Pablo de la Guerra

submitting the name of Jerome H. Sander for appointment of court council server for Los Angeles

County. English. 1 p.

DLG 249

Letter 1
1830

Fray Narciso Durán, O.F.M., listing the missions and missionaries of California and the sínodos

received by them. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 250

Letter 1
Aug. 20, 1839. Santa Barbara.

Durán to José de la Guerra concerning the status of Indians at the missions and on the mission system.

Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 250

Letter 2
Oct. 14, 1845. Santa Barbara.

Durán to de la Guerra or to his successor: his last will and testament. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 251

Letter 1
Jan. 16, 1843. Santa Barbara.

Durán to the bishop of Boston or, in his absence, to the bishop of New York, sending 400 pesos

collected for the Propagation of the Faith of Lyons, France. Latin. 1 p.



8/26/2009 Page 73

DLG 251

Letter 2
Febr. 10, 1843. Santa Barbara.

Same as above. Latin. 1 p.

DLG 253

Letter 1
Nov. 19, 1825. San Diego.

José María Echeandía to José de la Guerra concerning the position of cadete for Francisco Tapia.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 253

Letter 2
Dec. 15, 1825. San Diego.

Echeandía to de la Guerra concerning Tapia and José Medina. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 253

Letter 3
Aug. 15, 1826. San Diego.

Echeandía to de la Guerra concerning an unnamed secretary for the former's office, and on money to

be deposited in San Diego or San Luis Rey. Partly torn. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 253

Letter 4
Aug. 18, 1826.

Echeandía to de la Guerra telling him to give seventy-one pesos to the wife of Guillermo Richardson,

and concerning the rectification of an account. Damaged by water. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 253

Letter 5
Sept. 16, 1826.

Echeandía to de la Guerra on money received. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 253

Letter 6
July 7, 1827. Monterey.

Echeandía to de la Guerra on Carrillo's being a member of the junta not in conflict with his being

appointed habilitado; on de la Guerra's sailing. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 253

Letter 7
July 22, 1827.

Echeandía to de la Guerra on military matters. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 253

Letter 8
Sept. 7, 1827. Monterey.

Echeandía to de la Guerra on forwarding letters to Mexico; on the artillery man, Soto, going to San

Diego; four Indians from San Gabriel coming to Santa Barbara by ship. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 253

Letter 9
Dec. 7, 1827.

Echeandía to de la Guerra on financial matters. Mentioned are a Domínguez, Valle, [Romualdo]

Pacheco, and [Agustín] Zamorano. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 253

Letter 10
March 4, 1828. Santa Barbara.

Echeandía to de la Guerra asking him to purchase for him in Mexico Ordenanzas de Artillería,

Ordenanzas de Milicias, and Lógica de Condillac; the distribution of money that Fray Vicente Sarría,

O.F.M., sent to Loreto, Padre [Juan] Moreno's arrival at Santa Barbara and Padre [Francisco Xavier]

Uría destined for San Buenaventura; the padres of Santa Antonio to alternate at Soledad; requests him

to obtain padres or pastors for California; to procure establishment of mail for paid postage through

Loreto or by way of the Colorado; concerning the judge of "this district" and the assessor's office of

the commandancy; Echeandía's family in Mexico; the obtaining of a teacher for Santa Barbara.

Spanish. 2 pp.
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DLG 253

Letter 11
Apr. 30, 1828. San Diego.

Echeandía to de la Guerra hoping to hear of his safe arrival in Mexico City; his need of a copy of the

Reglamento from the Ministry of Guerra y Marina for the troops in California as well as for

establishing a mail route through the Colorado; asking him to purchase a copy of Prontuario de

Puntos Militares, the Lógica de Condillac and the collection of the work of the Junta de Californias;

tells him to contact José Marsino, architect and to arrange for his transportation to California; asks for

certain types of cloth; states that the chapel at Monterey is lacking certain vestments; and is sending a

list of church goods needed drawn up by Fray Antonio Menéndez, O. P., and asks for epaulets fitting

his rank. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 253

Letter 12
July 16, 1828. San Diego.

Echeandía to de la Guerra on a letter received from him from Mazatlán; sent on the enclosed letter for

de la Guerra's wife; states that the family is well; is sending on to the Ministry of Guerra y Marina the

expediente on the brigantine, Santa Apolonia known before as El Kosak; de la Guerra to see the wife

of Echeandía and tell her how to obtain the money owed her by José María Padres. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 253

Letter 13
Oct. 20, 1829. San Diego.

Echeandía to de la Guerra telling him that he is sending a request to the supreme government that de

la Guerra remain in California. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 254

Letter 1
Jan. 7, 1828. Santa Barbara.

José María Echeandía to José de la Guerra sending him his passport to go to Mexico as elected deputy

from California. He is accompanied by two of his children. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 255

Letter 1
Jan. 30, 1828.

Echeandía to Manuel de Mier y Terán: a letter of recommendation for de la Guerra as the new deputy

from California. He is sailing on the María Ester. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 256

Letter 1
July and Aug. 1830. Monterey.

Plan for converting the missions of California into pueblos. A copy of Sept. 7, 1830, written and

signed by Juan Bautista Alvarado, secretary of the diputación. Spanish. 8 pp.

DLG 257

Letter 1
Aug. 30, 1830. Monterey.

A plan to establish two small conventos in Upper California. Copy of Sept. 30, 1830, written and

signed by Alvarado. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 258

Letter 1
March 16, 1790. Aizarna, Spain.

Martin Diego de Egaña: signing a certificate of confirmation of Fray Francisco de Uría, O.F.M., by

the bishop of Pamplona on Aug. 3, 1771. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 259

Letter 1
May 6, 1887. Wilmington, Calif.

Frank Ellis to Francis Alexander Thompson sending check for $120.00 for his month's service as

inspector of customs. English. 1 p.

DLG 260

Letter 1
Febr. 28, 1854. San Luis Obispo.

Hubbard C. M. Ely to Pablo de la Guerra sending him a copy of the resolutions passed at a meeting of

citizens of San Luis Obispo County re election of W. M. Gwin as senator. English. 3 pp.

DLG 261

Letter 1
March 17, 1854. San Francisco.

Gerónimo Erauso to Pablo de la Guerra with regard to having the state laws translated. Persons

named: D. J. M. Sarruítegui, Somellera, Domingo Danglada and D. Higinio Gómez. Spanish. 1 p.
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DLG 262

Letter 1
Oct. 16, 1834. San Gabriel.

Antonio María de Ercilla to José de la Guerra on money matters. Mentioned are: [Juan Bautista]

Leandry, Menéndez, [Juan de?] Martiarena, Tomás Yorba, [Antonio José] Cot, Valle, Padre

[Francisco] Ibarra, O.F.M. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 262

Letter 2
Oct. 28, 1834. San Gabriel.

Ercilla to de la Guerra on receiving his letters through Santiago Borc [Burke?] concerning debts owed

to Missions San Juan Capistrano and San Francisco Solano; a claim made by Fray Buenaventura

Fortuny, O.F.M., when he was at Mission San Jose; other money matters. Mentioned are [José

Antonio] Aguirre, Menéndez, the father president a Padre, and Antonio Uría. Menéndez is on his way

to San Blas. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 262

Letter 3
Nov. 1, 1834. San Gabriel.

Ercilla to de la Guerra sending a letter by [José Antonio] Aguirre, who is going to Monterey; on

business matters. Mentioned is Martiarena. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 262

Letter 4

Nov. 10, 1834. San Gabriel.

Ercilla to de la Guerra giving a list of items he left at Santa Barbara on Sept. 4, 1834. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 262

Letter 5
Nov, 1834.

Ercilla to de la Guerra on money matters. Mentioned are Fray José Zalvidea, O.F.M., Tomás Shoa,

and Martiarena. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 262

Letter 6
Nov. 4, 1834. San Gabriel.

Ercilla to de la Guerra on commercial and financial matters. Mentioned are Guillermo Cali, Leandry,

Fray Tomás Esténaga, O.F.M. Ercilla is going to San Fernando for a few days. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 262

Letter 7
Nov. 27, 1834. San Gabriel.

Ercilla to de la Guerra on financial and commercial relations with Mission San Juan Capistrano.

Mentioned are Fray José María Zalvidea, O.F.M., and Fray Buenaventura Fortuny, O.F.M.,

Martiarena, Shoa, Gutiérrez, (death of) Francisco Xavier Uría, O.F.M., and Menéndez. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 262

Letter 8
Dec. 24, 1834. San Buenaventura.

Ercilla to de la Guerra relative to a business deal between Fray Tomás Esténaga, O.F.M., and Alfred

Robinson on pelts. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 262

Letter 9
Dec. 25, 1834. San Buenaventura.

Ercilla to de la Guerra on a business matter with Fray Blas Ordaz, O.F.M. He is going to Santa

Barbara. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 262

Letter 10
Dec. 3, 1834. San Gabriel.

Ercilla to de la Guerra on meeting [Antonio José] Cot, Valle and Menéndez at San Gabriel; money

matters. Mentioned are: Leandry, pilot of La Rosa, Rev. [Francisco] García Diego, Padre Barrón,

Narciso Durán, O.F.M.; Francisco Figueroa married the sister-in-law of José M. Ramírez. Spanish. 1

p.

DLG 262

Letter 11
March 14, 1835. Santa Barbara.

Ercilla to de la Guerra on his intention of going to San Jose; on money and commercial matters.

Mentioned are: Fray Tomás Esténaga, O.F.M., Luís, el Jabonero, and Octaviano Gutiérrez. Spanish. 2

pp.
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DLG 262

Letter 12
June 9, 1835. Santa Barbara.

Ercilla to de la Guerra on his decision to go to Tepic in July; financial and commercial matters.

Mentioned are: Zubillaga, Menéndez, Barrón, Faber y Compañía, the Santa Polonia, Doña María,

Anita and Pantoya, Doña Ramona, [José Antonio] Aguirre, Fray Ramón Abella, O.F.M., Fray José

Zalvidea, O.F.M., Fray Buenaventura Fortuny, O.F.M., Fray Tomás Esténaga, O.F.M., [Juan

Bautista] Leandry, Lugo. Sends greetings to the father president, Padre Antonio [Jimeno,?],O.F.M.,

Don Atanasio and Carrillo. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 262

Letter 13
March 14, 1835. Santa Barbara.

Ercilla to de la Guerra on a financial matter. Mentioned are Esténaga, O.F.M., Luis, el Jabonero, and

[José Antonio] Aguirre. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 262

Letter 14
June 22, 1835. San Gabriel.

Ercilla to de la Guerra on his going to San Blas; commercial matters; arrival of [José Antonio] Cot

whose ship is at San Pedro. Mentioned are: Fray Tomás Esténaga, O.F.M., Leandry, Martiarena, Fray

José [María] Zalvidea, O.F.M., Fray Buenaventura Fortuny, O.F.M., and a Trujillo. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 262

Letter 15
Dec. 16, 1835. Tepic.

Ercilla to de la Guerra on his arrival at Tepic; on a letter received from Mateo Uruchurtu of

Hermosillo; on money and mercantile matters; on General Mejia's coming to Tampico with some

North Americans from New Orleans; a new law taxing 1% on each finca; beginning of a census; on

taxes collected in Jalisco and Guadalajara; Santa Ana in San Luís Potosí; continuance of war in

Spain; over 900 religious houses suppressed by the queen decreed at San Ildefonso. July 25, 1835;

Domingo Danglada in Tepic; Fathers Tomás Esténaga, O.F.M., and Francisco Ibarra, O.F.M.,

"Napoleon" in Guaymas, Sonora; death of Governor [José] Figueroa; on not having received a copy

of the new Constitution of Mexico; the ships Quintanilla and Centro America bought as coast guard

vessels; Capt. José Martínez, formerly in charge of the Asia, in command; and sending de la Guerra

the newspaper of Nov. 18, 1834, containing the list of the religious houses suppressed in "our

disgraced Spain." Mentioned are: Severino, Varela of Tepic, Sánchez, [Antonio] Apalategui, [Juan

de] Martiarena, Fathers [José María de] Zalvidea, O.F.M., and Buenaventura Fortuny, O.F.M., Durán,

O.F.M., and Antonio [Jimeno?], O.F.M., Anastasio [Carrillo?], Padre Francisco Ibarra, O.F.M., and

others. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 262

Letter 16
July 21, 1837. Tepic.

Ercilla to de la Guerra on his arrival at Mazatlán from San Diego on the Leonor; his meeting with

José Antonio Carrillo; on matters concerning José Antonio Castaño, Juan Antonio Aguirre, Zubillaga,

and Padre Cayetano Sagástegui. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 263

Letter 1
June 16, 1847. Lima.

José Francisco Ercilla to Antonio José Cot thanking him for taking care of the funeral of his brother,

Antonio María, who died at Los Angeles; on [Antonio José] Cot being made executor; on Ercilla

being delegated by the family to represent them; on Yndart being sent to José de la Guerra to collect

Ercilla's belongings; discusses the legal aspects of the matter; the sale of a house. Mentioned are the

ship, Alfred, and Domingo Danglada. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 264

Letter 1
June 16, 1847. Lima.

José Francisco Ercilla to José de la Guerra on the death of his brother, Antonio María, with Cot as

executor and Ercilla's giving the power of attorney to José de la Guerra. Spanish. 2 pp.
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DLG 264

Letter 2
Apr. 7, 1849. Lima.

Ercilla to de la Guerra on letters received through Yndart; financial matters; on death of his brother,

Antonio María. Mentioned is Cot. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 265

Letter 1
March 3, 1868. Oreña.

Escandón y Guerra to de la Guerra on the death of their uncle, Gaspar de la Guerra on Dec. 20, 1867,

and his single beneficiary, Francisca Murga. Discusses results of his testament. Mentioned are:

Silverio Buenes, Francisco Botija, Bernarda Oreña, Miguel Ceballos, Juana Oreña, Nicolás Oreña and

Pablo de la Guerra. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 265

Letter 2
7 Sept. 17, 1868. Oreña, Spain.

María de Escandón y Guerra to Joaquín de la Guerra concerning the property of their grandparents.

Mentioned are Gaspar de la Guerra, his widow, Francisca de Murga, and José de la Guerra. Spanish.

4 pp.

DLG 266

Letter 1
May 13, 1818. San Luis Rey.

Fray Jaime Escudé, O.F.M., to José de la Guerra on sending thirty Indians to Fray Joaquín [Nuez?],

O.F.M., at the request of de la Guerra and the father president. The wages of the Indians may be paid

in cattle and tallow. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 267

Letter 1
March 10, 1829. Topic.

Certificate of the loss of goods consigned to José de la Guerra by Manuel Galván Rivera. Signed by

José Antonio Escutía. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 268

Letter 1
c. 1860.

Felipe Espinosa to Pablo de la Guerra; a prisoner asking for assistance. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 269

Letter 1
Oct. 19, 1831. Topic.

Juan José Espinosa de los Monteros to Juan Bautista Martiarena concerning a debt owed to Mission

San Luis Obispo by Urbano Sánchez. 1 p. There is a certified copy of the same, signed by Joaquín de

la Guerra, Gaspar de Oreña, and Francisco Carrillo, Santa Barbara, March 8, 1850. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 270

Letter 1
Oct. 28, 1834. San Gabriel.

Fray Tomás Esténaga, O.F.M., to Fray Narciso Durán, O.F.M., sending him a copy of a letter taken

from an Indian courier, on an expedition being readied under Antonio Valle against marauders who

had received benefits from San Gabriel and the Indians of San Bernardino. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 270

Letter 2
Jan. 16, 1838. San Gabriel.

Esténaga to Durán on claim of debt made by Antonio Cot; and Bandini saying that he and his family

will be at the ex-mission in the morning. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 271

Letter 1
Dec. 6, 1834. San Gabriel.

Esténaga to José de la Guerra on a request made by a sailor, Francisco de Asís, for alms for himself

and companions, conditions at the mission. Juan Bandini mentioned. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 271

Letter 2
June 12. 1838. San Gabriel.

Esténaga to de la Guerra on receiving cards for combing cloth; on paying Robinson with 300 hides,

some money to go to Antonio Ercilla. Spanish. 2 pp.
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DLG 272

Letter 1
June 22, 1835. San Gabriel.

Esténaga to José Antonio Menéndez, a draft. Contains a statement by Menéndez, Lima, July, 1826.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 273

Letter 1
Aug. 21, 1853. Santa Margarita.

Joaquín Estrada to Pablo de la Guerra on a political matter. [Romualdo] Pacheco mentioned. Spanish.

1 p.

DLG 274

Letter 1
July 28, 1858. Santa Margarita.

Estrada to Antonio María de la Guerra on political matters. Pacheco mentioned. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 275

Letter 1
Dec. 2, 1816. Monterey.

José Mariano Estrada to María Margarita Bravo de Verdia on the latter receiving the effects of her

deceased husband, from the brigantine, San Carlos. Mentioned are Juan Savaso, Silvestre Madrazo

and Gertrudis Orcarías. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 276

Letter 1
Dec. 2, 1816. Monterey.

Estrada to Benito Antonio Vélez on holding over certain goods to Juan Savaso, contador of the San

Carlos, and another item to Silvestre Madrazo. Mentioned are Paula, widow of Benito, and Gervasio

Argüello. Commercial matters. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 277

Letter 1
Sept. 6, 1819. Monterey.

José María Estrada to José de la Guerra on the presence in Monterey of soldiers from San Blas who

never in their lives had handled a gun, who were vagabonds, and who have been given food and

clothing; Estrada thinks they should be returned to Mexico; commercial transactions. Mentioned are

Capt. José Antonio Navarrete, Lt. Antonio Valle and alférez Francisco Haro. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 277

Letter 2
Oct. 7, 1819. Monterey.

Estrada to de la Guerra on financial matters; on a journey to Mexico. Mentioned is Guadalupe Avila.

Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 277

Letter 3
Sept. 25, 1820, Monterey.

Estrada to de la Guerra excusing himself for a molestation caused to the latter. Mentioned is the ship

Señoriano. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 277

Letter 4

Apr. 24, 1820. Monterey.

Estrada to de la Guerra on the latter's successful trip to Mexico; thanking him for the Calendario

received; asking him to send him an Ordenanza and a Prontuario which he lost in the invasion of

[Hippolyte] Bouchard; Navarrete also asks for a copy; asks also for some books of devotion; states

that not even catechisms are available for children. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 277

Letter 5
Jan. 19, 1821. Monterey.

Estrada to de la Guerra on sending him three notices of effects left at Monterey and San Luis by the

brigantine Europa; on Juan Malarín leaving three useless barrels; on salmon available for de la

Guerra; Antonio Valle's marriage contract with a certain Catalina, her refusal to comply, and her

exile. Fray Luís Gil y Taboada, O.F.M., mentioned. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 277

Letter 6
Jan. 22, 1821.

Estrada to de la Guerra on money matters; on the governor writing to the viceroy that he had in

California no satisfactory official, with which Estrada does not agree. Spanish. 3 pp.
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DLG 277

Letter 7
March 9, 1821. Monterey.

Estrada to de la Guerra concerning the retirement of Moraga. Part missing. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 277

Letter 8
Apr. 17, 1821. Monterey.

Estrada to de la Guerra sending him a barrel of salmon through Juan Cubillas; on commercial matters;

on his inability to find two alambiques (stills) that were at Carmel and San Francisco, the padres

stating that they had sold them to Missions San Jose and San Miguel. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 277

Letter 9
July 13, 1821. Monterey.

Estrada to de la Guerra on his willingness to receive counsel from the latter; the frigate, Reyna, not

bringing any tobacco but only a box of cigars; on the rising of Iturbide; Estrada's wife bearing him a

child. Mentioned are a Señor Cruz and Gonzalo Ulloa. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 277

Letter 10
July 28, 1821. Monterey.

Estrada to de la Guerra on a financial matter concerning José Medina; Guadalupe Avila absent from

Monterey; José Bandini looking for tallow; arrival of the Russian ship, Kutmoff, after eleven months

of navigation, in a deplorable condition and seeking relief. Mentioned are: El Señor Canonigo,

Margarito Bravo, Juan Malarín, El Señoriano, General Martín, Señor Pesuela, General Laserna and

Antonio [José] Cot. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 277

Letter 11
Aug. 28, 1821. Monterey.

Estrada to de la Guerra on the Russian ship still at Monterey; rise in prices; Guadalupe Avila in

Monterey, dress material (percole) offered to de la Guerra, arrival of a schooner in San Francisco in

search of food; the Russian doctor at Monterey vaccinating fifty-four persons including Estrada.

Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 277

Letter 12
Nov. 20, 1821. Monterey.

Estrada to de la Guerra on a money matter relating to sergeant Pico; Soberanes' request to Estrada to

remove his cattle from Buenavista; money matters; birth of a child. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 277

Letter 13
Febr. 21, 1822. Monterey.

Estrada to de la Guerra on the Buenavista matter. Mentioned is [José Antonio] Navarrete. Spanish. 4

pp.

DLG 277

Letter 14

Febr. 28, 1823. Monterey.

Estrada to de la Guerra asking that Maitorena be sent to Monterey for some days to help him to form

his accounts, he having no help and needing glasses. Heavy rain. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 277

Letter 15
July 22, 1823. Monterey.

Estrada to de la Guerra on news from Spain; letters of Juan Beggs Luís Macala and [William] Arnel;

the kings of Spain and France agreeing to fight the liberals; report that Feridinand VII had ceded the

Californias to France; French ships along the Peruvian coast; reported cession of Havana to France;

an expedition sailing from London with sealed orders. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 277

Letter 16
Sept. 7, 1824. Monterey.

Estrada to de la Guerra on money matters; a guard, Pomponio executed the day before. Mentioned

are: a Joaquín and Anastasio, Sebastián Alvitre and Doroteo Feliz. Spanish. 2 pp.
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DLG 277

Letter 17
May 22, 1824. Monterey.

Estrada to de la Guerra on the Channel Indian revolt; states that he had not offered pardon to the

rebels of Purisima but only offered Fray Antonio Rodríguez, O.F.M., (captive among them) his

freedom if the Indians laid down their arms; mentions letter of Fray Antonio Ripoll, O.F.M. to Fray

Vicente Francisco Sarría, O.F.M., on the basis of which the Indians agreed to return to Santa Barbara

on promise of Sarría to obtain pardon for them; concerning a draft; concerning a horse in reference to

Victor Arroyo and Teodoro Arrellanes. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 277

Letter 18
Jan. 21, 1826. Monterey.

Estrada to de la Guerra on sending him 2000 pesos in silver through Manuel Cota for the soldiers

under de la Guerra's command. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 278

Letter 1
Apr. 25, 1820. Santa Barbara.

José Raimundo Estrada to José de la Guerra stating that he is on his way to the southern missions, and

asking the latter to aid him after he had abandoned his career. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 279

Letter 1

Aug. 2, 1814. Monterey.

José María Estudillo to José de la Guerra reporting the a death of Governor [José Joaquín] Arrillaga at

Soledad. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 279

Letter 2
July 28, 1820. San Antonio.

Estudillo to de la Guerra on orders to go to San Diego to investigate certain rebels; his staying at the

de la Guerra home on his way south and north; reactions to a letter he received from de la Guerra

from Mexico; his reference to an oficio by de la Guerra; Ruíz proposed for an office in California

despite his age of sixty-five. Mentioned are: the brigantine, San Francisco de Paula, El Cosak, and

Antonio Morán. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 279

Letter 3
July 1, 1821. San Diego.

Estudillo to de la Guerra concerning a disagreement between a cadete and an alférez with regard to

alternating in service; various minor items. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 279

Letter 4
Aug. 5, 1821.

Estudillo to de la Guerra on the illness of his daughter; news from Mexico concerning Iturbide and

Guadalajara; el Infante Carlos; Madragón's death in Tepic, Señor Ulloa; on receiving an order to

supply troops for the frontier because of a threatened invasion. Mentioned are Avila and Ignacio

Tenorio. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 279

Letter 5
Febr. 6, 1822.

Estudillo to de la Guerra mentioning the delay of an unnamed ship; asking for vegetable seeds and for

news from Peru if available. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 279

Letter 6
July 15, 1822.

Estudillo to de la Guerra on his eye trouble; on permissions given to foreign merchants to travel in

California. Mentioned are Santiago Smith, San Francisco, Santa Clara, San Jose, San Antonio, San

Luis Rey, Santa Cruz and San Diego. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 279

Letter 7
Nov. 11, 1822. San Diego.

Estudillo to de la Guerra on his arrival at San Diego; the commission of a robbery; the election of a

governor, Estudillo being in favor of de la Guerra though the governor could not be a European. A

Fray Antonio mentioned. Spanish. 2 pp.
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DLG 279

Letter 8
Nov. 21, 1822. San Diego.

Estudillo to de la Guerra on receiving the news on elections; congratulations to the latter on his

non-election because of the critical times. Mentions a Padre Antonio. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 279

Letter 9
Oct. 9, 1823. San Gabriel.

Estudillo to de la Guerra on the arrival of Perrera; the lack of commodities in San Diego; an unnamed

Russian; lack of news. Mentions a certain Salá. Partly torn. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 279

Letter 10
Nov. 22, 1827

Estudillo to de la Guerra on going to visit San Luis Rey to visit Fray Antonio Peyrí, O.F.M., and to

look into the account of Santiago; regrets de la Guerra's going to Mexico; concerning certain people

from Sonora; death of Vicente Gómez; lack of mail from Loreto; an uprising against Spaniards in

Guadalajara. Mentioned are Altar, Caborca, General [José] Figueroa, a certain Ramírez, Lt. Ibarra,

and Mata. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 279

Letter 11
The following is undated.

Estudillo to de la Guerra on receiving two circular letters on taxes; on arrival of Santiago and his

satisfaction with him; the debt of José López; the governor giving him disposition of the ganados de

diezmos. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 279

Letter 12
Apr. 21. San Diego.

Estudillo to de la Guerra on receiving a letter from the latter addressed from Simi; has much writing

to do; Captain [Pablo de] Portilla went to San Miguel. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 279

Letter 13
Undated.

Estudillo to de la Guerra concerning a Ruíz, his Estudillo) wife going to San Miguel; asking him to

send him some blue cloth with which to fashion trousers and vest. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 279

Letter 14
Undated.

Estudillo to de la Guerra on General San Martín's fleeing from Lima taking the silver of the churches

with him; Juan Bandini's going to San Diego; awaiting the brigantine, San Carlos. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 279

Letter 15
Undated.

Estudillo to de la Guerra on arrival of news; several items of small importance. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 279

Letter 16

Undated.

Estudillo to de la Guerra on several unimportant items. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 279

Letter 17
Undated.

Estudillo to de la Guerra on news received; on the arrival of Viceroy [Juan] O'Donojú in Mexico;

conditions in that country. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 279

Letter 18
Undated.

Estudillo to de la Guerra stating that a Russian and a certain Frenchman went to San Francisco.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 279

Letter 19
Undated.

Estudillo to de la Guerra on his being appointed to defend four robbers in Monterey. Spanish. 1 p.
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DLG 279

Letter 20
Undated.

Estudillo to de la Guerra on the governor giving him permission to return the tithes of an unnamed

pueblo; his alférez has permission to go to see de la Guerra for a month to straighten out his accounts.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 279

Letter 21
Undated.

Estudillo to de la Guerra thanking him for items sent and suggesting that the latter should remain in

California in government service. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 279

Letter 22
Undated.

Estudillo to de la Guerra on the latter's possible retirement. Partly torn. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 279

Letter 23
Undated.

Estudillo to de la Guerra on merchants and conditions in Spanish America. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 279

Letter 24
Undated.

Estudillo to de la Guerra on mail, and the presence of a bark at San Pedro. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 279

Letter 25
July 9, 1823.

Estudillo to de la Guerra on his trip to San Juan Capistrano; on Ruíz' retirement; on Estudillo's

probable appointment as captain of San Diego presidio; references to Moraga; Maitorena and Ignacio

Tenorio being present in Santo Tomás, Lower California; on papers to be sent to various persons;

deserters among the Mazatlán soldiery. Mentioned are Don Narciso, [Fabregat?] Dámaso and Don

Pablo [de la Portilla?]. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 279

Letter 26
San Diego.

Estudillo to de la Guerra on arrival of the brigantine, Coronel; lack of rain. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 279

Letter 27
Undated.

Estudillo to de la Guerra on writing to the padres about repairing a road as far as Santa Ines. Spanish.

2 pp.

DLG 279

Letter 28
Undated.

Estudillo to de la Guerra concerning his "chief" and his character, followed by a note by de la Guerra

himself on the appearance of an American ship whose captain was a Mr. Smith and who left a Negro,

who was in his service, with de la Guerra at Santa Barbara. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 279

Letter 29
Undated.

Estudillo to de la Guerra concerning an invitation to an Indian, Santiago, to come to Presidio San

Diego. Mentions the Papagos, Xalchidumes, Caguis, who were enemies of the Apaches, Yumas and

Amajabas. Estudillo asks for vegetable seeds. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 279

Letter 30
Undated.

Estudillo to de la Guerra on the California deputy to the Cortés, Fernando, being shipwrecked at El

Cabo. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 279

Letter 31
Undated.

Estudillo to de la Guerra on the latter's possible change to Monterey; on the rise of the river [San

Diego?]. Spanish. 1 p.
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DLG 279

Letter 32
Undated.

Estudillo to de la Guerra on great rain storms beyond the memory of residents. The handwriting of

this letter is small, ink poor, and difficult to read. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 279

Letter 33
Undated.

Estudillo to de la Guerra concerning Russian deserters who should be watched. They enter San

Francisco waters freely. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 279

Letter 34
Undated.

Estudillo to de la Guerra on hearing from Loreto that the brigantine, Morelos, has taken on the

president of the Mexican republic to come to California to inspect the territory, and who is bringing

armaments, goods and money for the soldiers. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 279

Letter 35
Undated.

Estudillo to de la Guerra on receiving a letter from an unnamed calumniator who has repented; on

five Indians being sent to Estudillo; on ranches of Missions San Francisco and Santa Clara. Spanish. 2

pp.

DLG 279

Letter 36
Undated.

Estudillo to de la Guerra concerning the mail. Mention made of El Kosak. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 279

Letter 37
Undated.

Estudillo to de la Guerra on a frigate sailing for El Cabo; conditions in Mexico during revolt from

Spain; Sonora and Guadalajara have sworn to uphold independence. Mentioned are Antonio Quartara,

Bandini, Negrete and Agaime. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 279

Letter 38
Undated.

Estudillo to de la Guerra in a meditative mood giving his thoughts on forgiveness of those offending

him; concerning a ship arriving at the harbor. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 279

Letter 39
Undated.

Estudillo to de la Guerra concerning a Russian, José, who will communicate with De la Guerra; his

arrival at San Gabriel. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 279

Letter 40
Undated.

Estudillo to de la Guerra on releasing Tapia; death of soldier, Estevan Pérez; the prevalence of fever;

Arriola practicing blood-letting; much rain; cold and snow in the sierras; the burial of a daughter of

Ignacio Lópezi, Captain Pablo [de Portilla], is down with fever. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 279

Letter 41
Undated.

Estudillo to de la Guerra on the return of Capt. Romero who is forming his diary and is to go to

Monterey. He and his men traveled on foot as far as Santa Catalina and is a good military officer.

Estudillo has the diary of Father Caballero, O.P., and a map which he will forward to de la Guerra.

Santiago went to Monterey, Don Francisco and Juan Bautista went to Los Peñasquitos. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 279

Letter 42
Undated.

Estudillo to de la Guerra on letters received; references to Americans and English in California;

orders given to the corporal of San Gabriel that all prisoners in the jurisdiction of Los Angeles be

handed over to the comisionado; on Rosalino Olivera passing through San Miguel. Spanish. 2 pp.



8/26/2009 Page 84

DLG 279

Letter 43
Undated.

Estudillo to de la Guerra on certain members of the Mazagarre family fearing to come to California

because they are Spaniards; tithes; on a new governor to succeed José Argüello; report concerning the

liberty of the Indians; on an Indian who is to come to Santa Barbara. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 279

Letter 44
Undated.

Estudillo to de la Guerra on his arrival at San Juan Capistrano; El Cosak in this port [San Diego?]

with 100 picked soldiers; his speaking to the corporals about "la atadura de manos en las escoltas" but

has gotten nowhere because of the powerful influence of the padres. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 280

Letter 1
Febr. 22, 1858. San Diego.

María de la Victoria Estudillo to Francisco de la Guerra and his brothers: a letter of condolence on the

death of José de la Guerra y Noriega. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 281

Letter 1
Febr. 1, 1852. Santa Barbara.

Juan María Fabregat to José de la Guerra asking him for 200 pesos because of the illness of his father

and for his own needs. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 282

Letter 1
Jan. 6, 1854. Santa Barbara.

Charles Fernald to Pablo de la Guerra on political matters: the need for a court house and jail; high

taxes; the good financial condition of Santa Barbara County; the large number of criminal cases

disposed of in the past year; on proposed reduction of state salaries; and a complaint against an

unnamed person in the discharge of his office. Incomplete. English. 4 pp.

DLG 282

Letter 2
Febr. 17, 1854. Santa Barbara.

Fernald to de la Guerra on a proposed law concerning usury, it being practiced in Santa Barbara.

Interest should not exceed 10 or 12 % per annum. English. 1 p.

DLG 282

Letter 3
Febr. 24., 1854. Santa Barbara.

Fernald to de la Guerra complaining about his overburdened workload without sufficient

compensation. English. 1 p.

DLG 282

Letter 4
Apr. 4, 1857. Santa Barbara.

Fernald to de la Guerra asking for information on the proposed changes in the revenue law; on his

hearing in San Luis Obispo about proposed county boundary changes, and stating that the present

ones are the proper ones, and it would be better if Santa Barbara and San Luis Obispo Counties were

united. English. 1 p.

DLG 282

Letter 5
Apr. 1857. In the Senate.

Fernald to de la Guerra. Copy of an act to authorize the Court of Sessions of Santa Barbara County to

levy a special tax for the erection of county buildings. English. 1 p.

DLG 282

Letter 6
Apr. 8, 1857. Santa Barbara.

Fernald to de la Guerra on the copy of a bill for the building of a jail and court house in Santa

Barbara. Tells him that Mr. [Charles E.] Huse is expected on the 17th for important business. English.

1 p.

DLG 282

Letter 7
Febr. 8, 1861. Santa Barbara.

Fernald to de la Guerra concerning a bill amending city or town charters. English. 2 pp.
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DLG 282

Letter 8
March 7, 1861. Santa Barbara.

Fernald to de la Guerra on finishing two bills on Santa Barbara city affairs which he read to Antonio

María de la Guerra and gave to Huse to make clean copies. Asks Pablo to read them and give his

comments. Speaks of titles and city charter. More has abandoned the contract he made with the

county. Fernald asks for a leave of absence for seventy days to go to Massachusetts. English. 2 pp.

DLG 282

Letter 9
March 20, 1861. Santa Barbara.

Fernald to de la Guerra on the latter's request for a fuller explanation of land titles. The explanation

follows in Spanish. Antonio María de la Guerra is mentioned. English. 5 pp.

DLG 282

Letter 10
Apr. 29, 1861. Santa Barbara.

Fernald to de la Guerra concerning the law exempting mineral lands and asphaltum deposits from

sale. References are to the Goleta area. Involved are [Charles E.] Huse and [Daniel] Hill. Antonio

María de la Guerra mentioned. English. 4 pp.

DLG 282

Letter 11
June 5, 1861. Santa Barbara.

Fernald to de la Guerra stating that he made application to the president for the office of U. S. District

Judge for the Southern District and asks de la Guerra for backing. States that [Eugene] Casserly and

[Henry] Carnes are candidates for governor, but feels that Pablo has the best chance. English. 2 pp.

DLG 282

Letter 12
June 25, 1868. Santa Barbara.

Fernald to de la Guerra inviting him to a Fourth of July celebration and to give a talk. English. 2 pp.

DLG 282

Letter 13
March 20, 1870. San Francisco.

Fernald to de la Guerra on his return from Sacramento and on reading about a remonstrance by the

Board of Trustees of Santa Barbara addressed to the legislature against the approval of grants of

streets, plazas, cemeteries, etc. States he examined the bill introduced by Francisco Pacheco, which he

considers "a delusion and a snare." Explains legal background, proposes a substitute law and asks

Pablo to study it, and pass on his observations to Pacheco. English. 4 pp.

DLG 283

Letter 1
Jan, 2, 1855. Santa Barbara.

Charles Fernald to Joaquín Carrillo on the building of a jail at Santa Barbara. English. 3 pp.

DLG 284

Letter 1
May 16, 1855. Santa Barbara.

Fernald to George D. Fisher; notification of election of Fernando Tico as supervisor of the first

district and of election of Ramón Malo as supervisor of the third district. English. 1 p.

DLG 285

Letter 1
Aug. 2, 1815. San Vicente Mission, Lower California.

Fray Antonio Fernández, O.P. to José de la Guerra thanking him for a favor; on a barrel of wine

turning into vinegar, and on de la Guerra not being obliged to return the barrel. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 286

Letter 1
Aug. 26, 1847. Monterey.

José E. Fernández to José de la Guerra on business matters. [James] Scott and [John] Wilson

mentioned. He intends to return to Mazatlán soon. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 287

Letter 1
March 24, 1819. Purisima.

Fray Román Fernández de Ulibarri, O.F.M., José de la Guerra sending him a copy of Herrera's

Agricultura through Francisco Cota; and on an order of Fray Mariano Payeras, O.F.M., asking de la

Guerra to give him a military field tent. Spanish. 2 pp.
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DLG 287

Letter 2
March 22, 1819. Purisima.

Ulibarri to de la Guerra answering his letters of March 8 and 22, 1819; concerning having a clock

fixed and returning some Indians; on supplying cloth, hats and other items; on shortage of wool.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 287

Letter 3
Apr. 14, 1819. Purisima.

Ulibarri to De la Guerra on loan of Indians and asking that vaqueros remain at the mission until their

work is finished; sending certain utensils. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 287

Letter 4
May 5, 1819. Purisima.

Ulibarri to de la Guerra on sending Indians to Presidio Santa Barbara. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 287

Letter 5
May 31, 1819. Purisima.

Ulibarri to de la Guerra sending him thirty-eight cartridge boxes through Carmen Domínguez and

referring to "bad news" received from de la Guerra. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 287

Letter 6
June 7, 1819. Purisima.

Ulibarri to de la Guerra on the arrival of Atanasio and his intention of going to Santa Ines to speak

with the ex-alcalde, Mariano. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 287

Letter 7
July 7, 1819, Purisima.

Ulibarri to de la Guerra concerning ex-alcalde, Mariano; questioning of Indians; his going to Santa

Ines on arrival of Atanasio; arrival of vaqueros. Among the bow and arrow group are some who are

married and who want to be with their families. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 287

Letter 8
Aug. 30, 1820. San Fernando.

Ulibarri to de la Guerra answering two letters of the latter, outlining what articles he can sell him.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 287

Letter 9
Oct. 11, 1820. San Fernando.

Ulibarri to de la Guerra on the office of habilitado interino. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 287

Letter 10
Oct. 20, 1820. San Fernando.

Ulibarri to de la Guerra on harvest at San Fernando; and epidemic and aid to Presidio Santa Barbara.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 287

Letter 11
Dec. 3, 1820. San Fernando.

Ulibarri to de la Guerra on items delivered to Santa Barbara from San Fernando. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 287

Letter 12
Dec. 31, 1820. San Fernando.

Ulibarri to de la Guerra on the arrival of Pedro Cordero and twenty-five pieces of gear (harnesses?);

on items delivered to Presidio Santa Barbara. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 287

Letter 13
Jan. 11, 1821. San Fernando.

Ulibarri to de la Guerra notifying him that Nemesio Domínguez had come from Los Angeles to San

Fernando Mission as majordomo. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 288

Letter 1
Oct. 14, 1818.

King Fernando VII, of Spain, appointing José de la Guerra captain of Presidio Santa Barbara. A copy

of the original certified by José Joaquín Maitorena, Santa Barbara, May 8, 1826. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 289

Letter 1
Dec. 6, 1821. Monterey.

Juan Julián Ferrebu to José de la Guerra concerning barrels and pelts. Spanish. 1 p.
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DLG 290

Letter 1
Febr. 13, 1833. Monterey.

Governor José Figueroa to José de la Guerra acknowledging congratulations and promising his best to

serve California. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 290

Letter 2
Apr. 3, 1834. Monterey.

Figueroa to de la Guerra inquiring about an Indian, Guillermo, looking for work who stated he had

cooked for de la Guerra for ten years. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 290

Letter 3
Sept. 20, 1834. Monterey.

Figueroa to de la Guerra on pay for troops; pay for European-born officials and the pensions allowed

to them. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 291

Letter 1
Febr. 10, 1852. San Francisco.

George Fisher to Antonio María de la Guerra sending him a copy of the governor's message printed in

Spanish, and stating that the secretary of state was having printed the laws and journals of the current

session of the legislature. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 292

Letter 1
Sept. 12, 1854. Santa Barbara.

George Fisher to Pablo de la Guerra certifying his election as school commissioner of the second

township of Santa Barbara County. De la Guerra's oath was taken on Sept. 21. English-Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 292

Letter 2
Sept. 8, 1857. Santa Barbara.

Fisher to de la Guerra certifying that the latter had been elected commissioner of common schools for

the seventh district of Santa Barbara County. Partly printed. English. 1 p.

DLG 293

Letter 1
May 5, 1854. Santa Barbara.

Fisher to Pablo de la Guerra concerning a petition that the distinction between the upper and lower

counties be stricken from the bill on officers. The same notice was sent to a certain Parker, H. French,

and Pedro C. Carrillo. English-Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 293

Letter 2
Febr. 11, 1857. Santa Barbara.

Fisher to de la Guerra sending him a certified copy of the report of the survey made by N. M. Johnson

of the beaches of El Rincon and La Punta Gorda. English. 1 p.

DLG 294

Letter 1
Febr. 22, 1836. San Diego.

Henry Delano Fitch to José de la Guerra on José Bandini's inability to supply an article requested and

on the exchange of a barrel in which Capt. Thompson, Mr. Henkeley and de la Guerra were involved.

Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 295

Letter 1
March 30, 1870. San Luis Obispo.

John B. Fitch, of the Democratic Standard, to Pablo de la Guerra on the recent act of the

legislature,"The Litigant Bill," giving power to the several district judges to designate in each county

a newspaper in which all legal advertising should be done. Does not want Murray of San Luis Obispo,

who operated "a blackmail sheet," to be chosen. Will send copies of the Democratic Standard to

Pablo. English. 2 pp.

DLG 296

Letter 1
Apr. 16, 1824. Rosario, Lower Calif.

Ignacio Fletes to José de Cubillas on a long conference he had with a certain Arana on liquidation of

accounts recommended by [Juan] Malarín, and which he found to be more complicated than he had

anticipated. Spanish. 2 pp.
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DLG 297

Letter 1
Jan. 13, 1829. Rosario.

Fletes to José de la Guerra stating that, because of the period of scarcity, he doubts that he will be

able to pay the salaries of the troops that is required. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 298

Letter 1
Nov. 25, 1846. Los Angeles.

José María Flores to Antonio Cot: an order to lend the government $1,000.00 from the estate of

Antonio María Ercilla, who died intestate. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 299

Letter 1
May 14, 1830. Santiago, Spain.

Juan Florín to Manuel Rodríguez de Poli: a passport. Partly printed. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 300

Letter 1
May 4, 1807. Jalapa, Mexico.

José de Font to José de la Guerra on a former meeting with the latter at San Diego; on military

matters in Mexico. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 301

Letter 1
May 20, 1822. Tepic.

Alexander Forbes to Juan Malarín or José de la Guerra on money received from José Medina and José

de Cubillato to buy hides; asking how many pelts can be bought at the missions at the lowest prices

and which are to be shipped to the closest ports. Seeks from 12,000 to 15,000 hides which must be

clean and dry, and are to be shipped to Europe. He understands that slaughtering of cattle takes place

in October. Spanish. 5 pp.

DLG 302

Letter 1
Jan. 17, 1866, Santa Barbara.

Alexander Forbes to Pablo de la Guerra announcing the death of a José Antonio, and asking him to

send him the copy of the Comedias of Calderón, which he had lent him in Los Angeles. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 303

Letter 1
Oct. 3, 1860. San Luis Obispo.

P. A. Forrester to Pablo de la Guerra asking him to influence voters in favor of Douglas.

Breckenridge and [Abraham] Lincoln, José de la Guerra and Judge Múñoz also mentioned. English. 1

p.

DLG 304

Letter 1
Nov. 28, 1834. San Luis Rey.

Fray Buenaventura Fortuny, O.F.M., to Fray Narciso Durán, O.F.M. sending him various papers on

financial matters. Sowing has not yet begun; a note on Indians. Mentioned are a Don Fernando,

[Henry] Virmond, Ercilla. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 304

Letter 2
Nov. 28, 1834. San Luis Rey.

Fortuny to Durán stating that the latter could collect the sínodos for his ministry at Mission San

Francisco Solano. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 305

Letter 1
March 14, 1840. San Buenaventura.

Fortuny to the Junta of the Pious Fund of the Californias certifying it could pay to José Antonio

Aguirre the sums of 2,200 pesos for his services to a California missionary. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 305a

Letter 1
June 6, 1836. San Antonio.

Burial certificates of Fray Juan Bautista Sancho, O.F.M. and Fray Vicente Francisco Sarría, O.F.M.,

who died respectively at Missions San Antonio and Soledad, Febr. 8 1830, and May 24, 1836, and

whose burials took place respectively on Febr, 11, 1830, and May 26, 1836. Signed by Fray Jesús

María Vázquez del Mercado, O.F.M., of Mission San Antonio. Spanish. 1 p.
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DLG 305a

Letter 2
No date

Death certificate of Fray José Señán, O.F.M., who was buried Aug. 25, 1823, at Mission San

Buenaventura by Fray Marcos Antonio Victoria, O.F.M., and of Fray Francisco Suñer, O.F.M., who

was buried at the same mission, Jan. 18, 1831, by Fray Francisco Xavier Uría, Certificate signed by

Fray Blas Ordaz, O.F.M., San Buenaventura, Aug. 24, 1836. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 305a

Letter 3
No date

Death certificate of Fray Pedro Panto, O.F.M., who died at Mission San Diego June 30, 1812, and

who was buried on July 2, by Fray Gerónimo Boscana, O.F.M. Certificate signed by Fray Fernando

Martín, O.F.M., and Fray Vicente Pascual Oliva, O.F.M., Mission San Diego, Aug. 4, 1836. Spanish.

1 p.

DLG 305a

Letter 4
No date

Death certificate of José Antonio Urrestí, O.F.M., buried at Mission San Fernando, Jan. 5, 1812, by

Fray Pedro Múñoz, O.F.M., and that of Fray José de Miguel,, O.F.M., buried June 2, 1813, by Fray

Ramón Olbés, O.F.M. Certificate signed by Fray Pedro Cabot, O.F.M., Mission San Fernando, May

21, 1836. Spanish 1 p.

DLG 305a

Letter 5
No date

Death certificate of Fray Francisco Dumetz, O.F.M., who died at Mission San Gabriel, Jan. 14, 1811,

and was buried the following day by Fray José María de Zalvidea, O.F.M., that of Fray Román

Fernández de Ulibarri, O.F.M., buried June 16, O.F.M., 1821, by José María de Zalvidea, O.F.M.,

that of Fray Joaquín Pascual Nuez, O.F.M., buried Dec. 31, 1821, by Fray Vicente Oliva, O.F.M., that

of Fray Gerónimo Boscana, O.F.M., July 6, 1831, by Fray José Bernardo Sánchez, O.F.M. and that of

Fray José Bernardo Sánchez, O.F.M., Jan. 16, 1833, by Fray Vicente Oliva, O.F.M. Certificates

signed by Fray Tomás Esténaga, O.F.M., Mission San Gabriel, Aug. 9, 1836, and countersigned by

Manuel Requeña, Basilio Váldez, and Narciso Botello of Los Angeles. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 305a

Letter 6
No date

Burial certificate of Fray José Antonio Calzada, O.F.M., buried at Mission Santa Ines, Dec. 24, 1814,

by Fray Estevan Tapis, O.F.M. Certificate signed by Fray José Joaquín Jimeno, O.F.M., Mission

Santa Ines, May 16, 1836. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 305a

Letter 7
No date

Burial certificate of Fray Estevan Tapis, O.F.M., buried Nov. 4, 1825, at Mission San Juan Bautista

by Fray Luís Gil y Taboada, O.F.M. He had died on the previous day. Certificate signed by Fray José

Antonio Anzar, O.F.M., Mission San Juan Bautista, Sept. 27, 1836. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 305a

Letter 8
No date

Burial certificate of Fray José Barona, O.F.M., who died at Mission San Juan Capistrano on Aug. 4,

1831, who was buried there on the 6th, by Fray José María Zalvidea, O.F.M. Burial certificate signed

by Zalvidea, San Juan Capistrano, Aug. 8, 1836. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 305a

Letter 9
No date

Burial certificates of Fray Antonio Rodríguez, O.F.M.,buried at Mission San Luis Obispo, Nov. 25,

1824, by Fray Luís Antonio Martínez, O.F.M., and of Fray Luís Gil y Taboada, O.F.M., who died at

Rancho Santa Margarita, Dec. 15, 1833, and who was buried at Mission San Luis Obispo on Dec. 16,

by Fray Juan Cabot, O.F.M. Certificates signed by Fray Ramón Abella, O.F.M., Mission San Luis

Obispo, May 23, 1836. Spanish. 1 p.
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DLG 305a

Letter 10
No date

Burial certificate of Fray Juan Martín, who died on Aug 27 and was buried at Mission San Miguel,

Aug. 30, 1824, by Fray Luís Antonio Martínez, O.F.M. Burial certificate signed by Fray Juan

Moreno, O.F.M., Mission San Miguel, June 13, 1836. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 305a

Letter 11
No date

Burial certificate of Fray Mariano Payeras, O.F.M., who died on Apr. 28, and who was buried on the

29th, 1823, at Mission Purisima by Fray Antonio Rodríguez, O.F.M. Burial certificate signed by Fray

Felipe de Arroyo de la Cuesta, O.F.M., Mission Purisima, May 15, 1836. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 305a

Letter 12
No date

Burial certificate of Fray Juan Amorós, O.F.M., buried at Mission San Rafael, Apr. 29, 1823, by Fray

Buenaventura Fortuny, O.F.M. Burial certificate signed by Fray José Lorenzo de la Concepción

Quijas, O.F.M., San Rafael, Sept. 22, 1836. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 306

Letter 1
Aug. 15, 1851. San Francisco.

John Charles Fremont to Pablo de la Guerra stating that he is not a candidate for senator but is in

favor of Mr. King, and asks Pablo's aid in his favor. Joseph Palmer is bearer of the letter. English. 2

pp.

DLG 306

Letter 2
Dec. 18, 1857. San Francisco.

Fremont to de la Guerra sending him $2,000.00 to be paid to the widow of Domínguez for her interest

in the rancho of San Emigdio. Mentioned are a Señor Carrillo, and Messrs. Palmer, Cook, etc.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 307

Letter 1
Jan. 14, 1853. San Francisco.

John B. Frisbie to Pablo de la Guerra introducing M. Dean, government superintendent of Mare

Island, stating that the government is interested in the water front contiguous to the island for a navy

yard. English. 1 p.

DLG 308

Letter 1
Jan. 24., 1846. Mexico.

José Fuente Pedro C. Carrillo, collector of customs, sending him a copy of the "supreme order" of

Jan. 19, which determines the Mexican vara at 837 millimeters instead of 838. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 309

Letter 1

Febr. 12, 1860.

H. P. Gallagher to Father [Kennedy?] informing him that Pablo de la Guerra wishes the remains of his

niece, Miss Robinson, to be buried in the vault of the mission. English. 1 p.

DLG 310

Letter 1
Oct. 1, 1850. Santa Barbara.

Eugenio García to José de la Guerra asking for a loan of thirty pesos. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 311

Letter 1
Nov. 23, 1818. Santa Ines.

Francisco García to José de la Guerra on an escaped sailor being held in the guard house. He escaped

from La Mexica at El Refugio. Father [Francisco Xavier] Uría, O.F.M., and a certain Ramírez are

mentioned. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 312

Letter 1
Sept. 12, 1849. San Luis Obispo.

Inocente García to John Wilson on a financial matter. José de la Guerra mentioned. Spanish. 3 pp.
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DLG 313

Letter 1
May 21, 1801. San Blas.

José García to José de la Guerra on his inability to send the panocha requested. Ships are ready to sail.

Mentioned are Señor [Manuel?] Carcaba and Don Eustaquio [Barron?]. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 314

Letter 1
Aug. 9, 1822, Aboard the brigantine, San Francisco de Paula.

Manuel García to José de la Guerra on sending letters from José Medina and Juan Silban. Asks if the

flag of Mexico, under which he is sailing, would be well received in California. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 314

Letter 2
Febr. 10, 1823. Tepic.

García to de la Guerra on his return from California, his wife and brother having thought him to be

dead; sending extracts from a letter to the U. S. and to the emperor; Pedro Mora down with the fever;

Larragoyti having gone to Guayaquil in a Columbian ship; García's sending a letter to Fray Antonio

Ripoll, O.F.M.; on news from Mexico. Mentioned are José Medina and [Narciso?] Fabregat. Spanish.

3 pp.

DLG 315

Letter 1
Aug. 24, 1821. Los Angeles.

María Ignacia Jacinta Cota to José de la Guerra on her son's illness requesting that he be taken to

Santa Barbara for assistance. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 316

Letter 1
Dec. 31, 1825. San Diego.

Pedro García to Francisco María Ruíz. A receipt. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 317

Letter 1
May 8, 1809. Mexico.

Pedro Garibay to José de la Guerra acknowledging the latter's gift of 200 pesos to the Mexican

treasury. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 318

Letter 1
March 3, 1810. Mexico.

Fray Agustín Garijo, O.F.M., guardian of San Fernando College, Mexico City, to José de la Guerra,

and his wife, María Antonia (Carrillo) de la Guerra, affiliating them to the Franciscan family. Partly

printed. Six facsimiles of the same. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 319

Letter 1
July 6, 1803. Mexico.

Fray José Gasol, O.F.M., guardian of the College of San Fernando, Mexico, to José de la Guerra,

affiliating him to the Franciscan family. Countersigned by Fray Agustín Trancaso, O.F.M. There are

two facsimiles and an enlarged photograph of the seal of San Fernando College. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 320

Letter 1
Aug. 13, 1892. Santa Barbara.

E. W. Gathy, mayor of Santa Barbara, "to whom it may concern," appointing Carlos de la Guerra

chairman of the committee representing Santa Barbara in charge of the historical exhibit at the Fair in

Sacramento. Contains seal of the city. English. 1 p.

DLG 321

Letter 1
Apr. 24, 1836.

Nicolás María Gaxiola, Sonora. Regulations for the surveying of land to be used for the raising of

cattle and horses. Certified copy signed by Agustín Jiménez, June 22, 1836. Spanish. 18 pp.

DLG 322

Letter 1
Nov. 20, 1818.

Fermín Genoa y Aguirre to José de la Guerra on commercial matters. He is soon to sail. Spanish. 3

pp.
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DLG 322

Letter 2
July 20, 1818, July 25 and Dec. 19, 1819. Monterey. (on continuous sheets)

Genoa y Aguirre to José de la Guerra, tired of waiting at Santa Clara for a Mexican frigate; he came

to Monterey; commercial matters; crimes committed at Monterey. Mentions Mariano Estrada and

Padre José Señán, O.F.M. Spanish. 8 pp.

DLG 322

Letter 3
July 25, 1818. Monterey.

Genoa y Aguirre on delay of the Mexican ship and commercial matters. Spanish. 5 pp.

DLG 322

Letter 4
Dec. 5, 1819.

Genoa y Aguirre to José de la Guerra on the American ship, Las Carolinas, not being allowed to

discharge its goods at San Blas, with the result that its captain, Hoyt, went to Valparaíso, where he

died. Genoa y Aguirre, blocked by insurgents, hired the Spanish armed ship, La Cleopatra, captained

by Juan Antonio de la Cortina, is sending de la Guerra two boxes of material including a repaired

clock and two wigs. Yllas is in Arequipa. Genoa y Aguirre yearns for the serene days he spent in

California. Spanish. 8 pp.

DLG 323

Letter 1

Febr. 14, 1823. Purisima.

Antonio Germán to José de la Guerra on the number of cattle killed at various ranchos. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 324

Letter 1
Oct. 2, 1851. Coloma.

William W. Gift to Pablo de la Guerra asking the latter's support for the position of sergeant-at-arms

in the California Senate. His son is seeking the position of assistant secretary of the Senate. English. 1

p.

DLG 325

Letter 1
Jan 14, 1816

Fray Luís Gil y Taboada, O.F.M., to José de la Guerra on commercial matters. Mentioned are Arriola

and Higuera. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 325

Letter 2
Without date.

Gil y Taboada to de la Guerra concerning Villa, sending items and greetings. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 325

Letter 3
Aug. 26, 1816.

Gil y Taboada to de la Guerra on various short items, and stating that the cloth of San Luis Obispo is

better than that of Santa Barbara. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 325

Letter 4

Nov. 19, 1816.

Gil y Taboada to de la Guerra asking him to tell the corporal. of the guard to give him the guard he

desires. "All are good but among the good ones there are better ones." Much frost. He is going to

Monterey to speak to Gov. [Vicente] Solá on serious matters. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 325

Letter 5
Sept. 9, 1816.

Gil y Taboada to De 1a Guerra on the latter's wife being at the mission. The vaqueros of Santa

Barbara at the mission, except Hilario, are returning. The padres are sending biscuits and bacon to de

la Guerra, through Padre Antonio Ripoll, O.F.M. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 325

Letter 6
Nov. 1, 1816.

Gil y Taboada to de la Guerra whom he addresses "My Lord," on his return from San Luis Obispo;

his sustaining an accident on horseback, none of the guard knowing how to apply a remedy. Spanish.

2 pp.
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DLG 325

Letter 7
c. 1816

Gil y Taboada to de la Guerra whom he addresses as "Querido Pepe," stating that "if you wish to find

out something about a mission it would be better to write to the padre only." Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 325

Letter 8
Aug. 12, 1820. San Francisco.

Two letters in one document: Fray Juan Cabot, O.F.M., to José de la Guerra on commercial matters

and Gil y Taboada to de la Guerra on commercial matters. Mentioned is Fray Ramón. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 325

Letter 9
Aug. 22, 1820.

Gil y Taboada to de la Guerra on commercial matters and prices. He desires to leave California.

Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 325

Letter 10
Nov. 24, 1830. San Luis Obispo.

Gil y Taboada to Juan B. Martiarena on his assignment to San Luis Obispo, Fray Juan Martín,

O.F.M., having been in charge with Fray José Joaquín Jimeno, O.F.M., being the present director.

Treats of commercial matters; mentions [Henry] Virmond and Fray Luís Martínez, O.F.M., Juan

Cooper, an American is there. He is "a man of good heart and understanding," wishes to trade and is

awaiting a ship. Gil y Taboada, though American born but of European parentage, seeks his passport

for Europe. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 326

Letter 1
Jan. 6, 1849. San Francisco.

Edward Gilbert and others to Pablo de la Guerra sending him a copy of the Alta California, directing

his attention to the article on "Provisional Government," and considering it fully expressive of the

view of San Francisco's community. English. 1 p.

DLG 327

Letter 1
Apr. 22, 1871. San Luis Obispo.

Goldtree Brothers to Pablo de la Guerra on prorroguing a bill to be paid by Estevan Castro. Spanish. 1

p.

DLG 328

Letter 1
Sept. 19, 1868. Novales, Spain.

José M. Gómez and Fernando de Ceballos to Pablo de la Guerra concerning the Spanish patronazago

or patrimony. Mentioned are María Gómez Escandón, Francisca Murga, Don Gaspar and a Juan José.

Spanish. 6 pp.

DLG 329

Letter 1

May 27, 1831.

Rafael Gómez to William C. P. Hartnell on the case of the destroyed tallow at Mission Purisima

during the Indian uprising. Mentioned are Teodoro Arrellanes, José de la Guerra and mission padres.

Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 330

Letter 1
May 20, 1829. Mexico.

Juan Cayetano Gómez de Portugal y Solís, bishop of Michoacan to José de la Guerra concerning a

law of March 20 (unexplained), but which is in favor of de la Guerra. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 331

Letter 1
Dec. 21, 1831. Morelia, Mexico.

Bishop Gómez to de la Guerra on receiving the latter's letter with his congratulations. They had

conferred in Mexico at an earlier date. The bishop received a permission from the government which

he does not explain. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 332

Letter 1
Febr. 26, 1850. San Jose, California.

José González to Pablo de la Guerra recommending his friend, Nicolás Mora, who is going south to

buy cattle; and on sending de la Guerra blue cloth he had requested. Spanish. 2 pp.
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Letter 1
Dec. 19, 1825. Monterey.

Miguel González to José de la Guerra sending twenty-five pesos from William Hartnell with

instructions as to how it is to be divided. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 334

Letter 1
March 29, 1815. San Ignacio, Lower Calif.

Fray Pedro González, O.P. to José de la Guerra on sending two muleteers, Vicente Redona and

Gregorio Samaniego, to "that presidio" with dates. Asks him to send him a blanket and a piece of

coarse cloth. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 334

Letter 2
Aug. 26, 1815.

González to de la Guerra expressing a desire seeing him, speaks briefly of his work and needs.

Mentions a Fray Tomás [Ahumada, O.P.]. Partly torn. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 334

Letter 3
Jan. 8, 1816. San Ignacio.

González to de la Guerra on hearing of the latter's mother's death; on sending figs; suffering cold;

many ill; speaks of the project of [Francisco de Paula] Tamariz made known to him in a letter from

Father Rivas. González declines the office of president of the Missions. Sends greetings to Fray

Antonio Ripoll, O.F.M. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 334

Letter 4
Febr. 16, 1816.

González to de la Guerra sending figs and other items with Ojeda. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 334

Letter 5
May 22, 1816. San Ignacio.

González to de la Guerra, a very short note: Did Ojeda arrive? Are there blankets and tallow?

Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 334

Letter 6
Oct. 1817. San Ignacio.

González to de la Guerra after a few reflective thoughts, speaks of his needs and situation. Spanish. 4

pp.

DLG 334

Letter 7
June 1818.

González to de la Guerra, a letter of reflective thoughts and congratulates him on his captaincy.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 334

Letter 8
Apr. 26, 1818. San Ignacio.

González to de la Guerra on his captaincy; on a skirmish between a Mexican frigate and the schooner

of Smith at Guaymas, resulting in several deaths on either side; the capture of an American schooner

at Mazatlán; eight ships lost in the Gulf of California in December alone; that of the mission escaping

"miraculously;" new missionaries expected; he is looking for his own change. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 334

Letter 9
July 17, 1819.

González to de la Guerra on financial matters and various short items. Sends greetings to Fray

Antonio Ripoll, O.F.M. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 334

Letter 10
July 16, 1820. San Ignacio.

González to de la Guerra on a letter from Ripoll; asks de la Guerra to visit. His friend, Father Jaime

Alzubide, a Catalan, who is procurator; tells him to speak to the viceroy about paying the drafts for

"we are as poor as the devil." Mentions Fathers Pablo and Roque [Varela, O.P.]. Spanish. 2 pp.
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DLG 334

Letter 11
Without date.

González to de la Guerra on commercial matters; is building a schooner; mentions Fathers Ramón,

Pineda and Zaiz, the latter of whom is a prisoner of the rebels at Sombrerete; San Blas is in the

"vespers of its extinction;" a project of Tamariz. González is no longer a missionary but a curate; the

death of Napoleon; Father Ribas is released from his employment. Asks for mules, hemp and

blankets. Reflects on his situation. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 334

Letter 12
Without date.

González to de la Guerra concerning a draft. Personal reflections. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 334

Letter 13
Without date.

Four lines of a fragment in hand of González. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 335

Letter 1
May 8, 1820. San Ignacio.

Fray-Pedro González to María Antonia (Carrillo) de la Guerra on sending the Indian, Silvestre

Linares, for some hemp and sending her some dates. Inquires about José de la Guerra. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 336

Letter 1
Jan. 19, 1809. Mexico.

Juan González Aguirre to José de la Guerra on a commercial matter. Mentioned are José Viñals,

O.F.M., and José M. Estudillo. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 336

Letter 2
Febr. 18, 1810. Mexico.

González Aguirre to de la Guerra on a commercial matter. [José] Viñals, O.F.M., mentioned. Spanish.

2 pp.

DLG 337

Letter 1
June 3, 1857. Spanish Ranch, Calif.

Francisco González to Francisco de la Guerra on a financial transaction and on cattle. Mentioned is

Señor Anguisola. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 338

Letter 1
Febr. 23, 1821. San Fernando.

Fray Francisco González de Ibarra, O.F.M., to José de la Guerra on the severe illness of his

missionary companion, Fray Román Ulibarri, O.F.M. Mentioned are Fray José María [Zalvidea],

O.F.M., Fray Joaquín [Nuez], O.F.M., and Fray [José] Señán, O.F.M. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 338

Letter 2
March 11, 1821. San Fernando.

Ibarra to de la Guerra on the condition of Fray Román de Ulibarri, O.F.M., who is to be sent to

Mission San Gabriel. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 338

Letter 3
Apr. 14, 1821. San Fernando.

Ibarra to de la Guerra complaining about soldiers; stating the condition of Ulibarri. Mentioned are

José María and Joaquín. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 338

Letter 4
July 11, 1821. San Fernando.

Ibarra to de la Guerra complaining about soldier guards. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 338

Letter 5
July 26, 1821. San Fernando.

Ibarra to de la Guerra on manner of solving Indian complaints; horses given to Indians; soldiers and

the cumplimiento de iglesia; and on Indians buying and selling. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 338

Letter 6
Sept. 13, 1821. San Fernando.

Ibarra to de la Guerra explaining his inability to give him seventy or eighty fanegas of corn. Spanish.

2 pp.
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DLG 338

Letter 7
Sept. 21, 1821. San Bernando.

Ibarra to de la Guerra on corn; on the absence of the neophyte, Joseph. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 338

Letter 8
Sept. 25, 1821. San Fernando.

Ibarra to de la Guerra on sending corn destined for Santa Barbara as far as San Buenaventura.

Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 338

Letter 9
Nov. 17, 1821. San Fernando.

Ibarra to de la Guerra questioning the governor's permission for Indians living at Piru as if in a formal

pueblo. Mentioned is Camulos. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 338

Letter 10
Dec. 20, 1821. San Fernando.

Ibarra to de la Guerra on registering cattle; the mission protests the occupation of Piru until the

governor is informed. Mentioned are Camulos and sergeant Roberto [Pardo?] Written in two hands

including that of Ibarra. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 338

Letter 11
Febr. 19, 1822. San Gabriel.

Ibarra to de la Guerra on a fugitive Indian from Santa Barbara, Pedro Belalago, presenting himself to

Ibarra at San Gabriel. The Indian was turned over to the comisionado, Anastasio Carrillo, at the

latter's request. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 338

Letter 12
Oct. 28, 1822. San Fernando.

Ibarra to de la Guerra on articles requested by the Presidio of Santa Barbara. Delay in sending is

explained. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 338

Letter 13
Febr. 23. San Fernando.

Ibarra to de la Guerra stating that the Indian, Ildefonso, should not be registered at Santa Barbara.

Treats of the matter of Indians being registered at missions. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 338

Letter 14
May 2, 1825. San Fernando.

Ibarra to de la Guerra in answer to a reprimand from the latter. Treats of missions aiding presidios.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 338

Letter 15

Aug. 9, 1825. San Fernando.

Ibarra to de la Guerra on not being able to supply the amount of tallow requested; excuses himself for

not answering an earlier letter asking for beans. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 338

Letter 16
June 11, 1823. San Fernando.

Ibarra to de la Guerra on financial matters and explaining certain difficulties experienced. Mentioned

are Salazar and Cota. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 338

Letter 17
Jun 16, 1830. San Fernando.

Ibarra to de la Guerra concerning Triunfo and El Conejo. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 339

Letter 1
Apr. 11, 1825. San Fernando.

Fray González de Ibarra, O.F.M., to Carlos Antonio Carrillo on his mission not receiving aid from the

presidio and on liberty for the Indians. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 340

Letter 1
Aug. 3, 1808. Guadalajara.

Juan González Perino to José de la Guerra concerning the tithes for the year 1807. Signed by Juan

López Portillo. Spanish. 1 p.
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DLG 341

Letter 1
Aug. 28, 1846. Santa Barbara.

Fray José María González Rubio, O.F.M., to José de la Guerra on receiving from him 1987 pesos in

silver which the firm of Tomás de la Torre Jecker of Mazatlán had forwarded in favor of Bishop

García Diego y Moreno. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 342

Letter 1
May 18, 1846. Santa Barbara.

González Rubio to Pablo de la Guerra concerning dispensations for his marriage. Pablo had wanted to

be married in a private home rather than in church. This was not allowed by Fray Narciso Durán,

O.F.M. Dispensation from announcing the bans at San Juan Bautista and Monterey was allowed.

Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 342

Letter 2
Sept. 25, 1858. Santa Barbara.

González Rubio to de la Guerra on learning that Bishop [Tadeo] Amat is going to Europe; the

former's desire to contact Fray Francisco Caro, O.F.M., who is traveling on the same steamer; asks

Pablo to have his letter sent through Don Porfirio [Jimeno], Pablo's nephew, in "today's mail," since

he fears the post office is already closed. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 342

Letter 3
Oct. 3, 1858. Santa Barbara.

González Rubio to de la Guerra inviting him to be present at a meal with the friars on the Feast of St.

Francis. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 342

Letter 4
Febr. 21, 1860. Santa Barbara.

González Rubio to de la Guerra consoling him on the death of the child, Elena, daughter of Alfred

Robinson. Permission is given for the child to be buried with her mother. Thanks him for his

congratulations at the apparent conclusion of the difficulties between the friars and Bishop Amat,

stating he had received a letter from the Franciscan minister general of Dec. 16, 1859, that the case

would soon be closed. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 342

Letter 5
Dec., 6, 1860. Santa Barbara.

González Rubio to de la Guerra inviting him to the mission on the morrow when certain surveyors

would be surveying the mission lands and stating that he could be useful in the matter. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 344

Letter 1
Apr. 2, 1860. San Quentin Prison.

William Gordon to Pablo de la Guerra presenting a certificate of March 30 from the prison physician

S. Petit de Vergenne, which he asks Pablo to present to the governor to aid towards his release.

English. 2 pp.

DLG 345

Letter 1
March 25, 1856. Novales, Spain.

Juan José Gorgolla y de la Guerra to Juan José de la Guerra y Noriega on real estate. Letter is partly

ink-blotted. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 345a

Letter 1
May 17, 1867. London, England,

William Grain to Pablo de la Guerra notifying him that Governor Frederick F. Low has granted him a

document empowering him as Commissioner of Deeds for the State of California. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 346

Letter 1
July 27, 1859. San Luís Obispo.

W. J. Graves to Antonio de la Guerra seeking information on senatorial matters. Mentions "Chato,"

Pablo de la Guerra and [Charles] Fernald. English. 1 p.
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DLG 347

Letter 1
Aug. 21, 1859. San Luís Obispo.

W. J. Graves to Pablo de la Guerra stating that [Romualdo] Pacheco will not run, therefore he

(Graves) will. English. 1 p.

DLG 348

Letter 1
Sept. 27, 1873. San Luis Obispo.

W. J. Graves to Francis Thompson registering his surprise at Thompson's defeats, Sends regrets.

Graves was elected senator. English. 2 pp.

DLG 349

Letter 1
Aug. 9, 1855. Sacramento.

Abraham Kiefer Grim to Pablo de la Guerra concerning the sale of the estates of Sheldon and

[William] Hartnell. English. 1 p.

DLG 349

Letter 2
Aug. 9, 1858. Sacramento.

Grim to de la Guerra notifying him that the Hartnell grant was confirmed by the U.S. Land

Commission. Hartnell's will is to be examined. Desires Pablo to come north. English. 1 p.

DLG 350

Letter 1
May 20, 1854. Sacramento.

Grim and Rumber to Pablo de la Guerra on receiving $3,000.00 against Sheldon, on speaking with

Mayor Redding who wants to see Halleck, Peachy and Billings; on Hartnell's ranch; and on a draft in

favor of James Ord. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 351

Letter 1
Nov. 16, 1844. Santa Barbara.

Antonio María de la Guerra to Pablo de la Guerra on a non-reply to his letter. Mentions Señor

Branizon and [Cesareo] Lataillade. Greetings to several members of the family. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 351

Letter 2
March 9, 1850. Santa Barbara.

Antonio María de la Guerra to Pablo de la Guerra sending him letters; on receiving copies of laws

passed by the legislature, but in English is difficult to use without Spanish translation; on elections;

Santa Barbara's attempt to have its harbor opened to outside trade; José de la Guerra asks Pablo to

interest the national authorities in the matter; the presidio site proposed as a good jail site; arrival of

the bark, Isidoro, bringing Stefano Splivalo, who says he cannot live in Los Angeles because three or

four murders have been committed in three days; Abel Stearns attacked by a gunman; the thought of

arming the citizens of Santa Barbara to defend themselves, but matters might be even worse nor are

guns available; on Yankees stealing oxen being worse robbers than the Indians. "He who wishes to

lose his life does not have to do more than claim what is his." José de la Guerra is asking for

newspapers; names various members of the family. Spanish. 7 pp.

DLG 351

Letter 3
Jan. 24, 1851. Sacramento.

Antonio María De Guerra to Pablo giving political news of Sacramento; Garfías robbed of $1,000.00;

asks Pablo to make a resumé of the state of the missions in his district, stating the year in which they

were rented or sold and what part of the proceeds were set aside for divine cult and for the Indians;

divided opinion concerning election for senator. The assembly declared null and void the law passed

the year before on salaries. Named are [José María] Covarrubias, Andrés, Valle, Broderick, Peachy,

Mariano, Maclin. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 351

Letter 4
July 29, 1851.

Antonio María de la Guerra to Pablo de la Guerra on the illness of Concepción, the health of

Francisco [de la Guerra] and himself. Spanish. 2 pp.
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DLG 351

Letter 5
Jan. 19, 1852. San Francisco.

Antonio María de la Guerra to Pablo on change of the capital to Sacramento and temporary

suspension of sessions; Broderick and Huela, candidates for Senate. Mentions Don Nicolás, Valle,

Pico, Howard and a Don Federico. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 351

Letter 6
Jan. 29, 1852.

Antonio María de la Guerra to Pablo on meeting of the assembly, an entire day being spent over a

dispute concerning a seat; seven candidates for senator; various political figures mentioned; a bill

concerning mileage payments, current price of cattle; sends newspapers. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 351

Letter 7
Febr. 14, 1852.

Antonio María de la Guerra to Pablo sending him letters; on the Seabird, [José María] Covarrubias,

and Haley; the legislature treating of war costs; claims of Maricopa County; State Senator Suley from

San Francisco; Ord cannot be made judge for insufficent time of residence; officers for the national

guard; candidates for judge; assembly dealing with question of Water Lots in San Francisco; pay for

McDougal; law on divorce; governor's message translated and is being printed. Spanish. 8 pp.

DLG 351

Letter 8
Febr. 19, 1852.

Antonio María de la Guerra to Pablo on sending mail via the Seabird; political matters; question of

'division;' sergeant-at-arms sent out to get twelve senators; the assembly to reduce various judicial

districts; sending newspapers; gives opinions on various laws and projects; financial matters; party

convention; Covarrubias, Democratic delegate for Baltimore Convention; bills and letters sent

through Don Andrés; governor's message in Spanish available; a disordered legislature; the question

of Klamath; a letter from [William] Hartnell asking for his salary to be paid. Spanish. 13 pp.

DLG 351

Letter 9
March 2, 1852.

Antonio María de la Guerra to Pablo on political matters; pay for the members of the legislature;

death of Carlos [Carrillo], his uncle, and a tribute to him in El Californio; need for sending to him

certified accounts; amendment to the rodeo bill; pending bills; and concerning sheriffs. Spanish. 5 pp.

DLG 351

Letter 10
Jan 1, 1853.

Antonio María de la Guerra to Pablo on news of the period with many details; his arrival at Monterey;

his meeting with Teresa and [William] Hartnell, Palmer and Cook; discusses office of district judge;

mentions Joaquín Carrillo, [John] Bigler, Broderick, [José María] Covarrubias, [Charles E.] Huse;

election at Santa Barbara; editor of the Alta California expresses willingness to help the hijos del

pais;. Antonio María is going to Vallejo; has seen Cavintori, Halleck, and Don Alfredo [Robinson],

Señor Stevens; rain for a month. Mentions [José] Abrego, Abadia, and sends regards to individuals.

Spanish. 5 pp.

DLG 351

Letter 11
July 11, 1853.

A. M. de la Guerra to Pablo on the arrival of Francisco and Miguel [de la Guerra] who branded 1,000

calves; on building a room; [A.F.] Hinchman to marry soon, on material needed for the house in San

Julian Rancho. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 351

Letter 12
Febr. 4, [1850]

A. M. de la Guerra on giving a message from José de la Guerra to Señor Y. Mentioned are Padre

Jimeno and Don Moruel and his latest testamentary dispositions. Spanish. 1 p.
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DLG 351

Letter 13
Jan. 31, 1854.

A. M. de la Guerra to Pablo on the death of Manuel Jimeno Casarín and the illness of Don Guillermo;

Angustias' desire to go to Mexico; short notices concerning relatives and acquaintances. Mentioned

are Sepúlveda, Pico, Manuela Carrillo, Carmen, the newspaper, Southern, and the ship, Golden Gate.

Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 351

Letter 14
Jan. 19, 1854. Santa Barbara.

A. M. de la Guerra to Pablo on the burial of a "caballero"; Anita is disconsolate; on goods José de la

Guerra ordered and short personal items. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 351

Letter 15
Apr. 5, 1854. Santa Barbara.

A. M. de la Guerra to Pablo on family affairs mostly regarding health; serious illness of Manuela

Carrillo; José de la Guerra sending money to the widow of Marcelo Croquer; Juan López de Croquer

mentioned. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 351

Letter 16
Apr. 6, 1854. Santa Barbara.

A. M. de la Guerra to Pablo on lumber received from Simi; money for the widow of Croquer; on José

Carrillo being accused of fraud by the court of sessions in Los Angeles; and his flight probably to

Nipomo. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 351

Letter 17
May 1, 1854. Santa Barbara.

A. M. de la Guerra stating that he is inspector of the Board of Elections; his ordering certain items;

"El Obispo" is mayor; [Henry] Carnes, secretary; a certain Wadley and Antonio María de la Guerra,

counselors. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 351

Letter 18
May 11, 1854.

A. M. to de la Guerra: short items concerning the family; the ship, El Pajaro, stranded at Point

Concepcion. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 351

Letter 19
May 3, 1855.

A. M, de la Guerra to Pablo on the latter's discourse; on title of San Julian Rancho; on Pablo probably

being elected mayor; lack of flour; family and acquaintances mentioned. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 351

Letter 20
Jan. 21, 1856.

A. M. de la Guerra to Pablo on Fray José María González Rubio's, O.F.M., recall to Mexico and

stating that both Catholics and non-Catholics are resolved to prevent his leaving Santa Barbara; on

Anita [Robinson's] sepulchre. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 351

Letter 21
Febr. 13, 1856. Santa Barbara.

A. M. de la Guerra to Pablo on the desire of Carlos Guillermo Dana, son of Josefa Carrillo de Dana,

to enlist in the U.S. Military Academy, asking Pablo to use his influence. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 351

Letter 22
March 7, 1856. Santa Barbara.

A. M. de la Guerra to Pablo on the great drought and the fear concerning the death of the greater part

of the cattle; on [Charles E.] Huse explaining suit with Lorenzana; treats of El Rincon, Punta Gorda,

Miguel [de la Guerra] at San Julian; Joaquín at Simi; Pablo presenting a bill concerning schools.

Spanish. 3 pp.
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DLG 351

Letter 23
March 20, 1856. Santa Barbara.

A. M. de la Guerra to Pablo on their father's illness; doctor feared death; Fray José María González

Rubio, O.F.M., called to bedside; his revival the next day; on sending maps of El Rincon and Punta

Gorda; hopes the supreme court will decide the Lorenzana case; death of Fray José Joaquín Jimeno,

O.F.M., ordinations at the mission; attendance at the mission on Holy Thursday, the 20th, as great as

ever with between 1,500 and 2,000 present. Mentions Don Alfredo [Robinson], Don Antonio,

Joaquín, [Henry Wager] Halleck, and members of the family. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 351

Letter 24
Apr. 3, 1856.

A. M. de la Guerra to Pablo on passage of the Squatters' Law; cattle situation because of drought;

price of cattle; elections; on the apostolic college moving from town to the mission. A section of

pages three and four has been cut out which refers to the apostolic college item. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 351

Letter 25
Febr. 11, 1857. Santa Barbara.

A. M. de la Guerra to Pablo to various members of the family coming to Santa Barbara; on a trip to

Los Alamos on a business affair; imprisonment of a certain John; charges the Gaceta with giving

improper news. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 351

Letter 26
Apr. 24, 1857. Santa Barbara.

A. M. de la Guerra to Pablo on San Julian Ranch; cattle; a money matter concerning Pelón; José de la

Guerra concerning the Santa Susana Road; sending on the papers of McGaun [McGowen?]; the death

of a Yankee near Carpinteria ,whose head was crushed under a wagon wheel and who left his widow

with eight children. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 351

Letter 27
Oct. 8, 1858. San Julian.

A. M. de la Guerra on ship delivering lumber for Jalama; cattle; need for nails, paper and ink; Pelón

may ask for clothes or money; Francisco [de la Guerra] ill at Los Alamos; Don Carlos in Espada;

Gaspar receiving the lumber at El Cojo; a business matter; and needs of his ranch. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 351

Letter 28
Jan. 7, 1860. Santa Barbara.

A. M. de la Guerra to Pablo on José Carrillo stabbing Totorene, which was not fatal; Judge [Charles]

Fernald holding him to a bond of $5,000.00; the Los Pastores held at Ord's house on New Year in

which Antonio María de la Guerra was injured by a sword of Queremón [Carrillo] accidentally and

whom Dr. [James] Ord attended; his cook and Manuel living in immoral relations; his forbidding

lottery in his house; his father-in-law, D. G. taking some cattle; a laughable proposal for the sale of a

ranch by "G," and Fernald's telling Antonio María de la Guerra, Pablo would buy his brother's lots

together with the trees. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 351

Letter 29
Jan. 24, 1860.

A. M. de la Guerra concerning terms for selling the ranch at La Espada. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 351

Letter 30
Jan. 28, 1860. Santa Barbara.

A. M. de la Guerra to Pablo on a business matter with Gaspar, and on sale of cattle at San Julian

Rancho. Spanish. 3 pp.
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Letter 31
Febr. 23, 1860. Santa Barbara.

A. M. de la Guerra to Pablo on the death of Elena [Robinson], her remains to be buried with those of

her mother if Father González Rubio, O.F.M., permits; cattle at Simi; Board of Supervisors

determining the limits of county at Cuyama; his visit to Los Angeles by ship; [Charles] Fernald's

going east for six months; the criminal case of José Carrillo; [Jacob?] asking for a copy of José de la

Guerra's testament; on Fernald in the Carrillo case; on the county judge becoming a Catholic.

Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 351

Letter 32
March 24, 1860. Santa Barbara.

A. M. de la Guerra to Pablo concerning various members of the family, and on Angustias de la

Guerra's lawsuit. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 351

Letter 33
Apr. 9, 1860. Santa Barbara.

A. M. de la Guerra to Pablo asking him to have amended the law fixing the recompense of the sheriff

of Santa Barbara County for taking demented people to the state asylum, nor should he be expected to

take people there who are from out of the county. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 351

Letter 34
Dec. 27, 1860. Santa Barbara.

A. M. de la Guerra to Pablo on a very heavy rain in Santa Barbara, the waters of the arroyo reaching a

point between the house of de la Guerra and that of Camarillo; Los Pastores presented; Antonio ill;

Joaquín giving an order to the auditor for $900.00 against the jail fund. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 351

Letter 35
Jan. 12, 1861.

A. M. de la Guerra to Pablo on the "Bill of the City;" an opinion sought from the general procurator

in which a local judge is involved; Francisco [de la Guerra] went to Simi to oversee the measuring of

the ranch; the sheriff asking to be paid on a mileage basis for a trip he took; heavy rains caused the

arroyo to overflow on Jan. 6, a wall of the property fell, the garden wall had to be torn down and

rebuilt, various old houses fell, among those of José Antonio and the "large house of the Italian;" a

great ball given composed of members of the Carrillo and Noriega families; Doña Angustias [de la

Guerra] to give one "this evening;" Pablo de la Guerra reportedly is president of the senate and soon

will be governor of the state; on signing a petition of the Whigs recommending "old" Thompson for

the "employment" of Pedro; a division called for at Rio de Santa Clara; many visitors at the house

which he calls a "Babylon." Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 351

Letter 36
Jan. 14, 1861. Santa Barbara.

A. M. de la Guerra to Pablo on arrival of a brigantine belonging to Capt. García with news of Pablo's

election as president of the senate; a celebration that followed. More and his contract for building a

road; on decisions of the state supreme court; various members of the family mentioned. Spanish. 8

pp.

DLG 351

Letter 37
March 7, 1861. Santa Barbara.

A. M. de la Guerra to Pablo on continued road building by the road commission; ordering items from

the firm of Castle and Freeburn; on law imposing two pesos on work on roads; [Charles] Fernald and

bill concerning the municipal board; Graves of San Luís Obispo, "our mortal enemy," is again

resident there; his learning from Fernald that the archives of the city were sent to the surveyor general

in the past year and that they have not yet-been returned, they containing all the legal titles of the

Carpinteria and Montecito areas; Antonio Arrellanes' desire to know why his case against his brother

Luís has not yet been decided by the supreme court after two years. Spanish. 3 pp.
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Letter 38
March 9, 1861. Santa Barbara.

A. M. de la Guerra to Pablo on the impossibility of improving the grade to Los Angeles (Santa

Susana?); the latter city declaring against it; an agent was asked to repair the Santa Rosa Road; tells

[Alfred] Robinson to save his lambs, which are in the power of More, and, if not, he will be left

without money and lambs. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 351

Letter 39
March 22, 1861. Santa Barbara.

A. M. de la Guerra to Pablo on the birth of twins to Pablo's wife, Doctors Ord and Shaw in

attendance; Downey's candidacy for senate; the Los Angeles supervisors agreeing to open the Santa

Susana pass; city limits of Santa Barbara approved; the ocean, crest of the sierra, arroyo of

Carpinteria and Dos Pueblos; Nidever, a surveyor, spread the rumor that the "title" was disapproved;

wants Santa Barbara to pay him for a general plan; A. M. asks that Sprague, county surveyor, be

named a deputy to [George] Nidever, to measure the city's limits; on Black and More on roads, a road

through Santa Susana less costly than through Las Virgines; the buying and selling of cattle. Spanish.

4 pp.

DLG 351

Letter 40
Apr. 22, 1861. Santa Barbara.

A. M. de la Guerra to Pablo on his trip to Santa Ines to see Pablo's in-laws; on the possibility of Pablo

becoming an ambassador; contract concerning cattle; Antonio Arellanes was attacked thrice; [José

María] Covarrubias was struck; Delfina's [de la Guerra] baptism. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 351

Letter 41
Apr. 29, 1861. Santa Barbara.

A. M. de la Guerra to Pablo on the law of 1858 concerning minerals of tar content; municipal charter;

$250.00 asked to obtain title; and asking for a law to protect ranchers of San Luis Obispo County.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 351

Letter 42
May 12, 1861.

A. M. de la Guerra to Pablo on arrival of the stagecoach; ranches Simi and San Julian. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 351

Letter 43
July 23, 1861. Santa Barbara.

A. M. de la Guerra to Pablo on financial matters, and on letters received from San Luis Obispo.

Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 351

Letter 44
Aug. 23, 1861. Santa Barbara.

A. M. de la Guerra to Pablo on illness of latter's daughter, Paulina, and her death. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 351

Letter 45
Sept. 2, 1861. Santa Barbara.

A. M. de la Guerra to Pablo on a financial matter and the death of Paulina. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 351

Letter 46
Jan. 15, 1862. Santa Barbara.

A. M. de la Guerra to Pablo sending a note through Gaspar who is about to sail. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 351

Letter 47
July 20, 1862. Santa Barbara.

A. M. de la Guerra to Pablo on Gaspar's need to see him before sailing; includes a note from

Francisco for three head of cattle; the arrival of Anguisola; A. M. de la Guerra's need to use

Santiago's horse. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 351

Letter 48
Aug 20, 1862. Santa Barbara.

A. M. de la Guerra to Pablo. Various short items. Vaccination mentioned. Spanish. 2 pp.
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Letter 49
Oct. 18, 1862. Santa Barbara.

A. M. de la Guerra to Pablo on receiving what the latter sent by ship; Doña Magdalena Cota died on

Oct. 12. Trinidad gave birth. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 351

Letter 50
Aug. 21, 1863. Santa Barbara.

A. M. de la Guerra to Pablo concerning the slaughtering of cattle; four senatorial candidates, among

whom is Heath; the new Constitution in relation to residence requirements for senatorial candidates;

Y. G. Cot; a party convention named Pablo, but [Charles] Fernald probably to be named; election of

Ord probable; the judicial election was in favor of Pablo but is dubious about Covarrubias. Spanish. 2

pp.

DLG 351

Letter 51
Aug. 25, 1863. Santa Barbara.

A. M. de la Guerra to Pablo on slaughtering cattle, and elections. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 351

Letter 52
Sept. 8, 1863. Santa Barbara.

A. M. de la Guerra to Pablo on elections; family matters; a trip of [Charles E.] Huse to Los Angeles;

slaughtering of cattle. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 351

Letter 53
Sept. 11, 1863. Santa Barbara.

A. M. de la Guerra to Pablo on election of [José María] Covarrubias, and a contested election.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 351

Letter 54
Sept. 15, 1863. Santa Barbara.

A. M. de la Guerra to Pablo on politics and elections. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 351

Letter 55
Sept. 25, 1863. Santa Barbara.

A. M. de la Guerra to Pablo on politics. A number of individuals mentioned. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 351

Letter 56
Sept. 27, 1863. Santa Barbara.

A. M. de la Guerra to Pablo on several minor local affairs; on padres prietos (secular priests) mixing

in public affairs; followed by a note from Josefa de la Guerra. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 351

Letter 57
Oct. 6, 1863. Santa Barbara.

A. M. de la Guerra to Pablo on a slaughter; [Francis] Maguire's long conference with Joaquín; the

"Union League" or the "Maguire League;" in favor of Joaquín rather than Pablo, manipulated by

[Charles E.] Huse. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 351

Letter 58
Oct. 11, 1863. Santa Barbara.

A. M. de la Guerra to Pablo on receiving copies of the letters of commissioners which arrived by

stagecoach. They were translated immediately; politics in which [Benjamin?] Hays, Huse and

Maguire are mentioned. Antonio María is sending Pablo money. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 351

Letter 59
Oct. 13, 1863. Santa Barbara.

A. M. de la Guerra to Pablo on political matters. Mentions many names in the Santa Barbara area

favorable or unfavorable to Pablo. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 351

Letter 60
Oct. 16, 1863. Santa Barbara.

A. M. de la Guerra on politics and elections. Many persons mentioned favorable or unfavorable to

Pablo. Spanish. 4 pp.
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Letter 61
Oct. 23, 1863. Santa Barbara.

A. M. de la Guerra to Pablo on elections, politics and party groups, friends and enemies of Pablo.

Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 351

Letter 62
Nov. 1, 1863. Santa Barbara.

A. M. de la Guerra to Pablo on the results of the elections. Individuals mentioned. Incomplete.

Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 351

Letter 63
Nov. 3, 1863. Santa Barbara.

A. M. de la Guerra to Pablo on election returns. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 351

Letter 64
Jan. 15, 1864. Santa Barbara.

A. M. de la Guerra to Pablo mentioning members of the family, the ship of Capt. García floundered

beyond the castillo; men are taking off the freight; the ship will not be able to be used in future.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 351

Letter 65
Jan. 19, 1864. Santa Barbara.

A. M. de la Guerra to Pablo on family affairs; the murder of a Yankee and his wife at Las Cruces and

the burning of their customs house. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 351

Letter 66
Jan. 21, 1864. Santa Barbara.

A. M. de la Guerra to Pablo on family matters; the Las Cruces murder; the wreck of a ship at Santa

Barbara. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 351

Letter 67
Febr. 17, 1864. Santa Barbara.

A. M. de la Guerra to Pablo on politics, and the guarding of a prisoner in jail when lynching was

threatened. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 351

Letter 68
May 13, 1864. Santa Barbara.

A. M. de la Guerra to Pablo asking to recover packages he had left behind; a river colony approved.

Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 351

Letter 69
May 22, 1864. Santa Barbara.

A. M. de la Guerra concerning the swearing in of an infantry company; the death of Güero Ruíz

thrown from a horse on the San Marcos Pass. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 351

Letter 70
May 25, 1864. Santa Barbara.

A. M. de la Guerra to Pablo on a dispute between Gaspar and [Albert?] Packard, his military

company to be accepted merely as "civilian" one. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 351

Letter 71
May 27, 1864. Santa Barbara.

A. M. de la Guerra to Pablo stating that the county judge gave Alfred Robinson letters of

administration for the property of José de la Guerra; is on a point of disbanding his military company.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 351

Letter 72
May 29, 1864. Santa Barbara.

A. M. de la Guerra to Pablo on the administration of José de la Guerra's properties. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 351

Letter 73
May 31, 1864. Santa Barbara.

A. M. de la Guerra to Pablo on the military company of Santa Barbara. Alfred Robinson involved.

Spanish. 2 pp.
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Letter 74
Nov. 1865. Fort Mason.

A. M. de la Guerra to Pablo recommending certain men who had undergone vicissitudes in Sonoma

County during a revolution. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 351

Letter 75
Oct. 12, 1866. Santa Barbara,

A. M. de la Guerra to Pablo on the ranch at Simi; on certain ladies preparing a ball for funds for "the

chapel." Spanish. 3 pp. There is a duplicate letter of the above.

DLG 351

Letter 76
Nov. 13, 1866. Santa Barbara.

A. M. de la Guerra to Pablo on a court case concerning a certain Gaspar. Several small family items.

Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 351

Letter 77
Nov. 20, 1866. Santa Barbara.

A. M. de la Guerra to Pablo on family matters. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 351

Letter 78
Dec. 1, 1866. Santa Barbara.

A. M. de la Guerra on family matters. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 351

Letter 79
Dec. 4, 1866. Santa Barbara.

A. M., de la Guerra to Pablo on the death of his maternal uncle, Anastasio [Carrillo]. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 351

Letter 80
Dec. 8, 1866. Santa Barbara.

A. M. de la Guerra to Pablo on family matters. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 351

Letter 81
May 28, 1867. Santa Barbara.

A. M. de la Guerra to Pablo on his return from Los Alamos, the sale of land; on José Antonio's

illness; family matters, the death of Federico Schiappapietra. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 351

Letter 82
Aug 1, 1870. Santa Barbara.

A. M. de la Guerra to Pablo on their brother, Miguel, and his rights with regard the ranchos Simi and

Las Posas. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 351

Letter 83
May 5, 1870. Santa Barbara.

A. M. de la Guerra to Pablo on a package from Ignacio Sepúlveda sent by Wells Fargo; a deposition

made by Packard in the Los Angeles court against Pablo; on a great invitation given by Manuel Den

at Canada de las Armas. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 351

Letter 84
May 14, 1870. Santa Barbara.

A. M. de la Guerra to Pablo on Francis Thompson renting Pablo's office in Santa Barbara, and family

items. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 351

Letter 85
Febr. 23, 1871. Alamos.

A. M. de la Guerra to Pablo on his trip over San Marcos Pass by stagecoach and on foot; family notes.

Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 351

Letter 86
May 5, 1871. Santa Barbara.

A. M. de la Guerra to Pablo on fallen trees in the garden, hauled away by oxen, their trunks chopped

up for firewood; the affair of Miguel [de la Guerra] settled. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 351

Letter 87
May 4, 1872.

A. M. de la Guerra to Pablo sending him copies of the Los Angeles Crónica; on the blood relationship

between Pablo and the widow, Ramona. Spanish. 2 pp.
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Letter 88
May 12, 1872.

A. M. de la Guerra to Pablo on family matters; Father Jaime [Vila's] curtailed Mass; whitewashing

the house; sending him copies of the Crónica; Miguel's court case with a former sheriff. Spanish. 3

pp.

DLG 352

Letter 1
Jan. 6, 1851. Santa Barbara.

Antonio María de la Guerra to the President of the City Council of Santa Barbara on an extraordinary

convocation of the council for the need of interpreting certain decrees presented in English, and

which must be translated into Spanish so that they can be carried out. Antonio knows only Spanish

and since the language of the city is Spanish, the decrees should be published in both languages.

Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 353

Letter 1
Aug. 27, 1855. Santa Barbara.

Antonio María de la Guerra to Joaquín Estrada on a covering letter of Pablo de la Guerra on his

condemning the "knavery" of the Know-Nothings in the name of [Romualdo] Pacheco. He also urges

him to favor for the Assembly G. Borland ("Chips") against whom is running "a squatter deemed to

be a partisan of Gwin." Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 354

Letter 1
c. 1855.

Antonio María de la Guerra to Miguel de la Guerra sending him the recent letter he had received from

Pablo de la Guerra; on the election at Santa Ines; Miguel [de la Guerra] is to send a cart to Eugenio

and horses to Antonio María; on [Francis] Maguire and Pablo de la Guerra and their partisans. Miguel

is to watch out for Vicente Hill. If all is well at Las Cruces he is to go to Santa Ines. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 355

Letter 1
Dec. 6, 1856. [Santa Barbara].

Antonio María de la Guerra to Juan Ignacio Cot giving him advice concerning the company he keeps.

Has spoken to representatives of Santa Barbara County about obtaining Cot's services as translator

from English to Spanish. Pablo de la Guerra and [José María] Covarrubias are to sail north by the

next steamer. A short note from Scripture is added by Guillermo Carrillo. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 356

Letter 1
July 1856, Santa Barbara.

Antonio María de la Guerra to the City Council of Santa Barbara giving his annual report. City

licenses have not been collected for some time there being no collector of revenue; the need for a city

treasurer; on money owed to Hoar and [A.F.] Hinchman for their defense of the city's title. Antonio

María is studying the city's account books, city's debts amounting to $1,006,50; his approval of an

ordinance on regulating and distributing water to Montecito and Carpinteria; public tranquility

prevails and he considers the inhabitants of Santa Barbara among the most peaceful inhabitants of

California. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 356

Letter 2
Nov. 12, 1863. Santa Barbara.

De la Guerra to the City Council of Santa Barbara returning a petition of Villalba with his comments.

Mentioned are Arrellanes and Cota. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 357

Letter 1
Aug. 27, 1860.

Catalina de la Guerra to Antonio María de la Guerra asking for the return of some objects. Spanish. 1

p.
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Letter 1
Jan. 26, 1861. Santa Barbara.

Clotilda de la Guerra to Pablo de la Guerra congratulating him on his appointment as president of the

California Senate; on her illness. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 359

Letter 1
Febr. 21, 1861. Santa Barbara.

Concepción (Sepúlveda) de la Guerra to Pablo de la Guerra congratulating him on being appointed as

President of the California Senate; on the condition of his wife. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 360

Letter 1
June 19, 1893. Chicago.

Delfina de la Guerra to Francisca de la Guerra Dibblee on visiting the Columbian Exposition.

Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 360

Letter 2
June 22, 1893. Niagara Falls.

Delfina to Diblee, a letter marked "for all," describing the Columbian Exposition at Chicago. Spanish.

18 pp.

DLG 361

Letter 1
Jan. 31, 1894. Mexico City.

Delfina de la Guerra to Josefa (Moreno) de la Guerra on her illness; sending her a gift; mentions

various members of the family; the American legation in Mexico City. Spanish. 6 pp.

DLG 361

Letter 2
Sept. 27, 1894. Monterrey, Mexico.

Delfina to Josefa on her approximate arrival in California. Mentions relatives and friends. Spanish. 2

pp.

DLG 362

Letter 1
Oct. 12, 1913. Santa Barbara.

Delfina de la Guerra to Carolina (Jimeno) Kahn: a short letter of good wishes and concerning health.

Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 363

Letter 1
April 20 and May 19, 1848.

See two letters with the above dates in the folder 125 of the Canon Perdido Affair. Spanish.

DLG 364

Letter 1
Apr. 8, 1850. Santa Barbara.

Francisco de la Guerra: a notification of his being elected county assessor. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 365

Letter 1

Apr. 8, 1850. Santa Barbara.

Francisco de la Guerra and Pedro Carrillo certifying the former's election as county clerk. Spanish. 1

p.

DLG 366

Letter 1
July 16, 1852. Santa Barbara.

Francisco de la Guerra to the city council of Santa Barbara, but written in the hand of Pablo de la

Guerra: a report on the state of the city: funds, property, municipal buildings, no city hall or jail, no

police, the public conduct being such that none are needed, public schools hopefully soon to be

established. Spanish. 9 pp.

DLG 367

Letter 1
Aug. 22, 1860. Santa Barbara.

Francisco de la Guerra to Joaquín Ormart asking him to pay Federico Schiappapietra $1,000.00.

Signed by Schiappapietra, Santa Barbara, Aug. 24, 1860, payable to Señores Laviosa Marengo and

Co, and signed by the latter, no date given. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 368

Letter 1
June 25, 1854. San Buenaventura.

Francisco de la Guerra to Pablo de la Guerra on Cuesta and Obiols concerning Tapo Ranch; on bears

killing several head of cattle. Spanish. 1 p.
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Letter 2
July 12, 1856. Simi.

F. de la Guerra to Pablo on sending six head of cattle with Antonio Ignacio, which may be

slaughtered; sending lard to Concepción, Pablo's son, Carlito, at the ranch and who is inquisitive and

talkative. Francisco [de la Guerra] is going to Tapo. Is sending various articles. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 368

Letter 3
July No 1857. San Julian.

F. de la Guerra to Pablo on rounding up cattle. Bears kill cattle each night. Asks for pen and paper.

Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 368

Letter 4
May 22, 1858. Simi.

F. de la Guerra to Pablo concerning a cattle deal. Partly illegible. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 368

Letter 5
July 12, 1859. Simi.

F. de la Guerra to Pablo on Hecht going to Mexico and asking the former to pay what he owes him.

He asks Pablo to pay him from the money of Landini. Is surprised over Arata and Gaspar's handling

an undisclosed matter. Miguel and Antonio María are going to Los Angeles. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 368

Letter 6
Jan. 27, 1862. Santa Barbara.

F. de la Guerra to Pablo on damage to homes caused by heavy rains. At San Buenaventura all the

families gathered in three or four houses, water was four and five feet high, and some houses

disappeared entirely. Nothing known about Las Pozas and Simi. The arroyo at Ranches of La Laguna

destroyed the houses. All is well at San Julian and La Espada. He heard houses falling during the

great rain day and night. Incomplete. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 368

Letter 7
Aug. 23, 1863. Simi.

F. de la Guerra to Pablo on meeting José Antonio Yorba at Tapo, on Pablo's election as elector, and

the reaction of some of the voters to his candidacy. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 368

Letter 8
Oct. 23, 1863. Simi.

F. de la Guerra to Pablo concerning an election in which the latter was involved. Sends the results of

San Buenaventura. Mentioned are [Benjamin] Hayes, Joaquín Carrillo, [José María] Covarrubias and

[Francis] Maguire. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 368

Letter 9
Apr. 7, 1864. Santa Barbara.

F. de la Guerra to Pablo concerning an interview with Gaspar over a debt. Mentioned are [Charles]

Fernald and Packard. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 368

Letter 10
Apr. 24, 1864. Santa Barbara.

F. de la Guerra to Pablo concerning a debt. Mentioned are [Albert?] Packard, [Charles] Fernald and

Pichy [Archibald Cary Peachy?]. Packard is in San Francisco, Miguel went to San Julian, Concepción

is in Simi. Mentioned are olives, oranges and oil. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 368

Letter 11
May 4, 1864. Santa Barbara.

F. de la Guerra to Pablo on Packard's presence in Santa Barbara and his explanation of the debt of

Pablo to Gaspar; on oil to be sent; oranges received; [Charles F.] Huse's receipt of a letter from

Washington, D.C., containing an approval of "the river to the old colonists;" and the approval

concerning mission lands; on an election held. Mentioned are [Charles] Fernald, Joaquín Carrillo,

Gerónimo Ruíz, Scalone, Raimundo Carrillo, José Jesús Cordero, the California Company of 46 men,

Loureyo, Pablo Franco. Francisco [de la Guerra] is going to Los Angeles. Spanish. 3 pp.
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Letter 12
Dec. 12, 1866. San Francisco.

F. de la Guerra to Pablo concerning a deferred court case. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 368

Letter 13
June 1, 1869. Tapo.

F. de la Guerra to Pablo on cattle. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 368

Letter 14
July 25, 1870. Tapo.

F. de la Guerra to Pablo on horses and cattle. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 368

Letter 15
Aug. 8, 1870. Tapo.

F. de la Guerra to Pablo on Miguel's presence at Tapo and his going to Los Angeles. Santiago went to

San Buenaventura. Appended to this letter is a short one from S. de la Guerra on Harry Hopper as a

killer of cattle. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 368

Letter 16
Nov. 4. No year.

F. de la Guerra to Pablo on wheat to be sown. Asks for stricknine [sic] (strychnine) and writing paper.

Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 368

Letter 17
Aug. 14, 1872. Los Angeles.

A telegram from de la Guerra to Pablo on arrangement with Gaspar closed. [Charles] Fernald asks if

Pablo will sign the deed of Conejo on terms agreed upon. English. 1 p.

DLG 368

Letter 18
Aug. 15, 1872. Los Angeles.

F. de la Guerra to Pablo on Gaspar conveying to Pablo and conditions of sale. A telegram. English. 1

p.

DLG 369

Letter 1
July 8, 1858. Santa Barbara.

Francisco de la Guerra to Angustias de la Guerra Jimeno Ord on the settling of the estate of José

Antonio de la Guerra y Noriega. Signed by Pablo, Joaquín and Antonio María de la Guerra. Spanish.

1 p.

DLG 370

Letter 1
Febr. 23, 1860.

Francisco de la Guerra and others to Alfred Robinson on the death of Elena Robinson. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 371

Letter 1

Dec. 28, 1869. Sacramento.

Francisco de la Guerra to Andrés Pico on the condition of Juan José de la Guerra after his accident.

Telegram. English. 1 p.

DLG 372

Letter 1
Dec. 5, 1852. New York.

Francisco de la Guerra to his father, Francisco, on not receiving letters; inquires about his

grandfather; on his schooling. This is followed by a letter in English by M. G. Meade to Francisco

who states that his son was entrusted to him by a Father Ryder; complains of the son's behavior. Is

trying his best and asks his father to give his son good advice. Spanish and English. 2 pp.

DLG 372

Letter 2
Apr. 5, 1853. New York.

Francisco de la Guerra to his father sending greetings to the family. This is followed by a letter in

English by M. G. Meade stating that his son's conduct is improving but that he must be urged to do

better in studies. Spanish and English. 3 pp.

DLG 373

Letter 1
Oct. 15, 1855. San Julian.

Joaquín de la Guerra to Antonio María de la Guerra concerning cattle. Spanish. 2 pp.
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DLG 373

Letter 2
Aug. 29, 1860. Simi.

Joaquín to Antonio María on giving Francisco Pedés a draft for $50.00 on orders from Gregorio,

concerning a large container (gran pipa); Concepción's need for a laundress; on filling wine barrels.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 374

Letter 1
Apr. 24, 1858. Santa Barbara.

Joaquín to Francisco Arrellanes on permission for Francisco Abadia to kill two head of cattle.

Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 375

Letter 1
Sept. 24, 1850. Simi.

Joaquín de la Guerra to Pablo de la Guerra on sending twenty pesos in silver to the widow of

Miranda. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 375

Letter 2
May 26, 1863. Simi.

Joaquín to Pablo concerning the ranch at Simi; on squatters; his trip to Camulos; cattle, sheep, wool,

and on a dance held until two in the morning. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 375

Letter 3
Aug. 22, 1863. Simi.

Joaquín to Pablo on sending a letter through Antonio Flores of Los Angeles, who is interested in

Pablo's election to a judgeship. Francisco de la Guerra is in Tapo. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 375

Letter 4
Sept. 30, 1863. Simi.

Joaquín to Pablo on horses; Cuchichito left Simi for San Julian. Dr. [James] Ord is going to San

Buenaventura, interested in the election of Pablo. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 375

Letter 5
Oct. 18, 1863. San Buenaventura.

Joaquín to Pablo on his arrival by stagecoach and feeling ill. Pedro Carrillo arrived to work in favor

of Pablo and probably against [José María] Covarrubias politically. All Spaniards in Santa Barbara

are in favor of Pablo. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 375

Letter 6
June 2, 1865.

Joaquín to Pablo sending him noodles and soap, and on stagecoach services and prices. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 376

Letter 1

Jan. 25, 1863. Simi.

Joaquín de la Guerra to Francisco de la Guerra on sending wine by stagecoach; on money requested

by Alejandro and Gregorio, the Indian; Manuel, awaiting accounts; a molesting wind; an epidemic of

measles in Los Angeles, Juan Avila's life in danger; deaths from el escorpión in San Juan

[Capistrano?). Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 377

Letter 1
July 18. c. 1842. Santa Elena.

José Antonio de la Guerra y Noriega to José Antonio de la Guerra y Noriega, son to father,

complaining against a Padre José publicly discrediting him and asking that a written satisfaction be

made to restore his reputation. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 378

Letter 1
May 12, 1843. Santa Barbara.

José Antonio de la Guerra to the alcalde of Santa Barbara, asking to have the cattle brand of José

Carrillo changed since it conflicts with the [William] Hartnell cattle brand. José Antonio was in

charge of Hartnell's cattle ranch. Spanish. 1 p.



8/26/2009 Page 112

DLG 379

Letter 1
No date or year.

José Antonio to Antonio María de la Guerra on a business matter. Guillermo Carrillo is mentioned.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 379

Letter 2
Alamos. Without date or year.

José Antonio to Antonio describing his suffering in one leg and asking Antonio to take care of a

financial matter for him. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 379

Letter 3
Without date or year.

José Antonio to Antonio asking for certain articles. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 379

Letter 4
Oct. 14, 1859. Alamos.

José Antonio to Antonio expressing surprise at the amount of his taxes. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 380

Letter 1
July 3, 1860. Los Alamos.

José Antonio de la Guerra to Pablo de la Guerra concerning Rancho Los Alamos. Guillermo and

Miguel [de la Guerra] going to Simi. Santiago Ord is mentioned. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 381

Letter 1
July 5, 1848. Alamos.

José Antonio de la Guerra y Ortega to Miguel de la Guerra on cattle and asking for tobacco and

writing paper. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 382

Letter 1
Jan. 10, 1853. Alamos.

José Antonio de la Guerra to Pablo on cattle. Mentions Santa Ines and José Ruíz. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 382

Letter 2
Febr. 8, 1861. San Luis Obispo.

José Antonio to Pablo concerning persons looking for civil employment. Recommends Guillermo

Borland. Partly torn. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 383

Letter 1
Aug. 21, 1859. San Luis Obispo.

José Antonio de la Guerra to Antonio María on elections and political matters. Mentions [Romualdo]

Pacheco and [David C.] Broderick. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 384

Letter 1
Febr. 8, 1853. Georgetown, D. C.

José Ramón de la Guerra to Pablo de la Guerra on receiving mail from California; on going into

Wash., D.C., at the election of a new president; is happy at college and is learning English; is

planning a trip to New York with José Antonio during the summer. William Hartnell mentioned.

Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 384

Letter 2
Dec. 3, 1853. Georgetown, D.C.

José Ramón to Pablo sending greetings; is in good health; making progress in studies; other

Californians are also doing well. Mentions Father Ryder and José Antonio Jimeno, O.F.M., and

complains about not receiving letters from his father. Letter had large engraved, picture of

Georgetown College. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 384

Letter 3
Aug. 16, 1857. Georgetown, D.C.

José Ramón to Pablo on letters received, on the good treatment he is receiving and his loathing to

leave. On a proposed trip to New York. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 385

Letter 1
May 6, 1873. Santa Barbara.

Josefa Moreno de la Guerra to Pablo de la Guerra, a familiar letter to her husband. Mentions members

of the relationship. Spanish. 3 pp.
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DLG 385

Letter 2
May 3. No year mentioned. Simi.

Josefa to Pablo: a familiar letter. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 386

Letter 1
May 4, 1826. Liverpool, England.

Juan José de la Guerra to William Edward Petty Hartnell writing him a letter to be sent via the

Superior going to Lima, Peru; on various letters received; is getting along pretty well in studies; his

interest in geography. Sends greetings to Pablo de la Guerra and Juan Malarín. Photostat. from

Vallejo papers in BL. English. 3 pp.

DLG 386

Letter 2
Nov. 24, 1826. Liverpool.

De la Guerra to Hartnell congratulating him on his marriage to Juan's sister; is making progress in

English, French and Latin. Mentions also history, mathematics and chemistry. Photostat. from Vallejo

Collection, Bancroft Library. English. 2 pp.

DLG 386

Letter 3
March 19, 1827. Liverpool.

De la Guerra to Hartnell sending his letter by way of Lima; has not heard from home for fourteen

months; mentions the courses he is pursuing. Photostat. from Vallejo Collection, Bancroft Library.

English. 2 pp.

DLG 386

Letter 4
Apr. 28, 1827. Liverpool.

De la Guerra to Hartnell congratulating him on the birth of a son; on Hartnell's request to him to write

him either in English or French. Juan is tired of England and yearns for home. Photostat. from Vallejo

Collection, Bancroft Library. English. 2 pp.

DLG 386

Letter 5
Oct. 29, 1829. Stonyhurst College, England.

De la Guerra to Hartnell concerning his returning to California, his having been in three schools in

England-Liverpool, Shropshire and Stonyhurst. Learned drawing, dancing, drilling, playing the flute

and clarinet. On his way home, he hopes to stop at Jamaica, Vera Cruz, Mexico City, San Blas or

Acapulco, and then go on to Monterey. Has not yet met Hartnell's brother, Nathaniel, who lives in

London. Photostat from Vallejo Collection, Bancroft Library. English. 4 pp.

DLG 387

Letter 1
June 15, 1831. Mexico City.

Juan José de la Guerra to José Antonio de la Guerra y Noriega on meeting Carlos Carrillo in Mexico,

who treated him like a son; also María de Jesús Ortega and José Ramírez, and on meeting others in

Mexico after being in England for six years. Is living in the home of Dr. Ramón Fernández; on being

offered employment by Rafael Mangino; his departure for California uncertain, on hearing that three

ships had been built at Santa Barbara, and stating that 'in a short time California will not be the

poorest province of the republic." Mentions various relatives. Added to this is a letter by Ramón

Fernández to José de la Guerra, June 15, 1831, on his trip to Havana in 1829, and the events that took

place upon his return. Spanish. 14 pp.

DLG 388

Letter 1
March 5, 1833. Monterey.

Juan José de la Guerra to María Antonio Carrillo de la Guerra, his mother, on family affairs and

Guillermo and Teresa Hartnell. Mentions Fray Francisco García Diego y Moreno, O.F.M. Spanish. 3

pp.
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DLG 389

Letter 1
May 13, 1833. Convento de San Carlos de Monterey.

Juan José de la Guerra to Pablo de la Guerra recalling anniversaries of his past travels; mentions

Spear who has renovated his house, the consul being with him, and laughs over the rumor that he is

the sweetheart of the Indian, Victoria. Fragile and partly torn. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 390

Letter 1
Febr 5, 1861. Santa Ines.

Juan José de la Guerra to Pablo congratulating him on being elected president of the California

Senate. Mentions Ramón Hill and [John Gately] Downey. Partly torn and fragile. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 391

Letter 1
Oct. 4, 1864. Drum Barracks, Wilmington.

Juan José de la Guerra to Josefa Moreno de la Guerra telling her the sweets that she sent were enjoyed

by him and the men. Enclosed in the folder is typewritten copy on the character of Juan de la Guerra

by Harry Carr in his Los Angeles. English. 2 pp.

DLG 392

Letter 1
Jan. 1, 1873. San Francisco.

Juan José de la Guerra to Ascención Sepúlveda de la Guerra on family affairs. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 393

Letter 1
c. 1816.

María Gutiérrez Calderón de la Guerra to José Antonio de la Guerra y Noriega: a friendly family

letter. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 394

Letter 1
June 6, 1857. San Julian.

Miguel de la Guerra to Antonio de la Guerra on having branded 370 calves and having about 1,000

head of cattle in pasture. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 394

Letter 2
May 25, 1861.

Miguel to Antonio María on cattle. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 395

Letter 1
Oct. 17, 1857. San Julian.

Miguel de la Guerra to Pablo de la Guerra on an offer to sell 300 head of cattle. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 395

Letter 2
Nov. 8, 1857. San Julian.

Miguel to Pablo presenting a list of persons to whom objects and money were given. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 395

Letter 3

Dec. 27, 1857. San Julian

Miguel to Pablo on sending three mules to fetch barley and wheat and asking for seeds; on a heavy

rain for two days and nights accompanied by hail; on a Mass for their mother to be attended by

members of the family; on the slaughter of cattle. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 395

Letter 4
Jan. 13, 1858.

Miguel to Pablo on cattle at Las Cruces; on ranch hands and servants. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 395

Letter 5
Febr. 10, 1858.

Miguel to Pablo on cattle. Mentions Benjamin Juares. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 395

Letter 6
Febr. 10, 1858.

Miguel to Pablo on Meliton Bermudes going to see his family; he was one of those who was going to

kill Miguel in past years and is now repentant; mentions things his wife, Trinidad, is sending on.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 395

Letter 7
Apr. 2, 1862.

Miguel to Pablo on cattle. Spanish. 1 p.
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DLG 395

Letter 8
Oct. 15, 1862. Santa Clara.

Miguel to Pablo on a conversation with Colonel Cipriani. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 395

Letter 9
July 25, 1863. San Julian.

Miguel to Pablo on ranch matters; cutting timber; branding animals. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 395

Letter 10
c. 1863.

Miguel to Pablo on various articles; work on the ranch. Santiago and Angustias [de la Guerra]

mentioned. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 395

Letter 11
July 17, 1870. Simi.

Miguel to Pablo; A short note on the needs of the family. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 395

Letter 12
July 31, 1870. Santa Barbara.

Miguel to Pablo asking for a clarification on the ranches of Simi and Tapo, he claiming equal rights

with the three other inheritors. Mentions Antonio María [de la Guerra]. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 395

Letter 13
Aug. 26, 1870. Simi.

Miguel to Pablo on providing two horses for the latter. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 395

Letter 14
Sept. 1, 1870. Santa Barbara.

Miguel to Pablo on ranch matters and the family of the de la Guerras in relations to them. Complains

about his brother, Francisco. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 395

Letter 15
Aug. 29, 1873. La Gaviota.

Miguel to Pablo on the inability of Elena to be of assistance to Pablo. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 396

Letter 1
Sept. 4, 1860

Miguel de la Guerra to Francisco de la Guerra. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 397

Letter 1
July 26, 1839, Monterey.

Pablo de la Guerra to his father, José Antonio de la Guerra y Noriega on ending cloth and on the

sailing of the Maquinle [Mc Kinley?]. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 397

Letter 2
Nov. 8, 1839. Monterey.

Pablo to José on financial matters; on a barrel sent to Pablo. Mentioned are Don Estevan and [José

Antonio] Aguirre. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 397

Letter 3
Nov. 22, 1839. Monterey.

Pablo to José concerning a barrel; on delivery of wheat; and on an undisclosed matter between Juan

Malarín, José Antonio Aguirre, Pablo and José. Mentioned also are Don Estevan, D. A. Suñol, Mr.

[William Sturgis?] Hinckley and Doña Angustias [de la Guerra]. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 397

Letter 4
Dec. 21, 1839. Monterey.

Pablo to José concerning the latter's request for the removal of the remains of Juan de la Guerra, the

minister of the mission [San Carlos] assuring Pablo that he would do whatever was possible; on a

business matter in which [José Antonio] Aguirre and Manuel [Jimeno?] are mentioned; a commercial

matter in which Suñol and Hinckley are mentioned. The arrival of Capt. Paty on the 20th; Fray

Narciso Durán, O.F.M., [Alfred] Robinson and Don David [Spence?] mentioned. Spanish. 3 pp.
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DLG 397

Letter 5
March 6, 1851. San Jose.

Pablo to José on the importance of Pablo remaining in the Senate because of the advice he can give

his fellow senators; his success in having obtained from all everything he had requested; on the

passage of a law on titles to property for which holders can offer proof; he considers it a matter of

conscience to work for proper legislation; tells of the presence of the bishop in Monterey for two

days; of a seminary possibly to be located at Monterey. Partly torn. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 397

Letter 6
May 2, 1852. San Francisco.

Pablo to José on receiving the latter’s letter by way of the Ohio, and sending him the things he asked

for by way of the Fremont; sending wheat and lumber; on rice; women's shoes and titles; is going to

Sacramento. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 398

Letter 1
Febr 4, 1840. Monterey.

Pablo de la Guerra to María Antonia Carrillo de la Guerra, his mother; on receiving her letter through

Santiago; the presence of Angustias [de la Guerra] at El Alisal; the rising of the river and the receipt

of the six oranges she sent. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 398

Letter 2
March 25, 1843. Monterey.

Pablo to María Antonia on receiving the olives sent him; on money matters and salmon. Spanish. 3

pp.

DLG 399

Letter 1
Nov. 11, 1842. Monterey.

Pablo de la Guerra to José Abrego on orders from the governor to hand over to Abrego the

administration of the customs house. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 399

Letter 2
Nov. 16, 1842. Monterey.

Pablo to Abrego on the customs house transfer and sending him the corresponding documents. This is

a blotter. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 400

Letter 1
Nov. 10, 1842. Monterey.

Pablo de la Guerra to Manuel Micheltorena on his termination of office as port collector at the

customs house. Gives his views with regard to the office, salary, laws, etc. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 400

Letter 2
May 25, 1845. Monterey.

Pablo to Micheltorena on the division of powers made by the supreme government of Mexico in

making Pio Pico the political, and José Castro, the military head of Upper California. Pablo praises

Micheltorena for his service as governor. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 401

Letter 1
May 12, 1844.

Pablo de la Guerra to José Antonio de la Guerra y Noriega notifying him of his appointment as

collector of customs at the port of Santa Barbara. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 402

Letter 1
Apr. 2, 1845. Monterey.

Pablo de la Guerra to Pio Pico suggesting to him a better way of handling financial affairs at the

customs house. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 402

Letter 2
Apr. 15, 1845. Monterey.

Pablo to Pico on naming Juan Bautista Alvarado as administrator of the customs house while Pablo

remains the accountant. He explains the difficulties of the situation. Spanish. 3 pp.
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DLG 402

Letter 3
May 15, 1845. Monterey.

Pablo to Pico calling to the latter’s attention the powers granted him as governor by the national

constitution authorizing him to rename, suppress or appoint employees in the department of

California engaged in gathering general revenues. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 403

Letter 1
Apr. 27, 1845.

Pablo de la Guerra to Juan Bautista Alvarado on handing over to the latter the administration of the

customs house. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 403

Letter 2
Febr. 24, 1854. Benecia.

Pablo to Josefa [de la Guerra, his wife] apologizing for not writing sooner; is oppressed with things to

be done; had intended to write "letters in verse" to the ladies of the house; speaks of the death of

[William] Hartnell; was recently in Monterey; on article sent. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 403

Letter 3
Apr. 8, 1854. In the Senate.

Pablo to Josefa awaiting a letter from her which, if it does not arrive, he will come south and give her

"una buena pela de azotes." His desire to be with her and the children. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 403

Letter 4
Dec. 9, 1854. Mazatlán.

Pablo to Josefa on his embarcation from San Francisco for Mexico, a trip of fourteen days, the sea

being as calm as a lake the entire way. Angustias, his sister, was with him and suffered some

seasickness. Is going to San Blas. Will write from Tepic. Sends greetings to various persons. Spanish.

2 pp.

DLG 403

Letter 5
March 29, 1855. San Francisco.

Pablo to Josefa: a few lines of greeting. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 403

Letter 6
Apr. 9, 1855.

Pablo to Josefa on her saint's day anniversary; he expects to hear from her. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 403

Letter 7
Jan. 3, 1857. San Francisco.

Pablo to Josefa on medicine for Francisca; asks Josefa what she needs. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 404

Letter 1

June 3, 1845. Monterey.

Pablo de la Guerra to an unnamed Mexican official on his having been relieved of his post as

administrator of the customs house by [Pio] Pico, his successor being [Juan Bautista] Alvarado.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 405

Letter 1
Oct. 4, 1847. Yerba Buena.

Pablo de la Guerra to Jasper O'Farrell on Rancho Nicasio. Mentioned are Wilson and [Juan] Cooper.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 406

Letter 1
[1847?] Santa Barbara.

Pablo de la Guerra to the City Council of Santa Barbara proposing remedies for the good of the city;

the little care taken in the past; the lack of exact register of concessions for home sites; the lack of

beautification; the need for a primary school; need for the equitable contribution of taxes; and on the

increase of drunkenness. A blotter. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 406

Letter 2
[c. 1851.]

De la Guerra to the City Council of Santa Barbara concerning Santa Ines Mission land and Fray José

Joaquín Jimeno, O.F.M.; Judge Joaquín Carrillo and the Indian, Marcelino. A blotter. Spanish. 4 pp.
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DLG 406

Letter 3
July 8, 1852. Santa Barbara.

De la Guerra to the City Council requesting that two pieces of land, which had served as streets from

the de la Guerra home to the city, be returned to the family since the new city plan for streets will not

take them into account for their being built on by others, and would obstruct communication from the

house to other areas and would become a source of damage to the family as well as to other people.

This request was read in council meeting the same day. On the 10th it was replied to favorably

granting the land in fee simple at the price fixed by the appraisers in the prior year. A copy in pencil.

Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 406

Letter 4
Aug. 26, 1863. Santa Barbara.

De la Guerra to the City Council on land claims of a certain Rafael and Ramón Villalba. Spanish. 2

pp.

DLG 407

Letter 1
July 17, 1850. Santa Barbara.

Pablo de la Guerra to Antonio José Cot on a proposed meeting between the two. Ercilla mentioned.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 408

Letter 1
Aug. 28, 1850. Santa Barbara.

Pablo de la Guerra to José Antonio Aguirre on the latter's willingness to cancel all debts owed by

Cesareo Lataillade. Pablo is sending him Lataillade's account books. Pablo states he sold his Rancho

Nicasio. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 409

Letter 1
Aug. 5, c. 1850.

Pablo de la Guerra to Francisco de la Guerra concerning the children of José Antonio de la Guerra y

Noriega and their claims to hereditary rights. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 409

Letter 2
Jan. 10, 1855. Mexico.

Pablo to Francisco giving an account of his visit to the school in Mexico, both had attended in 1828;

likes Tepic; persons he met there, also in Guadalajara and Mexico City; describes the places he

visited and the meeting with his old teacher, Calderón, who remembered him and Francisco. Spanish.

4 pp.

DLG 409

Letter 3
June 6, no year. Los Angeles.

Pablo to Francisco on horses arriving and on an accident he had in a carriage injuring his shoulder.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 409

Letter 4
Oct. 19, no year. Simi.

Pablo to Francisco mentioning various relatives at the ranches; the death of Domingo at San Pedro.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 410

Letter 1
June 2, 1851. Monterey.

Pablo de la Guerra: minutes of a term of the U. S. District Court signed by Pablo as U. S. marshal.

English. 1 p.

DLG 411

Letter 1
June, 1851. Santa Barbara.

Pablo de la Guerra: draft of a letter the name of the addressee not given - but who was a friend in

Monterey, who had returned to Mexico; concerning an account against Mexico in favor of Cesareo

Lataillade. Stained and crossed out in many places. Spanish. 5 pp.
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DLG 412

Letter 1
Aug. 23, 1851. Santa Barbara.

Pablo de la Guerra to Andres Pico; a fragment of a letter of fourteen lines, on reading in the Los

Angeles Star of Aug. 16, concerning a favorable account of Pico's future election to the legislature.

Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 413

Letter 1
Dec. 14, 1851. Santa Barbara.

Pablo de la Guerra to Archibald Cary Peachy concerning a mare offered by Peachy to Pablo's brother;

on sending Peachy bottled wine from Tapo Ranch and from the north; Pablo calls [Luís] Vignes the

best wine maker in Los Angles; Pablo, in writing this letter in English, states that it is the first one he

wrote without the use of a dictionary or grammar; he calls Spanish "the language of God" and "The

English... the idiom of birds, I do not know it with such a perfection as I have neither beak nor

wings." Fragile and torn. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 414

Letter 1
Dec. 28, No year. Santa Barbara.

Pablo de la Guerra to his wife Josefa Moreno de la Guerra, on his arrival at Santa Barbara after a

tempestuous voyage at sea. The river at San Buenaventura brought down various houses. Spanish. 2

pp.

DLG 414

Letter 2
Jan. 14. No year.

Pablo to Josefa on his leaving by stagecoach; on meeting Chuchuchito; and sending money to pay the

servants. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 414

Letter 3
Sept. 23, No year.

Pablo to Josefa on his disappointment in not hearing from her; is looking for a cape she requested;

speaks of an expected child. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 414

Letter 4
March 19, 1851. San Jose.

Pablo to Josefa congratulating her on the feast of her patronal saint (St. Joseph); had expected a letter

from her and calls her "lazy" with regard to writing; sends greetings to others. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 414

Letter 5
Apr. 7, 1851. San Jose.

Pablo to Josefa on receiving her letter; hopes to come home by the end of April; calls San Jose "este

diablo de lugar." Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 414

Letter 6

March 28, 1856. In the Senate.

Pablo to Josefa on the anniversary of his return from Mexico; disappointed in not hearing from her;

his fight in the Senate and his "bitter" winter in the north; inquires concerning the children; his

observance of Holy Week and inquires as to how she had spent it. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 414

Letter 7
Febr. 4, 1857. San Francisco.

Pablo to Josefa thanking her for her letter; is sending her money through Alfred Robinson; is writing

in a hotel lobby; is going to Sacramento; sends greetings to various individuals. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 414

Letter 8
Febr. 18, 1857. Sacramento.

Pablo to Josefa chiding her for not writing; on Paulina's illness; sending money through [Alfred]

Robinson; his meeting with [José] Abrego, his cousin, Julia, and her husband. Spanish. 2 pp.
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DLG 414

Letter 9
March 4, 1857. Sacramento.

Pablo to Josefa on receiving her letter; his coming home will be delayed because of legislative

business which "is becoming more complicated each day"; asking her to send him one of her shoes or

the proper measurement; is "bored" at Sacramento, his days being spent between the legislature, his

room and the hotel; recalls his marriage of ten years, March 8, and states they have been happy years.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 414

Letter 10
March 19, 1857. Sacramento.

Pablo to Josefa on her patronal feast day, he being "sad and alone;" chides her again for not writing;

she has not even sent her shoe or its measurements; on Guadalupe Vallejo's arrival in Sacramento, to

whom he will give the citrón (lemon) sent by Josefa through José Thompson. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 414

Letter 11
Apr. 18, 1857. Sacramento.

Pablo to Josefa inquiring on the health of the family and on articles asked for. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 414

Letter 12
Dec. 31, 1857. Sacramento.

Pablo to Josefa sending greetings, he being "sad and solitary" in Sacramento, and asking her to send a

letter by every ship sailing north. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 414

Letter 13
Jan. 28, 1860. San Francisco.

Pablo to Josefa on receiving her letter; sending her pictures to be hung in the house; he envies her

dancing while he is both bored and busy and has not been able to find a Spanish calendar for

Apolonia. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 414

Letter 14
March 16, 1860. Sacramento.

Pablo to Josefa on their thirteenth wedding anniversary; on pictures sent; wonders why she asks for

almonds; and on members of the family. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 414

Letter 15
Dec. 22, 1860. San Francisco.

Pablo to Josefa on his safe arrival and his going to Sacramento; his inability to find the medicine

requested; heavy rains. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 414

Letter 16
Jan. 3, 1861. Sacramento.

Pablo to Josefa on his cold; heavy rains; his attending midnight Mass at the cathedral on Christmas;

the excellent singing and music; great concourse of people having never heard a better choir; he

supposes Los Pastores was presented in Santa Barbara; his inability to find the game wanted for

Pancha. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 414

Letter 17
Jan. 20, 1861. [San Francisco?)

Pablo to Josefa on his stomach troubles; is going to Sacramento; calling Josefa "Mrs. Lieutenant

Governor." "What shall we do with all these titles?" Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 414

Letter 18
Aug. 24, 1861. San Francisco.

Pablo to Josefa: is busy and his return to Santa Barbara is delayed. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 414

Letter 19
Aug. 28, 1861. San Francisco.

Pablo to Josefa comforting her on the loss of their daughter. Has a cold. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 414

Letter 20
Sept. 3, 1861. San Francisco.

Pablo to Josefa on his improved health; on the death of their daughter; his coming home is delayed.

Spanish. 2 pp.
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Letter 21
Jan. 25, 1862. San Francisco.

Pablo to Josefa on goods requested by her; the high price of sugar, cha (tea), coffee and eatables in

California; the cold weather and lack of sunshine. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 414

Letter 22
Jan. 31, 1862. San Francisco.

Pablo to Josefa on experiencing very cold weather; wants her to write. "You don't love me as much as

I love you. Am I not right?" Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 414

Letter 23
Sept. 2, 1863. Los Angeles.

Pablo to Josefa again chiding her for not writing; his recent arrival from San Bernardino; is going to

San Diego; his patrimony and the "Yankees;" sends messages. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 414

Letter 24
May 17, 1874. Los Angeles.

Pablo to Josefa stating that the arrival of her letter prevented him from marrying a young lady for he

considered his wife dead because of her silence; received the olives she sent; will be home by the end

of the month; mentions various members of the family. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 414

Letter 25
Sept. 25, 1864. Los Angeles.

Pablo to Josefa on not hearing from her nor from the children for twenty-five days; will be going to

Simi soon to see her; his recent arrival from San Bernardino and his trip to San Pedro; Juan's injury in

a military accident. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 414

Letter 26
Nov. 27, 1864. Los Angeles.

Pablo to Josefa on his aches and pains and recalling his forty-fifth birthday. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 414

Letter 27
Febr. 7, 1865. Los Angeles.

Pablo to Josefa on sending various household items and concerning a strong wind which he calls a

hurricane with its effects at Los Angeles and San Fernando; on clothes he needs. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 414

Letter 28
Febr. 19, 1865. Los Angeles.

Pablo to Josefa on letter received; and his sending oranges and lemons. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 414

Letter 29
Apr. 30, 1865. Los Angeles.

Pablo to Josefa on his arrival from San Diego the day before; will be in court in Los Angeles; on her

coming to Los Angeles; mentions several members of the family. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 414

Letter 30
May 11, 1865. Los Angeles.

Pablo to Josefa advising her that if she is coming south, to notify him by stagecoach. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 414

Letter 31
May 13, 1865. Los Angeles.

Pablo to Josefa on delayed letter received; on goods; on her proposed visit to Los Angeles, stating he

is court from 10 to 1 and from 2 to 6. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 414

Letter 32
Aug. 4, 1865. Los Angeles.

Pablo to Josefa on receiving no letter from Simi; on her probable coming to Los Angeles; the death of

Joaquín Ortega, father of Trinidad, caused by a horse at Rancho San Pascual; his visit to Trinidad.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 414

Letter 33
c. 1865.

Pablo to Josefa, receiving her letter; on sending her oil, paper and stamps. Spanish. 2 pp.
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Letter 34
c. 1865.

Pablo to Josefa on letter received; sending her shoes; is busy in court from 9 to 6 and sometimes until

11 p.m.; the arrival of Antonio María [de la Guerra]; Trinidad ill; regards to individuals. Spanish. 2

pp.

DLG 414

Letter 35
Jan. 21, 1866. Los Angeles.

Pablo to Josefa on the death of José Antonio and short family items. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 414

Letter 36
Jan. 24., l866. Los Angeles.

Pablo to Josefa on sending a package; is extremely busy; short family notices. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 414

Letter 37
Febr. 4, 1866. Los Angeles.

Pablo to Josefa on her dissatisfaction over a garment sent to her; on sending other items; is working

on the case of the killer of Carlysle; family items; weather; on Josef's possible visit to Los Angeles.

Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 414

Letter 38
Febr. 8, 1866. Los Angeles.

Pablo to Josefa on sending two crates of selected oranges and other items. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 414

Letter 39
Febr. 11, 1866. Los Angeles.

Pablo to Josefa complaining about not hearing from her; is sending her oranges and other items.

Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 414

Letter 40
Febr. 28, c. 1866. Los Angeles.

Pablo to Josefa sending her shoes and hoping to come to Santa Barbara soon. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 414

Letter 41
March 31, 1866. Los Angeles.

Pablo to Josefa on his arrival in Los Angeles; sending her items; is going to San Bernardino. Partly

torn. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 414

Letter 42
March 16, c. 1866. San Luis Obispo.

Pablo to Josefa on his arrival at San Luis Obispo, after twenty hours of travel; will have to remain

until the 25th or 26th and then go to San Bernardino, with an interval of a few days in Santa Barbara.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 414

Letter 43
Apr. 7, 1866. San Bernardino.

Pablo to Josefa on his arrival; inquires about Antonio María and Elena; will go to San Diego; the

stage going there only once a week; directing her to send his mail to Los Angeles. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 414

Letter 44
Apr. 15, 1866, Los Angeles.

Pablo to Josefa on his arrival from San Bernardino and San Diego; writing his letter at the [Agustín?]

Olvera home; his going to the theater. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 414

Letter 45
Apr. 24, 1866. Los Angeles.

Pablo to Josefa on a visit to the Foster family, about admitting Francisca as a boarder but there is no

room; the weather; the theater. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 414

Letter 46
Apr. 29, 1866. Los Angeles.

Pablo to Josefa on placing Francisca; will be in Los Angeles until the middle of June; Josefa may

come south whenever she wishes; mentions various members of the family; dances, theatre, picnics,

walks, etc. No sickness in Los Angeles. Spanish. 4 pp.
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Letter 47
Sunday, the 13th. [May, 1866?]

Pablo to Josefa explaining why he did not send writing paper; has been ill; is sending paper for

"smoking and writing." Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 414

Letter 48
May 16 [c. 1866] Los Angeles.

Pablo to Josefa on the slow delivery of the mail; carriers careless in the matter; details concerning

Josefa's proposed arrival in Los Angeles; was in court from 9 a.m. till 8 p.m. "without eating, drinking

or smoking." Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 414

Letter 49
June 17, 1866. Los Angeles.

Pablo to Josefa on his coming to Santa Barbara; on Trinidad and Tuna going to Camulos; asking her

why she did not write. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 414

Letter 50
Sept. 21, 1866. Los Angeles.

Pablo to Josefa on his arrival from San Bernardino; the warm weather; his new set of teeth; his going

to San Diego in a few days. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 414

Letter 51
Sept. 28, 1866. Los Angeles.

Pablo to Josefa on his arrival from San Bernardino; on his going to San Diego on the morrow; asking

her to send certain items to the latter place by Wells-Fargo; mentions individuals of the family.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 414

Letter 52
Oct. 9, 1866. San Diego.

Pablo to Josefa chiding her for sending him only one letter and thinking her dead, thought of someone

else replacing her; calls San Diego a "desert;" expects to be there the greater part of the month, then to

come to Santa Barbara and to return to Los Angeles. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 414

Letter 53
Oct. 10, 1866. Los Angeles.

Pablo to Josefa on receiving her letter by steamer, and still complaining about not hearing from her

oftener; on a money matter. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 414

Letter 54
Nov. 9, 1866. Los Angeles.

Pablo to Josefa on his being busily occupied; sending shoes; the bishop's [Tadeo Amat] presence in

Los Angeles; sends greetings; is glad she is enjoying many dances. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 414

Letter 55

Nov. 17, 1866. Los Angeles.

Pablo to Josefa explaining why shoes were not sent earlier; asks for news. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 414

Letter 56
Nov. 23, 1866. Los Angeles.

Pablo to Josefa sending items through the bishop; on shoes; on house being prepared for them by

January. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 414

Letter 57
Aug. 9, 1867. San Luis Obispo.

Pablo to Josefa on his arrival at San Luis Obispo; opens court daily at 8, and, with a short respite at

12, continues until 6 or 7 in the evening; he must be in San Bernardino by Sept. 3; on meeting his

mother-in-law; instructing Josefa not to allow their son, Carlos, to be out too much; San Luis Obispo

preparing for its fiesta (Aug. 19) with a bull fight, the bear already having been caught and placed in a

cage; the church is adorned within and without; people preparing for the great dance; concerning an

Indian woman who has a secret cure which she will reveal only for money; certain lawyers from

Monterey wanting him to go with them to "mi tierra vieja," and though tempted to go, will probably

not do so; is writing the letter during a court session. Spanish. 3 pp.
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Letter 58
Aug. 19, 1867. San Luis Obispo.

Pablo to Josefa on the fiesta; the church celebration being splendid, six priests in attendance, church

brilliantly decorated; two dances held in the evening; José Antonio ill at Los Alamos. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 414

Letter 59
June 28, 1868. Santa Barbara.

Pablo to Josefa on the childrens' examinations; hopes to be in Los Angeles on the 6th or 8th; asks for

cigars; mentions relatives; congratulates her on establishing a singing academy; on his illness.

Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 414

Letter 60
Jan. 17, 1870. San Bernardino.

Pablo to Josefa on his being there for some time; has not been too well; no rain since November; two

earthquakes the previous night, the first one quite strong but causing no damage. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 414

Letter 61
Sept. 5, 1871. San Luis Obispo.

Pablo to Josefa on hearing through [Ulpiano?] Yndart that she was coming to San Luis Obispo,

suggesting she come by way of La Gaviota, the "other road" (San Marcos?) making for a rough ride;

the illness of a certain Ramona; members of the family mentioned. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 414

Letter 62
Jan. 11, 1872. San Luis Obispo.

Pablo to Josefa on his difficulty on arriving there because of swollen streams; the damage of certain

houses; in Monterey, those of Juan Cooper, Alvarado, Don David [Spence], being overflowed by

water. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 414

Letter 63
Febr. 3, 1872. San Francisco.

Pablo to Josefa on his arrival after eight years of absence from San Francisco; the great changes

noticed; is going to Sacramento to see how legislation is functioning; on returning will see the brother

of Mr. Dibblee. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 415

Letter 1
Jan. 13, 1852.

Pablo de la Guerra to H. E. Robinson introducing to him his youngest brother, Antonio María, who

has been elected to the Senate in Pablo's place, and asking him to be of assistance to him. A second

page contains a verse in Spanish by Pablo to his goddaughter on her thirty-third birthday. Blotter.

English. 2 pp.

DLG 416

Letter 1

Jan. 26, 1852.

Pablo de la Guerra to Antonio María de la Guerra sending the letter via the Ohio, which left Santa

Barbara on the 24th; Miguel's arrival from Tapo; the death of about 400 sheep; repairing the house at

Las Pozas and on the improvement of their father's health. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 416

Letter 2
Jan. 10, 1853.

Pablo to Antonio María on the solemn baptism of his twin children in the sala of the house by the

bishop and in the presence of five friars; a communication containing falsehood (the matter of which

is not divulged); mention of Antonio María, [José María] Covarrubias, [John?] Vidal and [Ramón?]

Malo; on a murder committed near his house the day before; mention made of Hatch, a Patricio and

his brother, and a John in the affair; the deterioration of affairs in Santa Barbara. Spanish. 3 pp.
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Letter 3
Jan. 25, 1853. Santa Barbara.

Pablo to Antonio María on Joaquín [Carrillo's] appointment to an office the nature of which was not

disclosed and which set off a celebration, and, as a result of which, the office of county judge was left

vacant and for which office Pablo proposes [Charles] Fernald; the few Frenchmen in Santa Barbara

celebrating the accession of Napoleon III; personal security diminishing in the Santa Barbara area; a

native of Sonora killed in the Goleta area; the eldest son of Julian Foxen held as the suspected

murderer; Pablo's hope that a satisfactory bill be passed by the legislature to compel servants to fulfill

work for which they have been compensated beforehand; the defects in a recent law concerning court

of sessions; comments on a proposed bill sent to him by Antonio [María de la Guerra]; sends

greetings to Guadalupe and Salvador on choices for judgeships. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 416

Letter 4
Febr. 4, 1852. Santa Barbara.

Pablo to Antonio María and his disappointment in not hearing from him either by the Ohio or Sea

Bird; surprised that he voted for [David] Broderick; the lack of news concerning the activity of the

legislature; his disbelief that the election of [José María] Covarrubias was obtained with $500.00; the

resentment of some people over Antonio's election; Pablo's recommendations to Antonio; sending

greetings to Valle, Pico, and [Archibald] Peachy. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 416

Letter 5
March 10, 1853. Santa Barbara.

Pablo to Antonio María concerning a law about servants and masters; the proposed division of the

state, on proofs for Fernald's residence in Santa Barbara; on the 1851 law on courts of justice; his

opposition to petitions to courts being mandatory in English while the majority of people speak

Spanish; his request that the Los Angeles newspapers print California laws in Spanish; on a robbery

by Severo Encina of $2,000.00 from [Rodríguez de] Poli and his escape; the illness of Joaquinito

Carrillo and that of his father; Pablo to take down his last will and testament; Father [Francisco]

Sánchez, (O.F.M.) opening a retreat house in the home of [José Antonio] Aguirre on March 9; the

holding of a procession through the streets and the chanting of the Litany of All Saints. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 416

Letter 6
May 18, 1853. Santa Barbara.

Pablo to Antonio María complaining on not hearing from him; his trip to Los Angeles with Guila to

see her father; the Arroyo Burro affair in which an eviction took place after a battle between the

sheriff and John [Vidal] and his men, the former being killed and the sheriff wounded; his fear that

the affair will be interpreted as a conflict between Americans and Californians. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 416

Letter 7
Apr. 7, 1854. The Senate, Sacramento.

Pablo to Antonio María on his commission to visit the island, La Yegua; a grand ball given in

Sacramento on Apr. 4, by the citizens honoring the members of the legislature; the celebration held

on Apr. 6, on the completion of the water system with a parade and a theatrical program. Spanish. 4

pp.

DLG 416

Letter 8
Oct. 21, 1854. San Francisco.

Pablo to Antonio María asking him to obtain information for Angustias de la Guerra about steamship

travel to Mexico; his efforts to place Santiago Robinson at West Point; his going to Sacramento

concerning an negotiation; his interview with the bishop who was on retreat concerning the debt of

Jimeno; Camarillo's draft paid to Pablo; sending various articles; various financial matters. Mentioned

are María de San Julián, the Goliat, Raimundo, and the House of Palmer. Spanish. 3 pp.
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Letter 9
Nov. 11, 1854. San Francisco.

Pablo to Antonio María on his coming trip to Mexico with his sister, Angustias, accompanied perhaps

by Fray José Anzar, O.F.M. who is going to Colima, on the need for Antonio or Estevan Ortega to

come north to testify concerning certain legal papers; Father Santillán mentioned; a conversation with

Palmer; his willingness to supply money; sending four certificates confirming ownership of ranches

by their father, José de la Guerra y Noriega; and on a decision about La Colonia. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 416

Letter 10
Dec. 9, 1854. Mazatlán.

Pablo to Antonio María on his leaving San Francisco on Nov. 23 and arrival at Mazatlán on Dec. 6;

his going on to San Blas; the majority of people of Mazatlán Negroid rather than Indian; Angustias

being robbed in church on the 8th; disturbed conditions in Mexico; Padre Real's complaint about not

hearing from Padre [José María] González, O.F.M., of Santa Barbara; Mexico's bad financial

condition; Pablo's fear that he will not be able to collect what is owed to his father [Cesareo]

Lataillade. Mentions Manuel Olazagary, ministro de Hacienda. Incomplete. Partly torn. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 416

Letter 11

Jan. 6, 1855, Mexico City, Febr. 16, 1855, Havana, and March 25, 1855, San Francisco, all in one

letter of 22 pages.

Pablo to Antonio María on his stay with the Castaño family Tepic; his meeting with Sr. Somilla at

Guadalajara, as well as friends and relatives; visit to College of Zapopan where Father González

Rubio, O.F.M., of Santa Barbara became a Franciscan; his visit with Father [Francisco] Orruño,

O.F.M. of San Fernando College, Mexico City; and the friary of San Diego where he met Father

Jimeno, (a brother of the two Jimeno friars of California); treats of the Jimeno property case in behalf

of Angustias, and the difficulties involved; describes the trip from Guadalajara to Vera Cruz, through

Lagos, León, Guanajuato and Queretaro, while Mexico City is one of "soldiers, beggars and

ecclesiastics," a place of dirt and smells; his visits to churches and secular institutions; his meeting

with the poet, Zorilla; Puebla, Jalapa, and Castillo de Ulloa; compares the Mexicans with the Cubans,

the difference being that of "the solitude and quiet of a cemetery to the animation and. movement of a

dance;" reported invasion from New Orleans; his departure from Havana on El Dorado for Aspinwall

on Febr. 26; his stay in Panama City and his sailing on the Golden Age for San Francisco, where he

arrived on March 29; his going to Sacramento; Orruño's expectation to see the Jimeno Padres of

California in Mexico for they had written to him asking him to recall them for they had no promising

hope for the projected college in California. Spanish. 22 pp.

DLG 416

Letter 12
Apr. 14, 1855. Sacramento.

Pablo to Antonio María giving advice on San Julian Ranch; is to see [Archibald] Peachy concerning

Pablo's uncle, Anastasio [Carrillo]; on Hubs concerning schools; death of Santiago; law on census not

yet passed by the senate; [José María] Covarrubias' answer to Antonio concerning Gregorio; a law

passed against games of chance which will have a great effect on Santa Barbara; his success in killing

a bill the day before owing to a speech he gave, "a day of triumph for me and for all Californians,"

concerning land owned by those of Spanish descent, the galleries applauding and his opponents

congratulating him. The speech was delivered in English. Spanish. 3 pp.
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Letter 13
Jan. 29, 1856. The Senate.

Pablo to Antonio María on his trip to San Francisco to obtain money owed him by the government;

explains why he did not obtain certain items for his father; his watchfulness over the Know-Nothings;

his discussion on the Castro case with the Assembly; the absence of the archbishop from San

Francisco; his intention to write to him concerning a contract; Father [José María] González Rubio,

O.F.M. on the translation of laws from English to Spanish. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 416

Letter 14
March 15, 1856. The Senate.

Pablo to Antonio María concerning Lorenzana; his efforts to have mail delivered between Monterey

and Santa Barbara; on recommending young Dana; asking for a plan for El Rincon and Punta Gorda

since no appropriation can be given without it; his offering of a resolution for the return of school

funds to Santa Barbara; his sending a chest of root vines by Wells Fargo to be planted in his garden;

his preparing a speech; and the session of March 14 in which "I never heard discourses so beautiful,

eloquent and well reasoned." Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 416

Letter 15

Jan. 15, 1857. Sacramento.

Pablo to Antonio María sending letters through Nicolás Covarrubias and one for Angustias de la

Guerra through Father J. J. Jimeno, O.F.M.; Santa Barbara's loss of $1,000.00 for not sending in a

census of its children; a bill presented to him by Brent with regard to the San Julian Ranch; an

earthquake in Sacramento; a sum of $1,590.00 belonging to José Antonio not being placed in an

account book; lumber, fruits and flower seeds; on amortization and for a more economic regulation of

expenses for Santa Barbara County; the election of his friend, [David] Broderick; the election of

[William M. ] Guin; Covarrubias dealing with Broderick; on a lighthouse for Santa Barbara; his

intention of recommending one for El Cojo; Raimundo's vote for [John Charles] Fremont and its

consequences; Patricio's pardon by the governor. Incomplete. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 416

Letter 16
March 17, 1860. Sacramento.

Pablo to Antonio María on receipt of a resolution of the supervisors; Merritt senator from Tulares and

Buena Vista who is opposed to a change in territorial limits. Incomplete. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 416

Letter 17
March 31, 1860. Sacramento.

Pablo to Antonio María on several family matters; the opposition of Senator Merritt to the inclusion

of Ranchos San Emigdio and Cuyama in Santa Barbara County; a bill involving $15,000.00 passed by

the Senate but creating a battle in the Assembly; on receiving the brandy and olives sent him; a

certain Lies named as translator; the [Cesareo] Lataillade claim being submitted to the Supreme

Court. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 416

Letter 18
Apr. 2, 1860. Sacramento.

Pablo to Antonio María on heavy rains; the fight in the Assembly over Pablo's $15,000.00 bill; his

going to San Francisco. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 416

Letter 19
Dec. 22, 1860. San Francisco.

Pablo to Antonio María, on the proposed sale of cattle at Simi; on the political state of affairs between

the North and the South in the east; things in California rather quiet; his possible candidacy for

president of the Senate; on money for "China;" result of the Supreme Court decision on de la Guerra's

claim against Lataillade; suggestion offered by lawyers; is going to Sacramento; [Archibald] Peachy's

request for olives. Spanish. 4 pp.
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Letter 20
Jan. 3, 1861. Sacramento.

Pablo to Antonio María on heavy rains; midnight Mass on Christmas at the cathedral; the excellent

orchestra and newspaper comments; his joy over Antonio's success with all the 'Pastores;' the

enjoyment of all over the dance while he is "more sad than happy:" four candidates for the presidency

of the Senate including himself who has the better prospect; a court house for Santa Barbara; on

cattle; the arrival of Joaquín Estrada in San Francisco; the bad state of affairs in the southern states;

the secession of South Carolina; wonders whether California will go free or slave; Cass renouncing

his position as secretary of state, with Black, the attorney general succeeding him, Stanton becoming

attorney general who is a friend of Pablo; is asking the latter by pony express for the suspension of La

Colonia; Cuchichito to follow directives at Simi and Las Pozas with regard to surveying. Spanish. 5

pp.

DLG 416

Letter 21
Jan. 20, 1861. San Francisco.

Pablo to Antonio María on the "Municipal Bill;" on the proposed impeachment of "our celebrated

judge;" Pablo's comment; on surveying Simi Rancho; heavy rains; Pablo's election as lieutenant

governor and president of the Senate; [John Gatley] Downey not inclined to accept the post of

senator; South Carolina's secession from the Union; the good reaction of the California press on

Pablo's new offices; the need for selling cattle; asking for fruit juice and wine; the bad condition of

his stomach. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 416

Letter 22
March 16, 1861. Senate, Sacramento.

Pablo to Antonio María on the coming election, Pablo not knowing whether he will be senator or

governor; on a claim made by a sheriff; on Black's claim for money and More's refusal to pay him;

the National Senate's Law changing the postal route through central U. S.; on Fernald's sending two

bills, one to reincorporate Santa Barbara, the other, the legalization of homesites; Chato's efforts to

have the judge of San Luis Obispo removed. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 416

Letter 23
Apr. 17, 1861. Sacramento.

Pablo to Antonio María on his not recalling owing money to Abadia; the procurator general's inability

to act on "The River case" for lack of certain documents; Ranchos El Conejo and Simi to be surveyed;

Cuchichito and Miguel [de la Guerra] to be ready to slaughter cattle since each head can bring

eighteen to twenty dollars; present politics rather murky; [Abraham] Lincoln is said to be considering

naming a Californian for a mission to South America, perhaps Pablo himself or more probably

[Romualdo] Pacheco. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 416

Letter 24
May 2, 1861. The Senate.

Pablo to Antonio María concerning a law with regard to the debt of [Cesareo] Lataillade; requests

information concerning El Rio; Latham and McDougle going to an extraordinary session in July;

Assembly passing a resolution to close its session on the 13th while the senate is inclined to postpone

the date; Pablo's passing a bill giving Guillermo the privilege for fifty years to introduce water into

Santa Barbara; predicts a horrible, fraternal war in California, with town against town, people against

people; the march of armies in the east; the belief that the fifteen slave states will unite in a common

cause; the inevitability of war; opinions in Sacramento; Pablo advising Santa Barbarans not to take

sides. Spanish. 4 pp.
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Letter 25
May 6. No year.

Pablo to Antonio María on the latter's letter concerning pitch (brea) and another from [Charles E.]

Huse and [Charles] Fernald on the same; a bill concerning the same has already been passed in the

Senate and is being considered in the Assembly; Pablo's comments; is to offer a bill to regulate a

matter between Gaspar and [Cesareo] Lataillade; the matter of alleviation for ranchers cannot be

considered for lack of time, the session probably closing on May 13. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 416

Letter 26
July 17, 1861. San Francisco.

Pablo to Antonio María on money matters; cattle; his desire to see Pacífico Ord; [Alfred] Robinson's

presence in San Francisco; on lumber for repairing the house at Tapo. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 416

Letter 27
July 30 [1861?] San Francisco.

Pablo to Antonio María on money matters. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 416

Letter 28
Sept. 2, 1861. San Francisco.

Pablo to Antonio María on the latter's request for forming a military company, a cavalry unit of 500

men; the political situation in California; his fear that the secessionists will have a strong vote.

Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 416

Letter 29
June 6, 1862. San Julian.

Pablo to Antonio María on implements needed; things to be sent by stage to Gaviota, Santiago's

coming to the ranch; tells him to write to Gaspar on the result of the commission given to Bebeleche.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 416

Letter 30
June 10 [1862] San Julian?].

Pablo to Antonio María wondering why Santiago has not come; cites things he needs; repeats his

request to write to Gaspar and asks him to open his letters and to inform him immediately of anything

important. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 417

Letter 1
March 21, 1853. Santa Barbara.

Pablo de la Guerra to Joaquín Estrada on a past election and on a transfer of cattle from Estrada to

Thompson for which a certificate is being sent. Spanish. l p.

DLG 417

Letter 2
Oct. 23, 1853. Santa Barbara.

De la Guerra to Estrada praising him for his activity in a recent election in the San Luis Obispo area;

referring to a certain Señor Nieblas; on a dance; mentions Joaquín Carrillo. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 417

Letter 3
Aug. 8, 1855. Santa Barbara.

De la Guerra to Estrada announcing that he has decided to run for the Senate again but only on the

condition that he will be supported by the people of San Luis Obispo County. Earlier he had been

supported chiefly by the people of Santa Barbara County. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 417

Letter 4
Oct. 13, 1858. Santa Barbara.

De la Guerra to Estrada on receiving a check for $1,000.00; letter for Antonio María de la Guerra and

one for McGuire with a check for $4,080.00 which he is returning for the latter is not available; and

on a certificate from [Henry] Carnes asked for by Estrada. Incomplete. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 417

Letter 5
Jan. 20, 1859. Santa Barbara.

De la Guerra to Estrada on sending a message by his nephew, Santiago [Jimeno], asking for $630.00

he owed to de la Guerra and for which he is asking because of extreme necessity. Spanish. 1 p.
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DLG 418

Letter 1
Aug. 21, 1854.

Pablo de la Guerra to Miguel de la Guerra concerning an account with [Antonio de la Palma y?] Mesa

and on cattle. Mentioned are: Luís Silver and [Nicholas P.] Twist. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 418

Letter 2
c. 1855

Pablo to Miguel on cattle. Mentioned are: Pacífico [Ord], Moore, Emigdio, Cuchichito and Rancho

San Julian. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 418

Letter 3
Apr. 30, 1856. Santa Barbara.

Pablo to Miguel supposing the latter to be at Alisal with the Hartnells; on sale of cattle; Pablo's

intention to sail north with Cuchichito; money from sale to be deposited with Palmer, Cook and

Company. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 418

Letter 4
Aug. 25, 1856. Santa Barbara.

Pablo to Miguel on 200 head of cattle leaving Rancho San Julian under Pancho Leiva; asking for

certain household items for Don Cesareo [Lataillade (THIS COMMENT ADDED, PERSON

UNKNOWN- no, he was dead by this time, his son?)]; ordering where money is to be sent; a pump

for his well. Mentioned are: [Gasper?] Oreña, [Henry Wagner] Halleck, and the House of Palmer.

Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 418

Letter 5
Sept. 15, 1856. Santa Barbara.

Pablo to Miguel on learning through Eugenio Leis that Miguel was in San Jose; that cattle sent north

were not sold; that meat was cheap in San Francisco, and that a third herd will not be sent north;

money matters; articles needed. Mentioned are Halleck, Wells Fargo, House of Palmer and Cook,

[A.F.] Hinchman, José Antonio and Don Cesareo. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 418

Letter 6
Aug. 5, 1858.

Pablo to Miguel on money from Thomas More; cattle; [Alfred] Robinson; Augustine Mongand; his

proposed trip to Los Angeles; need for horses; letting some ranch helpers leave. Mentioned is Gaspar.

Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 418

Letter 7
Sept. 9, 1862. Santa Barbara.

Pablo to Miguel chiding him for not writing and for saying nothing substantial when he did; business

negotiations; the lack of patents for Ranchos El Conejo, Las Pozas and La Espada, which have been

surveyed; cattle; measles at Simi; death of Santiago Sánchez at El Rio Mentioned are the Murphys

(Morfis) Falkner and Bell, Gaspar, Lynch, Mesas, Cooks, Abadies, Cavana and [Jose?] Lobero.

Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 418

Letter 8
Apr. 16 [1863].

Pablo to Miguel on oxen; the closing of slaughter houses; shipment of cattle. Mentioned are Nicolás,

Rochín, and Dos Pueblos. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 418

Letter 9
July 29, 1863.

Pablo to Miguel on awaiting Cuchichito's arrival by stagecoach; his near departure for San Francisco

on a legal matter, cattle; horse herds; on Arrellanes inquiring as to whether he should go to San

Julian. Mentioned are Don Abel [Stearns], Don Eugenio [Leis?] Valentín Arrellanes, Antonio María

de la Guerra and Bebeleche. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 418

Letter 10
Apr. 18, 1863.

Pablo to Miguel on cattle and oxen. Spanish. 2 pp.
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DLG 418

Letter 11
March 10, 1870. Santa Barbara.

Pablo to Miguel on his recent return from San Franciso; on Doña Teresa [Hartnell] selling her

patrimony to a Mr. Smith, which he considers the most disgraceful thing he has heard in his life.

Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 418

Letter 12
July 29, 1870. Santa Barbara.

Pablo to Miguel concerning his agreement for the latter to receive certain numbers of head of cattle

and horses, and Francisco [de la Guerra] going to Simi to hand them over to him. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 418

Letter 13
Without date.

Pablo to Miguel on his going to Simi with a few lines concerning the family. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 418

Letter 14
Without date.

Pablo to Miguel on a letter for Antonio María de la Guerra who is in Simi; inquiring what Miguel

wants; hears that he is going to buy horses and tells him not to do so. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 419

Letter 1
[C. Jan. 1855]

Pablo de la Guerra to Juan Nepomuceno Martínez de San Miguel concerning the decree of March 12,

1828; on passports and the acquiring of property rights by unnaturalized foreigners; asking if the acts

of [Governor Manuel] Micheltorena were at anytime approved or disapproved by the supreme

government. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 420

Letter 1
May 11, 1855. Sacramento.

Pablo de la Guerra to P. L. Smith concerning money due to the U. S. Government while Pablo was

acting as U. S. marshal. English. 1 p.

DLG 421

Letter 1
1857. Santa Barbara.

Pablo de la Guerra to David C. Broderick on the Indian policy of the U. S. Government. He cites the

many depredations by Indians stealing horses prior to 1853, but which have ceased since the Indian

reservation has been established at Tejon. Discusses the geographical position of Tejon and urges its

preservation since thereby Santa Barbara and other areas would be protected. Asks him to use his

influence for its retention. Draft by Joseph Lancaster Brent. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 421

Letter 2
Febr. 4, 1858.

De la Guerra to Broderick sending him an enclosed petition of Anastasio Carrillo, which had been

sent to Washington during the term of Weller's senatorship. It was a claim for damage done to

Carrillo's property by the U. S. erecting a lighthouse on his land, which caused wild cattle to be

frightened by the light and the sound of the bell. Carrillo is asking $10,000.00 and certain land in

recompense if the government settles soon, more if it delays. Pablo asks Broderick's advice and

assistance, Carrillo is seventy years old and can ill bear his loss. He is writing to [William M.] Gwin,

Scott and Kilben to confer with Broderick. A draft. English. 3 pp.

DLG 422

Letter 1
May 23, 1858. Santa Barbara.

Pablo de la Guerra to Henry Mellus correcting the latter with regard to a conversation held earlier

concerning an account transferred to Mellus by Alfred Robinson. Spanish. 2 pp.
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DLG 423

Letter 1
Febr. 8, 1859. Santa Barbara.

Pablo de la Guerra to Henry Wager Halleck on sending his documents and an opinion by Eugenio

Leis as an aid in a suit against Ord. The Santa Barbara Court has sent the case to the Fourth District,

Charles Huse has offered to write to Halleck in detail on the matter. The case is a matter of honor as

well as of money. Pablo states that Ord's demands are inflammatory to the de la Guerra family and

derogatory to the memory of his father, José de la Guerra y Noriega. Asks to be advised if the

Supreme Court will give a decision. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 424

Letter 1
Nov. 20, 1859. San Francisco.

Pablo de la Guerra to Elena Robinson on her return to health; envies her being in Los Angeles while

he is on the "pestilential streets" of San Francisco; his attendance at a tertulia. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 424

Letter 2
Dec. 18, 1859. Santa Barbara.

De la Guerra to Elena Robinson on her recovery from illness; his trip to San Francisco; his stopover

at Monterey; his occupations and visits in San Francisco; attendance at the theater and visit to the

archbishop [Alemany]. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 425

Letter 1
March 2, 1860. Sacramento.

Pablo de la Guerra to Fray José María González Rubio, O.F.M., concerning the transfer of the

remains of Elena Robinson; on the case of the Santa Barbara friars being handled in Rome; his

reaction to the agitated legislative and political life he is leading. Mentions fray Francisco Sánchez,

O.F.M. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 426

Letter 1
Aug. 22, 1860. Santa Barbara.

Pablo de la Guerra to Nicolás Hubert on correcting the calumnies against the Californians, that they

cannot be believed when testifying under oath. Pablo explains that not all are well educated, that the

rancheros have a language all their own, are not properly understood by court interpreters and are

confused in court. Defends his own position and cites his position with regard to the American

invasion. He is the defender of his people and they trust him. Spanish. 8 pp.

DLG 427

Letter 1
March 10, 1862. Santa Barbara.

Pablo de la Guerra to Edwin McMasters Stanton, Secretary of War asking for the dismissal of an

appeal presented by the U. S. Government confirming the title of the tract known as "El Rio de Santa

Clara," then known as "La Colonia," The grant had been made by [Juan Bautista] Alvarado

twenty-five years previously to some old soldiers who had served under Capt. José de la Guerra y

Noriega, who were in possession before American sovereignty and who cannot understand why the

government withholds title to their claims. Pablo considers the claims just, valid and equitable. He

asks Stanton to use his influence in obtaining a dismissal of the appeal. English. 2 pp.

DLG 428

Letter 1
Dec. 4, 1862. Santa Barbara.

Pablo de la Guerra to the school trustees of the district of Santa Barbara concerning the request of

certain people opposed to the appointment of Mr. [Augustine?] Mondrán as a teacher because he is

considered incompetent. De la Guerra states that no one may be appointed unless he has certified

proof of his competence and that it appeared that Mondrán had no such certification for the prior year.

Spanish. 1 p.
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DLG 429

Letter 1
March 22, 1863. Santa Barbara.

Pablo de la Guerra to John Cook on Gaspar de la Guerra's indebtedness for $1000.00, or $11,000.00,

which cannot now be paid owing to the drought; the inability to sell cattle; the fear of cattle and sheep

dying for want of pasture. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 430

Letter 1
3 June 7, 1863.

Notice of a claim on the San Dominique copper, gold and silver quartz lode in the Soledad mining

district of Los Angeles County. Signed by Pablo de la Guerra, Pacífico Sánchez and Francisco

Sánchez. Contemporary copy. English. 1 p.

DLG 431

Letter 1
July 5, 1864. Santa Barbara.

Pablo de la Guerra to Joaquín Castaños, his nephew, commenting on the letter the latter sent him in

verse. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 432

Letter 1
Aug. 22, 1864. Santa Barbara.

Pablo de la Guerra concerning land of the customs house at Monterey, accompanied by a map.

Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 433

Letter 1
Nov. 13, 1868. Santa Barbara.

Pablo de la Guerra to Governor Henry Huntley Haight concerning Patricio Bonilla's going to

Sacramento with a petition signed by many respectable people of Santa Barbara to plead for his son,

Francisco Xavier, who had been convicted of murder and who had been sentenced to death by Pablo.

The latter sent along the court proceedings and added the new circumstance that Patricio had

delivered up his own son to the court after he had taken a horse and fled, and was in the open country

for more than a month. Pablo calls Patricio a very honest man. Pablo asks the governor to exercise his

clemency. English. 3 pp.

DLG 434

Letter 1
Nov. 27, 1868. Santa Barbara.

Pablo de la Guerra to Ascención (Sepúlveda) Mott; a friendly family letter ending with some lines

written in verse. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 435

Letter 1
Aug. 1869. San Luis Obispo.

Pablo de la Guerra to Doña Mierdolina describing his recent trip from Santa Barbara to San Luis

Obispo over the San Marcos Pass[?], describing the scenery in almost poetic detail. Half of one page

is missing. Spanish. 7 pp.

DLG 436

Letter 1
March 8, 1873. Santa Barbara.

Pablo de la Guerra to Asa Adams on sending a person to reclaim a stray steer of de la Guerra's that

had wandered into Adam's property. English. 1 p.

DLG 437

Letter 1
Without date.

Undated draft of a letter to an unknown person discussing points of logic. In hand of de la Guerra.

One page is in pencil. In hand of de la Guerra. Spanish. 5 pp.

DLG 437

Letter 2
Without date.

An undated draft written in poor ink with lines crossed out. Incomplete. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 437

Letter 3
[c. 1871?]

Undated draft of a letter part of which is faded or written with poor ink addressed to "mi buen amigo."

Describes a feria held for the Sisters of Charity. Spanish. 8 pp.
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DLG 438

Letter 1
Without date.

Translation into Spanish of an article entitled "The Capture of Monterey, to the Editors," which

apparently appeared in an American newspaper [Oct. 20, 1842]. It concerns the taking of Monterey

by Commodore Jones. In hand of de la Guerra. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 438

Letter 2
Without date.

An act to amend an act entitled "an act to incorporate the City of Santa Barbara passed Apr. 18,

1860." In hand of Pablo de la Guerra. English, 1 p.

DLG 438

Letter 3
Without date.

Pablo de la Guerra's speech re a resolution concerning California land titles. First page missing.

English. 8 pp.

DLG 438

Letter 4
Without date.

Page of names of California officials, Pearson B. Reading being governor. In hand of de la Guerra.

Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 439

Letter 1
Sept. 2 1865. Ft. Yuma.

Santiago de la Guerra to Miguel de la Guerra on military affairs, desertions, on hearing no news of

elections. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 440

Letter 1
July 21, 1872. Tapo Ranch.

Santiago de la Guerra to Pablo de la Guerra on Conejo Ranch; sheep; is going to San Buenaventura.

Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 441

Letter 1
May 1, 1829. Novales, Spain.

Antonia Manuela de la Guerra ("Chona") to José de la Guerra y Noriega on the death of her mother;

her need for money; the family circumstances. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 442

Letter 1
March 6, 1859. Novales.

Gaspar de la Guerra y Noriega, brother of José Antonio de la Guerra y Noriega, to Pablo de la Guerra

on receiving the news of his brother's death; on property disagreements in the de la Guerra family;

comments on the last letter Gaspar had received from his brother; Gaspar's intention to marry a

second time, the bride to be being Francisca Murga; on inheritance; is sending his letter by way of

Havana through Juan José Murga. Spanish. 5 pp.

DLG 442

Letter 2
Apr. 4, 1859. Novales.

Gaspar to Pablo on the death of his brother, José Antonio de la Guerra y Noriega; advising his

nephews against strife in property matters; on his own needs; his second marriage; in case of his death

his wife would send him family documents; on the use of family heritage. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 442

Letter 3
Oct. 1, 1860. Santander.

Gaspar to Pablo on money sent to him; his extreme need; his supposition that his brother, José

Antonio, left something for the chapel in Novales, which is quite deteriorated. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 442

Letter 4
July 20, 1818. Santa Barbara.

De la Guerra to Solá concerning the habilitación; mentions Padre [Marcos Antonio] de Victoria,

O.F.M. and a new church; the Cosak. Spanish. 2 pp.
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DLG 442

Letter 5
June 12-21, 1819. Santa Barbara.

De la Guerra to Solá on the former's affliction of his eyes; on selling victuals to an American ship; on

supplying a guard for Mission San Gabriel; on guarding four Indian prisoners; his going to Santa

Ines; on providing a watchtower near the Colorado River; an insurgent destined for Mission San

Fernando; mentioned are corporals Villa and Dámaso Rodríguez. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 442

Letter 6
June 28, 1819. Santa Barbara.

De la Guerra to Solá on the death of Rufino Leyba and Mariano Cota during the Amajaba Indian

attack at Mission San Buenaventura; matters with regard to Mission San Fernando. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 443

Letter 1
Aug. 1, 1806. Monterey.

List of the Monterey presidio company drawn up by a secretary and signed by José Antonio de la

Guerra y Noriega. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 444

Letter 1
Dec. 22, 1818. San Diego.

José de la Guerra y Noriega to José Joaquín Arrillaga concerning two Indians of Mission San Diego

accused of murdering the majordomo, Pedro Alvarez. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 445

Letter 1
c. Oct. 1815. Santa Barbara.

José de la Guerra y Noriega replying to Fray Ramón Olbés, O.F.M., concerning his inability to

provide what was requested. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 446

Letter 1
1815-1819. Santa Barbara.

José de la Guerra y Noriega to Governor Pablo Vicente de Solá: a letter book containing drafts and

copies of official communications. Pages 1 and 2 missing. Spanish. 47 pp.

DLG 446

Letter 2
July 20, 1818. Santa Barbara.

De la Guerra to Solá concerning exchanges of letters between them, and pleading for a certain

Domingo that he be replaced in the military. Spanish. 14 pp.

DLG 447;

Letter 1
July 6, 1816. Santa Barbara.

José de la Guerra y Noriega to the missionaries of San Buenaventura and San Fernando requesting

that 500 bows and arrows be manufactured and be held in readiness in case of an emergency. This

letter contains the replies of Fray José Señán, O.F.M., of San Buenaventura (July 8, 1816) and of Fray

Pedro Múñoz, O.F.M., of San Fernando (July 10, 1816). Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 448

Letter 1
Oct. 7, 1818. Santa Barbara.

José de la Guerra y Noriega to the missionaries from San Buenaventura to San Diego warning them

of a prepared attack upon California from the Sandwich Islands by vessels of Hippolyte Bouchard,

and asking them to be on the alert. This letter is signed by the missionaries of said missions between

Oct. 7 and 9, 1818. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 449

Letter 1
Oct. 11, 1818. Santa Barbara.

José de la Guerra y Noriega to the missionaries of San Buenaventura and San Fernando,

communicating to them the provisions to be made as ordered by Governor Solá in expectation of the

Bouchard invasion. This letter is signed by Fray José Señán, O.F.M., of San Buenaventura, Oct. 11,

1813, and acknowledged by Fray Marcos Antonio de Victoria, O.F.M., of San Fernando, Oct. 12,

1818. Spanish. 4 pp.
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DLG 449

Letter 2
June 28, 1819. Santa Barbara.

De la Guerra to [Governor Pablo Vicente] Solá on the deaths of the veterans, Rufino Leyba and

Mariano Cota, on May 30, 1819, at Mission San Buenaventura, killed by pagan Indians and on the

insubordination of the Indians of Mission San Fernando. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 449

Letter 3
June 12, 1819.

De la Guerra to Solá on the bad condition of his eyes; the sale of foodstuffs to an American schooner;

on the question of more guards for Mission San Gabriel and Los Angeles; on four Indian prisoners at

Santa Barbara; his going to Santa Ines; on an insurgent kept at Mission San Fernando; permission for

a corporal Villa. This document also contains a letter of June 21, 1819, of de la Guerra to Solá on

military matters. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 450

Letter 1
Oct. 11, 1818. Santa Barbara.

José de la Guerra y Noriega to the missionaries of Santa Barbara, Santa Ines and Purisima as in the

above letter. This is acknowledged by Fray Antonio Ripoll, O.F.M., Santa Barbara, Oct. 11, 1818,

and by Fray Mariano Payeras, O.F.M., Purisima, Oct. 12, 1818. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 451

Letter 1
Nov. 22, 1818. Santa Barbara.

José de la Guerra y Noriega to José Narváez authorizing him to pay certain amounts of money to

Pedro Mora, scribe at San Blas, and to the Rev, Agustín Fernández. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 452

Letter 1
Dec. 9, 1818. Santa. Barbara.

De la Guerra to Bouchard on an exchange of prisoners. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 453

Letter 1
March 6, 1820.

José de la Guerra y Noriega to Juan Ruíz de Apodaca, Conde de Venadito, viceroy of New Spain, on

the former being made habilitado general of the California presidios. Mentioned are Gervasio

Argüello and Colonel José Ignacio Ormaechea. There is also a contemporary copy of the same letter.

Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 453

Letter 2
March 6, 1820.

De la Guerra to Apodaca concerning money and clothes for the troops. There is also a contemporary

copy of the same. Spanish. 7 pp.

DLG 453

Letter 3

Apr. 8, 1820. Mexico.

De la Guerra to Apodaca on asking permission to return to Guadalajara, and asking for the books of

Colonel Ormaechea. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 453

Letter 4
Without date or year.

Draft of a letter from de la Guerra to Apodaca concerning salary for Governor Solá who is in need.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 454

Letter 1
Jan.-Febr. 6, 1821. Santa Barbara.

Fragment of a diary by José de la Guerra y Noriega concerning the weather. On a conjugate leaf there

is a petition of Francisco [García?] of the Santa Barbara presidial company asking for an investigation

of his conduct. Spanish. 4 pp.
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DLG 455

Letter 1
Apr. 18,1821. Santa Barbara.

Certificates of the circumstances attending the deaths of Corporal Rufino Leyva and Mariano Cota of

the Santa Barbara Company at the hands of the Colorado River Indians at Mission San Buenaventura,

May 30, 1819. Signed by de la Guerra. This document comprises two drafts and a signed document.

Following the draft is an incomplete draft of a letter from de la Guerra to Solá, July, c. 1821. Spanish.

5 pp.

DLG 456

Letter 1
June 15, 1821. Santa Barbara.

Draft of a letter of de la Guerra to Manuel Varela on commercial matters. Mentioned are: Juan

Cubillas, Mateo Uruchurtu and Pedro Rodríguez. This document also contains a letter to Pedro

Rodríguez on the same matter. Mentioned are El Señoriano and Manuel Dazela. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 457

Letter 1
Febr. 15, 1822. Santa Barbara.

José de la Guerra y Noriega to Carlos Antonio de Jesús Carrillo on receiving a notice from a corporal

at San Buenaventura and asking Carrillo to investigate a crime and report on it. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 458

Letter 1

Nov. 11, 1822. Santa Barbara.

José de la Guerra y Noriega to Manuel García as to whether the latter is to pay duty on wheat lost on

the brigantine, Los Dos Hermanos. The case is referred to the governor. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 459

Letter 1
March 3, 1823. Santa Barbara.

José de la Guerra y Noriega to [Manuel Gutiérrez] concerning a point of law. Contemporary copy.

Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 460

Letter 1
July 1, 1823. Santa Barbara.

José de la Guerra y Noriega: a contract with William Burroughs for medical services to be rendered to

the presidial company in an around Santa Barbara. Signed by de la Guerra and Burroughs and

interpreters John Wimson and Daniel Jameson. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 461

Letter 1
Nov. 12, 1823. Santa Barbara.

de la Guerra to Dámaso Rodríguez on a charge against José Ignacio Olivas, who went to Monterey

without a passport and who stole seven pesos from the sons of an artilleryman, Matías Guerrero, at

Purisima. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 462

Letter 1

Febr, 22, 1824.

José de la Guerra y Noriega to the Indian, Patricio, one of the leaders of the Santa Barbara Indian

revolt, offering them amnesty in response to his and his companions' repentance. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 463

Letter 1
1824? Santa Barbara.

José de la Guerra y Noriega to an unidentified person whom he calls "Paysano." The letter has a

moral tone and appears to be opposed to a certain marriage. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 464

Letter 1
Sept. 2, 1826. Santa Barbara.

José de la Guerra y Noriega to Juan Malarín concerning accounts. Contemporary copy partly in the

hand of de la Guerra. The same document contains a copy of a statement re the account of San Luis

Obispo Mission with [Juan] Malarín as of Aug. 12, 1826. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 465

Letter 1
Dec. 10, 1828. [Mexico.]

Incomplete draft of a letter of José de la Guerra y Noriega to [Guadalupe Victoria], president of

Mexico, avowing his loyalty and that of the California missionaries to the republic and requesting a

passport to leave for California. Spanish. 4 pp.
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Letter 1
July 23, 1830. Santa Barbara.

José de la Guerra y Noriega; a draft of a letter re a claim made by Guillermo Cota and José Palorio

affecting the rodeos of Rancho El Conejo. Also mentions the lands of Mission San Fernando at La

Sierrita de Cahuenga and Rancho el Triunfo. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 467

Letter 1
Apr. 15, 1831. Santa Barbara.

José de la Guerra y Noriega to Miguel Valencia requesting that Teodoro Arrellanes be questioned

regarding some business dealings with William P. Hartnell. The questioning is dated, Santa Barbara,

Apr. 19, 1831. Spanish. 5 pp.

DLG 468

Letter 1
Sept. 1836.

List of missionaries who died in the territory of Upper California since the year 1811 and the amount

of synodal payments due to them up to the date of their death. Spanish. 5 pp.

DLG 469

Letter 1
c. 1836.

José de la Guerra y Noriega to on unknown person, receiving goods from Antonio Ercilla. Spanish. 3

pp.

DLG 470

Letter 1
May, 1839. Santa Barbara.

José de la Guerra to [Andrés Castillero?]. A blotter with portions crossed out. Incomplete. Spanish. 5

pp.

DLG 471

Letter 1
c. 1839. Santa Barbara.

José de la Guerra to Juan Bautista Alvarado complaining about restrictions issued by José María

Rojo, justice of the peace, and his conducting the annual slaughtering by a creek. Incomplete.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 471

Letter 2
c. 1839. Santa Barbara.

De la Guerra to [Alvarado?] on Roberto Pardo and José Lugo being made alfereces. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 471

Letter 3
Oct. 2, 1840. Santa Barbara.

De la Guerra to Alvarado concerning Valle. Incomplete draft written in a shaky hand. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 472

Letter 1

Jan. 26, 1841. Santa Barbara.

José de la Guerra y Noriega to Manuel Jimeno Casarín concerning 'Salsipuedes,' owned by de la

Guerra and Alvarado's relation to it. Blotter. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 473

Letter 1
Nov. 28, 1844

José de la Guerra y Noriega to José Antonio Cot on the sailing of the bark, Guipuzcoana, from San

Diego and on business dealings with Gaspar Oreña. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 473

Letter 2
Dec. 30, 181.7. Santa Barbara.

De la Guerra to Cot on the inventory made consequent to the death of Ercilla; de la Guerra's power of

attorney accepted; the complexities of the situation; on a loan made by Cot to Fremont. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 474

Letter 1
[c. Febr. 9, 1845. Santa Barbara.]

José de la Guerra to [Manuel Micheltorena] in the hand of Antonio de la Guerra concerning an

excursion to San Buenaventura to quiet some troublemakers who are not identified. De la Guerra

notifies the governor the troublemakers had repented. Spanish. 3 pp.
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Letter 1
Febr. 9, 1845. Santa Barbara.

José de la Guerra y Noriega to Pio Pico on receiving documents from the latter; on a commission

given to de la Guerra relative to the establishment of peace; on his trip to Carpinteria and San

Buenaventura. Mentioned are Alvarado, Castro, Valdes, Felores and Zutter [Sutter?]. A blotter.

Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 475

Letter 2
Febr. 14, 1845. Santa Barbara,

De la Guerra to Pico on the same as above. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 476

Letter 1
Nov. 19, 1845. Santa Barbara.

José de la Guerra to certain editors: his answer to certain statements made by a Mr. Abel Dupetit

Thouars in his book re José Antonio's behavior at the time Luís Argüello was elected temporary

governor of California. Spanish. 10 pp.

DLG 477

Letter 1
[1845].

José de la Guerra to [?] written in a very shaky hand and most difficult to read. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 478

Letter 1
Oct. 10, 1849. Santa Barbara.

José de la Guerra y Noriega to Pablo de la Guerra, in hand of Antonio María de la Guerra, on the birth

of a daughter to Pablo's wife, Josefa, and who was named Francisca Antonia. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 479

Letter 1
Nov. 24, 1851. Santa Barbara.

José de la Guerra y Noriega to Bishop José Sadoc Alemany, Bishop of Monterey, on receiving an

account of the flourishing state of the young ladies college at Monterey, sending him $500.00 towards

it, and explaining his straightened financial circumstances; on the need for a new church at Santa

Barbara; explains why it would be better for the bishop to depend on voluntary offerings rather than

on tithes. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 480

Letter 1
Dec. 20, 1856. Santa Barbara.

José de la Guerra to Angustias de la Guerra, his daughter, congratulating her on her marriage to

Santiago Ord, written in another hand. His signature is very shaky. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 481

Letter 1
Jan. 20, 1858. Santa Barbara.

José de la Guerra y Noriega to Gaspar de la Guerra y Noriega, his brother in Spain, consoling the

latter on the death of his wife; on her leaving all to her older sister, treats of nephews; describes his

own financial setbacks; the help given to his ten children; on a fire occurring to the ancestral home in

Spain; on receiving his letter by way of Paris. This is the last letter signed by de la Guerra. Spanish. 4

pp.

DLG 482

Letter 1
Oct. 11, 1822. Santa Ines

María Antonia Guevara to José de la Guerra: a note asking him for a bill of 28 pesos to be paid.

Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 483

Letter 1
Jan. 17, 1839. Mission San Francisco Solano.

Fray José de Jesús María, O.F.M., to Fray Felipe Arroyo de la Cuesta, O.F.M., sending him an

account of the prophecies of a Capuchin friar living in Spain; and concerning a saddle. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 484

Letter 1
Nov. 5, 1822. Los Angeles.

Manuel Gutiérrez to José de la Guerra concerning twenty pesos left by Miguel Chavaría with Pascual

García. Spanish. 2 pp.
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Letter 2
Nov. 17, 1822. Pueblo.

Gutiérrez to de la Guerra asking the latter to be patron for the blessing of the new church in Los

Angeles to take place on Dec. 8. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 484

Letter 3
Dec. 19, 1822. Los Angeles

Gutiérrez to de la Guerra on a decree of Governor [Pablo Vicente] Solá of Nov. 19, concerning the

constitutional alcaldes of Los Angeles, Carrillo and Juan B. Alvarado. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 484

Letter 4
Jan. 20, 1823. Los Angeles.

Gutiérrez to de la Guerra on sending the latter a list of the soldiers in his jurisdiction as ordered by

Luís Antonio Argüello, interim governor of California. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 484

Letter 5
Febr. 27, 1823. Los Angeles.

Gutiérrez to de la Guerra accusing the latter of not notifying the ayuntamiento of Los Angeles that

Guillermo Cota should be recognized as head of the retired soldiers. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 484

Letter 6
Apr. 19, 1823. Pueblo. [Los Angeles].

Gutiérrez to de la Guerra on the missions that have given cattle to help pay for the church in Los

Angeles and on the men who are to bring the cattle. Mentioned are Corporal Vicente Villa and

Corporal José Ruíz. Spanish. 2 p.

DLG 484

Letter 7
March 9, 1823. Pueblo. [Los Angeles].

Gutiérrez to de la Guerra on the arrival of the English ship, Sachem, at San Pedro, its captain being a

certain Enrique. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 485

Letter 1
Dec. 22, 1852. Senate of the United States.

William McKendree Given to Pablo de la Guerra: a few lines concerning an enclosure received from

the comptroller of the treasury. English. 1 p.

DLG 485

Letter 2
Dec. 22, 1852. Washington, D.C.

Elisha Whitney of the Treasury Department to [William M.] Gwin, the enclosure referred to above.

Treats of a letter addressed to Gwin by Pablo de la Guerra as U. S. Marshall, Oct. 15, 1852. English. 2

pp.

DLG 485

Letter 3
Febr. 4, 1858. Senate Chamber.

Gwin to de la Guerra on the latter's claim against a U. S. lighthouse; on Gwin's recommendation; of

de la Guerra as a visitor to West Point. Mentioned are [David] Broderick and a Mr. [Joseph

Lancaster?] Brent. English. 3 pp.

DLG 485

Letter 4
Oct. 4, 1858. Washington City.

Gwin to de la Guerra concerning the claim of Pablo's uncle, [Carrillo] on the lighthouse at Pt.

Concepcion. Mentioned is Broderick. English. 1 p.

DLG 486

Letter 1
Febr. 17, 1871. Sacramento.

Henry Huntley Haight to Pablo de la Guerra asking the latter, despite his judicial position, to

influence people in southern California with regard to the selection of delegates to the state

convention. English. 3 pp.
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Letter 1
Aug. 10, 1849. State Department of California.

Henry Wager Halleck to Pablo de la Guerra on the governor's pleasure, over Santa Barbara's approval

of calling a general convention; on details of selection; population in the north greatly increased; the

rivers of Santa Ines and Santa Clara judged by the governor to be the true county boundaries of Santa

Barbara. English. 3 pp.

DLG 487

Letter 2
Oct. 31, 1850. San Francisco.

Halleck to de la Guerra on [John Charles] Fremont going out of office soon; Halleck's desire to be

backed by his friends in the south; hopes for the defeat of Keller (Weller?); numerous fires in San

Francisco; failures of financial firms; promises to have $10,000.00 available for de la Guerra by

January; real estate greatly fallen. English. 3 pp.

DLG 487

Letter 3
Jan. 30, 1851. San, Francisco.

Halleck (really Billings) to de la Guerra upbraiding the latter for the things said against the former;

asks to see him at a convenient time; Pablo's brother [Antonio María] is behaving badly [politically?];

the possible division of the state into two; accident of the Ohio; [Frederick] Billing's request for a

translation. English. 3 pp.

DLG 487

Letter 4
March 31, 1851.

Halleck's copy of facts concerning de la Guerra ranchos. English. 4 pp.

DLG 487

Letter 5
Sept. 12, 1851. San Francisco.

Halleck to de la Guerra sending him newspapers on the success of the Democratic party in California;

the legislature to be thoroughly Democratic; is glad to hear that de la Guerra is returning to the senate;

[Archibald] Peachy is elected to the lower house; Gaspar's presence in San Francisco; the Land

Commission; Peachy and Billings send regards; is anxious to visit Santa Barbara again. "For God's

sake do not commit yourself to the state of separation. California will rue the day." English. 3 pp.

DLG 487

Letter 6
Sept. 29, 1851. San Francisco.

Halleck to de la Guerra on his return from the New Almaden mines; Peachy's suggestion that de la

Guerra send in his resignation as U.S. marshal; Peachy to be more useful in the House than in the

Senate; his hopes that both houses will be represented by better men than in the previous year; San

Francisco and the northern counties generally are recovering from the depression of past two years;

broaches the question of California's division, Governor McDougal's return to San Jose with the

archives; the governor's falling out with [Mariano G.] Vallejo. English. 3 pp.

DLG 487

Letter 7
Jan. 18, 1852. San Francisco.

Halleck to de la Guerra on land titles as requested by [Archibald] Peachy; the commission to sit at

San Francisco; fourteen land claimants mentioned who have not submitted their titles; asks de la

Guerra to contact them; Sacramento the temporary capital; Weller and McLane senatorial candidates;

Billings sends regards. Partly torn. English. 6 pp.
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Letter 8
Jan. 29, 1852.

Halleck to de la Guerra on the session of the Land Commission; many titles presented; none yet

decided; squatters making a great effort against confirmation of titles; title to San Julian Rancho

presented; [Cesareo] Lataillade's death and will; Halleck's intention to come south; debt paid to

[Leonardo] Barbieri, the Judge Jones' estate; Weller, [David] Broderick and McLane running for the

senate; Whigs' votes scattered; Broderick considered squatters' candidate and unfit for office; Barbieri

paid for a painting of the portrait of Carlos Carrillo. Mentioned are [Archibald] Peachy and

[Frederick] Billings. English. 4 pp.

DLG 487

Letter 9
March 1, 1852. San Francisco.

Halleck to de la Guerra stating that José de la Guerra's titles to Ranchos San Julian and Simi have

been presented the Land Commission; El Conejo to be presented; Las Pozas not presented because of

lack of transfer deed from José Carrillo; Land Commissioners scrutinizing titles carefully; imperfect

character of some titles; many Californians poor witnesses; David Spence defending his own claim;

claimants to send in their papers before testimony is taken; data needed on the [Cesareo] Lataillade

case; on proposed division of the state; unsatisfactory state of the legislature; is willing to have de la

Guerra buy back Rancho Nicasio. English. 4 pp.

DLG 487

Letter 10
March 17, 1852. San Francisco.

Halleck to de la Guerra on his return from San Jose; flood conditions in that area; Pablo's letters of

March 3 and 8; the expediente on Zaca; is answering by way of the Sea Bird; evidence on Alamo

Pintado, Zaca and Las Huertas to be presented when de la Guerra comes north; asks for copy of the

sale of Las Pozas; difficulties and delays on Las Pulgas case; considers commissioners just while the

laws are illiberal and harsh to the Californians; expenses incurred in seeking land titles in archives,

Mentioned are [Archibald] Peachy, [Lorenzo] Barbieri, Judge Jones, Hydenfelt, Major Roman,

Antonio María de la Guerra. Partly torn. English. 4 pp.

DLG 487

Letter 11
March 27, 1852. San Francisco.

Halleck to de la Guerra on Antonio María de la Guerra leaving on the Ohio; Pablo's funds in Major

Roman's safe will be given to Peachy; on the sale of Rancho Las Pozas; commissioners to come south

to take testimony; claims papers of individuals to be compared with originals in archives. Peachy and

Billings send regards. English. 3 pp.

DLG 487

Letter 12
Apr. 2, 1852. San Francisco.

Halleck to de la Guerra on receiving a copy of the sale of Las Pozas Rancho; no single land case yet

decided; commissioners honest and just men; are to go south to receive testimony; claimants' papers

however to be sent to San Francisco; a number of strange claims to land in Los Angeles, Santa

Barbara and San Luis Obispo counties never before heard of; signed or pretended to have been signed

by Pico and Alvarado. Partly torn. English. 2 pp.

DLG 487

Letter 13
Apr. 2, 1852. San Francisco.

Halleck to de la Guerra on the titles to Rancho San Julian, Simi and El Conejo; the document on Las

Pozas difficult to translate; is long and full of technical terms; asks that it be translated; the signature

of José Carrillo's wife desired. Spanish. 2 pp.
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Letter 14
July 27, 1852. San Francisco.

Halleck to de la Guerra on having sent him a copy of the law respecting Santa Barbara; adjournment

of the land commissioners to write out their decisions; [Archibald] Peachy sends regards; Billings is

in Sonoma; poor men selected by both parties. English. 2 pp.

DLG 487

Letter 15
March 5, 1853.

Halleck to de la Guerra on confirmation of the San Julian Rancho. Mentioned are Peachy and

Billings. English. 2 pp.

DLG 487

Letter 16
Apr. 23, 1853.

Halleck to de la Guerra on receiving from the latter the claim of the city of Santa Barbara; new land

commissioners appointed, old ones removed through influence of [William M.] Gwin and Weller to

produce delay and to give new impulse to squatter influence; his approval of Antonio María de la

Guerra's voting record; death knell given to the Convention Bill, which if passed, would have made

California a slave state or divided it into two, one part free, the other slave. Halleck asks to be

advanced $2000.00 or $3000.00 for his work on the de la Guerra claims to land. English. 3 pp.

DLG 487

Letter 17
May 23, 1853.

Halleck to de la Guerra stating that having spent nearly two years in defending land titles for clients,

he must ask for recompense even for cases not yet decided; delay on decisions is due not only to U. S.

Government, but also to the California claimants because of fraudulent claims; the good reputation of

Antonio María de la Guerra for his honesty and independence of character; on receiving money for

services rendered; new land commissioners have not yet commenced to work; Halleck disgusted with

the Californians and regrets the work he undertook. English. 4 pp.

DLG 487

Letter 18
May 27, 1853.

A receipt for $2,000.00 acknowledged by Halleck, Peachy and Billings. English. 1 p.

DLG 487

Letter 19
July 24, 1853. San Francisco.

Halleck to de la Guerra sending regards to the family; on the need for sending good representatives to

the legislature; if [John] Bigler is reelected with another squatter legislature, California land titles will

be utterly destroyed; asks de la Guerra to change the will of a certain Gutiérrez; Halleck expects some

money. English. 2 pp.

DLG 487

Letter 20
Aug. 25, 1853. Santa Barbara.

Halleck to de la Guerra on submitting claims to Ranchos Simi, El Conejo and Corral de Cuati, Las

Pozas to come up later; no decisions made by the new commissioners; claims Bigler is for the

squatters. Peachy and Park send regards. English. 2 pp.

DLG 487

Letter 21
Sept. 20, 853. San Francisco.

Halleck to de la Guerra explaining his error about a certain Cota not paying for copies of papers

referring to La Colonia de Santa Clara. English. 2 pp.

DLG 487

Letter 22
Oct. 3, 1853. San Francisco.

Halleck to de la Guerra on no decisions having been made by the commissioners; has argued the

Cuyama claim; on the [Cesareo] Lataillade claim; mentions La Zaca Alamo Pintado and Las Huertas;

Padre Jimeno’s, O.F.M., testimony required; hopes to get copies of the case of La Colonia de Santa

Clara. Cites Billings. Partly destroyed. English. 3 pp.
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Letter 23
Oct. 19, 1853. San Francisco.

Halleck to de la Guerra on the Rojo land case; the new commissioners are rejecting more than one

half of the land cases presented and fears for the Cuyama claims; the new board being selected by

Gwin and thoroughly squatter in principle; La Colonia de Santa Clara case not yet decided; abstract

of opinions of new commissioners published in newspapers. English. 2 pp.

DLG 487

Letter 24
Oct. 26, 1853. San Francisco.

Halleck to de la Guerra enclosing some of the decisions of the land commissioners; the same to be

published soon in pamphlet form; they reject more than half the claims; all large land grants rejected;

the squatters are rejoicing; La Colonia case not yet decided; claimants neglect their own cases.

English. 2 pp.

DLG 487

Letter 25
Nov. 10, 1853. San Francisco.

Halleck to de la Guerra on commission not yet deciding cases; has fears about El Conejo and Los

Alamos with regard to their indefinite boundaries; [José María] Covarrubias and his lack of action in

the Santa Barbara city claim and his nonpayment of fees; heirs of Don Carlos have not paid for Sespe

though Halleck worked hard on the case. English. 2 pp.

DLG 487

Letter 26
Nov. 19, 1853. San Francisco.

Halleck to de la Guerra on the land commissioners rejecting eight claims and confirming three,

namely Potrero de Santa Clara, Carrillo's Mision Vieja de la Purisima, and Villavicencio's Corral de

Piedra: rejected were Thompson's Isla de Santa Rosa, Villa's Tequepis, Vain's Los Putos, Narváez's

claim near San Jose, Temecula, Canemqu, Sales' claim near San Gabriel, and one in San Diego

county; states that the new commissioners will reject three-fourths of the claims, the questions

uppermost being boundaries and the building of a house on grant within a year; the need for better

interpreters, fears that some claims of de la Guerra's brothers will be rejected; if those of Covarrubias,

Octaviano Gutiérrez and Don Carlos are rejected it will be their own fault; Joaquín Carrillo will have

to prove exact boundaries and the juridical possession of Zaca. English. 3 pp.

DLG 487

Letter 27
Nov. 22, 1853. San Francisco.

Halleck to de la Guerra on commissioners giving more decisions; the claim of María Antonia to

Corral de Cuati being confirmed while the claim of Teodoro Arrellanes to El Rincon rejected, which

however may be confirmed by the U. S. Court of Appeals; suspects squatter influence, fears that all of

José de la Guerra's claims may not be recognized because of indefinite boundaries; Covarrubias

careless about his claims. English. 3 pp.

DLG 487

Letter 28
Dec. 9, 1853.

Halleck to de la Guerra on [Luís] Burton's claim to Balsa de Chamisal being rejected and Teodoro

Arrellanes and Diego Olivera's claim to Guadalupe Rancho confirmed; in the new board of

commissioners' decisions "the best titles are declared good for nothing, and those deemed most

imperfect, are declared equitable, and confirmed; the juridical survey is deemed most important of

all." Halleck fears that the de la Guerra claim to Los Alamos, where juridical possession was not

given by the Mexican government, will have to be proven by witnesses proving the exact lines of the

rancho; mentions mission claim; de la Guerra to come to San Francisco; asks for money for defending

the de la Guerra claims; San Julian and Cuati are confirmed; the greater part of the work done on

Simi, El Conejo, Las Pozas, Los Alamos and Cuyama; of the little Indian cases there is little chance.

English. 3 pp.
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Letter 29
Febr. 24, 1854. San Francisco.

Halleck to de la Guerra on taking the testimony of Padre Jimeno on Soria (Zaca) and Alamo Pintado,

whose testimony did more harm than good. English. 3 pp.

DLG 487

Letter 30
March 8, 1854. San Francisco.

Halleck to de la Guerra on the former's going to Mexico, and his desire for de la Guerra to come

down from Sacramento for a deposition. English. 1 p.

DLG 487

Letter 31
Aug. 29, 1854. San Francisco.

Halleck to de la Guerra on his return from Panama; his visit to New York; his building of the

Montgomery Block; on a suit against Joaquín Carrillo by Peachy and Billings, for the transfer of

property to Andrés Pico; his meeting with [Alfred] Robinson and Sully in New York, but his not

seeing the boys of Angustias de la Guerra. English. 3 pp.

DLG 487

Letter 32
Sept. 11, 1854. San Francisco.

Halleck to de la Guerra on lack of filing claim for El Cojo or La Punta de la Concepcion, nor title to it

found in the books; on price charged for defense of the de la Guerra titles; mention of Peachy and

Billings; charges for Cuyama and Cuati; much trouble concerning three Indian titles; in queries on

Rojo's will concerning Cuyama; on the need to obtain a quit claim on it; Alamo Pintado, Zaca and.

Las Huertas to be considered soon. Mentioned are Ignacio del Valle, Pio Pico, María Antonia and

Antonio Domínguez. English. 4 pp.

DLG 487

Letter 33
Dec. 3, 1855. San Francisco.

Halleck to de la Guerra on the latter being reported to be in Los Angeles by Dr. Shaw; Halleck's

inability to obtain an expediente from surveyor general's office in time to send on immediately; the

possibility of his going south; Fernando Tico to give de la Guerra an affidavit of his daughter.

English. 1 p.

DLG 487

Letter 34
March 28, 1856. San Francisco.

Halleck to de la Guerra concerning Moerenhautt and Doña Carmen on money and land; asks Pablo to

come from Sacramento to see her for he believes Moerenhautt has taken advantage of her. English. 3

pp.

DLG 487

Letter 35
Apr. 10, 1856. San Francisco.

Halleck to de la Guerra concerning the mortgage of Doña Carmen; her financial difficulties; fears

Pablo misunderstood his letter of. March 28. English. 2 pp.

DLG 487

Letter 36
Sept. 7, 1856. San Francisco.

Halleck to de la Guerra concerning the latter's brother, Miguel who is engaged in cattle business;

concerning money; conditions in San Francisco; thinks Buchanan is pretty certain of being elected;

mentions Fremont, [Archibald] Peachy, [Frederick] Billings, and Judge Oquier. English. 2 pp.

DLG 487

Letter 37
Dec. 13, 1856.

Halleck to de la Guerra on receiving payment from Miguel de la Guerra. Mentioned is Punta de la

Concepcion, Peachy and Billings. English. 2 pp.

DLG 487

Letter 38
March 26, 1857. San Francisco.

Halleck to de la Guerra concerning the Cosumnes Rancho of the Hartnells. English. 1 p.
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Letter 39
May 18, 1857. San Francisco.

Halleck to de la Guerra on Judge Hoffman deciding the case of the Cosumnes Rancho; appeal being

made to the Supreme Court; the decision of the commissioners and district court unfavorable to the

claim. English. 2 pp.

DLG 487

Letter 40
July 20, 1857. San Francisco.

Halleck to de la Guerra concerning the affairs of Joaquina Alvarado; asks to be paid for services

rendered her unless too poor to pay; [A.F.] Hinchman is ordered not to press her for payment.

English. 2 pp.

DLG 487

Letter 41
Aug. 17, 1857. San Francisco.

Halleck to de la Guerra on a financial transaction between Halleck and Joaquín Carrillo; Halleck

nominated for the Senate by the Democrats. English. 2 pp.

DLG 487

Letter 42
Febr. 2, 1859. San Francisco.

Halleck to de la Guerra on [Jacob] Leis leaving with him; Judge Thompson's opinion on the Ord suit;

asks de la Guerra if he wants it; is in essential agreement with the views of Halleck and de la Guerra;

no decision rendered yet by the Supreme Court on community property; taxes on Tequepis.

Hinchman mentioned. English. 2 pp.

DLG 487

Letter 43
May 17, 1859. San Francisco.

Halleck to de la Guerra on his leaving for New York; his comments on the Ord suit; Peachy and

Billings to keep in contact with de la Guerra. English. 2 pp.

DLG 487

Letter 44
Apr. 4, 1860. Santa Barbara.

Russell Heath, district attorney, to de la Guerra on the injustice of the county paying expenses for the

transportation of insane persons to the state asylum. English. 2 pp.

DLG 487

Letter 45
March 17, 1860. San Francisco.

Halleck to de la Guerra on the decision given on the Ord case in favor of Pablo de la Guerra. [Charles

E.] Huse has been informed. English. 1 p.

DLG 487

Letter 46
Apr. 28, 1860. San Francisco.

Halleck to la Guerra on John B. Peachy’s name being presented to the governor to fill a vacancy left

by Capt. Morgan. Hopes de la Guerra will act in Peachy's favor. English. 1 p.

DLG 487

Letter 47
July, 1860. San Francisco.

Halleck to de la Guerra felicitating him on his election; Peachy's withdrawal from general practice;

mentions the Ord case. Partly torn. English. 2 pp.

DLG 487

Letter 48
Sept. 2, 1860. San Francisco.

Halleck to de la Guerra on the Ord suit; mention of Justice Hager; the Packard case to come up;

predicts Lincoln's election; Douglas will beat Breckenridge in popular vote but not in the state vote;

Douglas to win in California; Peachy going over to Gwin. Partly torn. English. 4 pp.

DLG 487

Letter 49
Oct. 1, 1860. San Francisco.

Halleck to de la Guerra enclosing a bill against Pacífico Ortega; case against Packard not yet decided

by superior court nor has Judge Hager decided the new demurrer on the case between Pablo de la

Guerra and Ord; asks de la Guerra to send money. English. 2 pp.
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Letter 50
Oct. 15, 1860. San Francisco.

Halleck to de la Guerra on a financial matter; Judge Baldwin to take up the Packard case

immediately; Judge Hager has not yet decided on the Ord-de la Guerra case. English. 1 p.

DLG 487

Letter 51
Oct. 18, 1860.

Halleck to de la Guerra on the political situation. Mentions Douglas, [Abraham] Lincoln, de la

Guerra's personal opinions. English. 2 pp.

DLG 487

Letter 52
Oct. 27, 1860. San Francisco.

Halleck to de la Guerra on the Ord-de la Guerra suit to be handled by Judge Hager; argument on the

New Almaden mine case continuing. English. 2 pp.

DLG 487

Letter 53
Dec. 6, 1860. San Francisco.

Halleck to de la Guerra on decision of the Packard case unfavorable to Pablo, but the latter's claim

against the heirs of [Cesareo] Lataillade is saved; no decision on the New Almaden mine case; on

national parties and voting. Mentioned are Breckenridge, Bell and Douglas. English. 3 pp.

DLG 487

Letter 54
March 27, 1861. San Francisco.

Halleck to de la Guerra on the surveyor general and the survey of Rancho Simi; Halleck urging Pablo

to file a protest on the matter which Halleck prepares and sends to him for approval or emendation,

Mentioned are Terrill, Conway, Hopkins and Mandeville. English. 2 pp.

DLG 487

Letter 55
July 26, 1861. San Francisco.

Halleck to Joaquina Alvarado stating that no final decree of the U. S. District Court has been filed in

the surveyor general's office, her claim being presented by the firm of Halleck, Peachy and Billings,

because of her inability to pay the firm releases her. Pablo de la Guerra is mentioned. Members of the

firm cannot go to Los Angeles to prosecute her claim further. The letter is being sent to Pablo de la

Guerra. English. 2 pp.

DLG 487

Letter 56
Oct. 9, 1861.

Halleck to de la Guerra on leaving California, encloses a bill for services to be paid to B. Northrop;

the Ord case being left in the hands of Yale; Spark's claim is killed; Halleck is going to Washington.

English. 2 pp.

DLG 487

Letter 57

March 14. no year (probably 1861). San Francisco.

Halleck to de la Guerra on visits to surveyor general's office; Terrill's surveys of Simi and El Conejo

were returned "today;" Col. Mandeville has agreed to delay action on them for a few days; comments

on the ranchos' boundaries. Virgines Rancho mentioned. English. 3 pp.

DLG 488

Letter 1
Apr. 17, 1856. San Francisco.

Halleck, Peachy and Billings to Antonio María de la Guerra on two letters received and presuming

that Rancho El Cojo and El Parage de la Cieneguita are one and the same place. English. 1 p.

DLG 488

Letter 2
Dec. 13, 1856. San Francisco.

Two receipts from Pablo de la Guerra acknowledged by the firm of Halleck, Peachy and Billings.

English. 1 p.

DLG 488

Letter 3
Apr. 30, 1859. San Francisco.

Halleck, Peachy and Billings to Pablo de la Guerra stating that the case of Ord vs. the executors has

been docketed and stands on demurrer. English. 1 p.
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Letter 1
Aug. 30 1866. Los Angeles.

Henry Hancock to Charles Enoch Huse concerning Rancho San Francisco or Camulos. English. 2 pp.

DLG 490

Letter 1
Oct. 13, 1859. Placerville.

F. H. Harmon to Pablo de la Guerra stating he is a candidate for engrossing clerk in the senate and

asks to be considered. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 492

Letter 1
Febr. 3, 1823. Monterey.

William Edward Petty Hartnell to José de la Guerra y Noriega on the latter's failure to send the wine

he had ordered. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 492

Letter 2
Jan. 22, 1826. Monterey.

Hartnell to de la Guerra financial and mercantile matters. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 492

Letter 3
Febr. 28, 1826. Monterey.

Hartnell to de la Guerra on an adjoining letter from a Mr. Bringas on an offer to sell him pelts, but de

la Guerra's unwillingness to enter into negotiations with him; on a business proposition made by the

commissary of Monterey, which needed de la Guerra's consent and that of the "Russian" at San

Diego; Hartnell's going to San Francisco and possibly to Fort Ross; is sending de la Guerra a list of

things sold in his jurisdiction. Mention is Santiago Argüello. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 492

Letter 4
Apr. 6, 1826.

Hartnell to de la Guerra on the birth of a son who was named Guillermo Antonio; on having lumber

cut for de la Guerra on the Amesti Ranch; his showing de la Guerra's letter to the commissary; his

delayed trip north because of the weather; considered it bad news that Mancisidor is to receive all the

produce from the padres of Mission San Gabriel and San Juan Capistrano; the commissary's reply to

the business opportunity offered earlier; on María Rafaela Arrellanes' claim for five pesos which the

cook of the schooner owed her. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 492

Letter 5
Sept. 22, 1826.

Hartnell to de la Guerra on lumber to be sent south by way of the Ynca; Ramírez, his wife and nine

artillery men going to Acapulco; the ship in search of tallow; [Henry] Virmond to arrive soon for the

same purpose; sends greetings from José Ramírez; sends a receipt. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 492

Letter 6

Nov. 28, 1826. Monterey.

Hartnell to de la Guerra on his recent return to Monterey and on commercial matters. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 492

Letter 7
Dec. 7, 1826. Monterey.

Hartnell to de la Guerra: an order to place at the disposition of José Antonio Cot, 1,225 pesos to be

charged to the account of Hartnell. Signed by Fray Antonio Ripoll, O.F.M., Dec. 19, and

countersigned by Cot. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 492

Letter 8
Dec. 7, 1826.

Hartnell to de la Guerra on not receiving mail from the latter; on favoring Cot with 1,225 pesos; on

sending mail destined for Lima over the mission trail for Don David [Spence], but since he had

already embarked, he is to open the packet if it comes to his hands in Santa Barbara and forward it

through Mancisidor or Virmond. Spanish. 2 pp.
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Letter 9
Jan. 7, 1826. Monterey.

Hartnell to de la Guerra on a draft made out to Cot; on financial matters in reference to Fray Blas

[Ordaz], O.F.M.,and Fray [Antonio] Ripoll, O.F.M.; other financial transactions; on the arrival of the

frigate, Plopona, whose commander wrote to the consul general of Mexico on the need for a consul to

represent England in California and suggested Hartnell for the position of vice-consul; the captain

sailing for the Sandwich Islands and Canton, asks de la Guerra to have Padre Ripoll to have made for

him two coras with the inscribed names of Charlotte and Charlotte Grantley. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 492

Letter 10
Jan. 10, 1827. Monterey.

Hartnell to de la Guerra on giving the latter's letter to Padre [Vicente] Sarría, O.F.M., sending him the

answer; his going to see Señora Boronda; on the wonderful things [Antonio José] Cot has told him

about the new government. Cot adds a few lines. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 492

Letter 11
Febr. 7, 1827. Monterey.

Hartnell to de la Guerra on his and Teresa's visit to Santa Cruz where they were godparents for an

Indian; the old lady Higuera (Boronda) and her ratification of what she had written to de la Guerra; on

giving de la Guerra's letter to Padre [Vicente] Sarría, O.F.M.; and asking for a receipt for money paid.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 492

Letter 12
Febr. 22, 1827. Monterey.

Hartnell to de la Guerra on Miguel González making Mariano Estrada a prisoner for insubordination;

Hartnell is waiting for a French commercial vessel to arrive. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 492

Letter 13
May 7, 1827. Monterey.

Hartnell to de la Guerra stating that the document the latter sent him was worthless and that his own

sent to Joaquín Maitorena was unsatisfactory, and is sending another; is interested in proving he paid

duty on goods from the Junio and Pizarro; old lady Higuera not at Monterey; on lumber; barrels; a

draft in favor of [Antonio José] Cot; speaks of a future visit. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 492

Letter 14
March 22, 1827. Monterey.

Hartnell to de la Guerra on hearing of the latter's election as deputy to Mexico; that he will probably

not be accepted being a Spaniard; Luís Argüello and Antonio [José] Cot knowing more about the

matter are to write to him; the document de la Guerra recently sent him was good while the earlier

one was unsatisfactory which he burned; concerning an account; is waiting for a ship from Lima.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 492

Letter 15
March 26, 1827. Monterey.

Hartnell to de la Guerra introducing to him Auguste Duhaut-Cilly, commander of the frigate, Heroe;

asking him to show him favor; is bringing beams and hams to him; he is grieved that de la Guerra has

to go to Mexico. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 492

Letter 16
Apr. 5, 1827. Monterey.

Hartnell to de la Guerra lending him an accompanying document of Meliton Soto on a financial

matter; is going to Carmel to adjust accounts with Padre [Vicente] Sarría, O.F.M., and to make his

Easter duty; Luís Argüello and Cooper have asked Hartnell to adjust differences between them.

Spanish. 2 pp.
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Letter 17
Apr. 22, 1827. Monterey.

Hartnell to de la Guerra is sorry to hear that the latter cannot be excused from going to Mexico; he

learned from the brigantine, Harbinger, proceeding from the Sandwich islands, by means of a letter of

the captain of the frigate, Blopomo, that from letters from England the war between the Turks and the

Greeks continues; that there is a rumor that the emperor of Russia, Nicolás, was assassinated; has

finished his adjustment of the Argüello-Cooper affair; on a debt to the old lady, Boronda; on the

baptism of Juan Cooper in the Catholic faith and his being godfather. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 492

Letter 18
June 7, 1827. Monterey.

Hartnell to de la Guerra on the latter's safe arrival home; on the accounts between Argüello and [Juan]

Cooper; de la Guerra's debt to Valle; the account of Vicente Cané. Mentioned are Juan Begg and Lt.

Martínez. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 492

Letter 19
July 22, 1827. Monterey.

Hartnell to de la Guerra about sending his ship to Santa Barbara. Mentioned are Padres Blas Ordaz,

O.F.M., and José Altimira, O.F.M.; commercial items and accounts. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 492

Letter 20
July 24, 1827. Monterey.

Hartnell to de la Guerra sending along letters to give to David Spence; is going to Lima in September

when ship arrives; his wife, Teresa, to spend her time in Santa Barbara during his absence; wants to

take along certain items. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 492

Letter 21
Nov. 22, 1840. Monterey.

Hartnell to de la Guerra on commercial items and lumber; the non-distribution of land; carried out de

la Guerra's request with the assessor. Mentioned are Bradshaw,[Juan] Cooper, Governor Victoria,

Armijo, [William A.?] Richardson and David Spence. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 492

Letter 22
Jan. 22, 1831. Monterey.

Hartnell to de la Guerra on purchasing lumber for the latter. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 492

Letter 23
March 8, 1831. Monterey.

Hartnell to de la Guerra on his return from San Francisco; did little business; to send lumber and a

barrel of excellent salmon from the Columbia; returning document of Señor Ruffo; concerning certain

Kanakas arriving at by Sitka in 1819, who were given the governor to a Capt. Meek to be disposed of

by the king of the Sandwich Islands. Named was the Guadalupe. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 492

Letter 24
Apr. 7, 1831. Monterey.

Hartnell to de la Guerra on money matters; on Armijo owing Rocha c. 300 hides; is sending salmon

on bark, Voluntario, but could not ship the lumber for lack of space; asks him to have Teodoro

Arrellanes take a formal oath that he had left at Mission Purisima ten containers of tallow before the

Chumash revolt and which was destroyed; a inquiring about a chair and hides he ordered from a Don

Domingo. Fray Blas Ordaz, O.F.M., is mentioned. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 492

Letter 25
May 4, 1831. Monterey.

Hartnell to de la Guerra on receiving three letters; having seen Armijo at Santa Clara who promised to

pay his account; Crespo also will pay, who is to marry the widow of Alcibar; will try to have lumber

sent south; calls [Alfred] Robinson a fine young fellow and gave him books and advice; on his good

relations with the Soberanes on Rancho Alisal; Hartnell has about 500 head of cattle. Spanish. 2 pp.
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Letter 26
May 22, 1831. Monterey.

Hartnell to de la Guerra sending the account of Teodoro Arrellanes; [Alphaeus B.?] Thompson to

bring down the lumber for de la Guerra. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 492

Letter 27
May 30, 1831. Monterey.

Hartnell to de la Guerra on a judgment of the assessor; on Arrellanes' placement of tallow at Mission

Purisima; the death of a servant of the assessor and of the Negro, Zagarra; his wife expecting; on

proposed shipment of cattle. Named are Padre [Vicente] Sarría, O.F.M., and a José Antonio. Spanish.

2 pp.

DLG 492

Letter 28
June 7, 1831. Monterey.

Hartnell to la Guerra on Feliciano Soberanes being falsely accused of having killed cattle of Mariano

Estrada; he would like to have de la Guerra as his defender in the case; asked Hartnell to present the

request; chief antagonist to Soberanes is Julio Vázquez "a declared enemy" of Soberanes. Spanish. 2

pp.

DLG 492

Letter 29

Apr. 3, 1832. Monterey.

Hartnell to de la Guerra on his intention to build a house on his ranch with the help of Padre [Felipe]

Arroyo [de la Cuesta, O.F.M.]; asks de la Guerra's advice concerning his proposal to hold a lottery in

order to build it; the Soberanes' unwillingness to sell their rights to the place; the increase of his

cattle; the unwillingness of the captain of the Plant to take on the lumber for de la Guerra; Juan

Cooper wants de la Guerra to collect from Fray Antonio Menéndez, O.P., the 110 pesos he owes him.

Mentioned are [Alfred] Robinson, Estrada and Anderson. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 492

Letter 30
Nov. 19, 1832. Santa Barbara.

Hartnell to de la Guerra on commercial matters; gives a list of persons owing money to the Compañía

de California, at the time of his adjustment of accounts with Juan Begg & Co. of Lima in 1828;

explains the background of his assumption of the debts and asks de la Guerra to explain the matter to

Diego Brotherston. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 492

Letter 31
Aug. 3, 1833. Monterey.

Hartnell to de la Guerra concerning his debt to the latter for mescal; the arrival of the bark, Wrangell,

from Fort Ross; his hopes to have some of the Russians help him build his house; on the advantages

of his establishing a college at Monterey or at El Alisal; the difficulty of having a chapel on the ranch;

Juan de la Guerra's presence at Carmel forming a plan of the mission lands; presents a list of debts

owed to him. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 492

Letter 32
Oct. 1, 1833. Monterey.

Hartnell to de la Guerra on the death of Juan de la Guerra; his return from San Francisco because of

it; mentions Teresa, his wife, Angustias de la Guerra and Roberto Elwell; is sending various articles

via the Voluntario, Father Patrick Short's attending Juan de la Guerra in his last illness; asks that

Juan's books in Latin and English be left with him for use at the college; for himself Short retained

English translations of Homer and Virgil in memory of his pupil, Juan. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 492

Letter 33
Oct. 26, 1833.

Hartnell to de la Guerra on sending a letter through a Mr. Johnson; on a stipend for a solemn Mass

said by Padre Moreno, O.F.M.; no compensation desired by Short for his apostolic labors. Spanish. 1

p.
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Letter 34
Jan. 7, 1834. Monterey.

Hartnell to de la Guerra on his difficulties with the Soberanes; his recourse to the commandant

general who advised him how to proceed to make a deal by which new titles could be issued; asks de

la Guerra to aid him in effecting part of the deal with regard to cattle; mentioned the Zacatecan padres

and Padre [Juan? Pedro?] Cabot, O.F.M.; his school is built but no students have signed up as yet;

opines the bark of Bradshaw is to bring a good cargo of items; will send a receipt with regard to the

money of Mission Santa Cruz; very cold weather. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 492

Letter 35
Febr. 6, 1834. Monterey.

Hartnell to de la Guerra thanking him for a favor in a commercial matter; mentions [Alfred]

Robinson; three students in his college; two others expected. Mentions Juan Rocha. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 492

Letter 36
March 23, 1834. Monterey.

Hartnell to de la Guerra on the arrival of new students among them Pablo who is interested in

surveying; suggests he study, arithmetic and geometry rather than algebra; mentions Patricio [Short]

and [Alfred] Robinson. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 492

Letter 37
Apr. 27, 1834. Monterey.

Hartnell to de la Guerra on sending through Fernando Deppe the news that his wife, Teresa, gave

birth to a boy on Apr. 15, who was baptized on the following day and given the name, José Gonzalo,

alcaldes being the sponsors; is glad to announce that he is not losing Father [Patrick] Short; Pablo and

Joaquín are doing well at school; names some of the pupils at the college; cannot understand why the

general asked de la Guerra for money in the name of Hartnell. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 492

Letter 38
May 6, 1834. Monterey.

Hartnell to de la Guerra stating that the blessing of the college occurred on May 3 and is called San

Jose; the commandant general being the padrino with prominent persons in attendance; Bradshaw's

bark expected which will bring new students, two young Indians from Mission San Gabriel, sons of

Antonio María Lugo, Osio, and perhaps two Indians from San Fernando; Pablo [de la Guerra] and

Joaquín are doing well; silence of the general on his request for $150.00 from de la Guerra; Guillermo

Gale to give de la Guerra 400,00 pesos on Hartnell's account; Tomás Shaw to receive from it the

amount Hartnell owes him; Mission Santa Cruz has received the money owed it by Padre [Antonio]

Menéndez, O.P.; the college and Rev. [Patrick] Short are being protected by the general and members

of the diputación; de la Guerra to send Mass wine; asks him to send certain books he had left in Santa

Barbara, and the three copies of Fleuri's Catecismo Histórico since the boys learn it by heart and the

copies are needed. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 492

Letter 39
June 12, 1834. Monterey.

Hartnell to de la Guerra explaining to him that the latter's son, Pablo, had not been refused any

privileges at the college, particularly that of visiting his sister, Teresa, Hartnell's wife, and though he

is making progress in his studies he could do better; the "bishop," probably Joaquín, progresses well

in Latin but is poor in mathematics; Father [Patrick] Short sends greetings and is happy that de la

Guerra is "coming out well in his revolution." Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 492

Letter 40
Dec. 8, 1834. Monterey.

Hartnell to de la Guerra on hearing that de la Guerra had the custom of making a new will each year

and asks him if this is so; how such private wills could be considered valid; is anxious about his own

wife in case of his demise though at present he is well and robust. Spanish. 1 p.
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Letter 41
June 6, 1835.

Hartnell to de la Guerra on the arrival of Señora de la Guerra and her daughters; their going to the

Rancho [San Jose] Patrocinio with the Hartnells; the arrival of wine and books; Valbuena's dictionary

the best of all despite Padre Arroyo [de la Cuesta's] opinion to the contrary; on an account placed by

de la Guerra to Hartnell through [Alfred] Robinson; the latter ill on a journey north; a ship soon going

to San Francisco; the babies of Teresa and Angustias doing well. Partly torn. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 492

Letter 42
Febr. 27, 1840. Monterey.

Hartnell to the military commander of Presidio Santa Barbara citing a letter he wrote to the

administrator of Mission Santa Ines to the effect that the governor had told Hartnell to inform him

that whenever the military commander of Santa Barbara, for lack of men, could not send them to

bring cattle which the mission was to supply him monthly, the administrator was to supply them.

Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 493

Letter 1
March 11, 183). Monterey.

Hartnell to Fray Antonio Suárez del Real, O.F.M., stating that he has orders from José de la Guerra to

give to his mission fifty pesos owed it by Fray Antonio Menéndez, O.P. If Suárez del Real wishes to

discount the money from the 193.4 pesos the mission owes the Compañía Rusa Americana, he will

send him a receipt. Real's short answer on same letter, Santa Cruz, March 15, 1834, asks Hartnell to

send the $50.00 to Rafael Gómez. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 494

Letter 1
Nov. 15, 1842. Rancho Patrocinio, Alisal.

Hartnell to María Antonia Carrillo de la Guerra on letting go a majordomo and Pancho Leyva.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 495

Letter 1
June 25, 1847.

William P. Hartnell to Pablo de la Guerra concerning Rancho Todos Santos; on certain alcaldes

receiving an answer from the governor; a decree soon to be published that the territory of Upper

California will have four districts whose "capital" cities will be San Francisco, Monterey, Santa

Barbara and Los Angeles. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 495

Letter 2
Febr. 21, 1849. Monterey.

Hartnell to de la Guerra on the forthcoming state convention to be held in Monterey; urging that it be

delayed until May so that the southern representative will have a better chance to attend; the poor

condition of the roads; members of the family have the sarampión (measles); the capture of a

notorious robber, Domingo Hernández. Partly damaged. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 495

Letter 3
July 22, 1851. Aboard the ship, Goliath, opposite San Antonio.

Hartnell to de la Guerra on his having left in the room of Antonio María the translations of the two

laws concerning rodeos and judges of the camp; and a copy of letter sent to the editors of the Los

Angeles Star; asks him to send these to him as soon as possible. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 496

Letter 1
Dec. 28, 1850. Alisal.

William P. Hartnell to José Antonio Jimeno of New York, his nephew; on receiving his letter of Oct.

11; congratulating him on progress made in studies; would have liked to send his two cousins, Pablo

and Uldarico, east but was not financially able; is grateful to Jimeno for offering to send him by each

ship copies of the Herald. The same document contains a letter from José G. Hartnell to Jimeno

stating that Guillermo Hartnell married Refugio Moreno; that the colera had diminished; sends

greetings to a Porfirio [Jimeno] and others. Spanish. 3 pp.
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Letter 2
March 1, 1851. Monterey.

Hartnell to Jimeno on receiving his letter of Jan. 8; congratulates him on his success in studies and

state of health; urges obedience to his preceptor; sends greetings to Porfirio and Miss Meade for the

education she is giving his sons; his sustaining financial losses. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 497

Letter 1
c. 1862. Sacramento.

Cyril Hawkins to Pablo de la Guerra or to Richard Irwin requesting his pay for his appointment as

assistant enrolling clerk of the senate and clerk of the enrolling committee. English. 1 p.

DLG 498

Letter 1
Jan. 26, 1857. San Francisco.

William W. Hawks to Pablo de la Guerra concerning "An Act to provide for the recording and

legalizing of certain deeds and other instruments in the County of Santa Barbara." Raimundo Carrillo

mentioned. Hawks treats of his health and sends greetings to the family. English. 4 pp.

DLG 499

Letter 1
Sept. 25, 1860. Nevada City, Calif.

Thomas P. Hawley to Pablo de la Guerra inviting him to give an address on Oct. 26-27, 1860, at an

assembly of Democrats who favor the election of Stephan A. Douglas as president, and H. V. Johnson

as vice-president of the United States. English. 1 p.

DLG 500

Letter 1
Oct. 26, 1860. Petaluma.

William Hayden to Pablo de la Guerra telling him of his candidacy before the Electoral College as

messenger to carry the vote of California to Washington, D.C.; has always been an active supporter of

Douglas and the Democratic Party; failure of the party to dispense patronage; will appreciate

whatever de la Guerra can do for him. English. 1 p.

DLG 501

Letter 1
Sept. 13, 1864. Los Angeles.

Benjamin Ignatius Hayes to Pablo de la Guerra on his inability to see him; explains the case of Mrs.

Merced Carrillo; the Cucamonga Rancho and the possible attempts to forge her signature or his

consent to proceedings. English. 2 pp.

DLG 501

Letter 2
June 1, 1866. Los Angeles.

Hayes to de la Guerra on the need for the appointment of a court commissioner for San Diego County

for which he proposes D. B. Kurtz, attorney; cites bribery, gross and unblushing, has been practiced

in many instances; Kurtz is honest and respected. English. 1 p.

DLG 502

Letter 1
June 24, 1863. Los Angeles.

Albert B. Hayward to Pablo de la Guerra on his former proposal that de la Guerra be a candidate for

district judge of the First Judicial District for which he would be glad to support him; he secured the

county for Romualdo Pacheco, which would strengthen de la Guerra's vote; has always supported

Andrés Pico; Hayes and Henen are in the field in Los Angeles; discord between Californians and the

French over the invasion of Mexico; is trying to prove to the Californians that the U.S. is friendly to

Mexico; comments on political parties; asks de la Guerra to state if he is a candidate for judge or not.

English. 3 pp.

DLG 503

Letter 1
Sept. 18, 1857. Santa Barbara.

Fragment of a letter of W. Hearne to Antonio María de la Guerra on the council granting a petition on

Sept. 12. English. 1 p.
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Letter 1
Febr. 17, 1858. Sacramento.

Russell Heath to Pablo de la Guerra expressing condolence on the death of Pablo's father, José de la

Guerra y Noriega. English. 2 pp.

DLG 505

Letter 1
Jan. 24, 1871. Frankfurt, Germany.

Thomas Hecht to Pablo de la Guerra on the death of the latter's brother, Joaquín; on his decision not

to establish a branch bank in Santa Barbara; lists his California connections; asks about the bonds of

the Oregon R. R.; on the Franco-Prussian war; Germany now an empire; sends greetings to various

individuals. English. 3 pp.

DLG 506

Letter 1
Sept. 19, 1868. Los Angeles.

Isaias Wolf Hellman to Pablo de la Guerra asking him to settle an account of $104.93; states he is

going into the banking business with William Workman and T. P. T. Temple. English. 1 p.

DLG 507

Letter 1
Dec. 7, 1825. Monterey.

José María Herrera to José de la Guerra on sending him a certification from the missionary at San

Luis Obispo. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 507

Letter 2
Oct. 28, 1829. Monterey.

Herrera to de la Guerra concerning a draft. Mentioned are Guillermo Hartnell, Roberto Elwell and

[Juan de?] Cubillas. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 508

Letter 1
June 7, 1819. Santa Ines.

José Ignacio Higuera to José de la Guerra on various Indian rancherías of the Tulare area. Spanish. 2

pp.

DLG 509

Letter 1
March 17, 1835. San Francisco Solano.

José María Hijar to Governor José Figueroa defending Francisco Torres as a non-revolutionary and

declaring himself apart from any revolutionary intent; defending his character and his honorable

service in government; his returning to Mexico. Mentioned are José María Padres and Mariano

Guadalupe Vallejo. Spanish. 5 pp.

DLG 510

Letter 1
Apr. 174 1835. Aboard the Rosa.

José María Hijar to José María Noriega (sic!) asking him not to give credence to the calumny and

persecution imputed to him; he is deprived of the liberty contrary to the Constitution; Figueroa has

attributed to him crimes of which he is not guilty; will prove his innocence in Mexico; is merely

asking that judgment be suspended; is sending de la Guerra a copy of a letter he had written to

Figueroa (Folder 509). Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 511

Letter 1
Dec. 7, 1860. Sacramento.

C. A. Hill to Pablo de la Guerra on recommending Juan A. Súñiga as applicant for the position of

mail carrier for the Senate; speaks Spanish and English fluently and is of excellent character. English.

1 p.

DLG 512

Letter 1
Jan. 4, 1863. Sacramento.

Ramón J. Hill to Pablo de la Guerra on the senatorial contest; enemies have tried to compromise Hill;

asks de la Guerra whom he thinks will be elected. Mentions Parks, Conners, Harvey Brown, Phelps,

Salvador Vallejo, Andronico Sepúlveda and Pacheco. English. 2 pp.
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Letter 2
Jan. 6, 1863. Sacramento.

Hill to de la Guerra writing confidentially on influence exerted upon him to vote for a senator who

will be of help in Washington in reference to land titles; it was even declared that Hill could make

2,000 or 3,000 dollars, a thing he considered dishonorable; Hill believes the most prominent

candidates are Parks, Conners and Phelps; asks de la Guerra not to mention anything to Salvador

Vallejo about the affair for he had told Vallejo he would not mention it to de la Guerra. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 512

Letter 3
Jan. 8, 1853. Sacramento.

Hill to de la Guerra describing the political climate in Sacramento. Mentions Machui, Crane, Salvador

Vallejo, Manuel Torres, Brown; Hill is keeping secret for whom he will vote until voting time and

will not be influenced by outside pressure. Partly torn. English. 2 pp.

DLG 512

Letter 4
Jan. 28, 1863. House of Assembly.

Hill to de la Guerra concerning a political deal with bribery involved; Senators McCollough and

Gaskili overheard a conversation about one Watrous offered $3,000.00 for a vote of one E. B. Smith

of Butte County. Considers the action a political stratagem to defeat Phelps; Senator Vineyard of Los

Angeles will support de la Guerra. English. 1 p.

DLG 513

Letter 1
March 31, 1863. Santa Barbara.

A. F. Hinchman to Pablo de la Guerra sending him a copy of a commission given to Hinchman by the

surveyor general of California, E. F. Beale, by which de la Guerra is to hand over over all papers and

books in his possession while acting as customs house officer at Monterey during the Mexican

regime; reference is made to an act of Congress approved May 18, 1853, entitled: "An Act to provide

for the collection and safekeeping of public archives in the state of California." English. 2 pp.

DLG 514

Letter 1
Oct. 31, 1859. San Francisco.

J. A. Hinchman to Pablo de la Guerra on recommending his friend, C. C. Palmer, as a candidate for

secretary of the Senate who is a "sound Democrat and a gentleman." English. 1 p.

DLG 515

Letter 1
June 15, 1836. Monterey.

William Sturgis Hinckley to José de la Guerra on his arrival at Monterey, and stating that he has an

assorted cargo to offer. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 516

Letter 1
Apr. 30, 1887. Wilmington City.

George Hinde to Francis A. Thompson notifying the latter that since Juan J. de la Guerra has been

appointed inspector of customs of the ports of San Buenaventura and Hueneme, he is to turn over to

him all U.S. property in his possession and all instructions relative to the discharge of his duties.

English. 1 p.

DLG 517

Letter 1
Sept. 27, 1869. Sacramento.

William Holden, governor, to Pablo de la Guerra, sending him a copy of a letter de la Guerra had sent

to Governor [Henry Huntley] Haight on Nov. 13, 1868, concerning clemency for Francisco Xavier

Bonilla. English. 4 pp.

DLG 518

Letter 1
June 16, 1851. Los Angeles.

Alexander W. Hope to Pablo de la Guerra asking his support as a candidate for Congress; there is a

disregard in the north for southern California; Hope can unite the votes of Americans and

Californians. English. 2 pp.
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Letter 1
Sept. 21, 1849. San Francisco.

George M. Hopkins to Pablo de la Guerra on sending his letter through Mr. Keyzo via the Colonel

Fremont; recalling his pleasant visit in Santa Barbara; his disappointment in San Francisco; daily

arrivals there from all over the world; gold fever increasing, colera in the states; in a few days he and

his brother will start out for the mines; will not remain permanently in California. English. 2 pp.

DLG 520

Letter 1
Saturday night. [1852]

Paul K. Hubbs to Pablo de la Guerra sending him communications to be delivered in San Luis Obispo

and Santa Barbara; inquires if Pablo's brother is treasurer in Santa Barbara: recalls fraternal accord

with Pablo in the Senate. English. 1 p.

DLG 521

Letter 1
March 24., 1855. Benecia.

Paul K. Hubbs to Antonio María de la Guerra, superintendent of public schools in Santa Barbara, on

his attempt to change a law on commissioners; a new bill has defects and Hubbs' bill has little chance

for passing; appointment can be made only on the basis of the census returns of the school year

ending Oct. 31, 1854; returns from San Luis Obispo came in too late. English. 1 p.

DLG 522

Letter 1
May 28, 1851. San Francisco.

Numa Hubert to Pablo de la Guerra on a meeting of Judge [Charles] Fernald and Dr. [Samuel]

Brinkerhoff with General Summers on the political condition of the southern counties; the general

showed Fernald a petition signed by Henes and [Albert?] Packard stating that the native Californians

were treacherous and could not be relied upon, that a Pacific republic was desired by them; that a

military post be established at Santa Barbara to protect the Union party and save the republic;

Brinkerhoff to write to de la Guerra on the matter; Hubert and Fernald have denounced this petition

and declared its insinuations devoid of all truth; its purpose was to connect de la Guerra with the Bear

Flag and secession meeting; Federal officers are keeping a sharp watch; Henes once had great

sympathy for California; Hubert is working hard in favor of Fernald. Mentioned are J. R. Stevens,

Col. [Baker?], Latham and McDougal. Is sending de la Guerra a draft of a petition which he may

revise. English. 4 pp.

DLG 522

Letter 2
Apr. 6, 1855. San Francisco.

Hubert to Pablo de la Guerra sending a letter in which are pasted two newspaper articles with the

following captions: "A stupendous Scheme of Land Title Forgeries," and "U. S. Commission, Apr. 5,"

both references dealing with the claim of San Francisco to pueblo lands. Hubert comments on the

articles. Spanish and English. 4 pp.

DLG 522

Letter 3
May 17, 1853. San Francisco.

Hubert to Pablo de la Guerra stating that Mission San Buenaventura lands were confirmed on May 15

for twelve leagues and Sutter's land for thirty-three leagues; concerning a deal with [Rodríguez de]

Poli relative to the mission lands; on the coming elections; the confrontation between Democrats and

Know Nothings; the latters' anti-Catholic bias; on the reception to the governor who is to run again.

[Archibald] Peachy mentioned several times. Spanish. 4 pp.



8/26/2009 Page 158

DLG 522

Letter 4
Aug. 16, 1860. San Francisco.

Hubert to Pablo de la Guerra on an attack against the latter's good name which Hubert defended; asks

de la Guerra to refute the charges that he was a traitor to his own countrymen; on the office of sheriff

for Santa Barbara County; proposes Clau; Hubert understands that de la Guerra is in favor of

[Stephen A.] Douglas and [Archibald] Peachy while he himself is for Breckenridge; mentions the

Almaden mine case and that of Mission Dolores; Covarrubias and Santillán mentioned with regard to

the latter. English. 4 pp.

DLG 522

Letter 5
July 7, 1864. San Francisco.

Hubert to de la Guerra concerning negotiations with Gaspar and property; Pablo involved; Peachy

mentioned. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 523

Letter 1
July 1, 1816. Mexico.

Patrocinio Humana to José de la Guerra on receiving the latter's letter of Febr. 10, 1816, while earlier

ones sent did not arrive with the result that his requests were not attended to. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 523

Letter 2

July 20, 1817. Mexico.

Humana to de la Guerra thanking him for a barrel of sardines that had arrived at San Blas. Spanish. 2

pp.

DLG 524

Letter 1
Aug. 18, 1859.

Charles Enoch Huse to Pablo de la Guerra stating that [Romualdo] Pacheco was a candidate for

senator of the second district in the event that Pablo de la Guerra also was. English. 1 p.

DLG 524

Letter 2
c. 1865.

Huse to de la Guerra concerning a land grant not specifically named; hot weather prevailing because

of burning in the hills and mountains by squatters from Dos Pueblos to Montecito; on a note due Nov.

1, 1866; Huse is not going to Washington. English. 2 pp.

DLG 524a

Letter 1
Nov. 17, 1865. Santa Barbara.

Charles E. Huse and S. R. I. Sturgeon, major general, to Irwin McDowell; a petition re the disbanding

of Company C, Native California Cavalry; an indictment against native Californians who are opposed

to everything American; if the company is disbanded it will not be able to make a livelihood since

they were rancheros and will not take up any other occupation; will resort to pillage and robbery,

some will became banditti; are skilled in use of arms; seventeen of the men considered murderers;

natives who sit on juries will not condemn their own countrymen; if the company returns Santa

Barbara will not be a safe place to live and if it returns it must be deprived of its arms. In another

hand by way of comment at bottom is written: "Alarmists, weak-minded cowards, prevaricators and

distortionists of veracity." English. 3 pp.

DLG 525

Letter 1
Oct. 6, 1868. Santa Barbara.

Huse to Thomas Sprague on a certain Mr. Johnson going to Colonia; $10.00 an acre being asked; the

boundaries of Santa Barbara city limit; explains Spanish terms; map on file in the court of the

southern district; council not in session; [Ulpiano] Yndart in San Francisco; Willoughby in a suit

against Den's executors; district court has adjourned; suit of Rice and Heath did not come up. English.

4 pp.
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Letter 2
Oct. 22, 1868. Santa Barbara.

Huse to Sprague concerning the Rancho Najalalegua sold by Raimundo Carrillo to José Domínguez;

concerning Packard; Colonia land to sell at $5.00 or $6.00 an acre; Willoughby and Hunter have an

arrangement concerning San Marcos and Tequepis Ranchos. A Mr. Johnson is mentioned. English. 4

pp.

DLG 525

Letter 3
Oct. 7, 1869. Santa Barbara.

Huse to Sprague on receiving three letters from him; his paying interest on four acres of school land;

the coming of the railroad will make the land (1280 acres) valuable; the tideland on Hill's salt marsh

will rise in value; relation of railroad land against squatters; Santa Barbara has no title to its land as

yet; the railroad in relation to the Santa Barbara land; has no copy of railroad franchise; to send him

an affidavit and brief; Fisk and wife here looking for a house; nothing done on a water franchise;

suggests Sprague borrow money from Merrill to go east. English. 4 pp.

DLG 526

Letter 1
Dec. 7, 1829. Madrid.

Miguel de Ibarriola y González, Marqués de Zambrano, to Manuel Rodríguez de Poli: a military

discharge certificate. Partly printed. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 527

Letter 1
June 26, 1835. Los Angeles.

José Iglesias to José de la Guerra on a money matter. Antonio Cot mentioned. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 528

Letter 1
Sept. 3, 1818. Monterey.

Gaspar Illas to José de la Guerra on the difficulties on trading from Peru because of revolutionary

corsairs; has not been able to obtain for him all that he desired; could not obtain the translation of the

Bible by Scio; prices; difficulties in commercial dealings; his trip to California took fifty days; he will

sail for San Luis Obispo, Refugio and Santa Barbara. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 528

Letter 2
Nov. 20, 1818. San Gabriel.

Illas to de la Guerra on his returning to Lima; on goods he brought to the mission; on deserters from

his ship. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 529

Letter 1
Oct. 12, 1847. Santa Barbara.

José Domingo Indart to José de la Guerra on letters brought from Lima given to him by José

Francisco Ercilla, brother of Antonio Ercilla. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 530

Letter 1
May 31, 1860. Simi Rancho.

María Antonia (de la Guerra) Indart to Josefa (Moreno) de la Guerra on the ill health of Osbaldo de la

Guerra, and on goods desired. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 531

Letter 1
Aug. 23, 1860. Santa Inés.

Ulpiano Indart to Antonio María de la Guerra on disorders among the Indians. Mentioned are José

Antonio Carrillo, Juan Hill, and the Rev. [Cipriano] Rubio. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 532

Letter 1
July 28, 1813. Tepic.

Juan Bautista de Iñigo to José de la Guerra concerning the insurrection in Mexico against Spain.

Mentioned are Felipe Garzía, Padre [José] Morelos, Señor Negrete, Intendant Boravia, Señores Cruz

and Pastor. Americans have supplied arms for an insurrection in Texas. Asks that salmon, sardines

and tongue be sent. Spanish. 4 pp.
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Letter 2
Aug. 3, 1813. Topic.

Iñigo to de la Guerra asking for salmon, sardines and tongue; is sending with Cubillas, some cloth and

a statue of Nuestra Señora de Remedios to be given to Governor Arrillaga; and a printed sermon

preached in Mexico by Padre Juan Bautista Díaz Calvillo, "which is worth reading." Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 533

Letter 1
Jan. 4, 1830. Tepic.

R. de Irurita Goyera to José de la Guerra on his reasons for not writing through ordinary mail;

mentions Cayetano Portugal, Vilmon [Vimond?] and the Ester María; narrates the more notable

changes in Mexico; an invasion of 3,000 Spaniards from Havana under General Barradas and their

defeat by Generals Santa Ana and Terán; political and military conditions that followed; mentioned

are Bustamante, General Quintanar, Lucas Alamán, [Joel] Poinsett, Guerrero; a number of prisoners;

no native of Spain allowed to remain within sixty leagues of the Mexican coast; he is probably going

to China with an expedition of 200 men; asks for three pelts; the greater number of Spanish

expatriates are still in Mexico. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 533

Letter 2

Apr. 13, 1831. Tepic.

Irurita Goyera to de la Guerra on his return from Canton on Sept. 25, 1830; on meeting Carlos

[Carrillo] in Mexico; on political conditions in the republic; all are speaking of centralization; law of

expulsion; King Ferdinand's decree of allowing free trade between Havana and Spanish America;

asks de la Guerra to send him a good mule and two pelts; his daughter ill with fever. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 533

Letter 3
March 12, 1833. Tepic.

Irurita Goyera to de la Guerra on the well-being of both their families; the paralysis of commerce

during revolutions; Californians should be happy because of their tranquility; Carlos Carrillo will

bring political news; mentions Santa Ana, the archbishop of Mexico, General Cruz, and El Marqués

de Amarillas; the near recognition of independence of Mexico by Spain; asks de la Guerra to send a

barrel of wine and another of sardines every year, and some pelts. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 534

Letter 1
March 10, 1806. Mexico.

José de Iturrigaray to José de la Guerra appointing him lieutenant of the Santa Barbara presidial

company. Partly printed. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 535

Letter 1
Dec. 3, 1812. Tepic.

Santiago Mariano Jaime to José de la Guerra but wrongly addressed to José María Noriega

introducing him as the priest who visited him when the latter was in prison in Tepic and who gave

him fifty pesos for his needs; announcing that he has been freed of the charges imputed to him by the

government; is desirous of returning to Europe to obtain a teaching position or chaplaincy; asks de la

Guerra for a commendation; states that Spanish arms are conquering in Mexico; General José de la

Cruz' victory; mentions Brigadier General Diego García; Madrid has been reconquered by the

Spaniards; Napoleon's ill success in Spain, various Spanish generals mentioned; his companion,

Father Aguirre, is in Guadalajara. Partly torn. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 536

Letter 1
May 30, 1806. Soledad.

Fray Antonio Jayme, O.F.M., to José de la Guerra certifying the names of soldiers and their families

who complied with the Easter precept. The back of the document has an account unrelated to the

above. Spanish. 2 pp.
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Letter 1
Sept. 3, 1814. Soledad.

Jayme to de la Guerra sending to Josef Cavenesia a terciacita with a carpet; on the death of Fray

Andrés Quintana, O.F.M., whose death he never believed was a natural one. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 537

Letter 2
Nov. 11, 1815. Soledad.

Jayme to de la Guerra on receiving what de la Guerra had sent; chiding him for his poor writing;

Jayme's desire to return to Mallorca; his writing recently to Fray Antonio Ripoll, O.F.M., of Santa

Barbara thanking him for tobacco sent and for favors done by de la Guerra. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 537

Letter 3
Dec. 30, 1815. Soledad.

Jayme to de la Guerra on sending condolence on the death of the latter's mother and concerning

salmon. Mentions' the Tulareños and Fray Florencio [Ibáñez, O.F.M.] Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 537

Letter 4
March 3, 1816. Soledad.

Jayme to de la Guerra on his need for snuff; his recent illness and a visit by the doctor sent by the

governor. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 537

Letter 5
Apr. 21, 1816. Soledad.

Jayme to de la Guerra; a short note on minor local items. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 537

Letter 6
July 3, 1816. Soledad.

Jayme to de la Guerra on receiving the news of the death of a Doña Tomása; asking him for items;

asks about insurgents. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 537

Letter 7
Dec. 6, 1817. Soledad.

Jayme to de la Guerra stating he is sixty years old; useful for nothing; living in an isolated place and

saying rosaries; speaks of the Orizaba padres coming; inquires about Padre Antonio Ripoll, O.F.M.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 537

Letter 8
Sept. 26, 1821. Soledad.

Jayme to de la Guerra and Doña María Antonia sending his and Father Juan Cabot's, O.F.M.,

greetings. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 537

Letter 9

Aug. 15, 1820. Soledad.

Jayme to de la Guerra on the inavailability of ripened fruit; inability to send flour for lack of wheat;

nor a carpet because no present Indian has the skill. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 537

Letter 10
Oct. 29, 1821. Soledad.

Jayme Guerra (sic!) to de la Guerra stating he is coming to Santa Barbara on Nov. 5. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 537

Letter 11
Nov. 13, 1822. Santa Barbara.

Jayme to de la Guerra on his applying two Masses for the deceased Luís Peña. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 538

Letter 1
Apr. 24, 1850. Rancho San Agustín.

Auguste Victor Eugene Janssens to José de la Guerra concerning sales made on his ranch. Mentioned

are José Antonio Carrillo and Joaquín Carrillo. Spanish. 2 pp.
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Letter 1
Nov. 9, 1872. New York.

"Cuate" or apparently one of the twin sons of Manuel Jimeno Casarín and Angustias de la Guerra to

Francisco, Pablo, Antonio María and Miguel de la Guerra, complaining that he had not heard from

them though he had written three times from Mexico; returned to New York by way of Havana; had

been secretary at the American consulate for a brief time in Mexico under Skelton; Santiago desires

to return to California; his father to obtain a license from the Mexican government to open a ship line;

his mother to return to California; is going to see Mr. Hatch in Brooklyn concerning ships; is going to

Panama. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 541

Letter 1
Febr. 11, 1858. [Santa Barbara].

Fray Antonio Jimeno, O.F.M., to Pablo de la Guerra concerning funeral arrangements for his father,

José de la Guerra y Noriega. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 541

Letter 2
1859. Santa Barbara.

Jimeno to de la Guerra asking for the return of certain papers; is returning certain books to him.

Mentions [Fray Gerónimo] Boscana, O.F.M. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 541

Letter 3
Febr. 2, 1859. San Francisco.

Jimeno to de la Guerra on his returning to Mexico; Padre Francisco Caro, O.F.M. has written from

Rome as Pablo can learn from Fray José María González Rubio, O.F.M; learned from the archbishop

that the king of Prussia had become a Catholic; sends greetings to various persons. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 541

Letter 4
Sept. 27, 1859. Mexico.

Jimeno to de la Guerra on the Federalist forces occupying various ports; priests and religious expelled

from Zacatecas; earthquake damage in Mexico in the past year has been partly repaired at San

Fernando College; greetings to the family. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 541

Letter 5
May 20, 1860. [Mexico.]

Jimeno to de la Guerra on the activities of the friars of San Fernando College; his sending to Fray

José María González Rubio, O.F.M., various printed articles on the situation in Mexico; on news

received from de la Guerra on the Santa Barbara apostolic college affair from Rome; the violent

earthquake that occurred in Mexico in June, 1858; and the rebuilding of San Fernando College

despite the scarcity of money; the influx of friars from the College of Zacatecas into San Fernando,

having been expelled from Zacatecas; 111 friars at the college; General [Manuel] Victoria, former

governor of California, very old and had just come to see him. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 541

Letter 6
Apr. 9, 1861. Mexico.

Jimeno to de la Guerra stating the friars of San Fernando College were expelled a few days

previously; he intended to live with his sister, Dolores, but owing to her distance he decided to live in

a private house near San Fernando; the church not yet being taken from the friars; his brother, the

Diegueño friar, died at the end of August; had asked for some money for his nephews from Mariano

González. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 541

Letter 7
July, 4, 1861. Mexico.

Jimeno to de la Guerra on the civil war in the United States; banishment of bishops from Mexico;

family affairs; uncertainty of the mails; mentions Angustias de la Guerra and her economic affairs.

Spanish. 2 pp.
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Letter 8
Dec. 27, 1862. Mexico.

Jimeno to de la Guerra disappointed on not receiving mail; the economic affairs of Angustias de la

Guerra; on the apostolic college at Santa Barbara; the war in Mexico; on General Pacheco and

ex-governor Victoria; Jimeno and other friars ex-claustrated; [Benito] Juarez and his

anti-ecclesiastical laws; is sending letters through a Mr. Dalton. In an added note of Jan, 28, 1863, he

mentions Gaspar Oreña. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 542

Letter 1
Apr. 4, 1855. Mexico.

Fray Antonio Jimeno, O.F.M., guardian of Tacubaya friary, to Pablo de la Guerra on having read the

letter Pablo sent to Angustias de la Guerra from Havana; sends greetings to the de la Guerras; was

made guardian of Tacubaya just ten days before; Angustias [de la Guerra] still in Mexico is very

desirous of returning to California. [Note: this is a different person from Fray Antonio Jimeno

mentioned in previous documents. He calls himself a cuñado of Pablo, or [brother-in-law]. Spanish. 2

pp.

DLG 543

Letter 1

March 26, 1840. Monterey.

José Antonio Jimeno, son of Manuel Jimeno, to José de la Guerra, sending him, his grandfather,

greetings and certain items for his patronal feast day. Mentioned is José Antonio Carrillo. Spanish. 1

p.

DLG 544

Letter 1
Sept. 20, 1854.

José Antonio Jimeno to Pablo de la Guerra, begging him, his uncle, to write to him at Georgetown

College. Mentions a visit from Monseuir Ernesto Rambert from Mexico and José Ramón, a student at

the college. English. 2 pp.

DLG 544

Letter 2
Apr. 15, 1857. San Francisco.

Jimeno to de la Guerra on asking a Dr. Tibbits for money from a note which was postponed; asks de

la Guerra to send money. He and Santiago are boarders at Mission Dolores. English. 1 p.

DLG 544

Letter 3
Sept. 1, 1862. Santa Barbara.

Jimeno to de la Guerra on his arrival from Simi; people fearing the pest; on reported death of

Santiago Sánchez; on sending him newspapers; he lacks a horse. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 544

Letter 4
Aug. 27, 1863. Santa Barbara.

Jimeno to de la Guerra on political affairs in Santa Barbara; his being appointed inspector of the

electoral board. Mentioned are Heath, Roma, Pichi, Nicolás Covarrubias, Call, Hill, [Francis?]

McGuire, Escandón, Antonio Arrellanes and Pedro Carrillo who is opposed to de la Guerra. Spanish.

2 pp.

DLG 544

Letter 5
Sept. 17, 1865. Santa Barbara.

Jimeno to de la Guerra on recent elections. Named are Murphy, [Charles E.] Huse, Sturgeon and

Cooly. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 545

Letter 1
Febr. 17, l855. Boston.

José Antonio Jimeno to "dear sisters;" on his mother's absence in Mexico with Pablo de la Guerra;

Alfred Robinson's going to California; is sending pictures of the Jimeno boys, mentioned is Enrique

Mellus; Sully is fighting Indians in Minnesota. Spanish. 3 pp.
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Letter 1
March 20, 1857. San Francisco.

José Antonio Jimeno to James L. Ord on his losing $45.00 in a theater; the sale of the newspaper,

Californian to a Mr. Morrison for $1,600.00; is working for the newspaper; records a conversation

with a Mr. Tibbits concerning a note due for the purchase by Tibbits of his father's ranch. English. 4

pp.

DLG 547

Letter 1
Oct. 25, 1864. Santa Barbara.

Jimeno to Company C, Native California Cavalry, is ill abed; his thoughts on the civil war; his loyal

Americanism; followed by two verses entitled: "A Francisca en un papel de música," and "La Muerte

de M. A. L.", June 12, 1864. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 548

Letter 1
Sept. 8, 1833. Santa Ines.

Jimeno to de la Guerra sending him eight containers of tallow for Juan Elebe; is sending de la Guerra

some hides. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 548

Letter 2
Jan. 14, 1836. Santa Ines.

Fray José Joaquín Jimeno sending him ninety pesos which were received as Mass stipends; asks him

to send piece of indiana for the mission. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 548

Letter 3
Jan. 26, 1836.

Jimeno to de la Guerra on receiving two pieces of indiana (printed cotton); on Masses applied by him

and Padre [María Antonio] Victoria, O.F.M. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 548

Letter 4
Febr. 3, 1836. Santa Ines.

Jimeno to de la Guerra sending him Mass stipends to the amount of forty-five pesos; asks if the

indiana is to be paid for in hides or silver. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 548

Letter 5
Oct. 17, 18 37. Santa Ines

Jimeno to de la Guerra on sending a barrel of wine; twenty five hides prepared for shipment; and

asking him to send certain items; Fray Felipe Arroyo de la Cuesta, O.F.M., needs clothing. Spanish. 2

pp.

DLG 548

Letter 6
July 4, 1838. Santa Ines.

Jimeno to de la Guerra asking him to send brandy; mentions commercial items to send and to be sent.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 548

Letter 7
July 16, 1838. Santa Ines.

Jimeno to de la Guerra sending eight hides; money owed to [Alfred] Robinson to be paid in hides; on

Joaquín Carrillo having paid forty-six pesos for cattle. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 548

Letter 8
Sept. 10, 1838. Santa Ines.

Jimeno to de la Guerra on commercial and monetary items. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 548

Letter 9
Oct. 7, 1841. Santa Ines.

Jimeno to de la Guerra sending hides and asking for a barrel of wine; mentions a certain José

Antonio. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 548

Letter 10
Oct. 31, 1842. Santa Ines.

Jimeno to de la Guerra on the sale of sheep; mentions Don Gaspar; tithes from Zaca not paid.

Spanish. 2 pp.
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Letter 11
July 2, 1845. Santa Ines.

Jimeno to de la Guerra asking to give the bearer of the letter the remainder of the alms derived from

Mass intentions. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 548

Letter 12
Sept. 13, 1849. Santa Ines.

Jimeno to de la Guerra concerning sheep and the guardian of San Fernando College; on alms of Mass

intentions in the hands of de la Guerra. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 548

Letter 13
July 6, 1850. Santa Barbara.

Jimeno to de la Guerra concerning the application of Masses by the guardian of San Fernando

College. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 548

Letter 14
Dec. [21?], 1853. Santa Barbara.

Jimeno to de la Guerra on sending a person to accept alms from de la Guerra. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 548

Letter 15
March 8, 1855. Santa Barbara.

Jimeno to de la Guerra ordering thirty pesos to be given to a certain Señor Ignacio. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 549

Letter 1
Aug. 22, 1844. Santa Ines,

Fray José Joaquín Jimeno, O.F.M., to Fray Narciso Durán, O.F.M., concerning the college ranch

which is doing nicely; asks that money deposited with de la Guerra by Fray [Marcos Antonio]

Victoria, O.F.M., for use at Purisima be applied to the college, owing to the fact that he must pay in

money rather than in kind, since very few Indians remain at Purisima by reason of a measles

epidemic; horses have been overused in making trips to Purisima and Alamos to hear confessions;

Santa Ines has supplied horses, food and medicine; asks Durán to request de la Guerra through Juan

María Olivera to supply the rent of the money for his needs. Durán approved in a note at the head of

the same letter. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 550

Letter 1
July 7, 1847. Santa Ines

José Joaquín Jimeno to Pablo de la Guerra on the return of Vicente Pico to his family. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 550

Letter 2
Dec. 8, 1847.

Jimeno to de la Guerra asking him to remedy the insult, calumny and injury occasioned by José María

Covarrubias. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 550

Letter 3

Febr. 13, 1848. Santa Ines.

Jimeno to de la Guerra stating that the unnamed bearer of the letter out of fear of being jailed, hid

himself but now desires to present himself and implore pardon. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 550

Letter 4
Dec. 23, 1851. Santa Barbara.

Jimeno to Antonio María de la Guerra asking him to give to a person to be designated by Fray José

María González Rubio, O.F.M., what is outlined in an accompanying letter of his brother, Manuel.

Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 551

Letter 1
Febr. 18, 1861. San Francisco.

Porfirio Jimeno to Josefa María de la Guerra on his arrival after a horrible trip; on going to

Sacramento with his uncles Pablo and Francisco [de la Guerra]; his return to San Francisco where he

is sad and lonely. Spanish. 1 p.
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DLG 551

Letter 2
Sept. 24, 1864. Drum Barracks.

Jimeno to de la Guerra stating that he and Juan had visited Los Angeles, mentions Dolores Sepúlveda

and Concepción. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 551

Letter 3
Oct. 2, 1864. Drum Barracks.

Jimeno to de la Guerra on not receiving letters; on meeting Pablo de la Guerra in Los Angeles who is

soon going to Simi. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 551

Letter 4
Oct. 9, 1864. Drum Barracks.

Jimeno to de la Guerra mentioning a few items such as clothing and comforts. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 551

Letter 5
Oct. 27, 1864. Drum Barracks.

Jimeno to de la Guerra concerning letters between them; his army cap is "sad and ugly," is willing to

go anywhere else; his sending ten soldiers to Fort Mojave 300 miles distant; feels his life as a soldier

is a sad one. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 551

Letter 6
Oct. 18, 1864. Drum Barracks.

Jimeno to de la Guerra; remains sad; lacks money to buy cigars; mentions Captain Copeley, Antonio

María, Salvador Vallejo, J. M. Indart; an operation to be performed on the leg of José Antonio; wants

to hear news from home. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 551

Letter 7
Nov. 29, 1864. Drum Barracks.

Jimeno to de la Guerra stating he is soon to leave the barracks; life of a soldier is very sad; met Pablo

de la Guerra. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 551

Letter 8
Dec. 21, 1864. Drum Barracks.

Jimeno to de la Guerra on his illness. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 551

Letter 9
Jan. 21, 1865. Drum Barracks.

Jimeno to de la Guerra on his disappointment over not receiving letters; mentions family members;

soldiers soon to receive horses and arms; does not know where they are to be sent; he is in Company

"D" and is encamped about two miles out of Drum Barracks. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 551

Letter 10

Febr. 6, 1865. Drum Barracks.

Jimeno to de la Guerra complaining about not receiving mail; is in camp with 100 soldiers about four

leagues from Drum Barracks; mentions members of the family; the colonel is to leave and General

Mason is to come. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 551

Letter 11
Febr. 23, 1865. Drum Barracks.

Jimeno to de la Guerra complaining about lack of letters; mentions various relatives; saw Pablo de la

Guerra in Los Angeles; on a murder in camp; Captain Mundy was going to be killed; paymaster soon

to arrive; soldiers on good behavior can go to their homes; sent $80.00 in gold to his mother. Spanish.

3 pp.

DLG 551

Letter 12
May 6, 1865. Drum Barracks.

Jimeno to de la Guerra asking for letters. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 551

Letter 13
Aug. 3, 1865. Ft. Yuma.

Jimeno to De la Guerra asking for letters. Spanish. 2 pp.
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Letter 14
Oct. 30, 1865. Fort Mason, Arizona.

Jimeno to de la Guerra on letters; death of a certain Soto; his encounter with Apaches about sixty

leagues from Fort Mason, one of whom he killed; Arizona is "a sad, ugly country and without hardly

any civilized people; all talk is about Apaches; there is also fever, five die each day." Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 552

Letter 1
Dec. 22, 1864. Drum Barracks.

Porfirio Jimeno to Rebecca R. (Ord) Peshine sending Christmas greetings to members of the family.

English. 1 p.

DLG 553

Letter 1
July 10, 1864. Drum Barracks.

Porfirio Jimeno to Angustias de la Guerra y Ord on his orders to depart for Arizona on July 13;

mentions various members of the family; gives his new address. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 554

Letter 1
Aug. 3, 1865. Ft. Yuma.

Porfirio Jimeno to Pablo de la Guerra on his trip from Drum Barracks to Ft. Yuma which he calls "via

hell;" great heat, scorpions, flies and water situation. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 555

Letter 1
Apr. 6, 1867. Mazatlán.

Porfirio Jimeno to James L. Ord on various people he contacted in San Francisco; his sailing on the

Sarita for Mazatlán in fifteen days; gives messages to various relatives; will sail on to San Blas; take

the coach to Mexico City; difficulties in Mexico going out of a city limit without a passport; asks that

mail be addressed to 'Republica Mexicana,' since the empire is no more. English and Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 556

Letter 1
Oct. 14, 1839. Monterey.

Manuel Jimeno Casarín to José de la Guerra sending him an expediente and asking him to send it on

to the prefect. The matter, undisclosed, refers to an ex-juez de paz and a sub-prefect. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 556

Letter 2
Nov. 23, 1839. Monterey.

Jimeno to de la Guerra on [José Antonio] Aguirre leaving the day before bearing letters for José from

Guillermo and Pablito; [Juan] Malarín mentioned; speaks of an Indian uprising on the frontier; [Juan

Bautista] Alvarado to be installed on the morrow. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 556

Letter 3
Apr. 7, 1840. Monterey.

Jimeno to de la Guerra concerning the Isaac Graham affair; Padre José María Real's, O.F.M., alerting

the authorities concerning the conspiracy; on the murder of Diego Feliz' wife. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 556

Letter 4
Apr. 30, 1840. Monterey.

Jimeno to de la Guerra on the illness of the latter's wife; that of Ascención; the birth of a José

Francisco; on Padre Real's alerting the government on the Graham conspiracy; the measures taken; on

Santiago Argüello receiving news that the Queen of Spain is going to enter into new treaties with

Mexico; and that Bishop [Francisco] García Diego is en route to California. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 556

Letter 5
May 26, 1840. Monterey.

Jimeno to de la Guerra sending the letter through Guillermo [Hartnell] who is to start his second

inspection of the missions and to put into effect the new reglamento concerning them; on the

government giving him the lands of Santa Paula and Saticoy, and though there are some Indians on

the land he would protect them; also some cattle would be loaned to him; [J.B.] Alvarado unable to

resolve a financial matter with de la Guerra over an earlier slaughtering; Jimeno has bought two

herds; spells out various arrangements about taking over his new acquisition of land. Spanish. 6 pp.
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Letter 6
Jan. 26, 1841. Monterey.

Jimeno to de la Guerra concerning the land of Salsipuedes; Alvarado's coming south; discusses the

commercial situation in California with regard to ships; foreigners having the advantage; the Russians

are going to abandon Fort Ross; a ship from the Hudson Bay Company at Monterey; and Douglas

expressing his desire to establish trade relations by sea and land; asks that the news be communicated

to Father [Narciso] Durán, O.F.M. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 556

Letter 7
May 7, 1841. Monterey.

Jimeno to de la Guerra on the restoration to health of de la Guerra and his wife; on health in his own

family; is sending him a carta de naturaleza; on permission for Octaviano to remain at Santa Ines; on

his house; the brigantine, Chato; communication from the supreme government on strangers in

California. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 557

Letter 1
June 22, 1849. Monterey.

Manuel Jimeno Casarín to de la Guerra sending the latter a copy of the former's possession of the land

of Santa Paula; his claims for it better than those of a certain Sánchez the title being approved by

Governor Micheltorena in the name of the superior government; Don Eduardo offering to survey the

terrain; explains details of an agreement concerning the gold fields; the report of the establishment of

a tribunal to adjudicate land titles; the status of California in the American Union; an unnamed Italian

imposter claiming to be the new archbishop of California; [Thomas Oliver] Larkin and others having

a dance held in the home of Castro, the former's wife to arrive from the United States; Juan Antonio

Vallejo knocked unconscious while-shoeing at Jimeno's ranch, received the barrel of brandy Pablo

sent. 4 pp.

DLG 557

Letter 2
June 30, 1849. Monterey.

Jimeno to de la Guerra on the setback received with regard to the surveying of his land Don Eduardo

being the surveyor but the government disapproving; a schooner arriving from Mazatlán with an

American going to the placer; some American troops to sail for San Diego and the report of a

Mexican general arriving with soldiers to arrange for the national boundary; report of a revolt in the

Stanislaus region; on Pablo [de la Guerra] and Cuchichito coming as delegates to the State

Convention from Santa Barbara; various ships arriving at Monterey among them a Spanish one

selling wine and brandy. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 557

Letter 3
Febr. 16, 1852. Monterey.

Jimeno to de la Guerra concerning Rancho Santa Paula; Cuchichito going to Los Angeles to obtain

signature of Ortega for the rancho; on hearing from [Henry Wager] Halleck concerning the Lands

Claim Commission; one of the first ranchos to be considered will be San Julian; [David] Spence,

[Juan] Cooper and others going to San Francisco, to present claims; [José] Abrego wrote from

Acapulco about his going to Mexico City. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 557

Letter 4
Apr. 13, 1852. Monterey.

Jimeno to de la Guerra on having consulted on land issues; the decrease of Monterey's population by

fifty per cent; on hearing from Abrego; Mexican affairs have not advanced much; interest has

decreased to 6 % a year; Concepción Argüello made her religious profession as the first nun of

California; his visit to her; she sends greetings; has heard from the. Land Commission; opines it will

not finish its work in two years. Spanish. 2 pp.
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Letter 5
July 1, 1852. Monterey.

Jimeno to de la Guerra on José de la Guerra's return to health; on Father Ryder, tutor of his son,

Porfirio; José Antonio's return to his college of St. Joseph in Philadelphia; would like to visit Santa

Barbara and is looking for some students to take east with his own sons; mentions several family

names such as Robinson and Teresa Hartnell. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 558

Letter 1
Oct. 12, 1851. Pajaro Rancho.

Manuel Jimeno Casarín to Francisco de la Guerra on Señor Duarte who had worked at Rancho Alisal

going to Santa Barbara; on cattle; on youths to be sent to college; mentions Francisco and Miguel [de

la Guerra] the former of whom is ill. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 559

Letter 1
Dec. 15, 1851. Santa Barbara.

Manuel Jimeno Casarín to Antonio de la Guerra asking him to give José Jimeno 100 pesos. Spanish. 1

p.

DLG 560

Letter 1
July 1, 1852. Monterey.

Manuel Jimeno Casarín to José Antonio and Porfirio Jimeno on having received their English letter;

on Father Ryder's letter from San Francisco; [Alfred] Robinson and his wife not yet arrived in San

Francisco; the son of Larkin in Monterey but knows no Spanish; the sons of [José] Abrego have

written from Mexico; speaks of members of the family. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 561

Letter 1
June 6, 1861. San Luís Obispo.

Charles H. Johnson to Pablo de la Guerra asking him if he is going to run for the Senate again and if

not he himself would like to run; gives political viewpoints of the country. English. 2 pp.

DLG 561

Letter 2
June 29, 1861. San Luis Obispo.

Johnson to de la Guerra on election matters, if Pablo is not to run for the Senate, Johnson would like

to and have Pablo's backing. English. 2 pp.

DLG 562

Letter 1
Nov. 17, 1863. Los Angeles.

Charles Robinson Johnson to Pablo de la Guerra commending a Mr. Charles H. Lander, a friend, a

strong Union man and perfectly competent, and though fond of whiskey, should be appointed court

commissioner. English. 1 p.

DLG 562

Letter 2

Nov. 28, 1863. Los Angeles.

Johnson to de la Guerra on the inadequacy of the sheriff of Los Angeles County; the military seems to

have taken charge of criminal matters in the county. English. 1 p.

DLG 563

Letter 1
Aug. 23, 1871. Santa Barbara.

Joseph A. Johnson to Pablo de la Guerra asking an early answer on the amount paid to him during the

past ten years by the county clerk. English. 1 p.

DLG 564

Letter 1
Nov. 28, 1850. San Francisco.

James M. Jones to Pablo de la Guerra suggesting that the latter being state senator and marshal at the

same time, retain his senatorship until April when his position as marshal becomes effective; Daniel

Douglas received same position; Pablo should not announce his acceptance of marshal until April;

Jones is going-to Mexico on research; congratulates Pablo. English. 4 pp.
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Letter 1
May 22, 1851. Los Angeles.

William Carey Jones to Pablo de la Guerra sending him copies of a circular he published the contents

of which he asks to be made public to the landholders of Pablo's area; is to come to Santa Barbara

soon; considers the land laws passed by Congress unjust and tyrannical; says he has diseños of El

Conejo, Alamos, San Julian and Simi; opines that the town of Santa Barbara can establish claim to a

considerable tract as common lands. English. 4 pp.

DLG 566

Letter 1
Jan. 27, 1856. Santa Barbara.

John Kays to Pablo de la Guerra calling his and General Covarrubias' attention to the school fund;

Fisher, former superintendent resigned; Guillermo Carrillo was appointed but did not qualify; Kays

did; asks de la Guerra to aid the school situation in the county by obtaining full appropriation for

1856. English. l p.

DLG 567

Letter 1
June 2. 1840. Santa Barbara.

Manuela (Carrillo) Jones to José de la Guerra and María Antonia (Carrillo) de la Guerra announcing

the birth of twins and asking the de la Guerras to be godparents. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 568

Letter 1
Nov. 18, 186[?]. Sacramento.

John T. Knox to Pablo de la Guerra asking him to support him in his probable candidacy as

sergeant-at-arms for the state Senate. English. 1 p.

DLG 569

Letter 1
Apr. 5, 1810. San Blas.

José Joaquín de Labayen to José de la Guerra on sending him twelve libras of chocolate and an empty

barrel to be filled with wine and to be returned to him; these were sent through José Cavenecia on the

Tagle who will also inform him on events in Spain; Labayen is sending along newspapers from

Mexico; Gaspar Maguna sends greetings. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 569

Letter 2
Febr. 15, 1813. Compostela.

Labayen to de la Guerra on taking over the commandancy of San Blas; his double attack of fever; his

convalescence in Compostela, the best climate of the area while that of San Blas is cursed; on sending

a list of items he wishes to buy through Captain Nicolás Noé of the Mercante Flora; conditions in

Mexico, insurgents, robbers along the roads; conditions in Spain; most probably the French have

departed. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 570

Letter 1
Dec. 3, 1860. Ukiah.

Joseph B. Lamar to José María Covarrubias congratulating him on his return to the legislature and

asking him to support Doctor Q. B. Price as candidate for physician at the insane asylum. O'Farrell is

mentioned. English. 2 pp.

DLG 571

Letter 1
Oct. 4, 1843.

Thomas Oliver Larkin to Lewis T. Burton asking him to put at the disposal of José de la Guerra the

beams belonging to Larkin in the possession of Burton. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 572

Letter 1
Dec. 6, 1845. Monterey.

Thomas Oliver Larkin to Pablo de la Guerra announcing that he has appointed Guillermo Leidesdorff

as American vice-consul in San Francisco. Spanish. 1 p.
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Letter 2
June 13, 1850. New York.

Larkin to de la Guerra on receiving a report on districts from Mariano Guadalupe Vallejo; asks de la

Guerra to write to him in English at least monthly; Anita de la Guerra Robinson and family are

staying at the Irving House; a visit by the Jimeno brothers; his leaving Boston the day before with

[Juan] Cooper and his two eldest sons; describes trip and expenses; ordered copper plate struck with

names; concerning a document sent to de la Guerra; a deed and mortgage for the San Jose orchard

which Andrés Pico is to sign; intends to buy a house in New York; expenses of his trip east; describes

living conditions. English. 3 pp.

DLG 572

Letter 3
Jan. 2, 1855. San Francisco.

Larkin to de la Guerra, hoping the latter will come to San Francisco, and that he will frame some bills

to reduce the number of city and county offices; San Francisco almost bankrupt; land cases; proposes

a Mr. Reading as a candidate for senator; concerning stamped paper in Monterey in the forties.

English. 3 pp.

DLG 572

Letter 4

Jan. 19, 1856. San Francisco.

Larkin to de la Guerra on the latter not answering a letter; asks that some legislative documents be

sent to him; on the death of W. M. D. Howard. English. 1 p.

DLG 573

Letter 1
Dec. 20, 1848. Santiago, Chile.

Francisco de la Lastra to Antonio María de la Guerra on receiving his letter of June 30; the delay due

to the death of Carlos Wooster, the bearer; on the death of his own son, Pio; his friendship with de la

Guerra; his sons Pancho and Pedro coming to see him; will sell effects; mentions the discovery of

gold in California, a number of Chileans going to California among them, José Manuel Yzquierdo,

and three of the Solares family. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 574

Letter 1
Sept. 11, 1842. Yerba Buena.

Cesareo Lataillade to José de la Guerra on a commercial transaction on hides and tallow and on other

sales. Mentioned are José Antonio Aguirre and P. M. Andrade. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 574

Letter 2
May 25, 1845. Monterey.

Lataillade to de la Guerra on receiving a letter from the latter through Juan Pablo Peralta; on planning

to travel south; on two accompanying letters for José Antonio Aguirre; on the arrival of the ship

Fama, captained by Noé from the Sandwich Islands, bringing de la Guerra's grandson, Juanito

Hartnell; on Paredes' triumph over Santa Ana in Mexico; difficulties on the ship visiting various

California ports; reported war between Mexico and the United States; lumber being sent from Santa

Cruz for de la Guerra through Baric; about 100 copies of newspapers in his possession. Mentioned are

Castro, Castañares, [Manuel] Micheltorena and Jimeno. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 574

Letter 3
Sept. 26, 1848. Rancho de "Hicks."

Lataillade to de la Guerra on his arrival at the rancho and preparations for going to the goldfields;

Don Andrés and his people also there; the people from Sonora have gone to the Estanislao River; the

situation at the mines; mentions Romualdo Pacheco, Don Francisco, and a certain Chato. Sutter's Fort

is ten leagues from Hick's Rancho. Spanish. 3 pp.
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Letter 1
Dec. 18, 1844.

Copies of letters to Lataillade in one document. 1) to Salvador Vallejo, Sausalito, Dec. 18, 1844,

concerning wheat. Mentions Kostromitinoff. 2) to Jacob Leese, Sausalito, Dec. 18, 1844, on a

commercial transaction. Mentioned are Benito Díaz, Señor [Noé?], Sutter and Thompson. 3) an

undated letter to Guadalupe Vallejo on a commercial transaction. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 576

Letter 1
July 13, 1847. Santa Barbara.

Cesareo Lataillade to José de la Guerra: a certificate of de la Guerra's registration as a Spanish citizen.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 576

Letter 2
Oct. 19, 1847. Santa Barbara.

Lataillade to de la Guerra: certification of de la Guerra's Spanish citizenship. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 577

Letter 1
May 14, 1849. Mazatlán.

Eugenio Lataillade to José de la Guerra on disasters which befell both of them, the nature of which is

not mentioned; on his writing to Pablo de la Guerra on the pending negotiations between his deceased

brother and Vega y Hermosa; the liquidation of the debt owed to the company; asks de la Guerra to

aid in effecting a conclusion of the matter. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 578

Letter 1
Washington, D.C. May 24, 1860.

Milton Slocum Latham to Pablo de la Guerra on the resolution he presented in the United States

Senate concerning Punta de la Concepcion. English. 1 p.

DLG 578

Letter 2
June 2, 1860. Washington, D.C.

Latham to de la Guerra on presenting the latter's name to President Buchanan for appointment as

minister to Guatemala and Honduras, its being declined because only one Californian could be given

a foreign assignment; [John?] Bigelow already in Chile but on his return soon, Latham will present

Pablo's name once more. English. 2 pp.

DLG 578

Letter 3
Dec. 12, 1860 Washington, D.C.

Latham to de la Guerra concerning a claim made by John Clar; on Carrillo's (brother-in-law of Pablo)

claim against damage done his ranch by the El Cojo lighthouse; is sending a copy of the

Congressional Globe; the country "is in a terrible condition and I fear our Union is gone." English. 2

pp.

DLG 578

Letter 4
Dec. 17, 1860. Washington, D.C.

Latham to de la Guerra on Charles E. Pickett's request to obtain a franchise to run a railroad in the

city of San Francisco. English. 1 p.

DLG 579

Letter 1
July 25, 1834. Los Angeles.

Juan Bautista Leandry to José de la Guerra on his arrival from San Pedro; on the arrival there of the

Margarita on board of which were various creditors of a Mr. Johnson. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 579

Letter 2
Sept. 2, 1834.

Leandry to de la Guerra on meeting with Johnson and his promise to take care of a matter proposed

by de la Guerra. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 579

Letter 3
Sept. 24, 1834.

Leandry to de la Guerra on interviews with Johnson and the composition of a debt between them.

Spanish. 4 pp.
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Letter 1
Apr. 29, 1861. San Francisco.

Henry Leffingwell to Pablo de la Guerra on the request made by Eugene Lies representing Pablo for

the sale of one half of El Conejo Rancho with 300 or 400 sheep; Leffingwell is agreeable to act as

agent his commission to be 5 % if the sale goes through; de la Guerra is to send him a description of

the ranch. English. 2 pp.

DLG 581

Letter 1
Apr. 15, 1849. Santa Barbara.

María Antonia Leiva to Antonio José Cot asking him for assistance because of the illness of her

husband. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 582

Letter 1
Aug. 29, 1821. Guaymas.

Pedro de Leiva to Fray Tomás de Ahumada, O. P., on the ships anchored at Guaymas, La Preciosa

from Spain, Santa Rita and El Ruperto from Manila, and El Señoriano from San Blas; is willing to

stop at Mulegé to take on whatever he may wish to send; on the defeat of [Agustín] Iturbide; a report

from Durango; the departure of Viceroy [Juan] O'Donojú; mentions Negrete, Quintanar and

Bustamante; Spanish troops still in Mexico; asks him to communicate the news to the other

missionaries; Ahumada adds that Fray Domingo Luna; O. P., of Mission Santo Tomás, will write and

from that mission the Franciscans in Upper California will be contacted. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 583

Letter 1
June 16, 1854. San Francisco.

Lorenzo de León to José de la Guerra on his former letter to him delivered through the courtesy of

Fray José Joaquín Jimeno, O.F.M., and Fray Francisco Sánchez, thanking him for past favors; on

waiting for the pallium for the archbishop of San Francisco to be brought by Bishop [Tadeo] Amat of

Monterey; on the privilege bestowed upon him to act as subdeacon and of handling the sacred vessels.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 583

Letter 2
Febr. 7, 1855. San Francisco.

De León to de la Guerra on his being called back to his original seminary [in Mexico] by his prelate;

Loza; and the poverty of his parents. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 584

Letter 1
Dec. 22, 1853. Santa Barbara.

Eugene Lies to Pablo de la Guerra asking him to have a notarial seal made for him in San Francisco

and to inquire as to what elements it should contain; a tentative drawing of one appears at end of the

letter. English. 1 p.

DLG 584

Letter 2
Jan. 27, 1859. In the Senate.

Lies to de la Guerra on receiving a letter in Latin from the latter; Don Andrés to make his separation

move; Romualdo Pacheco has presented to the senate a petition to make San Buenaventura into a

separate county; Lies to give his opinion on it to Hancock; a senate resolution asks California

congressmen in Washington to obtain passage of an act authorizing the government to inquire again

into land titles after their final confirmation; another resolution on [David] Broderick's case; the

supreme court considered the Monterey decree in Jones vs Thompson bad in many particulars; Don

Joaquín [Carrillo?] mentioned; Lies' letters to Antonio María de la Guerra concerning the beneficiary

of Lasenade [Lataillade?]; is awaiting instructions from the Board of Supervisors with regard to

funding a debt. English. 4 pp.
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Letter 3
Jan 21, 1860. San Francisco.

Lies to de la Guerra on Latham's promise to Lies to make him commissioner of the funded debt of

San Francisco as soon as he become an American citizen. This accomplished, he asks de la Guerra to

call on Latham and do what is needful with Governor Downey in whose hand the appointment lies.

English 1 p.

DLG 584

Letter 4
Febr. 17, 1859. The Assembly.

Lies to de la Guerra stating that the resolutions of Andrés Pico are in progress but will be stillborn; is

glad he is a member of the Assembly where he can defend the interests of the rancheros; on Pablo's

suit against Miguel Smith; asks him to write to Packard instead of to him; is sending Bott's circulars;

he is to tell Packard to take it and stop the Herald which calls all Californians "niggers." English. 2

pp.

DLG 584

Letter 5
Apr. 4, 1860. San Francisco.

Lies to De la-Guerra concerning a law about to pass in the Assembly exempting San Mateo County

from the general law which permits the conducting of water from one place to another without

prejudicing anyone. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 584

Letter 6
Oct. 3, 1860. San Francisco.

Lies to de la Guerra on delivering his corrected proofs to the state printer and asking de la Guerra for

another term of the office [of translator?]. English. 1 p.

DLG 584

Letter 7
Dec. 6, 1860. Sacramento.

Lies to de la Guerra on a number of Douglas senators determined to support Watkins as president of

the Senate, while others in favor of de la Guerra would receive the Breckenridge, Black Republican

and some Douglas votes, de la Guerra being thus informed lest he commit himself. English. 1 p.

DLG 584

Letter 8
March 26, 1861. San Francisco.

Lies to de la Guerra on losing a gold pen holder; on wondering why the Senate will not pass on an

account in which Lies is involved; people think Nugent will be elected; mentions Pico, Sutton and

Carter. English. 1 p.

DLG 584

Letter 9
May 16, 1863. San Francisco.

Lies to de la Guerra on the coming election of delegates to the Sacramento Convention to be held

June 17; the two from Santa Barbara should come uncommitted on any proposition but that of Lies;

he would like de la Guerra and Packard to come. English. 1 p.

DLG 584

Letter 10
June 29, 1863. San Francisco.

Lies to de la Guerra on the need of his coming up to give testimony on the case of [Abel] Stearns vs

the U.S.; the testimony of Francisco de la Guerra could also be used, Pablo to bring along papers

relating to the Monterey Customs House; mentioned are Benito Díaz and José Andrade. English. 2

pp.

DLG 584

Letter 11
Dec. 10, 1863. San Francisco.

Lies to de la Guerra stating he is going to Sacramento to obtain a commission for the latter;

concerning a bill on terms of appointment to First Judicial District; on San Diego; an imprudent

remark made by Antonio María de la Guerra. English. 1 p.
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DLG 584

Letter 12
Dec. 19, 1863. Sacramento.

Lies to de la Guerra on the terms to be observed in the First Judicial District, is assured that de la

Guerra's commission as district judge has been sent in; Lies is about to send to Santa Barbara for

wine; mentions [Lewis] Burton and [Albert?] Packard. English. 1 p.

DLG 584

Letter 13
Jan. 26, 1864. San Francisco.

Lies to de la Guerra concerning a settlement with a Mr. Yale on financial matters; a statement to be

sent to de la Guerra; Lies' letter to Antonio María de la Guerra asking him to fix things in secret as to

enable Lies to represent one or more voters of Santa Barbara at the approaching convention whose

object is to send delegates to the national nomination convention. English. 2 pp.

DLG 584

Letter 14
Oct. 27, 1865. San Francisco.

Lies to de la Guerra on the Church vs de la Guerra case, money matters; pay for a Mr. Sloan; deposit

in hands of Mr. Sullivan; mentions Packard and Don Gaspar. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 584

Letter 15
Nov. 22, 1865. San Francisco.

Lies to de la Guerra asking the latter's help in behalf of W. C. Straton to obtain the position of state

librarian. English. 2 pp.

DLG 584

Letter 16
June 13, 1869. San Francisco.

Lies to de la Guerra concerning two deeds made out by de la Guerra and Halleck re the Nicasio

Rancho: cites section of deed made out by de la Guerra on June 22, 1858. English. 3 pp.

DLG 585

Letter 1
March 26, 1856. Mexico.

José Yves Limantour to Pablo de la Guerra concerning the suit of his sister, Angustias; speaks of the

occupation of Puebla. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 586

Letter 1
July 16, 1812. San Blas,

Antonio Linares to José de la Guerra on the return of the Flora which set out from Panama; the arrival

of La Reina de los Angeles, May 31, proceeding from Panama; the spirit of the merchants of his day;

the defeat of Morelos by Calleja; mentions García Conde, Rayón; no insurgents in Nueva Galicia;

Varela going to Guaymas; Cubillas went to Panama on the Flora; speaks of the convoy for

Guadalajara; mentions la Bahía de San Bernardo, Zacatecas, Tampico; the marriages of Josefa

Villareal and a certain Iñigo. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 586

Letter 2
Dec. 12, 1812. San Blas.

Linares to de la Guerra expressing personal ideas; references to Virgil and St. Augustine; states

Spaniards have retaken a large section of their country from the French; casualties in deaths and

prisoners; mentions "Pepe el Borracho;" Wellington, Carrierre and Marmonte; conditions in Mexico;

Noe's return from Panama; he himself is preparing to go to Manila in a ship captained by Pedro Foro.

Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 586

Letter 3
June 1, 1819. Tepic.

Linares to de la Guerra on his long stay in Manila and his arrival at San Blas on Dec. 18, 1818; his

receiving eighty-seven bales of goods from a friend but which in the end were no good to him.

Spanish. 1 p.
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DLG 587

Letter 1
July 24, 1847. Santa Barbara.

Francis James Lippitt to Pablo de la Guerra apologizing for the sentinel who the day before stopped

him from going through the American lines, explaining that the officer of the day had neglected to

instruct the sentinels. English. 1 p.

DLG 588

Letter 1
March 6, 1852. New York.

John Livingston to Pablo de la Guerra on the latter's name proposed for inclusion in Portraits and

Memoirs of Eminent Americans now Living; asks him to send a daguerrotype of himself and an

account of his life. English. 1 p.

DLG 589

Letter 1
Nov. 12, 1856. San Francisco.

Juan Francisco Llebaría to Pablo de la Guerra introducing Patrick O'Reyly applying for the position

of sergeant-at-arms in the Senate and asks la Guerra to sponsor him. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 590

Letter 1
July 28, 1857. Santa Barbara.

Vicente Llover to José de la Guerra: a receipt. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 591

Letter 1
Jan. 24, 1868. Shasta, Calif.

Mrs. W. Long to Pablo de la Guerra identifying herself as an acquaintance in earlier Sacramento days,

asking him to aid her brother who had come from Ohio, and who is a lawyer, to get established in

business in southern California; he will be glad to serve as clerk or to teach; her husband's health

would also be better in the south. English. 3 pp.

DLG 592

Letter 1
June 20, 1851. San Julian.

Gregorio López to José de la Guerra about receiving cattle in compensation for his work. Spanish. 2

pp.

DLG 593

Letter 1
Jan. 7, 1851.

Julia López to José de la Guerra on loans. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 594

Letter 1
Aug. 20, 1859.

Julia López to Pablo de la Guerra concerning a loan given her by José de. la Guerra shortly before his

death. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 595

Letter 1
Oct. 18, 1814. Mission Loreto, Lower California.

Fray Ramón López, O.P. to José de la. Guerra on saddles and newspapers. Mentioned are Fray

Ramón Oblés, O.F.M., Antonio Menéndez, O.P., Padre González, O.P., José Martínez, O.P. and a

Padre Pedro. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 595

Letter 2
March 18, 1815. Loreto.

López to de la Guerra concerning saddles. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 596

Letter 1
c. 1834.

Jacinto Lorenzana to José de la Guerra on cattle. Mentioned is Fray Blas [Ordaz] O.F.M., of Mission

Santa Ines. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 598

Letter 1
Febr. 22, 1825. Los Angeles.

List of available men for the presidios of Monterey and San Francisco including those legitimately

unemployed and the single men of good character and indicating those who are only sons of widows

or invalids. Signed by Anastasio Carrillo. Spanish. 2 pp.
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DLG 599

Letter 1
March 4, 1850. Los Angeles.

Notification of measures taken by the city council and citizens of Los Angeles to protest the

admission of California as a state of the Union. Original document signed by Ignacio del Valle, first

alcalde, and by Manuel Requeña, member of the council. 5 pp. English translation. cc. 5 pp. The

resolution was made on March 3, 1850. Spanish. 1 p. March 3, 1850. Representations made to

senators and representatives of the U.S. Congress against the admission of California as a state

recommending that Southern California remain in a territorial status. The question was one of taxes.

Spanish. English translation. Contemporary Copy. 4 pp.

DLG 600

Letter 1
Febr. 22, 1819. Los Angeles.

The ayuntamiento of Los Angeles to Juan Ruíz de Apodaca, Conde de Venadito: a petition for a

diocesan priest to attend to the spiritual needs of Los Angeles. A draft. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 601

Letter 1
Febr. 4, 1816. Los Angles.

List of Los Angeles settlers giving year of their arrival, land holdings, etc. Written and signed by

Guillermo Cota. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 602

Letter 1
Jan. 20, 1823. Los Angeles.

List of members of the local militia of the pueblo under jurisdiction of Presidio Santa Barbara.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 603

Letter 1
Febr. 15, 1823. Los Angeles.

List of disabled and active soldiers and their families obliged to observe the Paschal precept. In hand

of Guillermo Cota. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 604

Letter 1
Oct. 24, 1861. San Francisco.

Archbishop Pedro Loza y Pardavé to Pablo de la Guerra appointing the latter as his representative

concerning the college of Santa Ines. mentioned are Bishop Escalante, Bishop Amat, the Bishop of

Marysville and Rev. Domingo [Cipriano] Rubio of Santa Ines. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 605

Letter 1
June 5, 1836. Los Angeles.

Felipe Lugo to José de la Guerra on a commercial transaction. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 606

Letter 1
Aug. 16, 1854.. Washington, D.C.

Robert McClelland to Pablo de la Guerra asking him to send in the "usual estimates for your office

for the fiscal year ending June 30, 1856." Partly printed. English. 1 p.

DLG 607

Letter 1
March 21, 1859. Sacramento.

Joseph W. McCorkel and others to Pablo de la Guerra on the meeting of the Democratic State Central

Committee to be held on Apr. 21. Printed circular letter. English. 1 p.

DLG 608

Letter 1
July 18, 1823. Monterey.

McCulloch, Hartnell & Co., to José Estevan on restrictions with regard to loading his ship. Spanish. 1

p.

DLG 609

Letter 1
Dec. 21, 1869. Sacramento.

Frederick A. McDougal to María Antonia (Pacheco) McDougal on the condition of Juan José de la

Guerra after an accident. A telegram. English. 1 p.
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DLG 610

Letter 1
Nov. 19, 1860. San Francisco.

James A, McDougal to Pablo de la Guerra on the recent national elections; mentions [Abraham]

Lincoln and [Stephen A.] Douglas; intends to run for the senate. English. 3 pp.

DLG 611

Letter 1
Febr. 17, 1860. San Francisco.

Sister Frances McInnis to Pablo de la Guerra on acknowledging a state appropriation for the Roman

Catholic Orphan Asylum for girls. Gives statistics on inmates and the state of expenditures. English. 2

pp.

DLG 612

Letter 1
Nov. 10, 1856. Sonoma.

John McGlinchy to Pablo de la Guerra declaring his candidacy for doorkeeper of the Senate. English.

1 p.

DLG 612

Letter 2
Oct. 5, 1859. Sonoma.

McGlinchy to de la Guerra renewing his candidacy for doorkeeper of the senate now called assistant

sergeant-at-arms. English. 1 p.

DLG 613

Letter 1
Febr. 18, 1829. Mazatlán.

Juan Nepomuceno Machado to José de la Guerra on waiting for the ship, Dorotea; treats of the

contract made between de la Guerra and Francisco X. Espeleta in Mexico and outlines the conditions

by which it should be carried out. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 613

Letter 2
March 4, 1829. Mazatlán.

Machado to de la Guerra still awaiting the Dorotea and intention of sending it to San Blas so that the

contract between de la Guerra and Espeleta may be fulfilled; the proximate expulsion of all Spaniards

from Mexico. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 613

Letter 3
March 25, 1829. Mazatlán.

Machado to de la Guerra on the latter's purchase of the sloop, Dorotea, the coming expulsion of

Spaniards from Mexico; Antonio Belloc captain of the ship. There is a duplicate. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 613

Letter 4
Apr. 8, 1829. Mazatlán.

Machado to de la Guerra on bargaining for the ship, Dorotea; Espeleta having sold it in good faith and

on which de la Guerra had paid 1,000 pesos; apparently Espeleta had not full ownership; Machado

continues to work on the case; Belloc's opposition to giving up the ship: Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 613

Letter 5
Apr. 27, 1829. Mazatlán.

Machado to de la Guerra on Belloc's surrender of the ship, Dorotea, bought from Francisco X.

Espeleta by de la Guerra; it is to sail for San Blas that very day; Machado to inform Eustaquio Barron

to see that it is transferred; 3,500 pesos still due as payment; on sending tallow to San Blas or

Mazatlán. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 613

Letter 6
Apr. 27, 1829. Mazatlán.

Machado to De le Guerra stating that the Dorotea sailed for San Blas; the cook, José Andrade wishing

to become majordomo of the vessel a decision left to de la Guerra. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 613

Letter 7
July 12, 1832. Mazatlán.

Machado to de la Guerra: an order concerning payment by de la Guerra to Espeleta of 958 pesos.

Spanish. 1 p.
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DLG 613

Letter 8
Aug. 4, 1832. Mazatlán.

Machado to de la Guerra on financial matters; asks de la Guerra to send him otter skins from San

Diego; mentions Juan Ignacio Mancisidor and Francisco X. Espeleta. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 613

Letter 9
July 12, 1832. Mazatlán.

Machado to de la Guerra on not having heard from him concerning the tallow he had promised to

send him. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 613

Letter 10
Jan. 24, 1844. Puerto [de Mazatlán

Machado to de la Guerra on receiving the otter skins ordered; the coming of José María Otero to

Mexico; current prices; mentions a certain Gaspar. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 614

Letter 1
July 24, 1842. Mazatlán.

Machado, Yeoward y Cía to José de la Guerra on a naval expedition leaving for California in which

the firm's ship, Primavera, captained by Alejo Chiene, is participating; opines that José de Andrade

and José María Otero have already arrived in California. There is a duplicate. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 615

Letter 1
Sept. 28, 1859. Jane City, Amador County, Calif.

Alexander McKee to Pablo de la Guerra proposing himself as candidate for engraving clerk for the

senate. Gives as references J. A. Eagan and B. I. Bradley. English. 1 p.

DLG 616

Letter 1
Nov. 14, 1859. Sacramento.

John H. McKune to Pablo de la Guerra stating that he wishes for a client to purchase some land

between the Cosumnes River and Dry Creek which may be owned by William Hartnell. Asks several

questions concerning it. English. 3 pp.

DLG 617

Letter 1
Febr. 20, 1824. Guadalajara.

José de la Madrid Cubillas to Juan Malarín concerning a financial matter with José de la Guerra.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 618

Letter 1
May 31, 1856. George Washington College, D. C.

B. A. Maguire to Alfred Robinson concerning the unpaid college bills for José de la Guerra and

Queremón Carrillo. English. 2 pp.

DLG 619

Letter 1
July 1, 1813. Loreto.

An order by Felipe Maitorena to the habilitado of San Diego to pay a sum of money to Fray Tomás de

Ahumada, O.P. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 620

Letter 1
Dec. 18, 1816. Monterey.

José Joaquín Maitorena to José de la Guerra on the arrival of Isabel on the 10th; thanks him for the

loan of a soldier, Ignacio Ruíz, to accompany her; reminds de la Guerra of two requests he had made

and which have not been fulfilled. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 620

Letter 2
Aug. 15, 1822. Santa Barbara.

Martiarena to de la Guerra on soldiers. Mentioned are Luís Palomares and Francisco López. Spanish.

2 pp.

DLG 620

Letter 3
Sept. 7, 1822. Los Angeles.

Martiarena to de la Guerra on commercial matters, Named are a Padre González, a certain Enrique,

San Pedro, Mission San Gabriel, [Juan} Malarín, Dámaso, [Rodríguez?] José el Inglés [Chapman?]

and sergeant Anastasio [Carrillo?]. Spanish. 4 pp.
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DLG 620

Letter 4
Sept. 20, 1822. Los Angeles.

Martiarena to de la Guerra on going from San Pedro to San Gabriel on mercantile matters and a

request of Tomás Yorba. Mentioned are: sergeant Anastasio [Carrillo?], Guillermo Hartnell, Antonio

Cot, Santiago, Dámaso, [Rodríguez?] and Vicente Sánchez. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 620

Letter 5
Oct. 20, 1822. San Fernando.

Maitorena to de la Guerra on receiving his letter at the mission. Mentions several short items.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 620

Letter 6
Febr. 12. No year.

Maitorena to de la Guerra on the need for the missions to supply certain items for the soldiers; Padre

[Marcos Antonio] Victoria, O.F.M., has not carried out his charges well; San Fernando has not yet

sent in its enrollment statistics (padrones). Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 621

Letter 1
July 8, 1845. Lima.

Antonio Malagrida to José de la Guerra on financial matters. Mentioned are Juan B. Valdevellano,

José Antonio Aguirre, Juan José Amat, José Antonio Cot, the ship, Guipuzcoana, and Cesareo

Lataillade. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 621

Letter 2
Apr. 20, 1848, Lima.

Malagrida to de la Guerra concerning a debt of José Antonio Aguirre. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 621

Letter 3
Dec. 13, 1849. Lima.

Malagrida to de la Guerra on a debt owed to the former by Cesareo Lataillade and de la Guerra's

willingness to pay; Malagrida's financial setbacks; much immigration to California; asks him to send

money to London by an English ship by way of Panama in care of Cristóbal Murietta. mentioned is

Ramón Arias; asks de la Guerra to tell Aguirre to pay him what he owes him and send him a list of

the needs of California in the matter of merchandise. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 621

Letter 4
Apr. 19, 1850. Lima.

Malagrida to de la Guerra on the [Cesareo] Lataillade debt. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 621

Letter 5
July 10, 1850. Lima.

Malagrida to de la Guerra on paying the debt of [Cesareo] Lataillade; is to send a sum of 3,908 pesos

to Estevan Splivolo; commercial details. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 621

Letter 6
Jan. 11, 1853. Lima.

Malagrida to de la Guerra on the [Cesareo] Lataillade debt. He may send the money either by the

Indares Cía Hermanos of Los Angeles or through Domingo Danglada of San Francisco. Spanish. 2

pp.

DLG 622

Letter 1
Sept. 15, 1820. Monterey.

Juan Malarín to José de la Guerra describing his trip to Monterey with regard to the sea and weather;

intends to sail directly to San Blas but can stop at Port San Luis where he can pick up what de la

Guerra may have to ship provided it is ready at ship's arrival. Partly torn. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 622

Letter 2
Apr. 10, 1821. Monterey.

Malarín to de la Guerra on becoming ill at arriving at San Blas; is going to visit the missions overland

as far as "el punto" [de San Luis?] where he hopes to meet de la Guerra; the ship will follow

afterwards touching at San Luis and Santa Barbara; Juan Cubillas in charge of the vessel; has

received no reply from Fray Antonio Ripoll, O.F.M. Spanish. 2 pp.
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DLG 622

Letter 3
Febr. 3, 1822. Pueblo [de los Angeles].

Malarín to de la Guerra on receiving the printed matter sent; on de la Guerra's restoration to health;

commercial matters. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 622

Letter 4
May 28, 1822. Tepic.

José de Cubillas, José Medina and Guillermo Anstin, captain of the American ship,

La Panther, stating their authorization to pick up 10,000 arrobas of tallow at Monterey, the Santa

Barbara Channel and San Pedro Bay from Malarín and José de la Guerra, and instructions on what to

do if the government does not permit the transaction. Signed by Malarín. Spanish. Contemporary

Copy. 1 p.

DLG 622

Letter 5
July 15, 1822. Monterey.

Malarín to de la Guerra reporting on the appearance of an American Frigate the day before out of San

Blas asking that de la Guerra and Malarín supply 10,000 arrobas of tallow; Malarín never so vexed

than at present; is sending a factura to Fray Antonio Ripoll, O.F.M., after the manner of a circular

through the missions. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 622

Letter 6
Aug. 5, 1822. Purisima.

Malarín to de la Guerra asking him to supply hides for a captain of an unnamed ship, tallow to be

obtained from the missionaries. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 622

Letter 7
Nov. 2, 1822. Monterey.

Malarín to de la Guerra on a conversation referring to political affairs; a proposal for a diputación for

California; mentioned are a certain Narváez, and the San Carlos. Partly damaged, difficult to read.

Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 622

Letter 8
Nov. 1822. Monterey.

Malarín to de la Guerra on his arrival at Monterey the day before; treats of a letter, a barrel and on

voting. Mentioned are Don Luís [Argüello], Marion, Ramírez, Martínez, Santiago and Estrada.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 622

Letter 9
Apr. 6, 1823, Monterey.

Malarín to de la Guerra giving his reasons for delay in answering his letter; discussion on a

commercial matter; on sending him green colored glasses for which he had asked; on Oct. 18 of the

past year El Señoriano collided with another ship and Cubillas and his crew drowned. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 622

Letter 10
Oct. 10, 1823. San Luis [Obispo].

Malarín to de la Guerra on commercial matters and asking him to give an enclosed item to Fray

[Antonio] Ripoll, O.F.M., Mentioned are a Guadalupe and Joaquín Moraga.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 622

Letter 11
Nov. 5, 1823. Pueblo [de los Angeles].

Malarín to de la Guerra concerning a debt owed to Mission San Gabriel; mentions Julio Verdugo's

200 head of cattle and 100 of a Gutiérrez; José Antonio's pride; is finding de la Guerra a copy of a

draft; Padre Napoleon's [Ibarra], O.F.M., becoming more mean each day; his declaring that he did not

know which were de la Guerra's lands; de la Guerra's note sent to Ibarra; Bandini and a José Antonio

mentioned; the missionaries at San Gabriel are looking for large saws for constructing their mill;

Malarín is going to San Pedro. Spanish. 2 pp.
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DLG 622

Letter 12
Nov. 19, 1823. San Pedro.

Malarín to de la Guerra on receiving the latter's letter and concerning a draft. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 622

Letter 13
June 15, 1824. Monterey.

Malarín to de la Guerra on financial matters. Mentioned are Cubillas and Maitorena and a certain

Juan who is good and stout and who is in the house of a Don Mariano; he is developing interests, has

talent and states that it is too bad that he is in California. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 622

Letter 14
July 16, 1824. Monterey.

Malarín to the commander asking for permission to take certain objects to San Luis Obispo.

Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 622

Letter 15
Sept. 7, 1824. Monterey.

Malarín to de la Guerra on a letter received and commercial matters. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 622

Letter 16
Oct. 20, 1830. Monterey.

Malarín to de la Guerra on commercial matters; will come to Santa Barbara. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 622

Letter 17
Nov. 2, 1824. Monterey. .

Malarín to de la Guerra on a ship arriving from Canton with her masts broken, her owner allowed to

sell some of his goods up to 1,000 pesos without payment of port tax; and taking advantage of the

situation Malarín bought twelve chairs for de la Guerra which he will send on the brigantine, Pizarro.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 622

Letter 18
Nov. 20, 1830. Monterey.

Malarín to de la Guerra on commercial matters; on sending chairs; mentions Fray Luís [Martinez?]

and [Antonio?] Suñol. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 623

Letter 1
Oct. 19 , 1822. Santa Barbara.

Juan Malarín to José Medina and José de Cubillas: a draft for 700.00 pesos to the order of José de la

Guerra; then endorsed by the latter in favor of Manuel Varela, Santa Barbara, Nov. 18, 1822. Spanish.

1 p.

DLG 624

Letter 1

March 29, 1824. Tepic.

[Juan Malarín] to Ignacio Fletes on a financial transaction. Mentioned are Fray Antonio Ripoll,

O.F.M., and José de la Guerra and Antonio de Arana. This is a copy in the hand of José de Medina

except the last line which is in the hand of Malarín. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 625

Letter 1
Oct. 18, 1824. Monterey.

Juan Malarín to Fray Luís Antonio Martínez, O.F.M., on a commercial matter together with a

misunderstanding. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 625

Letter 2
Oct. 17, 1824. Monterey.

A commercial statement in the handwritings of Malarín and Martínez. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 625

Letter 3
Nov. 20, 1824. Monterey.

Malarín to Martinez on commercial matters. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 625

Letter 4
Jan. 20, 1825.

A statement that Malarín and [Luís Antonio]Martínez, O.F.M., bought jointly from Zubillaga ten

barrels of brandy. Signed by José María Estudillo. Spanish. Copy. 2 pp.
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DLG 625

Letter 5
July 22, 1826. Monterey.

Malarín to Martinez on commercial matters. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 625

Letter 6
Sept. 22, 1826. Monterey.

Malarín to Martínez notifying him that a ship would soon arrive bringing cacao, sugar, rice, etc.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 626

Letter 1
Sept. 14, 1829. Monterey.

Juan Malarín: a declaration concerning a shipment of goods followed by permit by Manuel Jimeno.

Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 627

Letter 1
Nov. 14, 1829. Santa Barbara.

Draft for 1,111 pesos to the order of José de la Guerra. and endorsed by him to José Cubillas, Santa

Barbara, Jan. 1, 1830. Sent by Juan Malarín to María Luisana López, Tepic. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 628

Letter 1
Oct. 4, 1845. Monterey.

Juan Malarín to Antonio María de la Guerra on the studies of a certain Mariano. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 629

Letter 1
March 14, 1845. Lima.

Mariano Malarín to Antonio María de la Guerra on sending a letter through Gaspar Oreña who is

going to California asking his father to allow him to finish his studies where he is, for three or four

years. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 630

Letter 1
March 20, 1872. Santa Clara.

Mariano Malarín to Pablo de la Guerra on his letters not being answered; on the death of his mother

on Apr. 9, 1870. Seeks consolation. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 631

Letter 1
Dec. 23, 1859. San Luis Obispo.

David P. Mallagh to Pablo de la Guerra on the desire of the citizens of San Luis Obispo County to

have a wharf at the port; his willingness to invest money provided that a law is passed that the

overflowed and submerged land belonging to the state be leased to him; has contacted Brice M.

Henry of the assembly concerning such a bill; asks de la Guerra to help. English. 2 pp.

DLG 632

Letter 1

Nov. 12, 1844. Santa Barbara.

José Ramón Malo to José de la Guerra: a receipt. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 633

Letter 1
March 5, 1861. Sacramento.

Madaline Malpha to Pablo de la Guerra begging him to give her $22.00 to pay her rent lest she be

evicted and $2.00 for food. She is in bed with neuralgia. English. 2 pp.

DLG 634

Letter 1
Sept. 21, 1822. Monterey.

Juan Ignacio Mancisidor to José de la Guerra stating that he cannot comply with de la Guerra's

request to return to him his letters for on anchoring at Callao, Peru; the captain of the port notified

him that all letters aboard must be handed over to the government; noncompliance would have

resulted in ten years of imprisonment and 400 pesos fine so he burned them. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 634

Letter 2
March 9, 1822. San Luis [Obispo].

Mancisidor to de la Guerra stating that he has at Mission San Luis Obispo 128 arrobas of soap at his

disposition. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 634

Letter 3
March 10, 1822. San Pedro.

Mancisidor to de la Guerra on commercial matters. Spanish. 1 p.
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Letter 4
Sept. 8, 1822. Monterey.

Mancisidor to de la Guerra stating that he was not able to approach the coast of Mexico so he went on

to Peru, a voyage of ninety days; news of war between England and Russia; an uprising in France

under General Subshe proclaiming in favor of the son of Napoleon; war between the Turks and

Greeks continues. On the back of the page is a statement by José de la Guerra that in the area of the

Santa Barbara presidio there is an Anglo-American ship named La Aguila which had anchored on the

13th and verified the robbery of the brigantine, San Francisco de Paula. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 634

Letter 5
Dec. 2, 1822. Santa Ines.

Mancisidor to de la Guerra on his coming to Santa Barbara on Jan. 2nd or 3rd. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 634

Letter 6
Febr. 7, 1823. San Luís Obispo.

Mancisidor to de la Guerra on the climate and its effect on him; is sending him through sergeant Pico

the "erudite and curious letters of the very illustrious S. D. Fr. Gerónimo Feijoó" and "El sistema del

Universo u equilibrio absoluta." Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 634

Letter 7

Febr. 12, 1823. San Luis Obispo.

Mancisidor to de la Guerra reflecting on the significance of Ash Wednesday; recalls the sloop

anchored on the salt marsh of Mescaltitlán (Goleta); wonders about de la Guerra's silence; about

commercial matters. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 634

Letter 8
March 3, 1823. San Luís Obispo.

Mancisidor to de la Guerra in a reflective mood; deals with commercial matters, speaks of Padre

[Francisco] Suñer, O.F.M. Partly torn. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 634

Letter 9
July 12, 1823. San Gabriel.

Mancisidor to de la Guerra sending him a document to state whether or not he approves of it. Spanish.

1 p.

DLG 634

Letter 10
Aug. 10, 1823. San Gabriel.

Mancisidor to de la Guerra on a message he was to pass on to one of his brothers-in-law; financial

matters; on the arrival of the sloop, Santa Apolonia. Spanish. 1 p.
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Letter 11
June 14, 1830. Lima.

Mancisidor to de la Guerra on his arrival in Peru on May 31, after seventy-one days of navigation

from Santa Barbara; naming various islands he passed en route; Fray Luís [Martínez], O.F.M., stood

the trip very well; no difficulty about his entry; is living in the house of [Antonio José] Cot until he

can obtain a ship for Europe; Peru is quiet for the time; the expulsion of Spaniards; new ones coming

in not molested; the bad economic conditions of the country in commerce and agriculture; civil war in

Chile; mentions Generals Prieto and Freyre; Columbia is divided; Venezuela with General Paez has

seceded; it appears [Simon] Bolivar will have to leave; all the republics aspire to Federalism;

comments on the political philosophy of the day; Columbia has opened commercial relations with

Spain; Chile has not molested Spaniards in the latest revolt, but mobbed the French consulate and

altercations with British men-of-war; on a ship coming from Sonora formerly English but carrying the

Mexican flag; California hides sold cheaper than those from Buenos Aires for the reason that in

California they dry them too much with extreme expansion, a great defect when it comes to curing

them, hurting California commerce in abandoning the missions and individuals in favor of tallow;

losses of the Begg Co.; the state of international commerce; sends greetings to Padres [Francisco

Xavier] Uría, O.F.M., [Buenaventura] Fortuny, O.F.M., and de la Guerra; General Freyre exiled from

Chile to Mexico by means of a French merchant ship which arrived at Callao. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 634

Letter 12
Aug. 7, 1831. Monterey.

Mancisidor to de la Guerra on his arrival at Monterey though he has expected to go to Europe; South

America is proceeding in anarchy and ruin; Fray Luís Martínez, O.F.M. arrived in Genoa; mentions

successes in France, Belgium and Poland. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 634

Letter 13
June 4, 1832. Los Angeles.

Mancisidor to de la Guerra on his arrival from San Gabriel; commercial matters; de la Guerra's desire

for his childrens' education; speaks of the possibility of friars leaving California and others coming;

he could send one of his sons with a departing friar. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 634

Letter 14
Nov. 1, 1832. Lima.

Mancisidor to de la Guerra recalling the possibility of the latter sending a son with one of the

departing missionaries to receive an education; he could come on the ship of [Henry] Virmond and

continue from Peru to Bordeaux or Gibraltar, meanwhile staying at the home of [Antonio José] Cot

[in Lima]; Mancisidor would take care of expenses; he himself is going to Europe in January.

Spanish. 2 pp.
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DLG 634

Letter 15
Nov. 1, 1832. Lima.

Mancisidor to de la Guerra on his arrival at Callao after navigation of fifty-three days on the

brigantine, Ayacucho; the sale of a ship between [Antonio José] Cot and a foreigner; asks de la

Guerra's advice on the state of political and mercantile affairs in Mexico; the character of Cot; little

known about the requisites for a Spaniard of the new republics to be present in Mexico; according to

a letter from [Henry] Virmond, Acapulco, July 14, 1832, the brigantine, Catalina, is going to

California bringing the new governor [José Figueroa] and the Zacatecan missionaries for the northern

missions, while the Fernandinos will concentrate on the south; sends latest news from Europe and

asks him to have Padre Narciso [Durán], O.F.M., to circulate it through the missions; English papers

state Spain is willing to recognize the new American republics; a very respectable person asks de la

Guerra to facilitate him with the manuscript on the customs and beliefs of the Indians of San Juan

Capistrano written by Fray [Gerónimo Boscana, O.F.M., for the purpose of making a copy of it in

Lima. Partly torn. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 635

Letter 1

Apr. 18, 1823. Purisima.

Juan Ignacio Mancisidor to Fray Luís Antonio Martínez, O.F.M., on commercial dealings. Mentioned

are Diego Goldie, Estevan Anderson, Padre Antonio, Antonio Cot, and the sloop, Santa Apolonia.

Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 636

Letter 1
March 27, 1861. San Francisco.

James Wylie Mandeville to Pablo de la Guerra concerning land in Santa Barbara and Mr. Sprague as

a surveyor; P. S. De Mottherson is a candidate for the boundary commission. English. 1 p.

DLG 636

Letter 2
July 31, 1860. San Francisco.

Mandeville to de la Guerra informing him that the surveys made by Mr. [Parker?] will not be

approved; new surveys will be made of the mission tracts; he will appoint a deputy surveyor to finish

the ranchos in Santa Barbara County and the missions. English. 1 p.

DLG 637

Letter 1
Oct. 10, 1819. San Fernando.

Juan Manso to Francisco de la Guerra who is in charge of the liquidation of the accounts of the

deceased Cesareo Lataillade; the latter obtaining a loan from Manso in Dec. 1847, which he in turn

obtained from Juan Temple; a Mr. Combuston owes him for two barrels of brandy. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 638

Letter 1
Nov. 24, 1853. Los Angeles.

Juan Manso to José de la Guerra on his relationship with Cesareo Lataillade on the same matter as

above; Manso is returning to Spain; Gregorio de Aperici is the bearer of the letter.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 639

Letter 1
Febr. 25, 1801. Mexico.

Felix Berenguer de Marquina, viceroy, to José de la Guerra: a passport to proceed to Monterey, Calif.

Partly printed. Two photostats. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 640

Letter 1
Aug. 24, 1828. Tepic.

Juan Bautista de Martiarena to Fray Luís Antonio Martínez, O.F.M., on sending him articles ordered

and which are detailed in an accompanying document, these being ordered through Antonio José Cot

and sent on the María Ester belonging to Enrique Vilmont [alias Henry Virmond]; mentions Urbano

Sánchez as a man "most difficult to get to pay." At end of the letter is a statement and signature of

Máximo de Beristain, San Luis Obispo, Febr. 8, 1829, stating he had received the 1,000 pesos spoken

of in Martiarena's letter. Spanish. 3 pp.
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Letter 2
Aug. 25, 1828. Tepic.

List of items sent to Mission San Luis Obispo with corresponding prices on the María Ester. Signed

by Martiarena. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 640

Letter 3
May 12, 1829. Tepic.

List of items sent to Mission San Luis Obispo on the María Ester with the corresponding prices.

Signed by Martiarena. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 640

Letter 4
May 24, 1830. Tepic.

Martiarena to Martínez on their commercial relations; on goods delivered to Missions San Miguel and

San Juan Bautista on San Luis Obispo's account; relations between Martiarena and Sánchez bad.

Mentioned are: Florencio Aguirre, Ignacio Fletes, Juan Machado and [Enrique] Vilmont [Virmond].

Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 641

Letter 1
May 11, 1829. Tepic.

Juan Bautista Martiarena to José de la Guerra on giving the contramaestre, Mendiola, sixteen pesos a

month; on preparing items to send to the missions and for de la Guerra to sell; asks him to send a

certificate. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 641

Letter 2
May 12, 1829. Tepic.

List of items sent to San Blas to be taken to California on the merchant ship, Dorotea, Signed by

Martiarena. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 641

Letter 3
May 16, 1829. Tepic.

Martiarena to de la Guerra on goods shipped to California on the Dorotea; on troops receiving

ammunition for fear of an uprising; on items sent to Fernando Tico by his sister, Rafaela. Mentioned

is José Narváez. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 641

Letter 4
May 18, 1829. Topic.

Martiarena to de la Guerra on hearing that a list of items and correspondence are in his hands; not

surprised that legs of metates are broken because of rough handling; on sending a bell clapper to

Mission San Rafael; on a draft; Vilmont mentioned. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 641

Letter 5
June 24, 1829. Topic.

Martiarena to de la Guerra stating that after bidding him farewell in Mexico he learned that through

the influence of Deputy Portugal, de la Guerra was exempted from the general law of the expulsion of

Spaniards, the patent being sent by the Minister of Relations to Ramón Goyena of Tepic; names

others who were exempted or who expected to be; names those who went to Chile on the English

ship, Mary; commercial matters, asks him to send certain items by return ship; mentions Deputy

Maitorena, Juan Bandini, Santiago Argüello. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 641

Letter 6
May 24, 1830. Tepic.

Martiarena to de la Guerra concerning the document exempting him from expulsion as a Spaniard;

Gómez Portugal mentioned; on commercial matters re sending items to California; [Henry] Virmond,

Urbano Sánchez and Martínez mentioned; on certain "guilty ones" recently arriving on an American

ship; Spaniards in Mexico to be moved sixty leagues away from the coast; on sending items through

Vilmond, others to Fray José Sánchez, O.F.M., president of the missions; the latter is to give Fray

Marcos Antonio de Victoria, O.F.M., of Purisima Mission 2,000 pesos; Padre Vicente Francisco de

Sarría, O.F.M., mentioned. Spanish. 4 pp.
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Letter 7
June 23, 1830. Tepic.

Martiarena to de la Guerra on [Henry] Vilmond sailing for California on the 17th; concerning Urbano

Sánchez, Fray Luís Antonio Martínez, O.F.M., and Mission San Luis Obispo; seeks information

concerning a better understanding of what a Martínez letter contains on the debt of the mission.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 641

Letter 8
Jan. 24, 1831. Tepic.

Martiarena to de la Guerra sending his letter through Fray Bernardino Pacheco, O.F.M., who is going

to California as a member of San Fernando College which was to supply missionaries while the

Zacatecas College was to supply eleven for the missions; however San Fernando having only seven

religious left was unable to do so; Martiarena's receiving a patent from San Fernando College making

him syndic for the California missions; on Fray Luís Antonio Martínez leaving California on an

English ship; on contradictory letters of Martínez to Martiarena and Urbano Sánchez; on a draft to be

handled by de la Guerra concerning Martiarena and the Purisima missionaries, Fray Marcos Antonio

de Victoria, O.F.M., or Juan Moreno, O.F.M; on the status of articles sent to de la Guerra; the

continuance of war in the south of Mexico; Guerrero, Alvarez and Codellas mentioned; robbers

infesting roads; revolution in Paris in July of 1830; political changes in France; Spanish troops along

the Pyrenees; General Miña mentioned; José Narváez sends regards. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 641

Letter 9
Apr. 13, 1831. Tepic.

Martiarena to de la Guerra concerning an account between them; other mercantile matters; concerning

a ship being built in California by an American with some help from Mission San Gabriel; Machado's

going to Canton; two letters of Urbano Sánchez sent to Martiarena by Fray Luís Gil, O.F.M., of San

Luis Obispo the main one missing; Sánchez slow in paying bills; draft on Purisima paid by Vilmond;

informed by Father President that with de la Guerra's help a ship is being built to traffic between

California and Mexico; Carlos Antonio Carrillo's departure on the 5th for Guadalajara and Mexico

City; a visit by Fernando Martiarena who is returning to California on the Santa Barbara; a royal

order sent to Havana to enter into commercial relations with Mexico; Bandini mentioned. Spanish. 4

pp.

DLG 641

Letter 10
June 1, 1831. Tepic.

Martiarena to de la Guerra on the arrival in Mexico of José Antonio Carrillo, deputy from California;

on items received from de la Guerra by way of the Santa Barbara; commercial matters; the pope's

naming six bishops for Mexico; anti- religious revolution in France; cessation of the revolution in the

south of Mexico; Guerrero's death; Guadalajara area inundated with robbers. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 641

Letter 11
July 18, 1832. Tepic.

Martiarena to de la Guerra on meeting the latter's son, Juan Jose; on notice of a revolution in

California; political and military moves in Mexico; mentioned are Santa Ana, Calderón, Pedraza,

Corvia and Tobar who took 14,000 pesos from the customs house in Guaymas and went to Los

Alamos; receipt of above news coming from Carlos Carrillo; Martiarena sending his letter through the

president of the Zacatecan missionaries sailing on [Henry] Virmond's ship; Governor [José] Figueroa

with 100 soldiers sailing with them; in a postscript added on Aug. 8, Martiarena states the brigantine

of Virmond, Catalina, arrived with ten Zacatecan friars going to California; truce between Mexican

parties ineffectual; General Facio with soldiers set out from Jalapa to Puente Nacional later to attack

Vera Cruz; Carrillo wrote that Congress is to convene on the 3rd of the coming month to attempt the

pacification of Mexico; on the devisive situation in California. Spanish. 3 pp.
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Letter 12
Oct. 8, 1832. Tepic.

Martiarena to de la Guerra concerning the tragedy occurring to the Catalina at Cabo de San Lucas

having aboard General Figueroa and Zacatecan missionaries; on a battle between government forces

under Bustamante and rebels under Moctezuma near Dolores; Bustamante went to Zacatecas, General

Cortezan driving the rebels out of there; four persons seeking the presidency; sends regard to Antonio

Ercilla and Juan José de la Guerra. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 641

Letter 13
March 1833. Topic.

Martiarena to de la Guerra on the safe arrival of Figueroa and Juan José de la Guerra in California; on

the death of Fray José [Bernardo] Sánchez, O.F.M; loss of the Victoriana; sending de la Guerra

articles on the Barbarita; the death of the mother of Doña Josefa in Aguacatlán; on forwarding the

letter of de la Guerra to Mariano Pacheco of León; Machado received his tallow in Mazatlán and

Barron his in San Blas; mentioned is Doña María Antonia Pintado in Jalisco. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 642

Letter 1
Febr. 9, 1814. Tepic.

Juan Martiarena to José de la Guerra explaining that his heavy duties as alcalde in the past year

prevented him from writing and on the deceased Padre [Pedro] Panto, O.F.M having left in the hands

of a certain Leonardo 300 pesos to be delivered in Mexico. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 642

Letter 2
June 1, 1819. Tepic.

Martiarena to de la Guerra on the frigate, Nuestra Señora de Los Angeles going to California under

Captain José Bandini and the brigantine, San Carlos, under Gonzalo Ulloa, with soldiers and

munitions, the first ship to return with tallow, Bandini's offering to bring back a tronco of mules for

carriage use; improving conditions in Mexico; death of two queens in Spain; an expedition of soldiers

under the Conde de Abisbal is being readied to go to Buenos Aires. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 642

Letter 3
May 26, 1820. Tepic.

Martiarena to de la Guerra on a payment to be made to the latter by the customs house; the brigantine

of Cubillas soon to sail for California and his offer to bring along de la Guerra's son and

brother-in-law together with four missionaries going to California; the sailing of the brigantine,

Acción, from Acapulco on the 15th, movements of El Señoriano. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 642

Letter 4
Apr. 25, 1824. Tepic.

Martiarena to de la Guerra on letters received and lost; the disposition of money sent by de la Guerra;

on clock he sent to be fixed; wine and tongues not received from de la Guerra; brigantine, San Carlos

going to Acapulco; political conditions in Mexico; King Ferdinand of Spain acting despotically.

Mentioned are José Antonio Carrillo and Juan Malarín. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 642

Letter 5
Aug. 22, 1825.

Martiarena to de la Guerra on a letter for Isidro Díaz; the sailing of the brigantine, Aurora, for

Mazatlán; the ship, Nieves, going to Loreto to bring the commissary general and soldiers and then to

proceed to Monterey; on the brigantine, Morelos, at Monterey; the meeting of the extraordinary

Cortes in Mexico called by the president; mentions the Holy Alliance of Europe against Mexico.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 642

Letter 6
Sept. 19, 1825. Topic.

Martiarena to de la Guerra on the payment of a debt and sending a letter to Isidro Díaz through de la

Guerra; on sending the present letter on the sloop, Matamoras, which is to go by way of San Blas and

Loreto as a mail ship. Spanish. 2 pp.
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Letter 1
Aug. 9, 1815. San Diego.

Fray Fernando Martín, O.F.M. to José de la Guerra; a friendly letter of respect and appreciation.

Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 643

Letter 2
Febr. 6, 1822. San Diego.

Martín to de la Guerra stating that the latter may retain the Indian, Francisco, according to his need,

and asks the name of the pagan Indian at the Presidio Santa Barbara who is from San Diego. Spanish.

2 pp.

DLG 643

Letter 3
Febr. 25, 1822. San Diego.

Martín to de la Guerra asking for the names of the San Diego Indians who are prisoners at Presidio

Santa Barbara; states that José Estudillo handled the case but failed to tell him a word about it.

Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 643

Letter 4
Sept. 7, 1831. San Diego.

Martín to de la Guerra concerning hides. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 644

Letter 1
Sept. 4, 1816. San Miguel.

Fray Juan Martín, O.F.M. to José de la Guerra sending to the latter tobacco and cotton stockings; and

on Masses said and to be said. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 644

Letter 2
Nov. 5, 1816.

Martin to de la Guerra concerning Masses; may see him in the spring though he fears to climb "the

sierras of the Ortegas," (Refugio Pass). Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 644

Letter 3
Apr. 14, 1818. San Miguel.

Martín to de la Guerra congratulating him on his promotion and on his possibility of acceding to the

governorship of California; speaks of [María Antonia), de la Guerra's wife, as being a member of the

III Order of St. Francis; sending him a newspaper treating of the French occupation of Spain;

mentioned is a Padre Joaquín Salvador. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 644

Letter 4
Febr. 26, 1819. San Miguel.

Martin to de la Guerra on the latter's safe arrival home; on sending a prisoner with a Don Miguel and

two soldiers but could not get beyond El Paso de Robles because of heavy rains; Fray Juan Cabot,

O.F.M., is being transferred to Mission San Francisco; mentioned are José Antonio, the cadet, and a

Fray Luís A. Martínez, O.F.M. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 644

Letter 5
Aug. 12, 1820. San Miguel.

Martín to de la Guerra on the latter's return from Mexico; the needs of his mission. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 644

Letter 6
Oct. 7, 1821. San Miguel.

Martín to de la Guerra on a robbery of four ounces of gold. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 644

Letter 7
Oct. 14, 1821.

Martín to de la Guerra on a robbery of four ounces of gold. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 644

Letter 8
Apr. 26, 1821. San Miguel.

Martín to de la Guerra asking him if he received the fifty pesos sent him and how much the mission

owed him and if the neophyte, Buenaventura Lasala, arrived at the presidio in shackles. Spanish. 2 pp.
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DLG 644

Letter 9
1821

Martín to de la Guerra on the robbery of four ounces of gold; Baltasar being the principal culprit; on

sending ten pesos to Pio Pico in the name of José Antonio. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 644

Letter 10
Dec. 19, 1821.

Martí to de la Guerra on rain and snow; on receiving an oficio from him and the governor dated

December 2, explaining a misunderstanding; on colored cloth he sent by a neophyte of San Miguel;

on cattle; mentions Padre Luís [Martínez?] of Purisima. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 644

Letter 11
Undated.

Martín to de la Guerra signing himself as Gordo, asking concerning the health of the family; on a

fugitive Indian, Quipahuc, who is gathering many Indians at Buena Vista and indicates that if the

soldiers cannot enter the area it would not be an honor to Spanish arms. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 645

Letter 1
Dec. 4, 1816. San Diego.

Ignacio Martínez to José de la Guerra on mercantile matters. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 645

Letter 2
Dec. 15, 1816.

Martínez to de la Guerra on mercantile matters; speaks of Gervasio [Argüello?] becoming habilitado

general. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 645

Letter 3
June 11, 1818. Rancho de San Pedro.

Martínez to de la Guerra on commercial matters; the arrival of a frigate that took on tallow from

Mission San Fernando; is going to San Gabriel to hear Mass and obtain food; asks de la Guerra to

petition the missionaries to have a decent bed made for him similar to those in mission guest rooms;

mentioned are Fray Gerónimo Boscana, O.F.M., of San Juan Capistrano, Yorba, Negrete, Los

Angeles, Fray Joaquín [Nuez], O.F.M. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 645

Letter 4
Jan. 3, 1819. Santa Barbara.

Martínez to de la Guerra on permissions given to Indians and soldiers; Indians are working on houses

and fetching tiles. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 645

Letter 5
May 22, 1821. San Francisco.

Martínez to de la Guerra; a mere letter of greeting. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 645

Letter 6

Jan. 3, 1823. San Francisco.

Martínez to de la Guerra wishing to obtain spurs and bridles to be sent on the ship of Guillermo

Hartnell; on boots and peas; mentions the engagement of José Antonio. Partly torn. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 645

Letter 7
Febr. 6, 1823. San Francisco.

Martínez to de la Guerra on the marriage of his daughter, Juanita, to Joseph Estudillo. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 645

Letter 8
Oct. 23, 1829.

Martínez to de la Guerra on the latter's arrival home. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 645

Letter 9
Without date.

Martínez to de la Guerra sending him a barrel to fill with brandy. Spanish. 1 p.
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Letter 1
May 17, 1825. Monterey.

José Martínez to José de la Guerra on the health of the latter's family; would like to greet him but is

busy with his ship; on sending money to his wife in Lima through in son-in-law Juan Malarín and the

son-in-law of de la Guerra; would like to separate himself from the maritime service, bring his wife to

California, and to obtain the post of captain of the port of Monterey. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 647

Letter 1
July 28, 1815. San Borja, Lower California.

Fray José del Santísimo Rosario Martínez, O.P., to José de la Guerra congratulating him on his

promotion to captain; on a letter from Padre Ahumada, O.P., another from Fray José de Pineda, O.P.;

asks de la Guerra to write and sends greetings. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 647

Letter 2
July 15, c. 1821.

Martínez to de la Guerra on bring unable to comply with a favor requested; on sending his answer

through sergeant Castelum who is conducting some Indians with their wives; his writing to the

governor on an undisclosed matter; admires de la Guerra's "ardent charity" in protecting the liberty

"of some slaves." Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 647

Letter 3
July 15, 1821. San Miguel, Lower California.

Martínez to de la Guerra on receiving four pieces of cloth through sergeant Castelum; on actions of

certain Indians. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 648

Letter 1
No Folder 648

DLG 649

Letter 1
Nov. 9, 1815. San Luis Obispo.

Fray Luís Antonio Martínez to Jose de la Guerra on an order from the latter for military armaments

which he is unable to supply because he has only a "half blacksmith," who does not know more than

to make nails. Moreover,with the harvest season approaching, not much iron is left for "those trifles."

This letter is also signed by Fray Antonio Rodríguez. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 649

Letter 2
c. 1815.

Martínez to de la Guerra stating that by means of the Franciscan launch he is expecting a good catch

of otters; a ship, the Monisii [?] is soon to go to San Francisco; reports the deaths of Fathers

[Domingo]Iturate, O.F.M., and [José Antonio] Uría, O.F.M. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 649

Letter 3
c. 1851. July 1.

Martínez to de la Guerra on a gun he sent to the latter for repairs which he would like to have returned

soon; on his ill success in producing cloth; asks for instructions. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 649

Letter 4
c. 1815.

Martínez to de la Guerra saying that he has permission to come and see him; Father [Juan?] Cabot,

O.F.M., to supply for him meanwhile; expresses his friendship as a countryman; on sending an

ejucatoria to Uría; his trip to Monterey. Partly damaged. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 649

Letter 5
Jan. 16,, 1816. Santa Barbara.

Martínez to de la Guerra announcing his presence in Santa Barbara. Spanish. 1 p.
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DLG 649

Letter 6
July 4, 1816. Campamento de Charo.

Martínez to de la Guerra stating he is at the camp of Charo with twenty-three cowboys and five

soldiers accompanying a merchant who is aid to have come from Boston as a spy; says he will always

do for God and king what he considers his duty; the news has been sent to Governor [Pablo Vicente]

Solá; a cowboy reports another ship is going to Monterey. Spanish.

DLG 649

Letter 7
Nov., 6, 1816. San Luis Obispo.

Martínez to de la Guerra on a ship carrying artillery and guns which may or may not go to Santa

Barbara; on an account; the price of tallow; asking when his mules will return. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 649

Letter 8
c. 1816.

Martínez to de la Guerra; a few lines of personal remarks. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 649

Letter 9
1816.

Martínez to de la Guerra on news received that the French king was beheaded; Murat in Naples;

Louis XVII has Wellington as his generalisimo and English troops; Mexican insurgents are before

Acapulco; the,brigantine, San Carlos, is ready to bring invoices; Marín is minister plenipotentiary of

the king of the Sandwich Islands. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 649

Letter 10
c. 1816.

Martínez to de la Guerra on sending a hanging; states he is busy with cumplimiento de iglesia.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 649

Letter 11
c. 1816.

Martínez to de la Guerra; a short familiar letter. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 649

Letter 12
c. 1816.

Martínez to de la Guerra on receiving an order for making lances but he doubts if the blacksmith can

make them. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 649

Letter 13
c. 1816.

Martínez to de la Guerra on cloth, tobacco, stockings; a ship from Columbia soon to arrive; is going

to Monterey; de la Guerra to inform him what he wants; the arrival of a frigate at Monterey; asks him

to tell Fray Antonio Ripoll, O.F.M., to send him his gun; he and [Pablo Vicente] Solá in arguments.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 649

Letter 14
c. 1816.

Martínez to de la Guerra stating that Governor Solá has reprehended Estudillo for drunkenness three

times and is relieved of his command; "Monterey is a most lively picture of hell;" Solá to be in the

south in April; is not as bad as those around him; a certain Tenorio went to Monterey well informed

about everything, his visit to be favorable to de la Guerra and Martínez; Don Salvador in charge of a

ship that is not his, is a man of principle; will send sheep as soon as possible. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 649

Letter 15
c. 1816.

Martínez to de la Guerra on tobacco and panocha; candlesticks for Mission San Miguel and articles

for San Luis Obispo have been distributed; has no incense but in the sierra de San Rafael there is a

good grade of pine producing it; does not understand De la Guerra's accounts; the pearls of Loreto;

says that the longer he is in California he is more worn than ever; indicates that accounts are not in his

category of gifts. Spanish. 2 pp.
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DLG 649

Letter 16
c. 1816.

Martínez to de la Guerra asking him for a set of twelve books, Año Cristiano, by Croiset together

with six Dominicales and the index; Solá's letter about repairing roads. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 649

Letter 17
c. 1817.

Martínez to de la Guerra on receiving from him, through a Jose Antonio, a piece of blue cloth and

black silk; sends a message to a Don Carlos. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 649

Letter 18
c. 1817.

Martínez to de la Guerra on sending blankets; on a fire near Oso Flaco. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 649

Letter 19
c. 1818.

Martínez to de la Guerra stating that he cannot come south without permission of his superior; on

commercial affairs; is being called north by Estudillo. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 649

Letter 20
c. 1818.

Martínez to de la Guerra on greetings to the latter's mother, and Your Governor, "my friend but he has

no other items in his imagination but my name." Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 649

Letter 21
1818.

Martínez to de la Guerra inquiring if the ship has brought some essence of peppermint and essence of

yerba buena; to send him some as well as sublimado corrosivo in white powder and calomel for his

hospital. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 649

Letter 22
1818.

Martínez to de la Guerra: a short note. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 649

Letter 23
1818.

Martínez to de la Guerra on hearing that a ship is bringing silk rebozos; on sending cloth; on accounts

to come. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 649

Letter 24
1818.

Martínez to de la Guerra mentioning Campamento de Charo; a deceased friend leaving him pieces of

manta; the area of the mission flooded; many cattle and sheep lost; at San Miguel the great well

overflowed and the river has risen over the plain and carried trees from Gallinas and Nacimiento as

far as Monterey. Partly torn. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 649

Letter 25
1818.

Martínez to de la Guerra on his coming to Santa Barbara and asks him to inform Fray Antonio Ripoll,

O.F.M., concerning the visit. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 649

Letter 26
1818.

Martínez to de la Guerra accusing the latter for not writing when he has news; Martínez himself not

writing when he does not have news; paper is costly; sends message to [Antonio] Ripoll, O.F.M. ; is

waiting for the brigantine to go to Monterey. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 649

Letter 27
1818.

Martínez to de la Guerra on commercial items and refers to the cédulas of Carlos V. Spanish. 2 pp.
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DLG 649

Letter 28
1818.

Martínez to de la Guerra on the arrival of an unnamed person known to Fray Francisco Suñer, O.F.M;

bad conditions in the province of California; is waiting for a ship to learn more news; many

malcontents and fugitives from Purisima Mission; no good guitarist there for their dances; his own

guitar in bad shape and which he alone can handle; the rumor that de la Guerra will be promoted; that

Moraga will replace Martínez; mentions ships and troops coming. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 649

Letter 29
c. Oct. 1818.

Martínez to de la Guerra chiding him for not writing; on tallow; discord in San Francisco between

Don Luís and captain of a ship; families have left Monterey since it is intended to defend the point; he

himself would be glad to go to Santa Margarita and is prepared to do so; gives his thought on the

independence movement; thinks Californians should be neutral and defend their personal liberty.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 649

Letter 30
(1818?)

Martínez to de la Guerra congratulating him on being made captain of Presidio Santa Barbara; has

met the new governor whom he had met in Mexico when the latter was an alférez; heard that de la

Guerra is going to Monterey, telling him it is not the same place he knew in prior years. Spanish. 3

pp.

DLG 649

Letter 31
1818.

Martínez to de la Guerra wishing him well in his office as captain; calls him a "sopílfero de cuenta;"

on oranges received from Captain de la Guerra's wife; on hides; sends greetings to Padre [Francisco]

Suñer, O.F.M.; his defense of the alcalde, Cipriano; the coming of friars from Orizaba; personal

comments. Mentions a Don Mariano. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 649

Letter 32
1818.

Martínez to Le la Guerra asking him if he is going to San Diego. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 649

Letter 33
1818.

Martínez to de la Guerra on Botiller having borrowed a harness and who apparently appropriated it;

all is in order in Monterey; nothing changed at San Luis Obispo. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 649

Letter 34
1818.

Martínez to de la Guerra on the arrival of an Inole on the morrow; on his head cold; on Solá's

questioning a cowboy whom he had sent to fetch a doctor, on a number of items. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 649

Letter 35
1818 [not in folder]

Martínez to de la Guerra on the arrival of Mancisidor: mentions the coming fiesta. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 649

Letter 36
c. 1819.

Martínez to de la Guerra stating that he is not yet traveling "toward the cemetery;" speaks of de la

Guerra's coming journey; on hides. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 649

Letter 37
c. 1819.

Martínez to de la Guerra on his forthcoming journey; asks him to visit his fellow student, Fray

Antonio Tiburcio del Alamo, O.F.M., and the viceroy in his name in order to see if he can get back to

Madrid. Spanish. 2 pp.
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DLG 649

Letter 38
1821.

Martínez to de la Guerra relating a story of the Lita de Pamplona; cites several Scriptural quotations

in Latin; states that San Luís [Potosí], Querétaro and Zacatecas are independent; Arredondo has taken

the oath; two generals have come from Spain on the Macedonia who were to take with them the

jewels of the churches as ordered by the Cortes, but who soon returned to their ships at Vera Cruz on

learning of the number of insurgents; ambassadors from Madrid have dealt with Iturbide. Spanish. 2

pp.

DLG 649

Letter 39
1822.

Martínez to de la Guerra on his indisposition and on having sent cloth with Anastasio: asks for

cauliflower seed and sour oranges; asks to have twelve machetes made, requested by [Pablo Vicente]

Solá; Martínez' blacksmith not capable of making them; a soldier's report that should be corrected.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 649

Letter 40
1822.

Martínez to de la Guerra on the physician leaving who had come to minister to him; he is ready to go

on another expedition but not to the Tulare, for he is old and thinks that his life is short; presumes that

de la Guerra has asked from Lower California for seeds, oregono, oranges and lemons; on his former

blacksmith not too good at his trade; Martínez not understanding a former letter of de la Guerra.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 649

Letter 41
Jan. 29, 1822.

Martínez to de la Guerra on a report that de la Guerra has be come governor; mentions a certain

Enterría and Maitorena; on the coming of a ship; commercial matters; the corporal of San Luis

Obispo changed; the new one, Carceres, having arrived; on Ignacio Mancisidor; on receiving barrels;

his hospital poor; he cannot be everywhere and has given to all who came whatever he could.

Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 649

Letter 42
c. Oct. 1822.

Martínez to de la Guerra inquiring as to when he is going to Monterey understanding that he is to be

in charge during Solá's absence; will send sheep after Easter. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 649

Letter 43
1822.

Martínez to de la Guerra on a letter in which Spaniards were spoken of in a disparaging way;

comments on the Scriptural verse "Obedite praepositis vestris;" refers to Freemasons; will be coming

to Santa Barbara; on mission accounts; mentions Mancisidor and Enterría; talk in Monterey about

changing "the system." Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 649

Letter 44
Aug. 14, 1820. Aranjuez, Calif.

Martínez to de la Guerra on his going to Mission San Antonio; the rice he had asked for was for

himself and the padres of San Antonio; asks for some ferrous sulphate (caparrosa). Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 649

Letter 45
1820.

Martínez to de la Guerra on receiving flour; cloth is at de la Guerra's disposition; on Russians saying

that a ship at Monterey belongs to insurgents, while Monterey considers it at least suspicious; on de la

Guerra's failure to report what items from a ship he had for Martínez; his receipt of an invoice; on

news of Argüello's coming north from Loreto; on oranges to be sent to Martínez; Bandini mentioned.

Spanish. 3 pp.
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DLG 649

Letter 46
c. 1820.

Martínez to de la Guerra on a political matter between Austria and Spain, Fernando and Aragon being

involved; his accounts with Bandini; the appearance of a ship which, when discovered, "left like a

streak of lightning," but which returned later; tells de la Guerra that a bark had nothing saleable so to

tell Fray Francisco Suñer, O.F.M., not to waste any time about it. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 649

Letter 47
c. 1820.

Martínez to de la Guerra largely a letter of opinion; on his prelate; on a certain Luís, a Protestant; on

commerce with London; mentions Padre [Antonio] Ripoll, O.F.M., Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 649

Letter 48
[1821 ?]

Martínez to de la Guerra on the lieutenant at San Francisco being called to Monterey; his personal

reflections. At the end his associate adds a short note, and signs himself "Antonio el Lindo." (Fray

Antonio Rodríguez, O.F.M.). Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 649

Letter 49
c. 1822.

Martínez to de la Guerra stating the times are "unfavorable to our views;" counseling the latter to take

those ordinary precautions of security; on the state of the territory; the aid given to the state by the

missions; discusses the alternative of following Iturbide or the constitutional party; his compassion

for de la Guerra's compadre; a letter concerning a Russian invoice; and urging that the missionaries

give one half of the items received to the soldiers because of need; gives several personal reflections.

DLG 649

Letter 50
c. 1822.

Martínez to de la Guerra remarking about Enterría; thanks de la Guerra for answering his request

relative to the Indians of Mission San Miguel; on his receiving an oficio from Governor [Pablo

Vicente] Solá accusing him of being a smuggler; an account with Enterría; on his inability to find a

certain document concerning accounts; his account with Don Joaquín; has finished his annual

spiritual retreat; mentions a Don Manuel. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 649

Letter 51
c. 1822.

Martínez to de la Guerra on receiving certain papers from the latter; asks if Mancisidor has left;

asking for a copy of the accounts de la Guerra gave to Entería; Martínez has some harsh words to say

about the latter. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 649

Letter 52
c. 1823.

Martínez to de la Guerra on tobacco; mentions the captain of the Asia; thirty priests in León,

Nicaragua, were hanged while 600 of their defenders have died; the bishop and clergy of Guadalajara

preferred exile to taking the new oath; "religion in the kingdom is a plaything of the state." Spanish. 3

pp.

DLG 649

Letter 53
1823?

Martínez to de la Guerra on the arrival of Mancisidor; asks de la Guerra to explain to him the new

civil institutions for he has found no book treating of them; Argüello has left [San Luis Obispo].

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 649

Letter 54
Aug. 25, 1825. San Luis Obispo.

Martínez to de la Guerra on commercial items received from Juan Malarín. Spanish. 2 pp.
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DLG 649

Letter 55
c. 1825.

Martínez to de la Guerra on receiving a Catecismo Político de la Constitución, with his comments.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 649

Letter 56
June 13, 1830. Lima.

Martínez to de la Guerra sending greetings to the family; his pleasant voyage of seventy-two days

from Santa Barbara to Peru; is living in the home of [Antonio José] Cot; Mancisidor is with Goldie;

mentioned is Don Estevan [Anderson]; does not know when he can leave for Europe; Abadia and

Arizmendi returned from Spain, which is in peace; in Lima church-going is better than before; more

harmony than in Mexico; as a Spaniard he is well treated; no one is satisfied with the government and

its liberalism; Chile is divided; Columbia is unquiet; mentions Bolivar; two ships arrived from San

Blas and Mazatlán; Juan Veg (Begg?) and Arnelt (Hartnell?) are mentioned; no Spanish ship is in the

area; sends greetings to individuals. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 649

Letter 57
The following 59 letters of Martínez to de la Guerra are undated:

Martínez to de la Guerra thanking him for sending a card for wool carding; the latter's failure to

mention anything about insurgents. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 649

Letter 58
Martínez to de la Guerra stating that Ignacio Tenorio is bringing him riding equipment and asks him

to return it; sends greetings to Fray Antonio Ripoll, O.F.M. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 649

Letter 59
Martínez to de la Guerra making an obscure reference to a colonel and another person coming by ship

and to other persons of Lima; thanks de la Guerra for sending oranges. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 649

Letter 60
Martínez to de la Guerra on mules; asks for some sublimado corrosivo, calomel, peppermint, ten

pieces of manta, and inquires if any iron or oranges are available; speaks of the mail. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 649

Letter 61
Martínez to de la Guerra concerning his account with the latter; mentions Padre [José Antonio;

Francisco Xavier?] Uría, O.F.M., a Don Carlos, Natividad and insurgents. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 649

Letter 62
Martínez to de la Guerra on accounts; states that he does not charge the expenses of the guards at the

mission when they protect them, for he wishes to show his appreciation; mentions Juan Ortega.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 649

Letter 63
Martínez to de la Guerra on discussions starting at Monterey; the good reputation of friars in Mexico;

San Antonio has been made a seaport; on the proposed oath to be taken, "now the Indians are free and

the missionaries are slaves." Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 649

Letter 64
Martínez to de la Guerra concerning laws; Estudillo and San Diego; El Señoriano and La Reyna; flour

and news. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 649

Letter 65
Martínez to de la Guerra philosophizing on man; sending him papers (accounts?) he does not

understand. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 649

Letter 66
Martínez to de la Guerra sending him a package to be delivered to Fray Pedro [Múñoz?] of Mission

San Fernando; refers to the Tulare Indians and to a Padre Fernando. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 649

Letter 67
Martínez to de la Guerra on noticieros sent to him; mules to be sent; in Monterey officials are reading

a Catecismo Político that "has no author's name nor even God's name" attached to it; refers to the sick

and his hospital. Spanish. 3 pp.
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DLG 649

Letter 68
Martínez to de la Guerra on financial and mercantile matters; expresses his opinions on the times in

which he is living; his life work being to relieve the needs of others; his open frankness; spies;

mentions Mancisidor, Enterría and soldiers. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 649

Letter 69
Martínez to de la Guerra describing the new but unnamed governor as "strong;" on receiving a new

corporal; on Argüello's leaving California with honor; will send to the Canaliños the foodstuffs they

need; gives reflections. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 649

Letter 70
Martínez to de la Guerra stating that he is on the side of the government of the province; sends de la

Guerra an invoice from Mancisidor; Lima is as "devilish as ever," the times are bad; 400 skins of

tallow given to the ship, La Reyna; a ship to arrive; asks de la Guerra for counsel. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 649

Letter 71
Martínez to de la Guerra on sending back a sergeant who came to the mission (San Luis Obispo) ill

but who recuperated; and on oranges. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 649

Letter 72
Martínez to de la Guerra on news received; his renewal of friendship, accounts, accounts, and cattle;

mentions Fray Antonio Ripoll, O.F.M. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 649

Letter 73
Martínez to de la Guerra on barrels and wine, and on the Europa. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 649

Letter 74
Martínez to de la Guerra on writing to a Don Carlotes; he cannot believe that the pope will dispense

regulars (men in religious orders) from their vows as circulated by the press. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 649

Letter 75
Martínez to de la Guerra; short references to Bandini and Estudillo. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 649

Letter 76
Martínez to de la Guerra mentioning a certain Medina; Mission San Antonio, the soldiers of

Monterey; and the arrival of La Cleopatra in Peru. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 649

Letter 77
Martínez to de la Guerra asking,when he is coming north; reports the arrival of three vessels at

Monterey, from the Sandwich Islands; the death of a Mr. Davis; the reported coming to California of

a Señor Marín and family, mentions Bandini and Juan Malarín. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 649

Letter 78
Martínez to de la Guerra on receiving some mantas; sends message to give to Fray Antonio Ripoll,

O.F.M. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 649

Letter 79
Martínez to de la Guerra; a short note of greeting. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 649

Letter 80
Martínez to de la Guerra on his being accused as a smuggler, which he declares to be a falsehood; the

soldiers under General Cruz swore to uphold independence; Negrete defeated; is considering to be

changed to San Fernando (mission or college?); makes various reflections. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 649

Letter 81
Martínez to de la Guerra thanking him for news; soldiers report an uprising in San Diego; mentions

the commander of a ship, Don Silvestre, who is known to Fray Antonio Ripoll, O.F.M.; mentions

Negrete and Fray Francisco Suñer, O.F.M. Spanish. 2 pp.
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DLG 649

Letter 82
Martínez to la Guerra on his journey to Buena Vista where the son of Quipahucis and eight other

Indians were killed the day before; states that the Tulareños are very "verdes," and, if they do not

keep out the cimarrones and cut off their communication with those of the Colorado River, they will

not be conquered. Martínez states he met quite a large number of Indians from the Colorado, and

states their lands are not fit for founding establishments, for all is sand and there is a lack of good

water for drinking purposes; at Buena Vista he heard of an Apache in the ranchería of Guipahuas who

was armed like a (Spanish? Mexican?) soldier. Martínez and his companion, Fray Antonio Rodríguez,

O.F.M., send de la Guerra condolence on the death of his mother. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 649

Letter 83
Martínez to de la Guerra sending him papers containing the latest news states on political affairs; on

an unnamed ship soon to leave; states that his letters are as clear as water and cannot see why de la

Guerra cannot understand them; Martínez' reflections. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 649

Letter 84
Martínez to de la Guerra on the return of the soldier, Valencia; the infante Mazateca; is sending the

invoices of Bandini and letters Olazágarri. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 649

Letter 85
Martínez to de la Guerra on receiving the latter's letter but states that what it contained, he, "in no way

agrees with." Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 649

Letter 86
Martínez to de la Guerra forwarding a price list and commenting on his lack of talent for being an

accountant. This letter is in another hand except for the last few lines. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 649

Letter 87
Martínez to de la Guerra on his mission hospital; reflections; greetings; on the visit of the superior

[President?] to Mission Santa Barbara; mentions Padres Antonio [Ripoll], O.F.M., and [Francisco]

Suñer, O.F.M. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 649

Letter 88
Martínez to de la Guerra asking that a certain Enrique, who owes his freedom to Martínez, send him

log wood or several casks; mentions Ignacio Tenorio in connection with Enrique's "escape;" is busy

with cumplimiento de iglesia. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 649

Letter 89
Martínez to de la Guerra stating that he has lost, his entire horse herd and is without arms; tells de la

Guerra to prepare a presidio somewhat distant from the coast; it is rumored that at Soledad there is a

pilot and two more prisoners; that in a melee some insurgents died but that on the Spanish side none

were killed or wounded. (It appears these references are to the Bouchard invasion of 1818). Spanish.

2 pp.

DLG 649

Letter 90
Martínez to de la Guerra concerning a ship chartered to an Englishman and Arizmendi, which sailed

for Monterey and Santa Cruz and is to come to Port San Luis [Obispo]; Mancisidor's lack of

resources; on taxes; a (litigation?/contract?); on answering his letters. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 649

Letter 91
Martínez to de la Guerra on oranges received; on hearing that he is going to Monterey, and that

Martínez could meet him en route. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 649

Letter 92
Martínez to de la Guerra on giving him various opinions and concluding that California's security is

not too good; asks when troops will come from Loreto; speaks of his hard work at the mission [San

Luis Obispo]. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 649

Letter 93
Martínez to de la Guerra concerning accounts. Negrete is mentioned. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 649

Letter 94
Martínez to de la Guerra sending him and Salvador Espiroz tobacco; on Solá's taking Aruz from his

mission; Fray [Jaime] Escudé is very ill at Santa Cruz; [José Antonio] Aguirre is not very happy at

San Luis Obispo but he does not know why. Spanish. 2 pp.
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DLG 649

Letter 95
Martínez to de la Guerra on the arrival of Trinidad Espinosa and his dealings with him. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 649

Letter 96
Martínez to de la Guerra on accounts and merchandise and on their mutual friendship. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 649

Letter 97
Martínez to de la Guerra on resources for encountering the insurgents. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 649

Letter 97a
Martínez to de la Guerra on fulfilling an unnamed commission; on Sola's thanking him; the guard of

Mission San Luis Obispo is being changed; Padre Sainz de Lucio, O.F.M., is being changed to

Mission San Fernando. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 649

Letter 98
Martínez to de la Guerra on no fugitives in the Santa Barbara Presidio jurisdiction; Enrique's presence

in Santa Barbara; Martínez' need for cloth. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 649

Letter 99
Martínez to de la Guerra on corporal Villa's stealing a horse belonging to Mission San Luis Obispo;

another horse of Martínez was stolen earlier when in the Santa Barbara area. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 649

Letter 100
Martínez to de la Guerra on sending a barrel of meat; his recovery of four Indians who had fled to

Buena Vista; inquires if the Indian from San Luis Obispo in de la Guerra's custody has repented; the

accounts of Negrete. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 649

Letter 101
Martínez to de la Guerra on a letter of Padre[Francisco Xavier] Uría telling of a meeting held with de

la Guerra; alarm in Monterey; in San Antonio, Soledad and San Juan Bautista there are settlers; and at

San Luis Obispo only two soldiers and Martínez consider the place a most critical point. Spanish. 2

pp.

DLG 649

Letter 102
Martínez to de la Guerra asking him to show his letter and make known his resolution to Fray

Antonio Ripoll, O.F.M. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 649

Letter 103
Martínez to de la Guerra on two youths who are returning to Santa Barbara; a receipt from Mazateco

to de la Guerra; a meeting in Monterey concerning taxes; on a new political catechism on freedom

being studied in Monterey in which the name of God is not mentioned, Martínez' reaction to certain

of the above-mentioned ideas. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 649

Letter 104
Martínez to de la Guerra sending him wheels; mentions Governor [Pablo Vicente] Solá and a certain

Enrique. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 649

Letter 105
Martínez to de la Guerra notifying him of the presence of two brigantines from Lima at Monterey

seeking tallow and wheat; Antonio [José] Cot of Lima to arrive later. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 649

Letter 106
Martínez to de la Guerra on reading a book sent to him; will soon send rebozos and a bottle; does not

approve of the expedition of Anastasio into the Tulares; mentions Carlos Leyba; greets Maitorena; his

pistols have not been returned. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 649

Letter 107
Martínez to de la Guerra on his presence at Mission San Antonio; will send sheep upon his return to

San Luis Obispo; on soldiers in the San Francisco area refusing to travel by water instead of by land;

Don Luís and Corporal Soto mentioned, At the end of the letter is a note in hand of José Joaquín de la

Torre. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 649

Letter 108
Martínez to de la Guerra; a letter of reflections. Spanish. 2 pp.
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DLG 649

Letter 109
Martínez to de la Guerra concerning an invoice; things he needs; is engaged with the local fiesta; will

see de la Guerra afterwards. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 649

Letter 110
Martínez to de la Guerra on sending hams; on Pico going on an expedition. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 649

Letter 111
Martínez to de la Guerra on an invoice; mentioned are Padre [José Antonio? Francisco Xavier?] Uría,

Martiarena and [William] Hartnell. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 649

Letter 112
Martínez to de la Guerra on the inadvisability of sending him the loom he had asked for; articles and

foodstuffs; mentioned are Bandini, the soldier Cota, Valle and Navarrete. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 649

Letter 113
Martínez to de la Guerra concerning an English ship; no news from Mexico; mentions soldiers of

Loreto. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 649

Letter 114
Martínez to de la Guerra sending sheep from Santa Margarita; has not a single barrel; will probably

see him at Easter; sends messages to Fray Antonio Ripoll, O.F.M., and Don Carlos. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 649

Letter 115
Martínez to de la Guerra sending sixty-two pesos by corporal Antonio Castro; mentions Juan

Salvador Espiroz. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 650

Letter 1
C. 1816. [San Luis Obispo].

Fray Luis Antonio Martínez, O.F.M., to Fray Antonio Ripoll, O.F.M., concerning a matter with his

superior; is to tell de la Guerra to be careful about the letters he sends Martínez; [Fray Ramón]

Abella, O.F.M. is not coming south; [Fray Juan Sainz de] Lucio, O.F.M. is at San Juan and [Fray

Pedro] Múñoz, O.F.M. is alone. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 650

Letter 2
c. 1821. [San Luis Obispo].

Martínez to Ripoll sending him a convocatoria, which he asks him to read to de la Guerra; his carreta

is broken; remarks concerning José de la Guerra; he went on horseback to Santa Margarita to

establish the foundation; says that it is probable that Tamariz will come as governor. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 651

Letter 1
1818. [San Luis Obispo.]

Fray Luís Antonio Martínez to María Antonia (Carrillo) de la Guerra thanking her for sending him

oranges. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 652

Letter 2
[1821. San Luis Obispo.]

Fray Luís Antonio Martínez to the missionaries from Purisima to Santa Barbara on the arrival of the

brigantine, San Carlos, at Monterey; mentions Padres [Antonio] Rodríguez, O.F.M. and [Francisco

Xavier] Uría, O.F.M.; Uría adds a note at Santa Ines; [Fray Antonio] Ripoll, O.F.M. at Santa Barbara.

Partly illegible. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 653

Letter 1
Apr. 18, 1823. San Luis Obispo.

Martínez in an agreement with Stephan Anderson, James Goldie and Juan Ignacio Mancisidor for a

fourth interest in the frigate, Thomas Nowlan. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 654

Letter 1
Nov. 26, 1825. San Luis Obispo.

Martínez to José Antonio López, a retired soldier of Presidio Santa Barbara, attesting to the fact that

he is living at Mission San Luis Obispo. Spanish. 1 p.
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DLG 655

Letter 1
Sept. 2, 1826. [San Luis Obispo.]

Martínez to Juan Malarín: an account with Mission San Luis Obispo, apparently sent to José de la

Guerra for approval and comments. Emendations are in the hand of de la Guerra. The latter adds a

note to Martínez, Sept. 2, 1826. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 656

Letter 1
July 1, 1815. Mexico.

Pedro Martínez Malvido to José de la Guerra informing him that the inheritors of the deceased

Manuel Rodríguez, habilitado general of both Californias, have placed the power of attorney in his

hands and have revoked that given to Antonio Morán; is asking the account from Morán, and

inquiring from de la Guerra if a certain memoria, a matter of importance, relative to Rodríguez, exists

at Presidio Santa Barbara. In a postscript Martínez Malvido informs de la Guerra that Napoleon has

escaped from Elba and has arrived on the coast of France with soldiers, and of the arrival at Vera

Cruz of Spanish soldiers under Brigadier General Fernando Migares [?] and General Morillo.

Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 657

Letter 1

March 31, 1809. San Blas.

Juan Martínez y Zayas to José de la Guerra on Martínez' temporary appointment by the viceroy to the

contaduría with the result that he will not be able to see de la Guerra during the coming year; asks

him to send him all the tallow he can on the Princesa; is sending a letter to Mercado; mentions a

certain Domingo, a Fray Pedro, Argüello, Doña Tomása, Don Raymundo and María Antonia (de la

Guerra's wife.). Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 657

Letter 2
Aug. 22, 1809. Tepic.

Martínez y Zayas to de la Guerra on receiving the latter's executive power against de la Guerra's

debtors; mentions a Padre Afanador, and a Fernández and Benito Díaz; Moza and Navarrete are in

Tepic; notifies him of the arrival of the brigantine, Activo, at San Blas, from Manila; the victory of

the Austrians over Napoleon and their encirclement of him on an island of the Danube; mentions

Argüello; Fray Luís Gil y Taboada, O.F.M., Mercado, María Antonia (wife of José); Doña Tomása,

Don Raymundo, a Domingo, Pablo de la Osa, Punchimela and Padre Pedro González, O.P. Spanish. 3

pp.

DLG 658

Letter 1
June 14, 1847. Monterey.

Richard Barnes Mason to Pablo de la Guerra and Luís Carrillo on the letter written by the two to his

predecessor, General Kearny, Mason applauding the patriotism therein expressed. Mason explains

that in the current situation alcaldes are neither U. S. authorities nor Mexican, but Californian

authorities subject to removal by the governor. He expresses the need for good alcaldes in Santa

Barbara, such as de la Guerra and Carrillo are, for the preservation of law and order. English. 2 pp.

DLG 659

Letter 1
Sept. 13, 1814. Loreto.

José María Mata to José de la Guerra on the death of Felipe de Goycoechea, Mentioned is Manuel

Ruíz. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 659

Letter 2
July 30, 1821.

Mata to de la Guerra on the deposition of Apodaca; the new viceroy, [Juan] O'Donojú, landing at

Vera Cruz with 6,000 soldiers; Agustín Iturbide defeated near Puebla by Mexican troops; his

disagreement with Negrete, Quintanar and Bustamante; orders given to the viceroy by the Spanish

Cortes; the presence of Cruz in Durango; Negrete in the Bajío; Durango's voting in favor of

independence. Contemporary copy. Spanish. 2 pp.
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DLG 660

Letter 1
1854. Todos Santos.

María Teresa (de la Guerra) Hartnell Maturano to Pablo de la Guerra concerning an undisclosed

family matter in which she appears to have offended her father and brother. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 660

Letter 2
Oct. 24, 1854. Todos Santos.

Hartnell Maturano to de la Guerra on receiving the latter's request asking her to empower him to sell

Cosumnes Ranch in favor of Grim and Rumbler, a permission she gives; the purpose of Juan and

Miguel [de la Guerra] in going to Sacramento; on Pablo going to Mexico; her request that he leave

certain instructions in writing; on the collection of 300 pesos. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 661

Letter 1
Nov. 13, 1817. Santa Barbara.

Juan José Mayo: an invoice of goods for Mission San Gabriel. Contemporary copy. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 662

Letter 1
Dec. 14, 1819. Tepic.

José Medina to Juan Sociats on recommending José de la Guerra. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 663

Letter 1
May 26, 1820. Tepic.

Medina to José de la Guerra on ships available for returning to California, El Señoriano and El

Alción. Mentioned are Ramón de Murua, Martiarena and Juan Malarín. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 663

Letter 2
Jan. 30, 1821. Tepic.

Medina to de la Guerra on mercantile matters; Upper California mail service expected from El

Señoriano in future; latest news of the Spanish Cortes is being sent to Solá, as well as a copy of the

Political Constitution of the Monarchy. Mentioned are Juan Malarín, Juan Cubillas, El Alción, José

Antonio Carrillo, Yebra, Martiarena, and Barela. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 663

Letter 3
Aug. 4, 1821. Guaymas.

Medina to de la Guerra sending papers on political matters for him and Solá; on sending the

correspondence brought by El Señoriano to Cubillas at Tepic; on the shipment of goods to California.

On Sept. 6, 1821, he continues concerning an agreement on an arrangement in case of death of Juan

Malarín. On Oct. 7, 1821, he continues: stating his uncertainty about the death of [Juan] Malarín; on

the province taking the oath in favor of independence; is sending printed news to him and Solá.

Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 663

Letter 4

Nov. 21, 1821. Pitic.

Medina to de la Guerra on the return of El Señoriano from California; is awaiting its arrival at

Guaymas; is still not certain about the death of Malarín; on de la Guerra to take care of Malarín's

interests in case of his death. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 663

Letter 5
June 1, 1822. Topic.

Medina to de la Guerra on his return to Tepic from Sonora; his reasons for not sending El Señoriano

to California; accounts; mention of Martiarena; Medina and Cubillas writing to Juan Malarín and de

la Guerra sending copy of a contract made with William Austin, Captain of the Panther, a U. S. ship

which is to collect 10,000 arrobas of tallow at Monterey, Santa Barbara and San Pedro; an instruction

of Alexander Forbes for obtaining hides; expresses in detail various mercantile and financial

arrangements. Spanish. 4 pp.
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DLG 663

Letter 6
Jan. 22, 1823. Tepic.

Medina to de la Guerra on the brigantine, Cosak, being a pirate ship, news he passed on to the

Mexican government; the uncertain political situation in Mexico; his writing to Juan Malarín; a

terrible storm doing much damage to the countryside and town; the French frigate, Ballenera, was

lost, and Medina's ship, El Señoriano, going from Guaymas to San Blas, and its sixteen persons

aboard, was lost, its captain, being a brother of his associate, Cubillas; de la Guerra is empowered to

handle Malarín's affairs should anything happen to him; political strife in Spain; General Clio hanged

in Valencia; seventeen bishops and canons were exiled and others punished; news from Havana on

the arrival of the frigate, Constitución, with two commissioners for Mexico and seven ships with

2,000 soldiers for Cuba; the area of Tepic is enjoying peace. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 663

Letter 7
June 20, 1823. Tepic.

Medina to de la Guerra on an account settled between de la Guerra and Juan Malarín; the expected

arrival of Malarín at San Blas in October; Medina's marriage to Manuela Tapia on Apr. 20; social and

political conditions of the area; is sending de la Guerra various printed articles. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 663

Letter 8
Apr. 26, 1824. Tepic.

Medina to de la Guerra on a letter from him sent through [Juan] Malarín; the unchanged conditions in

Mexico; the arrival of Iturbide in London; the Holy Alliance in Europe; the protection of Mexico by

England and the United States; comments on the situation of the times; Malarín is bearer of the letter.

Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 663

Letter 9
Aug. 20, 1825. Tepic.

Medina to de la Guerra on the sailing of the sloop, Nieves, for Monterey; the business status of

Antonio Arana; [Fray Antonio] Ripoll,O.F.M., to be advised; [Juan] Malarín in Mexico City, received

the office of alférez de navio; on letters sent by de la Guerra to several persons; Medina's writing to

his father-in-law, Mariano Estrada in Monterey; the Nieves is to pick up tallow whose supercargo is

Juan Antonio Aguirre; a recommendation to José María Echeandía for Francisco Tapia seeking

employment in California. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 664

Letter 1
Apr. 21, 1824. Tepic.

José Medina to Juan Malarín sending him an original letter Fletes wrote to Cubillas and other

documents relating to Arana; Medina awaiting a response; will send accounts and other items as

requested. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 665

Letter 1
Dec. 11, 1833. Tepic.

José Ramón de Menchado to Fray José Maria de Zalvidea, O.F.M., of San Juan Capistrano on

payment due him by the syndic, followed by a statement in the same hand, June 27, 1834, repeating

the above. Letter was brought to California by [Antonio] María de Ercilla going there for commercial

reasons. Zalvidea places his answer at end of letter which is directed to José de la Guerra, June 4,

1837. There is a duplicate of the same but without the Zalvidea addition. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 666

Letter 1
June 27, 1827. Tepic.

Menchado to Fray Buenaventura Fortuny, O.F.M., on the death of the syndic, Juan Bautista

Martiarena; and on the money to be given to Fray Buenaventura Fortuny, O.F.M., by Antonio Maria

Ercilla. 1 p.
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DLG 667

Letter 1
c. 1834.

José Ramón de Menchado to José de la Guerra on Ercilla's coming to California; sends a statement as

to what is owed to the missions. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 667

Letter 2
May, 1834.

Menchado to José de la Guerra on the death of Martiarena; on money due to Missions San Juan

Capistrano and San Francisco Solano; on a letter received from Ercilla in California on commercial

matters; the death of Juan de la Guerra. Partly torn. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 667

Letter 3
Apr. 25, 1836. Tepic.

Menchado to de la Guerra representing the heirs of the deceased syndic Martiarena; monies due to

Missions San Juan Capistrano, San Francisco Solano and San Luis Obispo; on Juan de la Guerra's

purchases in Mexico on way home to California with money borrowed from Señora Martiarena;

Ercilla bringing this letter to California; mentioned are Fray José María Zalvidea, O.F.M., Fray

Buenaventura Fortuny, O.F.M., Urbano Sánchez, Carlos Carrillo, and a certain Manchola. Spanish. 3

pp.

DLG 668

Letter 1
Jan. 6, 1835. Aboard the Rosa.

José Antonio de Mendeguren to José de la Guerra stating that aboard the Ayacucho he left a chest of

208 marcos in silver, of which 159 are for de la Guerra; on the return of a customs house receipt; is

sailing direct to Monterey because of a favorable wind; a draft in favor of Mendeguren to be paid by

de la Guerra. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 669

Letter 1
Jan. 18, 1814. Mexico.

Andrés de Mendívil to Francisco María Ruíz on payment of an account. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 670

Letter 1
May 29, 1816, Mexico.

Mendívil to de la Guerra on the payment of an account. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 671

Letter 1
July 18, 1835. Callao.

José Antonio Menéndez to José de la Guerra complaining about a certain Richardson for placing

fewer pipas on his ship than he had contracted for; the sale of his old ship for a new one; is sending de

la Guerra a receipt from Manuel Díaz, asking de la Guerra to forward an accompanying letter to Cot.

Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 671

Letter 2
July 3, 1838. Lima

Menéndez to de la Guerra concerning an account with Fray Tomás de Esténaga, O.F.M. Partly torn.

Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 671

Letter 3
May 11, 1844. Lima.

Menéndez to de la Guerra on sending him condolence on the death of his wife. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 671

Letter 4
Dec. 14, 1850. Los Angeles.

Menéndez to de la Guerra on a conference held with Fray José J. Jimeno, O.F.M., of Mission San

Gabriel on the testament of Fray Blas Ordaz, O.F.M., Ordaz being the last Spanish missionary to have

served in California; his burial taking place at San Gabriel; [Antonio José] Cot is in Los Coyotes; Poli

is leaving for San Buenaventura; accounts; mentioned are Antonio José Aguirre, Fray Ramón Abella,

O.F.M., and Fray Tomás Esténaga, O.F.M. Spanish. 3 pp.
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DLG 672

Letter 5
Febr. 14, 1851. San Francisco.

José Antonio Menéndez to Pablo de la Guerra, the bearer of the letter being Juan Foro, and stating

that he is sending three pairs of gloves and other items ordered by de la Guerra, and that his cousin,

Pedro Carrillo, would be leaving San Francisco on the 17th of February. [Domingo] Danglada

mentioned. Written on pictorial letter sheet of San Francisco harbor published by Marvin and

Hitchcock, San Francisco. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 673

Letter 1
June 26, 1851. San Francisco.

José Antonio Menéndez to José de la Guerra sending him an invoice of articles as ordered by his son,

Pablo. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 673a

Letter 1
May 19, 1829. Mexico.

The Mexican senate to José de la Guerra: a certified recommendation made to exempt him from the

decree of March 20, 1829, re expulsion of Spaniards from Mexico. Signed by Ignacio González and

Juan F. Escalante. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 673a

Letter 2

Apr. 14, 1830. Mexico.

The Mexican Senate to José de la Guerra: a certificate of exemption from the decree of March 29,

1829, re expulsion of Spaniards from Mexico. Copy of document certified by Juan M. Ibarra, Santa

Barbara, Apr. 22, 1833. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 674

Letter 1
Dec. 2, 1842. Los Angeles.

Manuel Micheltorena to José de la Guerra on the prospective visit of Commodore Jones to Los

Angeles for a conference with Micheltorena. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 675

Letter 1
Dec. 2, 1842. Los Angeles.

Manuel Micheltorena to Pablo de la Guerra citing a message to the commandant at Santa Barbara on

Pablo's request to remain there for a few days to regain his health and ordering the commandant not to

molest him in any way. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 675

Letter 2
Oct. 8, 1843. Monterey.

Micheltorena to De la Guerra asking him to attend a meeting at the latter's home on the following

day. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 675

Letter 3

Dec. 10, 1843. Monterey.

Micheltorena to de la Guerra deputizing him to take charge of the department of finance in the name

of the president of the republic since the administrator of customs, Manuel Castañares, has been

elected deputy to the National Congress. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 675

Letter 4
Febr. 25, 1845. Cuartel en Palos Verdes.

Micheltorena to de la Guerra stating that as a result of an a agreement made in the field of San

Fernando, he is returning to Mexico and is appointing as his temporary successor as governor, Pio

Pico, and as general military commander, Colonel José Castro. He bids good-by to those who had

been associated with him in the government; praise their co-operation, and orders this document to be

placed on the door of de la Guerra's office for a period of eight days. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 676

Letter 1
Aug. 30, 1844. Monterey.

Micheltorena to José de la Guerra confirming his appointment as collector of customs at the port of

Santa Barbara. Spanish. 2 pp.
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DLG 677

Letter 1
Oct. 6, 1855.

José María Miranda to Pablo de la Guerra asking him to be a guarantor of a certain Señor Camarillo

to whom he had loaned 153 pesos to enable him to put up a building. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 678

Letter 1
No Folder 678

DLG 679

Letter 1
No Folder 679

DLG 680

Letter 1
Nov. 12, 1860. Sacramento.

E. J. Mitchell to Pablo de la Guerra stating that he is a candidate for enrolling clerk in the senate and

asks for his support. English. 1 p.

DLG 681

Letter 1
Febr. 8, 1860. Santa Barbara, Calif.

Frédéric Francois Vicomte Cazeaux de Mandron to Pablo de la Guerra thanking him for a favor

received; giving his views on the law concerning rents; stating that Santa Barbara is a "sad place,"

despite the fine dance held recently; lacks news; [Charles] Fernald has become a Catholic; expresses

his disapproval of the number of Jews being admitted into the current society. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 681

Letter 2
Sept. 12, 1867. Santa Barbara.

Mondrán to de la Guerra on payment to be given the former for teaching his son, Carlos, for a period

of nine months. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 682

Letter 1
Oct. 4, 1860. San Francisco.

John A. Monroe to Pablo de la Guerra: a circular letter filled in and containing a resolution of the

Democratic Party of California to make known to the National Democratic Central Committee of

Washington, D. C., the need to come to the financial aid of the party in California, and, in case such

aid would not be forthcoming, an assessment be made on the prominent members of the party in the

state. English. 1 p.

DLG 683

Letter 1
July 5 - Aug. 2, 1805. Monterey.

José María Estudillo, cadet of cavalry on the naming of Francisco María Ruíz as defender in the case

of Francisco Morales who is in prison, Ramón Laso, having declined the position. Signed by

Estudillo and José Castro. This is followed by Ruíz' decline to act as defender. Signed by Estudillo

and Castro. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 684

Letter 1
Oct. 5, 1819. Monterey.

An agreement to contribute twenty-five pesos a month towards paying the salary of José de la Guerra

as special commissioner to Mexico. Signed by Luís Antonio Argüello, Ignacio Martínez, José

Sánchez and José Berreyesa. Approved and signed by Pablo Vicente Solá. This agreement is enclosed

in a communication from Solá to de la Guerra, Oct. 9, 1819. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 685

Letter 1
June 30, 1819. San Francisco.

Gabriel Moraga to José de la Guerra on the former's royal appointment as lieutenant and asks that his

son, Josef Domingo, be enrolled among the soldiers of Presidio San Francisco. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 685

Letter 2
July 30, 1819. San Francisco.

Moraga to de la Guerra stating that he had asked the governor that his son, Josef Domingo, be

transferred from Presidio San Francisco to the presidio where de la Guerra is in command. Spanish. 2

pp.
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DLG 685

Letter 3
Jan. 11, 1820. Santa Barbara.

Moraga to de la Guerra on his having been sent on an expedition to the Colorado River to the

ranchería of Amajabas; his going there with Lieutenant Narciso (Fabregat) between Nov. 22, and

Dec. 14, 1819; complains about his alférez during his absence; a financial matter spoken about

between them at San Pedro; the departure of the Amajabas; the death of Ignacio Higuera. Spanish. 3

pp.

DLG 685

Letter 4
March 27, 1820. Santa Barbara.

Moraga to de la Guerra on receiving news of the latter's presence at San Blas; the poverty of his

subjects; the cooperativeness of the Mazatlán company, gives news of the de la Guerras in Santa

Barbara. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 685

Letter 5
May 27, 1820. Santa Barbara.

Moraga to de la Guerra on the arrival of a sloop from Mazatlán, whose captain is Blas Cosio, the

same ship that has brought the Mazatlán company to California; now having brought items of

commerce; poor season for rain; needs of the troops supplied with difficulty. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 685

Letter 6
June 28, 1820. Santa Barbara.

Moraga to de la Guerra on news received from the latter; de la Guerra having spoken to the viceroy;

the burial of Eustaquio Peña; the arrival of the brigantine, San Francisco de Paula, under Blas Cosio,

the same that had brought troops to California, and now having brought items of commerce; likewise

the arrival of the Cleopatra, from Lima,, to take back tallow, now at San Pedro. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 685

Letter 7
March 30, 1822. Santa Barbara.

Moraga to de la Guerra sending the letter through Lt. Estudillo who is going to Monterey; on his

action taken when he received news of a ship on March 26, at Refugio Beach; the news received from

Lower California concerning [Admiral] Cochran; the ship appearing at Mescaltitlán; the news given

by Indians to Fray Antonio Ripoll, O.F.M., of two other ships near the islands, their being in search of

water, wood and refreshments; cites the number of soldiers available, his giving liberty to a certain

Eusebio and Juan María Duarte of the Mazatlán Company. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 685

Letter 8
March 3, 1823. San Buenaventura.

Moraga to de la Guerra on the former's illness, his desire to return home; his inability to come

because of fog, rain and wind; his writing to Fray Antonio Ripoll, O.F.M., to send him a biscoche to

return him to Santa Barbara. In a note in this same letter, Ripoll states that the carreta is at Dos

Pueblos to bring Padre [Antonio] Rodríguez, O.F.M., to Santa Barbara and will send it to San

Buenaventura later. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 685

Letter 9
Febr. 18, 1823. Pueblo [Los Angeles].

Moraga to de la Guerra on completing the mission assigned to him; his going to the chaplain's house

the day before where the ayuntamiento was gathered and where he communicated the message of de

la Guerra but which was rejected. Mentioned are Grijalva and Palomares; concerning his fever and

his going to Mission [San Gabriel] on Ash Wednesday. Spanish. 3 pp.



8/26/2009 Page 210

DLG 686

Letter 1
Oct. 29, Santa Barbara.

Gabriel Moraga to Agustín Iturbide: a petition to Iturbide for retirement from his military duties as

lieutenant of the Santa Barbara Company. This petition also contains four separate enclosures, all

copies of originals, signed by José de la Guerra, concerning Moraga's military career, March 2, 1821:

José Argüello, San José Comundú, Lower California, July 10, 1818; Fray José María Zalvidea,

O.F.M., San Gabriel, May 14, 1818; Francisco María Ruíz, San Diego, Oct. 16, 1818, and Fray José

Señán, O.F.M., San Buenaventura, May 15, 1820. 4 pp.

DLG 687

Letter 1
Apr. 24, 1824. Los Angeles.

Francisco Morales to José de la Guerra concerning a vineyard he has cultivated for four years with the

permission of Gabriel Moraga, and concerning a piece of land called San Vicente, which is disputed

by Nepomuceno Alvarado. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 688

Letter 1
Jan. 21, 1804. Mexico.

Antonio Morán to José de la Guerra on the former's recent illness; on de la Guerra's request for

permission to marry; the illness of [Manuel] Carcaba, news from Europe complicated; England and

France at war; Spain neutral; thinks the two contending powers will settle their differences through

the mediation of Russia or other European powers. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 688

Letter 2
March 2, 1808. Mexico.

Morán to de la Guerra concerning a barrel of sardines; on not hearing from [José Joaquín] Arrillaga

for over a year; news from Europe: Spain, Portugal and England. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 688

Letter 3
Dec. 31, 1814. Mexico.

Morán to de la Guerra on the latter's trip to Mexico and his return to California; [Pablo Vicente] Solá

to succeed Arrillaga; Captain Argüello probably to replace [Felipe de] Goycoechea; obstruction of

roads in Mexico; no recent news from Spain; de la Guerra to be made captain; a new governor for

Lower California; the invoices for presidios to be sent without delay to Acapulco. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 688

Letter 4
Febr. 15, 1816. Mexico.

Morán to de la Guerra on letters sent to him to San Diego; mentions Solá and Argüello; his

cognizance of the difficulties de la Guerra and others have experienced in their careers; claims Solá as

a friend; says pelts, salmon and sardines are always appreciated by him. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 688

Letter 5
July 15, 1816. Mexico.

Morán to de la Guerra on the news of a new viceroy, Apodaca who is an intimate friend of Ceballos;

conditions in Mexico; mentions a Colonel Morán; Jalapa; the surrender of the sloop, Americana;

invoices at Acapulco. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 688

Letter 6
Nov. 4, 1817. Mexico.

Morán to de la Guerra on the death of his infant son; on writing to Solá concerning a suit; on

celebrating de la Guerra's promotion; hoping that Solá will not fail to fill vacancies; celebration of the

misión de minas in Mexico. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 688

Letter 7
Apr. 1, 1818.

Morán to de la Guerra on a document sent to the latter; Solá's promotion; is waiting for news from

Spain; his fight over postergación; the war in Mexico; mentioned are Guanajuato, Vera Cruz, Padre

Torres and Vitoria, Linarus and the Bajío. Spanish. 3 pp.
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DLG 688

Letter 8
Jan. 27, 1819.

Morán to de la Guerra on enjoying letters received; has two sons serving in the king's army; on

requests from Ruíz and Estudillo for advancement. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 688

Letter 9
Jan. 12, 1820.

Morán to de la Guerra suggesting that the latter continue his journey to Mexico City. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 688

Letter 10
June 7, 1820.

Morán to de la Guerra on hearing of the latter's arrival at Guadalajara; speaks of the new political

system in Mexico. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 689

Letter 1
Febr. 20, 1874. Buena Vista.

Francisca C. Moreno to Josefa (Moreno) de la Guerra (mother to daughter), the latter being the wife

of Pablo de Guerra; a letter of consolation. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 690

Letter 1
March 7, 1858. San Diego.

José Matías Moreno to Francisco de la Guerra and his brothers: a letter of condolence on the death of

José de la Guerra y Noriega. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 691

Letter 1
Sept. 30, 1836. San Miguel.

Fray Juan Moreno, O.F.M., to José de la Guerra concerning a bill to be paid to Fray Antonio

[Jimeno], O.F.M., of Santa Barbara, asking de la Guerra to take care of the matter. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 691

Letter 2
Jan. 22, 1838. San Miguel.

Moreno to de la Guerra sending a letter through Mariano Bonilla; on commercial matters and his need

for supplying his servants with certain items. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 691

Letter 3
July 14, 1838. San Miguel.

Moreno to de la Guerra sending a letter through Señor Ayala, asking him to pay the bearer six pesos

for butcher knives he had bought from him. He also needs the fourteen volumes of the Bible that de la

Guerra has. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 691

Letter 4
July 27, 1838. San Miguel.

Moreno to de la Guerra sending the letter through [Mariano] Bonilla, who paid fifteen pesos in hides;

hides for de la Guerra are either at Port San Luis or San Simeon; on increased expenditures; cloth, and

church goods. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 691

Letter 5
Febr. 8, 1839. San Miguel.

Moreno to de la Guerra on his needs; sending him two barrels; Moreno losing wine placed in old and

broken barrels by the administrator; Father [Jesús María Vázquez del] Mercado,O.F.M.,of Mission

San Antonio, selling him seventy fanegas of wheat; he asks a draft from de la Guerra so that he can

pay for it. Partly torn and partly unreadable because of ink blots. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 692

Letter 1
Febr. 20-March 2, 1869. Los Angeles.

Ascención (Sepúlveda) Mott to Pablo de la Guerra on the illness of Alphaeus B. Thompson; her own

illness; on sending her oranges. Spanish. 3 pp.
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DLG 693

Letter 1
June 3, 1859. San Francisco.

Andrew Jackson Moulder to Pablo de la Guerra, the former superintendent of public instruction for

the past three years, asking for renomination for the same position at the convention to be held at

Sacramento on the coming June 22, to which de la Guerra is a delegate; recounts his efforts in the

field of education; reminds de la Guerra of the loss to Santa Barbara of the school appropriation in

1857, when the local officers failed to report and which Moulder nevertheless supplied. Moulder and

de la Guerra were democrats. English. 3 pp.

DLG 693

Letter 2
Jan. 13, 1860. Sacramento.

Moulder to de la Guerra concerning a Deficiency Bill in the education department. English. 1 p.

DLG 693

Letter 3
March 27, 1860. San Francisco.

Moulder to de la Guerra on preparations for the annual appropriations bill suggesting that the

legislature grant a lump sum with the department reporting the details at the end of the year, because

of the great inconvenience in being able to foretell all details of expenditure a year ahead. English. 2

pp.

DLG 694

Letter 1
Oct. 14, 1863. San Luis Obispo.

José D. Múñoz to Pablo de la Guerra concerning candidacies for office, Múñoz preferring that of

Pablo. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 694

Letter 2
Oct. 1863. [San Luis Obispo].

Múñoz asking de la Guerra to come to San Luis Obispo stating his presence had a bearing on his

election. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 695

Letter 1
March 7, 1815. San Fernando.

Fray Pedro Múñoz, O.F.M., to José de la Guerra sending him twenty-eight letters asking him to frank

them and send them on their way. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 695

Letter 2
Oct. 6, 1815. San Fernando.

Múñoz to de la Guerra on his inability to come to Santa Barbara since he was alone at the mission;

mentions Fray Joaquín [Nuez], O.F.M., and Fray Vicente [De Santa María?] O.F.M.; speaks of the

remedies he was using for his infirmities; mentions a Florilegio. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 695

Letter 3

Nov. 12, 1815. San Fernando.

Múñoz to de la Guerra stating that his Indians did not have the skill to make the lances requested; he

would need a good blacksmith and the necessary iron. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 695

Letter 4
Nov. 19, 1815. San Fernando.

Múñoz to de la Guerra on the latter's mother-in-law's stay at Mission San Fernando on her way to Los

Angeles; suggests that he ask the governor to provide a master blacksmith, Felipe or Arriola; and four

aides to be provided by the missions to make lances, his Indians being incapable of making them.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 695

Letter 5
1815. No date. San Fernando.

Múñoz to de la Guerra on the arrival of a Dr. Juan who ordered Múñoz to remain in his room for a

period of two months; Fray [José María de] Zalvidea, O.F.M. to supply meanwhile; on sending de la

Guerra several barrels of wine; asks the latter to send him some chocolate. Spanish. 1 p.
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DLG 695

Letter 6
Jan. 4, 1816. San Fernando.

Maoz to de la Guerra thanking him for chocolate sent; on the state of his health (had ear trouble);

sending him the names of the Indians nominated as alcaldes. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 695

Letter 7
Jan. 11, 1816. San Fernando.

Múñoz to de la Guerra on his improved health; commercial matters; on fugitives. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 695

Letter 8
Febr. 4, 1816. San Fernando.

Múñoz to de la Guerra on accounts; fugitives; is sending Jose María Romero, who is bringing some

prickly and regular pears from San Juan [Capistrano]. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 695

Letter 9
Febr. 21, 1816. San Fernando.

Múñoz to de la Guerra thanking him for bringing back fugitives; on receiving forty-five pesos from a

Don Carlos; on a difficulty between him and Patricio Pico in which José Ignacio Lugo is involved;

explains the latter matter in considerable detail; sends de la Guerra a basket of fruit. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 695

Letter 10
Apr. 8, 1816. San Fernando.

Múñoz to de la Guerra concerning a military campaign; mentioned are four Indians and states that

after the departure of the troops, four more Indians have fled. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 695

Letter 11
Apr. 8, 1816. San Fernando.

Múñoz to de la Guerra on commercial items. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 695

Letter 12
Apr. 22, 1816. San Fernando.

Múñoz to de la Guerra sending him iron and two barrels of wine; the report on cumplimiento de

iglesia; on the carpenter, Carmen, making the monumento (tomb) for Holy Week; and some niches in

which are to be placed statues of saints. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 695

Letter 13
May 9, 1816. San Fernando.

Múñoz to Fray Antonio Ripoll, O.F.M., (and evidently forwarded to de la Guerra) on receiving a

request to send him (Ripoll) some turkeys, and answers that he may be able to send some later but he

has only two toms and, as to hens, some are for breeding and others are hatching: This is followed by

two short notes by Ripoll, in one of which Ripoll consoles de la Guerra on the illness of his mother.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 695

Letter 14

July 1, 1816. San Fernando.

Múñoz to de la Guerra on a misunderstanding concerning accounts. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 695

Letter 15
July 5, 1816. San Fernando.

Múñoz to de la Guerra on barrels and the death of Juan Romero. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 695

Letter 16
1816. Date not given. San Fernando.

Múñoz to de la Guerra; a short note stating that the former was not angry at the latter which de la

Guerra supposed he was. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 695

Letter 17
July 25, 1816. San Fernando.

Múñoz to de la Guerra on an unnamed alférez; asks for rice, has tobacco but of poor quality; on

chocolate; on receiving plums; is sending pears in return; the father prefect has left San Fernando and

has gone to San Gabriel. Spanish. 2 pp.
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DLG 695

Letter 18
Oct. 20, 1816. San Fernando.

Múñoz to de la Guerra disclaiming a charge to the mission which neither he nor the Indians had

anything to do with. Mentions a Castro and an Ortega, and Fray Joaquín [Nuez], O.F.M. Spanish. 2

pp.

DLG 695

Letter 19
Oct. 28, 1816. San Fernando.

Múñoz to de la Guerra on the Indian, Juan Ignacio, who went to San Gabriel; Fray José María de

Zalvidea, O.F.M., returned him to San Fernando where Múñoz handed him over to the corporal to be

taken to Santa Barbara. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 695

Letter 20
Nov. 14, 1816. San Fernando.

Múñoz to de la Guerra concerning a shipment of goods. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 695

Letter 21
Dec. 8, 1816. San Fernando.

Múñoz to de la Guerra giving a list of articles de la Guerra can obtain from him; is not sending wine.

Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 695

Letter 22
Dec. 21, 1816. San Fernando.

Múñoz to de la Guerra wishing to send him grapes and pomegranates for Christmas but cannot

because his mules have not returned from San Diego. Sends him Christmas greetings. Mentions iron.

Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 695

Letter 23
Dec. 30, 1816. San Fernando.

Múñoz to de la Guerra; a short note on receiving a letter from him through Corporal Castro. Spanish.

1 p.

DLG 695

Letter 24
Febr. 3, 1817. San Fernando.

Múñoz to de la Guerra sending through José María Romero, two barrels, one of wine, another of

brandy, a basket of grapes and pomegranates, and asks him to send back with Romero plates, vases,

and iron. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 695

Letter 25
March 19, 1817. San Fernando.

Múñoz to de la Guerra concerning medicine. Mentions Fray Marcos [Amestoy?], O.F.M., and Fray

Antonio [Ripoll], O.F.M. Partly torn. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 695

Letter 26

Apr. 7, 1817. San Fernando.

Múñoz to de la Guerra sending through José Ignacio, iron, silk and sugar, and asks for chocolate;

sends Easter greetings; mentions the padres of San Diego. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 695

Letter 27
June 9, 1817. San Fernando.

Múñoz to de la Guerra explaining the actions of certain Indians, Crisanto and Báltasar. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 695

Letter 28
March 20, 1818. San Fernando.

Múñoz to de la Guerra on twenty Indians needed for an undisclosed enterprise, Salvador being the

best interpreter; praises de la Guerra for his interest in religious matters; harmony now existing

between himself and Patricio Pico of Simi. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 695

Letter 29
Undated.

Múñoz to de la Guerra on wine and iron. Mentions a José Manuel. A note appended by Fray Joaquín

[Nuez], O.F.M., states he is presently at San Fernando. Spanish. 2 pp.
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DLG 695

Letter 30
Undated.

Múñoz to de la Guerra stating he is sending José María Romero for chocolate; on his illness and

deafness; is sending grapes and pomegranates but no wine. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 696

Letter 1
Febr. 5, 1821. San Gabriel.

Esteban Munrás to José de la Guerra notifying him that he has written to the governor relative to

money. He will stop to see de la Guerra on his way to Monterey. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 697

Letter 1
March 23, 1863. Santa Barbara.

F. B. Murdock to Pablo de la Guerra authorizing him to practice law. Partly printed. English. 1 p.

DLG 698

Letter 1
Dec. 19, 1869. Sacramento.

Patrick W. Murphy to Francisco de la Guerra on the condition of Juan José de la Guerra after his

accident. Five printed newspaper articles accompany this, four from 1869 and one from 1940, when

Juan was still alive at the age of ninety-three, all referring to the accident. English. 7 pp.

DLG 699

Letter 1
Oct. 14, 1863. San Luis Obispo.

Walter Murray to Pablo de la Guerra on a Mr. Hayes returning to Santa Ines; on learning that Pablo

was in Los Angeles; the arrival of a manifesto by Maguire and [Charles E.] Huse, which the Unionist

Committee of the county has seen and stating it will have no effect (apparently against Pablo de la

Guerra); he expects Pablo will receive the majority of votes, a Señor Beebee being Pablo's opponent

in San Luis Obispo. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 699

Letter 2
Nov. 2, 1863. San Luis Obispo.

Murray to de la Guerra on voting for the judgeship. Mentioned are Benjamin Hayes, Bonilla and

Joaquín Carrillo. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 700

Letter 1
Febr. 1, 1821. San Blas.

José de Nájera to José de la Guerra thanking him for sardines; his arrival at Tepic at the end of the

previous July; his appointment as treasurer since last December; the reinstatement of Anzoásegui;

concerning a shipment of lumber; the election of the pastor of San Blas as a deputy of the district and

the need for him to go to Guadalajara; Salvador Batres to represent the province; much freedom and

scandal at San Blas; mentions a number of persons who died at San Blas recently; rejoices over de la

Guerra's safe arrival in California; Nájera's being robbed by his servant in Guadalajara; on hearing

from Gonzalo de Ulloa from Mexico, who petitioned to become governor of California. Spanish. 4

pp.

DLG 701

Letter 1
Oct. 18, 1814. Monterey.

José María Narváez to José de la Guerra on commercial and monetary matters; mentions [Mariano]

Estrada, Gervasio, and José Argüello; is sailing for San Blas Nov. 1. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 701

Letter 2
Nov. 1, 1814. Monterey.

Narváez to de la Guerra announcing his sailing for San Blas; on sending to him a trunk of chinaware

through Mariano Estrada; other commercial matters and the brigantine of Señor Grajero. Spanish. 4

pp.

DLG 701

Letter 3
May 6, 1815. Laguna de Chapala, Mexico.

Narváez to de la Guerra on his voyage to Manila; his illness; his ship in an attack; commercial items;

no news from Spain; commerce and mail disturbed because of revolution in Mexico. Spanish. 4 pp.
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DLG 701

Letter 4
June 14, 1817. Laguna de Chapala.

Narváez to de la Guerra on the sailing of the governor to California on the frigate of Ybargoyen; his

isolation from news and events; on rebels against Spain; commercial matters; mentioned are Estrada

and Argüello. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 701

Letter 5
Aug. 4, 1818. Guadalajara.

Narváez to de la Guerra on his leaving Laguna de Chapala for Guadalajara where his family is; on the

Mexican revolution; the brigantines San Carlos and Activo at San Blas, the latter being almost

useless; accounts; credits de la Guerra with "honorable ways of acting;" refers to his voyages to

Manila and Monterey. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 701

Letter 6
June 9, 1820. Guadalajara.

Narváez to de la Guerra stating that a son of Felipe Neri Castillo Pedro Nolasco was among the

soldiers who embarked for California in the preceding year with Captain Navarrete; that he was

stationed at Presidio San Francisco, and asks that he now communicate with his father. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 701

Letter 7

Oct. 2, 1822. Monterey.

Narváez to de la Guerra on his silence of two years; the change of government in Mexico; sending

him newspapers; the Rev. [Agustín de San Vicente] Fernández, canon of Durango, is coming as

commissioner to California; Padre Afanador as chaplain; a certain Prieto as accountant; and his son as

alférez de navio; Manuel García and others send greetings. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 701

Letter 8
Oct. 10, 1822. Monterey.

Narváez to de la Guerra on the junta celebrated in Monterey on Oct. 8; the departure of the former

governor and installation of the interim governor; thinks the election will go to de la Guerra or Luís

[Argüello?]; considers the need for the installation of a provincial diputación for the establishment

and strengthening of a constitutional government; the need for ayuntamientos at San José and Los

Angeles; gives his political views of past and ideas for future government; will send more newspapers

when Father [Estevan] Tapis, O.F.M., and another finish reading them; commissioner Fernández is

going to Bodega. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 701

Letter 9
Jan. 2, 1823. San Diego.

Narváez to de la Guerra on hearing from the latter only once since his arrival; the need for a

provincial diputación in California; hears that certain anti-constitutional providencias have been

attributed to de la Guerra and hopes that these have been misrepresentations; is sorry that he could not

see him. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 701

Letter 10
Apr. 1, 1824. San Blas.

Narváez to De la. Guerra on sending him newspapers; his family still in Guadalajara; is resigning his

command owing to the political situation; will be succeeded by Eduardo Goroa; the San Carlos

ordered to Acapulco, no one wanting to command her; acknowledges receipt of a barrel of sardines;

will spend Holy Week in Tepic; is sending the letter through a certain Maladín. Spanish. 3 pp.
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DLG 701

Letter 11
July 10, 1831. Tepic.

Narváez to de la Guerra on not receiving a letter from him by way of the sloop, Guadalupe; on his

retirement as lieutenant colonel with full salary; his intention to return to Guadalajara in October; on

peace restored after some factional disturbances in the state of Valladolid and along the coast of

Acapulco; on Señor [Luís G.] Gordoa going to Mexico City; the coming colocación of the cathedral

in Guadalajara; Wilmot's recuperation in Tepic; his new brigantine is sailing that very day for

California and has as a passenger, Concepción Argüello, who is "finally convinced that in no other

place can she live better than in California;" going also is a Capt. Barrosa; sends regards to family, to

Pacheco and Padre Antonio [Jimeno]O.F.M. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 702

Letter 1
July 1, 1829. Tepic.

Leonarda (Maldonado) de Narváez to José de la Guerra on the latter's commission to her to collect the

sum of 100 pesos from a certain Osario; on his safe arrival home; sends regards to the family; her

separation [by death? ] from her husband. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 703

Letter 1

June 9, 1846. Monterey.

Pedro Narváez to José de la Guerra on the arrival of the American ship, Angola. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 704

Letter 1
Dec. 21, 1791. Chihuahua.

Pedro de Nava to [José Antonio Roméu]: instructions regarding the administration of justice by

captains of presidios. Copy as of Sept. 14, 1792. Loreto. By [José Joaquín] Arrillaga. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 705

Letter 1
Nov. 24, 1822. Monterey.

José Antonio Navarrete to José de la Guerra: on financial matters; is sailing for Mexico with the

governor. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 706

Letter 1
c. 1835.

Guillermo Navarro to José de la Guerra: a petition for permission to use a certain brand for his cattle

and horses. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 707

Letter 1
Apr. 19, 1854. Philadelphia, Pa.

Sallie Neagle to [José] Antonio [Jimeno]: a friendly, chatty letter recalling his earlier visit. Mentions

Porfirio Jimeno. English. 2 pp.

DLG 708

Letter 1

Dec. 24, 1815. San Diego.

Pedro Negrete to José de la Guerra on commercial affairs. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 709

Letter 1
Apr. 17-May 4, 1765. Puebla de los Angeles, Mexico.

Felipe de Neve: an expediente on the court martial of Antonio de Cobos. Spanish. 26 pp.

DLG 710

Letter 1
Febr. 22, 1856. San Luis Obispo.

David F. Newsom to Pablo de la Guerra stating that county clerks should have better compensation

for their labors. English. 2 pp.

DLG 711

Letter 1
Oct. 10, 1867. Sacramento.

H. L. Nichols to Pablo de la Guerra sending him reports. English. 1 p.

DLG 711

Letter 2
July 26, 1869. Sacramento.

Nichols to de la Guerra sending him reports. Partly printed. English. 1 p.
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DLG 711

Letter 3
Nov. 7, 1870. Sacramento.

Nichols to de la Guerra sending him Journals and Appendices of the Eighteenth Session of the

Legislature. English. 1 p.

DLG 712

Letter 1
Apr. 22, 1807. Mexico,

José Antonio de Noriega (a cousin) to José de la Guerra on receiving letters and a draft; mentions a

certain Rodríguez, Pablo de la Ossa, and Francisco Díaz Pérez. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 712

Letter 2
Sept. 2, 1807. Mexico.

Noriega to de la Guerra on a letter for Pedro de Ceballos y Guerra; on a royal decree permitting trade

between Havana and Vera Cruz; on the rumor that the French emperor has been captured by the

Russians; the death of Bernardino de Nava, colonel of the militia of Asturias, made known by Juan

Manuel de Noriega y Escandón de Colombres; news concerning others in Novales (birthplace of de la

Guerra); asks for an invoice of items to be sent. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 712

Letter 3
Oct. 21, 1807. Mexico.

Noriega to de la Guerra on testamentary matters; promises to send items asked for. Mentioned are a

Juan José, Ossa, Rodríguez, Morán, Licenciado Verdad, Francisco Díaz Pérez, Juan Francisco Gallo,

Diego Gómez, and the Rev. Ignacio María Castropol of Puebla. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 712

Letter 4
Dec. 16, 1807. Mexico.

Noriega to de la Guerra on buying guitar strings as requested. Written in another hand but signed by

Noriega. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 712

Letter 5
May 18, 1808. Mexico.

Noriega to de la Guerra on sending him items requested; on money matters; testamentary items;

mentioned are Ignacio María Castropol, Captain Rodríguez, Ossa, Francisco Antonio del Río, Juan

Francisco Gallo de Albacea, the Rev. José Antonio de las Piedras, Felix Dosal, and a Fray Antonio

Martínez. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 712

Letter 6
June 15, 1808. Mexico.

Noriega to de la Guerra concerning Capt. Manuel Rodríguez; on receiving draft; commercial and

financial matters; mentioned are Fray Juan Ribas, 0.P. and Fray Pedro González, 0.P.; the crowning

of Fernando VII of Spain. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 712

Letter 7
Aug. 6, 1808. Mexico.

Noriega to de la Guerra on giving to Fray Juan Ribas, procurator of the California missions, 300

pesos on account for Fray Pedro González, O.P.; on a draft given to Manuel Rodríguez, habilitado

general of the California presidios; the invasion of Spain by the French; the exile of Fernando VII and

his son Carlos IV to Bayonne; all Spain up in arms to repel the invader; on a report made to him

concerning a contention in which de la Guerra was involved. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 712

Letter 8
Apr. 19, 1809, Mexico.

Noriega to de la Guerra on receiving the latter's letter for the viceroy, Pedro Garibay, which he

delivered; de la Guerra's monetary contribution towards the cause of Spain; prayers for the success of

Spanish arms; Spanish victories; the French near his home town of Colombres. In another hand .

Spanish. 3 pp.
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DLG 712

Letter 9
May 31, 1809. Mexico.

Noriega to de la Guerra on various items to be sent including a cook book; the French have taken over

Spain's mountain country and have arrived at Colombres: no news from the northern country nor

from Madrid; many persons killed in the invasion; latest news is that Germany, Prussia and Russia

have declared war on France. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 712

Letter 10
July 1, 1809. Mexico.

Noriega to de la Guerra on mail sent to Noriega and a letter from de la Guerra for his father in Spain,

his subscription to the Gacetas del Reyno for Ignacio Martínez, alférez of the San Diego Presidio;

asks de la Guerra to send him money. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 712

Letter 11
Nov. 1, 1809. Mexico.

Noriega to de la Guerra on a nephew who is an alférez of the militia in Celaya; the viceroy's orders

that all regiments be armed and ready for action; money matters; on having sent him newspapers

concerning Spain; speaks of a cook book. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 712

Letter 12

Dec. 13, 1809. Mexico.

Noriega to de la Guerra on returning from Celaya, where his nephew, the alférez, was incorporated

into his regiment; death of Carlos Carrillo; sends condolence; on money matters; on sending him five

or six dozen blue rebozos and a gaceta. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 712

Letter 13
Febr. 17, 1810. Mexico.

Noriega to de la Guerra on Fray Domingo de Iturrate, O.F.M., of San Fernando College, handing him

de la Guerra's letter of Nov. 15; his own monetary problems; the French have taken Santander; the

Spanish general, Vallesteros, in action against the French; sending him a gaceta; two battalions of

soldiers to be raised at Vera Cruz. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 713

Letter 1
March 18, 1855. Placerville, Calif.

L. A. Norton and others to Messrs. Keen, Hook, Johnson and others asking them to support a bill for

levying a tax on all citizens of the state subject to perform military duty. English. 1 p.

DLG 714

Letter 1
July 10, 1816. San Gabriel.

Fray Joaquín Pascual Nuez, O.F.M., to José de la Guerra: a certificate of persons in the Los Angeles

area within the jurisdiction of Presidio Santa Barbara who failed to comply with the annual Easter

precept of the Church. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 715

Letter 1
Nov. 23, 1816. San Gabriel.

Nuez to de la Guerra on wine; on a printed item by Padre [José] Viñals, O.F.M.; invoices; greetings

from Gabriel Moraga, who will soon go to Santa Barbara; asks de la Guerra to find out if the Kodiaks

of Santa Barbara and San Gabriel were married in their own country. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 715

Letter 2
Oct. 22, 1816. San Gabriel.

Nuez to de la Guerra on sending certain diligencias matrimoniales to the father president. Spanish. 2

pp.

DLG 715

Letter 3
March 17, 1817. San Gabriel.

Nuez to de la Guerra on commercial matters and wishing him a happy feast day (March 19, Feast of

St. Joseph). Spanish. 2 pp.
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DLG 715

Letter 4
Nov. 3, 1817. San Gabriel.

Nuez to de la Guerra on forwarding a document to be sent through the missions as a cordillera; on not

sending pears; asking him to send a barrel and a cask so he can send him white and dark wine; he may

go as supernumerary to Mission Soledad or Carmelo; [Fray José]Zalvidea, O.F.M., sends greetings.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 715

Letter 5
Apr. 30, 1818. San Gabriel.

Nuez to de la Guerra on accounts. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 715

Letter 6
May 14, 1818. San Gabriel.

Nuez to de la Guerra on the request of Crescencio Vales for merchandise to the value of fifty pesos;

the betterment of Zalvidea's health; the large mission cart is being finished; the request of alférez

Joaquín Maitorena for a mission account going as far back as 1810. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 715

Letter 7
June 28, 1818. San Gabriel.

Nuez to de la Guerra stating that he has not yet answered Maitorena; has had a headache for fifteen

days. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 715

Letter 8
July 17, 1819. San Gabriel.

Nuez to de la Guerra on leaving of the master, José Antonio; his need to finish work on the church.

Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 715

Letter 9
Sept. 24, 1818. San Gabriel.

Nuez to de la Guerra on financial matters; the death of a Juan [Hellio?]; mentions José Miguel

Alvarado. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 715

Letter 10
Oct. 23, 1818. San Gabriel.

Nuez to de la Guerra on financial matters; is sending pears; will send wine if de la Guerra sends a

barrel; Ignacio Martínez is asking for an Indian to form his garden; Mentioned are: the governor,

Fermín de Genoa y Aguirre, Claudio López, José Cavenecia, José Antonio Ramírez, who no longer

has a contract with the mission, Antonio María Lugo and Alvarado, who is soon to go to Santa

Barbara. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 715

Letter 11
Nov. 4, 1818. San Gabriel

Nuez to de la Guerra on financial matters. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 715

Letter 12
1818. San Gabriel.

Nuez to de la Guerra congratulating him on becoming captain of Presidio Santa Barbara. Spanish. 2

pp.

DLG 715

Letter 13
March 29, 1821. Los Angeles.

Nuez to de la Guerra on his Lenten ministry in the pueblo; states that if he were given the chance to

become a recluse he would accept though he has not repented becoming a friar; the many dogs in

town did not allow him to sleep at night, "there are more dogs in this area than there are sheep at

some missions;" Francisco María Ruíz and a Padre Román [Fernández de Ulibarri] O.F.M., are

convalescing at Mission San Gabriel; [Pablo de ?] Portilla is on a journey and Fray Gerónimo

Boscana, O.F.M., is assistant. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 715

Letter 14
June 18, 1819. San Gabriel.

Nuez to de la Guerra on the Amajabas affair. Faintly written and hard to read. It was written at 3.30

A.M. Spanish. 1 p.
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DLG 715

Letter 15
July 3, 1821. San Gabriel.

Nuez to de la Guerra on enlarging his mission hospital; Fray Antonio can communicate to him what is

new; on meeting [Juan] Malarín in Los Angeles, who was good company; mentions the jarabe dance.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 715

Letter 16
June 10,1.821. San Gabriel.

Nuez to de la Guerra on cumplimiento de iglesia. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 715

Letter 17
Without date. San Fernando.

Nuez to de la Guerra concerning the case and papers of a certain Sánchez, the nature of which is not

disclosed; praises alcalde Antonio María Lugo as a man of "buenos sentimientos;" Nuez asks for

alcoporrosa (vitrio, or ferrous sulphate) to make ink, the more the better; recommends Joaquín

Maitorena for his religious spirit; José Miguel Morvado desires to enter the military service and

prefers to be stationed at Presidio Santa Barbara. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 716

Letter 1
May 14, 1854. Rancho Tapo.

Isidro Obiols to José de la Guerra: a quarterly report on Rancho Tapo naming workmen and giving an

expense account. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 717

Letter 1
Dec. 24, 1828. Mexico.

Angel Carlos de Ocharán to Isidro Díaz on financial matters. Mentioned are José Martín and José de

la Guerra. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 718

Letter 1
March 17, 1847 (actually bears the date 1747. sic!)

Jasper O'Farrell to Pablo de la Guerra on surveying the land of Nicasio in Marin County, and asking

for specific directions. Mentioned is Captain [John] Cooper. English. 1 p.

DLG 718

Letter 2
Nov. 30, 1847. San Rafael.

O'Farrell to de la Guerra on receiving certified titles to Nicasio, the maps of the land to be delivered

to a Mr. Mellis; explains why it took so long to make the maps; various other claimants to the land;

difficult to assess the land's monetary value; considers the land one of the best in the area for cattle,

the adjoining land belonging to Indians; may come to Santa Barbara in person; mentioned are the

priest of San Rafael but not named, Alvarado and Victor Stocking. English. 5 pp.

DLG 718

Letter 3

Aug. 4, 1849. San Rafael.

O'Farrell to de la Guerra on his trip to the gold regions, assuring him that no one can dispossess him

from his land at Nicasio; discusses J.B. Alvarado's claim to it, stating he had bought it from the

Indians and received a certificate to that effect from Vallejo; annoyed by Father Santillán's claim that

the Indians did not have sufficient means of subsistence, the investigation made by Major Hardie, a

Mr. Murphy and O'Farrell, which proved the contrary, the Indians holding title from Governor

[Manuel] Micheltorena; de la Guerra's title also approved; a report on the situation made to the

governor. English. 3 pp.

DLG 718

Letter 4
Nov. 2, 1869. San Francisco.

O'Farrell to de la Guerra asking the latter to support him in his candidacy as state harbor

commissioner. English 2 pp.

DLG 719

Letter 1
Aug. 25, 1854. Los Angeles.

Isaac Stockton Keith Ogier to Pablo de la Guerra on the appointment of a deputy marshal. Mentioned

are a Mr. Hunter and a Mr. Olvera. English. 2 pp.
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DLG 719

Letter 2
July 29, 1855. Los Angeles.

Ogier to de la Guerra concerning method of paying for mileage and per diem expenses. English. 1 p.

DLG 720

Letter 1
c. 1815. [Santa Barbara].

Fray Ramón Olbés, O.F.M., to José de la Guerra asking for a list of persons who are obliged to make

their Easter duty. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 720

Letter 2
c. 1815. [Santa Barbara].

Olbés to de la Guerra asking him for a list of the inhabitants of the presidio so that he can make a

report. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 720

Letter 3
Oct. 15, 1815. Santa Barbara.

Oblés to de la Guerra on receiving a reply from the father president on an oficio from de la Guerra

sent through an alférez and originating from the governor. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 720

Letter 4
c. 1818. Santa Cruz.

Olbés to de la Guerra concerning goods from El Señoriano; is unable to send him fruit. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 720

Letter 5
June 28, 1818. Santa Cruz.

Olbés to de la Guerra on his arrival at Santa Cruz, in company with the governor on June 17; Fray

[Estevan] Tapis', O.F.M., return to Monterey with the governor on the 22nd; the harvesting of barley;

on twenty-five beams to be taken to Santa Barbara; mentions La Mexicana, Fray Fermín Francisco

[de Lasuén], O.F.M., and Joaquín Carrillo. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 720

Letter 6
July 27, 1818. Santa Cruz.

Olbés to de la Guerra announcing that the twenty-five beams for Santa Barbara are at the

embarcadero in Monterey; gives their measurements and the number of men employed in cutting and

delivering them. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 720

Letter 7
Oct. 5, 1818. Santa Cruz.

Olbés to de la Guerra stating that La Mexicana's captain does not wish to bring the beams to Santa

Barbara, while the padres at Mission San Miguel write that if the beams cannot be taken to Santa

Barbara, they could use them for their new mission church. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 720

Letter 8
Oct. 29, 1818. Santa Cruz.

Olbés to de la Guerra on notifying the padres at Mission San Miguel that the timber ordered by de la

Guerra cannot be sent to their mission whether or not La Mexicana can take them to Santa Barbara;

on expectation of insurgents' arrival (probable reference to Bouchard invasion). Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 720

Letter 9
Apr. 19, 1819. Santa Cruz.

Olbés to de la Guerra thanking him for sending a barrel of wine from Mission San Fernando, corporal

Castro with retired soldiers under arms; the cattle train under Feliciano Soberanes was ready to set

out; the townspeople of Branciforte are becoming more mean every day. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 721

Letter 1
Aug. 10, 1847. San Juan Capistrano.

Fray Vicente Pascual Oliva, O.F.M., to José Antonio Aguirre: a receipt for 200 pesos sent by José de

la Guerra. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 722

Letter 1
March 4, 1818. San Fernando,

Antonio Olivera giving a list of persons who ride horseback at the mission. Spanish. 2 pp.
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DLG 723

Letter 1
Apr. 17, 18221 San Buenaventura.

Antonio Olivera to José de la Guerra concerning the death of a [colt?]. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 724

Letter 1
June 7, 1864. Los Angeles.

Agustín Olivera to Pablo de la Guerra concerning a signature of officers of the Governor F. Low;

gives the names of the officers of the Santa Barbara Company: Antonio María de la Guerra, captain;

Pacífico de la Guerra, 1st lieutenant; and Porfirio Jimeno, 2nd lieutenant; on the marriage of José

Carrillo to the widow of John [Rainz?]. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 725

Letter 1
1846-1847. Monterey.

Journal of Angustias [de la Guerra] Jimeno. The introductory note is by Rebecca Ruth (Ord) Peshine

who copied the journal from the original manuscript of her mother. On pp. 19 and 20, is a copy of the

Spanish translation of a letter from Richard Barnes Mason to Angustias de la Guerra Jimeno Ord,

dated Aug. 21, 1847. Spanish. 19 pp.

DLG 726

Letter 1
Jan. 25, 1848. Monterey.

Angustias de la Guerra Jimeno to Pablo de la Guerra (her brother) stating that Doctor Santiago [Ord]

is coming to Santa Barbara with the understanding that he will be given hospitality in the de la Guerra

home. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 726

Letter 2
July 7, 1850. Alisal.

De la Guerra Jimeno to Pablo de la Guerra asking him to give the bearer of the letter fourteen calves

four years old. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 726

Letter 3
March 10, 1855. Mexico.

De la Guerra Jimeno to de la Guerra on receiving his letter in dated at Havana, in February; the state

of her health; her mention of Carolina [Jimeno] and Santiago; her intention of staying in Mexico for

several more months; mentions various persons who send greetings; her own greetings to others.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 726

Letter 4
May 10, 1855. Mexico.

De la Guerra Jimeno to de la Guerra on her confusion about dates relative to Pablo's letter dated from

San Francisco on March 3, and another written from Panama on March 7; sends greetings from

various persons; sends condolence to [Alfred] Robinson and his wife Anita [de la Guerra] on the loss

of their son, Santiago; mentions her father, José de la Guerra. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 726

Letter 5
Sept. 18, 1855. Mexico.

De la Guerra Jimeno to de la Guerra on a letter received from the latter learning of the state of good

health of her father and of her own children; explains in great detail the juridical case of her

inheritance from her deceased husband, Manuel Jimeno; her difficulties with her brother-in-law, a

friar, concerning it; the American legation obtaining a lawyer for her in the person of Florentino

Mercado; Spaniards being expelled from Trilla in the state of Guerrero; will stay in Mexico for a

while longer. Slightly torn. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 726

Letter 6
Oct. 28, 1855 and Nov. 1, Mexico.

De la Guerra Jimeno to de la Guerra on receiving his letter from Santa Barbara; the assignment to her

of the lawyer, Florentino Mercado; explains the inheritance difficulties between her and her

brother-in-law; on Pablo's sending her a newspaper account of the blessing of the new church in Santa

Barbara; and various family items. Spanish. 2 pp.
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DLG 726

Letter 7
Dec. 15, 1855. Mexico.

De la Guerra Jimeno to de la Guerra on his defending Californios, and chiding him for not writing

and, either caustically or humorously, for speculating to make himself richer, and now becoming an

American thinking only in terms of dollars; is gladly anticipating her return to California to enjoy

better food and air; describes the house in which she lives; tells him to tell Miguel [de la Guerra] to

look for a cow for her that gives good milk. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 726

Letter 8
Dec. 15, 1855. Mexico.

De la Guerra Jimeno to de la Guerra concerning her brother-in law, the friar, whom she calls a rogue;

gives names of his children, who after the death of her husband, disposed of her interests left her by

her husband,Manuel Jimeno; mentions details of her husband's testament; will soon return to

California. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 726

Letter 9
Jan. 3, 1856. Mexico.

De la Guerra Jimeno to de la Guerra on the loss of her case; her intention to return to California soon.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 727

Letter 1
Dec. 31, 1880. Santa Barbara.

Reminiscences of Angustias de la Guerra Jimeno accompanied by a note by her daughter Rebecca

Ruth (Ord) Peshine, dated Dec. 31, 1880, stating that the memoirs were dictated to her by her mother,

partly in English and partly in Spanish. 32 pp.

DLG 729

Letter 1
June 12, 1849. Monterey.

Dr. James L. Ord to Pablo de la Guerra on the arrival of many Yankees in search of gold; his desire to

see Pablo when he comes to Monterey; on an accident in the de la Guerra family, the nature of which

is not disclosed; on the coming constitutional convention; hoped Pablo and himself will be

candidates. Partly in English and partly in Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 730

Letter 1
July 23, 1855. Los Angeles.

Pacífico Ord to Pablo de la Guerra on the salary due to the latter while acting as U.S. marshal.

English. 2 pp.

DLG 731

Letter 1
Nov. 20, 1820. San Francisco.

Fray Blas Ordaz, O.F.M., to José de la Guerra: merely a note of esteem for the latter and excusing

himself for not writing. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 731

Letter 2
Febr. 12, 1824. Purisima.

Ordaz to de la Guerra on commercial items. Mentions the soldier, Antonio Domínguez. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 731

Letter 3
Sept. 27, 1824. Santa Ines.

Ordaz to de la Guerra on commercial items which he is sending him. Partly torn. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 731

Letter 4
March 14, 1825. Santa Ines.

Ordaz to de la Guerra on commercial items. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 731

Letter 5
July 23, 1830. Santa Ines.

Ordaz to de la Guerra on a letter the latter sent him and which he resents. Speaks of an account.

Spanish. 2 pp.
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DLG 731

Letter 6
July 27, 1834. San Buenaventura.

Ordaz to de la Guerra apologizing for his participation in testifying against him, an improper

procedure because of his clerical status; asks forgiveness for damage done to him and his children;

refers to his action as "a very grave transgression." Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 731

Letter 7
Oct. 23, 1834. San Buenaventura.

Ordaz to de la Guerra sending him a note through Luís Rodríguez; on the disposal of beans and soap

at his mission; and about hostile movements at San Gabriel. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 732

Letter 1
Aug. 1, 1831. Santa Ines.

Fray Blas Ordaz, O.F.M; an agreement between him and Romualdo Pacheco re 200 heifers belonging

to the mission. Following the above: Aug. 4, 1836, Fray José Joaquín Jimeno, O.F.M., on transfer of

claim of Mission Santa Ines to José de la Guerra. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 733

Letter 1
March 7, 1837. San Buenaventura.

Fray Blas Ordaz, O.F.M., to Fray Narcisco Duran, O.F.M., on cattle. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 734

Letter 1
Dec. 4, 1842. San Pedro.

Gaspar de Oreña to José de la Guerra (his nephew and later son-in-law) on his arrival and his staying

at the house of Juan Foster. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 735

Letter 1
March 7, 1847. Los Angeles.

Oreña to Pablo de la Guerra on commercial matters. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 735

Letter 2
March 12, 1852. Alamos, Calif.

Oreña to de la Guerra on his arrival at Santa Ines sometime before; his sending some men to

Pedernales to cut wood and make a corral; his going to "the ranch" to look for oxen; his ability to sell

100 head of cattle within a few days. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 735

Letter 3
Sept. 20, 1853. San Francisco.

Oreña to de la Guerra on his arrival in San Francisco; mentions the brigantine, Fremont; commercial

matters. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 735

Letter 4

Jan. 20, 1854. Santa Barbara.

Oreña to de la Guerra concerning his home; on Tomás Díaz telling him that he handed 1,000 pesos to

Hallee [Halleck?]; the funeral of a child of [Alfred] Robinson. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 735

Letter 5
July 2, 1855.

Oreña to de la Guerra on Antonio María's, eye illness and explaining why he does not write, and on

Teresa [de la Guerra Hartnell's] statement not to sell Rancho Cosumnes. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 735

Letter 6
Febr. 5, 1856. Santa Barbara.

Oreña to de la Guerra sending him a copy of a letter from Halleck and a copy of a reply; on Ranchos

Cuyama and Alamo Pintado. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 735

Letter 7
May 29, 1860. New York.

Oreña to de la Guerra on his future sailing to La Havre on the Adriatic, to be followed by a trip to

Paris and Santander; is not too well; conditions in New York. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 735

Letter 8
June 17, 1860. Paris.

Oreña to de la Guerra on his arrival at La Havre, describes his train trip to Paris; Paris itself; will see a

doctor and then go to Spain. Spanish. 2 pp.
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DLG 735

Letter 9
July 8, 1860. Novales, Spain.

Oreña to de la Guerra on his arrival at Novales on June 27; his reception; customs of the place; many

poor people; will go to Madrid and Zaragosa and perhaps to Andalucía; on relatives in Spain and

friends in Santa Barbara. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 735

Letter 10
July 22, 1861. Santa Barbara.

Oreña to de la la Guerra on financial matters. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 735

Letter 11
Aug. 23, 1861. Santa Barbara.

Oreña to de la Guerra on the latter's daughter, Paulina having an attack of fever and her being in

danger of death; on buyers of horses. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 735

Letter 12
June 5, 1862. San Francisco.

Oreña to de la Guerra on money matters; cattle; mentions Simon & Co. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 735

Letter 13
c. 1864.

Oreña to de la Guerra: a short note on business matters. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 735

Letter 14
Jan. 25, 1864.

Oreña to de la Guerra concerning a testament. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 736

Letter 1
Jan. 17, 1850. Santa Barbara.

Gaspar de Oreña to Juan Manso concerning a testament. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 737

Letter 1
Febr. 5, 1856. Santa Barbara.

Gaspar de Oreña to Henry W. Halleck on Rancho Cuyama. Mentioned are Pablo de la Guerra,

Joaquín Carrillo and Alamo Pintado. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 738

Letter 1
Nov. 24, 1866. Rancho San Julian.

Gaspar de Oreña to Antonio María de la Guerra concerning Rancho de la Espada; on the illness of

María Antonia, his wife. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 738

Letter 2
Nov. 29, 1866. Rancho San Julian.

Oreña to de la Guerra on the illness of María Antonia. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 739

Letter 1
Apr. 8, 1841. Cádiz.

Lorenzo de Oreña to José de la Guerra recalling a letter from the latter from Santa Barbara, Sept. 27,

1838, and forwarded by Alfred Robinson from New York; on the death of de la Guerra's father;

mentions his own wife, María Gómez Escandón; his presence in Cádiz since the death of the elder de

la Guerra; his son, who had studied medicine but who now wishes to become a merchant, is coming

to California to see him. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 740

Letter 1
Jan. 20, 1854. Santa Barbara.

María Antonia (de la Guerra) de Lataillade to Pablo de la Guerra (his sister) on her marriage to

Gaspar de Oreña on Jan. 5. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 741

Letter 1
Nov. 12, 1817. Mexico.

José Ignacio Ormaechea to José de la Guerra congratulating him on his promotion. This is

accompanied by a "coat-of-arms," bearing the name of José Ignacio Ormaechea across cannon, flags,

a drum and a bursting shell. Spanish. 1 p.
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DLG 742

Letter 1
Nov. 9, 1864. San Buenaventura.

Joaquín Ormart to Pablo de la Guerra concerning the purchase of Colonia del Río de Santa Clara

Rancho. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 743

Letter 1
May 8, 1820. Mexico.

José Antonio Orrio to José de la Guerra on the former's return to California; on the possibility of de la

Guerra's promotion; a message to be given to José Antonio; asks what is to be done about a certain

skin (possibly left there by de la Guerra.) Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 744-

Letter 1
Aug. 1825. Rancho Refugio, Calif.

Antonia María Ortega to José de la Guerra on a money matter. Mentioned are Felipe Rodríguez, Julio

Basques, Joaquín Sánchez. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 745

Letter 1
Oct. 17, 1863. Rancho Santa Margarita, Calif.

José Joaquín Ortega to Pablo de la Guerra on his return from Pala and environs; on elections; he will

go to Temecula: José Moreno and Silvestre Marrón to San Pascual; Diego Alvarado's arrival from the

Colorado River. mentioned are a Jonson and a Don Diego. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 745

Letter 2
Oct. 30, 1863. San Diego.

Ortega to de la Guerra on elections. Hayes mentioned. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 746

Letter 1
1816. Refugio.

Jose María Ortega to José de la Guerra on the appearance of a ship in channel waters. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 746

Letter 2
1818. Refugio.

Ortega in suffering in his feet and cannot ride horseback; the father president is waiting to see him;

mentions a Francisco and Padre [José Antonio? Francisco Xavier?] Uría., O.F.M. Part missing.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 747

Letter 1
1858

Pedro Ortega to Antonio María de la Guerra on a money matter. Mentioned are Marcos Lisalda and

Tomás Mora. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 748

Letter 1

1858

Pedro Ortega to Carlos [Antonio Jesús Carrillo]: a short note concerning a certain Gabino and sheep.

Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 749

Letter 1
Jan. 11, 1835. Los Angeles.

Antonio María Osio to José de la Guerra on a money matter. Mentioned are the frigate, California ,

the ship, La Rosa, Señor [Antonio José] Cot, de la Guerra's son, José Antonio, Leandry, Señor

Mendeguren, and La Beata Concepción [Argüello]. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 750

Letter 1
Nov. 25, 1836. Los Angeles.

Antonio María Osio to Antonio del Valle asking him to send the letter to his uncle, Anastasio, and

then to his other uncle, Carlos; his copying of the Acta of the ayuntamiento of Los Angeles; on

political matters. Mentioned are Juan Rocha, Juan Bandini and ]Mariano G.] Vallejo. The conjugate

leaf is a copy of the Acta and is against the plan of Monterey, Nov. 25, 1836. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 751

Letter 1
June 3, 1842. Santa Barbara.

Vicente de la Ossa to José de la Guerra: a deed acknowledging a debt of 400 pesos secured by a

mortgage. Spanish. 1 p.
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DLG 752

Letter 1
March 5, 1864. San Diego.

Julio Osuna to Pablo de la Guerra on voting; his friends consider Pablo a "champion of our race;"

asking him to send the trappings for which he had asked. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 753

Letter 1
March 12, 1831. Mazatlán.

Joaquín de Otero to José de la Guerra saying that her son-in-law, Juan Nepomuceno Machado, sailed

for Canton and will come to California from there on the sloop, Joven Dorotea; asks him to give an

accompanying letter; Carlos Antonio Carrillo has been at Mazatlán on his return from Rosario; is

sending de la Guerra a letter by way of the sloop, Santa Barbara. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 754

Letter 1
[Jan?] 1830. Monterey.

Romualdo Pacheco to José de la Guerra asking him to send the money he had given him to hold

during the last outbreak in California (probably during the Solís revolt.) Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 754

Letter 2
March 22, 1820. Monterey.

Pacheco to de la Guerra on a certain Ramón staying at de la Guerra's house during Pacheco's absence;

the presence of the commandant general at San Luis Obispo; on news of political conditions in

Mexico as received from Wilmont and friends; General [Vicente] Guerrero will be gladly ousted; the

army of the center at Vera Cruz is for the plan being sent to de la Guerra, the move being toward

centralization; Guerrero has marched with a division of 2,000 men towards Pueb1a; soon after the

troops declared against the government; Generals [Nicolás]Bravo and [Miguel] Barragán have

returned from exile and have been received at Vera Cruz and Jalapa with great approbation; Santa

Ana, who has ruled Vera Cruz state, appears to have left his command; Campeche is in favor of

central rule; conditions in Guatemala; all quiet in the interior where there is great hunger; Pacheco is

to come to Santa Barbara when the chief returns to Monterey. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 755

Letter 1
Aug. 21, 1859. Los Osos Rancho.

Romualdo Pacheco, son of Romualdo Pacheco, to W. J. Graves on his arrival from Santa Barbara,

where he found great opposition to his election; many thought Pacheco was a candidate which he was

not; opines that Pablo de la Guerra will get the nomination; he since learned that Pablo got it. Office

is not mentioned. English. 2 pp.

DLG 756

Letter 1
Febr. 27, 1867. Sacramento.

Romualdo Pacheco to Pablo de la Guerra on his illness; concerning a litigation; explains a delinquent

tax situation; mentions Graves, Juan Wilson; refers to the drought of 1863-1865. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 757

Letter 1
Febr. 7, 1874. Sacramento.

Romualdo Pacheco to Francisco de la Guerra: a telegram of condolence. Person involved not

mentioned. English. 1 p.

DLG 758

Letter 1
Apr. 12, 1855. Santa Barbara.

Albert Packard to Pablo de la Guerra counseling him in regard to the procedure he should follow in

the suit against him by Gaspar Oreña. [Charles] Fernald and José de la Guerra mentioned. English. 2

pp.

DLG 758

Letter 2
May 4, 1855. Santa Barbara.

Packard to de la Guerra continuing to explain the suit of Oreña concerning the Espada Rancho.

Mentioned are [Charles] Fernald, Judge McKie, and A. F. Hinchman. English. 2 pp.
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DLG 758

Letter 3
Oct. 31, 1855. Santa Barbara.

Packard to de la Guerra concerning an action by Charles E. Huse on the matter of Rancho Simi;

advises de la Guerra on how to proceed; continues on the Oreña suit mentioned Judge Pratt; describes

Santa Barbara as "dull, dreary and hungry;" describes various known inhabitants. English, 4 pp.

DLG 759

Letter 1
May 18, 1829. Tepic.

José María Padres to José de la Guerra on preparations for the latter's voyage from Mexico.

Mentioned are Manuel Crespo, [Abel] Stearns, and José María Echeandía. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 760

Letter 1
Febr. 13, 1841. Tepic.

Miguel Palacios to José de la Guerra on financial matters. Mentioned are José Cardoso, Juan Bandini,

Captain De Miguel Gamón, and Juan Bautista Baldeabellán. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 761

Letter 1
Sept. 18, 1812. Guadalajara.

Antonio Palao: a certificate of the findings at the court martial of José Joaquín Lavayén and other

officers accused of surrendering the port of San Blas to the revolutionists headed by the priest, the

Rev. José María Mercado. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 762

Letter 1
Apr. 16, 1854. Santa Barbara.

Antonio de la Palma y Mesa to José de la Guerra on his wife's operation and on his placement of her

in the hands of Carmen Ayala, who needs a certain ingredient to make an unguent and which he asks

de la Guerra to supply. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 762

Letter 2
Nov. 23, 1857. Santa Barbara.

Palma y Mesa to de la Guerra asking for a loan of thirty pesos; has undertaken to plant his plot and

garden and does not have sufficient money to go through with the enterprise. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 763

Letter 1
Dec. 13, 1859. Santa Barbara.

Antonio de la Palma y Mesa to Fray José María González Rubio, O.F.M., on his having been named

justice of the peace; his becoming ill after a month; on Doctor [Santiago] Ord attending him; asks him

to inform Pablo Noriega [de la Guerra] of his illness; his family being poor and his inability to sustain

it. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 764

Letter 1
Oct. 8, 1841. Los Angeles.

Ignacio Palomares to José de la Guerra on sending him the deserter, Blas Ruvio. Partly torn. Spanish.

2 pp.

DLG 765

Letter 1
Jan. 20, 1823. Los Angeles.

José Cristóbal Palomares to José de la Guerra on military matters. Mentioned are Corporal Villa and

Ignacio Lugo. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 766

Letter 1
March 10, 1825. Los Angeles.

José [Cristóbal] Palomares and José Antonio [Ezequiel] Carrillo to José de la Guerra sending him an

informatory, confidential statement, directed to the chief military officer, concerning the rights they

allege, are theirs. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 767

Letter 1
March 31, 1824. Purisima.

Roberto Pardo to José de la Guerra acknowledging the munitions sent from Mission Santa Ines by

Corporal Francisco Cota by order of José de la Guerra. Mentioned are the sergeant, Dámaso

Rodríguez, Joaquín Villa and Ramón Baldes. Spanish. 1 p.
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DLG 767

Letter 2
Apr. 24, 1824. Purisima.

Pardo to de la Guerra on sending him the Indian prisoner, Felipe; an investigation he made about

some Indian absentees from Santa Ines, the soldier Francisco Avila being unable to ride; and Vicente

Feliz, whose gun is damaged, asks to be relieved from his position. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 767

Letter 3
Apr. 27, 1824. Purisima.

Pardo to de la Guerra referring to corporal Tiburcio; says the entire horse herd is in the hands of the

Indians most of whom ride; asks to be relieved of his position for he is only a soldier and knows

nothing about agriculture or of horses. Spanish. 2 pp. With this is a page, without date, which is a list

of things to be sent to the father president from Santa Barbara. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 767

Letter 4
Aug. 3, 1841. Santa Barbara.

Pardo: a statement on receiving 1,600 pesos sent by the commissary of Monterey in favor of the

Presidio Santa Barbara when Ignacio del Valle was in charge. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 768

Letter 1
March 10, 1807. San Blas.

Francisco Párraga to José de la Guerra on receiving 162 otter skins; their price; mentions Francisco de

Paula Tamariz, Fray de San Josef, and Fray Pedro Cueva, O.F.M. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 769

Letter 1
c. 1815. [Purisima].

Fray Mariano Payeras, O.F.M. to José de la Guerra on the presidio's request for shoes; he replies that

he has nothing but his old sandals, no cured leather, but will send forty pairs after the Indians are

finished making adobes to build a guard house, storehouse and dwelling for the soldiers; de la

Guerra's servant presenting Payeras with a horse, which he claimed he bought in San Diego, but

Payeras has some doubts about the ownership; the donor's desire to retire from de la Guerra's service.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 769

Letter 2
c. 1815. Purisima.

Payeras to de la Guerra on the neophyte, Manuel, desiring to be restored to his mission in San Diego.

Part missing. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 769

Letter 3
c. 1815. P

Payeras to de la Guerra; a short note concerning invoices being left at San Diego. Spanish.

2 pp.

DLG 769

Letter 4
Oct. 16, 1815. Purisima.

Payeras to de la Guerra on fruits and other eatables being sent to him through a certain Cayetano;

states the missionaries are living in their new rooms. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 769

Letter 5
Nov. 15, 1815. Purisima.

Payeras to de la Guerra on the new Purisima; tells him to prepare for the coming fiesta; the absence of

his assistant, Fray Luís [Gil y Taboada], O.F.M., at San Luis waiting for Negrete. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 769

Letter 6
Nov. 15, 1815. Purisima.

Payeras to de la Guerra on the latter's request for lances, only three being made because of the

Indians' absence from the mission gathering acorns; asks de la Guerra what he thinks of them.

Spanish. 3 pp.
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DLG 769

Letter 7
Dec. 13, 1815. Purisima.

Payeras to de la Guerra on fiesta celebrations; sending him fruit; on Argüello's promise to set at

liberty two prisoners, which he failed to carry out; the need for changing corporals; remarks

concerning a certain Villa. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 769

Letter 8
Jan. 8, 1816. Purisima.

Payeras to de la Guerra sending him the names of the Indians elected justicias; refers to the Christmas

season play of Pastores; in Santa Barbara and Purisima; invites him and Fray Antonio [Ripoll],

O.F.M., to see the presentation at Purisima. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 769

Letter 9
Jan. 25, 1816. Purisima.

Payeras to de la Guerra on sending a barrel of wine to Fray [Antonio] Ripoll, O.F.M.; on sending a

number of San Diego Indians back to their mission. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 769

Letter 10
Febr. 28, 1816. Purisima.

Payeras to de la Guerra; a short note concerning the "Padres Barbareños." Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 769

Letter 11
Febr. 28, 1816. Purisima.

Payeras to de la Guerra sending him various eatables; mentions Fray Luís [Gil y Taboada], O.F.M.;

reiterates his affection for de la Guerra. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 769

Letter 12
March 11, 1816. Purisima.

Payeras to de la Guerra answering an oficio of Febr. 26, in which Payeras was ordered to supply for

the military jurisdiction of Santa Barbara the needs of the prisoners in charge of de la Guerra; the

answer of Payeras that all the missionaries of the five missions in the jurisdiction are ready to obey

the orders of the Rev. father prefect at the request of the governor; asks him to have recourse to the

missionaries at Santa Barbara; reviews the aid given by the missions in the past. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 769

Letter 13
Apr. 22, 1816. Purisima.

Payeras to de la Guerra on Fray Luís [Antonio] Martínez, O. F. M., placing 299 sheep at Purisima,

and on the number to be given to Santa Barbara. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 769

Letter 14
Apr. 4, 1816. Purisima.

Payeras to de la Guerra asking for the approximate number of non indians living at Presidio San

Diego. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 769

Letter 15
May 6, 1816. Purisima.

Payeras to de la Guerra on the mission's need for having a full guard. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 769

Letter 16
May 25, 1816. Purisima.

Payeras to de la Guerra on contributions to be made by the mission to the presidio. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 769

Letter 17
May 31, 1816. Purisima.

Payeras to de la Guerra on the presidio's request for shoes; the request being passed on to the Rev.

father prefect, whom he calls "prudent and wise." Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 769

Letter 18
June 7, 1816. Purisima.

Payeras to de la Guerra on the illness and death of the latter's mother; Payeras' prayers for her; on

supplying shoes for the presidio. Spanish. 2 pp.
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DLG 769

Letter 19
Aug. 7, 1816. Purisima.

Payeras to de la Guerra on supplies for the presidio; asks to explain his earlier statement that "the port

of San Blas is closed." Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 769

Letter 20
Aug. 18, 1816. Purisima.

Payeras to de la Guerra thanking him for a book on horses; mentions the Exercises of St. Ignatius ; his

giving twenty-four gamuzas (leather-jackets?) to the soldiers; he has much wheat; corn has not failed;

has elotes (tender Mexican corn) and elotes (string beans); sends a letter to the missionaries at San

Gabriel, which he asks de la Guerra to forward. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 769

Letter 21
Oct. 10, 1816. Purisima.

Payeras to de la Guerra on receiving from the latter iron and a cattle brand; gives the date of the

founding of Mission Purisima as Dec. 8, 1787, under the presidency of Fray Fermín Francisco de

Lasuén, O.F.M. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 769

Letter 22
Oct. 11, 1816. Purisima.

Payeras to de la Guerra on his return from the north; the governor's sending supplies to the presidios

of Santa Barbara and San Diego; apples are ripe at Purisima and should the presidio and mission want

some they should send for them. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 769

Letter 23
Oct. 14, 1816. Purisima.

Payeras to de la Guerra on the presence of a certain Graciano at Purisima; the arrival of the San

Carlos at Monterey; he and Fray [Francisco Xavier] Uría, O.F.M., each giving six pesos to de la

Guerra's alférez. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 769

Letter 24
Nov. 27, 1816. Purisima.

Payeras to de la Guerra on the arrival the day before of a corporal Guillermo; asks to be excused for

detaining him longer than the corporal wished to stay; hopes to see de la Guerra soon. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 769

Letter 25
Dec. 20, 1816. Purisima.

Payeras to de la Guerra on the arrival of the neophyte, Valerio, from Santa Barbara; his placing him

in the hands of the corporal on information supplied by de la Guerra and asks for further instructions

concerning him. Partly damaged. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 769

Letter 26

Dec. 27, 1816. Purisima.

Payeras to de la Guerra discussing the case of the Indian, Valerio and leans towards leniency in his

cause. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 769

Letter 27
1816? July 3. Purisima.

Payeras to de la Guerra sending him twenty-five pairs of shoes recalling he had sent others and asks

for a respite so that soldiers' rooms can be built; Fray Luís [Gil y Taboada], O.F.M.] is at Santa Ines.

These statements are followed by short incomplete remarks by de la Guerra and Fray Antonio

[Ripoll], O.F.M. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 769

Letter 28
Dec. 30, 1816. Purisima.

Payeras to de la Guerra sending him greetings of the season together with supplies. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 769

Letter 29
Jan. 19, 1817. Purisima.

Payeras to de la Guerra, a short note stating that Fray Luís [Gil y Taboada], O.F.M., is still in San

Luis [Obispo] and tells de la Guerra to indicate to a Don Santiago that he should ask for an account

from him on his return. Spanish. 1 p.
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DLG 769

Letter 30
Jan. 24, 1817. Purisima.

Payeras to de la Guerra on a certain Yguerra not being able to transport goods because injured by his

horse and opines that the transportation should not be done by Indians; states that sheep are dying by

the hundreds; rain was good. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 769

Letter 31
Jan. 30, 1817. Purisima.

Payeras to de la Guerra on supplies for Presidio Santa Barbara. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 769

Letter 32
Febr. 5, 1817. Purisima.

Payeras to de la Guerra on supplies; inquires about the distance between San Diego and Mission San

Miguel in Lower California. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 769

Letter 33
Febr. 6, 1817. Purisima.

Payeras to de la Guerra; a short note of compassion because of his eye troubles; thanks María

Antonia, de la Guerra's wife, for her greetings. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 769

Letter 34
March 6, 1817. Purisima.

Payeras to de la Guerra on receiving a letter and a diligencia from "a famous Moreno;" thanks de la

Guerra for giving him the distance between San Diego and Mission San Miguel in Lower California;

on a Niceforo having a bad time with his iron [ironwork?]; much rain and snow; mentions the health

of Cavenecia; the existence of much tallow in California. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 769

Letter 35
March 23, 1817. Purisima.

Payeras to de la Guerra on not hearing about the money he sent to de la Guerra through Niceforo;

does not know how much of the bean harvest he can send until it is measured; if Purisima is to bring

it to Santa Barbara he may have to wait until after Easter; shoes are being made; on blankets

belonging to Diego Olivera. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 769

Letter 36
Apr. 22, 1817. Purisima.

Payeras to de la Guerra congratulating him on his new office as habilitado; thanks him for going to

Los Angeles to see to it that the church and house of the chaplain (the Plaza Church) became

activated for the padres who come to give services from San Gabriel have no place of their own to

stay; will write to Mission San Gabriel; is against giving La Larga Rancho to an individual, stocked

as it is with mission goods, it will cause tremendous labor, a fact that should not appeal to the mature

judgment of de la Guerra nor to the piety and wisdom of the governor; points out the sacrifices

Purisima Mission has made in supplying the presidio; will send shoes and beans when the roads are

better; and on an account. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 769

Letter 37
Aug. 26, 1817. Purisima.

Payeras to de la Guerra on commercial matters; mentions Fray Juan Martín, O.F.M., and Fray

Antonio [Ripoll], O.F.M; is sending forty-four pairs of shoes, pork and hams; on uniforms for a

certain Ortega, Julio and Germán. Partly torn. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 769

Letter 38
Dec. 18, 1817. Purisima.

Payeras to de la Guerra sending fifty pairs of shoes and fifty blankets through Niceforo; the

prevalence of colds at Purisima; sends Christmas greetings to the family. Spanish. 2 pp.
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DLG 769

Letter 39
Dec. 24, 1817. Purisima.

Payeras to de la Guerra on Niceforo from Santa Barbara but without a letter from de la Guerra; the

bearer of the present letter being Odorico, an ex-alcalde, and a neophyte of judgment as well as of

some importance, who is a friend of Felipe Amuchu and one who could be trusted to go on an

expedition; asks de la Guerra to speak to him. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 769

Letter 40
Jan. 2, 1818. Purisima.

Payeras to de la Guerra on accounts; on punishments for fugitive neophytes; speaks of Rancho de las

Cañadas and awaits de la Guerra's word to determine its limits with regard to Purisima. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 769

Letter 41
Jan. 17, 1818. Purisima.

Payeras to de la Guerra on his Indians' need for clothing because of cold weather, while he is not

unmindful of the needs of the presidio; asks him to notify sergeant Ortega to come to Purisima on or

after the fiesta at Santa Ines (Jan. 21) in order to compose an expediente. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 769

Letter 42
Apr. 9, 1818. Purisima.

Payeras to de la Guerra sending Niceforo with- thirty-one containers of tallow; returning certain items

found not useful for the Indians, such as shaving knives; treats of stockings; on items he is sending

and his need for still other items. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 769

Letter 43
Apr. 16, 1818. Purisima.

Payeras to de la Guerra on commercial matters; his inability to accept what he had requested through

Niceforo for not all the tallow of Purisima could pay for it; followed by a note in the hand of de la

Guerra on things sent to the mission. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 769

Letter 44
Apr. 20, 1818. Purisima.

Payeras to de la Guerra asking the latter to send him certain items such as oil and pomegranate rinds;

mentions rains. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 769

Letter 45
May 4, 1818. Purisima.

Payeras to de la Guerra sending Niceforo to obtain from the latter various items and food; describes

Indian troubles. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 769

Letter 46
May 26, 1818. Purisima.

Payeras to de la Guerra discusses the case of a certain Villa in general terms; states that when he is in

de la Guerra's house he always gets satisfaction for what he asks, which appears to be a discourse of

"out of sight, out of mind." Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 769

Letter 47
June 26, 1818. Purisima.

Payeras to de la Guerra on the muleteers, José Dolores, Antonio and Ramón, each with four horses

with a practical knowledge of the Tulare region requested by de la Guerra are being sent to participate

in a campaign; is sending a barrel of meat; a list of effects required by de la Guerra has been sent to

the missions of his jurisdiction, he himself sending seventy sarapes and some leather jackets. Spanish.

2 pp.

DLG 769

Letter 48
Sept. 29, 1818. Purisima.

Payeras to de la Guerra on fugitive Indians. Spanish. 2 pp.
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DLG 769

Letter 49
Oct. 7, 1818. Purisima.

Payeras to de la Guerra sending him 300 pesos in silver through alférez Maitorena which represents

the mission's portion of the 2,800 pesos stipulated by the father prefect for the governor to pay to

Gaspar Illas. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 769

Letter 50
Oct. 8, 1818. Purisima.

Payeras to de la Guerra on accounts sent to the former which he left unsigned for lack of clarity;

explains the reason for the price of cows. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 769

Letter 51
Oct. 11, 1818. Purisima.

Payeras to de la Guerra sending the latter accounts; his going to San Luis [Obispo] to see [Gaspar]

Illas; Fray Román [Fernández de Ulibarri]. O.F.M., will be at Purisima should anything come up; on

muleteers; Tapia is going to the Ortega Ranch with a team to obtain tallow. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 769

Letter 52
Oct. 12, 1818. Purisima.

Payeras to de la Guerra on sending Odorico and fifteen armed other good bowmen together with ten

muleteers to Santa Barbara; is to inform Fray Antonio [Ripoll], O.F.M; has to go to see [Gaspar] Illas

at San Luis Obispo, while Fray Román and corporal Villa will be at Purisima; followed by a short

note by de la Guerra to Fray [José] Señán, O.F.M., of San Buenaventura, whom he asks to return the

document and to take care of the requests made by Illas. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 769

Letter 53
Oct. 19, 1818. Purisima.

Payeras to de la Guerra on placing tallow in safety; tells him to deal with Fray Antonio [Ripoll],

O.F.M. on matters relative to Montecito. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 769

Letter 54
Oct. 24, 1818. Purisima.

Payeras to de la Guerra concerning the relationship between the two on the use of Indians; on

supplying the needs of the presidio; has put on a double supply of workmen to make fifty pairs of

good shoes. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 769

Letter 55
Jan. 26, 1819. Purisima

Payeras to de la Guerra on Fray Román [Fernández de Ulibarri, O.F.M.] bringing the latter two pieces

of blue cloth made at Purisima,which is to be deposited at Santa Ines and to be used for the poorest of

his soldiers' families; on accounts adjusted; mentioned are Fray Antonio [Ripoll], O.F.M., and

Argüello. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 769

Letter 56
Febr. 6, 1819. Purisima.

Payeras to de la Guerra on Fray [Francisco Xavier] Uría, O.F.M., writing to him about accounts, and

a reference to a José Antonio. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 769

Letter 57
March 9, 1819. Soledad.

Payeras to de la Guerra expressing his delight in being again at Soledad with Fray [Antonio]

Jayme,O.F.M.; on commercial matters; is having a fresal made for de la Guerra's wife when she will

be called La Gobernadora; sends greetings to the Santa Barbara padres; on the governor's wish that

the church (in Los Angeles) be placed not where the foundations are but close to the houses of the old

and new comisionados. Spanish. 1 p.
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DLG 769

Letter 58
Apr. 5, 1819. Soledad.

Payeras to de la Guerra on dealing with the governor about the church to be built in Los Angeles; on

agreement concerning its location; Payeras wanting it to be cruciform and to hold from 1,000 to 2,000

people; asks de la Guerra to send the tienda to Purisima and to instruct the padre minister about its

history; Payeras' visit to Mission San Antonio; asks about a small mission (misionita) along the

channel, as has been done at San Gabriel and Santa Clara. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 769

Letter 59
May 5, 1819. Soledad.

Payeras to de la Guerra: a short note accompanying a longer letter concerning pay and good treatment

for Indians. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 769

Letter 60
Aug. 4, 1819. Purisima.

Payeras to de la Guerra concerning the use of Indians by the latter; has no information on the

cumplimiento de iglesia on the part of soldiers. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 769

Letter 61
Aug. 9, 1819. Purisima.

Payeras to de la Guerra on auxiliaries; invites him to a fiesta on Sept. 8. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 769

Letter 62
Aug. 20, 1819. Purisima.

Payeras to de la Guerra sending him supplies and food; greetings from Fray Luis [Martínez], O.F.M

of San Luis Obispo; refers to the latter's march to San Juan Capistrano (the year before during the

Bouchard invasion); on auxiliary troops to be sent from Purisima after Sept. 9; adds a note for María

Antonia de la Guerra expressing his disappointment that she will not attend the fiesta. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 769

Letter 63
May 5, 1820. Purisima.

Payeras to de la Guerra giving a praiseworthy account of Gabriel Moraga when he was in charge of

Presidio Santa Barbara. Contemporary copy and signed by de la Guerra, Santa Barbara, March 2,

1821. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 769

Letter 64
Febr. 20, 1821. Soledad.

Payeras to de la Guerra explaining why Fray Luis Gil y Taboada, O.F.M., missionary at Mission

Santa Cruz, cannot accept the chaplaincy of the church of Nuestra Señora de Los Angeles (Plaza

church). Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 769

Letter 65

July 15, 1821. Purisima.

Payeras to de la Guerra on his return to Purisima: sends greetings from Fray Juan Martín, O.F.M.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 769

Letter 66
Nov. 25, 1821. Purisima.

Payeras to de la Guerra on the supply of cattle and lard for Presidio Santa Barbara, and announcing

the arrival the day before of Fray Antonio Jayme, O.F.M. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 769

Letter 67
Jan. 28, 1822. Purisima.

Payeras to de la Guerra on accounts and the shortage of wool because of the death of sheep. Spanish.

2 pp.

DLG 769

Letter 68
May 26, 1822. Soledad.

Payeras to de la Guerra on the latter governing the province of California; the loss of a book; the

church [(Plaza) in Los Angeles was supposed to be finished the year before, while hardly anything

was done; has written to the alcalde of Los Angeles; the missionaries of San Gabriel; and now asks de

la Guerra to get the building program moving. Spanish. 3 pp.
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DLG 769

Letter 69
Sept. 6, 1822. Soledad.

Payeras to de la Guerra forwarding the twenty-three volumes of Corte Santa by means of a Contreras;

is going on to Monterey. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 769

Letter 70
Undated. Perhaps 1818?

Payeras to de la Guerra on the manufacture of bows and arrows. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 769

Letter 71
Undated.

Payeras to de la Guerra sending him various items, among them shoes and food; the vineyards have

been a total loss. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 769

Letter 72
Apr. 6, without year.

Payeras to de la Guerra on various short items. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 769

Letter 73
Undated.

Payeras to de la Guerra concerning a misrepresentation involving a certain Villa and what he said to

Padre [Francisco Xavier] Uría, O.F.M. in the presence of Payeras. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 769

Letter 74
Sept. 18. No year. Perhaps 1822. Purisima.

Payeras to de la Guerra asking the latter to be present at the dedication of a new church [at Los

Angeles?]. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 769

Letter 75
Without date. Purisima.

Payeras to de la Guerra wishing him well on an expedition he is about to undertake; gives certain

details concerning it; is awaiting the arrival of the father prefect and Fray [Jaime] Escudé, O.F.M.,

Fray Antonio Ripoll, O.F.M.; adds a short note. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 769

Letter 76
Aug. 19. No year. Purisima.

Payeras to de la Guerra on various items. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 769

Letter 77
Nov. 23. No year. Purisima.

Payeras to de la Guerra declaring that he is willing to do whatever he can for the common good; is

sending him 300 pesos in the name of the mission; is opening the temescal. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 769

Letter 78

No year. Purisima.

Payeras to de la Guerra giving a list of the neophytes who are fugitives from Mission Purisima.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 770

Letter 1
Aug. 17, 1860. San Francisco.

Henry Payet to Antonio María de la Guerra on a business matter. French. 1 p.

DLG 771

Letter 1
Sept. 29, 1851. San Francisco.

Archibald Cary Peachy to Pablo de la Guerra hoping to meet him in San Francisco in December on

his way to Vallejo, the seat of state government; the governor's removal of the archives to San Jose;

the seat of government moved from San Jose to Vallejo in 1850, and the reason therefore; the right to

change the capital rests with the legislature rather than with the governor; asks why southern

Californians are anxious to be separated from those of the north; factions among the Democrats; asks

la Guerra's opinion with regard to the seat of government and the division of the state into two. Partly

torn. English. 4 pp.
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DLG 771

Letter 2
Dec. 20, 1851. San Francisco.

Peachy to de la Guerra on receiving wine from the latter; on sending the latter a mare by way of the

Sea Bird; hopes de la Guerra does not resign from the senate; there is nothing of interest in San

Francisco with the theater broken down; the supreme court in session; the coming meeting of the

[Land?] Commission; mentions the firm of de la Guerra, [Henry Wager] Halleck, Peachy and

[Frederick] Billings; Halleck is at the Almaden mine. Partly torn. English. 4. pp.

DLG 771

Letter 3
Jan. 4, 1860. San Francisco.

Peachy to de la Guerra on his friend, Edgar Grimes, requesting a favorable consideration for W.

Whalen, a candidate for enrollment clerk of the senate. English. 1 p.

DLG 771

Letter 4
May 31, 1860. San Francisco.

Peachy to de la Guerra on his writing to Antonio [de la Guerra] concerning an inquiry with regard to

county bonds; will have de la Guerra's Almaden speech printed; on hearing from Latham, Yale and

the Barrows in Washington; a certain Maynard is sailing for Panama to meet his wife; the very critical

condition of the Democratic party; hopes the Baltimore Convention will bring harmony to it. English.

4 pp.

DLG 771

Letter 5
Jan. 4, 1871. San Francisco.

Peachy to de la Guerra on a letter and olives received; recalls the beauty of Santa Barbara; wishes that

a railroad reached there; the supreme court made short work on the case of Kimberly vs de la Guerra;

the lawyer's attempt to prove that Pablo was not an American citizen was silly. English. 3 pp.

DLG 771

Letter 6
Jan 17. No year. San Francisco.

Peachy to de la Guerra considering the Democratic party as hopelessly broken up; looks upon

Douglas as the nominee; will vote for him despite his squatter sovereignty ideas; his ideas for the

good of the state being better than those of Breckenridge; [William M.] Gwin and [Senator] Latham

to advocate Breckenridge; asks what Pablo's chances for the debate on the senate are; inquires about

the debate on the resolutions of the Almaden mine; mentions Eustace and William Barron, W.

Benjamin, and W. Reverdy Johnson; on de la Guerra being proposed as minister to Guatemala; the

Bulkhead project. All pages torn. English. 6 pp.

DLG 772

Letter 1
Apr. 27, 1860. San Francisco.

John B. Peachy to Pablo de la Guerra on the death of Capt. Morgan, commissioner of immigrants, and

asks de la Guerra to process the appointment from the governor. English. 1 p.

DLG 773

Letter 1
Dec. 11, 1840. Los Angeles.

Miguel de Pedrorena to José de la Guerra on placing in the hands of a Señor Hoa the value of 300

hides and their relation to [José Antonio] Aguirre. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 774

Letter 1
Dec. 7, 1834. Los Angeles.

A certain Pelayo to [Fray Narciso Durán, O.F.M.] on money matters; mentions a Capt. Hinchley.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 775

Letter 1
Sept. 17, 1823. Los Angeles.

Juan Pérez to [Manuel Gutiérrez], the former a rancher at Santa Gertrudis, charged with allowing his

horses to damage others goods and cattle; his defense and explanation, followed by statements on the

margin by Gutiérrez and José de la Guerra. Spanish. 2 pp.
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Letter 1
Oct. 3, 1932. Santa Barbara.

Rebecca Ruth (Ord) Peshine to the curator of the E. L. Doheny Memorial Library asking for an

appointment to discuss giving the library certain valuable documents, books and articles. Typewritten.

Copy. English. 1 p.

DLG 777

Letter 1
Febr. 20, 1816. San Luis Rey.

Fray Antonio Peyrí, O.F.M., to José de la Guerra on his writing rarely; his relationship with the

family; on an Indian's finding a silver vase at San Francisco alias Agua Gadionda; asks de la Guerra if

it is his, and that, in any case, he may have it; good rains. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 777

Letter 2
Aug. 16, 1816. San Luis Rey.

Peyrí to de la Guerra on receiving the latter's letter at San Antonio de Pala where he was with the

father prefect; many pagans are seeking baptism; the father prefect's desire for progress at Pala; Peyrí

wishes he had started there sooner. Mentions Fray Francisco [Suñer], O.F.M., Fray [Ramón] Olbés,

O.F.M., and sends greetings. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 777

Letter 3

Aug. 27, 1819. San Luis Rey.

Peyrí and Fray Jaime Escudé, O.F.M., to de la Guerra on having received from their superior a

reproof for their manner in answering José de la Guerra concerning eight Indians (details not given)

and beg pardon for offense given. Written by Peyrí, signed by both. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 777

Letter 4
c. 1821. San Luis Rey.

Peyrí to de la Guerra asking for 250 pesos; intends to return to Spain; he is alone; Fray Ramón Olbés,

O.F.M., is in Santa Cruz; while Fray [Jaime] Escudé, O.F.M., is convalescing at Monterey. Spanish. 1

p.

DLG 777

Letter 5
Nov. 28, 1821. San Luis Rey.

Peyrí to de la Guerra asking him to send through Fray Antonio Ripoll, O.F.M. fifty window panes for

the church when corporal Castro comes down; also wants some rice; congratulates his wife on the

birth of a child; and in regard to the child uses the well-known Spanish expression, "Dios lo haga un

santo;" will send a barrel of Mass wine. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 777

Letter 6
March 3, 1822. San Luis Rey.

Peyrí to de la Guerra on receiving two letters from him through Juan Germán, sending him news

about Peru, which horrified him; his being scandalized over irreligious events in Spain; on Viceroy

O'Donojú's recognition of the independence of Mexico; O'Donojú's death shortly thereafter; Iturbide's

crowning as emperor of Mexico. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 777

Letter 7
March 15, 1822. San Luis Rey.

Peyrí to de la Guerra on receiving two boxes from Mexico via the brigantine, Alcion, whose owner is

Antonio Sertage; the windowpanes he ordered for the church did not arrive, but will come by the first

ship; on O'Donojú's recognizing the the independence of Mexico, and who died a few days afterward

by a stroke; discusses the possibility of having to take an oath of loyalty; the window panes are

sufficient only for three windows not four. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 777

Letter 8
March 19, 1822. San Luis Rey.

Peyrí to de la Guerra on political news from Spain passed on to him by a Dominican in Lower

California, who in turn received it from a confrere in Querétaro; asking de la Guerra to explain a

sentence in the letter which he himself does not understand. Spanish. 2 pp.
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DLG 777

Letter 9
Nov. 9, 1829. San Luis Rey.

Peyrí to de la Guerra on renewing their relationships in writing and congratulating him on his family;

Juan Malarín being the bearer of the letter; asks de la Guerra to give Malarín the 200 pesos the

mission owes him. At end Malarín gives a receipt. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 778

Letter 1
June 11, 1848. San Fernando.

Andrés Pico to Francisco de la Guerra on the former receiving a letter from his brother, Pio, who was

at San Juan Capistrano, and who will soon come to Los Angeles; on a communication received from

the commandant general of Sinaloa; he was told to observe religiously the armistice made between

the Mexican government and the plenipotentiary of the United States; de la Guerra is to pass around

an accompanying statement that will be interesting to [José María] Covarrubias and to many of Pico's

friends. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 779

Letter 1
Sept. 4, l855. Los Angeles.

Andrés Pico to Miguel de la Guerra concerning a message de la Guerra gave to Domingo Pujol to

give to Pio Pico; on a loan made to Pico of $300.00 for six months; asks de la Guerra to be his

guarantor; asks that if Camarillo has more money to loan out to let him know the amount and for how

long a time it could be borrowed. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 780

Letter 1
March 15, 1858. Sacramento.

Andrés Pico to Francisco de la Guerra: a letter of condolence on the death of José Antonio de la

Guerra y Noriega. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 781

Letter 1
July 20, 1860. Los Angeles.

Andrés Pico to A. Arrellanes, Miguel de la Guerra and Tomás Valle concerning a racing horse.

Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 782

Letter 1
March 6, 1861. San Quentin.

Andrés Pico to Pablo de la Guerra stating that he will be at San Quentin in case a meeting is to be

held by the committee on translations. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 782

Letter 2
Jan. 3, 1863. Los Angeles.

Pico to de la Guerra on the latter's running for office; refers to Simi. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 783

Letter 1

May 31, 1856. San Jose.

Antonio María Pico to Pablo de la Guerra on a reunion of men in San Jose who agreed on naming

Pablo de la Guerra as a candidate for senator. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 784

Letter 1
Oct. 17, 1845. Los Angeles.

Pio Pico to Francisco Arce stating that the commission on missions evaluated the form of Santa Clara

and that the portions Arce desires are worth 100 pesos; however the assembly forbids the sale of the

buildings belonging to the missions so Pico cannot accomodate Arce. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 785

Letter 1
Febr. 3, 1845. Los Angeles.

Pio Pico to José de la Guerra appointing him president of a committee to negotiate with Governor

[Manuel] Micheltorena. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 785

Letter 2
Dec. 1, 1844. Campo de Santa Teresa. Doc. No. 1. An expediente.

The Treaty of Campo de Santa Teresa signed by Manuel Micheltorena, Feliz Váldez and Luís G.

Maciel. Contemporary copy. Spanish. 2 pp.
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DLG 785

Letter 3
Dec. 18, 1844. Monterey. No. 2.

Manuel Micheltorena to José Castro stating that he is sending through José Castañares copies of his

proclamations on which Castro is to base his conduct and thus reestablish peace in the territory; all

citizens are to return to their homes in safety and are not to be molested; his notification to Señor

Telles in Mazatlán that he seeks to retire from California; states that the territory needs 2,000 or 3,000

soldiers to defend it but that it cannot maintain even 300; he has been informed by [Augustus] John

Sutter that a caravan of 140 strangers had appeared in eleven wagons and that seventy more were

expected; orders Castro to send sergeant Berrellesa and all the troops of San Francisco to defend the

frontier. Certified copy made at Los Angeles, Febr. 3, 1845, and signed by Vicente Sánchez, Juan

Manso and Ignacio Coronel. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 785

Letter 4
Dec. 24, 1844. San Jose. No. 3.

José Castro to August Sutter asking him to explain a letter he had written on Dec. 6 to Manuel Baca

for a call of strangers to attack the Californians; on the invasion of foreigners; the establishment of

peace in California; Castro's orders to keep order; on the arrival of a ship at Yerba Buena coming

from Sutter's Fort, from which two pieces of artillery were taken then again replaced. Copy signed at

Los Angeles, Febr. 3, 1845, and signed by Vicente Sánchez, Juan Manso and Ignacio Coronel.

Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 785

Letter 5
Dec. 8, 1944. Sonoma. Doc. No. 5.

Mariano Vallejo to John Augustus Sutter urging the latter to have nothing to do against the

Californians in the matter of armed intervention with the aid of strangers and the sad results that

would ensue if he did; the fighting that had gone on was a domestic matter; Vallejo considers himself

a friend of Sutter and pleads with him to keep out of revolutionary affairs; states that strangers had

been scandalously protected in past years against the will of the central government; they had been

given thirty-three square miles of territory and rights and have no reason to complain; Micheltorena

had given land and naturalization without requisites contrary to law; thanks Sutter for offering men to

help him but declines to use foreigners against his own government; tells Sutter that if he has

promised to arm strangers against the country on which he lives, he will be held responsible for the

results. Copy made in Los Angeles, Febr. 3, 1845 and signed by Vicente Sánchez, Juan Manso and

Ignacio Coronel. Spanish. 7 pp.

DLG 785

Letter 6
Dec. 24., 1845. San Jose. Doc. No. 3a.

José Castro to Manuel Micheltorena sending him a copy of the letter he sent to Sutter wherein he

stated that Sutter and Americans were preparing to attack the California forces of the north on the

pretext of defending the government of Micheltorena; Castro does not believe that Micheltorena is in

accord with Sutter; refers to the treaty of Campo de Santa Teresa bringing peace to California; is

preparing militarily to defend California against Sutter. Copy made at Los Angeles, Febr. 3, 1854.

Signed by Vicente Sánchez, Juan Manso and Ignacio Coronel. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 785

Letter 7
Dec. 27, 1844. San Jose. Doc. No. 4.

José Castro to the commandant general on learning from letters that from the frontier [John] Augustus

Sutter, at the head of 150 men and adventurers and 2,000 Indians with bows and arrows, is coming to

attack San Jose; they having set out from his establishment on Dec. 25; Castro has prepared militarily

to thwart such an attack and guarantees the commandant general that Sutter and his force will be

crushed. Copied at Los Angeles. No date. Signed by Vicente Sánchez, Juan Manso and Ignacio

Coronel. Spanish. 4 pp.
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DLG 785

Letter 8
Dec. 29, 1844. Monterey. Doc. No. 6.

Manuel Micheltorena to José Castro stating that if Sutter was preparing for a fight it was because of

the California rebels, adding that if he can be blamed for anything it is because of his leniency and

consideration. Copied at Los Angeles, Febr 3, 1845. Signed by Vicente Sánchez, Juan Manso and

Ignacio Coronel. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 785

Letter 9
Jan. 6, 1845. Alisal. Doc. No. 7.

Juan Bautista Alvarado and José Castro to the governor and commandant general of the department

on peace coming to it through the Treaty of El Campo de Santa Teresa, calling to mind

Micheltorena's solemn honor to abide by the treaty, his honor now being called into question because

of his relations with Sutter; the latter's intent to be to attack San Jose; they cannot believe it to be true

and beg Micheltorena to have nothing to do with foreigners, which would result in disaster for the

department. Copied at Los Angeles, Febr. 3, 1845, and signed by Vicente Sánchez, Juan Manso and

Ignacio Coronel. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 785

Letter 10

Jan. 12, 1845. Tucho en el Rio. Doc. No. 8.

Manuel Micheltorena to Carlos Guillermo Flugge stating that Sutter told the latter that he would be

rewarded by defending with arms the rights of the nation and by sustaining the departmental

government which Micheltorena exercises. Copied at Los Angeles, Febr. 3, 18452, and signed by

Vicente Sánchez, Juan Manso and Ignacio Coronel. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 785

Letter 11
Jan. 12, 1845. Campo de las Salinas. Doc. No. 9.

John A. Sutter to Flugge, styling himself military commander of the north, stating that he met with

General Micheltorena in order to join forces and fight against the rebels; claims he took with him 100

riflemen and a company of Indians of 100 men with guns who are under the command of a Rufus and

a Capt. Grant; he also has a Russian cannon with eight artillery men, a Doctor Townsend, with a Mr.

Sinclair as aide-de-camp, O'Farrell as quartermaster, Hensley as commissary, Bidwell and Juan Baca

as secretaries, will march in the morning; Andrés Pico can be trusted in the south according to the

general; Sutter told Micheltorena he can trust Flugge; a ship from Mexico expected with money and

articles; the government having ordered [John] Cooper to anchor at San Luis Obispo roadstead in case

there is war with the United States; this order is known to Castro and Alvarado, and they may try to

seize the vessel; the governor is informed that Abel Stearns has agreed with Cooper to disembark

contraband at San Pedro, but in this event Flugge is to get ten or twelve foreigners well armed and in

the name of the legitimate government, is to send them aboard and order the ship to sail to Monterey;

all will be well paid. Copied at Los Angeles and certified by Vicente Sánchez, Juan Manso and

Ignacio Coronel. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 785

Letter 12
Febr. 4, 1845. Los Angeles.

Instructions to which the commission named by the president of the departmental assembly is to

conform: namely, that Micheltorena is to be persuaded that the people of California are unanimously

in favor of abiding by the Treaty of El Campo de Santa Teresa; that foreign forces acting in his favor

are to be reprobated by him; that the armed Indians are to retire to their villages; that Sutter and his

companions should return to his establishment; that the assembly is to cooperate in avoiding public

evils and that the person of the general is to be respected; if these things are not carried out the

general will be responsible for civil war and all citizens are to be prepared to defend the national

integrity; the commission is to consult the assembly in all difficult matters; if the president cannot act,

a substitute should. Pico signs as president, Agustín Olvera as secretary. Spanish. 2 pp.
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DLG 785

Letter 13
Febr. 5, 1845. Los Angeles.

Pio Pico to José de la Guerra, president of the commission named by Pico; sends de la Guerra copies

of the documents comprising the above-indicated expediente. Signed by Pico. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 785

Letter 14
Febr. 12, 1845. Los Angeles.

Pico to de la Guerra sending him a copy of the letter he addressed to [Manuel] Micheltorena; on Pico

receiving an official note from the latter; Pico's report to the assembly; the assembly's waiting for a

final note from Micheltorena and an answer from the special commission. Signed by Pico as president

and Olvera as secretary. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 785

Letter 15
June 3, 1845. Los Angeles.

Pico to de la Guerra opining that the decree of May 10, article 3, relative to a campaign, should be

reformed; it had called for a meeting in Santa Barbara for June 13; Pico now opines that the order and

procedure of the campaign be left to the judges and de la Guerra. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 785

Letter 16
July 11, 1845. Los Angeles.

Pico to de la Guerra on the arrival of the brigantine, Soledad, at San Pedro bringing instructions from

the supreme government on the situation in California; the return of Micheltorena to Mexico; is

sending documents to him to be read by [José Antonio] Aguirre and Fray Narcisco Durán, O.F.M.,

after which they are to be returned to him. Partly torn. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 785

Letter 17
July 12, 1845. Los Angeles.

Pico to de la Guerra containing a copy of a communication from Luís Gonzaga Cuevas to Pico, dated

Mexico, May 29, concerning the disagreeable events that had occurred in California; Mexico is

awaiting the election of a new president; the return to Mexico of Micheltorena and his soldiers; the

need for the appointment of a new governor with proper soldiers; the need for a guarantee of liberty

in so far as public order can be observed and for the governor to sustain the public and not to oppress

them. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 785

Letter 18
July 12, 1845. Los Angeles.

Pico to de la Guerra appointing Joaquín de la Guerra to the secretariat of the California government.

Partly torn. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 785

Letter 19
June 10, 1846. Los Angeles.

Pico to [José Abrego?], treasurer of the department at Monterey, ordering a payment of thirty-pesos to

de la Guerra. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 785

Letter 20
June 30, 1846. Santa Barbara.

Pico to de la Guerra: a personal promissary note for 400 pesos loaned by de la Guerra to the treasury

department. There follows a statement that the note was paid. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 786

Letter 1
March 16, 1845. Los Angeles.

Pio Pico to Pablo de la Guerra copying a letter of the same date sent to Juan Bautista Alvarado

appointing the latter as director of the customs house at Monterey, owing to the absence in Mexico of

Manuel Castañares, whose place was temporarily taken by de la Guerra. Spanish.

2 pp.

DLG 786

Letter 2
March 17, 1845. Los Angeles.

Pico to de la Guerra explaining why he placed Alvarado in charge of the customs house. Spanish. 3

pp.
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DLG 786

Letter 3
Apr. 30, 1845. Los Angeles.

Pico to de la Guerra, a further explanation of why he placed Alvarado in charge of the customs house.

Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 786

Letter 4
July 17, 1845. Los Angeles.

Pico to de la Guerra and countersigned by José María Covarrubias, appointing de la Guerra as

administrator of the customs house at Monterey, and copying therein a letter he sent to Alvarado in

which it was stated that since he is to go on a military campaign, his duties at the customs house

would be incompatible. Partly torn. Spanish. 5 pp.

DLG 786

Letter 5
Oct. 11, 1845. Los Angeles.

Pico to de la Guerra on his appointment as administrator of the Monterey customs house. Spanish. 2

pp.

DLG 786

Letter 6
June 21, 1855. Los Angeles.

Pico to de la Guerra on a testamentary matter with regard to William Hartnell; he was unable to see

Teresa Hartnell when she was in Los Angeles. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 786

Letter 7
Oct. 7, 1863. Ranchito.

Pico to de la Guerra sending him the letter of a certain Ysidora on a business matter; on coming

elections, mentions his brother, Andrés. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 786

Letter 8
Oct. 17, 1869. Ranchito.

Pico to de la Guerra on receiving the speckled horse from a young man who accompanied de la

Guerra to San Diego; comments on 'suerte' and 'muerte," (fate and death); sends him $3.00 to buy him

writing paper. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 786

Letter 9
March 9, 1873. Los Angeles.

Pico to de la Guerra thanking him for counsel given; he and his brother, Andrés, to seek justice,

mentions Capp and Pachito; states the temperament of Los Angeles has changed. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 787

Letter 1
June 23, 1846. Santa Barbara.

Pio Pico to Francisco de la Guerra and Antonio Rodríguez appointing them commissioners for the

Santa Barbara and San Buenaventura areas to call men before the government; (probably a call to

arms); speaks of patriotism and of an accompanying proclamation. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 788

Letter 1
Apr. 29, 1866. Ranchito.

Pio Pico to Miguel de la Guerra asking him to find Patricio Bonilla in the area of Santa Barbara and

have him come to see him by way of stagecoach and he will pay his expenses. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 789

Letter 1
June 29, 1829.,Los Angeles.

Rafael Pico: a contract with Mission San Gabriel to stock his Simi Rancho with 600 head of cattle

and to share half the increase, followed by an attestation of the above and signed on the same date by

Guillermo Cota and Francisco Morales. Then a receipt for 1,500 pesos written and signed by Fray

Tomás Esténaga, O.F.M. Mission San Gabriel, May 13, 1834. Also signed by José Antonio Pico, José

Romero and Juan Garza. Certification of the above and receipt written and signed by Juan María

Ibarra, Santa Barbara, May 26, 1834. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 790

Letter 1
Jan. 2, 1843. Durango.

Joaquín del Piélago to Domingo Danglada on a business matter. Mentions Miguel Mircea and

Francisco Martur Negrete of Guadalajara. Spanish. 2 pp.
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DLG 791

Letter 1
July 3, 1815. Santo Tomás, Lower California.

Fray Jose Miguel Pineda, O.P. to María Antonia (Carrillo) de la Guerra: a short note of friendship; on

José de la Guerra's leaving on that day, who, however, will be at home. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 792

Letter 1
Apr. 1, 1815. [Mission Santo Tomás, Lower California]

Fray José Miguel Pineda, O.P. to José de la Guerra citing a short letter he had received from Fray

[Feliz] Caballero, O.P. Pineda states how busy he is; sends greetings to a Father Sánchez and says he

is living well. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 792

Letter 2
Aug. 1, 1815. Santo Tomás.

Pineda to de la Guerra referring to the latter's long journey; expresses himself to de la Guerra in a

most friendly way; on articles received; wants to receive news. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 792

Letter 3
Oct. 7, 1815. [Santo Tomás].

Pineda to de la Guerra: merely a friendly letter; speaks of the family and the Presidio San Diego.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 792

Letter 4
Oct. 27, 1815. [Santo Tomás].

Pineda to la Guerra on sending him the Indian, Simon; speaks of shoes, books, wine and other items.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 792

Letter 5
Apr. 18, 1816. Santo Tomás.

Pineda to de la Guerra on Don Silverio wanting to leave Santo Tomás for San Vicente because of

illness; is sending de la Guerra a newspaper from Barcelona; on the arrival of mule packs from San

Ignacio that are going on to Presidio San Diego. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 792

Letter 6
Jan. 23, 1816.

Pineda to de la Guerra on receiving chocolate but no letter; chides him for the latter neglect; is

expecting the ebb tide of February; is to send wine to San Diego. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 792

Letter 7
May 6, 1816.

Pineda to de la Guerra: a short note concerning a barrel of wine and sends regards to the señora.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 792

Letter 8
June 16, 1816. San Vicente.

Pineda to de la Guerra on his visit to San Vicente; on hearing of insurgents blocking the harbors of

Callao in Peru and Guayaquil; of five frigates and a brigantine going in pursuit of them; reiterates his

regard for de la Guerra; on having sent three barrels of wine and Lieutenant Ruíz not understanding

his letter, kept one. Spanish. 21 pp.

DLG 792

Letter 9
July 9, 1816. No place noted.

Pineda to de la Guerra sending him wine and refers to a relic of the true cross. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 792

Letter 10
Apr. 22, 1818. Santo Tomás.

Pineda to de la Guerra on the arrival of the San Carlos; congratulates him on his new office; on

accounts; mentions a Don Martínez. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 792

Letter 11
Nov. 5, 1819, Santo Tomás.

Pineda to de la Guerra on accounts and letters; mentions Mariano Estrada; on insurgent ships at San

Quentín. Spanish. 3 pp.
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DLG 792

Letter 12
May 7, 1819. Santo Tomás.

Pineda to de la Guerra on not receiving letters and fearing that some of his own went astray; on

accounts; mentions Mariano Estrada; owing to a cold spell in May, the entire vineyard froze. Spanish.

2 pp.

DLG 792

Letter 13
Mar. 5, 1819. Santo Tomás.

Pineda to de la Guerra on on the latter asking for cauliflower and other seeds; states that he has none

but will send to Loreto for them; on letter writing and accounts. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 792

Letter 14
Aug. 7, 1821. [Santo Tomás].

Pineda to de la Guerra stating he is at Santo Tomás for a rest of mind and body; thanks him for cloth

sent through Sergeant Gastelum. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 792

Letter 15
Oct. 3, 1822. San Miguel, Lower California.

Pineda to de la Guerra notifying him that Lieut. Ruíz has been sent to Loreto; mentions sergeant

Arce; a new regulation on Indians made by a commission whom Pineda says 'does not know Indians;'

an order from the superior of the Dominicans of Aug. 4, to make out scrupulous inventories of the

missions which are to be handed over to the Franciscans; Pineda is dean of the frontier; Fathers

Martínez and a Mexican Dominican have been given new assignments, only three being left for the

frontier missions. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 792

Letter 16
Aug. 6 1816.

Pineda to de la Guerra on sending items requested; Don Silverio is at San Vicente and thinks he will

come to [Santo Tomás?] with his family; asks for rice and tobacco; the tobacco he is chewing he

considers very bad; mentions chocolate and sugar. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 792

Letter 17
Oct. 10, 1816.

Pineda to de la Guerra stating that the governor is at Rosario. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 792

Letter 18
Febr. 16. No year.

Pineda to de la Guerra on receiving rice and tobacco, barrels and wine; the illness of a Padre Antonio

at San Vicente. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 792

Letter 19
Febr. 25. No year.

Pineda to de la Guerra stating he is going to San Vicente; has received the clothes sent; is short of

supplies; will give meat to the Indians during the coming week, and, after sowing corn, they will got

out into the open country; will send de la Guerra a little flour with a certain Lucero. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 792

Letter 20
March 9. No year.

Pineda to la Guerra stating that Gregorio Lucero is to bring him a little flour and two barrels of

special wine; his clothes are old and is sending for some; the Indians have destroyed his horses. Partly

torn. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 792

Letter 21
March 31. No year. San Vicente.

Pineda to de la Guerra thanking him for items sent; is a San Vicente to give spiritual assistance to a

certain Juanita; asks him to send him some barrels for he has an abundance of wine. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 792

Letter 22
March 28. No year. Santo Tomás.

Pineda to de la Guerra on the arrival of the governor and a few items of small talk. Spanish. 1 p.
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DLG 792

Letter 23
July 1. No year.

Pineda to de la Guerra informing him that "this year" he lost his vineyard and garden and the barley

was a total lost; tells a story. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 792

Letter 24
Nov. 4. No year.

Pineda to de la Guerra on hearing that the latter is to be habilitado general in Guadalajara; Pineda is

half frozen with cold. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 792

Letter 25
Without date.

Pineda to de la Guerra on receiving no letters concerning a Father Sánchez. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 793

Letter 1
March 11, 1841. Tepic.

José Antonio Pintado to José de la Guerra on receiving a letter from him and a payment of

ninety-three pesos and seven reales, the bearer of this letter being his cousin, Manuel Díaz who is

going to California on commercial interests and is being commended to de la Guerra. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 794

Letter 1
Oct. 14, 1835. Mexico.

The Junta Directiva of the Pious Fund of the Californias to [Fray Narciso Durán, O.F.M.] signed by

Ignacio de Cubas, asking for a statement of the amount each missionary receives in an attested

document which is to be handed over to the political head of California; the padres may name a

person in Mexico to receive the money there and from there be distributed to each individual.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 794

Letter 2
Nov. 28, 1835. Mexico.

The Junta Directiva of the Pious Fund of the Californias, signed by Ignacio de Cubas, asking for the

list of missions in California, the names of the missionaries serving them, so that their annual salaries

may be given them. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 795

Letter 1
Aug. 18, 1854 . Washington, D.C.

B. H. Pleasants to Pablo de la Guerra informing him that the solicitor of the treasury department must

have a report from him on all processes of U.S. cases (Pablo having been marshal) between July 1,

1853, and June 30, 1854. Partly printed. English. 1 p.

DLG 796

Letter 1
March 5, 1824. Tepic.

Mateo Plowes to José de la Guerra states that he is going to Guadalajara and that since Juan Malarín

is going to California, he is taking the opportunity of commending to de la Guerra Miguel Culebras y

Salsa, officer of the troops who capitulated at Valladolid (today Morelia) and who cannot remain in

Mexico because of the then current conditions. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 798

Letter 1
Oct. 13, 1855. San Luis Obispo.

J. A. Pollard to Pablo de la Guerra describing the lack of mail facilities at the place, people having to

depend on passing strangers or the occasional arrival of a ship; mail for the place often being sent

elsewhere; Washington has allowed only $300.00 for monthly mail between San Luis Obispo and

Santa Barbara, which he considers ridiculously low, while U. S. law provides for mail to be delivered

at least to each county seat; asks de la Guerra to make representations to the postmaster general for

better service. English. 2 pp.

DLG 799

Letter 1
Jan. 2, 1821. San Diego.

Pablo de la Portilla to José de la Guerra on sergeant Roberto's going to San Diego to get married, and

to obtain permission from De la Portilla. Mentioned is sergeant Pablo Rodríguez. Spanish. 2 pp.
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DLG 799

Letter 2
June 2, 1824. Santa Barbara.

A receipt from Portilla given to José de la Guerra for 300 pesos received; the money was used to buy

effects from used the ship, Roves, from Canton; and items used for the troops under him. Spanish. 1

p.

DLG 800

Letter 1
Febr. 13, 1828. San Diego.

Certificate of reimbursement to José de la Guerra as deputy from California, of 301 pesos, one real

and ten granos, the amount advanced to Capt. José Romero from Presidio San Diego. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 801

Letter 1
Sept. 12, 1821. San Diego.

Pedro Posada y Bustillos to José de la Guerra on the discovery of silver veins in the vicinity of San

Diego. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 802

Letter 1
Aug. 7, 1864. San Francisco.

Orville Charles Pratt to Pablo de la Guerra on the case of Abadia vs Carrillo being sent to the former's

court but, not believing he has jurisdiction, he is returning the case to Santa Barbara. English. 1 p.

DLG 804

Letter 1
Febr. 15, 1871. San Francisco.

Miguel G. Pritchard to Pablo de la Guerra asking him to supply him with information concerning the

various filibustering expeditions that left San Francisco with the purpose of invading Mexico,

knowing that de la Guerra in the legislature opposed such expeditions; Pritchard represents the people

of Lower California who suffered as a result; Pritchard had been asked by Caleb Cushing to get in

touch with people conversant with the expeditions and to obtain affidavits; the evidence is to be

presented before a mixed commission in Washington, D.C. to satisfy the claims against the U.S.

Government in virtue of the treaty of July 4, 1868, between Mexico and the U.S. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 805

Letter 1
Aug. 19, 1856. Simi.

Jaime Puig y Monmary to Pablo de la Guerra directing how mail is to be sent to him. Puig, a doctor,

who had attended José de la Guerra in Santa Barbara, describes rules he is to follow in matters of

health. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 805

Letter 2
Jan. 15, 1857. Mexico.

Puig y Monmary to José de la Guerra on his arrival in Mexico from San Francisco; states that Mexico

is getting worse and worse; all the Spaniards in the state of Guerrero have had to take refuge in

Mexico City; the political contest is between Comonfort and Alvarez; there is talk of European

intervention. Following this on the same page in the same hand is a letter directed to Francisco de la

Guerra, San Francisco, Nov. 1, 1856 (sic) on medical payments owed by the family. Spanish. 4 pp.
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DLG 805

Letter 3
Apr. 12, 1857. Mexico.

Puig y Monmary to de la Guerra on his return from Aguas Calientes, stating that Pablo's interest in

Mexico is a natural one; that the towns of Spanish America owed their existence to the Spaniards; that

both he and Pablo feel that the inhabitants of Spanish America who were Spaniards have a great sin to

purge and that the mission of punishment has been committed by God to the Yankees, whom he

nevertheless calls 'reptiles;' remarks about the California earthquake of Jan, 9, 1857; states that the

tiles used for the houses in California are too heavy for the beams and supporting canes; states he

would like to return to Spain; is sending him a copy of Prontuario Diplomático, through Limantour;

on receiving a draft from Francisco [de la Guerra] in favor of Angustias [de la Guerra], which he is

returning and which he wants to be made out on a London exchange; discusses the money owed him

for medical services; Angustias financial troubles; his brother, Pablo, being a lawyer and apoderado

general for Angustias; discusses the testament of Manuel Jimeno, husband of Angustias; his having

bought a ranch called Noche Buena near Monterey in the Huerta de la Nación, and his desire to sell it

with the cattle; the new constitution of Mexico, which is partly antireligious and which is opposed by

the prelates of the nation; those who swear to uphold it being excommunicated; the situation possibly

leading to civil war; the tense situation in Mexico City on Holy Thursday. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 806

Letter 1
Oct. 10, 1856. Mexico.

José Puig y Monmary to Angustias de la Guerra Jimeno Ord on hearing that she has begun litigation

concerning her right to the Rancho del Pajaro, giving the lawyer one fourth of the estate in case he

wins; comments on the arrangement; and concerning her financial affairs and property in Mexico.

Mentioned are Señora Rementería, Ramón Martínez, a certain Jaime, Señor Sánchez, Moreno de

Tejada, a Castaños, a Carolina, José Mariscal, a Mackenzie, a Torres, a Cripps. He is waiting for the

arrival of needed documents. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 807

Letter 1
July 19, 1866. San Luis Obispo.

Domingo Pujol to Miguel de la Guerra announcing the death of his wife on the preceeding day.

Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 808

Letter 1
Nov. 18, 1869. San Francisco.

Domingo Pujol to Pablo de la Guerra concerning the Spanish mayorazgo of the de la Guerra family in

Spain, and stating that a certain Sanjurjo is willing to buy it; a letter from the latter being cited in

Pujol's, wherein it is stated that a letter written by Pujol to a Fernando Ceballos was sent to Santander,

where there was another Fernando Ceballos, whereas it should have been sent to a person of that

name in Novales. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 809

Letter 1
May 13, 1824. [Purisima].

Inventory of munitions at Mission Purisima signed by Anastasio Carrillo and Dámaso Rodríguez.

Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 810

Letter 1
May 24, 1842. Purisima and Santa Ines.

Interrogation of several neophytes conducted by José de la Guerra on thefts of clothes belonging to

the deceased Fray Ramón Abella, O.F.M. Also a deposition of Diego Fernández regarding the

interrogation, June 4, 1842. Incomplete. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 811

Letter 1
Apr. 24, 1820. Monterey.

Manuel Quijano to Gabriel Moraga: a health certificate. Contemporary copy attested to by José de la

Guerra, Santa Barbara, March 2, 1821. Spanish. 1 p.
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DLG 812

Letter 1
Feb. 5, 1856. Santa Barbara.

Rev. Blas Raho to José de la Guerra. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 813

Letter 1
1823-1876 (7 letters)

José Ramírez to José de la Guerra. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 814

Letter 1
Jan. 8, 1847.

José Fernando Ramírez to Gregorio de Ajuria: a passport visaed by Cesareo Lataillade, Santa.

Barbara, July 26, 1847. Partly printed. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 815

Letter 1
Dec. 10, 1842. San Gabriel.

José María Ramírez to José de la Guerra concerning a servant who escaped, who is at Tapo Ranch; he

asks for his return. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 816

Letter 1
May 2, 1752. Barcelona.

Treatise bearing the title: Formulario de Procesos con las Instrucciones dadas por el Señor Arellano

Oidor que fue de la Real Audiencia de Barcelona y Assesor de los Reales Cuerpos de Guardias

Españoles, Walonas, y Artillería. Is a guide for military trials. Spanish. 27 pp.

DLG 817

Letter 1
Apr. 26, 1860. San Quentin Prison.

Domingo Ramos to Pablo de la Guerra referring to a visit by de la Guerra and to a letter sent to him.

Does not yet know his status with regard to being released. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 818

Letter 1
June 11, 1855. Washington, D.C.

J. W. Ramsey, comptroller, to F. B. Streeter, solicitor of the treasury, with regard to the money owed

by Pablo de la Guerra to the U.S. for the term in which he served as U.S. marshal. Ramsey states that

there was no intention on the part of de la Guerra to defraud the government; he is de deposit the sum

owed in a U.S. depository less the sum of the salary due to him extending from Apr. 1, to Sept. 30,

1852. English. 3 pp.

DLG 819

Letter 1
Febr. 22, 1852. Monterey.

Andrew Randall to Pablo de la Guerra asking to borrow a copy of the journal of Fray Junípero Serra,

O.F.M., stating there was a copy in the State Library, which has been lost. [The reference is most

probably to Palóu's Relación histórica or the Life of Serra since the petitioner refers to an account of

the California missions up until the death of Serra]. English. 2 pp.

DLG 820

Letter 1
Febr. 24, 1854. Cottonwood, Shasta Co., Calif.

Peirson Barton Reading to Pablo de la Guerra expressing his dissent about the election of U. S.

senators from California long before the period in which they are to serve. English. 2 pp.

DLG 821

Letter 1
Dec. 10, 1848. Santa Barbara. 1848-1850 Correspondence and documents dealing with the

apprehension, trial and execution of the murderers of the Reed family at Mission San Miguel on Dec

5, 1848 Twenty-six pieces in four DLGs

Cesareo Lataillade to Antonio María de la Guerra; a note with instructions to gather the citizens noted

in an accompanying page, to sign up, presumably to join the posse setting out to apprehend the

murderers. On verso of the conjugate leaf is a list of men who apprehended the murderers [Peter]

Remer, [Peter] Quinn, and [Joseph] Lynch, c. Apr. 1849. 2 pp.
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DLG 821

Letter 2
Dec. 12, 1848. Santa Barbara.

Report of the proceedings re the capture of the men responsible for the murders of the Reed family at

Mission San Miguel: a document in the hand of Pablo de la Guerra with forty-nine signatures.

Annexed is one letter and two documents (letter and one document signed) by John Michael Price,

alcalde of San Luis Obispo, Dec. 7, 1848; a certificate of gold dust and silver seized from the

prisoners, signed by Isaac Sparks, Anastasio Carrillo and Gaspar Oreña, Santa Barbara, Dec. 11,1848;

inventory of personal belongings, etc., seized from the prisoners, signed by Thomas M. Robbins,

Lewis T. Burton, Henry S. Carnes, James Scott and Juan Carrillo, Santa Barbara, Dec. 11, 1848. One

page in English. The rest in Spanish. 16 pp.

DLG 821

Letter 3
Dec. 13, 1848. Santa Barbara.

Declarations of the prisoners, Joseph Lynch, Peter Reiner and Peter Quinn, taken under oath, signed

by the prisoners and by Thomas M. Robbins, president, Lewis T. Burton, and Henry S. Carnes,

secretary, and by the witnesses, James Scott, Richard Redley and Charles Hefferman. All in English.

31 pp.

DLG 821

Letter 4
Dec. 13, 1848. Santa Barbara.

Draft of a document: affidavit re investigation conducted by the committee of Santa Barbarans

investigating the murders of the Reed family. English. 2 pp.

DLG 821

Letter 5
Dec. 24-26. 1843. Santa Barbara.

Verdict of the jury in the Reed murders trial. Signed by the jurors: Pablo de la Guerra, president,

Henry S. Carnes, secretary, Charles Hefferman, Daniel Hill, Richard Redley, Lewis T. Burton,

Anastasio Carrillo, Gaspar de Oreña, Carlos Antonio Carrillo, Thomas M. Robbins, Francisco de la

Guerra and Joaquín Carrillo. The three murderers were to be shot to death on Dec. 28. The verdict

was approved by Col. R. B. Mason, governor of California, as attested to by E. O. C. Ord of the 1st

U.S. Artillery. English. 4 pp.

DLG 821

Letter 6
Dec. 29, 1848. Santa Barbara.

[Cesareo Lataillade] to Edward O. C. Ord, presenting detailed expenses incurred in apprehending the

three murderers and asking for reimbursement. English. 4 pp.

DLG 821

Letter 7
Jan. 6, 1849. Monterey.

Edward Otho Cresap Ord to Cesareo Lataillade on giving an account of the apprehension of three

sailors, Quinn and Remer and the death of a third, Bamburry, all deserters from the Warren

commanded by Long, and the consequent death of Ramón Rodríguez in the struggle of capture,

asking that the reward ($200.00) for the apprehension for each of the three, be turned over to the

widow of [Ramón] Rodríguez; the reward was given and a receipt required. Ord blames Col. Mason

for hedging on the matter of the sentence; asks [Cesareo] Lataillade to see Padre [José Joaquín]

Jimeno, O.F.M., at Mission Santa Ines and obtain his double barreled shotgun which he left there.

English. 4 pp.

DLG 821

Letter 8
Jan. 11, 1849. Santa Barbara.

Ord to [Cesareo] Lataillade stating that the expenses incurred in apprehending the murderers are to be

taken out of the money found on the murderers' persons , and the balance to be retained until the

governor can direct as to its disposition; is certain that the governor will see to it that the widow and

children of Rodríguez will be provided for; thanks the Santa Barbarans involved for their zeal and

perseverance in apprehending the murderers. English. 3 pp.
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DLG 821

Letter 9
Jan. 24, 1849. Monterey.

Richard Barnes Mason to Lataillade praising him and the citizens of Santa Barbara for apprehending

the murderers of the Reed family; stating that a proper disposition was made of the money found on

the persons of the murderers; but that he cannot pay for the loss or damage to private arms resulting in

the fight nor can he come to the relief of Rodríguez' wife and children in way of money for "such an

application is beyond the reach of my powers and authority." English. 1 p.

DLG 821

Letter 10
Jan. 25-30, 1849.

Copies in English and Spanish of correspondence between R. B. Mason and E. O. C. Ord re a court of

inquiry to investigate the trial and execution of the murderers of the Reed family. Eight pieces tied

together. They include the following: Jan. 25, 1849, Monterey. Mason to Ord; Jan. 26, 1849,

Monterey. Ord to Mason; Jan. 28, 1849, Monterey. Mason to Ord; Jan. 30, 1849, Monterey. Ord to

Mason. 27 pp.

DLG 821

Letter 11
Febr. 5, 1849. Santa Barbara.

[Cesareo] Lataillade to Mason on disposition of the money obtained from the persons of the

murderers. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 821

Letter 12
March 20, 1849. Santa Barbara.

Pablo de la Guerra and Henry S. Carnes to Raimundo Carrillo enclosing the documents re the Reed

murderers to be kept in the proper archive. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 821

Letter 13
Apr. 18, 1849. Santa Barbara.

David B. Streeter to Isaac J. Sparkes: an authorization to collect his reward money for helping to

capture the murderers of the Reed family. English. 1 p.

DLG 821

Letter 14
Jan. 25, 1850.

Juana (Tico) Rodríguez to José de la Guerra: a receipt for the reward money owed her husband

(Ramón) killed during the capture of the Reed family murderers; also for the reward money ceded to

her by five members of the pursuing party. Signed by Juana (Tico) Rodríguez and Anastasio Carrillo.

Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 822

Letter 1
June 21, 1822. Los Angeles.

Antonio Reyes and others to [Anastasio Carrillo]: a petition re their claim to their share of cattle now

within the boundaries of a fence put up by Mission San Fernando, from the Santa Monica mountains

to Cahuenga. Signed by José Palomares at the request of the petitioners: Antonio Reyes, Aniceto

Zúñiga, Francisco Avila, José Polanco and Nicolás Elizalde. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 823

Letter 1
Sept. 24, 1860. Los Angeles.

S. F. Reynolds to Pablo de la Guerra inviting the latter to influence the voters of Spanish origin for

the election of Stephan A. Douglas as presidential candidate of the Democratic party. English. 3 pp.

DLG 824

Letter 1
May 26, 1864. Los Angeles.

William P. Reynolds to Antonio María de la Guerra concerning the latter's proposal to raise a native

California military company. Mentioned are the governor, a Mr. R. J. Hill and Major Hancock.

English. 2 pp.
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DLG 825

Letter 1
Jan, 27, 1854. San Francisco.

George T. Rigby to Pablo de la Guerra concerning the former's claim for $450.00 for services

rendered in the armory department in 1851, and de la Guerra's willingness to intercede in the matter.

Rigby attended the governor's inauguration at Benecia. English. 1 p.

DLG 826

Letter 1
Dec. 11, 1815. Purisima.

Fray Antonio Ripoll, O.F.M., to José de la Guerra advising him that he cannot be present at the fiesta

of the presidio's patron, Nuestra Señora de Guadalupe, but that he has given his guards permission to

attend; on Fray Juan Cabot's, O.F.M., arrival at San Juan Bautista on his return from an expedition; on

Purisima's recent fiesta and the padres' disappointment over de la Guerra's absence. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 826

Letter 2
Dec. 22, 1815. Santa Barbara.

Ripoll to de la Guerra concerning fast and abstinence for soldiers; quotes the regulations on the matter

of the vicar general for the military of Dec. 18, 1809; refers to a conversation between them that

morning. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 826

Letter 3

Quinquagesima Sunday. c.1818. Purisima.

Ripoll to de la Guerra sending him a letter from the commander of the Lidia; on his inability to return

to Santa Barbara as soon as he thought he could; the padres send regards and would like to see de la

Guerra at the mission for Mardi Gras. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 826

Letter 4
c. 1818

Ripoll to de la Guerra on the latter's safe arrival at Santa Ines; on the Indian, Valerio, begging for his

protection, asking pardon and promising never to run away again; mentions San Marcos [Rancho and

transportation. Refers probably to the Bouchard invasion. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 826

Letter 5
Jan. 4, 1819. Santa Barbara.

Ripoll to de la Guerra concerning auxiliary soldiers at Santa Barbara, Santa Ines and Purisima;

mentions San Marcos [Rancho] where he has placed six cowboys, is sending him the names of the

new Indian alcaldes. 2 pp.

DLG 826

Letter 6
Aug. 12; 1820. Santa Barbara.

Ripoll to de la Guerra on the coming blessing of the new mission church at Santa Barbara; hopes that

the governor Pablo Vicente [Solá] will be present as he promised; on preparations for the dedication;

on a certain María Antonia Anzuelos becoming delirious. Spanish. 3 pp.
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Letter 7
Apr. 26, 1820. Santa Barbara.

Ripoll to de la Guerra on the latter's voyage to Mexico; on having received letters from him from

Tepic and Guadalajara; on four frigates sailing from Chile for California; little rain in California and

fears hunger because of loss of crops; money matters; mentions Estrada and Martiarena; on the arrival

on Apr. 25 of fifty-one Indians from the Tulare bringing with them the shackles of the Amajabas

Indians who had fled from the presidio; an attempt to form a company of Realistas in each presidio; a

list of which was requested. by Governor Solá; Ripoll wondering how they will be maintained; father

prefect's directive that there be formed at each mission a company of flecheros (bow and arrow men),

macheteros (chopping knife carriers), and lanzeros (lancers); Ripoll declaring that the Indians of

Santa Barbara will be outstanding because they are "good and faithful." Ripoll's recent investigation

to look for a place to establish a misioncita (auxiliary mission or asistencia) as a place of refuge for

the sick, disabled women, as well as for good children, and others; and others; mentions de la

Guerra's family; Fray Francisco Uría. O.F.M., of Santa Ines has his water mill constructed by an

American insurgent, [José Chapman], Fray Román Ulibarri, O.F.M., is destined for San Diego; one

padre from Santa Barbara is going to San Fernando; and Fray [Francisco] Victoria, O.F.M., is going

as assistant to Fray José Señán, O.F.M., at San Buenaventura; the rumor is that José Rosa is coming

as governor of California; the death of the Indian singer, José Cupertino; the blessing of the mission

church cannot take place on July 4. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 826

Letter 8
Aug. 30, 1820, Santa Barbara.

Ripoll to de la Guerra asking him to salute the governor, who is to be the padrino of the new church

to be dedicated Santa Barbara, and Fray Luís [Martínez], O.F.M. who is not to absent himself on that

occasion; tells him to notify him in time so that carriages can be sent to Refugio for the road has been

improved, is better and more direct than the old one [San Marcos?]. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 826

Letter 9
July 6, 1824, Santa Barbara.

Ripoll and Fray Antonio Jayme, O.F.M., to de la Guerra. Half the letter is missing, the top half of

both sides. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 826

Letter 10
c. 1824

Ripoll to de la Guerra about giving Mission Santa Barbara's interest in a sloop to Padre Luís

[Martínez] of San Luis Obispo. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 826

Letter 11
Undated.

Ripoll to de la Guerra on Bandini's delay in arriving and on his ship's "demerits." Spanish.

2 pp.

DLG 826

Letter 12
Undated.

Ripoll to de la Guerra inviting him and his family to the fiesta of Santa Barbara. Spanish. l p.

DLG 827

Letter 1
June 16, 1818. Santa Barbara.

Fray Antonio Ripoll giving a list of fugitives from Mission Santa Barbara. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 828

Letter 1
Nov. 12, 1822. Santa Barbara.

Fray Antonio Ripoll to Juan de Martiarena: an order to place at the disposition of José de la Guerra

1,000 pesos charged to the account of Mission Santa Barbara. Following the above on the same date

is de la Guerra's endorsement of the note to Isidro Díaz of Tepic. Contemporary copy in hand of de la

Guerra. Spanish. 1 p.
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Letter 1
Aug. 4, 1824. Santa Barbara.

Antonio Ripoll to Fray Luís Antonio Martínez, O.F.M., concerning the schooner, Santa Apolonia.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 830

Letter 1
Nov. 23, 1859. Santa Barbara.

J. J. Robbins to Pablo de la Guerra asking him to purchase a French horn for him. He will send the

money afterward. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 831

Letter 1
[June, 1830].

Alfred Robinson to María Antonia (Carrillo) de la Guerra sending pictures of the parents of Elena

through a certain Enrique [Mellus?]. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 831

Letter 2
May 16, 1834. Los Angeles.

Robinson to María Antonia sending a silk rebozo for Anita through the administrator, Angel Ramírez.

Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 831

Letter 3
c. 1839.

Robinson to María Antonia on his near departure, acknowledging that his Spanish is not as good as it

should be, and that he has received from Anita, who is in New York. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 832

Letter 1
Jan. 15, 1836. Santa Barbara.

Alfred Robinson to Fray Narciso Durán, O.F.M., requesting a dispensation for omitting the

publication of two banns in order to hasten his marriage to Ana María de la Guerra. Durán's

dispensation is given, Santa Barbara, Jan. 18, 1836. The document is signed with Robinson's

baptismal name, José María Alfredo Robinson. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 833

Letter 1
June 10, 1838. Boston.

Alfred Robinson to José de la Guerra announcing his intention of returning to California, "the country

I idolize;" giving a description of his voyage after leaving Santa Barbara, which lasted 150 days; his

trip to Boston and New York; mentions Anita and acquaintances; gives a list of items he is sending.

Spanish. 5 pp.

DLG 833

Letter 2
Nov. 15, 1838. Boston.

Robinson to de la Guerra apologizing for his imperfect Spanish; the birth of a child to him and Anita

on June 28, to whom the name, Santiago Alejandro, was given; Anita's progress in English slow;

recalls his delights in California; asks about [Antonio José] Cot and [José Antonio] Aguirre; is

sending certain articles through Thomas Shaw on the frigate, Monsoon; Anita's presence in New

York. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 833

Letter 3
Febr. 26, 1839. New York.

Robinson to de la Guerra on a government ship that sails for Vera Cruz every two or three months

just to facilitate the needs of merchants; his desire to hear news from California; Anita to continue her

studies under his niece who is well educated and who knows Spanish; he and Anita remain faithful in

attending worship in one of eight or ten Catholic churches in New York; mentions a Carlota and a

daughter of the Reyes who visited at the Cayeguas Ranch and who now lives in New York; the latest

news from Spain is bad; does not know when he will return to California. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 833

Letter 4
Sept. [1st?], 1839.

Robinson to de la Guerra concerning a Mr. Steele asking him for a letter of recommendation.

Mentioned is Santiago Stearns. Spanish. 2 pp.
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Letter 5
Sept. 7, 1839. Boston.

Robinson to de la Guerra on receiving the latest letter from California through José Steele; on other

mail issues; mentioned are Antonio Ercilla, Federico Becher and Fray Felix Caballero, O.P., Anita

now speaks English very well but lacks confidence in mastering it; is waiting for The Alert from

California; on a letter received from Ferdinand Deppe, who is living with his sister in Germany;

Deppe's leaving the services of [Henry] Virmond and Becher, who did not want to pay him the gains

he obtained while in California; who wishes to be remembered to his friends in California, especially

the de la Guerras, Fray Narciso Durán, O.F.M., the Jimenos, Carrillos and the Yankees of Santa

Barbara; Robinson's thinking on the fine weather of California with the approach of winter in the east;

many commercial companies are planning to settle along the Columbia; newspaper articles in the east

speak in favor of California becoming a part of the United States; Robinson's article on California

published; the proposal of a member of congress that in lieu of Mexico's debt to the U. S., California

be given to it; the California issue forgotten over a dispute with England on land bordering on Maine;

the U. S. has sent a minister to Mexico to settle claims of Americans against Mexico, and to establish

a firmer friendship in material relations; has no new news from Spain; he and Elena have been living

in New York since the prior October; thanks de la Guerra for his interesting letters; is planning

another voyage to California; asks to be remembered especially to Fathers [Narciso]Duran, O.F.M.,

and [Antonio] Jimeno, O.F.M., Anastasio [Carrillo] and Carlos [Carrillo],to Estevan Tapis, O.F.M.,

and Yorba. One page torn. Spanish. 6 pp.

DLG 833

Letter 6
[Nov.?] 22, 1846. New York.

Robinson to de la Guerra sending a letter through Francisco Mellus, who embarked on a ship destined

for San Francisco with provisions and munitions for the military expedition to undertake the

occupation of California, has since heard about the squadron under Sloat; the beginning of the

Mexican war; troops under General Taylor; a war which Robinson calls unjust; Santa Ana is again in

Mexico; said to be at San Luís Potosí with troops to fight the Americans who have taken Monterrey;

the marriages of the queen and the infanta in Spain; the new pope, Pius IX is very popular; New

York's new governor is a Whig; has received no news from California for a long time; states that the

purchase of land in California would be good speculation; sends greetings to Fathers Durán, O.F.M.,

Jimeno, O.F.M., and friends; the value of leather has fallen greatly in the United States; trade with

California consequently of no value. Anita adds a few lines to her father at end. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 833

Letter 7
Oct. 21, 1847. New York.

Robinson to de la Guerra on learning from Washington that Commodore Jones is going to California

to take over command of the naval forces; the entry of the American army into Mexico City,

condemns the Mexican war; Santa Ana beaten; the bad actions of Americans including Fremont in

California; opines that the United States has claimed all the land of California to the Cape of San

Lucas [the lower tip of Baja California], but probably will get no more than the Monterey and San

Francisco areas; urges de la Guerra to obtain land in that area especially Angel island; a frigate is

sailing for California that very day; the firm of Appleton & Co. is preparing material for an

expedition to California; the Vandalia has not yet arrived; has not seen the relatives of Daniel [Hill?]

for some time; is sending a number of Catholic newspapers; Pope Pius IX , a liberal man, Robinson's

presence at the cathedral to witness the consecration of a new bishop; New York State now has three

dioceses. Spanish. 4 pp.



8/26/2009 Page 257

DLG 833

Letter 8
Nov. 7, 1849. San Francisco.

Robinson to de la Guerra sending a letter from Anita; fears that the ship, California, destined for San

Diego, did not stop at Santa Barbara because of strong winds and rain; inquires about various persons.

Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 833

Letter 9
May 3, 1854. New York.

Robinson to de la Guerra on leaving "the boys" in charge of Mrs. Meade and his intention to take

them to Georgetown; his presence in Boston for three weeks; found the Sepúlvedas discontented;

various school difficulties described; mention of Father Ryder and his departure for Cuba; the death

of Robinson's son. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 834

Letter 1
Sept. 20, 1846. New York.

Alfred Robinson to Pablo de la Guerra on his and Anita's return from Boston, where they stayed with

his sister; were visited by Captain [Arthur?] Hatch and Francisco Mellus, the latter of whom is sailing

for California on Sept. 21; four frigates with a corvette of war are going to California filled with

munitions and food for the military destined to occupy California; the soldiers to become colonizers

after the war the majority being artisans and workingmen, the officers in general being from good

families and graduates of West Point, several of whom have letters of introduction to de la Guerra;

Robinson expects to be in California within a year which he considers his "adopted country;" money

rather than hides and tallow will flow with the coming of Americans, since soldiers are paid for their

services; de la Guerra is not to be disheartened over the change of flags for California, will begin to

exist in a "civilized manner," while "work and ambition" will flourish; his cousin Manuela, gave birth

to a girl and was given the name, Anna, he and Anita being the godparents; sends regards to Osio,

Abrego, [José Antonio] Aguirre, Don Miguel and others. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 834

Letter 2
June 1, 1849 San Francisco.

Robinson to de la Guerra stating that he met Francisco and Gaspar, who were in San Francisco many

days; on a letter from [Antonio José] Cot to General Mariano G. [Vallejo]; the letter for the

archbishop of New York was sent by way of Mazatlán; in Europe, Russia, Austria and Prussia are to

place their governments on the basis existing in 1815, with a large force marching to the south; Italy

to be the first place of conflict; 10,000 Spaniards and 4,000 Portuguese have disembarked at Gaeta;

the Austrians have occupied Ferrara with 20,000 troops who with others will reestablish the pope in

Rome. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 834

Letter 3
Apr. 25, 1851. New York.

Robinson to de la Guerra on his rejoicing when he hears the name of de la Guerra mentioned in the

California senate; on a photograph of Pablo; Elena, María Antonia and Santiago are spending the

Easter holidays with them; Elena and Santiago soon to received their first Communion; Anita has

spent Holy Week in church so that he has hardly seen her; the cessation of colera in the country; does

not know when he can return to California; politics, mentioned are King and Burton; on José de la

Guerra's contemplated trip to Spain; send regards to padres and others. Spanish. 4 pp.
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Letter 4
Oct. 10, 1851. New York.

Robinson to de la Guerra on hearing that southern California is proposed to be a separate territory

from the north; a plan that Robinson hopes will be effective; gives reasons therefore; intends to make

another voyage to California, mentions Angustias de la Guerra's sons, Antonio and Porfirio; thinks

they are ready for college; believes they should study at St. John's College where there are many

students from countries speaking Spanish; Robinson's daughter, Elena and María Antonia are at the

sisters' convent at Manhattanville; mentions Francisco and Enrique Mellus; Spanish newspapers;

sends regards to Daniel [Hill], Nicolás [Den?], Fray Narciso [Durán], O.F.M., and Frayl[Francisco

Xavier] Uría, O.P. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 834

Letter 5
Jan. 12, 1852. New York.

Robinson to de la Guerra on receiving no letters from California though he has sent many; on Pablo's

usefulness in the California senate in behalf of native Californians; on Pablo having received 30,000

pesos for the sale of a ranch; Robinson's wishing Pablo had come to New York and then made a visit

to England, France and Spain; on the possibility of José de la Guerra going to Spain; the political

situation in France with Louis Napoleon at the helm; the release of Kossuth in Hungary, his coming

to the United States and his fine reception here; [Thomas] Larkin is preparing to return to California;

is presently living in Washington; Anita is about to give birth to a child. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 834

Letter 6
Jan. 24, 1853. Santa Barbara.

Robinson to de la Guerra mentioning a Mr. Prescott and a certain Raimundo; on two murders

committed in the area; the victims being a native of Sonora, a certain Patricio being the murderer;

each night the tarrasa? is played and a "fiesta" is held every day; José de la Guerra is very well.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 834

Letter 7
Apr. 5, 1854. Boston.

Robinson to de la Guerra on not hearing from the latter for a long time; his attempt to follow Pablo's

career in the senate from reading the newspapers; the death of Manuel Jimeno in Mexico, and of

[William] Hartnell in Monterey; Antonio and Porfirio Jimeno are in Robinson's charge; he placed

them in a school together with his son, Santiago, having taken them out of Georgetown, and said he

would never send another son to a Jesuit College; is getting his shipment ready for California and

experts to come in June; refers to the war between Russia and Turkey; concerning the "affair" of the

ship, Black Hanion [?]; Señor Soule's closeness to the queen of Spain; on furniture for the de la

Guerra house; mentions Enrique Mellus; Elena desires to return to California with Robinson;

Santiago is preparing for the military academy at [West Point]. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 834

Letter 8
May 20, 1854. New York.

Robinson to de la Guerra on the death of [Manuel] Jimeno in Mexico, and that of [William] Hartnell

in Monterey; the effect of Jimeno's death on his sons, Antonio and Porfirio. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 834

Letter 9
Sept. 4, 1855. Los Angeles.

Robinson to de la Guerra but signed as "Argüello," on a money matter; on Anita's becoming

instructed by reading Prescott; asks de la Guerra to leave the "maldita" company of the democrats.

Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 834

Letter 10
Sept. 8, 1855. Los Angeles.

Robinson to de la Guerra but signed as "Argüello," concerning the Democratic party. Spanish. 1 p.
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Letter 11
Sept. 15, 1855. Los Angeles.

Robinson to de la Guerra but signed as "Argüello," on the Democrats. English and Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 834

Letter 12
Dec. 24, 1855. Los Angeles.

Robinson to de la Guerra on a meeting of Californians in which de la Guerra was nominated to go to

Washington as a commissioner; mentioned are Abel Stearns, Juan Bandini, Pio Pico, Ignacio del

Valle and Antonio Coronel. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 834

Letter 13
Febr. 21, 1856. Los Angeles.

Robinson to de la Guerra on hearing of the latter's arrival in Sacramento; mentions the

Know-Nothings; the Democrats; will return to New York, perhaps in April. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 834

Letter 14
Apr. 10, 1856. San Francisco.

Robinson to de la Guerra on the proximate sailing of the Tehama[House?]; David Spence sends his

regards. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 834

Letter 15
Apr. 21, 1860.

Robinson to de la Guerra on the candidacy of John Peachy, brother of Archibald Peachy and friend of

Pablo. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 834

Letter 16
Nov. 12, 1860. New York.

Robinson to de la Guerra on his arrival in New York; the election of Abraham Lincoln. Andrés Pico

for one "has been on the right side of the fence;" is a Republican; the rumor that Lincoln was once a

good Whig; mentions the southern states; Senator Latham has not yet arrived; Robinson has placed

Alfredo in the military academy where his now deceased Santiago was; mentions María Antonia and

Gaspar; will return to California. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 834

Letter 17
Jan. 11, 1861. San Francisco.

Robinson to de la Guerra stating that he is satisfied with the election of Latham as senator; Downie

will become governor. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 834

Letter 18
Apr. 16, 1861. Newark, New Jersey.

Robinson to de la Guerra on having received a letter via the Pony Express; relations between

Robinson and Thomas More, with regard to the sale of sheep; explains his delay in returning to

California; on the Civil War; refers to the assassination of [David C.] Broderick. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 834

Letter 19
Sept. 20, 1873. San Francisco.

Robinson to de la Guerra stating that [John?] Doyle would like to have the original manuscript of

[Fray Gerónimo] Boscana, O.F.M., the one Robinson had given to Anita, which she gave to the

archbishop of New York, Robinson recalling there had been another copy. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 835

Letter 1
Aug. 13, 1858. La Patera, Calif.

Alfred Robinson to Antonio María de la Guerra asking him to bring to him a branding iron so that he

could brand his cattle. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 836

Letter 1
June 11, 1838. Boston.

Ana María (de la Guerra) Robinson to José de la Guerra, her father, and to María Antonia (Carrillo),

her mother, sending love and regards. Alfred Robinson adds a few lines. Partly torn. Spanish. 1 p.
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Letter 2
Febr. 27, 1839. New York.

Ana María to José de la Guerra on awaiting the ship, Ester; asks about various persons; her husband,

Alfred Robinson, is coming to California alone; on the California sailing from Callao; the wreck of

Capt. Hinkely's ship near Santa Barbara; sends greetings to Fathers [Narciso] Durán, O.F.M., and

[Antonio] Jimeno, O.F.M., to Daniel [Hill?] and his wife. Lettering very small. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 836

Letter 3
Apr. 15, 1839. New York. Sent by way of the Sandwich Islands.

Ana María to de la Guerra announcing that her husband was in Boston; on members of the family;

her intention to study English. Robinson adds a few lines after his return from Boston. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 836

Letter 4
Jan. 10, 1840. Bridgeport, Conn.

Ana María to de la Guerra and his wife telling them not to be surprised that she did not sail with her

husband on the Alert; is studying at an academy; sends regards to her friends and to Fathers [Narciso]

Durán, O.F.M., and Antonio [Jimeno] O.F.M., Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 836

Letter 5
Sept. [30?], 1840.

Ana María to her parents concerning Alfred Robinson, her husband, and other members of the family.

Almost illegible. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 837

Letter 1
Aug. 11, 1843. Boston.

Ana María Robinson to Pablo de la Guerra, her brother, excusing herself for not writing more

frequently; asking him to write; she feels her painful separation from home and family. English. 1 p.

DLG 837

Letter 2
Apr. 21, 1854. Santa Barbara.

Ana María to Pablo de la Guerra: a short friendly letter and thanking him for the paper he sent her.

Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 838

Letter 1
Dec. 13, 1849. New York.

Elena Robinson, daughter of Alfred and Ana María de la Guerra, to Pablo de la Guerra, stating that

she is writing to him instead of to his father, Jose, because she did not know enough Spanish to do so;

intends to study Spanish; on her parents being in California; she has two brothers and a sister whose

daguerrotypes she is sending; her meeting with Mr. and Mrs. Mellus; will be in school for five more

years; sends regards to various persons; enjoys the east but would to be in the de la Guerra house

again and would like the de la Guerras to visit New York. English. 3 pp.

DLG 839

Letter 1
c. 1860.

Robert Robinson and others to Pablo de la Guerra asking him to consider consider Benjamin

Saunders as a proper person for porter of the senate. English. 1 p.

DLG 840

Letter 1
Sept. 19, 1839. Los Angeles.

María Josefa (Alvarado) Rocha to Fray Francisco González de Ibarra, O.F.M., in reference to a letter

from him of July 5, 1839, concerning money owed to the mission by her deceased husband and

stating that she wrote to José Antonio Aguirre to give a guarantee of 200 pesos in her behalf, the limit

which she is able to give at the time because burdened with a family. She adds that a Padre Vicente

[Oliva?], O.F.M., owes her 135 pesos. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 841

Letter 1
1815. [San Luis Obispo]

Fray Antonio Catarino Rodríguez, O.F.M., to de la Guerra sending the season's greetings; is returning

three pieces of gear and sending two containers of tongue; greetings from Fray Luís Martínez,

O.F.M.; no news from the north; a certain Pigot passed through. Spanish. 2 pp.
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Letter 2
[c. June, 1816]. Purisima.

Fray Antonio Catarino Rodríguez, O.F.M., to José de la Guerra, announcing his presence at Purisima

as acting secretary of the formal visitation, and on the death of Doña Tomása Lugo who died May 27,

1816. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 841

Letter 3
1816

Rodríguez to de la Guerra forwarding the padrón of the mission and the names of the new alcaldes.

Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 841

Letter 4
1816

Rodríguez to de la Guerra on sending an account; asking him to return the padrón so that he can

forward it to Estudillo in Monterey. Fray Antonio Ripoll, O.F.M., a short note. Spanish.

2 pp.

DLG 841

Letter 5
1816

Rodríguez to de la Guerra on tallow; mentioned are Negrete and Madrazo; the return of Fray Luís

[Martínez, O.F.M.] from Mission San Miguel. On the verso side is the draft of a letter from de la

Guerra to Governor [Pablo Vicente] Solá re the American frigate, Atala. Spanish.

2 pp.

DLG 841

Letter 6
c. 1818. [Monterey].

Rodríguez to de la Guerra (signs himself as "Antonio El Cruel") stating that he is staying at Governor

Sola's house while Solá has gone to Santa Cruz; the son of Estudillo is a cadet in San Francisco; calls

all the people of Monterey "fatales." Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 841

Letter 7
1818. [San Luis Obispo].

Rodríguez to de la Guerra on the arrival of the Eliot; mentions corporal Dámaso [Rodríguez];

Anastasio [Carrillo?] is being made sergeant, and hopes he will rise to captain; on wine; and the lack

of a harvest at San Luis Obispo. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 841

Letter 8
1818

Rodríguez to de la Guerra thanking him for oranges sent; is waiting for embarcation; asks about the

presidio and water supply. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 841

Letter 9

c. 1819. San Luis Obispo.

Rodríguez to de la Guerra on saddles; is sending two containers with tongues, one for de la Guerra,

the other for Pedro Negrete; congratulates de la Guerra on his being sent to Mexico; asks him to urge

the viceroy to send more Fernandino missionaries to California. Partly torn. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 841

Letter 10
c. 1820. [San Luis Obispo.]

Rodríguez to de la Guerra referring to a bando probably from Mexico about which Rodríguez

complains, namely, about sending more troops to California which he opines is sufficiently protected;

on a round letter of Fray Luís [Martínez], O.F.M., from which he quotes a few lines. Signs himself as

"Lindo Antonio." Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 841

Letter 11
c. 1820. [San Luis Obispo].

Rodríguez to de la Guerra on the change of the guard; asks Señora de la Guerra to send him two varas

of material for curtains; Fray Luís [Martínez] has not yet returned. Spanish. 2 pp.
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Letter 12
c. 1820.

Rodríguez to de la Guerra on the latter's wife's health; on allowing de la Guerra to have an unnamed

Indian attached to Mission Santa Ines where his son is; Rodríguez is going to Purisima to make his

annual spiritual retreat and to preach at the fiesta; Fray Luís [Martínez], O.F.M.,has been ill; sends

greetings to sergeant Anastasio, to the household and to [Fray Antonio] Ripoll, O.F.M. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 841

Letter 13
c. 1820.

Rodríguez to de la Guerra on sending through corporal Antonio Volumes I and II of [Fray Luís de]

Granada from which de la Guerra can profit spiritually; on the absence of Fray Luís [Martínez]; his

need for two more varas of material for curtains; sends regards to the family and Ripoll. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 841

Letter 14
1821

Rodríguez to de la Guerra: a few lines on articles purchased. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 841

Letter 15
Sept. 8, 1821.

Rodríguez to de la Guerra on a ship leaving from Port San Luis Obispo; the past fiesta; on a

commercial transaction to be; mentions El Cojo and Fray Ramón Olbés, O.F.M. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 841

Letter 16
1822

Rodríguez to de la Guerra (he signs himself "Noriega") consoling the latter that he is leaving "lovely

Santa Barbara " for "that uninspiring Monterey." Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 841

Letter 17
c. 1822. Purisima.

Rodríguez to de la Guerra sending him biscuits and meat; a certain Flamidio is being sent to him for

employment; a Roberto will inform him on certain matters; sends a message to Fray[Francisco] Uría,

O.F.M. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 841

Letter 18
May 6, c. 1822. Purisima.

Rodríguez to de la Guerra (signing himself as "Fr. Catarino, Antonio, Carlos, Noriega, Uría, Carrillo,

y Urrehuezurrescoa), is sending de la Guerra some Indians under a Benvenuto from whom he can

obtain information; two are being sent to take care of his garden; Rodríguez is hard put to supply food

for both Purisima and Santa Ines; on non-Indian cowboys; the condition of the horse herd at the

mission; on sending meat from Santa Ines to the presidio; sending a galleta from Santa Ines; on

soldiers; Indian cowboys; states that an Indian rather than a non-Indian can be majordomo at

Purisima, for the Indians know their area; Indians lack implements for killing cattle with the result

that when de la Guerra asks for shoes there is a lack of leather; asks de la Guerra to appoint someone

to take care of the temporal side of the mission. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 841

Letter 19
July 13, 1822. Purisima.

Rodríguez to de la Guerra on the vigilance observed at El Cojo; explains in accompanying documents

that the distance from El Cojo to Purisima is three times as far as the distance from El Cojo to Santa

Ines so that [Fray Francisco] Uría, O.F.M., receives merchandise before Rodríguez does; there are

fishermen and cowboys at El Cojo, who noise abroad whatever is new or strange unless prevented by

the fog. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 841

Letter 20
c. 1824. Purisima.

Rodríguez to de la Guerra on his lack of containers so that he cannot send pinole; the soldiers are

clothed; itemizes the things given them by him and Fray Blas [Ordaz), O.F.M. Spanish. 1 p.
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DLG 841

Letter 21
1824

Rodríguez to de la Guerra sending him Benvenuto and Quintín whom he can interrogate; has invited

the father president to the mission to hold an investigation; talks of his "bitter days of suffering."

Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 841

Letter 22
Jan. 6, 1824. [Purisima].

Rodríguez to de la Guerra informing him on the election of Benvenuto and Quintín as alcaldes, and of

Cayetano and Pascual as regidores of the mission. De la Guerra's approval is on the margin. Spanish.

1 p.

DLG 841

Letter 23
March 30. No year.

Rodríguez to de la Guerra (he signs himself "Noriega") sending him pinole, galleta, and shoes; says

things are quiet. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 841

Letter 24
Undated.

Rodríguez to de la Guerra asking him to be lenient with a certain Olivas; a commercial matter;

mentions Manuel García. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 841

Letter 25
March 26. No year. San Gabriel.

Rodríguez to de la Guerra on his arrival at San Gabriel by ship; is hearing the confessions of

non-Indians in the Los Angeles area; a mission will be given at the beginning of May. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 841

Letter 26
Undated. Purisima.

Rodríguez to de la Guerra asking him to give permission to a certain soldier, Joaquín, to be

majordomo at Purisima, he being a person the Indians like very much, is intelligent in agricultural

matters, is always in good humor, not haughty, and above all knows the language and is willing to

assume the task. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 841

Letter 27
May 26. No year.

Rodríguez to "D la Guerra on Fray Luís Martínez, O.F.M., going to San Miguel for a period; may go

to the Santa Barbara fiesta; is sending three short letters. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 842

Letter 1
June 26, 1824. Purisima.

Dámaso (Antonio) Rodríguez to José de la Guerra on the Indian, Millán arriving and showing a letter

of pardon given by Capt. [Pablo] de la Portilla; in Santa Ines the blacksmith, Felipe, and two cowboys

have given him various military implements; states that Fray Antonio [Rodríguez], O.F.M., has sent

Millán with the alcalde, Quintín, and six other Indians to call back fugitives; Antonio Montes of the

guard and Guadalupe Cantua are being sent to Monterey; Policarpo Higuera is ill having fallen from a

horse and is in need of a doctor; the corporal Sinforiano, the soldier, Miliciano Lázaro Soto, and the

citizen, Xavier Valenzuela, ask to be relieved of their duties at Purisima; citizen Juan Yguerra is

helping at the mission. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 843

Letter 1
March 28, 1856. Monterey.

Jacinto Rodríguez to Pablo de la Guerra on the latter's health; has read de la Guerra's speech and is

translating it into Spanish; praises it for its eloquence; on a discourse de la Guerra sent him in German

for translation; on the absence of a certain Pinto and a Juan Antonio from Monterey; Rodríguez

concludes with a quatrain in English. 2 pp.
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DLG 844

Letter 1
Oct. 5, 1819. San Pedro.

Pedro Rodríguez to José de la Guerra on receiving the latter's letter at Mission San Gabriel; on a legal

matter; on mules for transportation of items going to de la Guerra; on two barrels to be sent him.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 844

Letter 2
Oct. 9, 1819. San Pedro.

Rodríguez to de la Guerra on a monetary matter. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 845

Letter 1
Aug. 21, 1850. Los Angeles.

Manuel Antonio Rodríguez de Poli, a physician, to José de la Guerra on his attempts to get in touch

with him; his practice in Los Angeles; has received more patients than money; hopes to remain in Los

Angeles for some time; wants Doña Concepción to come to Los Angeles; [Juan] Manso went to San

Diego, [Eulogio de] Celis to San Pedro; mentions a Fernando, brother of Doña Concepción, Pablo [de

la Guerra] and José Antonio Menéndez; sends regards to Fray [José María] González Rubio, O.F.M.,

the Jimenos, O.F.M., and to the "general." Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 846

Letter 1

Nov. 30, 1851. San Buenaventura.

Rodríguez de Poli to Pablo de la Guerra on the health of Pablo's wife who is expecting a child; with

the answer of Pablo, the Ides of Dec. VIII, Santa Barbara; states that he could not understand all of

the letter because of poor penmanship. Latin. 4. pp.

DLG 847

Letter 1
March 22, 1855. Santa Barbara.

I. Rogal to José de la Guerra on Señor Mondrán going to Las Posas who will return to Santa Barbara;

Rogal has 1000 pesos ready for the disposition of de la Guerra on proof that Mondrán has been in the

employ of de la Guerra. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 848

Letter 1
Aug. 2, 1871. Mexico.

Matías Romero to Angustias (de la Guerra Jimeno) Ord on money matters and real estate of hers in

Mexico City. The envelope is with the letter. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 849

Letter 1
July 28, 1820. Mexico.

Josefa Rodríguez de Rosa to José de la Guerra announcing the death of her husband, Capt. Don

Ramón de la Rosa on July 15, 1820. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 850

Letter 1

May 4, 1848. Querétaro.,

Luís de la Rosa issuing a passport to José Antonio Aguirre,visaed by Cesareo Lataillade [Santa

Barbara], Febr. 21, 1849. 1 p.

DLG 850

Letter 2
May 4, 1848. Querétaro.

De la Rosa issuing a passport to Diego Fernández, visaed by Lataillade [Santa Barbara] Febr. 21,

1849. 1 p.

DLG 850

Letter 3
May 4, 1848. Querétaro.

De la Rosa issuing a passport to Manuel Fagos, visaed by Lataillade [Santa Barbara] Febr. 21, 1849. 1

p.

DLG 850

Letter 4
May 4, 1848. Queretaro.

De la Rosa issuing a passport to Domingo Indart, visaed by Lataillade [Santa Barbara] Febr. 21, 1849.

1 p.
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DLG 850

Letter 5
May 4, 1848. Querétaro.

De la Rosa issuing a passport to Juan Luzárraga, visaed by Lataillade. [Santa Barbara] Febr, 21, 1849.

1 p.

DLG 850

Letter 6
May 4, 1843. Querétaro.

De la Rosa issuing a passport to Juan Manzo, visaed by Lataillade [Santa Barbara] Febr. 21, 1849. 1

p.

DLG 850

Letter 7
May 4, 1848. Querétaro.

De la Rosa issuing a passport to Juan Sánchez Lataillade [Santa Barbara] Febr. 21, 1849. 1 p.

DLG 851

Letter 1
July 8, 1859. Santa Barbara.

The Rev. Cipriano Rubio to Pablo de la Guerra stating that he is going to Santa Ines and San

Francisco; asks him to take care of the bill owing to the college at Santa Ines amounting to $135.00

for the education of a certain Juanito. Mentioned are Francisco de la Guerra and a certain Santiago.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 851

Letter 2
July 8, 1859. Santa Barbara.

A receipt from the Rev. Cipriano Rubio to Pablo do la Guerra for $135.00 for the education and

expenses of Juan de la Guerra at Santa Ines College. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 851

Letter 3
June 4, 1860. Santa Ines.

Rubio to de la Guerra sending him a bill for the education and keep of his son, Carlos, at Santa Ines

College; de la Guerra is notified that graduation will take place on July 2 and that school will reopen

on Aug. 15; students may remain at the college during the vacation period without extra charge; the

tuition of the year before ($120.00 a year) will be raised to $180.00, however if one or more brothers

attend the college, the second will have to pay only $150.00, the third, $120.00. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 852

Letter 1
July 12, 1810. San Diego.

Francisco María Ruíz to José de la Guerra on receiving a list of drafts from Mission San Luis Rey to

Presidio Santa Barbara; is sending a list of effects he is forwarding through Anastasio Carrillo except

brandy; names the articles arrived from Mexico; is returning to him a representación in which neither

he nor a certain Martínez did not care to become involved in; on the requested retirement of sergeant

Pico, Pérez, Barrera and Leyva; is sending a certified copy of the burial of an unnamed captain.

Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 852

Letter 2
Nov. 22, 1816. San Luis [Rey].

Ruíz to de la Guerra on receiving a notice from the brigantine, San Carlos; on his arrival at Monterey;

asking that Presidios San Diego and Santa Barbara call for their cargo since he wishes to return to

Mexico as soon as possible. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 852

Letter 3
Nov. 23, 1816. San Luis [Rey].

Ruíz to de la Guerra citing a communication from the governor of Nov. 15; he sent him an invoice

from the habilitado general, José Ignacio Omaechea, in Mexico, for material sent to the California

presidios in the warship, San Carlos; its commander, Silvestre Madrazo, was unable to stop at Santa

Barbara because of the weather; Ruíz is to inform de la Guerra; the munitions for both presidios,

Santa Barbara and San Diego, are to be called for [at Monterey]. Spanish. 2 pp.
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DLG 852

Letter 4
c. 1816.

Ruíz to de la Guerra answering three letters of the latter; sends greetings and on the arrival of a sloop

which brought nothing of importance and sailed for Panama. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 852

Letter 5
Febr. 14, 1817.

Ruíz to de la Guerra congratulating him on his new appointment and hopes he will rise to the grade of

captain; on articles that arrived at San Diego; a letter from Estrada, accompanied by a letter of the

deceased Don Benito of Nov. 14, 1810, on a money matter; asking de la Guerra to send him a copy of

a recent circular of the governor on cadets. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 852

Letter 6
March 4, 1817. San Juan Capistrano.

Ruíz to de la Guerra answering three letters of the latter; on ships along the coast; the arrival of de la

Guerra's friend, Santiago; has received no wine from Santo Tomás; thanks de la Guerra for articles

sent; on mules, and the arrival of a Don Ignacio. Partly torn. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 852

Letter 7
Viernes de Dolores, c. 1818.

Ruíz to de la Guerra on mail; the rains are over; la Casadora to leave in fifteen or twenty days; two

barrels are being sent to him. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 852

Letter 8
Sept. 27, 1819.

Ruíz to de la Guerra on the commission being given the latter; on pelts; when de la Guerra comes he

should bring along chocolate and sugar for Ruíz has none. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 852

Letter 9
Sept. 27, 1819.

Ruíz to de la Guerra stating that he has with him Capt. [Pablo de la] Portilla, two lieutenants, Don

Santiago, and two alfereces, all good men. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 852

Letter 10
March 29, 1820. San Luís Rey.

Ruíz to Le la Guerra on receiving two letters from the latter; on the latter's safe arrival in Mexico; the

report of two enemy ships at San Blas; on requests for the retirement of Barrera, Leyva and Ruíz;

mentioned are Governor [José Joaquín] Arrillaga, a soldier from Mazatlán and an Indian woman who

were killed near the mission while they were sleeping; Ruíz is at San Luis Rey during Holy Week.

Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 852

Letter 11

Nov. 9, 1820. San Luis [Rey]

Ruíz to de la Guerra on the report that the former was to be assigned to San Francisco; on scandals,

on Ruíz' accident, mentioned is Ignacio Martínez. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 852

Letter 12
Dec. 22, 1820. San Luis Rey.

Ruíz to de la Guerra on the charge of the former's having taken liquor on occasion of the visit of

Guillermo Bee and his English ship, Ballenera, but his taking none thereafter; explains the charge in

detail. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 852

Letter 13
Jan. 5, 1821. San Juan Capistrano.

Ruíz to de la Guerra on letters de la Guerra and Estudillo wrote to the governor in favor of Ruíz;

states that he was brought to San Juan Capistrano by Indians since he was not able to ride horseback;

intends to go to San Gabriel in the forthcoming week; heavy rains have occurred; the arrival of

Roberto and the sergeant, Guadalupe. Spanish. 2 pp.
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DLG 852

Letter 14
Jan. 26 and Febr. 3, 1821. San Juan Capistrano.

Two letters in one. First, Ruíz thanking de la Guerra for a favor; on Ruíz being made captain of San

Diego Presidio the possibility of war between England and Spain. Mentioned are José Argüello, Don

Gervasio and Don Salvador. The second letter: Febr. 3, on his new position as captain; his enemies;

gives thanks in a religious tone. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 852

Letter 15
Febr. 19, 1821. Rancho de Santana.

Ruíz to de la Guerra chiefly concerning Ruíz' health. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 852

Letter 16
Apr. 23, 1821. [San Gabriel].

Ruíz to de la Guerra on a project of Don Silverio; hard rains; Fray Joaquín [Nuez], O.F.M., who is

going to El Molino, sends regards; the presence of the Estudillo family; his health; a certain Domingo

has been made a cadet; the death of a Don Guadalupe. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 852

Letter 17
May 10, 1821.

Ruíz to de la Guerra on each other's health; on receiving printed items from Don Salvador. Spanish. 2

pp.

DLG 852

Letter 18
May 15, 1821.

Ruíz to de la Guerra on the former's health; in sending de la Guerra printed items. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 852

Letter 19
July 15, [1821].

Ruíz to de la Guerra on the arrival of de la Guerra's family at Santa Barbara; the improvement of his

health and de la Guerra's; comments on affairs in general; states that Fray [Francisco] Uría, O.F.M.,

consigned certain letters to the fire and is "more crazy every day." Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 852

Letter 20
Aug. 31, 1821. Santa Ines.

Ruíz to de la Guerra on mules from sergeant Ortega; mentions Padre Uría. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 852

Letter 21
Sept. 13, 1821. Santa Ines.

Ruíz to de la Guerra asking him to forward a letter to San Gabriel immediately; on de la Guerra

giving Ortega 100 pesos for which he thanks him; enjoys better health, may ask for the use of de la

Guerra's coach. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 852

Letter 22
Oct. 10, 1821. San Pedro aboard the frigate, Reyna de los Angeles.

Ruíz to de la Guerra on his arrival at San Pedro by ship; proposing a certain Domingo for habilitado,

mentions a José Antonio. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 852

Letter 23
Nov. 29, 1821.

Ruíz to de la Guerra on the latter's arrival at his presidio (Santa Barbara); on María Antonia de la

Guerra having given birth to a child; on the health of Portilla; concerning a habitation for Domingo,

probably at Yorba's house; on the death of a Cordero praising his Christian character; the nightly

rosary said at the presidio; remarks on general especially about revolution and independence. Spanish.

2 pp.

DLG 852

Letter 24
Jan. 4, 1822.

Ruíz to de la Guerra stating that in an oficio of the governor of Dec. 14, 1821, the artillery man,

Aniceto Zavalita, is to join the soldiers of Presidio Santa Barbara for six months and after that going

to Presidio San Francisco. Spanish. 1 p.
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DLG 852

Letter 25
Jan. 4, 1822.

Ruíz to de la Guerra on Aniceto Zavalita going to Santa Barbara; on certain effects; mentioned are

Mission San Gabriel and a José Antonio; Castro and Sepúlveda are being sent to work on the church

in the pueblo of Los Angeles; mentions Fray (Francisco] Uría, O.F.M., and Ortega. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 852

Letter 26
Jan. 23, 1822.

Ruíz to de la Guerra thanking him for sending him unnamed effects; the mild rains in the Santa

Barbara area; states that he has fixed up the house of Yorba for a certain Domingo. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 852

Letter 27
Febr. 6, 1822. San Diego.

Ruíz to de la Guerra sending him five game bags through Juan Germán, a soldier; de la Guerra to

select another to forward it; has received no mail for two months; lack of rain forbodes epidemics.

Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 852

Letter 28
March 3, 1822.

Ruíz to de la Guerra concerning mail; refers to the governor. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 852

Letter 29
June 10, 1822.

Ruíz to de la Guerra on cattle and rain; thanks him for the two lanterns in Santa Barbara presidio; his

help in transporting them as far as Los Angeles or San Gabriel; in case of an invasion [Pablo de la]

Portilla is to be in charge of arms; on cloth to be used in making a flag which is being sent in the

custody of Tiburcio Tapa, the colors green and white being mentioned. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 852

Letter 30
July 13, 1822.

Ruíz to de la Guerra on letters from him and Zabaleta; on de la Guerra's continuance at Presidio Santa

Barbara; the arrival of an English ship near San Juan [Capistrano]; his placement of a guard there and

the movement of people into the interior; his scrupulous carrying out of orders; discusses a particular

order of de la Guerra; treats of the [Mexican] flag; the scarcity of paper. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 852

Letter 31
Aug. 5, 1822.

Ruíz to de la Guerra stating that by order of the governor three soldiers of the company of Capt.

Portilla are going to Santa Barbara, while three from there are to come and serve at [San Diego?];

[Narcisco] Fabregat to notify Portilla concerning them; concerning cattle ranches of San Gabriel and

Los Nietos. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 852

Letter 32
Aug. 10, 1822. [San Diego].

Ruíz to de la Guerra on the canon's [Fernández] desire to learn about the state of the missions;

permission given to José Argüello to retire; the San Carlos near Monterey; is happy over the state of

the Mexican empire; three soldiers of San Diego are destined to go to Monterey; asks de la Guerra to

send through the missions a letter of the father prefect and others. Spanish.

2 pp.

DLG 852

Letter 33
July 6, 1822.

Ruíz to de la Guerra on the arrival of a frigate; no news from his brother; the Mexican captain at

Loreto, having taken the oath of loyalty to independence, placed his Indians at full liberty; has heard

that the two Californias are to be united; the desertion of three leather jacket soldiers and three of the

company of Mazatlán; asks de la Guerra to write to the governor concerning the soldiers. Spanish. 2

pp.
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DLG 852

Letter 34
Aug. 23, 1822.

Ruíz to de la Guerra on the power of the Señor Prebendado [Fernández?]; Ruíz to seek relief from his

command in about a year; sending his letter by special delivery. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 852

Letter 35
Sept. 18, 1822. San Diego.

Ruíz to de la Guerra acknowledging three letters from the latter; the arrival of Machando with his

perillanes; the expected arrival, of the canon [Fernández]; a certain Enrique and his rumored seal

expedition; arrival of a second group of perillanes; on ships; no news from the south nor from José

Argüello; nor is it known when the brigantine, San Carlos, sailed from Loreto. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 852

Letter 36
Oct. 10, 1822. San Diego.

Ruíz to de la Guerra on three letters received from the latter; mentions the regidor, Antonio Ignacio

Abila; the frigate of Enrique arrived at San Diego on Oct. l, Enrique went to Missions San Diego and

San Luis Rey on business; Ruíz looking forward to his retirement; is sending de la Guerra an oficio

from the governor. Partly damaged. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 852

Letter 37

Oct. 15, 1822.

Ruíz to de la Guerra stating that Enrique sailed on the 14th and that on the 15th a brigantine came into

sight supposedly that of Macala. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 852

Letter 38
Oct. 23, 1822. [San Diego].

Ruíz to e la Guerra concerning the arrival at San Diego of some Indians, one of whom was at San

Gabriel and is bearing a letter stating that Capt. Portilla sent some troops to Santa Isabel whither the

Indians are going and they, the Indians, say that Portilla is coming to govern "us" and set the Indians

at liberty. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 852

Letter 39
Oct. 27, 1822.

Ruíz to de la Guerra on receiving a letter and other papers from the latter which he will return in time.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 852

Letter 40
Oct. 29, 1822.

Ruíz to de la Guerra: a letter of personal reflections. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 852

Letter 41
Oct. 30, 1822. San Diego.

Ruíz to de la Guerra stating he understood what he had been told about the Herreras and Acosta; on

ships; inquires if the San Carlos has departed; the arrival of the of Capt. José Gentil at the Rancho of

San Gabriel with 150 men; the Yumas having allowed him to pass; his leaving the regular road and

coming through the sierra. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 852

Letter 42
Jan. 4, 1823. [San Diego].

Ruíz to de la Guerra on letter writing, the San Carlos at San Diego; the arrival of Russians; little rain

at Santa Barbara. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 852

Letter 43
Apr. 8, 1823.

Ruíz to de la Guerra sending a letter by special delivery in answer to letters of Fray [Antonio] Ripoll,

O.F.M. and the father president; no news from the south; on the hanging of thirty traitors in the

fortress of Vera Cruz. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 852

Letter 44
July 12, 1823.

Ruíz to de la Guerra on the illness of father prefect and of the father president. Spanish. 2 pp.
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DLG 852

Letter 45
May 4. [1825]

Ruíz to de la Guerra on robberies by the Diegueño and San Migueleño Indians; Ruíz' absence on a

military campaign; the coming of the brigantine, Morelos. Partly torn. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 852

Letter 46
Undated.

Ruíz to de la Guerra on certain soldiers leaving Monterey by order of the governor. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 852

Letter 47
Febr. 28, No year.

Ruíz to de la Guerra sending him a letter received from the father prefect on prorating and the need

for a speedy answer; the Indian, Agustín Callo, a sheep ranch robbed two women of their blankets

and other items. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 852

Letter 48
Santa Ana. No year.

Ruíz to de la Guerra on the total defeat of the Opata Indians; additional news can be obtained from

José Argüello; has sent a letter to the governor. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 852

Letter 49
Santana. No year.

Ruíz to de la Guerra on sending figs to the governor; they had been in his possession for six months

because Antonio Castro did not have the mules to transport them; the arrival of Anastasio and José

Antonio; the notice of arrival of Indians from the Colorado; is sending a communication to the

governor through de la Guerra. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 852

Letter 50
Febr. 19. No year.

Ruíz to de la Guerra on mail received from the south; one letter for de la Guerra. Damaged. Spanish.

2 pp.

DLG 852

Letter 51
June 10. No year. c. 1822?

Ruíz to de la Guerra on the governor returning the "kingdom;" the arrival of ships at Monterey; on

hearing from Mariano and Estudillo; on electors. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 852

Letter 52
Without date.

Ruíz to de la Guerra concerning a feast day he had observed. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 852

Letter 53

Without date.

Ruíz to de la Guerra sending him a letter of the comisionado of Los Angeles, asking him to take of

the matter therein stated; makes a reference to the sick. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 853

Letter 1
Nov. 4, 1816. San Diego.

Francisco María Ruíz to María Antonia (Carrillo) de la Guerra answering her letter; thanks her for

informing her husband, Jose, about the arrival of a brigantine; sends regards to several persons.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 854

Letter 1
Sept. 21, 1814. San Vicente.

José Manuel Ruíz to José de la Guerra on orders from the governor to transfer to the presidio of

Loreto. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 854

Letter 2
Aug. 16, 1816. San Vicente.

Ruíz to de la Guerra giving reasons why he could not send the requested cattle. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 854

Letter 3
May 1, 1818. San Vicente.

Ruíz to de la Guerra on Pablo Vicente Solá being governor of Upper, and José Argüello, of Lower

California and asking de la Guerra to clarify for him a matter of an account. Spanish. 2 pp.
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DLG 854

Letter 4
March 26, 1821. San Vicente.

Ruíz to De la Guerra on the departure of sergeant Francisco Gastelum from Lower California for

Mission Santa Clara with four men to collect a number of mules that the missions of Upper California

had agreed to give to the soldiers of Lower California; asks de la Guerra to provide a soldier to

conduct the men as far as Monterey, since they do not know the road; refers to de la Guerra's voyage

to Mexico; excuses himself for not writing more frequently. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 854

Letter 5
July 9, 1821. San Vicente.

Ruíz to de la Guerra thanking him for things sent through Ruíz' son-in-law, Francisco Gastellum, and

for assistance rendered to his son, Juan María; is sending de la Guerra a copy of a letter he sent to the

governor; and the latter's answer to his economic needs; his writing to the habilitado of Loreto for a

copy of a document of 1779; asks de la Guerra for fifty blankets from the jurisdiction of his missions.

Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 854

Letter 6
July 9, 1821. San Vicente.

Ruíz to de la Guerra stating that he has finished the account ordered by de la Guerra against the

soldier, Rafael Castro, who wounded the Indian, José María Domínguez, in the head; the Indian has

been restored to health since Ruíz June 23; Ruíz has sent the account to the governor. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 854

Letter 7
July 17, 1821. San Vicente.

Ruíz to de la Guerra sending him copy of a letter: the record of the military service of Ruíz, July 12,

1799 and March 10, 1806. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 854

Letter 8
Aug. 10, 1821. San Vicente.

Ruíz to de la Guerra referring to Iturbide; on documents requested from Loreto; on receiving a letter

from the governor of Lower California who went to Guaymas for reasons of health; on dividing the

province of Lower California into two entities; Jova ruling in place of the governor in the south and

Ruíz in the north; conditions in Mexico; states that Loreto is very rebellious. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 854

Letter 9
Sept. 12, 1821. San Vicente.

Ruíz to de la Guerra thanking him for the things sent through Francisco Gastellum; the lost letter sent

through Estudillo; on a letter sent to the governor and the latter's reply; on Jova placed in command at

Loreto while the governor went to Guaymas; Loreto's population being about 2,000; their rebellious

attitude; news on Iturbide very confused; political conditions on coastal and northwest Mexico.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 854

Letter 10
Sept. 29, 1821. San Vicente.

Ruíz to de la Guerra on the arrest of the deserter, Rosalino Olivera; his being taken to San Diego by a

Juan María; on Ruíz' letters going astray; on political conditions in Mexico; mentions Iturbide.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 854

Letter 11
Aug. 2, 1823. Loreto.

Ruíz to de la Guerra on the confused situation in Mexico; Iturbide's flight to Italy; and Tamariz' going

to "America;" the sacking of the cathedral in Mexico City; the archbishop's going to Spain; [Pablo

Vicente] Solá obtained his pay in Guadalajara; Argüello unable to collect his; Quintanar's presence in

Guadajara; all the provinces have proclaimed for a republic; each state to have a governor; no deputy

has been chosen for Lower California; Jova is at his ranch in the Provincias Internas; a tailor

proclaimed for emperor; received the above news from merchants of San Blas and from a Russian

whom the canon [Fernández?) had with him. Spanish. 3 pp.
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DLG 855

Letter 1
Oct. 30, 1817. Mexico.

Juan Conde de Ruíz de Apodaca, Conde de Venadito, viceroy, to José de la Guerra appointing him ad

interim captain of Presidio Santa Barbara. Partly printed. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 856

Letter 1
Apr. 15, 1820. Mexico.

Apodaca to de la Guerra giving him a passport for him and his son, José Antonio, together with a

servant to return to Santa Barbara. Originally enclosed in a letter of the viceroy to de la Guerra dated

Mexico, Apr. 15, 1820. Partly printed. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 857

Letter 1
Jan. 12, 1820. Mexico.

Apodaca to de la Guerra learning of the latter's arrival at San Blas through a letter of Nov. 20, 1819,

as a representative from California to obtain supplies for the presidios, but since the office which he

was sent to fulfill was not necessary he was told that he could return to California on the San Carlos.

De la Guerra was allowed 30,000 pesos for the needs of the presidios. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 857

Letter 2
March 13, 1820. Mexico.

Apodaca to de la Guerra on supplies for the California presidios; cancelling the grant of money given

in January for their needs; is told to arrange matters with Gervasio Argüello, habilitado general.

Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 857

Letter 3
March 13, 1820. Mexico.

Apodaca to de la Guerra: a copy of a letter sent to the minister of the treasury to pay the expenses of

de la Guerra's return to California. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 857

Letter 4
March 13, 1820. Mexico.

Apodaca to de la Guerra concerning the salary of Governor Solá. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 857

Letter 5
Apr. 15, 1820. Mexico.

Apodaca to de la Guerra in answer to the latter's request for a passport to return to California and for

accounts and papers pertaining to the California presidios in the hands of Col. José Ignacio

Ormaechea; the passport is being given; the other documents to be obtained from the ministry of the

general treasury to which Ormaechea sent them; Ormaechea becoming commander of a regiment of

dragoons in the Sierra Gorda. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 858

Letter 1

Dec. 13, 1851. San Diego.

José Ruíz Escajadillo to Antonio María de la Guerra on a money matter; mentions Antonio Sánchez;

states that an American by the name of Hill and a Californian by the name of [Banos?] are being

taken to justice. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 859

Letter 1
March 20, 1856.

Caius Tacitus Ryland to Pablo de la Guerra on the senate passing a bill to protect settlers; asking him

what the provisions of the bill are and whether Pablo's amendment exempting ranches on which taxes

have been paid since 1851, prevailed; asks for a copy of the bill and discusses certain possible results.

English. 2 pp.

DLG 860

Letter 1
Nov. 30, 1808. Tepic.

Ramón Saavedra to José de la Guerra acknowledging two letters; on ship movements; news from

Spain being sent to the California missionaries; greetings to the Carrillo family; on the sale of pelts by

Benito Díaz Fernández de la Vega; Padre Mercenario chaplain on El Activo, which sailed for Manila

under Gonzalo Ulloa. 2 pp.
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DLG 860

Letter 2
Jan. 10, 1809. Tepic.

Saavedra to de la Guerra on changes in government personnel; lack of news from Spain; the French

invasion. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 861

Letter 1
Apr. 30, 1814. San Francisco.

Fray Juan Sainz de Lucio, O.F.M., to José de la Guerra on the Indian, Simón, in the service of de la

Guerra. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 861

Letter 2
July 3, 1815. San Francisco.

Sainz de Lucio to de la Guerra on wages and benefits to be given to the Indian, Simón. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 862

Letter 1
Jan. 20, 1864. San Bernardino.

Q. S. Sparks and others to Pablo de la Guerra recommending Horace C. Rolfe, a practicing attorney,

as candidate for District Court Commissioner for San Bernardino County. English. 1 p.

DLG 863

Letter 1
Without documents.

DLG 863a

Letter 1
Without documents.

DLG 864

Letter 1
Oct. 5, 1819. San Francisco Presidio.

Agreement to contribute 25.00 pesos a month towards paying the salary of José de la Guerra as

special commissioner to Mexico. Signed by Luís Antonio Argüello, Ignacio Martínez, José Sánchez

and José Berreyesa. Approved and signed by Pablo Vicente Solá. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 865

Letter 1
Without documents.

DLG 866

Letter 1
March 10, 1856. San Luis Obispo

Resolutions of the Board of Supervisors of San Luis Obispo County and certified on March 11, by

D.F. Newsom, March 11, asking that the county's representatives in Sacramento, both in the

Assembly and Senate, obtain the passage of an act to extinguish the debt of the county, and to have

the legislature pass an act fixing the salaries of certain county officials. English. 2 pp.

DLG 867

Letter 1
March 2, 1856. San Luis Obispo.

Twenty-two petitioners asking Pablo de la Guerra for the repeal of a law concerning "lawful fences."

English. 2 pp.

DLG 868

Letter 1
1831-1836. Tepic.

Fifteen pieces: drafts, copies and originals, and letters re the collection of a debt of 9,390 pesos from

Urbano Sánchez of Mazatlán, owner of the schooner, Santa Apolonia. References to Mission San

Luis Obispo. 95 pp.

DLG 869

Letter 1
Apr. 24, 1849. San Isidro.

Fray de Jesús Francisco Sánchez, O.F.M. to José de la Guerra consoling him on the death of Cesareo

Lataillade; asking for the payment of nine pesos due for the education of his children at a school and

that five gallons of brandy, a tithe from Jalama, be sold at retail price. Spanish. 2 pp.
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DLG 869

Letter 2
Febr. 25, 1854. San Francisco.

Sánchez to de la Guerra concerning the apostolic college to be founded at Santa Barbara asking him

to explain its utility to the people; asking for an answer from José Antonio Aguirre; the illness of

Archbishop Alemany; the expected appearance of the father prefect [J. J. Jimeno, O.F.M.] before the

[land] commission. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 869

Letter 3
March 24, 1854. San Francisco.

Sánchez to de la Guerra on the decision of the Franciscans not to acquire the Aguirre home for their

college but instead to build frame house and chapel on the Lataillade lot facing the presidio chapel;

asks him to secure it from the city if possible; Archbishop Alemany to finish his cathedral in the

course of the year; is to help the Sisters of Charity; the seminary and the Dominicans who left

Monterey for Benecia; Alemany's offer of San Juan Bautista and San Jose to the Franciscans and their

election to remain in Santa Barbara; four future novices to come from Spain. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 869

Letter 4
March 29, 1854. San Francisco,

Sánchez to de la Guerra on a reply from [José Antonio] Aguirre on his unwillingness to sell his home;

asks again that the land of Lataillade be obtained for the Franciscans else the novitiate could not

begin; four Spaniards and perhaps some Irishmen to enter the novitiate; the father prefect [J.J.

Jimeno, O.F.M.] has not yet appeared before the land commission; the agreement of the Franciscans

and Archbishop Alemany to establish their college in the city of Santa Barbara. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 869

Letter 5
Good Friday, 1854. Dolores Mission.

Sánchez to de la Guerra stating that Archbishop Alemany cannot give perpetual cession of the church

and mission to the Franciscans since he is the mere administrator of the diocese of Monterey, and

that, on orders from Rome, no cession be given without the consent of the Propagation of the Faith,

which also held for the Dominicans; on the need of one Franciscan of the future college to remain at

the mission and have a right to one half of the garden; the inappropriateness of the mission to serve as

an apostolic college; asks the price requested for the Aguirre home; the work of the land commission

about to be finished; the future novices anxious to receive the Franciscan habit. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 869

Letter 6
June 3, 1856. Santa Barbara.

Sánchez to de la Guerra concerning tithes. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 869

Letter 7
Nov. 19, 1856. Santa Barbara.

Sánchez to de la Guerra concerning oil for the sanctuary lamp; asking for the date of the anniversary

of Anita [de la Guerra's] death. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 869

Letter 8
Dec. 20, 1856. Santa Barbara.

Sánchez to de la Guerra on oil for the sanctuary lamp. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 869

Letter 9
Without date.

Sánchez to de la Guerra on going to the Santa Clara River area to collect tithes in the form of horses

and sheep. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 870

Letter 1
Aug. 11, 1858. Santa Barbara.

Fray Francisco de Jesús Sánchez, O.F.M., to Richard Somerset Den: a receipt of fifty pesos given to

the college by Magdalena Lugo. Spanish. 1 p.
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DLG 871

Letter 1
c. 1858. [Santa Barbara].

Sánchez to Pablo de la Guerra asking for oil for the sanctuary lamp; on the need of the the padres to

remain at the college to recite the Divine Office. Spanish. 1 pp.

DLG 871

Letter 2
Oct. 2, 1856. Santa Barbara.

Sánchez to de la Guerra asking for oil for the sanctuary lamp. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 872

Letter 1
c. 1858. [Santa Barbara].

Sánchez to Angustias de la Guerra Jimeno Ord sending her a copy of the prayer, the Memorare,

recommending it to her. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 873

Letter 1
Sept. 12, 1861. [Santa Barbara].

Sánchez to Antonio María de la Guerra asking for oil for the sanctuary lamp. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 874

Letter 1
Aug. 10, 1815. San Diego.

Fray José Bernardo Sánchez, O.F.M., to José de la Guerra on the latter's good health; on a clock; his

inability to send Indians to the channel area; on prickly pears, shoes. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 874

Letter 2
Sept. 19, 1815,

Sánchez to de la Guerra on family items. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 874

Letter 3
Dec. 19, 1815.

Sánchez to de la Guerra on sending two bottles of oil; sends greetings to Juan de Cucheles; is not

sending a barrel of wine. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 874

Letter 4
Aug. 7, 1816. [San Diego].

Sánchez to de la Guerra on receiving tobacco through Corporal Osuna; asks for rice; sends shoes; on

accounts; Sánchez is exhausted. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 874

Letter 5
Sept. 15, 1816. [San Diego].

Sánchez to de la Guerra on arrival of invoices on the San Carlos, on obtaining rice of which he was so

long deprived; mentions Negrete and Teodoro Arrellanes; sends message to Silvestre Madrazo.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 874

Letter 6

Dec. 14 1816. [San Diego].

Sánchez to de la Guerra on sending him a barrel of white wine through Carlos [Carrillo]; on tallow;

asks for rice and tobacco; on the brigantine, San Carlos. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 874

Letter 7
Febr. 19, 1817. [San Diego].

Sánchez to de la Guerra concerning an account; mentions a Don Ignacio; asks for rice and tobacco;

the condition of Fray Antonio [O.P.] of San Vicente Mission. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 874

Letter 8
July 1. 1818.

Sánchez to de la Guerra: a short note of complaint; on sending papers to a Don Francisco. Torn.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 874

Letter 9
Sept. 25, 1818.

Sánchez to de la Guerra concerning an unnamed book; the price of wine; asking liberty on behalf of

an unnamed Indian. Spanish. 2 pp.
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DLG 874

Letter 10
Oct. 9, 1818.

Sánchez to De la-Guerra concerning certain "explorers" who are not to be feared too much but rather

those who come after are to be feared. However, de la Guerra is to fear no one. The note probably

refers to the reported Bouchard invasion. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 874

Letter 11
Febr. 23, 1819. [San Diego].

Sánchez to de la Guerra concerning the latter's request to send to Santa Barbara the Indians, Francisco

Tamariz and Hermenegildo. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 874

Letter 12
May 20, 1819.

Sánchez to de la Guerra on the prompt return of two Indians; a money matter; on certain Indians to

arrive from Santa Barbara. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 874

Letter 13
Dec. 16, 1820.

Sánchez to de la Guerra on Juan de la Rosa; on two Mazatecos to be sent to Presidio Santa Barbara.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 874

Letter 14
Febr. 13, 1822.

Sánchez to de la Guerra referring to another Sánchez whose identity is not disclosed. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 874

Letter 15
Nov. 25, 1821. Purisima.

Sánchez to de la Guerra on receiving his letter of the 23rd. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 874

Letter 16
Febr. 23, 1822.

Sánchez to de la Guerra on Lima, Peru; and a letter from Fray Luís Antonio Martínez, O.F.M.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 874

Letter 17
Aug. 8, 1829.

Sánchez to de la Guerra rejoicing over the latter's return to California in good health and stating that

he had asked for his passport. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 875

Letter 1
Nov. 4, 1823. San Gabriel.

Order to Juan de Martiarena to pay Juan Malarín 1212 pesos, signed by José Bernardo Sánchez.

Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 876

Letter 1
Nov. 5, 1859. Santa. Barbara.

Pascuala Sánchez to Pablo de la Guerra asking for a loan of fifteen pesos for a sick person. Spanish. 1

p.

DLG 877

Letter 1
Sept. 20, 1868. San Buenaventura.

Tadeo Sánchez to Pablo de la Guerra asking him to give a talk in Spanish at a meeting of the

Democratic Club of San Buenaventura on Sept. 28. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 878

Letter 1
Jan. 10, 1821. Los Angeles.

Vicente Sánchez and others to the Señor Comisionado: a petition for the communal use of pasture

land at the Rancho Rincon (or Rancho de los Quintos) belonging to Felipe Talamantes and Agustín

Machado. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 879

Letter 1
Nov. 2, 1859. Point San Quentin, Calif.

G. P. Sanders to Pablo de la Guerra announcing his candidacy as assistant sergeant-at-arms of the

Senate; states he is a friend of R. Pacheco, Andrés Pico and Jasper O'Farrell. English. 1 p.
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DLG 880

Letter 1
[Sept. 14, 1822]. Santa Barbara.

Inventory of effects found in the American schooner, Eagle (Aguila), later the Santa Apolonia, at the

time she was seized at Santa Barbara, Sept. 14, 1822. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 880

Letter 2
Sept. 17-128, 1822. Santa Barbara.

Deposition of Manuel García, owner of the Mexican brig, San Francisco de Paula; its captain, Rafael

Larragoyti; the pilot, Manuel Bates and others, re the capture of their brig by the American schooner,

the Eagle, at Santa Barbara. Spanish. 17 pp.

DLG 880

Letter 3
Apr. 15, 1823. San Luis Obispo.

Deed of sale by Fray Antonio Ripoll, O.F.M., to Fray Luís Antonio Martínez, O.F.M., of San Luis

Obispo, for half an interest in the schooner, Santa Apolonia. Following the above is a receipt from

Ripoll for 2,500 pesos from Martínez in payment of the half interest, dated Santa Barbara, May 30,

1823. 1 p.

DLG 880

Letter 4
Apr. 25, 1823. Santa Barbara.

Statement of Antonio Arana on receipt of goods shipped at Mission San Luis Obispo to José de la

Guerra on the Santa Apolonia. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 880

Letter 5
1823

Account book of the schooner, Santa Apolonia. 8 pp. Bill for duties paid. Both in Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 880

Letter 6
[c. 1823].

Account of supplies for the Santa Apolonia in hand of Fray Luís Antonio Martínez. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 880

Letter 7
[c. 1823].

Account of items supplied by Mission Santa Bárbara for the first voyage of the Santa Apolonia by

Fray Antonio Ripoll, O.F.M. Marginal remarks by Fray Luís Antonio Martínez. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 880

Letter 8
1823-1829.

Expediente of legal documents: deeds of sale, contracts, etc., pertaining to the schooner, Santa

Apolonia, variously called Aguila, Santa Magdalena and Dorotea, and its final transfer to José de la

Guerra at the port of San Blas about May 1, 1829. 29 pp.

DLG 880

Letter 9
Sept. 9, 1825. Santa Barbara.

Account of Santa Barbara Mission with Mission San Luis Obispo re pending accounts of the

schooner, Santa Apolonia, by Fray Antonio Ripoll, and a note by José de la Guerra. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 880

Letter 10
July 8, 1826 - May 28, 1827. Santa Barbara.

Instrument dealing with the circumstances under which the schooner, Aguila (later the Santa

Apolonia), was purchased by Fray Antonio Ripoll, O.F.M., of Santa Barbara and which was later sold

to Manuel Bates representing Urbano Sánchez of Mazatlán. Signed by José de la Guerra and

witnesses Carlos Antonio Carrillo, Ramón Valdes, Manuel González, José Joaquín Maitorena and

Antonio Solorzano. Bound with this is a certificate signed by José Francisco de León, commandant of

the port of Mazatlán, recognizing Sánchez as owner of the Santa Apolonia called the Santa

Magdalena, Mazatlán, May 28, 1827. 15 and 4 pp.

DLG 880

Letter 11
May 16, 1829. San Blas.

Bill for repairs on the Santa Apolonia signed by Yrinco Peña. 1 p.
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DLG 881

Letter 1
March 15, 1850. Santa Barbara.

The alcalde to the delegates of Santa Barbara to the legislature of the state requesting their opinion

concerning the protest of Los Angeles citizens against the admission of California as a state of the

Union, but favoring territorial status for Southern California. A contemporary copy signed by Joaquín

Carrillo and Antonio María de la Guerra. Also has English translation. 3 pp.

DLG 882

Letter 1
c. July, 1849. Santa Barbara.

Resolutions passed by a junta of Santa Barbara citizens following Governor Riley's proclamation of

June 3, 1849, protesting the boundaries of the Santa Barbara district which affects its citizens and the

number of representatives to the forthcoming Constitutional Convention. Incomplete. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 883

Letter 1
March 14, 1856. Santa Barbara.

Agreement of the city council of Santa Barbara with the College of Our Lady of Sorrows concerning

a church being built on State Street. In hand of Pablo de a Guerra. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 884

Letter 1
Sept. 19-23, 1837. Santa Barbara.

Expediente of investigations conducted to determine the advisability of selling a house belonging to

the minors, Francisco Juan, María Antonia and Rita Leyva. Spanish. 10 and 3 pp.

DLG 885

Letter 1
1815-1822.

Miscellaneous legal documents dealing with military, civil and criminal cases chiefly in Los Angeles

and Santa Barbara. Six folders.

Nov. 20, 1815-March 5, 1816. Los Angeles.

Proceedings against Guillermo Soto accused of quarreling with and inflicting a knife wound on

Eugenio Valdes; also against José María Soto, his son, as an accessory to the case. Spanish. 18 pp.

DLG 885

Letter 2
Apr. 21-May 21, 1817. Los Angeles.

Summary of legal proceedings against Tiburcio Soto, accused of attempted rape on the person of a

twelve year old girl, Juliana, daughter of Encarnación Urquides. Spanish. 12 pp.

DLG 885

Letter 3
May 28, 1817. Los Angeles.

José María Aguilar to José de la Guerra: a complaint against Vicente Sánchez. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 885

Letter 4
Apr. 25-June 7, 1821. Mission San Fernando.

Summary of proceedings against José, a neophyte of Mission San Fernando, accused of wounding the

Indian, Meliton, of the same mission. Spanish. 32 pp.

DLG 885

Letter 5
Febr. 8-June 6, 1822. San Buenaventura.

Investigation into the murder of José Cupertino, a neophyte of Mission San Buenaventura, conducted

by sergeant Carlos Antonio Carrillo acting as prosecuting judge, and Antonio Solorzano as clerk.

Spanish. 38 pp.

DLG 885

Letter 6
June 25, 1822. Santa Barbara.

Interrogation of witnesses to determine the boundary line between the presidio and mission of Santa

Barbara at the time the latter was founded. Spanish. 10 pp.

DLG 886

Letter 1
April 23-25, 1823. Santa Barbara. Miscellaneous documents of a legal nature dealing with military,

civil and criminal cases within the jurisdiction of Presidio Santa Barbara Five DLGs

Case against Lieutenant Antonio Valle of the Monterey Company for breach of discipline. Three

pieces. Incomplete. Spanish. 7 pp.
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DLG 886

Letter 2
Aug. 12, 1823. Los Angeles.

Summary of proceedings against Antonio María Nieto for desertion from the Los Angeles guard.

Incomplete. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 886

Letter 3
Nov. 14-Dec. 20, 1823. Santa Barbara.

Summary of proceedings against José Ignacio Olivas for robbing the children of the artillery man,

Matías Guerrero, of Mission Santa Ines, of seven pesos. Spanish. 6 pp.

DLG 886

Letter 4
May 3-31, 1824. Los Angeles and Presidio Santa Barbara.

Petition of Juan José Nieto and Guillermo Cota and subsequent investigation concerning cattle from

the Santa Gertrudis Rancho claimed by Mission San Juan Capistrano and neighboring land owners.

Spanish. 13 pp.

DLG 886

Letter 5
June 1-3, 1824. Santa Barbara.

Depositions of several Indians from Missions La Purisima, San Fernando, San Gabriel and Santa

Barbara concerning the murderers of the Indians, Feliz and Daniel. Spanish. 9 pp.

DLG 887

Letter 1
Jan. 24-28, 1825. Santa Barbara. 1825-1833 Miscellaneous legal documents dealing with military,

civil and criminal cases in the jurisdiction of Presidio Santa Barbara Seven DLGs

Summary of proceedings against José Ignacio Lugo of the Santa Barbara Company accused of selling

a stolen cow to Jayme, a neophyte of the mission. Spanish. 14 pp.

DLG 887

Letter 2
May 14, 1825. Los Angeles.

Investigations re the case of Leandro Duarte, retired soldier, accused of hitting José Romero on the

head with a stone during a fight. In hand of Guillermo Cota. Spanish. 6 pp.

DLG 887

Letter 3
May 21-30, 1825. Los Angeles.

Investigations concerning the complaint of Juan Moreno against Seferino Reyes for running a horse

belonging to him. In the hand of José María Avila. 10 pp.

DLG 887

Letter 4
June 9-10, 1825. Los Angeles.

Investigation re the property of Dolores Sepúlveda, deceased, at the time of his marriage to María

Ignacia Avila. Conducted by Anastasio Carrillo. Spanish. 5 pp.

DLG 887

Letter 5
July 20, 1826. Santa Ines.

Judicial proceedings concerning Tomás, a neophyte and captain of the mission, accused of witchcraft.

The investigation was conducted by Corporal Antonio Solorzano of the Santa Barbara Company.

Spanish. 12 pp.

DLG 887

Letter 6
Jan. 30-Febr. 10, 1827. Los Angeles.

Summary of proceedings against the soldiers, Carlos Ruíz, Joaquín Castro and Antonio Reyes,

accused of disorderly conduct in the pueblo of Los Angeles. Part of last page is missing. Spanish. 12

pp.

DLG 887

Letter 7
July 23, 1832-March 6, 1833. Santa Barbara.

Summary of legal proceedings against Rafael García of the presidial company of Santa Barbara for

desertion from the San Buenaventura guard, June 28, 1832, and from the Santa Barbara Company on

Oct. 19, 1832. Two pieces. Spanish. 14 and 11 pp.

DLG 888

Letter 1
1841-1842. Santa Barbara.

Accounts rendered by Ignacio del Valle and Roberto Pardo of Presidio Santa Barbara. Spanish. 7 pp.
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DLG 889

Letter 1
1840 and 1842. Santa Barbara.

Certificates of enlistments of Jacob Sánchez, Francisco Leyva, Casimiro Laura and Victor de la Cruz.

Six pieces. 6 pp.

DLG 890

Letter 1
[Aug. c. 1825].

List of persons in the Santa Barbara area who are to comply with their Easter duty of confession and

Communion. 2 pp.

DLG 891

Letter 1
March 9, 1832. Santa Barbara.

List of persons from the presidial company who are to comply with their master duty. Signed by

Anastasio Carrillo. 4 pp.

DLG 892

Letter 1
Jan. 10, 1824. Santa Barbara.

List of soldiers from the Mazatlán company who either wish to leave with Capt. Pablo de la Portilla

or stay in California. Signed by Narciso Fabregat. 1 p.

DLG 893

Letter 1
Sept. 24, 1819. Santa Barbara.

Agreement to contribute twenty-five pesos a month towards paying the salary of José de la Guerra as

a special commissioner to Mexico. Signed by Gabriel Moraga, José Joaquín Maitorena, Carlos

Antonio Carrillo and Anastasio Carrillo. Approved and signed by Pablo Vicente Solá, Sept. 28, 1819.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 894

Letter 1
Oct. 22, 1857. Santa Barbara.

An order to make an inventory of all papers, books, and other archives now in the keeping of G. D.

Fisher, county clerk, by the board of supervisors, to Charles E. Huse, Pablo de la Guerra and Russell

Heath. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 895

Letter 1
June 6, 1860. Santa Barbara.

Appointments as members of a committee to manage the construction of a county road. Written and

signed by Charles E. Coon, clerk. By the county supervisors to Pablo de la Guerra and others.

English. 1 p.

DLG 896

Letter 1
Febr. 22, 1860. Santa Barbara.

Board of supervisors to Pablo de la Guerra: a resolution of the board on the desirability of legislation

defining the north and northeastern boundaries of the county and for securing state taxes for road

building in the county. Written and signed by Charles E. Coon, clerk. English.

1 p.

DLG 896

Letter 2
March 8, 1860. Santa Barbara.

Board of supervisors to de la Guerra: instructions re desired changes in the law of Apr. 11, 1859,

referring to Santa Barbara County. Written and signed by Charles E. Coon, clerk. English. 1 p.

DLG 896

Letter 3
Febr. 7, 1861. Santa Barbara.

Board of supervisors to de la Guerra requesting his attention to various matters pertaining to the

county. Signed by Antonio de la Guerra and attested by Charles E. Coon. English. 2 pp.

DLG 896

Letter 4
May 29, 1861. Santa Barbara.

Board of supervisors to de la Guerra on his appointment as road commissioner to negotiate. with Los

Angeles County for a stage road. Signed by Antonio de la Guerra, attested by Charles E. Coon.

English. 1 p.
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DLG 896

Letter 5
Nov. 5. Santa Barbara.

Board of supervisors to de la Guerra: a certificate of appointment as superintendent of common

schools, written and signed by Francis A. Thompson, county clerk. On verso: de la Guerra's signed

oath, Santa Barbara, Nov. 15, 1861, witnessed by Charles E. Coon, notary public. English. 2 pp.

DLG 896

Letter 6
Sept. 11, 1862. Santa Barbara.

Board of supervisors to de la Guerra: certificate of appointment as superintendent of common

schools, written and signed by Francis A. Thompson. English. 1 p.

DLG 896

Letter 7
Nov. 2, 1863. Santa Barbara.

Board of supervisors to de la Guerra: certificate of election returns for district judge of Santa Barbara

County. Written and signed by Francis A. Thompson. English. 1 p.

DLG 897

Letter 1
Febr. 25, 1854. Santa Barbara.

Office holders of the Santa Barbara County to Pablo de la Guerra concerning the fee bills of officers

of the lower counties. English. 1 p.

DLG 898

Letter 1
Without documents.

DLG 899

Letter 1
Oct. 15, 1812. Tepic.

Antonio de Santa María to José de la Guerra on financial matters; good news from Spain; Barcelona,

Sevilla and Valencia have been retaken by the Spaniards; state of revolution in Mexico. Mentioned

are José de Estrada and Francisco Vicente de Portecarro. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 899

Letter 2
Oct. 27, 1813. Tepic.

Santa María to de la Guerra on tallow. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 899

Letter 3
June 1, 1815. Tepic.

Santa María to de la Guerra chiding him for not writing and on the payment of a draft. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 900

Letter 1
July 8, 1816. San Diego.

Francisco de Santa María to José de la Guerra concerning the loan of two mules to make a journey.

Faded. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 901

Letter 1
Aug. 19, 1816. Tepic.

María Antonia (Pintado) de Santa María to José de la Guerra on her difficulty in collecting a draft in

favor of her deceased husband. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 901

Letter 2
May 28, 1819. Tepic.

Santa María to de la Guerra on her having collected the draft due to her husband. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 902

Letter 1
July 17, 1815. San Fernando.

Fray Vicente Francisco de Sarría, O.F.M., to José de la Guerra on his inability to spare Fray Luís Gil

y Taboada, O.F.M., to instruct his son. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 902

Letter 2
Aug. 16, 1816. San Diego.

Sarría to de la Guerra on the appointment of Fray Francisco Suñer, O.F.M., to serve at Santa Barbara

Mission and Presidio; on mails. Spanish. 2 pp.
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DLG 902

Letter 3
Aug. 21, 1816. San Luis Rey.

Sarría to de la Guerra concerning a request for Fray Antonio Ripoll, O.F.M., to go to the Channel

Islands with some soldiers to cut wood; the Indians not to be molested by the military. Mentioned are

Fray Francisco Suñer, O.F.M., and Fray Román Ulibarri, O.F.M. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 902

Letter 4
July 9, 1818. San Gabriel.

Sarría to de la Guerra on an Indian affair at San Buenaventura, the nature of which is not disclosed;

mentions Fray José Señán, O.F.M., in relation to it, the matter having been previously discussed with

de la Guerra. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 902

Letter 5
July 29, 1819. San Carlos.

Sarría to de la Guerra explaining his delay in answering his letter; Fray Juan Amorós, O.F.M., leaving

Carmel and his replacement by Fray Ramón Abella, O.F.M., and answering certain theological and

moral questions placed by de la Guerra. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 902

Letter 6
Oct. 29, 1820. San Carlos.

Sarría to de la Guerra on prohibited books. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 902

Letter 7
Aug. 25, 1821. San Juan Bautista.

Sarría to de la Guerra answering the latter's questions on moral matters. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 903

Letter 1
Febr. 22, 1854. San Jose.

Joseph H. Scull to Pablo de la Guerra offering himself as translator of California laws, owing to the

death of Edward Hartnell. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 904

Letter 1
Sept. 6, 1813. San Buenaventura.

Fray José Señán, O.F.M., to José de la Guerra receiving wax through Fray Pedro Múñoz, O.F.M.;

opines that de la Guerra has been appointed habilitado of the presidio; sends greetings to Francisco

María. Ruíz stating that he had received the documents Ruíz sent. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 904

Letter 2
Oct. 23, 1815. San Buenaventura.

Señán to de la Guerra on the arrival of seventy-five San Fernando neophytes who had been on the

"famous expedition of cayucos;" on the Indians of San Buenaventura who will so to sea with

twenty-four "sailors,'' all from the islands and who have been recent converts, because of the

governor's orders to de la Guerra; Señán is pleased to offer this service in favor of the king; on the

pay to be given to the Indians. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 904

Letter 3
Nov. 10, 1815. San Buenaventura.

Señán to de la Guerra concerning the manufacture of lances; asks for a model from the presidio; the

mission has little iron and steel; the chapel of San Miguel is being repaired; the price of iron.

Mentioned are Miguel Pico, Nicolás Núñez and Nicolás Noé. Spanish. 6 pp.

DLG 904

Letter 4
March 14, 1816. San Buenaventura.

Señán to de la Guerra on his inability to be in Santa Barbara for de la Guerra's feast day (St. Joseph,

March 19) because of illness; asks de la Guerra to spend Holy Week at San Buenaventura; asks him

to send a barrel of wine. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 904

Letter 5
June 15, 1816. San Buenaventura.

Señán to de la Guerra concerning Indians from the island of Guima desiring to be converts at Mission

San Buenaventura. Spanish. 2 pp.
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DLG 904

Letter 6
June 19, 1816. San Buenaventura.

Señán to de la Guerra on four "Russian Indians" and the advisability of their going to Santa Barbara;

on the Indian, Sebastián, the only one missing from the mission. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 904

Letter 7
June 20, 1816. San Buenaventura.

Señán to de la Guerra on four "Russian Indians;" four of the same from San Pedro were baptized at

San Gabriel Mission and work there; states that the California missions are not ex-Jesuit missions but

of Fernandino origin, as were the earliest in the New World. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 904

Letter 8
July 1, 1816. San Buenaventura.

Señán to de la Guerra on the Kodiaks who had been on "the island;" their handing over a fishing boat;

on others in Santa Barbara; Señán's pain in the right leg. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 904

Letter 9
July 4, 1816. San Buenaventura.

Señán to de la Guerra inviting the latter and family to San Buenaventura for the celebration of the

feast of St. Bonaventure (July 14). Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 904

Letter 10
Aug. 8, 1816. San Buenaventura.

Señán to de la Guerra sending him two muleteers to fetch rice and sending him pears. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 904

Letter 11
Sept. 26, 1816. San Buenaventura.

Señán to de la Guerra on the former leaving his sick bed; the chapel of San Miguel to be blessed on

the feast of St. Michael (Sept. 29th); invites de la Guerra and his family to be present. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 904

Letter 12
Oct. 17, 1816. San Buenaventura.

Señán to de la Guerra on the sailing of the San Carlos for Acapulco then to Upper California; the

governor's request for three or four dozen hats, but is able to supply only two dozen; Señán is sending

to de la Guerra for the Feast of All Saints (Nov. 1), peaches and pears. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 904

Letter 13
Oct. 25, 1816. San Buenaventura.

Señán to de la Guerra on sending medicine; speaks of the termination of a "great fire." Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 904

Letter 14
Nov. 19, 1816. San Buenaventura.

Señán to de la Guerra concerning a horse and a draft.

DLG 904

Letter 15
Dec. 10, 1816. San Buenaventura.

Señán to de la Guerra on celebrating the feast of Our Lady of Guadalupe (patroness of the presidio);

is sending eight containers of lard; mentions a certain Silvestre. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 904

Letter 16
Dec. 30, 1816. San Buenaventura.

Séñan to de la Guerra returning to him the three containers in which rice had been sent; announces the

presence of the animal drove; sends belated Christmas greetings and New Year wishes; sends him

sweet potatoes, dried fruit, and three comical books concerning the "holy family of Napoleon," which

he is to pass on to the missionaries. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 904

Letter 17
Apr. 23, 1818. San Buenaventura.

Señán to de la Guerra on a certain Sebastián. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 904

Letter 18
Apr. 29, 1818. San Buenaventura.

Señán to de la Guerra on soap; Sebastián and his flight to Santa Barbara; blue cloth received from de

la Guerra, lack of maize; the Rogation Procession to the chapel of San Miguel; the expected visit of

Fray Antonio Rodríguez, O.F.M. Spanish. 2 pp.
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DLG 904

Letter 19
July 25, 1818. San Buenaventura.

Señán to de la Guerra thanking him for sending dates and raisins; on Governor Solá's reception of a

Russian expedition at San Francisco, which was reported from St. Petersburg; Señán's surprise that

Upper California was referred to as New Albion by the English. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 904

Letter 20
Sept. 11, 1818. San Buenaventura.

Señán to de la Guerra sending thirty blankets; 101 yards of sparse cloth; a financial matter and on

certain undesirable persons leaving the mission for the peninsula of Lower California. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 904

Letter 21
Sept. 13, 1818. San Buenaventura.

Señán to de la Guerra sending him 112 containers with soap; to send more later; sending a certain

Rufino with cowboys; fat cattle at Secpe (Sespi). Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 904

Letter 22
Sept. 21, 1818. San Buenaventura.

Señán to de la Guerra on an invoice of Cavenecia and rise in prices. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 904

Letter 23
Oct. 12, 1818. San Buenaventura.

Señán to Fray Antonio Ripoll, O.F.M. concerning Yllas and Cavenecia; on ten cowboys going to

Santa Barbara on the 13th, and twenty musketeers and bowmen on the 14th. Ripoll's answer. Spanish.

2 pp.

DLG 904

Letter 24
Oct. 12, 1818. San Buenaventura.

Señán to de la Guerra sending fourteen containers of lard, and two with pears, apples and peaches.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 904

Letter 25
Oct. 13, 1818. San Buenaventura.

Señán to de la Guerra sending ten cowboys under the leadership of Fermín, who are to stand

inspection every third day; mentions Fray Antonio Ripoll, O.F.M., as "chief of brigade," two

detached troops are being sent to Simi; is worried about the transportation of church vessels and

vestments into the interior. Reference is to the threatened Bouchard invasion. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 904

Letter 26
Oct. 2, 1818. San Buenaventura.

Señán to de la Guerra sending him eight containers of lard; ill his visit to San Miguel chapel; the hot

weather; the coming feast of St. Francis. Spanish. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 904

Letter 27

Oct. 21, 1818. San Buenaventura.

Señán to de la Guerra on the Indian soldiers housed at Montecito, who are volunteers and who are

under a Spanish soldier; they are to be well treated; concerning their wives; acknowledges the receipt

of a volume on the Holy Land, and two bottles of wine Madeira or Jerez); on the king of Spain

receiving from Russia five ships of the line and three frigates fully armed; on a letter from Yllas.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 904

Letter 28
March 15, 1819. San Buenaventura.

Señán to de la Guerra on the latter's return to Santa Barbara; sends him feast day greetings (March

19); intends to send accounts; is grateful over the arrival of the horsemen and bowmen; would send

him a barrel of wine if he had it; the poor wine harvest; his blessing of a new vineyard on the ranch of

San Jose; will send oil if containers are provided; is sending him 200 rosaries. Spanish. 2 pp.
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DLG 904

Letter 29
March 25, 1819. San Buenaventura.

Señán to de la Guerra sending him accounts; on a letter circulated by the people of Monterey asking

for donations to help cover their loses suffered during the Bouchard invasion; San Buenaventura to

send soap, work to commence on a corral at Coyo, about three leagues from the mission, to maintain

about 150 horses to protect Las Pozas and Simi in case of future attacks; woolen cloth to be dyed to

be used as uniforms for the "Barcelona Light Cavalry." Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 904

Letter 30
Apr. 6, 1819. San Buenaventura.

Señán to de la Guerra sending him flour. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 904

Letter 31
Apr. 13, 1819. San Buenaventura.

Señán to de la Guerra on preparations on sending men and horses to a more favorable corral; the

mission is short on cowherds and horses; the new corral is necessary for the safety of the mission,

should Bouchard appear at El Refugio; the mission's cowboys and bowmen will be glad to meet him;

on the bestowal of titles of Count of Calderón and Count of Venadito, respectively on viceroys

Calleja and Apodaca. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 904

Letter 32
May 12, 1819. San Buenaventura.

Señán to de la Guerra sending him twelve machetes through José Antonio Romero; will send

cowboys and bowmen if possible; has finished making lances and cartridge cases; asks for a shield to

serve as a model on which to make others. A note is added by de la Guerra. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 904

Letter 33
May 7, 1819. San Buenaventura.

Señán to Fray Antonio Ripoll, O.F.M., on receiving money (tomines); the arrival of José Apolinario;

on sending Noticiosos and Gacetas to Fray [Francisco Xavier] Uría, O.F.M; his desire for rain. Short

answer by Ripoll. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 904

Letter 34
June 1, 1819. San Buenaventura.

Señán to de la Guerra on the invasion of the mission by a party of Mojave Indians, ten of whom were

killed and the loss of three soldiers; was against impaling the heads of the slain invaders. Spanish. 2

pp.

DLG 904

Letter 35
June 4, 1819. San Buenaventura.

Señán to de la Guerra on receiving a letter from,Fray Marcos Antonio de Victoria, O.F.M., stating

that certain Amajabas Indians were at the Ranch of San Francisco Xavier and were peaceful during

their stay there; stated that they were going to San Buenaventura to gather beads and to sell items

brought from their country. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 904

Letter 36
Sept. 11, 1819. San Buenaventura.

Señán to de la Guerra on money received; no news about ships; sorry to hear of illness in the family.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 904

Letter 37
Sept. 14, 1819. San Buenaventura.

Señán to de la Guerra on receiving a letter on the approach of a party of Amajabas to San

Buenaventura; the troops having gone out to confront them but did not attack on account of their

numbers; doubts if his people at San Buenaventura could defend themselves against them. Spanish. 2

pp.
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DLG 904

Letter 38
Oct. 16, 1819. San Buenaventura.

Señán to de la Guerra sending him items through neophytes, Bernardino and Mateo; the arrival of

troops from Mazatlán, their leader a native of Catalonia. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 904

Letter 39
Nov. 3, 1819. San Buenaventura.

Señán to de la Guerra wishing him a happy voyage to Mexico; sending him statistics; comments on a

false statement in El Viagero Universal that twenty-four sailors of the Laperouse expedition were put

to death by California, asks de la Guerra to visit San Fernando College and extend greetings. Spanish.

2 pp.

DLG 904

Letter 40
March 27, 1820. San Buenaventura.

Señán to de la Guerra on letters received; the monthly mail out of Monterey; the arrival of a Fray

Antonio; on de la Guerra's safe arrival in Mexico; on copies of El Viagero; Fray Mariano Payeras,

O.F.M., made prefect; Señán gives his age as nearly sixty-one; the marriage of King Ferdinand to a

princess of Saxony; mentions the Amajaba expedition; the reported sighting of a warship near San.

Francisco; thinks of de la Guerra daily; mentions the Guia de Madrid. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 904

Letter 41
July 8, 1820. San Buenaventura.

Señán to de la Guerra on the arrival of the brigantine, San Francisco de Paula alias Los Dos

Hermanos, under Blas Cosio, from Mazatlán, which took on tallow from missions La Purisima, Santa

Barbara and San Buenaventura; Cosio's offer to bring articles from Acapulco to San Buenaventura,

the mission having received none since 1815; visit of the Cleopatra under Capt. José Gondarías

whose chaplain was a Mercedarian from Chile; changes of missionary personnel in California.

Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 904

Letter 42
Aug. 12, 1820. San Buenaventura.

Señán to de la Guerra on the latter's arrival at Monterey, on the arrival of the San Francisco de Paula

and Cleopatra in California waters. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 904

Letter 43
Sept. 4, 1820. San Buenaventura.

Señán to de la Guerra sending him tallow and announcing his coming to Santa Barbara. Spanish. 2

pp.

DLG 904

Letter 44
Oct. 6, 1820. San Buenaventura.

Señán to de la Guerra sending him 100 containers of fat and seventy pieces of soap; comments on

Joaquín Maitorena's dissatisfaction that former lard and soap had turned out bad; on an invoice

brought by a Peruvian ship; will send apples, pears and peaches if desired. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 904

Letter 45
Sept. 23, 1820. San Buenaventura.

Señán to de la Guerra on having sent fifty-one containers of tallow to Gabriel Moraga during de la

Guerra's absence; on the flight of the Indian, José Carlos. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 904

Letter 46
Oct. 13, 1820. San Buenaventura.

Señán to de la Guerra sending him an account. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 904

Letter 47
Dec. 19, 1820 San Buenaventura.

Señán to de la Guerra on a barrel of brandy sent when the insurgents of Bouchard invaded California;

on the import of articles received from the brigantine, Europa. Spanish. 2 pp.
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DLG 904

Letter 48
Jan. 11, 1821. San Buenaventura.

Señán to de la Guerra sending him the names of the elected Indian officers of the mission; is sending

him twenty-eight Castilian walnuts for planting; experienced an earthquake on 1 Jan. 1, which

however caused no damage; is looking for rain, is returning a copy of the new constitution sent to

him. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 904

Letter 49
Febr. 3, 1821. San Buenaventura.

Señán to de la Guerra describing the frosts and snow in the area; reports snow and rain at Carmel;

treats of fat. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 904

Letter 50
March 1, 1821. San Buenaventura.

Señán to e la Guerra concerning a passport; the arrival of statues; stating it has been a long time since

de la Guerra had visited San Buenaventura. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 904

Letter 51
March 4, 1821. San Buenaventura.

Señán to de la Guerra on heavy rains; is sending mail to the governor; thanks de la Guerra for news; a

report from Mexico that nuns may remain in their convents but no news about the status of male

religious; on the report that twenty new missionaries are coming to California; a sad report on

licentiousness, the Señoriano in Monterey; the mission lacks tallow and fat for export; the governor

asks for hides and sheepskins, some of which Señán can provide. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 904

Letter 52
May 12, 1821. San Buenaventura.

Señán to de la Guerra on the ranches of Missions San Buenaventura and San Fernando; mentions

Piru, Rancho San Francisco Xavier, Conejo, Simi, the arroyos Sespi and Sisa; sends greetings to José

de Cubillas. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 904

Letter 53
July 19, 1821. San Buenaventura.

Señán to de la Guerra on receiving articles from him through Guillen; on Iturbide and the influence of

events in Spain on the emperor's career; on Juan María Cordero passing through San Buenaventura

for the presidio, and on the question of his having received the sacraments of the Church; on a request

from José María Buelna concerning Joaquina and María Felicidad and their runaway husbands.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 904

Letter 54
Apr. 24, 1821. San Buenaventura.

Señán to de la Guerra on the services of the deceased Mariano Cota and actions of the corporal

Rufino, Felipe Rodríguez and Luciano Feliz when a Mojave band of Indians attacked San

Buenaventura. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 904

Letter 55
July 3, 1821. San Buenaventura.

Señán to de la Guerra inviting de la Guerra and his family and officials to San Buenaventura for the

mission's patronal feast; on compliance with the Easter duty; concerning a certain Juan Miguel who

desires to return to San Diego; treats of a case of espousals; his burying an Indian the day before

killed by a bear, a trap is being set for the latter. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 904

Letter 56
Sept. 26, 1821. San Buenaventura.

Señán to de la Guerra interceding in behalf of María Teresa Cota for the punishment of her son within

de la Guerra's jurisdiction; on the arrival of a new viceroy. Spanish. 2 pp.
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DLG 904

Letter 57
Sept. 27, 1821. San Buenaventura.

Señán to de la Guerra on the desire of Juan Miguel to go to San Juan [Capistrano?]; asks de la Guerra,

who was his sponsor, to sign his name to the baptismal certificate testifying to knowing him; sends

measurements of broken windows of the mission church and sacristy; asks him to send rice; is

sending fruit, Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 904

Letter 58
Oct. 3, 1821. San Buenaventura.

Señán to de la Guerra asking to send vermicelli; on paintings; sends greeting for the feast of St.

Francis. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 904

Letter 59
Oct. 13, 1821. San Buenaventura.

Señán to de la Guerra on forwarding a letter of Fray Martínez, O.F.M., of Mission San Miguel

[Lower California]; thanks him for vermicelli. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 904

Letter 60
June 12, 1822. San Buenaventura.

Señán to de la Guerra stating he is to hear that bowmen are coming; would be glader to hear of the

arrival of cowherds who could be used in the fields; congratulates de la Guerra for remaining in

California and for not being a deputy to Mexico; does not consider Mexico City, the best place to

live; arrival of the "famous Victorio and Pablo de Sems" at San Buenaventura. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 904

Letter 61
June 26, 1822. San Buenaventura.

Señán to de la Guerra on twenty pesos owed by Miguel Pico to the deceased José Ignacio Higuera;

other commerial items relative to Higuera; is sending the baptismal certificate of a certain José Juan;

sending mission reports; will send horses for the cowherds waiting at Santa Barbara to come to San

Buenaventura; mission accounts; new developments in the world and their effect on him; ferment in

Mexico in the past; the course of government now appears to be moderate. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 904

Letter 62
July 24, 1822. San Buenaventura.

Señán to de la Guerra stating it appears warships and commercial vessels are operating cautiously; the

suspicion that Spaniards are to be ejected from their homes; quotes from the former editor of the

Gaceta Mexicana at Cádiz in 1811, that as a result or free trade there is danger of Spain losing the

provinces of California. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 904

Letter 63
Aug. 12, 1822. San Buenaventura.

Señán to de la Guerra on a commercial deal of pelts; communicates a request of the mother of

Nemesio and José María Domínguez, that they receive only a moderate punishment; is forwarding a

letter of Juan Malarín. Mentioned is a Don Enrique. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 904

Letter 64
Oct. 6, 1822. San Buenaventura.

Señán to de la Guerra on the presence of Gabriel Moraga at San Buenaventura; ill treatment given to

the Indians by soldiers; Indians do not resent just punishment; states that during the thirty-five years

he has been in California he never felt as much danger and risk as on October 5, when ill treatment

was handed out; states that José Ignacio Feliz, who seriously offended the Indians, should be

removed. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 904

Letter 65
Jan. 15, 1822. San Buenaventura.

Señán to de la Guerra sending him the names of the newly elected Indian officers; is returning certain

printed articles; complains against a certain Negrito, Pablo, at the Rancho Purisima la Nueva and

Rancho San Jose. Spanish. 2 pp.



8/26/2009 Page 289

DLG 904

Letter 66
Febr. 13, 1822. San Buenaventura.

Señán to de la Guerra sending him a padrón; states many are ill at the mission. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 904

Letter 67
Undated note of eight lines.

Señán to de la Guerra. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 905

Letter 1
Febr. 20, 1822. San Buenaventura.

Señán to Carlos Antonio de Jesús Carrillo advising him that the neophyte, Juan Pedro, who had

escaped detention from the presidio, is in the mission church. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 906

Letter 1
Oct. 26, 1825. Los Angeles.

Francisco Sepúlveda to José de la Guerra complaining that José María Aguilar refuses to perform his

duties since de la Guerra's departure. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 906

Letter 2
Sept. 17, 1848. Los Angeles.

Sepúlveda to de la Guerra asking him to give to his son, Manuel, fifty pesos, who is going to a

bonanza. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 907

Letter 1
Aug. 22, 1860. Los Angeles.

Juan María Sepúlveda to Antonio María de la Guerra forwarding to him a box of quinces to give to

Trinidad Ortega; sending a message to Miguel [de la Guerra?]; his inability to come to Santa Barbara

owing to business. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 907

Letter 2
Nov. 10, 1860. Los Angeles.

Sepúlveda to de la Guerra on the cost of certain services; asking that his cuervo de chibo be sent to

him; and that Pablo de la Guerra deal with the governor to pardon Tuburcio Vázquez, who is

presently "on the island." Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 908

Letter 1
Oct. 13, 1856. San Buenaventura.

The Rev. Domingo Serrano to José de la Guerra wishing him well; describes his own situation; on

church attendance at San Buenaventura. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 908

Letter 2
March 17, 1857. San Buenaventura.

Serrano to de la Guerra sending greetings for his coming feast day (St. Joseph, March 19), and

sending him a brief letter. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 909

Letter 1
Sept. 15, 1805. Monterey.

José Sevilla to José Joaquín de la Torre y Esterría giving a list of his personal property to be used as

payment for debts. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 910

Letter 1
Dec. 19, 1860. Sacramento.

J. Sharkey to Pablo de la Guerra declaring his candidacy for assistant sergeant-at-arms in the Senate,

and asking for his support. English. 1 p.

DLG 911

Letter 2
March 12, 1860.

Thomas Ogg Shaw to John G. Downey on his interest in using state prisoners for agricultural and

manufacturing purposes and thus making prison labor a source of income to the state. Copy. English.

4 pp.

DLG 912

Letter 3
March 16, 1861. San Francisco.

Shaw to Pablo de la Guerra on the employment of prisoners in benefit for the state. English. 2 pp.
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DLG 913

Letter 1
Nothing in Folder

DLG 914

Letter 1
Nov. 6, 1853. San Francisco.

William Tecumseh Sherman to Angustias de la Guerra Jimeno Ord on a letter received from her sons,

Porfirio and Antonio in New York; concerning pocket money for their use which Sherman could send

as a bill of exchange. English. 1 p.

DLG 915

Letter 1
Febr. 15, 1856. San Francisco.

Sherman to Pablo de la Guerra concerning money for Porfirio and Antonio Jimeno; on a letter from

Angustias in Mexico. English. 1 p.

DLG 915

Letter 2
Dec. 15, 1856. San Francisco.

Sherman to de la Guerra on Porfirio and Antonio Jimeno borrowing $48.00 from a fellow passenger;

allowing a further $50.00 for Antonio; Francisco de la Guerra's recent arrival from Boston with a

letter from Alfred Robinson, asking Sherman to give him the amount of money he needs; asks Pablo

de la Guerra to tell Angustias of Sherman's payments. English. 1 p.

DLG 916

Letter 1
Oct. 10, 1863. Los Angeles.

John W. Shore to Pablo de la Guerra on the election returns from San Diego. Includes a certificate of

election of de la Guerra as judge of the First Judicial District, dated Los Angeles, Nov. 11, 1863.

English. 2 pp.

DLG 917

Letter 1
Aug. 3, 1843. Valparaíso, Chile.

The Rev. Patrick Short to Antonio María de la Guerra on the improvement of the latter's sight through

medical treatment; on Padre Manuel Cota being chaplain to the French nuns; the presence in

Valparaíso of the Mrs. Wilson and Scott, who are soon to sail for Lima, the Sandwich Islands and

California. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 918

Letter 1
July 2, 1854. Washington, D.C.

T. L. Smith to William McKendree Given on receiving a letter relative to accounts of Pablo de la

Guerra when he was a U.S. marshal. English. 1 p.

DLG 919

Letter 1
Febr. 13, 1855. Washington, D.C.

T. L. Smith to Pablo de la Guerra on money owed to the U. S. Treasury. English. 1 p.

DLG 919

Letter 2
Nov. 29, 1856. San Francisco.

Jacob R. Snyder to Pablo de la Guerra: a receipt. English. 1 p.

DLG 920

Letter 1
No documents.

DLG 921

Letter 1
June 11, 1822. Monterey.

Soberanes to de la Guerra on his writing to the governor; on his suspension of handing over to

Mariano Estrada the Rancho Buena Vista. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 921

Letter 2
Jan 8, 1822. Monterey.

Mariano Soberanes on presentation to the governor concerning Mariano Estrada and the cadet,

Joaquín de la Torre. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 921

Letter 3
Nov. 29, 1856. San Francisco.

Jacob R. Snyder to Pablo de la Guerra: a receipt. English. 1 p.



8/26/2009 Page 291

DLG 922

Letter 1
March 11, 1854. Philadelphia.

Facsimile letter of the Society of Friends, a circular letter enclosing an address from the society in

Great Britain and Ireland, dated London, 1849, on the matter of slavery. The letter is signed by Josiah

Forster, John Chandler and William Holmes. Address is printed. English. 4 pp.

DLG 923

Letter 1
Sept. 24, 1815. Monterey.

Governor Pablo Vicente Solá to José de la Guerra on the office of habilitado to be given to alférez,

José Joaquín de Maitorena. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 923

Letter 2
Jan. 17, 1816. Monterey.

Solá to de la Guerra stating that Mission San Luis Obispo belongs to the jurisdiction of Monterey;

that certain containers and saddle bags were left at Monterey, which should have been sent to Santa

Barbara; gives permission to change a corporal of the presidio with one at San Luis Obispo monthly;

on smugglers in the Santa Barbara area; on horses left at Monterey by sergeant Carrillo and their

disposal placed under corporal Francisco Juárez and Lucas Olivera. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 923

Letter 3

March 9, 1816. Monterey.

Solá to de la Guerra concerning the ship, Lidia; on an expediente formed concerning the brigantine,

Pedler, the ship being declared free by the viceroy, Argüello, of Lower California and by Solá; in

future the papers of all foreign ships are to be examined approaching California shores seeking food;

no one is allowed to land nor to fish in California waters and the governor is to be notified; the

captain of the Lidia, Enrique Garcelay, is sailing for Santa Barbara, to obtain cattle; Carlos Carrillo

and six of his men are sailing with him; the governor has retained the two guns the ship had; the

captain cannot carry lumber desired by de la Guerra because of the ship's construction, but Fray Luís

Martínez, O.F.M., of Mission San Luis Obispo has offered 100 yoke of oxen for that purpose; on a

copy of naval ordinances requested by Argüello. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 923

Letter 4
March 28, 1816. Monterey.

Solá to de la Guerra stating that Monterey would stand security for furnishing a sloop and that

meanwhile he is to apply to the immediate missions for his needs; Fray Luís Martínez, O.F.M., will

comply with his promise to supply oxen for bringing lumber to Santa Barbara for he has lost hope for

sending the same by commercial ships; is returning the naval ordinances; orders de la Guerra to retain

the Indians sent from Santa Cruz; is sending the Portuguese weaver, Antonio Rocha, to Mission San

Gabriel at the request of the missionaries but that he is not to go beyond there. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 923

Letter 5
Apr. 29, 1816. Monterey.

Solá to de la Guerra on cutting pine wood for concluding work on the church; on the Kodiak Indian

asked for by Maitorena; on the absence of Fray [Ramón] Oblés, O.F.M., of Santa Barbara, and stating

that he understands his peevish character; on the bellas circunstancias of Fray Antonio Ripoll,

O.F.M., on his probably writing to the father prefect as to the possibility of removing Ripoll; on cloth

with which he is pleased, which should be encouraged and his writing to the missionaries concerning

it; asks de la Guerra to inform him of what effects Pedro Negrete left; sends de la Guerra condolences

on the death of his mother; returns the relación of sergeant Cota. Spanish. 2 pp.
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DLG 923

Letter 6
July 27, 1816. Monterey.

Solá to de la Guerra on the nonexistence of memorias; on José Argüello's disturbance over pirates

from the Buenos Aires area; arrival of the frigate, Sultan at Monterey on of July 22; the coming

marriage of a certain Germán; on returning an oficio; on the excesses of Maitorena; on his refusal to

allow a missionary of Santa Barbara to go over to the islands to bring to the mainland various old

people christianized by neophytes, but asks de la Guerra for his opinion concerning it; on the arrival

of corporal Rufino Leyba and two soldiers bringing powder; mentions the offer of help given by Fray

Luís Martínez O.F.M. [to transport lumber?]; the captain of a ship warned not to touch ports in the

province of California. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 923

Letter 7
March 31, 1817. Monterey.

Solá to de la Guerra sending greetings to [James Smith] Wilcox; on de la Guerra's report on the

scarcity of food; heaviest rains in memory at Monterey; praises de la Guerra for not sending a letter to

San Diego; announces that the soldier, Cayetano Rios, drowned near Monterey, while two others

were miraculously rescued; declares that his policy differs from that of his predecessor [José Joaquín]

Arrillaga, in that in his administration all are to be treated on an equal basis and that his subordinate

officers are to act accordingly. To this letter he adds two post data of Apr. 15 and 18, (the letter being

held up because of rain), stating that he approves of the aid given to the widow, Guadalupe Briones

and her children; on permission given to Lorenzana to go to San Luis Obispo; and on sending a San

Diego Indian to San Luis Obispo at the request of the father prefect. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 923

Letter 8
July 31, 1817. Los Angeles.

Solá to de la Guerra on letters from Solá and Santiago Smith concerning lumber being sent to the

latter by ship; Smith has permission to sail to San Pedro and then go overland to Purisima Mission to

see the father prefect; Solá asks de la Guerra to keep in his home two Indians from Mission San

Vicente in Lower California. Mentioned are José María Estudillo and Fray Antonio Menéndez, O.P.

Partly soiled. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 923

Letter 9
Aug. 3, 1817. San Gabriel.

Solá to de la Guerra on the complaints of five citizens of Los Angeles against Manuel Gutiérrez on

the damage his horses have done to their lands; Solá intends to solve the matter on his return from

San Diego; on four Indians sent to de la Guerra to be kept in custody; the Indian, Pedro, of Mission

San Fernando responsible for the death of a neophyte, to be taken to Presidio Santa Barbara; on

beams received by de la Guerra sent by Lt. José Estudillo; he understands that Santiago Smith could

not take aboard; the three Anglo Americans at Santa Barbara. Partly damaged. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 923

Letter 10
Aug. 8, 1817. San Luis Rey.

Solá to de la Guerra stating his satisfaction over de la Guerra's handling the matter of Pedro, the San

Fernando Indian responsible for the death of María Salome; also with regard to a case in San

Buenaventura; on four deserters from a sloop at Port San Luis Obispo whom de la Guerra is to put on

public works and be guarded by soldiers; Solá will decide their case on his return to Santa Barbara;

on a robbery perpetrated on Smith; Solá tells de la Guerra how to dispose of those involved.

Mentioned are an Englishman, a Negro and another in union with Teodoro Arrellanes. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 923

Letter 11
Aug. 14, 1817. San Diego.

Solá to de la Guerra stating his pleasure that Don Santiago is engaged in acts of charity; on

permission given to the missionaries of Santa Barbara for bringing wood; and is glad to hear that

Arrellanes is getting along well. Spanish. 1 p.
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DLG 923

Letter 12
Aug. 16, 1817. San Diego.

Solá to de la Guerra stating that from San Francisco he learned that a French corvette, after sixteen

months of navigation, arrived there from Bordeaux, and from it he obtained a letter from Cavenecia

who states that his brigantine remained in Peru with the memorias of the missionaries and makes no

mention of insurgency but that Luís Argüello states that the captain of the corvette told him things

were bad in Chile and Buenos Aires; Solá is displeased over the flight of an Indian of San

Buenaventura and the carelessness of the comisionado in processing the case. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 923

Letter 13
Aug. 19, 1817. San Diego.

Solá to de la Guerra declaring that the state of insurgency is declining and that the habilitado general

is beginning to exercise his office again; that a certain Señor Cruz returned from Mexico to

Guadalajara; Solá intends to leave San Diego in the following week. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 923

Letter 14
Aug. 23, 1817. San Diego.

Solá to de la Guerra on the presence of Peruvian ships in California waters; on the arrival of the

frigate, Hermosa Mexicana; Solá's orders for the gathering of 4,000 arrobas of tallow by the four

presidios from their respective missions; Solá's declaration to the viceroy that 100,000 arrobas of

tallow existed in California; debtors to Pedro Negrete; the process concerning an Indian of San

Buenaventura; declares that the men involved in a robbery should not remain at Presidio Santa

Barbara but that Santiago Smith should take them along on his ship; José Manuel Sisa could remain

with de la Guerra; on the wound inflicted on the neophyte, Rafael, at Mission Santa Barbara. Spanish.

3 pp.

DLG 923

Letter 15
Aug. 29, 1817. San Luis Rey.

Solá to de la Guerra on ship movements; on commercial matters relative to Negrete; Gutiérrez and

Domínguez; on the father prefects answer to Solá on the matter of supplying tallow. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 923

Letter 16
Sept. 4, 1817. San Gabriel.

Solá to De la Guerra on Santiago Smith; Wilcox sailing from Santa Barbara to San Pedro in order to

see Solá. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 923

Letter 17
Sept. 13, 1817. San Gabriel.

Solá to de la Guerra on the latter's arrival at San Buenaventura. States that he expects to be there soon.

Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 923

Letter 18
Sept. 29, 1817. Santa Barbara.

Solá to de la Guerra on the price of tallow. Copy in hand of de la Guerra. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 923

Letter 19
Oct. 22, 1817. Santa Ines

Solá to de la Guerra on his arriving at Santa Ines the evening before; on his receiving a special

delivery from San Francisco containing a letter from Luís Argüello with another enclosed which he

understands is in Russian; asks if one of the men on the frigate, Hermosa Mexicana, can translate it

and if not, to return the letter immediately by special delivery; two other letters arrived for Salvador

Azpiroz, which he is giving to Ignacio Martínez. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 923

Letter 20
Oct. 24, 1817. Purisima.

Solá to de la Guerra on the return of the Russian letter which no one could translate; on

recommendations from Mission San Fernando and the summary of Villamor; on Señor Yllas carrying

away a prisoner. Spanish. 2 pp.
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DLG 923

Letter 21
Oct. 24, 1817. Purisima.

Solá to de la Guerra on receipt from him of a letter; a book of accounts and a box of sweets; states he

arrived at Purisima in the company of Fray Francisco Suñer, O.F.M. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 923

Letter 22
Oct. 29, 1817. San Luis Obispo.

Solá to de la Guerra on his intention of going on to San Miguel next day; the cadet Santiago Argüello

will relate to de la Guerra the inconveniences Solá experienced between Purisima and San Luis

Obispo; on his purchasing certain items from Juan José Mayo, supercargo of the brigantine, San

Antonio; some for his own use and others for the presidios of San Diego and Santa Barbara; has

notified Luís Argüello about the purchase of items for the northern presidios from the Russian ship,

Kutusof, anchored at San Francisco; on commercial matters relative to the presidios and missions.

Mentioned are Fray Luís Martínez, O.F.M., Juan Antonio Mayo, the ship, Cazadora; an oficio

received from Gaspar Yllas, captain of the frigate, Hermosa Mexicana, stating he received aboard as

prisoner, Andrés Villamor together with a summary of his excesses as contramaestre (boatswain) of

the the Cazadora. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 923

Letter 23
Nov. 15, 1817. Monterey.

Solá to de la Guerra on prices; articles bought from the Mayo brothers of the San Antonio; on the

purchase of a brigantine. The missionaries are mentioned in general. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 923

Letter 24
Nov. 20, 1817. Monterey.

Solá to de la Guerra on accounts and military documents between 1808 and 1816, and the testament

of José Joaquín Arrillaga. José Estrada is mentioned. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 923

Letter 25
Nov. 21, 1817, Monterey.

Solá to de la Guerra on José Estrada going to Santa Barbara out accounts; asks de la Guerra for six

chaps; states he wants to rid California of certain sharpers and requests that the Cazadora, anchored at

San Pedro, place on board Jacob Velarde of Los Angeles, and Pedro Cabañas, who stayed in

California after arriving in 1814 on the brigantine, San Carlos, from Manila, whose captain was Pedro

de Toro; also a sailor, a Chilean, from the frigate, Tagle, working on the ranch of Los Nietos. The

captain of the ship has already been informed to take those men with him. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 923

Letter 26
Nov. 29, 1817. Monterey.

Solá to de la Guerra on the sailing of the brigantine, San Antonio, on the 15th for Paita; on the factura

signed by Mayo for the items Solá bought for the presidios; the Cazadora to sail for San Pedro; sends

de la Guerra a list of items received from Fermín de Aguirre, designates how the goods are to be

divided; a carriage is coming on a frigate; starting with Jan. 1, sergeant Guillermo Cota is to be at San

Buenaventura until he retires. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 923

Letter 27
Dec. 6, 1817. Monterey.

Solá to de la Guerra on goods and prices; his being opposed to Maitorena being in charge of the

presidio and does not want de la Guerra to go to San Pedro; Noberto Rodríguez is proceeding to

Presidio Santa Barbara where he may request his license to leave; Solá is sending a license for the

soldier, José María Higuera. Mentioned are Fermín Aguirre, Lt. Francisco María Ruíz, and a Velarde.

Spanish. 3 pp.
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DLG 923

Letter 28
Dec. 22, 1817. Monterey.

Solá to de la Guerra on goods obtained from Fermín Aguirre; distribution of goods for the presidios;

forwarding a letter from María Antonia Pintado, refers to a disgraceful occurrence relative to Santiago

Smith reported by de la Guerra; the sailing of the Cazadora for San Pedro. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 923

Letter 29
Jan. 2, 1818. Monterey.

Solá to de la Guerra on goods; mentions Fermín [Aguirre] and alférez Ignacio Martínez; comments on

the Santiago Smith affair; on cattle and other animals; on the building of a church in Los Angeles;

Juan de Ortega to be in charge of Los Angeles; Guillermo Cota to remain at Presidio Santa Barbara

until his retirement; desires the apprehension of the San Buenaventura Mission Indian responsible for

the slaying of an Indian woman. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 923

Letter 30
Febr. 10, 1818. Monterey.

Solá to de la Guerra on the expected arrival of the San Ruperto at San Pedro; the goods it is to deliver;

orders Santiago Argüello to be there to meet it and, together with Ignacio Martínez, to receive the

tercios and place them on the Rancho Gutiérrez and at the presidios; and concerning a lady placed as

instructress for children of which Solá approves. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 923

Letter 31
March 5, 1818. Soledad.

Solá to de la Guerra on the Cazadora about to sail with 2,500 containers of tallow and much soap;

commercial matters. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 923

Letter 32
Apr. 20, 1818. Monterey.

Solá to de la Guerra on rain in Santa Barbara; improvement in health of de la Guerra 's wife; rain in

Monterey; his assistant, Espindola, a widower his wife. María Antonia Sánchez, having died on Apr.

15; the sailing of the Cazadora from San Diego on Apr. 7, according to a report of Lt. Francisco

María Ruíz; commercial relations with the missions; the debt of the retired sergeant, Antonio Yorba,

to Pedro Negrete; Solá's comments on the matter; mentions Salvador de Azpiroz; on Indian pelt

hunters having a house on the "large island" [Santa Cruz?]; de la Guerra to look into the matter

carefully; sends greetings to Fathers [Antonio] Ripoll, O.F.M., and [Franciso] Suñer, O.F.M. Spanish.

3 pp.

DLG 923

Letter 33
July 27, 1818.

Solá to De la Guerra on José Joaquín Maitorena becoming habilitado of the Santa Barbara Company;

reproved de la Guerra for holding the election without consulting Solá; comments on the character of

Maitorena and on the election, allows the election to stand but under certain conditions. Spanish. 4

pp.

DLG 923

Letter 34
Oct. 3, 1818. Monterey.

Solá to de la Guerra on the death of Juan de Ortega to be replaced by Anastasio Carrillo; corporal

Dámaso Rodríguez to fill the place of escuadra; de la Guerra to foster his more Christian living and to

report if he behaves ill; on the report of the Los Angeles commissioner of Sept. 2; the arrest of Rafael

García, Gabriel Sotelo, Pedro Arce and Andrés Ibarra for robbing Francisco Avila. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 923

Letter 35
Oct. 24, 1818. Monterey.

Solá to de la Guerra on receiving his oficio of Oct. 16; on Maitorena taking the latter's place during

his absence, but refers to his past evil of heavy drinking. Spanish. 2 pp.
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DLG 923

Letter 36
Oct. 24, 1818. Monterey.

Solá to de la Guerra on letters received from the latter and referring to a situation not clearly

described; on the disembarcation of certain unnamed families; on corporal Rodríguez' presence in

Santa Barbara; the presence of the Mexicana at Port San Luis Obispo; on Joaquín de la Torre

dispatching papers for Santa Barbara and San Diego; eighty pesos to be paid to Vicente Sánchez,

which he had given to alférez José Estrada; de la Guerra's cold; de la Guerra to place at the

disposition of the San Gabriel missionaries 600 pesos which he has on the governor's account; Solá

needs two hats brought by the Mexicana, which also brought hats for the missionaries. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 923

Letter 37
Nov. 8, 1818. Monterey.

Solá to de la Guerra on receiving a letter from the latter with another enclosed from Fray Joaquín

Pascual Nuez, O.F.M.; on a financial matter; on the presence of an English corvette, a war vessel,

seeking refreshments, and which came from Columbia River to take out the commissioners who

handed the area over to the Americans. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 923

Letter 38

Dec. 25, 1818. San Antonio.

Solá to de la Guerra asking him to meet him at San Luis Obispo and to treat of a matter contained in

his letter of Dec. 21, and other matters pertaining to the royal service. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 923

Letter 39
Jan. 7, 1819. San Antonio.

Solá to de la Guerra stating that de la Guerra is to postpone his meeting at San Luis Obispo with the

governor owing to the severe cold weather. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 923

Letter 40
May 1, 1819. Soledad.

Solá to de la Guerra on articles brought by the soldiers José María López; the price of paper; on the

arrival of pistols at Santa Barbara from San Diego to be repaired; his request to Juan Salvador de

Azpiroz to send chocolate, sugar, rice and hatchets of the Vizcaina type to the missionaries at San

Gabriel, and wine and oil to those of San Luis Rey to be conducted by Feliciano Soberanes; Solá is in

need of table dishes and requests de la Guerra to send some brought by the Santo Ruperto; asks for

tobacco. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 923

Letter 41
June 6, 1819. Monterey.

Solá to de la Guerra on the appearance of foreign ships opposite Mission San Antonio; on proposals

of Lt. Francisco María Ruíz; money matters; asks de la Guerra's opinion about building a watch tower

in the Colorado River area to control Indians from the area coming to the coast and to avoid incidents

similar to the one that occurred at San Buenaventura; on four prisoners captured by Anastasio Carrillo

to be kept at Presidio Santa Barbara until a Spanish ship can take them out of the province; a larger

guard is required to protect Missions San Gabriel and San Fernando, which is to be supplied from Los

Angeles; sends regard to Fathers [José] Señán, [Francisco] Suñer and [Antonio] Ripoll; de la Guerra

may go to Santa Ines to see Fray Francisco Xavier Uría, O.F.M., in the company of the American

[José Chapman?]; Uría possibly to supply the wood de la Guerra needs; on a letter received from

brigadier general Antonio Cordero of Durango, commandant general of the western division of the

Provincias Internas, offering Solá the help he needs; permissions being sent to Domingo Romero and

Pascual García; de la Guerra is to return the four Indian prisoners from the Colorado River held at

Santa Barbara. Spanish. 3 pp.
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DLG 923

Letter 42
June 6, 1819. Monterey.

Solá to de la Guerra stating he is sending a commendatory letter to the viceroy praising the

missionaries for their assistance during the Bouchard invasion, particularly that of Fray Luís Antonio

Martínez, O.F.M; orders Lt. Martínez of Santa Barbara to San Francisco even though this may prove

a hardship to his family; on Domingo Carrillo supplying the vacant post of Guillermo Cota; is

sending Lt. Francisco María Ruíz and additional troops to Mission San Gabriel to prevent a surprise

attack by Indians of the Colorado River area; Ruíz can be of assistance also to Mission San Fernando.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 923

Letter 43
July 26, 1819. Soledad.

Solá to de la Guerra on sending copies of royal dispatches and cédulas to the viceroy referring to

retired soldiers; on the habilitado general in Mexico, Colonel José Ignacio de Ormaechea placed in

charge of supplies in Mexico City; on orders for Lt. Martínez to go to San Francisco; opposes de la

Guerra's carrying out a request of the citizens of Los Angeles before new troops arrive; doors and

windows needed for the church being built in Los Angeles; de la Guerra's trip to Los Angeles with

Fray [Marcos Antonio de] Victoria. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 923

Letter 44
Sept. 7, 1819. Monterey.

Solá to de la Guerra on the arrival of the warship, the brigantine, San Carlos, and the commercial

ship, Nuestra Señora de Los Angeles; on his disgust on not receiving mail from Mexico, nor certain

military supplies; on being sponsor for the expected child of Gabriel Moraga; his withholding of

consent to the departure of Fathers [Francisco] Suñer, O.F.M., and [Francisco Xavier] Uría, O.F.M.,

because of conditions in California; asks de la Guerra if he is willing to go to Mexico to present to the

viceroy a picture of the state of affairs in California; two ships are ready to sail, one to Santa Cruz, the

other to San Pedro; concerning Camulos Ranch about which he received letters from Fathers [José]

Señan, O.F.M., and [Marcos Antonio] Victoria, O.F.M., Partly soiled and torn. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 923

Letter 45
Sept. 19, 1819. Rancho de Hacienda.

Solá to de la Guerra on de la Guerra's going to Mexico to see the viceroy; has written to the

commanders of the other California presidios to authorize de la Guerra to speak in their names and to

supply him with a monthly sum to meet his expenses; proposes Dámaso Rodríguez, a sergeant, for the

Santa Barbara Company. Incomplete. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 923

Letter 46
Sept. 24, 1819. Rancho de Hacienda.

Solá to de la Guerra on authorization to speak in behalf of the California presidio commanders in

Mexico. Sends him a passport. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 923

Letter 47
Sept. 23, 1819. Monterey.

Solá to De la Guerra: "Instrucción que da el S. Gobernador de la Nueva California coronel de Pablo

Vicente de Solá al Capitán Dn. José de la Guerra Y Noriega." It contains nine points. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 923

Letter 48
Sept. 25, 1819. Rancho de Hacienda.

Solá to de la Guerra stating that he gave orders to José Bandini, captain of the frigate, Reina de los

Angeles, to take de la Guerra aboard as far as San Blas, the owner being Pedro Juan de Olázarri

whom de la Guerra is to visit in Guadalajara; before leaving de la Guerra is to give a report on the

military situation at Santa Barbara. Spanish. 3 pp.
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Letter 49
Sept. 25, 1819. Rancho de Hacienda.

Solá to de la Guerra on the former's salary at 40,000 pesos; on receiving 3,000 pesos from the

deceased Agustín Rivas administrator of excise taxes at Tepic; states he was named governor on Dec.

31, 1814, and took his of office on March 31, 1815; on financial matters; on two pairs of mules for

hauling a coach. Mentioned are Juan Bautista de Iñigo, Joaquín de la Torre, Olazágarri, Ramón

Marua and the San Carlos. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 923

Letter 50
Sept. 28, 1819. Rancho de Hacienda.

Solá to De la Guerra on the latter's commission to go to Mexico; complaining about the 100 men sent

to him who were taken out of jail; on a great expedition to be undertaken by Gabriel Moraga with the

soldiers arrived from Mazatlán who are in San Diego; soldiers to be aided by the missions; the pueblo

of Los Angeles and the ranchos; other soldiers to leave from San Francisco and Monterey; on

punishments for the twenty-one Indian prisoners at San Buenaventura; on a request made by de la

Guerra to the father president; on the Englishman, Juan Antonio, el tonolero, the cooper, and his

companion, Santiago Manuel Castro; sends de la Guerra memoriales for the viceroy. Spanish. 8 pp.

DLG 923

Letter 51
Oct. 9, 1819. Rancho de Hacienda.

Solá to de la Guerra approving of the powers given by the presidio commanders of California to the

latter for his special commission to Mexico and the monthly allowances given him by them; sends

him his passport and one for his son, José Antonio; is sending a draft for 100 pesos from J. J.

Maitorena for Florentino Machuca, who is accompanying de la Guerra. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 923

Letter 52
Oct. 16, 1819. Monterey.

Solá to de la Guerra on documents received from de la Guerra; on the removals of Lt. Ignacio

Martínez and Lt. Gabriel Moraga; the assignment of twenty-five pesos monthly to be given to de la

Guerra from the presidio of San Francisco towards his expenses in Mexico; on permission given to

the soldier, José María Avila, to embark. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 923

Letter 53
Oct. 16, 1819. Monterey.

Solá to de la Guerra on the latter's handing over his jurisdiction of Presidio Santa Barbara to Lt.

Gabriel Moraga; on de la Guerra going to Mexico on La Reina de Los Angeles. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 923

Letter 54
Nov. 3, 1819. Monterey.

Solá to de la Guerra on the Presidio San Diego assigning monthly twenty-five pesos monthly towards

de la Guerra's expenses in Mexico; expresses his regrets that de la Guerra has to separate himself

from his family for a time; on ordering Gabriel Moraga and soldiers to go after the Amajabas Indians

together with troops from Mazatlán under Lt . Narciso Fabregat; mentions sergeant Sánchez on a

military item. Spanish. 3 pp.
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Letter 1
June 6, 1820. Monterey.

Solá to de la Guerra on the birth of a son to the latter, on Nov. 19, 1819, to whom was given the name

Pablo Andrés Antonio María Saturnino (the latter famous Pablo de la Guerra); on the expedition of

[Lt. Gabriel] Moraga and Sánchez; asks de la Guerra to have the viceroy make Sánchez an alférez

even though the document of his retirement has arrived; his request to the viceroy to grant de la

Guerra 150,000 pesos for the California presidios; asks de la Guerra to send him two Etnias de

Forasteros, one from Spain, the other from Mexico; and twenty dozen boxes of glazed fruit with pears

and peaches predominating; Solá states that he full of tribulation in that he cannot supply for his

people the things they ask of him; hopes that de la Guerra will be successful in his mission; sends him

three lists relative to military affairs. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 924

Letter 2
Febr. 5, 1820, Monterey.

Solá to de la Guerra on not hearing of his safe arrival in Mexico; on his writing to the viceroy

concerning the needs of the province; concerning the true sponsor of de la Guerra's son, Pablo,

Moraga standing in for Solá; asks to send Gacetas from Spain, the Guia de Mexico, and especially to

get help for the troops in California. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 924

Letter 3
March 25, 1820. San Carlos.

Solá to de la Guerra on not hearing from de la Guerra in Mexico; the bad living conditions in

California; lack of ships from Peru and Mexico; on the appearance of a ship near San Francisco,

which did not cast anchor; has notified the presidios against insurgents; wrote to the viceroy on the

needs of California and urges de la Guerra to push his mission with energy. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 924

Letter 4
Aug. 9, 1820. Soledad.

Solá to de la Guerra on hearing of de la Guerra's safe return to Santa Barbara; and on his successful

trip to obtain aid for the presidios; will come to Santa Barbara to confer with him. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 924

Letter 5
Aug. 31, 1820. Monterey.

Solá to the missionaries of San Buenaventura, San Fernando, and San Gabriel on soap determined to

be given to Fermín de Genoa y Aguirre by the father prefect, [Fray Vicente] Sarría, O.F.M., in 1818,

is now to be given to Juan Malarín, captain of the brigantine, San José, which will anchor at Santa

Barbara and San Pedro. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 924

Letter 6
Nov. 9, 1820. Santa Ines.

Solá to de la Guerra explaining his presence at the mission because of a bad cold; asking for a certain

testimony which he wants to send to the viceroy. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 924

Letter 7
Nov. 12, 1820. Santa Ines.

Solá to de la Guerra sending two barrels so that Padre [Antonio] Ripoll, O.F.M., can fill them with

wine; on sending the retired soldier, Antonio Castro; on news from Lt. Estrada of Monterey, who

stated that he had sent to de la Guerra the hoja de registros and other papers of the brigantine, Europa.

Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 924

Letter 8
Nov. 15, 1820. San Luis Obispo.

Solá to de la Guerra on his arrival at that mission the day before. Mentioned are Fray [Francisco]

Suñer, O.F.M., Fray Luís Martínez, O.F.M., and the ship, Alcion. Spanish. 2 pp.
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Letter 9
Nov. 16, 1820. San Luis Obispo.

Solá to de la Guerra on receiving the papers of El Señoriano; on ship duties; on sending a

communication to Estrada in Monterey; the brigantine, Europa, in Monterey; on writing to Father

Suñer's superior to allow him to stay in Santa Barbara; the soldier, Eleuterio, to remain at Santa Ines;

Solá's coming to Santa Barbara; the death of the neophyte, Julián, of Santa Cruz; on three barrels of

wine sent to Father [Antonio] Ripoll, O.F.M., from Santa Ines; asks him to send a circular letter

through the missions in the governor's name to supply mules and equipment; mentions the retired

soldier, Antonio Castro. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 924

Letter 10
Nov. 25, 1820. Soledad.

Solá to de la Guerra stating he is returning to Monterey; sends greetings to him and the padres; is

sending a circular letter to the four presidios; on de la Guerra's ceding the twenty- five pesos a month

for his expenses in Mexico; on news from Luís Argüello of San Francisco about the arrival there of a

Russian corvette. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 924

Letter 11

Dec. 14, 1820. Monterey.

Solá to de la Guerra on a dispute between Captain Ruíz and officials of the Mazatlán Company with

regard to their improprieties towards women; sending condolences to de la Guerra on the death of his

father and sister; on the arrival of two soldiers with three Indian prisoners from San Diego, sends

greetings to Fathers [Antonio] Ripoll, O.F.M., and [Francisco] Suñer, O.F.M.; on the presence of two

Russian corvettes; on sending a Kodiak Indian to San Gabriel in the company of two returning

soldiers. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 924

Letter 12
Dec. 27, 1820. Monterey.

Solá to de la Guerra thanking him for not accepting the monthly allowance granted him by the four

California presidios for his expenses in Mexico. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 924

Letter 13
Dec. 27, 1820. Monterey.

Solá to de la Guerra on the latter's communication concerning Carlos Lorenzana; on alférez

Maitorena and his accounts and his vice of drinking; on sergeant Carrillo's coming to Monterey; asks

de la Guerra to send to Monterey; Toribio Germán on account of his immorality; on a letter from

Gabriel Moraga; sends a message to Fray Francisco Xavier Uría, O.F.M., on a money matter relative

to Antonio [José] Cot; on clocks to be repaired by an American prisoner [José Chapman?]; and

concerning de la Guerra's handling of money matters for the missionaries. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 924

Letter 14
Febr. 26, 1821. Monterey.

Solá to de la Guerra on the non-arrival of mail due to the fact of needed repairs on the Loreto ship.

Spanish. 1 p.



8/26/2009 Page 301

DLG 924

Letter 15
Jan. 16, 1821. Monterey.

Solá to de la Guerra on duties of ships, San Francisco Xavier, El Alcion, and El Señoriano composed

by the habilitado, Carlos Antonio Carrillo; the padres to pay duties for objects brought by ships;

mentioned are Father [José] Señán, O.F.M., Estevan Munrás; on the state of accounts by Maitorena;

on the circular by father prefect, Mariano Payeras, O.F.M. on mission contributions to the military

which the sergeant, Dámaso Rodríguez is to carry from Purisima to San Diego; on the need for

sending Toribio Germán to Monterey; on writing to Fray Antonio Jayme, O.F.M., to retain the salary

of Martín Olivera, which he owes to the widow of Miguel Pico; on punishment of soldiers; on writing

to Luís Argüello; asks for his clocks; on a fulling mill to be built at Santa Ines; on sergeant Carrillo's

presence, at San Luis Obispo; a financial matter related to Estevan Munrás; on repeated earthquakes

in the Santa Barbara area; on a new tower on the mission church of Santa Barbara; the death of a

certain Nicolás; possible war between Turkey and Russia; the price of paper; on receipt of a dispatch

from San Diego in favor of Ruíz. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 924

Letter 16

March 8, 1821. Monterey.

Solá to de la Guerra on two Indians who arrived at San Gabriel from Sonora, who are to be returned

there; on a Russian ship at San Francisco, corporal Tapia who is to bring monetary contributions from

the missions has not yet arrived: on a process against soldiers from Mazatlán; Moraga's request for

retirement; Solá's praise of him; on Indians from Lower California; on the soldiers José Ortiz and

Andrés Ibarra. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 924

Letter 17
March 10, 1821, Monterey.

Solá to de la Guerra on a judicial process concerning alférez Delgado; mail services; on Maitorena's

drinking; his praise for Moraga on sending Lt. Antonio del Valle to Santa Barbara to participate in the

expedition against the Amajaba Indians; on the soldiers José Ortiz and Andrés Ibarra. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 924

Letter 18
Apr. 10, 1821. Monterey.

Solá to de la Guerra sending him newspapers from Madrid and Mexico; on the latter's temporalities;

the brigantine, El Señoriano to sail soon for Santa Barbara, Juan Malarín being captain; on the

possibility of de la Guerra going to Spain; on the Franciscan superiors forbidding the use of coaches

by the missionaries in California; on a retreat house for spiritual exercises at Monterey; on the

approval of his being made governor by Felix Calleja, Dec. 31, 1814; he petitions to retire. Spanish. 4

pp.

DLG 924

Letter 19
Apr. 26, 1821. Monterey.

Solá to de la Guerra on the return of sergeant Dámaso Rodríguez and corporal Tiburcio Tapia and

their inability to capture certain San Diego fugitives who had killed a Mission San Fernando

neophyte; on expenses incurred by de la Guerra on his travels; on Solá's future visit to Santa Barbara;

on the desire of alférez Delgado's wife to be reunited with him; on forwarding printed matter to Fray

Luís Martínez who in turn is to send it on to de la Guerra; is going to send a special delivery letter and

others to be carried by El Señoriano which are to be given by Cubillas; is also sending two pocket

watches; the insurgent Juan de la Ros is to become a Catholic at Eastertide; de la Guerra to send him

where he can be useful and continue his religious instructions. Spanish. 1 pp.
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Letter 20
May 25, 1821. Monterey.

Solá to de la Guerra, on a letter received from the bishop of Guadalajara; the father prefect's request

to borrow Tiburcio Tapis to conduct sheep from Santa Ines to the pasture land of San Rafael; Father

[Francisco Xavier] Uría, O.F.M., is to be asked to comply with the request: Solá's belief that a person

can live in no greater tranquility in America than in California, though at his age he would prefer to

be relieved because tired, and attend to the matters of his soul; asks de la Guerra to give Cubillas

certain correspondence; asks if he received the watches sent him; on a financial matter re Patricio

Pico; asks for the return of certain papers; on Fray Mariano Payeras, O.F.M., and duties; tells him to

notify sergeant Dámaso Rodríguez that he is displeased over his bad behavior over a matter occurring

at San Gabriel in relation with the soldier, Ortiz Solorzano and the civilian Ibarra. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 924

Letter 21
June 8, 1821.

Solá to de la Guerra on the latter handing over letters and watches to Cubillas sent by Solá; has

received the printed matter sent by de la Guerra; the transfer of sheep from Santa Ines; on the convert

Juan Miguel and his future disposition; a money matter concerning Patricio Pico; on a debt of Miguel

Pico and Father [Antonio] Jayme's, O.F.M., relation to it; on the dispute between sergeant Dámaso

Rodríguez and the Mazatlán soldier, Ortiz at San Gabriel; on a family matter of de la Guerra in Spain;

the orphans of a certain Rufino and Mariano Cota; on misinformation given to de la Guerra

concerning "derechos" obtained for the military; mentioned are [Juan] Malarín and Estrada; on his

having arrested Enterría; on sentence passed on the neophyte, José of Mission San Fernando; mention

of Father [José María] Zalvidea. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 924

Letter 22
June 8, 1821. Monterey.

Solá to de la Guerra sending him a summary concerning José, neophyte of Mission San Fernando,

who has been sentenced to two years at the Monterey presidio; is sending the notice through Dámaso

Rodríguez. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 924

Letter 23
June 25, 1821. Monterey.

Solá to de la Guerra sending him various prisoners through the corporal, Sebastián Rodríguez; on the

presence of Captain Ruíz at Santa Barbara who is to assume charge of the Monterey Company;

mentions the San Gabriel affair between Dámaso Rodríguez and Ortiz; on Rancho Piru and [Fray

José] Señan's, O.F.M., opposition to de la Guerra having it; delay of mails from Mexico; on excessive

fog in Monterey not good for his health. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 924

Letter 24
Sept. 11, 1821. Monterey.

Solá to de la Guerra on the soldier prisoner, Castillo; is sending the papers and accounts of Enterría to

Santa Barbara to be revised. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 924

Letter 25
Sept. 13, 1821. Monterey.

Solá to de la Guerra on the cadet, José Joaquín de la Torre; on sending books and papers the

Monterey Presidio to Santa Barbara for revision. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 924

Letter 26
Oct. 16, 1821. Monterey.

Solá to de la Guerra stating his inability to come south because of occupations and state of health;

asks de la Guerra to represent him at San Diego; to show his commission to Capt. Francisco María

Ruíz and call together the various officers to find out the differences that divide them; Captain Pablo

de la Portilla is to supply for de la Guerra at Santa Barbara. Spanish. 4 pp.
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Letter 27
Jan. 11, 1822. Monterey.

Solá to de la Guerra on the punishment given to the soldier, Olivera; on the presentation made by

Fathers [José] Señán, O.F.M., [Francisco González de] Ibarra, O.F.M., concerning Rancho Piru;

expresses his satisfaction over de la Guerra's "religious conduct" in the matter; on mail from and to

Loreto; on goods for the missions assigned by father prefect; they are to be collected by sergeant

Dámaso Rodríguez in the jurisdictions of Santa Barbara and San Diego; mentioned is the brigantine,

Alcion. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 924

Letter 28
June 20, 1822. Monterey.

Solá to de la Guerra on the former's election as deputy to the Imperial Cortés; arrangements to be

made for his departure; Estudillo and Moraga mentioned; on a contract made with an Englishman,

Luís Macala and Guillermo Arnel (Hartnell) which is advantageous to California; comments on the

lazy character of the Californians; on Quartara having the means to stay in California; on receipt of a

letter from Emperor Iturbide concerning an order he gave in Guadalajara. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 924

Letter 29

Sept. 21, 1822. Monterey.

Solá to de la Guerra on a robbery committed by the captain, pilot and supercargo of the American

sloop, El Aguila, on the Mexican ship, San Francisco de Paula; gives instructions. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 924

Letter 30
Nov. 15, 1822. Monterey.

Solá to de la Guerra concerning Manuel García who is coming to Monterey to adjust matters relative

to the ship, El Aguila. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 924

Letter 31
Febr. 4, 1823. Tepic.

Solá to de la Guerra on his arrival in Mexico; on opposition to Iturbide in Mexico; sends greetings to

various persons. Partly tarnished. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 924

Letter 32
Apr. 10, 1823. Guadalajara.

Solá to de la Guerra on turbulence in Mexico; mentions Bonifacio de Tosta, Luís Argüello, José

Manuel Ruíz as appointees but fears they will be ineffective; mentions also a certain Maldonado, José

Ignacio García Ylluca, the latter a close friend of Solá. Partly damaged. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 924

Letter 33
June 18, 1823. Mexico.

Solá to de la Guerra on his arrival at the capital; his position as deputy; political conditions; Emperor

Iturbide deposed and exiled to Italy; economic conditions; in his last days in office Iturbide had

appointed as commandant general of the Californias, captain of a frigate, Bonifacio de Tosta with

Luís [Argüello] as second in command; states that de la Guerra should have been given the post "as

senior and more active;" José Manuel Ruíz was named commander of arms in Lower California with

the rank of captain; on a scandalous canon. Partly damaged. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 925

Letter 1
July 30, 1817. Los Angeles.

Instructions given by Solá to the military escort of three Americans and one Spaniard from San Luis

Obispo to Presidio Santa Barbara. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 926

Letter 1
Dec. 3, 1818. Rancho del Real Hacienda.

Solá to Fray Luís Martínez, O.F.M. praising him for being a true and loyal Spaniard. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 926

Letter 2
Dec. 18, 1818. Soledad.

Solá to Martínez praising him for his prudent remarks. Spanish. 1 p.
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Letter 1
Sept. 18, 1819. Rancho del Real Hacienda.

Solá to the captain and officers of the Presidio Santa Barbara on de la Guerra going to Mexico in the

interests of the California presidios. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 928

Letter 1
Dec. 15, 1818. San Carlos.

Solá to María Antonia Carrillo de la Guerra on the birth of Pablo de la Guerra; on the invitation given

to Solá to be godfather; his inability to act in person and delegating the honor to Gabriel Moraga.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 929

Letter 1
Febr. 11, 1854.

A. P. Somellera to Antonio María de la Guerra on the arrival of the Vaquero; on merchandise

destined for the latter; on the illness of Guillermo Hartnell. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 929

Letter 2
Jan. 6, 1855. San Francisco.

Somillera to de la Guerra on a commercial matter; on a certain Gómez; on the future arrival in Santa

Barbara of his friend, Francisco Lasso de la Vega. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 929

Letter 3
Jan. 27, 1855. San Francisco,

Somillera to de la Guerra thanking him for his reception of Lasso de la Vega; mentioned are

Covarrubias and Gómez; on goods received from the ship, America; mentions a Cuesta and González;

wishes de la Guerra's restoration to health. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 929

Letter 4
Febr. 1, 1855. San Francisco.

Somillera to de la Guerra on the latter's coming to San Francisco; mentions Gómez and Covarrubias;

asks for the quickest way a letter may be sent to San Luis Obispo. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 929

Letter 5
March 8, 1855. San Francisco.

Somillera to de la Guerra on prices of goods; on regulating the account of Anguisola; the loss of

7,000 pesos; a business affair of Gómez; mentions [Alfred] Robinson and [Henry?] Mellus. Spanish.

2 pp.

DLG 929

Letter 6
March 18, 1855. San Francisco.

Somillera to de la Guerra on financial matters; mentioned are Anguisola, a Don Miguel and Polí.

Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 930

Letter 1

Febr. 24, 1854. San Francisco.

A. P. Somillera to Pablo de la Guerra on recommending Higinio Gómez as a translator of laws;

mentioned is a Mr. Fisher. Spanish. 1 pp.

DLG 930

Letter 2
May 5, 1854. San Francisco.

Somillera to de la Guerra on Gómez being named, as translator of laws for the state. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 930

Letter 3
May 8, 1854. San Francisco.

Somillera to de la Guerra on Gómez and his new office as translator. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 930

Letter 4
May 12, 1854. San Francisco.

Somillera to de la Guerra on Gómez as translator; his presenting a claim to the assembly. Spanish. 1

p.

DLG 930

Letter 5
Dec. 2, 1855.

Somillera to de la Guerra on family matters; on Angustias de la Guerra going to Mexico. Spanish. 1 p.
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Letter 1
c. 1855.

The Rev. Cayetano Sorrentini to José de la Guerra asking him for some straw to be placed in a box

which the bishop, Tadeo [Amat] is sending to Los Angeles by steamer. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 932

Letter 1
March 12, 1856. Monterey.

Sorrentini to Archbishop Joseph Sadoc Alemany on the search for Serra's remains at Carmel Mission.

Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 933

Letter 1
Febr. 7, 1840. Santa Barbara.

Isaac Sparkes to José de la Guerra asking permission to hunt for sea otters in Lower California. De la

Guerra's permit given at Santa Barbara, Febr. 8, 1840. 3 pp.

DLG 934

Letter 1
Jan. 6, 1851. Santa Barbara.

Sparkes to Francisco de la Guerra concerning a future meeting. English. 1 p.

DLG 935

Letter 1
Febr. 2, 1857. Monterey.

David Spence to Pablo de la Guerra on squatters and the decision of Judges McAllister and Hester;

mention of Rancho San Leandro; comments on the "appointment of commissioners to regulate

watercourses" before the assembly. 1 p.

DLG 936

Letter 1
Oct. 23, 1849. San Francisco.

Stephan Splivalo to José de la Guerra sending him a letter from Antonio José Cot dated Los Angeles,

Apr. 17, 1849; on commercial matters relative to the latter and to Cesareo Lataillade; mentions

[Antonio] Malagrida. 2 pp.

DLG 936

Letter 2
Nov. 11, 1849. San Francisco.

Splivalo to de la Guerra on commercial matters relative to Cot; mentions Malagrida, [Cesareo]

Lataillade and Simón Roc; also contains a letter dated Los Angeles, Apr. 7, 1849, from José Antonio

Cot to de la Guerra on the termination of the company of Antonio Malagrida and Cot is to substitute

for Splivalo; de la Guerra is to hand over the trust previously committed to him to Cot. 3 pp.

DLG 936

Letter 3
Jan. 1, 1851. San Francisco.

Splivalo to de la Guerra on a business matter; his going to Stockton with his family; his having been

in the mines. 1 p

DLG 937

Letter 1

Sept. 12, 1866. San Francisco.

Thomas Sprague to Charles E. Huse on legal matters; mentioned are Colonia, Bishop [Tadeo] Amat,

Parsons, Hot Springs, Pringle, Chapman, Calleguas, Simi, Las Pozas, Smith, Refugio, Cañada Larga,

Church, Tico, a Rev. Warren, a Dr. Stone, a Dr. Scudder, Arnis Merrill; on money to be obtained for

planting vines, almonds, olives, English walnuts, castor beans, silk, figs, prunes, etc.; oil springs;

Lovett, Crooks and Burnett lots; the Philadelphia and California Petroleum Co., Wells Fargo, Curtis,

Laird, Huinimi (sic!), San Luis Rey. English. 4 pp.

DLG 937

Letter 2
Oct. 7, 1867. San Francisco.

Sprague to Huse concerning Curtis who had been shown a diseño; on legal matters relative to land;

persons involved not named but referred to as "P" and "C" etc.; mentioned are Terrill and Henry and

John Cowell; the San Francisco and Ft. Yuma Railroad and a Mrs. Bates. English. 4 pp.
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DLG 937

Letter 3
Nov. 1, 1867. San Francisco.

Sprague to Huse on S. H. Neile of Indian Valley, Plumas County, who is looking for land on which to

graze sheep; mentions Las Pozas and Simi; death of Mrs. Dr. Letterman; money and real estate

matters; mention of Stuart, Pringle, Merrill, Neale, Santa Ana, Dubbins; José Moraga is thinking of

going to Santa Barbara to marry one of Camarrillo girls a matter that is confidential; Ortega Hill; asks

him to sell anything, for Sprague needs the money; states "you will be astonished at the number of

people that will be in Santa Barbara in six months from now;" San Leandro [Rancho] has been sold

by a Frenchman. English. 4 pp.

DLG 937

Letter 4
Nov. 25, 1867. San Francisco.

Sprague to Huse on financial matters; many persons mentioned; trial run of an engine on the San José

Railroad; real estate matters; Mr. Jacob and the Hot Springs. English. 7 pp.

DLG 937

Letter 5
Dec. 16, 1867. San Francisco.

Sprague to Huse mentioning various persons re real estate; announces that a Mr. Russell leased for

ten years "all the lands of the church of the ex-mission of Santa Barbara"; the Simi case is still not

settled. English. 4 pp.

DLG 937

Letter 6
c. 1867.

Sprague to Huse concerning the franchise over the San Marco Pass; many people are inquiring about

Santa Barbara; railroad development; financial matters: Incomplete. English. 2 pp.

DLG 937

Letter 7
March 24, 1868. San Francisco.

Sprague to Huse concerning Toro Canyon land. English. 2 pp.

DLG 937

Letter 8
May 29, 1868. San Francisco.

Sprague to Huse on [Abel] Stearns closing a deal for 170,000 acres; the interests of others in the deal;

interest in the Southern Pacific Railroad; homesteading. English. 2 pp.

DLG 937

Letter 9
Nov. 4, 1868. San Francisco.

Sprague to Huse on real estate; various interested parties mentioned. English. 2 pp.

DLG 937

Letter 10
Jan. 1-2, 1869. San Francisco.

Sprague to Huse on various persons; prospective buyers; a Dr. Spaulding to come to Santa Barbara;

mentions Colonia and Najalayegua; asks him to have John T. Stow return his flags and chains; is hard

up for money. English. 4 pp.

DLG 937

Letter 11
Apr. 2, 1869. San Francisco.

Sprague to Huse on a survey of Hot Springs Canyon; on a rumor of the ex-mission being somewhat

revived; asks if oil lands of Santa Barbara are good for anything; the arrival of Miller of Miller and

Lux in San Francisco; various real estate deals; earthquake in San Francisco on Apr. 1; financial

matters; Colonia, Cañada Larga and Calleguas mentioned. English. 4 pp.

DLG 937

Letter 12
June 2, 1869. San Francisco.

Sprague to Huse on the proposed sale of Colonia mentioned are a Mr. Hill of S. A. Morrison and Co.;

Bard and Cobb. English. 2 pp.

DLG 937

Letter 13
Nov. 13, 1869. San Francisco.

Sprague to Huse concerning a certain Reynolds and his interest in buying out Mr. Packard and the de

la Guerras; the San Pedro purchase was made a part of the Colonia purchase; mentions a Mr. Cobb.

English. 4 pp.
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DLG 937

Letter 14
Nov. 24, 1869. San Francisco.

Sprague to Huse concerning John P. Manrow about stock; on his proposal to sell his Philadelphia and

California petroleum stock to Huse; on a Dr. Stebbins; reference to the Bard case; on a proposal to

contest "Don Pablo's election." English. 4 pp.

DLG 937

Letter 15
Jan. 7, 1870. San Francisco.

Sprague to Huse on the interest of Capt. E. F. Northum of the Stearns ranchos and an unnamed person

from the city of Nevada as prospective buyers; Ochoa confident in selling Colonia; John Swift

coming to Santa Barbara, interested in land; Dubbin's interest in Colonia; mentions [Albert] Packard

and Reynolds. English. 2 pp.

DLG 937

Letter 16
Oct. 24, 1870. San Francisco.

Sprague to Huse on proposed sale of land in San Francisco. English. 2 pp.

DLG 937

Letter 17
Apr. 15, 1871. San Francisco.

Sprague to Huse on a vineyard and orchards; mentions a Captain Tripp; a Mr. Schnell interested in

acreage close to a steamboat landing; lands at Refugio and Colonia offered him. English. 2 pp.

DLG 937

Letter 18
June 19-20, 1871. San Francisco.

Sprague to Huse on business affairs; mentions a Mr. Gallagher, a W. S. Chapman, a director of the

Pacific Bank who claimed Colonia land the best in California; a Frenchman who is in charge of Santa

Cruz Island; Mr. Mosher's interest in Colonia; mentions [Charles] Fernald; on school lands; Gallagher

and the bank; and Chapman's interest in Colonia; on Englishmen who wish to build a railroad direct

from San Francisco to Norfolk, Va.; his own financial situation. English. 3 pp.

DLG 937

Letter 19
July 6, 1871. San Francisco.

Sprague to Huse on a Mr. Jones and a friend interested in Colonia; his business relations with a Mr.

Forbes; Grogan's interest in ranchos; Sprague's offer of Conejo. English. 3 pp.

DLG 937

Letter 20
Aug. 24, 1871. San Francisco.

Sprague to Huse on Manrow coming to Santa Barbara; on the Orizaba; is interested in Colonia;

Refugio mentioned; also Hollister and Yndart. English. 2 pp.

DLG 937

Letter 21
Aug. 16, 1871. San Francisco.

Sprague to Huse on land; various persons mentioned: a Don Bernardo, Frank, Whittall, Mourow,

Bruno, Hollister, Dibblee, Refugio. English. 1 p.

DLG 937

Letter 22
Febr. 23, 1874. San Francisco.

Sprague to Huse on the arrival of Mr. Sullivan; on Cañada Larga and Church, president of the Ojai

Co. English. 1 p.

DLG 937

Letter 23
Febr. 24, 1874. San Francisco.

Sprague to Huse on urging Packard to recommend the purchase of Colonia and Cañada Larga;

Sprague is interested in going to Durango to obtain a bromide mine; on the Caroline Prin block; asks

him to push Colonia and Canada Larga. English. 2 pp.

DLG 937

Letter 24
March 16, 1874.

Sprague to Huse on Morrison's interest in Colonia; on Cañada Larga. English. 1 p.
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DLG 937

Letter 25
March 17, 1874. San Francisco.

Sprague to Huse on a business deal with Bard; on the need of recording a letter of Parsons. English. 2

pp.

DLG 937

Letter 26
June 1, 1874. San Francisco.

Sprague to Huse on a Mr. Johnson; Sprague cannot get the bromide mine until the middle of October;

proposed sale of school and tide lands; wants to "get something" out of Colonia and Cañada Larga;

refers to Den title. English. 2 pp.

DLG 937

Letter 27
Aug. 1, 1874. San Francisco.

Sprague to Huse on the former's reliance on Huse as a lawyer; Huse's going east; Sprague's interest in

the Mexican mine; school lands; Refugio, a certain Solomon to confer with Huse; his anxiety to go to

Mexico. English. 2 pp.

DLG 937

Letter 28
Without date or: place.

Sprague to Huse on the Refugio case; on lodging to be obtained at Rosette House; on his going to

Mexico; on giving land to squatters José, Alejando and Enrique and a Mr. Bell; on the Pikes from

Ohio looking for a home in Santa Barbara; are to be shown Colonia and Najalayegua; mentioned are

Cobb and Given; thinks of entering a suit with regard to Colonia; on banks; a copy of the Santa

Barbara Post received. English. 4 pp.

DLG 938

Letter 1
June 3, 1858. San Francisco.

Edwin McMasters Stanton to Pablo de la Guerra on his commission by the president of the U. S. to

visit California on public business and to obtain information on commercial regulations, course of

trade, internal administration, and trade and commerce during the Mexican period; was directed to see

de la Guerra, but his health prevents him from going to Santa Barbara. English. 2 pp.

DLG 938

Letter 2
June 15, 1858. San Francisco.

Stanton to de la Guerra on his having studied the Benecia archives; his non-need of going to Santa

Barbara. English. 1 p.

DLG 938

Letter 3
May 4, 1860. Washington , D.C.

Stanton to de la Guerra concerning a Mr. Latham; on his respect for de la Guerra; on Miss Robinson's

death. English. 1 p.

DLG 939

Letter 1
Apr. 28, 1866. Los Angeles.

Abel Stearns to Pablo de la Guerra offering Los Coyotes and Jurupa Ranchos for sale. English. 2 pp.

DLG 940

Letter 1
Nov. 16, 1860. Sacramento.

Jacob Steinmann to Pablo de la Guerra asking to be appointed as one of the porters of the Senate, for

he needs the position to support his aging father and three younger brothers; gives Governor Downey

as reference. English. 3 pp.

DLG 941

Letter 1
1 letter, July 2, and receipt, July 4, 1848.

Jonathan Drake Stevenson to José Antonio de la Guerra. In folder of the Canon Perdido Affair.

DLG 942

Letter 1
Dec. 26, 1855. San Francisco.

Jonathan Drake Stevenson to Pablo de la Guerra: a printed form letter in English and Spanish offering

to institute and collect claims against the federal government for property taken during the Mexican

war, together with two related legal documents. 5 pp.
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DLG 943

Letter 1
July 7, 1862. San Francisco.

Stevenson to Pablo de la Guerra on the former's nomination to the office of state superintendent of

public instruction; as a fellow Democrat he asks de la Guerra's support. English. 4 pp.

DLG 943

Letter 2
July 20, 1861. San Francisco.

Stevenson to de la Guerra introducing a friend, Dr. Townsend Hudourt, who is to promote

immigration into California. English. 2 pp.

DLG 944

Letter 1
Dec. 29, 1886. Sacramento.

George Stevenson, governor of California, to Francis [Alphaeus] Thompson, appointing him as

notary public for the County of Ventura. Partly printed. English. 1 p.

DLG 945

Letter 1
Apr. 18, 1849.

David B. Streeter. See document filed under Reed (William) Family Murders.

DLG 946

Letter 1
June 16, 1851. Washington, D.C.

Alex Hugh Holmes Stuart to the marshals of California on not having received information as to

whether they had entered bond or taken oath of office. An extract. English. 1 p.

DLG 947

Letter 1
Aug. 10, 1852. Washington, D.C.

Stuart to Pablo de la Guerra asking for an account of the estimates of his office for the fiscal year

ending June 30, 1853. Printed. English. 1 p.

DLG 947

Letter 2
Aug. 11, 1852. Washington, D.C.

Stuart to de la Guerra asking for an account for the fiscal year ending June 30, 1854. Printed. English.

1 p.

DLG 948

Letter 1
Sept. 13, 1820. Santa Barbara.

An account of the dedication ceremonies of the new church of Mission Santa Barbara by Fray

Francisco Suñer, O.F.M., copied from the baptismal register of the same mission by the Rev. John B.

Valio, S.J., assistant pastor, July 6, 1909. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 949

Letter 1
Oct. 10, 1824. San Buenaventura.

Fray Francisco Suñer, O.F.M., to Carlos Antonio Carrillo on a monetary matter, followed by a note

by José de la Guerra. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 950

Letter 1
No date. San Buenaventura.

Suñer to José de la Guerra on sending a gift of cloth. Partly torn. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 950

Letter 2
Febr. 3, 1824. San Buenaventura.

Suñer to de la Guerra sending a statue of St. Francis to Santa Barbara; on rations for the guard;

departure of the majordomo to obtain tame horses and mules; mentions [Antonio José] Cot. Partly

torn. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 950

Letter 3
Febr. 12, 1827. San Buenaventura.

Suñer to de la Guerra on absentee Indians owing to fiestas. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 951

Letter 1
Aug. 25, 1824. San Jose, Calif.

Antonio Suñol to Fray Luís Antonio Martinez, O.F.M., on the arrival of a sloop; on his inability to

come down to San Luis Obispo; on reports against him made to the government. 3 pp.
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DLG 952

Letter 1
June 25, 1845. La Ballona Rancho.

Sworn testimony of Felipe Talamantes re the boundary lines of San Rafael Rancho granted to José

María Verdugo. Signed by Juan de Jesús Osio. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 953

Letter 1
1818

Tiburcio Tapia to José de la Guerra on receiving two containers of tallow from Patricio Ontiveros.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 953

Letter 2
No date.

Tapia to de la Guerra produce and tithes. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 954

Letter 1
No date.

Tapia to María Antonia Lugo asking her to clarify a request she had made. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 955

Letter 1
Dec. 2, 1815. San Juan Bautista.

Fray Estevan Tapis, O.F.M., to José de la Guerra on the death of the latter's mother, on the arrival of

an expedition about which Juan Ortega will give the details. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 955

Letter 2
Apr. 29, 1818. Santa Cruz.

Tapis to de la Guerra on the latter's promotion to the rank of captain; is serving temporarily at

Mission Santa Cruz; refers to the death of Fray Andrés Quintana, O.F.M., and the Indians who

murdered him; asks him not to believe the report that Indians placed poison in the food of two

missionaries who were recently there; the visit of father prefect to Santa Cruz, sends greetings to

alférez Joaquín Maitorena. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 956

Letter 1
Sept. 8, 1858. Monterey.

Alexander Smith Taylor to Pablo de la Guerra introducing Thomas Williamson, special constable for

the U.S. Commissioners Court; the lack of a deputy marshal in Monterey places Williamson in a

peculiar position; Williamson cannot come to Santa Barbara. English. 3 pp.

DLG 956

Letter 3
Aug. 17, 1820. San Juan Bautista.

Tapis to de la Guerra on the latter's return from Mexico; states he had prayed for him. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 957

Letter 1

Nov. 11, 1850. Nipomo.

Harry A. Tefft to Pablo de la Guerra regarding a Dr. Brent and the cholera epidemic in California.

English. 3 pp.

DLG 958

Letter 1
Aug. 8, 1843. Los Angeles.

John Temple to José de la Guerra; an order to pay Alphaeus B. Thompson 160 pesos for five otter

skins. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 958

Letter 2
Apr. 5, 1852. Los Cerritos Rancho.

Rafaela Cota Temple to José de la Guerra asking him to convey an accompanying letter to her

mother. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 959

Letter 1
Apr. 5, 1852. Los Cerritos Rancho.

Rafaela Cota Temple to José de la Guerra. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 960

Letter 1
May 3, 1813. San Carlos.

Ignacio Tenorio to José de la Guerra on being commended to him by Mateo [Plovas?]. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 960

Letter 2
Nov. 19, 1814. San Antonio.

Tenorio to de la Guerra thanking de la Guerra for aid given to him. Spanish. 2 pp.
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DLG 960

Letter 3
June 23, 1816. San Gabriel.

Tenorio to de la Guerra thanking him for a favor; on mail; mentions Fray Antonio [Ripoll], O.F.M.,

[Ramón] Abella, O.F.M., and Luís Argüello. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 960

Letter 4
Oct. 11, 1816. San Gabriel.

Tenorio to de la Guerra on sending mail safely; mentions Abella. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 961

Letter 1
Oct. 15, 1854. San Francisco.

Alphaeus Basil Thompson to Francis Alphaeus Thompson on the latter's education in the east; chides

him for forwarding little information about himself; gives news on various members of the family; his

own illness; gives him advice. English. 43 pp.

DLG 961

Letter 2
Sept. 1, 1857. Monterey.

Thompson to Thompson praising him for going to live with the Wolcotts; states that he is in

Monterey because of a suit against him by John C. Jones relative to Santa Rosa Island; the court

decision; the latter's brothers and sisters going to school at San Jose; gives advice and direction.

English. 4 pp.

DLG 962

Letter 1
March 24, 1856. San Francisco.

Alphaeus B. Thompson to Pablo de la Guerra on the Settlers' Bill in Sacramento. English. 1 p.

DLG 962

Letter 2
Sept. 26, 1856. Santa Barbara.

Thompson to de la Guerra on the illness of Francis Thompson in the east; on sending a bill for sheep

sold to to Alexander Mellus, and Col. Williams. English. 1 p.

DLG 963

Letter 1
Febr. 19, 1859. Santa Barbara.

Alphaeus B. Thompson to Francisco and Pablo de la Guerra on money due him. English. 1 p.

DLG 964

Letter 1
Aug. 31, 1866. Santa Barbara.

Charles Alexander Thompson to Ana de la Guerra Thompson concerning the chirography of a letter.

Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 965

Letter 1
May 5, 1888. Santa Barbara.

C. A. Thompson to Francis Alphaeus Thompson on his inability to find a requested record re case of

Constancia vs. Nash. Written in pencil. English. 1 p.

DLG 965

Letter 2
May 10, 1888. Santa Barbara.

Thompson to Thompson on the ownership of a lot in Santa Barbara; mentioned are Adelaida and

Refugio García de Arrellanes, Vicente García and a Padre Joaquín. Written in pencil. English and

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 966

Letter 1
Nov. 27, 1894. Los Angeles.

Francis Alphaeus Thompson to Joseph Thompson; a chatty family letter to a youth of the age of

seven. English. 1 p.

DLG 967

Letter 1
Dec. 1, 1840. New York.

Wildes T. Thompson to Alphaeus B. Thompson on his return from Liverpool; on family matters.

English. 4 pp.

DLG 968

Letter 1
June 17, 1841. Santa Barbara.

Fernando Tico to José de la Guerra on Julián the Englishman [Foxen?] seeing José Ayala and Juan

José López. Writing unclear. Spanish. 2 pp.
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DLG 969

Letter 1
June 29, 1849. San Joaquín Rancho.

Fernando Tico to Miguel de la Guerra asking for sickles. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 970

Letter 1
Jan. 29, 1860. San Buenaventura.

Tico to Pablo de la Guerra congratulating him on becoming president of the California Senate; on

Tico's receiving his land from the surveyor general on which, however, the house of Camarrillo and

A. Solari was located; stating they should either buy that section of the land or pay him for it; asks de

la Guerra to see to it that his patent arrives soon so that he can take care of the situation. Spanish. 2

pp.

DLG 971

Letter 1
May 11, 1859. San Francisco.

Frank Tilford to Pablo de la Guerra concerning the coming Democratic Convention of June 22, and

asks de la Guerra to back Judge E. H. McKinstry; gives his qualifications, English. 2 pp.

DLG 972

Letter 1
Dec. 31, 1854. Monterey.

Rev. [L.?] Tilateo to José de la Guerra asking him for a barrel of wine for ecclesiastical use. Spanish.

1 p.

DLG 973

Letter 1
Apr. 14, 1854. San Francisco.

Hopeful Toler to Pablo de la Guerra asking for the position of translator of California laws into

Spanish, had studied law under Philip Barbour of the U.S. Supreme Court, and had lived for twenty

years in Cuba and Puerto Rico, and as U.S. consul in Puerto Rico. English. 2 pp.

DLG 974

Letter 1
June 17, 1843. Mexico.

José M. Tornel y Mendivel transmitting a copy of Santa Ana's decree of June 7, 1843, concerning

foreigners. Copy attested to by Vicente Sánchez, alcalde of Los Angeles, Febr. 3, 1845. Spanish. 4

pp.

DLG 975

Letter 1
May 16, 1856. San Francisco.

Vicente Torres to José de la Guerra sending him a copy of the newspaper, El Eco del Pacífico,

suggesting he subscribe to it; on awaiting books and printed matter from Barcelona; the future arrival

of Bishop [Tadeo] Amat. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 976

Letter 1
June 15, 1846. Mazatlán.

F. de la Torre Jacker y Cía. to José de la Guerra on items being sent to Bishop Francisco García

Diego y Moreno on the frigate, Quijote, whose captain is S. Paty. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 977

Letter 1
Febr. 1, 1801. Mexico.

José Joaquín de la Torre y Enterría, his filiación as a soldier; came to California with José de la

Guerra. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 978

Letter 1
Without place or date.

José Joaquín de la Torre y Enterría to José de la Guerra on the areas of Piru and Sespi; mentions Fray

José Señán, O.F.M. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 978

Letter 2
May 8, 1821. Monterey.

De la Torre y Enterría to de la Guerra on a family matter and a certain Domingo. Spanish. 2 pp.
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DLG 978

Letter 3
Febr. 22, 1822. Monterey.

De la Torre y Enterría to de la Guerra on the former's desire to retire; on wine and brandy; concerning

a ranch [Piru or Sespi/]; references to Fathers Napoleón [Ibarra, O.F.M.] and [José] Señán, O.F.M.

Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 978

Letter 4
Apr. 22, 1824. Monterey.

De la Torre y Enterría to de la Guerra on a commercial matter of wine and brandy; letters; talk at

presidio about de la Guerra. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 979

Letter 1
Nov. 10, 1860. Sacramento.

Charles H. Tozer to Pablo de la Guerra on former's desire to act as secretary of the California Senate.

Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 980

Letter 1
Dec. 16, 1817. San Blas.

Gonzalo Ulloa to José de la Guerra on the former's illness; the latter's arrival; concerning a certain

Isidro; asks de la Guerra to visit the family of Felipe Martinez in Mexico. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 980

Letter 2
Sept. 24, 1819. Brigantine San Carlos.

Ulloa to de la Guerra on commercial matters. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 980

Letter 3
Sept. 28, 1819. Brigantine San Carlos.

Ulloa to de la Guerra on his inability to take on certain objects for California. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 980

Letter 4
Oct. 1, 1819. Brigantine San Carlos.

Ulloa to de la Guerra on his lack of two sailing personnel; Juan de las Daimas and the sailor, José

Tiburcio Castillo; asks de la Guerra to get them on land and to take them to San Pedro or San Diego.

In de la Guerra's hand: permission for the soldier [Florentino?] Machinchi to return to Mexico; Ulloa

to bring him to San Blas. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 980

Letter 5
Oct. 8, 1819. San Pedro.

Ulloa to de la Guerra on his arrival, bringing wine and brandy, and concerning duty. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 980

Letter 6
March 23, 1819. San Blas.

Ulloa to de la Guerra on commercial matters. Partly blotted. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 980

Letter 7
May 1, 1820. San Blas.

Ulloa to de la Guerra on commercial matters. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 981

Letter 1
Sept. 30, 1819. Santa Barbara.

Agreement between Gonzalo Ulloa, Pedro Rodríguez and José de la Guerra re a consignment of

cinnamon. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 982

Letter 1
Oct. 27, 1815. Santa Ines.

Fray Francisco Xavier Uría, O.F.M. to José de la Guerra, on receiving letters; "just when the Indians

were leaving." Spanish. 2 pp.
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DLG 982

Letter 2
c. Nov. 1815. Santa Ines.

Uría to de la Guerra (Mr. Saytas) on receiving letters; eleven mules and four mecos (dark colored

animals) are returning; Governor Solá is in San Francisco to see the Russian ships; a reference to the

Colorado River campaign; the new church to be roofed with tiles in a few days. Spanish. 2 pp.

(NOTE: Father Uría had the custom when writing to de la Guerra, of addressing him under various

names, either of known persons or fictitiously composed. Whenever this employment is used, the

name follows de la Guerra in parentheses.)

DLG 982

Letter 3
Dec. 3, 1815. Santa Barbara.

Uría to de la Guerra (Don Silverio) stating that he is sending Julián with a macha to bring panocha

and pavilo; asks what the price is; refers to de la Guerra's indisposition. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 982

Letter 4
Dec. 28, 1815. Santa Ines.

Uría to de la Guerra on twelve saddles in readiness to be sent. Partly torn. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 982

Letter 5
Jan. 2, 1816. Santa Ines.

Uría to de la Guerra (Don Silverio) on the latter's happy Christmas season; sends him the names of

the new Indian alcaldes and accounts. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 982

Letter 6
Jan. 8, 1816. Santa Ines.

Uría to de la Guerra (Don Silverio) sending him a report through Tomás Olivera; on the amount of

beans he can send him; on saddles. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 982

Letter 7
Jan. 14, 1816. Santa Ines.

Uría to de la Guerra (Mr. Tallerand) concerning a certain Mr. Smith; on the number of marriages at

the mission. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 982

Letter 8
Jan. 28 1816. Santa Ines.

Uría to de la Guerra (Mr. Urquiso) on the latter not coming to the fiesta [of Santa Ines, Jan. 21]; on

finishing saddles; will be making albordas for burros. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 982

Letter 9
Febr, 24, 1816. Santa Ines.

Uría to de la Guerra (Sir Suchet) on what food he can spare; mentions a sloop; invites him to Santa

Ines to celebrate the feast of St. Joseph [March 19]. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 982

Letter 10

Apr. 17, 1816. Santa Ines.

Uría to de la Guerra sending him the cumplimiento de iglesia and states the blacksmiths have finished

their work. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 982

Letter 11
Apr. 20, 1816. Santa Ines.

Uría to de la Guerra (Mr. Dupont) sending him flour; states that onions and potatoes are available.

Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 982

Letter 12
June 26, 1816. Santa Ines.

Uría to de la Guerra (Mister) mentions father prefect at Purisima; says Governor Solá wants fifteen or

twenty cowboys but that he does not even have eleven; he is to have reatas and four saddles made.

Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 982

Letter 13
July 4, 1816. Santa Ines.

Uría to de la Guerra on crops; the new church. Spanish. 2 pp.
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DLG 982

Letter 14
July 8, 1816. Santa Ines.

Uría to de la Guerra (Mr. Nelson) on giving his opinion about using cowboys as guards; the new

church. Spanish.

DLG 982

Letter 15
July 11, 1816. Santa Ines.

Uría to de la Guerra (Mr. Nicolás) on sending items; on armed preparedness; Sola's request for 1,000

chamois garments. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 982

Letter 16
Aug. 7, 1816. Santa Ines.

Uría to de la Guerra (Mr. Bulnes) on the latter having received newspapers and not sending them to

him; has grain and beans available. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 982

Letter 17
Aug. 21, 1816. Santa Ines.

Uría to de la Guerra (Mr. Norris) concerning news; is sending flour. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 982

Letter 18
Sept. 4, 1816. Santa Ines.

Uría to de la Guerra on the latter's statement that he had never eaten worse bread; on sending him

items; the presence of an English brigantine at Monterey. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 982

Letter 19
Oct. 30, 1816. Santa Ines

Uría to de la Guerra (Mr. Stanhop) sending him flour, and cloth; states that the maize harvest is

finished. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 982

Letter 20
Oct. 20, 1816. Santa Ines.

Uría to de la Guerra (Mr. Segre) on the arrival of old coach drivers and many people; the sweetheart

of Rafaela to be married on the morrow. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 982

Letter 21
Nov. 1, 1816. Santa Ines

Uría to de la Guerra (Madama Maytenoir) on detaining two soldiers to help capture two Indians who

fled from San Gabriel, whom he is sending to de la Guerra. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 982

Letter 22
Nov. 6, 1816. Santa Ines

Uría to de la Guerra on the former's return from Purisima is sending him four pesos for those who

captured the runaways; says some are musicians and one in charge of the choir; asks that they be

punished but not imprisoned. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 982

Letter 23
Nov. 9, 1816. Santa Ines

Uría to de la Guerra (Mr. Suchet) on the return of three Indians to the mission. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 982

Letter 24
Nov. 13, 1816. Santa Ines

Uría to de la Guerra (Mr. Klac) on a visit on the morrow to Santa Barbara of a "Padre Preguntas."

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 982

Letter 25
Nov. 27, 1816. Santa Ines.

Uría to de la Guerra (Tío Molinar) on the arrival of Tapia, who will leave with forty pieces of gear

and sixty mules; will send flour. A short note is added by Fray Román [Ulibarri], O.F.M. Spanish. 2

pp.

DLG 982

Letter 26
Nov. 28, 1816. Santa Ines.

Uría to de la Guerra (Mr. Burinat) on sending forty equipped mules and twenty-six (unequipped) with

Tapia. Spanish. 2 pp.
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DLG 982

Letter 27
Dec. 6, 1816. Santa Ines.

Uría to de la Guerra (Mr. Pigot) on hearing a cannonade the day before. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 982

Letter 28
Dec. 29, 1816. Santa Ines.

Uría to de la Guerra (Mr. Madison) giving reasons for not writing; on sending for plates from de la

Guerra's house; invites de la Guerra to Santa Ines. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 982

Letter 29
Jan. 10, 1817. Santa Ines.

Uría to de la Guerra (Señor Don Don Napoleon de la Gracia y Justicia) on the death of Napoleon;

sending vital statistics; on articles and arms; his reasons for not writing to Governor Solá. Partly torn.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 982

Letter 30
Jan. 22, 1817. Santa Ines.

Uría to de la Guerra (Mr. Estrada) sending reports on alcaldes; on padrones; on not wishing a draft for

Guadalajara but Mexico; on glass windows for the church. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 982

Letter 31
Febr. 19, 1817. Santa Ines.

Uría to de la Guerra (Mr. Habilitado) on receiving thread and ribbon; mentions sergeant Palomares:

rain has been good but the zacate has not grown; mules have not died; asks him to send two bulas de

carne if they are available. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 982

Letter 32
Febr. 27, 1817. Santa Ines.

Uría to de la Guerra (Mr. Oliet) on letters received and sent; on available foodstuffs. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 982

Letter 33
March 7, 1817. Santa Ines.

Uría to de la Guerra on the inability of animals to cross the swollen river; no growth of zacate; snow

fell near the mission. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 982

Letter 34
Apr. 2, 1817. Santa Ines.

Uría to de la Guerra (Mr. Vanespesor) on a commercial matter and soldiers. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 982

Letter 35
Apr. 10, 1817. Santa Ines.

Uría to de la Guerra (Mr. Hambre) on receiving two mules; sending maize; wheat will be a poor crop;

much rain. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 982

Letter 36
May 9, 1817. Santa Ines

Uría to de la Guerra (Sr. Tamalonga) sending flour and maize; conditions at the mission; invites him

to the mission; complains about his eyes; sends the cumplimiento de iglesia. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 982

Letter 37
c. 1817. Santa Ines

Uría to de la Guerra (Mr. Madison) sending him various items; he hears about the Kodiaks leaving in

their fishing boats; sends regards to Esmit (Smith) and Castillo. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 982

Letter 38
Jan. 8, 1818. Santa Ines.

Uría to de la Guerra sending him the items requested. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 982

Letter 39
May 27, 1818. Santa Ines.

Uría to de la Guerra (Mr.) on items received; no Indians have fled; Anastasio [Carrillo] wants to go to

San Luis Obispo with Uría. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 982

Letter 40
June 21, 1818. Santa Ines.

Uría to de la Guerra sending him six containers of pinewood; on applying a Mass intention. Spanish.

1 p.
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DLG 982

Letter 41
July 9, 1318. Santa Ines.

Uría to de la Guerra on the illness of "cachel" at the presidio. Partly torn. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 982

Letter 42
July 30, 1818. Santa Ines.

Uría to de la Guerra (Mr. Mina) on sending items. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 982

Letter 43
Aug. 7, 1818. Santa Ines

Uría to de la Guerra on a mountain fire; sent the corporal and another person to investigate its cause;

found the incendiary, an Indian, who however, was not culpable in the matter; is sending him to the

presidio; describes his characteristics; on saddles and stockings. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 982

Letter 44
Aug. 13, 1818. Santa Ina.

Uría to de la Guerra on produce. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 982

Letter 45
Sept. 17, 1818. Santa Ines.

Uría to de la Guerra sending him 100 yards of blue cloth and other items; on Señor Ilas; on visitors;

José Ignacio Higuera, a retired soldier, is a servant at the mission. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 982

Letter 46
Oct. 8, 1818. Santa Ines.

Uría to de la Guerra (Mr. Eliot). Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 982

Letter 47
Oct. 12, 1818. Santa Ines.

A certification by Uría on his forgetfulness in signing a circular letter sent by de la Guerra. Spanish. 1

p.

DLG 982

Letter 48
Oct. 15, 1818. Santa 114s.

Uría to de la Guerra (Sr. Chato) on having sent cowboys, a saddle and horses to Solorzano. Spanish. 2

pp.

DLG 982

Letter 49
Oct. 18, 1818. Santa Ines.

Uría to de la Guerra (Mr. Horten) on receiving the latter's plans; is sending him eighteen old horses.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 982

Letter 50
Oct. 22. 1818. Santa Ines.

Uría to de la Guerra stating that he is getting rooms ready for "immigrants;" on notifying sergeant

Ortega; on cowboys, horses, alfalfa, zacate; on his desire to serve the king. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 982

Letter 51
Nov. 1, 1818. Santa MA.

Uría to de la Guerra (Sr. Chato) mentioning Solózano; on Higuera setting out with thirty men and

sixty mules. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 982

Letter 52
Nov. 3, 1818. Santa Ines.

Uría to de la Guerra on cowboys to round up horses. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 982

Letter 53
Nov. 7, 1818. Santa Ines.

Uría to de la Guerra (Mr. Chato) on hopes for rain and growth of zacate, and sending a letter with the

hope that the mail does not go astray. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 982

Letter 54
Nov. 10, 1818. Santa Ines.

Uría to de la Guerra (Mr. Chato) on a Solózano, and bringing salt, 30 men and 60 mules for the

mission. Spanish. 1 p.
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DLG 982

Letter 55
Nov. 23, 1818. Santa Ines

Uría to de la Guerra stating that Anastasio [Carrillo] left with a group. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 982

Letter 56
Dec. 22, 1818. Santa Ines.

Uría to de la Guerra (Mr. Votillas) concerning the horse herd; Martínez is going to Santa Barbara

with his family; supposes that de la Guerra will come to Santa Ines for Noche Buena, the health of

María Antonia, De la Guerra's wife. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 982

Letter 57
c. 1818. Santa Ines.

Uría to de la Guerra (Mr. Mulers) on reading a bando; is forming calendars of events; on a statement

by Father [Antonio] Ripoll, O.F.M., concerning Spain. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 982

Letter 58
Jan. 31, 1819. Santa Ines.

Uría to de la Guerra on horses, soldiers, and the fiesta at Santa Ines. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 982

Letter 59
March 12, 1819. Santa Ines.

Uría to de la Guerra on the arrival of Father Catarino [Rodríguez], O.F.M.; the weather; on the

promise of an alférez to send him two dozen pairs of scissors. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 982

Letter 60
March 18, 1819. Santa Ines.

Uría to de la Guerra sending greetings; on items received; sending two sables, one of steel; mentions

Hilario Jiménez and a Carvajal. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 982

Letter 61
March 20, 1819. Santa Ines.

Uría to de la Guerra (Señor Chato) on items received; mentions Carvajal. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 982

Letter 62
Apr. 26, 1819. Santa Ines.

Uría to de la Guerra (Muy señor mio de la Jeroba) on the coldest wind he ever experienced (a norte);

on Carbajal, produce; and cumplimiento de iglesia. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 982

Letter 63
Apr. 27, 1819. Santa Ines.

Uría to de la Guerra on cowboys; cumplimiento de iglesia, various short items. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 982

Letter 64
Apr. 30, 1819. Santa Ines.

Uría to de la Guerra (Señor Chato) on the arrival of corporal Rodríguez; the mission given him; asks

whether prisoners are to comply with the cumplimiento de iglesia. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 982

Letter 65
May 6, 1819. Santa Ines.

Uría to de la Guerra (Mussieur Gulindaña) on the cold weather and wind; farming; prisoners;

mentions corporal Cuchillo and Tapia. Spanish. 1 pp.

DLG 982

Letter 66
May 12, 1819. Santa Ines.

Uría to de la Guerra (Mr. Carnot) sending him thirty-six cortucheras del reo; much snow and furious

north wind; sending him two "idols." Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 982

Letter 67
May 21, 1819. Santa Ines.

Uría to de la Guerra sending him ten animals; a herd to depart for Santa Barbara on the following

Sunday; food supplies; cowboys; mentions Carvajal. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 982

Letter 68
May 23, 1819. Santa Ines.

Uría to de la Guerra sending him three cowboys and dried fish; asks about Father [José] Señán,

O.F.M. Spanish. 2 pp.
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DLG 982

Letter 69
May 29, 1819. Santa Ines.

Uría to de la Guerra sending him cowboys; on prisoners, on the state of provisions. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 982

Letter 70
May 31, 1819. Santa Ines.

Uría to de la Guerra on sending two cowboys for José Antonio López. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 982

Letter 71
July 20, 1819. Santa Ines.

Uría to de la Guerra (Mr. Quejana) on the latter's indisposition; on receiving beans from Purisima

destined for the presidio; on agricultural supplies. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 982

Letter 72
Aug. 30, 1819. Santa Ines.

Uría to de la Guerra (Mr. Chato) answering a note and stating he is coming to Santa Barbara. Spanish.

2 pp.

DLG 982

Letter 73
Sept. 2, 1819. Santa Ines.

Uría to de la Guerra (Mr. Cri) sending him hemp; a letter to be forwarded to Father [José] Señán,

O.F.M.; financial matters; mentions Azpiroz and José Bandini. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 982

Letter 74
Aug. 11, 1820. Santa Ines.

Uría to de la Guerra on commercial matters. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 982

Letter 75
Aug. 18, 1820. Santa Ines.

Uría to de la Guerra: a few lines relating to the latter's absence during the past year. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 982

Letter 76
Sept. 21, 1820. Santa Ines.

Uría to de la Guerra (Mr. Labioch) on containers; sends message to the lieutenant. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 982

Letter 77
Nov. 5, 1820. Santa Ines.

Uría to de la Guerra on receiving a circular letter from Governor Solá; gives prices of articles.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 982

Letter 78
Nov. 14, 1820. Santa Ines.

Uría to de la Guerra (Mr. Bitiri) on the arrival of two Mazatlán soldiers; has no cowboys to send; can

give soap. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 982

Letter 79
May 5, 1821. Santa Ines.

Uría to de la Guerra sending him an invoice and asking him to return it; asks for his accounts; the

drove of beasts of burden is to leave soon. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 982

Letter 80
May 18, 1821. Santa Ines.

Uría to de la Guerra sending fifty-two pesos through Francisco Cota; on the illness of a relative of de

la Guerra. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 982

Letter 81
June 5, 1821. Santa Ines.

Uría to de la Guerra on the illness of a certain José Ortega; on supplies on hand. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 982

Letter 82
June 11, 1821. Santa Ines.

Uría to de la Guerra on the last illness of José María Ortega. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 982

Letter 83
Oct. 4, 1821. Santa Ines.

Uría to de la Guerra (Sr. Dn. Pedro Celestino Neoreguito) on the request of the San Gabriel

missionaries for the American José [Chapman], for they are constructing a mill similar to the one at

Santa Ines. Spanish. 2 pp.
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DLG 982

Letter 84
Oct. 11, 1821. Santa Ines.

Uría to de la Guerra (Mr.) sending items. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 982

Letter 85
Jan. 3, 1822. Santa Ines.

Uría to de la Guerra sending him belated New Year greetings; invites him to the fiesta of Santa Ines

(Jan. 21), together with his family; on José's Chapman's] transfer to Mission San Gabriel; is afraid

that he will also lose his assistant missionary. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 982

Letter 86
Jan. 28, 1822. Santa Ines.

Uría to de la Guerra asking the latter why he does not send for the things offered him; alludes to the

recent fiesta, José [Chapman?] went to San Buenaventura; horses of the mission. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 982

Letter 87
Febr. 22, [1822?] Santa Ines

Uría to de la Guerra [Mr. Botellas] on sending paper to Father Antonio [Ripoll], O.F.M., sent by the

father prefect; on the death of Bonaparte; political reflections. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 982

Letter 88
July 21, 1822. Santa Ines

Uría to de la Guerra (Mr. Diable) on a commercial deal; on a robbery committed at the Rancho Las

Cruces. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 982

Letter 89
c. July, 1822. Santa Ines

Uría to de la Guerra (Sr. Real Servicio alma de... tío Lucio Flavio) on available foodstuffs; reference

to a tailor; comments on the departure of some Russians. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 982

Letter 90
Aug. 5, 1822. Santa Ines.

Uría to de la Guerra (Mr. Moleta) on the latter complaining about Uría not writing. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 982

Letter 91
Sept. 17, 1822. Santa Ines

Uría to de la Guerra (Mr. Mauler) on Bandini writing to him from El Cojo; stating that he would be at

El Refugio on the following Saturday, that he could not come to the mission; Uría declaring he could

not go to El Refugio. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 982

Letter 92
Sept. 18, 1822. Santa Ines

Uría to de la Guerra (Mr.) sending him an item; asks him if he does not want apples. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 982

Letter 93
Oct. 31, 1822. Santa Ines.

Uría to de la Guerra (Mr. Gor. [Gobernador]) sending corn for the chickens. Partly torn. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 982

Letter 94
Aug. 17, 1825. Soledad.

Uría to de la Guerra (Mr.) on wine; a prisoner; mentions [William] Hartnell, is awaiting soldiers;

Fathers [Luís Gil y]Taboada, O.F.M., and [Felipe]Arroyo [de la Cuesta], O.F.M., are ill; the harvest.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 982

Letter 95
No date. Santa Ines.

Uría to de la Guerra ( Señor de los Apuros) on his manifold duties at the mission; on mules, soldiers;

his building quarters for the latter. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 982

Letter 96
No date.

Uría to de la Guerra (Don Silverio) on receiving a legajo from the latter; gave a letter to Hilario Ruíz;

is sending items. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 982

Letter 97
No date. Santa Ines.

Uría to de la Guerra on items requested. Spanish. 1 p.
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DLG 982

Letter 98
No date.

Uría to de la Guerra (Mr. Pichegru and Chato Maldito) sending him iron through Julián, the muleteer;

asks about a draft; mentions Salvador Azpiroz and corporal Valencia. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 982

Letter 99
Aug. 18, 1822. Santa Ines.

Uría to de la Guerra. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 983

Letter 1
c. 1822. Santa Ines.

Uría to María Antonia Carrillo de la Guerra on sending forty-four mules carrying the sillas (saddles?

chairs?) which were in the "misión de los ortegeños," (the Ortega Rancho) under corporal Antonio.

Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 983

Letter 2
c. 1822. Santa Ints.

Uría to María Antonia sending items. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 984

Letter 1
Nov. 14, 1809. Mexico.

Fray José Antonio Uría, O.F.M., to José de la Guerra on receiving the latter's letter on Aug. 7 while

he was on a spiritual retreat; stating he had suffered fever; is in better health than when he was in

California; three friars are coming to California, among whom are [Pedro] Panto, O.F.M., and

[Marcelino] Marquínez, O.F.M.; is not sending news leaving that to friars [José ] Viñals, O.F.M., and

[Baltasar] Carnicer, O.F.M.; does not waste time in making useless visits but has visited de la

Guerra's cousin; is content at San Fernando College; the archbishop who is acting as viceroy will

spend his feast day at San Fernando College; is a friend of the Franciscans. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 985

Letter 1
May 28, 1824. Los Angeles.

Encarnación Urquides to José de la Guerra on tithes. Incomplete. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 985

Letter 2
June 1, 1824. Los Angeles.

Urquides to de la Guerra notifying him about a fight between Antonio María Nieto and Juan José

Duarte,who were arrested by Guillermo Cota and placed in the guardhouse. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 985

Letter 3
July 23, 1824. Los Angeles.

Urquides to de la Guerra on Bernardo Higuera trying to reclaim a horse taken by Cayetano Duarte.

Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 985

Letter 4

July 27, 1824. Los Angeles.

Urquides to de la Guerra on Indians from Lower California robbing horses in the vicinity of Los

Angeles. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 985

Letter 5
Aug. 16, 1824. Los Angeles.

Urquides to de la Guerra concerning a claim by Tomás Yorba against Guadalupe Coriaga; Patricio

Ontiveros mentioned. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 985

Letter 6
Aug. 25, 1824. Los Angeles.

Urquides to de la Guerra concerning a dispute between Manuel Nieto and the San Gabriel

missionaries over ranch land. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 985

Letter 7
Sept. 25, 1824. Los Angeles.

Urquides to de la Guerra on Fray José de Zalvidea, O.F.M., and J. Sánchez re Ramón Sotelo

(deceased) and Antonio María Lugo; asks for advice. Spanish. 1 p.
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DLG 985

Letter 8
Dec. 3, 1824. Los Angeles.

Urquides to de la Guerra on carrying out an order of the latter on the part of Juan Pérez. Spanish. 2

pp.

DLG 986

Letter 1
Dec. 12, 1812. Rosario, Mexico.

Mariano de Urres to José de la Guerra on a letter from the latter of Oct. 6; on his arrival at Santa

Barbara; on the latter becoming a lieutenant colonel; on events in Spain; mentions Wellington.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 987

Letter 1
Nov. 2, 1835. Hermosillo.

Mateo de Uruchurtu to Antonio María de Ercilla on a financial matter. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 988

Letter 1
May 13, 1844. Lima.

Juan Bautista Valdevellano to José de la Guerra on the latter's son, Antonio María who had eye

trouble and could not continue his studies; he had been in Chile; is going to Acapulco and to Santa

Barbara; on money Valdevellano had advanced; José Antonio Aguirre is mentioned. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 988

Letter 2
July 8, 1834. Lima.

Valdevellano to de la Guerra on the relationship between the former and the firm of Malagrida; the

serious illness of José Antonio Aguirre; in case of the latter's death, de la Guerra is empowered to act

for him to reclaim from Juan José Amat of Tepic $14,522.20, which action was ceded by Malagrida.

Partly torn. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 989

Letter 1
Aug. 31, 1811. Tepic.

Francisco Valdes to José de la Guerra: a certificate of de la Guerra's services as adjutant major at

Tepic during the revolution. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 990

Letter 1
March 15, 1837. Los Angeles.

José Crescencio Valdes to José de la Guerra on his wife going to Santa Barbara for her health and

asking him to give her what she needs to obtain medicine. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 991

Letter 1
Sept. 8, 1821.

Luciano José Valdes to José de la Guerra asking him to send the draft he has in the habilitación of

Presidio Santa Barbara. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 992

Letter 1

Aug. 1, 1844. San Buenaventura.

Ramón Valdes to Joaquín de la Guerra stating that in the following week he will bring hides in the

mission carts, that presently he is reaping in his fields. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 993

Letter 1
Jan. 24, 1860. San Quentin Prison.

Juan Valenzuela to Pablo de la Guerra describing the circumstances of his imprisonment; he had been

in the employ of José de la Guerra. English. 2 pp.

DLG 994

Letter 1
March 10, 1823. San Francisco.

Antonio Valle to José de la Guerra on a process formed against him by Luís Argüello, and on de la

Guerra being appointed as his defense; explains the situation. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 994

Letter 2
March 16, 1823. San Francisco.

Valle to de la Guerra concerning his process. Spanish. 1 p.
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DLG 994

Letter 3
Apr. 15, 1823. San Francisco.

Valle to de la Guerra on the latter acting in his defense; explains his case; mentions alférez José

Sánchez. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 994

Letter 4
May 3, 1823. San Francisco.

Valle to de la Guerra concerning his process. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 994

Letter 5
June 2, 1823. San Francisco.

Valle to de la Guerra stating that his defense is still not in the hands of his superiors. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 994

Letter 6
Oct. 1, 1823. Monterey.

Valle to de la Guerra on his arrival at Monterey the day before and stating that he is to go to San Blas

on the sloop, Santa Polonia. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 994

Letter 7
May 9, 1824. San Luis Obispo.

Valle to de la Guerra concerning his status. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 994

Letter 8
July 12, 1824. Monterey.

Valle to de la Guerra concerning his intended marriage to a certain Magdalena. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 995

Letter 1
Dec. 20, 1856. Los Angeles.

Ignacio del Valle to Pablo de la Guerra proposing Juan Ignacio as translator of California laws into

Spanish; a certain Mr. Brent being in favor of him; asks Pablo's aid if he is not opposed; some money

found in Pablo's room where he stayed is being returned to him. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 995

Letter 2
Dec. 13, 1860. Los Angeles.

Del Valle to de la Guerra on votes in favor of Breckenridge; on the [Abraham] Lincoln and Douglas

contest. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 996

Letter 1
May 28, 1818. Monterey.

Ignacio Vicente Ferrer Vallejo to José de la Guerra asking for two barrels of brandy. José Estudillo

mentioned. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 996

Letter 2
June 23, 1818. Monterey.

Vallejo to de la Guerra on beams being prepared for the latter; on brandy and wine. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 996

Letter 3
Apr. 28, 1819. Monterey.

Vallejo to de la Guerra on brandy. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 996

Letter 4
June 28, 1819.

Vallejo to la Guerra on receiving brandy. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 996

Letter 5
c. July, 1819.

Vallejo to de la Guerra on the keg he is returning by ship; mentions Don Joaquín. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 996

Letter 6
March 20, 1822.

Vallejo to de la Guerra asking him to send him four yards of narrow galón. On reverse side is a draft

of a letter by de la Guerra of May 29, 1822. Addressee not given; mentions soldiers Juan Sánchez and

Juan María Duarte. Partly torn. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 996

Letter 7
July 20, 1822.

Vallejo to de la Guerra on Governor Solá's going away; concerning a barrel. Spanish. 2 pp.
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DLG 996

Letter 8
[1822]

Vallejo to de la Guerra on expressing regret that de la Guerra was not made governor; on handing

over a barrel of wine to Juan Malarín. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 996

Letter 9
Without date or place.

Vallejo to de la Guerra on barrels and wine. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 997

Letter 1
Nov. 12, 1839. Sonoma.

Mariano Guadalupe Vallejo to José de la Guerra on receiving news of the presence of the American

brigantine, Peabory (Peabody?). On top has stamped spread eagle with legend: "Comandancia general

de la Alta California." Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 998

Letter 1
Jan. 26, 1854. San Francisco.

Vallejo to Pablo de la Guerra concerning a conversation between the two at [Mission] Dolores;

alludes to a candidate for senator. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 998

Letter 2
Febr. 13, 1854.

Vallejo to de la Guerra recommending a friend, Hipólito Aides, who had lived in Chile for many

years, whom he suggests as translator of California laws. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 998

Letter 3
Jan. 18, 1856. Sonoma.

Vallejo to de la Guerra concerning appeals on decisions of the Land Commission. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 998

Letter 4
March 9, 1856. Sonoma.

Vallejo to de la Guerra concerning a trip to Washington on legal matters. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 999

Letter 1
Apr. 17, 1858. Monterey.

Vallejo to Antonio María de la Guerra recommending the Rev. Juan Comillas, who is making his first

visit to Southern California, is pastor of Monterey and a friend of Vallejo. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 1000

Letter 1
Febr. 1, 1822. Los Angeles.

Luisa Varela, Demetria Ramírez, Valeriana Lorenzana, Juana Inocencia Reyes and María Luisa

Reyes to José de la Guerra requesting that they be not deprived of their homes and means of

sustenance because of the misdeeds of their husbands. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 1001

Letter 1
Apr. 19, 1820. Tepic.

Manuel Varela to José de la Guerra on the arrival of Juan Malarín; he gave him the 225 pesos and

three boxes obtained from Uruchurtu; mentions Pedro Rodríguez; de la Guerra's son, Juan, was

placed in a school at Tepic; Varela's health not good; had thought of going to California; is going to

Guaymas instead; asks for certain items. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 1001

Letter 2
Oct. 4, 1820. Tepic.

Varela to de la Guerra on a business matter; is sending him a gaceta from Madrid. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 1001

Letter 3
Apr. 26, 1821. Tepic.

Varela to de la Guerra on commercial matters; mentions Mateo Uruchurtu, Gonzalo Ulloa and Pedro

Rodríguez; ships from Spain; confused declaration of independence by Colonel Iturbide. Spanish. 3

pp.
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DLG 1001

Letter 4
July 4, 1821. Tepic.

Varela to de la Guerra sending through Martiarena on the brigantine, Alcion, a package of readers of

very good print; arrival of El Señoriano on July 2; Tepic out of touch with San Blas, which is about to

take the oath of independence; Pedro Negrete with troops entered Guadalajara and swore to

independence; General Gómez did not take the oath, nor did the bishop, who went to Zapopan; Pedro

Rodríguez is a prisoner at San Blas. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 1001

Letter 5
Febr. 10, 1822. Tepic.

Varela to de la Guerra on an English ship going to the Columbia River; on commercial matters; on a

visit to Governor Solá, who is going to Spain ; states that a certain canon says he sorry that he could

not make de la Guerra interim governor because various missionaries counseled against it, since he

was "too hide bound for the service." Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 1001

Letter 6
Apr. 21, 1824. epic.

Varela de de la Guerra announcing that in an extraordinary letter from Mexico, the brigantine, San

Carlos, by order Flaminio Agarín, is to go to Acapulco to take on board the new governor of both

Californias, Colonel Minon. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 1001

Letter 7
Febr. 20, 1825. Tepic.

Varela to de la Guerra on sending him three boxes via the Ester, whose captain is N. Bilmon

[Virmond]; Uruchurtu is mentioned; is navigating on a French brigantine, Toren Corina; sailed from

Guaymas for the Sandwich islands; the brigantine, San Carlos, now the Morelos is at Acapulco

awaiting the governor, its commander being Flaminio Agarín; Planes is in the department of Guerra y

Marina in Mexico. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 1001

Letter 8
June 7, 1825. Tepic. 3 pp.

Varela to de la Guerra on Virmond, the ship owner through whom he ordered various articles; but in

case he does not appear, the goods are to be sent through Flaminio Agarín, commander of the San

Carlos or the Morelos, in which are coming the new commandant general of California [José María

Echeandía] and other officers for the presidios of California; on a Spanish diplomat going to Russia

for the ratification of a treaty between Spain and Russia, refusing to accept the independence of

Spanish America; the abolition of the acabala tax in Jalisco; Uruchurtu mentioned. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 1001

Letter 9
Aug. 1, 1829. Tepic.

Varela to de la Guerra on his illness originating at San Blas; on doctors and bloodletters; the scandal

of Lt. Maitorena, the deputy from California; asks for certain items. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 1002

Letter 1
May 5, 1825. Nacameri (Mexico?).

Severino Varela to Manuel Varela on financial and mercantile matters. This was originally enclosed

in the letter of Manuel Varela to José de la Guerra, June 7, 1827. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 1003

Letter 1
Jan. 12, 1821. Guadalajara.

Antonio Benito Vélez to José de la Guerra on the latter's return to California; is sending him the latest

papers from Mexico; encloses letters; on commercial matters. 3 pp.

DLG 1003

Letter 2
Apr. 6, 1821. Guadalajara.

Vélez to de la Guerra sending him papers from Mexico; peace in Mexico; General O'Donojú

expected. Spanish. 2 pp.
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DLG 1004

Letter 1
Febr. 23, 1814. Mexico.

Esteban Vélez de Escalante to José de la Guerra on financial matters accompanied by an account;

Fray José Viñals, O.F.M., procurator of the College of San Fernando mentioned. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 1005

Letter 1
May 16, 1811. Mexico.

Francisco Xavier de Venegas to José de la Guerra giving permission to him to return to California.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 1006

Letter 1
Jan. 23, 1860. San Quentin.

S. Petit de Vergenne to Pablo de la Guerra stating that Archbishop [Joseph Sadoc] Alemany is willing

to help him and seeks to meet de la Guerra for an interview. Spanish.

DLG 1006

Letter 2
Febr. 15, 1860. San Quentin.

Vergenne to de la Guerra asking for the latter's intercession in his behalf; mentions María Estudillo,

Covarrubias, Andrés Pico, a Señor Sánchez, Dr. Hoffman, S. Straus, the governor and [José] Antonio

Aguirre. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 1006

Letter 3
March 19, 1860. San Quentin.

Vergenne to de la Guerra continuing his plea for assistance. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 1007

Letter 1
Dec. 23, 1826. Mexico.

Guadalupe Victoria to José de la Guerra revalidating his appointment as captain of Presidio Santa

Barbara. Countersigned by Manuel Gómez Pedraza. Partly printed. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 1008

Letter 1
Dec. 10, 1828. Mexico.

Victoria to de la Guerra: his passport to return to California signed by Juan de Dios Cañedo, secretary

of state for foreign relations. Partly printed. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 1009

Letter 1
July 10, 1832. Mexico.

Victoria to de la Guerra explaining his difficulties; is going to Acapulco; mentions of ship of Enrique

Wirman [Virmond]. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 1010

Letter 1
July 23, 1806. Mexico.

Fray Jose Viñals, O.F.M., to José de la Guerra on his becoming procurator of the missions; his health

is not so good. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 1010

Letter 2
Oct. 25, 1809. Mexico.

Viñals to de la Guerra asking him to sign an enclosed draft; is probably going to Spain; is suffering

from stomach trouble; hopes to obtain alms to help his parents who are in extreme need; asks him to

aid him. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 1011

Letter 1
June 25, 1829. Acapulco.

Henry Edward Virmond to José de la Guerra on the latter's return to California; on Virmond going to

Mexico City; the letter is being taken to Loreto by Mariano Victoria; some exceptions made to the

law of March 20, in reference to the expulsion of Spaniards; conditions in Mexico; Victoria thinks the

missionaries are to be excluded from the decree of expulsion; Cardinal Castiglione was elected as

Pope Pius VIII; Cardinal Albani is first secretary, the sudden death of Senator Paz; other political

persons mentioned. Partly torn. Spanish. 4 pp.
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DLG 1011

Letter 2
Oct. 13, 1829. Mexico.

Virmond to de la Guerra believing that the latter will not be subject to the law of expulsion;

Virmond's ship to bring soldiers to California; Rafael González coming as administrator of customs at

Monterey; Manuel Jimeno Casarín to be accountant; Francisco Pacheco to be commander of security;

on the retirement of Fray Antonio Peyrí, O.F.M., [Agustín] Zamorano is army captain; is sending

items to Angustias de la Guerra; mentions Joaquín Maitorena; Señor Zavala is minister of the

treasury; Spanish warships bringing soldiers to the coast of Mexico; the president of Mexico is

writing to the missionaries to continue their work in California, for he entertains no idea of expelling

them; would like to send him four mules for his carriage; mentions Fray Luís Martínez, O.F.M., of

San Luis Obispo; calls him a "great friend" of de la Guerra's. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 1012

Letter 1
Jan. 20, 1835. Acapulco.

Virmond to Fray Narcisco Durán, O.F.M. on a recent revolution at Acapulco; Mariano Chico to

replace José Figueroa as governor of California; is sending him a number of newspapers; on the Pious

Fund; the government asks for accounts of the extent of missionary service in California; the sad state

of financial affairs in Mexico; Virmond has obtained a house in Mexico. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 1012

Letter 2
Oct. 7, 1835. Mexico.

Virmond to Durán giving political news from Spain, Mexico and France; mentions Fray Antonio

Peyrí, O.F.M. and a certain Guzmán, who went to Jerusalem and then to Rome; Guzmán was a

candidate for the bishopric of Guadalajara but the Mexican government insisted on the candidate

being a born Mexican; Peyrí is in Rome; the possibility of his returning to California; conditions in

Spain; the political situation in Mexico; gives details about the Pious Fund; states that the government

is a half million pesos in arrears; Fray Tomás de Ahumeda, O.P. demanded the payment of 15,000

pesos against the fund. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 1012

Letter 3
Dec. 23, 1835. Mexico.

Virmond to the president of the California missions re a letter of credit given him by San Fernando

College against the Pious Fund of the Californias for the sum due to nine of the missionaries who

died since Jan. 1, 1830. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 1013

Letter 1
Oct. 25, 1839. Mexico.

Virmond to Fray José María de Zalvidea, O.F.M., on accounts. Following the above is a statement by

Eulogio de Celis, Oct. 25, 1839, on a statement of Zalvidea's account with Virmond. Fragile, partly

torn. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 1014

Letter 1
Oct. 27, 1850. San Francisco.

Edward Vischer to Eulogio de Celis on commercial accounts, mentions McKinley, Francisco de la

Guerra, Hiram Grimes and Guillermo Howard. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 1015

Letter 1
March 28, 1851. San Francisco.

Vischer to Pablo de la Guerra on business matters in relation to McKinley and Edmonton. Spanish. 2

pp.

DLG 1015

Letter 2
Apr. 30, 1851. San Francisco.

Vischer to de la Guerra on McKinley's presence in San Francisquito, and on sending a messenger to

him on a business matter. Spanish. 2 pp.
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DLG 1015

Letter 3
Oct. 3, 1857. San Francisco.

Vischer to de la Guerra on a letter sent to de Celis, on the proper spelling of his name as Fischer and

not Fisher. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 1016

Letter 1
Dec. 1, 1817. San Buenaventura.

Fray Marcos Antonio de Vitoria, O.F.M., to José de la Guerra on sending him twenty containers of

lard; is glad that abundant rains have occurred, even thunder and lightning. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 1016

Letter 2
June 3, 1818. San Fernando.

Vitoria to de la Guerra excusing himself in delaying to pass on a circular letter; on Indian fugitives.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 1016

Letter 3
June 3, 1618. San Fernando.

Vitoria to de la Guerra on receiving an order from the governor; gives the names of fugitive Indians.

Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 1016

Letter 4
June 15, 1818. San Fernando.

Vitoria to de la Guerra stating that Francisco Rodríguez is bringing him three barrels of brandy, two

of which for Mariano Estrada; on soldiers to bring back fugitives; on bulls of the Santa Cruzada.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 1016

Letter 5
June 21, 1818. San Fernando.

Vitoria to de la Guerra on bulls received through José María Romero, the alms for the same will be

brought by alférez Joaquín Maitorena. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 1016

Letter 6
Oct. 6, 1818. San Fernando.

Vitoria to de la Guerra on accounts; on a fire in the Indian village during Mass; the Indians are

building new houses and a road over which carts can pass. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 1016

Letter 7
Oct. 12, 1818. San Fernando.

Vitoria to de la Guerra sending him his accounts; is sending the bow and arrow men and the cowboys

requested by the governor; however some of the former without their trappings because lost in the

fire. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 1016

Letter 8
Nov. 21, 1818. San Fernando.

Vitoria to de la Guerra asking for permission for corporal Antonio Olivera to come to the mission for

a few days so that Vitoria can learn the details about items given by the mission to the guard between

Jan. 1 and Sept. 30; asks that one of the bowmen sent from San Fernando return because of the illness

and sadness of his wife. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 1016

Letter 9
Febr. 25, 1819. San Fernando.

Vitoria to de la Guerra sending him a barrel of wine, grapes and tunas; asking him to send back the

cowboys since they are needed for fieldwork; an elderly Indian woman who is ill asks for the return

of her husband; the Indian houses are not yet finished. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 1016

Letter 10
March 15, 1819. San Fernando.

Vitoria to de la Guerra on promising to send Joaquín Maitorena the padrón of the mission Indians;

thanks de la Guerra for relieving the cowboys and bowmen; is sending two barrels of wine through

the soldier González; asks for some wax candles, the lack of sufficient rain; sends name day

greetings. Spanish. 2 pp.
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DLG 1016

Letter 11
Apr. 16, 1819. San Fernando.

Vitoria to de la Guerra on having sent the padrón; will comply with an order received; on barrels;

asks aid; sends Easter greetings. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 1016

Letter 12
May 21, 1819. San Fernando.

Vitoria to de la Guerra on the latter having spent a few days with Fray Francisco Suñer, O.F.M.; on

four cowboys and four bowmen to carry out a request of de la Guerra; on the September fire in the

Indian ranchería; the new houses are half finished. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 1016

Letter 13
May 26, 1819. San Fernando.

Vitoria to de la Guerra on sending through Felicino Soberanes figs, raisins and tunas; on receiving the

candles de la Guerra sent; invites him to the delayed annual fiesta in honor of St. Ferdinand to be held

on the coming June 8. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 1016

Letter 14
May 30, 1819. San Fernando.

Vitoria to de la Guerra on receiving a machete and cartridge box; will send the former and a cordillera

to San Gabriel; is sending him three barrels of brandy. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 1016

Letter 15
July 7, 1819. San Fernando.

Vitoria to de la Guerra thanking him for favors and various articles. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 1016

Letter 16
Sept. 2, 1819. San Fernando.

Vitoria to de la Guerra thanking him for returning some Indians loaned to him; soon hopes to finish

the Indian houses before the rainy season. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 1016

Letter 17
Sept. 18, 1819. San Fernando

Vitoria to de la Guerra on the need for retaining certain Indians in order to make leather bags for

Patricio Pico. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 1016

Letter 18
Oct. 7, 1819. San Fernando.

Vitoria to de la Guerra thanking him for allowing certain Indians to remain at San Fernando to make

leather bags. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 1016

Letter 19

Nov. 3, 1819. San Fernando.

Vitoria to de la Guerra on sending him three barrels; asks him to send back with the muleteers the

casks; wishes him a happy journey over land and sea; is sending him raisins and figs. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 1016

Letter 20
Jan. 25, 1825. Purisima.

Vitoria to de la Guerra stating he will carry out a matter requested the nature of which he does not

disclose; on heavy rains. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 1016

Letter 21
March 23, 1825. Purisima.

Vitoria to de la Guerra on returning papers concerning soldier guards of the mission. Partly torn.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 1016

Letter 22
Sept. 1835. Santa Ines.

Vitoria to de la Guerra concerning a draft; a document on sínodos; on enjoying the company of Fray

José Joaquín [Jimeno, O.F.M.]; a wound of his is healing. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 1016

Letter 23
Without date or place.

Vitoria to de la Guerra on receiving the candles sent him; will forward the padrón; mentions Domingo

[Carrillo?]. Spanish. 2 pp.
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DLG 1017

Letter 1
Apr. 24, 1835. Purisima.

Vitoria to Fray Narciso Durán, O.F.M., on news from Fernando Deppe that the ship, Catalina, would

arrive at Santa Barbara soon; on sínodos and stipends; his companion is Fray Juan Moreno, O.F.M.;

desires that the new church be started. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 1018

Letter 1
Sept. 12, 1860. Sacramento.

George Wallace to Pablo de la Guerra depending on the latter to bolster the Democratic Party in

Southern California; mentions Douglas, Johnson, Breckenridge and Dr. Ord. English. 2 pp.

DLG 1019

Letter 1
March 12, 1872. Sacramento.

William I. Wallace to Pablo de la Guerra introducing Mrs. Frances B. Sprague, wife of the late Royal

I. Sprague, chief justice of the supreme court, who is seeking to locate in Santa Barbara, and asks him

to help her find a suitable home. English. 2 pp.

DLG 1020

Letter 1
Sept. 24, 1860. Los Angeles.

Jonathan Trumball Warner to Pablo de la Guerra sending him an invitation from the Democratic Club

of Los Angeles to visit the city in the interest of the Douglas electoral ticket, since Pablo can

influence the native Californians. English. 2 pp.

DLG 1020

Letter 2
Dec. 20, 1860. Los Angeles.

Warner to de la Guerra asking him to favor the appointment of a commission by the governor to meet

with the federal commission already in California, to determine the eastern boundary of the state.

English. 2 pp.

DLG 1021

Letter 1
Nov. 10, 1870. San Quentin Prison.

Louis H. Warner to Pablo de la Guerra soon hoping to obtain his release from prison; asks him to

write a letter in his favor, Pablo having tried his case in San Bernardino for manslaughter and was

given six years; gives names of friends. English. 2 pp.

DLG 1022

Letter 1
March 22, 1834. Monterey.

William Webb's agreement to to pay Manuel Jimeno Casarín on account with Santa Ines mission.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 1023

Letter 1
March 13, 1865. Santa Barbara.

F. T. Wells to Pablo de la Guerra re Rancho Los Alamos. English. 3 pp.

DLG 1024

Letter 1
March 28, 1865. San Luís Obispo.

James White to Pablo de la Guerra on an affidavit. English. 3 pp.

DLG 1025

Letter 1
Jan. 5, 1854. San Francisco.

Thomas J. White to Pablo de la Guerra asking his support for the office he seeks. English. 1 p.

DLG 1026

Letter 1
Febr. 8, 1865. Monterey.

Billington Crum Whiting to Pablo de la Guerra on the former being requested by General McDowell

to examine into the government's titles to public property in Monterey; asks for information regards

the customs house. English. 3 pp.

DLG 1027

Letter 1
Febr. 24, 1854. Washington, D.C.

Elisha Whittlesey to Pablo de la Guerra on adjustment of accounts for de la Guerra's terms of office

for 1851, 1852 and 1853; of the district court; asks him to remit returns of official emoluments as

required by law. English. 3 pp.
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DLG 1027

Letter 2
Sept. 28, 1854. Washington, D.C.

Whittlesey to de la Guerra on a monetary matter of "the late marshal." English. 1 p.

DLG 1027

Letter 3
Dec. 5, 1851. Washington. D. C.

Circular to marshals, district attorneys and clerks relative to their emoluments and accounts for

services. Signed by Whittlesey. Printed. English. 2 pp.

DLG 1027

Letter 4
May 5, 1854. Washington, D.C.

Document citing "an act making appropriation for the civil and diplomatic expenses for the year

ending the 30th June, 1846, and for other purposes." Signed by Whittlesey. Printed. English. 1 p.

DLG 1027

Letter 5
Jan. 23, 1855. Washington, D. C.

Circular to marshals, district attorneys and clerks of U. S. Courts, relative to per diem compensation

for Sundays. Signed by Whittlesey. Printed. English. 1 p.

DLG 1027

Letter 6
1852. Washington, D.C.

Instructions of the solicitor of the treasury to district attorneys, clerks of courts, marshals and

collectors of customs of the U.S. Printed. English. 15 pp.

DLG 1028

Letter 1
Febr. 15, 1853. Washington. D.C.

Whittlesey to William McKendree Givin concerning a draft of Pablo de la Guerra. A Mr. King is

mentioned. English. 3 pp.

DLG 1029

Letter 1
Apr. 26, 1820. Mexico.

James Smith Wilcox of José de la Guerra on a financial matter. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 1029

Letter 2
Sept. 18, 1822. Mexico.

Wilcox to de la Guerra on the exclusive privilege granted him by the government for introducing

steamships; he went to Tampico from the U.S. with three such ships; Mexico City greatly changed

since de la Guerra was there; Wilcox is U.S. consul general; formed a business connection with La

Roy Bayard in New York; on his intention of carrying hides from California to the eastern U.S.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 1030

Letter 1

Sept. 24, 1860. San Francisco.

William Frank Williamson to Pablo de la Guerra asking to be recommended for the position of

sergeant-at-arms in the California Senate. English. 1 p.

DLG 1031

Letter 1
Febr. 4, 1835;

John Wilson to José de la Guerra on purchasing tallow; has bought the house of Antonio Rocha.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 1032

Letter 1
March 22, 1847. Monterey.

Wilson to Miguel de la Guerra; an order to round up horses. Signed by James Scott for Wilson.

Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 1033

Letter 1
Oct. 3, 1851. San Luis Obispo.

Wilson to Pablo de la Guerra on the loss of certain papers; asks him to look up the case of a sale of a

certain Badillo and Don Diego made to him of the ranch Del Pecho; on political affairs in Los

Angeles. Spanish. 2 pp.
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DLG 1034

Letter 1
Dec. 26, 1860. San Francisco.

S. Wormsen to Pablo de la Guerra and José María Covarrubias: an invitation to dine with him.

Spanish. l p.

DLG 1035

Letter 1
Jan. 20, 1821. Tepic.

Baltasar Pedro de Yebra to José de la Guerra thanking him for the articles sent through Cubillas;

independence has been proclaimed in the vicinity of Vera Cruz. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 1036

Letter 1
No Documents

DLG 1037

Letter 1
Sept. 29, 1834. Los Angeles.

Tomás Antonio Yorba to José de la Guerra on certain purchases. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 1037

Letter 2
Sept. 23, 1834. Los Angeles.

Yorba to de la Guerra on commercial matters. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 1037

Letter 3
Oct. 5, 1834. San Gabriel.

Yorba to de la Guerra on commercial matters. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 1037

Letter 4
Oct. 12, 1834. Los Angeles.

Yorba to de la Guerra on commercial matters. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 1037

Letter 5
Nov. 22, 1834. Santa Ana.

Yorba to de la Guerra stating that he is thinking of reclaiming from Figueroa the representación he

has together with certain oficios giving his reasons therefore; states that he is angry in seeing his

country so given over to "devils." Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 1037

Letter 6
Nov. 17, 1834. Los Angeles.

Yorba to de la Guerra on commercial matters. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 1037

Letter 7
Jan. 12, 1835.

Yorba to de la Guerra on commercial matters. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 1037

Letter 8
March 20, 1835. Los Angeles

Yorba to de la Guerra on financial matters; mentioned are Joaquín Ortega, Carlos Carrillo and a

Domínguez. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 1037

Letter 9
March 23, 1835. Santa Ana.

Yorba to de la Guerra concerning pine boards; mentions Antonio [José] Cot. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 1037

Letter 10
Apr. 16, 1835. Los Angeles.

Yorba to de la Guerra on financial matters; announces the death of Miguel Castiano. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 1037

Letter 11
Apr. 22, 1835. Santa Ana.

Yorba to de la Guerra on financial matters. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 1037

Letter 12
May 5, 1835. Santa Ana.

Yorba to de la Guerra on his going to San Pedro and not finding Antonio [José] Cot on the Piosa;

placed eight hides on ship; on commercial matters. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 1037

Letter 13
May 30, 1835. Santa Ana.

Yorba to de la Guerra on commercial matters. Spanish. 2 pp.
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DLG 1037

Letter 14
June 11, 1835.

Yorba to de la Guerra on financial matters. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 1037

Letter 15
July 15, 1835. Santa Ana.

Yorba to de la Guerra on financial matters; José Peralta has gone to New Mexico. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 1037

Letter 16
Aug. 22, 1835.

Yorba to de la Guerra on financial matters. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 1037

Letter 17
Sept. 7, 1835.

Yorba to de la Guerra on a certain Portuguese to give him hides. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 1037

Letter 18
Sept. 11, 1835.

Yorba to de la Guerra on financial matters. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 1037

Letter 19
Sept. 19, 1835.

Yorba to de la Guerra on financial matters, mentions [Alfred] Robinson and José Ignacio Lugo.

Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 1037

Letter 20
Sept. 20, 1835.

Yorba to de la Guerra on financial and commercial items. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 1037

Letter 21
Oct. 24, 1835.

Yorba to de la Guerra on financial matters. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 1037

Letter 22
Jan. 22, 1836. San Pedro.

Yorba to de la Guerra on commercial items. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 1037

Letter 23
Jan. 29, 1836.

Yorba to de la Guerra on [Alfred] Robinson's ship going to San Diego; will come also to Santa

Barbara. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 1037

Letter 24
March 28, 1836. Los Angeles.

Yorba to de la Guerra on commercial items. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 1037

Letter 25
May 3, 1836.

Yorba to de la Guerra on commercial items. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 1037

Letter 26
May 20, 1836.

Yorba to de la Guerra on commercial items. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 1037

Letter 27
June 1, 1836. Los Angeles.

Yorba to de la Guerra on financial and commercial matters. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 1037

Letter 28
July 30, 1836.

Yorba to de la Guerra on financial matters. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 1038

Letter 1
Oct. 25, 1815. San Gabriel.

Fray José María Zalvidea, O.F.M. to José de la Guerra stating that having gone through fifteen

volumes of the Espectaculo de Naturaleza, he could find nothing about gun carriages; states that he

had written to Fray [Pedro] Múñoz, O.F.M., of Mission San Fernando since a missing volume might

be there; there were no pears at San Gabriel this year, but there were grapes; if de la Guerra wishes

wine he should send a barrel and Zalvidea will fill it; mentions muscatel. Spanish. 1 p.
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DLG 1038

Letter 2
Oct. 18, 1815. San Gabriel.

Zalvidea to de la Guerra on sending fifty Indians to Los Angeles at the request of the governor.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 1038

Letter 3
Dec. 29, 1816. San Gabriel.

Zalvidea to de la Guerra on a Don Carlos leaving at the mission the effects belonging to Presidio

Santa Barbara, since the mules could not carry them. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 1038

Letter 4
c. 1827. San Fernando.

Zalvidea to de la Guerra stating that he is making a Spiritual retreat; asks him to send two barrels so

that he can fill them with "liquor of two qualities;" has not sent pears but apples are available.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 1038

Letter 5
Jan. 19, 1822. San Gabriel.

Zalvidea to de la Guerra thanking him for notifying him on the death of his "beloved companion."

Person is not identified. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 1038

Letter 6
July 7, 1822. San Gabriel.

Zalvidea to de la Guerra on the Indian, Joaquín, who fled from Presidio Santa Barbara and went to the

sierra of San Luis Rey, but, on hearing of a general amnesty, presented himself at San Diego to

Francisco Ruíz who sent him to San Gabriel; congratulates de la Guerra on being interim governor of

California; states that San Gabriel can offer little tallow this year for export. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 1038

Letter 7
Febr. 2, 1822. San Fernando.

Zalvidea to de la Guerra concerning an Indian at San Gabriel; asking de la Guerra to give an enclosed

letter to Mancisidor. Partly torn. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 1038

Letter 8
Febr. 25, 1822. San Gabriel.

Zalvidea to de la Guerra on Juan Malarín offering the tallow he had to San Gabriel; Malarín is in San

Diego; can send some oil of the past year but none of this; mentions Mancisidor. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 1039

Letter 1
Aug. 25, 1824. San Gabriel.

Zalvidea to Encarnación Urquides on Los Nietos Rancho, mentioned are Manuel Nieto, José

Argüello, the San Gabriel River, Cañada Verde, Rancho Santa Gertrudis and Juan José Nieto.

Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 1040

Letter 1
March 31, 1835. San Juan Capistrano.

Zalvidea to Fray Narciso Durán, O.F.M. on sínodos of the missionaries; mentions José de la Guerra.

Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 1041

Letter 1
March 31, 1835. San Juan Capistrano.

Zalvidea to Antonio María de Ercilla on a financial matter; response of Santa Barbara, Apr. 21, 1835.

Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 1042

Letter 1
Jan. 23, 1815. San Gabriel.

Zalvidea and Fray Pascual Nuez, O.F.M. to José Dario Argüello complaining against Juan José Nieto

of Santa Gertrudis Rancho for encroaching on San Gabriel mission lands. In the hand of Boscana.

Spanish. 1 p.
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DLG 1043

Letter 1
Apr. 8, 1832. San Antonio

Agustín Vicente Zamorano to Domingo Carrillo stating that, he received the representación sent to

him on Carrillo's conduct in recent happenings. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 1044

Letter 1
June 26, 1810. Guadalajara.

José María Zavala and Juan López Portillo to José de la Guerra on receiving the documented account

of the products of ecclesiastical origin collected in 1809. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 1045

Letter 1
Nov. 16, 1818. Tepic.

Juan José de Zestaje to José de la Guerra on a letter received via the brigantine, San Carlos, financial

arrangements; on a second letter received overland; the death of the surgeon, Venitoa, of fever who

died intestate; mentioned are José Antonio Navarre, Eustaquio de la Cuesta, a Padre Afanador and a

certain Moreyra. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 1045

Letter 2
Aug. 12, 1812. Tepic.

Zestaje to de la Guerra on the latter's safe return to California; José García's presence in Guadalajara

with Martínez and Pajada; commercial matters; La Hora sailing for Panama; will go to Acapulco.

Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 1045

Letter 3
March 3, 1813. San Blas.

Zestaje to de la Guerra sending him items on the frigate, La Hora; commercial matters; mentions

Nicolás Noe; war conditions in Spain; the brigantine, Activo, sailed for Manila with Narváez and

Verdia; a ship from Acapulco arrived on Febr. 13. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 1045

Letter 4
Aug. 3, 1814. Tepic.

Zestaje to de la Guerra on commercial transactions; is handing over his business to Eustaquio and

Angel de la Cuesta in order to go to Spain. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 1045

Letter 5
Aug. 3 and 12, 1814. Tepic.

Zestaje to de la Guerra sending him printed news; financial matters; is handing over his business to

the De la Cuestas. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 1045

Letter 6
May 26, 1815. Tepic.

Zestaje to de la Guerra on financial matters; is about ready to sail for Spain; mentions Jacinto Pinto,

captain of the corvette, Paz y Religión. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 1045

Letter 7
May 22, 1816. Tepic.

Zestaje to de la Guerra on financial matters. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 1046

Letter 1
Oct. 16, 1824. San Luis Obispo.

José Agustín Zubillaga to Fray Luís Antonio Martínez, O.F.M., on receiving from him fifty-five

pesos on account with Juan Malarín. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 1047

Letter 1
1802. Monterey Presidio.

Account book containing accounts of members of the presidio company. Spanish. 20 pp.

DLG 1047

Letter 2
1804-1808.

Account book of José de la Guerra. Spanish. 58 pp.

DLG 1047

Letter 3
1806-1807.

Account book of the Mercury, William Heath Davis, captain. English. 48 pp.
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DLG 1047

Letter 4
SPECIAL COLLECTION DE LA GUERRA PAPERS (FOLDERS 1047-1053)

ACCOUNTS AND BUSINESS PAPERS

DLG 1047

Letter 4
From 1806-1808.

Accounts and business papers, of individuals as well as presidios and missions of Alta and Baja

California. Spanish. 77 pp.

DLG 1047

Letter 5
Miscellaneous accounts. 77 pp. Spanish.

DLG 1048

Letter 1
1810-1819.

Account book of José Antonio de la Guerra y Noriega containing accounts with individuals, called

"Cuaderno único de dependencias particulares." One page torn. Spanish. 62 pp.

DLG 1048

Letter 2
1810-1819.

Miscellaneous accounts. Spanish. 44 pp.

DLG 1048

Letter 3
1813.

Account book of José de la Guerra y Noriega containing accounts of presidios, missions and

individuals. Spanish. 49 pp.

DLG 1049

Letter 1
Accounts and business paper, 1820-1829. Spanish. 53 pp. Account book, 1820-1829. Spanish. 12 pp.

DLG 1050

Letter 1
1830-1839.

Accounts and business papers. Spanish. Some in English. 57 pp.

Dec. 1, 1834, lists of amounts due from the Pious Fund to the California missionaries from 1811 to

Dec. 1, 1834. Spanish. Includes lists of goods orders and brought the ships: Maria Ester, California,

Chalcedony, Voluntario, Ayacucho.

DLG 1051

Letter 1
1840-1859.

Clearance certificate of the English barque, Index, John Wilson and James Scott, masters; sailing

from Callao, Peru, for California and the Sandwich Islands. Cleared at Monterey by Gumisindo

Flores, at San Francisco by William Richardson, at Santa Barbara by José de la Guerra, and at San

Diego by Juan María Osuna. Spanish. 2 pp. Miscellaneous accounts and business papers. Spanish. 31

pp. Accounts related to the estate of Antonio M. Ercilla, deceased. Spanish. 28 pp.

DLG 1052

Letter 1
1850-1859.

Accounts and business papers. Spanish. 34 pp.

DLG 1053

Letter 1
1860-1866.

Accounts and business papers. Spanish. 14 pp.

DLG 1054

Letter 1
c. 1852. Rancho Los Alamos.

List of documents with their dates contained in an expediente of the Rancho Los Alamos. By Henry

Wager Halleck (not signed?). English. 1 p.

DLG 1054

Letter 2
Sept. 29, 1856. Rancho Los Alamos.

Russell Heath to Lewis T. Burton and Samuel B. Brinkerhoff; sheriff's deed of sale of part of Rancho

Los Alamos for default of payment of state and county taxes. Partly printed. English. 5 pp.
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DLG 1054

Letter 3
Dec. 24, 1856. Rancho Los Alamos.

Lewis T. Burton and Samuel B. Brinkerhoff to José de la Guerra: quitclaim deed of Rancho Los

Alamos. English. 4 pp.

DLG 1054

Letter 4
Febr. 3, 1857. Rancho Los Alamos.

To José de la Guerra and Concepción Ortega de la Guerra: deed of sale of their right and title to

Rancho Los Alamos and of some lots in Santa Barbara. Notarized by George D. Fisher and

countersigned by Antonio María de la Guerra, Febr. 3, 1857. Spanish and English. 5 pp.

DLG 1054

Letter 5
March 1861. Rancho Los Alamos.

The U. S. vs. José de la Guerra estate. Petition of Pablo de la Guerra re a survey of Rancho Los

Alamos. English. 2 pp.

DLG 1054

Letter 1
1852-1861. Los Alamos Rancho

Estate papers. Spanish and English. 17 pp.

DLG 1055

Letter 1
May 9-July 6, 1843. Rancho Calleguas.

An expediente re claim of José Pedro Pérez, grantee of Rancho Calleguas concerning boundary

between that rancho and Simi belonging to José de la Guerra. Spanish. 12 pp.

DLG 1055

Letter 2
Oct. 14, 1869. Rancho Calleguas.

Rafael Pico to José Lobero: quitclaim deed for part of Rancho Calleguas. Partly printed. English. 3

pp.

DLG 1056

Letter 1
1840-1865. Rancho Cañada Larga.

Diseño. Copy. Spanish and English. 15 pp.

DLG 1057

Letter 1
Oct. 25, 1833-Jan. 8, 1834. La Carpinteria.

Expediente of a tract of land known as La Carpinteria, granted with limitations, to Cosme Vanegas by

José Figueroa. Has diseño. Spanish. 9 pp.

DLG 1057

Letter 2
Apr. 3, 1858. La Carpinteria.

Francisco de la Guerra et al. to James Palmtree; lease of a tract of land known as the Carpinteria.

English. 4 pp.

DLG 1058

Letter 1
July 6, 1854. Rancho El Cojo.

Anastasio Carrillo to Pablo de la Guerra: power of attorney to appeal decision of Land

Commissioners regarding Rancho El Cojo. Signed by Carrillo and witnessed by Charles E. Huse.

English. 3 pp.

DLG 1059

Letter 1
1822-1937. Oct. 4, 1822. Santa Barbara.

José De. la Guerra to Pablo Vicente de Solá: a petition for a part of Rancho El Conejo. Followed by

Oct. 10, 1822, Sold to de la Guerra granting him part of Rancho El Conejo formerly the property of

José Polanco. This is a letter copy of title dated & filed March 30, 1852. Signed by George Fisher. 4

pp.

DLG 1059

Letter 2
c. 1835. Rancho El Conejo.

List of livestock on Rancho El Conejo. 1 p.

DLG 1059

Letter 3
c. Dec. 7, 1838. Rancho El Conejo.

José de la Guerra to the ayuntamiento of Santa Barbara: a statement concerning the ownership of

Rancho El Conejo as claimed by himself and the heirs of Ignacio Rodríguez. Spanish. 2 pp.
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DLG 1059

Letter 4
1838-1639. Rancho El Conejo.

Document relating to the establishment of the boundaries of Rancho El Conejo belonging to José de

la Guerra and José de Jesús Rodríguez. Has a diseño. Certified by G. Fisher, Los Angeles, Sept. 14,

1852. Spanish. 9 pp.

DLG 1059

Letter 5
c. 1852. Rancho El Conejo.

A list of documents dealing with José de la Guerra's half of Rancho El Conejo. By Henry Wager

Halleck?, not signed. English. 1 p.

DLG 1059

Letter 6
March 14, 1854. Rancho El Conejo.

Decree of confirmation by the U. S. Land Commissions of Rancho El Conejo belonging to José de la

Guerra and María del Carmen Rodríguez et al. Certified copy by G. Fisher, San Francisco, Oct. 26,

1854. English. 4. pp.

DLG 1059

Letter 7
Febr. 17, 1857. Rancho El Conejo.

Preamble of the U. S. District Court confirming title to Rancho El Conejo. Copy. English. 1 p.

DLG 1059

Letter 8
Apr. 30, 1870. Rancho El Conejo.

Thomas A. Scott to Pablo and Francisco de la Guerra; a quitclaim deed of a portion of Rancho El

Conejo. Signed for by Scott by his attorney, Thomas R. Bard. Partly printed. English. 3 pp.

DLG 1059

Letter 9
Aug. 19, 1872. Rancho El Conejo.

John Edwards and Howard W. Mills to Pablo de la Guerra; Deed of mortgage of half of Rancho El

Conejo. Also receipt for mortgage by F. J. Maguire, Santa Barbara, January 13, 1873. English. 6 pp.

DLG 1059

Letter 10
March 4, 1919. Los Angeles.

Chauncy C. Grove: an abstract of title as to the interest of the heirs of José de la Guerra to Rancho El

Conejo. Bound. Typewritten. English. 126 pp.

DLG 1059

Letter 11
1937.

Printed map of Ventura County showing location of ranchos.

DLG 1060

Letter 1

Apr. 6, 1846.

José Prudencio Santillen to Joaquín Carrillo: deed of sale of tract of land between Mission Dolores

and San Jose. Partly printed. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 1061

Letter 1
Jan. 12, 1860. Rancho La Espada.

Gaspar de Oreña and María Antonia de la Guerra to Francisco de la Guerra et al: deed of sale of

Rancho La Espada. Partly printed. English. 4 pp.

DLG 1062

Letter 1
Rancho Huichica. Sonoma County.

Expediente of solicitation made by Damaso Antonio Rodríguez for Rancho Huichica (Sonoma

County). The tracing of an original document. Certified June 14, 1865. San Francisco by L. Upson.

Partly printed. 5 pp.

DLG 1063

Letter 1
Aug. 13, 1853. Jalama vineyard.

Agreement between José de la Guerra and Leandro Martinez concerning Jalama vineyard. Signed

also by Pablo de la Guerra. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 1063

Letter 2
Jan. 26, 1854. Jalama vineyard.

Concerning Jalama vineyard. Signed by Pablo de la Guerra and Leandro Martinez. Spanish. 3 pp.
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DLG 1064

Letter 1
1835-1839. Rancho La Laguna.

Expediente of Rancho La Laguna(Santa Barbara County) granted to Roberto Pardo by Juan Bautista

Alvarado. Has diseno. Tracing from an original document. 10 pp.

DLG 1065

Letter 1
1847-1904. Monterey County.

Documents re the individual interest of Angustias de la Guerra Jimeno Ord to a tract of land in

Monterey County "near the fort" and the claim of her daughter, Rebecca Ruth (Ord) Peshine to said

tract. Map of survey made by Walter C. Little, Aug. 3, 1893. Typewritten? in Spanish and English. 11

pp.

DLG 1066

Letter 1
Oct. 19-Nov. 14, 1844. Rancho Nicasio.

Concerning the claim of Rancho Nicasio (Marin County) between Pablo de la Guerra and Henry W.

Halleck. English. 5 pp.

DLG 1066

Letter 2
May 1850. Rancho Nicasio.

W. Halleck in agreement with Pablo de la Guerra re one square mile of Rancho Nicasio. English. 3

pp.

DLG 1066

Letter 3
1858. Rancho Nicasio.

Pablo de la Guerra and Josefa Moreno de la Guerra to Henry Halleck: deed of conveyance of Rancho

Nicasio. Two copies. English. 3 pp.

DLG 1067

Letter 1
Dec. 1860. Rancho Las Positas y La Calera.

Plat of Rancho Las Positas y La Calera (Santa Barbara County) confirmed to Manuela (Carrillo)

Jones. Certified by James W. Mandeville, Apr, 11, 1861. Surveyed by J. E. Terrell. English. 1 p.

DLG 1068

Letter 1
July 28, 1834. Rancho Las Pozas.

Grant of Rancho Las Pozas (Ventura County) by José Figueroa to José Gertrudis Carrillo.(with

tracing of diseño). Certified copy by George Fisher, Los Angeles, Sept. 13, 1852. Spanish and

English. 5 pp.

DLG 1068

Letter 2
June 27, 1846. Rancho Las Pozas.

José Gertrudis Carrillo to José de la Guerra: deed of conveyance of Rancho Las Pozas. Certified copy

by G. Fisher, Los Angeles, Sept. 13, 1852. Spanish and English. 5 pp.

DLG 1068

Letter 3

c. 1851. Rancho Las Pozas.

List of documents relating to Rancho Las Pozas, property of José de la Guerra, by Henry Wager

Halleck. English. 1 p.

DLG 1068

Letter 4
Oct. 27, 1854. Rancho Las Pozas.

Decree of confirmation of title by the U .S. Land Commission of Rancho Las Pozas to José de la

Guerra. Certified Copy by G. Fisher. Oct. 27, 1854. English. 3 pp.

DLG 1068

Letter 5
Oct. 10, 1857. Rancho Las Pozas.

José de la Guerra and Alfred Robinson: agreement with Charles Fernald concerning Rancho Las

Pozas. English. 3 pp.

DLG 1068

Letter 6
Aug. 15, 1858. Rancho Las Pozas.

Decree of the U.S. District Court dismissing appeal re Rancho Las Pozas and confirmation of title to

José de la Guerra. Certified copy by Upson. San Francisco. Febr. 25, 1865. English. 5 pp.
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DLG 1068

Letter 7
Dec. 13, 1865.

Pablo de la Guerra and Francisco de la Guerra vs. Thomas Sprague et al. A complaint. Two copies.

English. 8 pp.

DLG 1069

Letter 1
1837-1840. Rancho Rio de Santa Clara.

Expediente of Rancho Rio de Santa Clara or La Colonia, granted by Juan Bautista Alvarado to

Valentín Cota and others. Has diseño. Tracing of same by Lauren Upson. San Francisco, Jan. 28,

1865. Spanish and English. 8 pp.

DLG 1069

Letter 2
June 4, 1857. Rancho Rio de Santa Clara.

Valentín Cota et al. vs. U. S. Confirmation of title to Rancho Rio de Santa Clara by the U. S. District

Court. English. 3 pp.

DLG 1069

Letter 3
May 19, 1864. Rancho Rio de Santa Clara.

Antonio Orfila and María Antonia (Domínguez) de Orfila to Joaquín Ormart: deed of conveyance of

their right, title and interest in Rancho del Rio de Santa Clara. English. 3 pp.

DLG 1069

Letter 4
1866. Rancho Rio de Santa Clara.

Thomas Alexander Scott et al. vs. Rafael Rodríguez et al: a summons and complaint; amended

answer of Ormart re Rancho del Rio de Santa Clara or Colonia. 10 pp. Printed copy of summons, 4

pp. English.

DLG 1069

Letter 5
March 7, 1916. Rancho Rio de Santa Clara.

Complaint of Rudolph Ernest Pfeiler et al. against Fidelity Trust Co. re Rancho Rio de Santa Clara or

La Colonia. Typewritten. Partly printed. English. 12 pp.

DLG 1070

Letter 1
Sept. 16, 1851. Rancho de San Carlos de Jonata.

José María Covarrubias and María del Espíritu Santo (Carrillo) his wife, to Pablo de la Guerra: deed

of sale of half of Rancho San Carlos de Jonata. Signed by Raimundo Carrillo on same date. English. 4

pp.

DLG 1071

Letter 1
Febr. 4, 1837. Santa Barbara.

Francisco López: transfer of his share of cattle in San Julian Rancho to Julián Almanza. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 1071

Letter 2
Jan. 28, 1852. Rancho San Julian.

Juan Bautista Alvarado to José de la Guerra: grant of Rancho San Julian. Title, approval and tracing

of diseño. Copy certified by George Fisher, Los Angeles, Sept. 31, 1852. Spanish and English. 5 pp.

DLG 1071

Letter 3
May 23-June 5, 1839. Rancho San Julian.

Rancho San Julian: expediente of juridical possession. Certified copy by G. Fisher, Los Angeles,

Sept. 13, 1852. Spanish and English. 6 pp.

DLG 1071

Letter 4
c. 1840. Rancho San Julian.

List of individuals who ceded their interest in Rancho San Julian to José de la Guerra. 1 p.

DLG 1071

Letter 5
Febr. 21, 1853. Rancho San Julian.

U. S. Land Commission to José de la Guerra: decree of confirmation of title to Rancho San Julian.

Certified copy by G. Fisher, Oct. 28, 1859. English. 3 pp.

DLG 1072

Letter 1
June 23, 1845. Los Angeles. Rancho San Rafael.

Affidavit re boundaries of Rancho San Rafael by José Máximo Alanis. Spanish. 2 pp.
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DLG 1073

Letter 1
Aug. 1839. Los Angeles. Rancho San Vicente and Santa Monica.

Francisco Sepúlveda to Manuel Domínguez, second alcalde of Los Angeles: a petition for a document

certifying his having received juridical possession of Rancho San Vicente and Santa Monica in

August of 1828. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 1074

Letter 1
Land and legal papers: Rancho Santa Ana, Rancho Todos Santos, and Rancho San Antonio. 3 pp.

DLG 1074

Letter 1
July 30, 1861. Rancho Santa Ana.

Survey of Rancho Santa Ana (Santa Barbara County) by Thomas Sprague. Copy. 1 p.

DLG 1075

Letter 1
Aug. 13, 1849. Santa Barbara.

Santa Barbara City Council to John Wilson: grant of a ten vara lot near the beach. Signed by

Raimundo Carrillo, alcalde, and Antonio María de la Guerra, secretary. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 1075

Letter 2
Aug. 18, 1849. Santa Barbara.

Santa Barbara City Council to Pablo de la Guerra: grant of a 100 vara lot near the beach. Signed by

Raimundo Carrillo and Antonio Maria de la Guerra. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 1075

Letter 3
July 10, 1856. Santa Barbara.

Pablo de la Guerra to William Dover and Richard Jenkins: lease of a lot in city of Santa Barbara.

Witnessed by Pedro C. Carrillo and Valentine W. Hearne. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 1075

Letter 4
June 11, 1870. Santa Barbara.

Gaspar de Oreña to James L. Ord and Angustias (de la Guerra) Ord: deed of sale of lot no. 249 in city

of Santa Barbara. Copy. Partly printed. English. 2 pp.

DLG 1075

Letter 5
June 13, 1870. Santa Barbara):

José de la Guerra estate to Jarrett T. Richard: mortgage of a lot in city of Santa Barbara. Also a

promissory note of the same date. English. 7 pp.

DLG 1075

Letter 6
June 22, 1870. Santa Barbara.

Drafts of deeds of conveyance of a parcel of land being part of the de la Guerra homestead. Draft A)

Pablo de la Guerra, Francisco de la Guerra, and Antonio Maria de la Guerra to Miguel, and Draft B)

Miguel to Pablo de la Guerra. English. 7 pp.

DLG 1075

Letter 7

Febr. 23, 1872. Santa Barbara.

Francisco de la Guerra and Antonio Maria de la Guerra to Pablo de la Guerra, deed of conveyance of

their part interest in the de la Guerra homestead in Santa Barbara. Partly printed. English. 4 pp.

DLG 1076

Letter 1
Apr. 22-May 20, 1837. Rancho Santa Clara del Norte.

Expediente of Rancho Santa Clara del Norte (Ventura County) granted to Juan Sánchez by Juan

Bautista Alvarado. Copy certified by William E. P. Hartnell. Monterey, July 31, 1847. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 1076

Letter 2
June 26, 1848. Santa Barbara. Rancho Santa Clara del Norte.

Affidavit re boundaries of Rancho Santa Clara del Norte by Joaquín Carrillo. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 1076

Letter 3
Without date.

Diseño of Rancho Santa Clara del Norte. 2 pp.

DLG 1077

Letter 1
Apr. 28, 1840. Rancho Santa Paula y Saticoy.

Grant of Rancho Santa Paula y Saticoy to Manuel Jimeno Casarín by Juan Bautista Alvarado.

Certified copy by José Zenon Fernández, Monterey, Oct. 20, 1841. Spanish. 4 pp.
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DLG 1077

Letter 2
June 10, 1840. Rancho Santa Paula y Saticoy.

Confirmation of title to Rancho Santa Paula and Saticoy, granted to Manuel Jimeno Casarín, Apr. 20,

1840, approved by the Junta Departamental, May 26, 1840, by Juan Bautista Alvarado. Certified copy

by José Zenon Fernández, Monterey, Dec. 2, 1841. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 1077

Letter 3
Nov. 11-18, 1847, Rancho Santa Paula & Saticoy.

Proceedings re the granting of juridical possession of Rancho Santa Paula y Saticoy to Manuel

Jimeno Casarín, including survey of the rancho. Certified copy by Jacinto Rodríguez, alcalde, and the

witnesses, José Abrego and José S. Osio. [Monterey, c. 1849] Spanish. 8 pp.

DLG 1077

Letter 4
Dec. 4, 1847. Santa Barbara.

Manuel Jimeno Casarín to Francisco de la Guerra: power of attorney to act on his behalf against Juan

Sánchez, owner of Rancho Santa Clara, for taking water illegally from his Rancho Santa Paula y

Saticoy. Document executed by Pablo de la Guerra, signed by Manuel Jimeno Casarín and witnessed

by Antonio Rodríguez and Guillermo Carrillo. Also transfer of above power of attorney to Pablo de la

Guerra, Santa Barbara, June 26, 1848. Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 1077

Letter 5
July 16, 1848. Santa Barbara.

Francisco de la Guerra to Esteban Ardisson: Petition concerning an act to trespass committed by Juan

Sánchez in the Rancho Santa Paula belonging to Jimeno Casarín. Draft of document in hand of Pablo

de la Guerra. Statement made by Francisco de la Guerra about above-mentioned trespass. Spanish. 4

pp.

DLG 1077

Letter 6
July 9, 1849. Santa Barbara.

Pablo de la Guerra to Raimundo Carrillo: protest re the continued act of trespass committed by Juan

Sánchez on the Rancho Santa Paula, property of Jimeno Casarín. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 1077

Letter 7
Dec. 7, 1852. Los Angeles.

Antonio María Lugo to Angustias (de la Guerra) Jimeno Ord: a receipt for fifty cows with calves

loaned in 1842 to found the Rancho Santa Paula y Saticoy. Signed by José del Carmen Lugo.

Witnessed by José Antonio Carrillo and Mariano Bustamsnte. 2 pp.

DLG 1078

Letter 1
July 9-13, 1858. Santa Rosa Island.

Dixey Wildes Thompson vs. John C. Jones et al: complaint and order of injunction. Concerns Santa

Rosa Island. Printed. English. 3 pp.

DLG 1078

Letter 2
Aug. 16, 1858. Santa Rosa Island.

The people of the state of California: Lewis T. Burton and Harvey B. Blake vs. Joaquín de la Guerra,

sheriff of Santa Barbara County: a complaint re Santa Rosa Island. English. 11 pp.

DLG 1078

Letter 3
Nov. 17, 1868. Santa Barbara. Santa Rosa Island.

Mary Isabel (Thompson) Van Valkenberg to Francis Alphaeus Thompson: deed of conveyance of all

her rights and titles to Santa Rosa Island. Notarial certificate of above signed by Juan de la Guerra,

Santa Barbara, Nov. 17, 1868. Partly printed. English. 5 pp.

DLG 1079

Letter 1
Oct. 6, 1832. Santa Barbara. Rancho Simi.

Simona (Pico) Leiva to Rafaela Pico: power of attorney to sell Rancho Simi. Spanish. 4 pp.

DLG 1079

Letter 2
Oct. 6, 1832. Santa Barbara. Rancho Simi.

Miguel Pico to Rafael Pico: power of attorney to sell Rancho Simi. Spanish. 4 pp.
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DLG 1079

Letter 3
Oct. 6, 1832. Santa Barbara. Rancho Simi.

Patricio Xavier Pico to Rafael Pico: power of attorney to sell Rancho Simi. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 1079

Letter 4
Apr. 7, 1836. Rancho Simi.

Rafael Pico to José de la Guerra: cession of all rights to cattle on Rancho Simi. Spanish.

3 pp.

DLG 1079

Letter 5
1841-1845. Rancho Simi.

Expediente on Rancho Simi with diseño. Tracing of original document by Lauren Upson,

U. S. surveyor general of California. Also two copies in pencil with diseño. 85 pp.

DLG 1079

Letter 6
July 31, 1843. Santa Barbara.

José Ruíz: an agreement with Francisco de la Guerra as representative of his father, José de la Guerra

re boundaries between Rancho Calleguas and Rancho Simi. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 1079

Letter 7
c. 1851.

Henry Wager Halleck: list of documents pertinent to Rancho Simi. English. 1 p.

DLG 1079

Letter 8
Dec. 10, 1864. San Francisco.

John B. Church to Pablo de la Guerra; a summons re claims on Ranchos Simi and Las Pozas. Partly

printed. English. 2 pp.

DLG 1079

Letter 9
May 12, 1909. Ventura.

Ventura Abstract Co. to Thomas M. Hill and Plasent J. Evans: certification of title to several lots on

tract 4 (Rancho Simi). Also a letter from the Ventura Abstract Co. to Hill, Ventura, Aug. 8, 1916.

With map. Typewritten. English. 5 pp.

DLG 1079

Letter 10
March 4, 1919. Los Angeles.

Bound typewritten copy of abstracts and records relating to Rancho Simi. map. One map. English.

192 pp. Also: Printed booklet "Historical Tour of Simi Valley" by Janet S. Cameron. 26 pp., and

newspaper photo of a section of Simi Valley. 1 p. Letter of Agnes M. Underwood to Rev. Joseph

Thompson, O.F.M., Jan. 29, 1963. Los Angeles.

DLG 1080

Letter 1 - 2

- 3

Oct. 6, 1832. Santa Barbara.

Simona (Pico) Leiva, Miguel Pico, and [Patricio] Javier Pico to Rafael Pico: powers of attorney to

sell Rancho Simi. Spanish. 4 pp. each.

DLG 1080

Letter 4
1841-1845. Santa Barbara.

Expediente of Rancho Simi (Santa Barbara County). Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 1080

Letter 5
1841-1845.

Expediente of Rancho Simi (Ventura County) and a copy. Spanish.

DLG 1080a

Letter 1
March 30, 1860.

Maria de las Angustias Ord and James L. Ord vs. Pablo de la Guerra and Francisco de la Guerra

answer to complaint, filed in San Francisco. With the will of José de la Guerra y Noriega. Printed.

English. 32 pp.
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DLG 1081

Letter 1
Aug. 6, 1871.

Angustias de la Guerra Jimeno vs. James L. Ord: Report of commissioners in partition being the

results of partition of Rancho Todos Santos y San Antonio (Santa Barbara County) and of several lots

in Santa Barbara and Montecito. Copy of original certified by C. A. Hunt, May 18, 1903.

Typewritten. English. 11 pp.

DLG 1082

Letter 1
1853. Santa Barbara.

Draft of a will of José Antonio de la Guerra y Noriega. Spanish. 7 pp.

DLG 1082

Letter 2
MISSING FROM THE VAULT

DLG 1082

Letter 3
Sept. 20, 1853. Santa Barbara.

Testamentory instructions of José Antonio de la Guerra y Noriega. Also a copy of the will in hand of

Pablo and a typewritten copy. Spanish. 8 pp.

DLG 1082

Letter 4
Jan. 8, 1856. Santa Barbara.

Testamentary instructions of José Antonio de la Guerra y Noriega. In the handwriting of Pablo de la

Guerra. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 1082

Letter 5
Jan. 30, 1856. Santa Barbara.

José Antonio de la Guerra y Noriega vs. José Antonio de la Guerra. Complaint. English. 2 pp.

DLG 1082

Letter 6
Aug, 1857. Santa Barbara.

José Antonio de la Guerra y Noriega: Handwritten draft of his will. Spanish. 13 pp.

DLG 1082

Letter 7
Sept. 1857.

Draft of a will by José de la Guerra y Noriega. Two certified copies. Spanish 15 pp.

DLG 1082

Letter 8
Sept. 7, 1857. Santa Barbara.

Will of José de la Guerra. Two certified copies. 36 pp.

DLG 1082

Letter 9
Sept. 7, 1857. Santa Barbara.

Will of José de la Guerra. English translations. Two versions A and B. Second is typewritten. 26 pp.

DLG 1083

Letter 1

March 9, 1853. Santa Barbara.

Deed of heirs of María Antonia (Carrillo) de la Guerra, mother, conveying to their father, José de la

Guerra, all their rights and interests in their maternal inheritance. Two copies. Third copy typewritten.

DLG 1083

Letter 2
Sept. 12, 1857. Rancho Todos Santos.

María Teresa de la Guerra de Hartnell, widow: deed of conveyance to her father, José Antonio de la

Guerra y Noriega, father, of all her rights and interests in her maternal inheritance. Certified by

Charles E. Cook. Partly printed. Spanish and English. 5 pp.

DLG 1083

Letter 3
Febr. 1858. Santa Barbara.

Gaspar de Oreña and María Antonia (de la Guerra) to Francisco, Pablo, Miguel and Antonio María de

la Guerra: an agreement concerning their right and interest in the de la Guerra estate. English. 3 pp.

DLG 1083

Letter 4
Sept. 17, 1859. Santa Barbara.

Gaspar de Orefla and María Antonia (de la Guerra), his wife, to Pablo de la Guerra and Francisco de

la Guerra, executors: deed of release re the de la Guerra estate. Certified by Charles Fernald, county

judge. English. 8 pp.
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DLG 1084

Letter 1
1858-c.1864. Santa Barbara.

Miscellaneous documents of the probate of the will of José de la Guerra. 11 pp.

DLG 1085

Letter 1
1858-1862.

James Ord and Angustias (de la Guerra) Ord vs. Pablo and Francisco de la Guerra, executors of the

José de la Guerra estate. Miscellaneous documents and correspondence dealing with the case before

the Second Judicial District Court, County of Santa Barbara. All in English except one which is partly

in Spanish and partly in English. Continued in next letter.

DLG 1085

Letter 2
1858-1862.

Continuation of previous letter.

James Ord and Angustias (de la Guerra) Ord vs. Pablo and Francisco de la Guerra, executors of the

José de la Guerra estate. Miscellaneous documents and correspondence dealing with the case before

the Second Judicial District Court, County of Santa Barbara. English.

DLG 1085

Letter 3
1858-1862.

"de la Guerra wealth." Notes by Fr. Joseph. Thompson, O.F.M. typewritten. 8 pp.

DLG 1086

Letter 1
1858-1869.

Miscellaneous cases. de la Guerra estate legal cases. Ten pieces.

Oct. 22, 1858- Pablo de la Guerra et al vs. Miguel Smith-English. 5 pp.

Jan. 21- Feb. 1, 1859- Isaac J. Sparks vs. Joaquín de la Guerra- English. 6 pp.

1862-1864-Gaspar Oreña vs. Pablo de la Guerra et al. English. 11 p.

1863-Isaac Cook vs Pablo de la Guerra- English- 9 pp.

1865-1869-John B. Church and John Wytte vs. Pablo de la Guerra-English. 17 & 33 pp.

DLG 1087

Letter 1
1859-1866.

Inventory and accounts of the de la Guerra estates. English and Spanish. 40 pp.

DLG 1088

Letter 1
Aug. 8, 1861. Santa Barbara.

José de la Guerra: deed of release of his interests and claims on the de la Guerra estate in Spain.

Copy. 3 pp.

DLG 1088

Letter 2
March 23, 1869. Santa Barbara.

Pablo de la Guerra to José María Gómez and Fernando de Cevallos on property matters. 3 pp.

DLG 1088

Letter 3
March 23, 1869. Santa Barbara.

Francisco de la Guerra et al. to José María Gómez and Fernando de Gevallos: power of attorney to

administer de la Guerra's estate in Spain. Signed by Pablo and Joaquín de la Guerra. Partly printed.

Also a copy of the same. 8 pp.

DLG 1089

Letter 1
June 21, 1870. Santa Barbara.

Settlement of the de la Guerra estate. English. 4 pp.

DLG 1090

Letter 1
1881

Abstract of titles, to Ranchos Simi, Las Pozas, San Julian and El Conejo. Typewritten. English. 20 pp.

DLG 1090

Letter 2
1881

Notes by Fr. Joseph Thompson, O.F.M., re the de la Guerra family ranchos. Typewritten. English. 4

pp.
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DLG 1090

Letter 3
1881

Maps of portions of Santa Barbara and Ventura Counties showing land or ranchos owned by the de la

Guerra family. 5 pp.

DLG 1091

Letter 1
1875-1920.

Francisco de la Guerra. Will and related papers. Original, typewritten and printed. 16 pp.

DLG 1091

Letter 2
1872-1926.

Pablo de la Guerra: will and related papers. Spanish and English. Original and printed. 19 pp.

DLG 1091

Letter 3
Dec. 6, 1850. Monterey.

Last will of William Edward Hartnell and related papers. English and Spanish. Original and printed.

20 pp.

DLG 1091

Letter 4
Jan. 6, 1855. Santa Barbara.

Albert Packard: last will and testament. English. 2 pp.

DLG 1091

Letter 5
Apr. 18, 1853. Los Angeles.

Francisco Sepúlveda: last will. Typewritten copy. 3 pp.

DLG 1091

Letter 6
30 January, 1857

José de la Guerra y Noriega vs José Antonio de la Guerra. English. 3 pp.

DLG 1091

Letter 7
27 July 1860

H.O. Beatty vs devisees of William Hartnell, deceased. Rancho de los Cosumnes in Monterey

County. English. 6 pp.

DLG 1091

Letter 8
1857-1858

Will of José de la Guerra y Noriega- draft August, 1857, and a copy of original. Spanish.

DLG 1091

Letter 9
1853-1856

Distribution of real estate written by José de la Guerra y Noriega, father of Pablo & José Antonio

(Rancho Julian), draft in Spanish, signed by Noriega, with other documents (a-c) regarding same.

Spanish and English.

DLG 1091

Letter 10
1862

Ord vs executors of the estate of José de la Guerra. Handwritten in English. 36 pp.

DLG 1092

Letter 1
Literary and Personal Papers.

The Christmas Play: "Los Pastores." Three typed copies and two typed copies of another version. 88

pp.

DLG 1092

Letter 2
Literary and Personal Papers.

"Relación" and a typewritten copy in hand of Pablo de la Guerra.

DLG 1092

Letter 3
Literary and Personal Papers.

Speeches of Bato in hand of Pablo de la Guerra, and typewritten copy.

DLG 1092

Letter 4
Literary and Personal Papers.

Speeches of "The Angel" in hand of de la Guerra. and a typewritten copy.

DLG 1092

Letter 5
Literary and Personal Papers.

Speeches of "Bermudo." In hand of Pablo de la Guerra, and a typewritten copy. 2 pp.
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DLG 1092

Letter 6
Literary and personal papers.

Speech of "El Diablo." Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 1092

Letter 7
Literary and personal papers.

Speeches of "El Ermitaño." Spanish. 5 pp. with typewritten copy.

DLG 1092b

Letter 1
Literary and personal papers.

Miscellaneous papers in Spanish, bound. "Los Pastores."

DLG 1093

Letter 1
Literary and Personal Papers.

Miscellaneous writings, speeches, poems, notes, etc. of Pablo de la Guerra and a typewritten copy.

Spanish and English. 75 pp.

DLG 1093a

Letter 1
Family notes.

Family notes by Thomas B. Dibblee. English. 29 pp.

DLG 1094

Letter 1
Literary and Personal Papers.

Personal papers of José de la Guerra: prayers, religious verses used by de la Guerra in his devotions.

23 pp. and the printed minibooklet: Novena de alabanzas en honor de la Purisima Concepción...

Mexico, 1797. 47 pp. Miscellaneous notes and writings. All material in Spanish.

DLG 1095

Letter 1
1853

Will of José Antonio de la Guerra y Noriega. Handwritten, in Spanish. With two copies of the will,

one typed in English, one handwritten in Spanish. With handwritten notes of Clause 7 by Pablo de la

Guerra. 3 pieces.

DLG 1095

Letter 2
1839

Two documents regarding the lawsuit of Isaac J. Sparks vs. Joaquín de la Guerra. Both handwritten.

DLG 1095a

Letter 1
Genealogical and Biographical Papers.

Genealogy and ascendants of Don José de la Guerra and Doña María Teresa de Noriega, parents of

Don José Antonio de la Guerra y Noriega. 134 pp. Also an incomplete typewritten copy. Also, notes

about assistants of Bancroft in Santa Barbara- Henry Lebbeus Oak, Thomas Savage and Edward F.

Murray. English.

DLG 1095a

Letter 2
Notes on early California history by Fr. Joseph Thompson, O.F.M Typewritten. English.

DLG 1095a

Letter 3
de la Guerra-Carrillo genealogy-folder 1

de la Guerra-Carrillo genealogy from Rev. J. Thompson, and includes a typewritten copy of his

sermon given for his Golden Jubilee in the Order of Friars Minor.

DLG 1095b

Letter 1
de la Guerra-Carrillo genealogy- folder 2

Historical notes and related papers of Rev. Joseph Thompson, O.F.M. Includes transcriptions of

missionaries' letters, as family genealogy.

DLG 1095c

Letter 1
ORIGINAL DOCUMENT IN VAULT

Capt. Antonio de la Guerra's army commission.

DLG 1095d

Letter 1
Sept. 20, 1853

Will and Testament of José Antonio de la Guerra y Noriega handwritten in Spanish,with typed

transcription in English.
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DLG 1095d

Letter 2
Jan. 2, 1859

Summons- Isaac Sparks vs Joaquín de la Guerra.

DLG 1095d

Letter 3
Jan. 21, 1859.

Certification by James Ord, Coroner, of sale of Rancho Simi to highest bidder, Antonio Maria de la

Guerra.

DLG 1096

Letter 1
Genealogía y Ascendientes de Don Juan Josef de la Guerra y Doña Maria Theresa de Noriega, padres

de Don Josef Antonio de la Guerra y Noriega. Typewritten and a photocopy-incomplete. Spanish. 41

pp.

DLG 1096

Letter 2
1799.

Copia de le genealogía paterna y materna de Don José Antonio de la Guerra y Noriega. 13 pp. Also a

typewritten copy. 38 pp.

DLG 1096

Letter 3
1692-1794.

Certified copy of the extracts from the census of Bilbao, Spain, relating to the families of Noriega and

Rubin de Celis. 3 pp.

DLG 1096

Letter 5
1912-1918. - MISSING

Correspondence and related pages of Rebecca Ruth (Ord) Peshine and Felix and José de Rujula, of

the Spanish Royal Heraldic Archives, relating to genealogical investigations made by Mrs. Peshine.

44 pp.

DLG 1096a

Letter 1
1786

Royal Order of Instructions for governing directed to Don Jacobo Ugarte y Loyola. Spanish. 56 pp.

DLG 1097

Letter 1
1654-1779.

Copies of baptismal records of José Antonio de la Guerra y Noriega, his parents and other ancestors

made in 1917. 27 pp.

DLG 1097

Letter 2
l786-1823.

Baptismal certificates of various members of the de la Guerra family. An original and copies. 4 pp.

DLG 1098

Letter 1
1804-1913.

de la Guerra marriage certificates and permissions to marry. Spanish. 8 pp.

DLG 1099

Letter 1- IN

VAULT

Feb., 18, 1858.

Santa Barbara Gazette: Account of the funeral of José de la Guerra. 2 copies. Spanish.

DLG 1099

Letter 2- IN

VAULT

March 18, 1858.

Santa Barbara Gazette. Eulogy given at Mission Santa Barbara for José de la Guerra by Fray Jose

Maria de Jesus González Rubio, O.F.M. Spanish. 12 pp.

DLG 1099

Letter 3
Nov. 28, 1881.

The Morning Press. Santa Barbara. Announcement of the death of Antonio María de la Guerra.

English. Also three pages in longhand.

DLG 1099

Letter 4
1919.

Letters concerning the removal of the remains of Angustias de la Guerra y Ord from Holy Cross

Cemetery, San Francisco, to Old Mission Cemetery, Santa Barbara. English. 8 pp.
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DLG 1099

Letter 5
Oct. 23, 1840. Monterey.

Certification by Fray José Maria del Refugio Suárez del Real, O.F.M. on the removal of the remains

of Juan de la Guerra from the cemetery of Carmel Mission to a vault in the sanctuary of the church.

Spanish. 2 pp.

DLG 1099

Letter 6
Nov. 10, 1870. Mexico.

An announcement of the death of Porfirio Jimeno y Guerra. Printed. Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 1099

Letter 7
1859. Santa Barbara.

Invitation to attend a year's Requiem Mass for the deceased, José de la Guerra y Noriega. Printed.

Spanish. 1 p.

DLG 1099

Letter 8- IN

VAULT

Febr. 18, 1858. Santa Barbara.

An announcement of the death of José de la Guerra y Noriega. Printed. 1 p.

DLG 1099

Letter 9
Febr. 12, 1858. Santa Barbara.

An invitation to accompany the remains of José de la Guerra to the mission for burial. Printed.

Spanish. 1 p.

DLG

1099B

Letter 1 -IN

De la Guerra-Noriega genealogical charts. with a photostat.

DLG 1100

Letter 1
Miscellaneous genealogical and biographical notes on the Diblee-de la Guerra family, including:

Family Notes by Thomas B. Diblee. Santa Barbara. Cal. 1882.

DLG 1100

Letter 2
MISSING

The Jimeno, de la Guerra Family. 2 pp.

DLG 1100

Letter 3
The Sepúlveda-Serrano family. Typewritten and a photostat. 11 pp.

DLG 1100

Letter 4
Thompson-Dana family genealogical information. 6 pp.

DLG 1100

Letter 5

MISSING

The Yorba family. Biographical notes. Typewritten. 19 pp. Charles II King of Spain. Grant of title of

Marqués de la Villa de San Miguel de Aguayo to Don Agustín de Echevérez Subija y Two copies. 4

pp.

DLG 1100

Letter 6
Nov. 23, 1682.

Typewritten transcription of a grant of title by Carlos II, King of Spain, to Marqués de la Villa de San

Miguel de Aguayo to Don Agustín de Echevérez Subija y Espiral. Spanish. 3 pp.

DLG 1100

Letter 7
Carrillo family genealogical material. 5 pp.

DLG 1100

Letter 8
1819.

Document-inventory (?). Spanish. 22 pp.

DLG 1101

Letter 1
1815-1861.

Letters, notes, verses, lists. Spanish and English. 24 pp.
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DLG 1101

Letter 2
June 2, 1864.

Handwritten document from George S. Evans, Adjutant General & George Wright, Brigadier

General, U.S. Army, Commanding , Department of Pacific. Extract from "Records of California Men

in the War of the Rebellion, 1861-1867," compiled by Brigadier General Richard H. Orton., regarding

the formation of a company with Captain Antonio Maria de la Guerra and officers. English. 13 pp.

DLG 1101a

Letter 1 -IN

VAULT

1850

Photostat of appointment of Pablo de la Guerra as U.S. Marshal. Signed by President Millard

Fillmore.

DLG 1102

Letter 1
de la Guerra Family photographs.

Family photographs will be in Photo Collection.

DLG 1102a

Letter 1 -

MISSING

1862.

Last Will and Testament of Nicholas A. Den.

DLG 1103

Letter 1

Aug. 26, 1786. Mexico.

Instruction on military matters on basis of a royal order and sent to the commandant general of the

Provincias Internas, Jacob Ugarte y Loyola by Bernardo de Gelvez. Certified by Francisco Fernández

de Cordoba and sent to the commander of Presidio Santa Barbara by Pedro Fages. First four pages

torn. 56 pp.

DLG 1103

Letter 2
July 13, 1793. Mexico.

Proclamation of the royal decree of Carlos III (Apr. 7, 1793) re the establishment of a company of

royal guards composed of Spaniards and Spanish subjects born in America. Printed broadside bearing

the rubric of Viceroy Revilla Gigedo and the signature of Juan Joseph Martinez de Soria. Signed by

Arrillaga, Monterey, Jan. 13, 1794 and sent to the commandant of Presidio Santa Barbara. 2 pp.

DLG 1103

Letter 3
Dec. 22, 1824. Mexico.

Provisional instruction for the commandants general who are to handle public finance in the Mexican

states. By José Ignacio Esteva. Printed, 28 pp.

DLG 1103

Letter 4
Nov. 5, 1827. Mexico.

President Guadalupe Victoria of reorganization of the body of army engineers. Signed by Manuel

Gómez Pedraza and issued by the secretary of Guerra y Marina. Sent to the constitutional alcalde of

Santa Barbara. Signed by José María Echeandía, San Diego, Apr. 23, 1828. Printed. 2 pp.

DLG 1103

Letter 5
Dec. 14, 1827. Mexico.

President Victoria approving the expenditure for the fortification of Isla del Carmen in Yucatan. Sent

by the secretary of Guerra y Marina, signed by Gómez Pedraza and forwarded to the alcalde of Santa

Barbara. Printed 1 p.

DLG 1103

Letter 6
Dec. 18, 1827. Mexico.

President Victoria on allowing the battery of Yalajan to be finished. Signed by Gómez de Pedraza.

Sent by the secretary of Guerra y Marina and forwarded to the alcalde of Santa Barbara. Printed. 1 p.

DLG 1103

Letter 7
Dec. 20, 1827, Mexico.

The president on the expulsion of Spaniards from Mexico issued by the Primera secretaria del Estado

Departamento del Interior and signed by Juan José Espinosa de los Monteros; is and sent to the

alcalde of Presidio Santa Barbara. Printed. 1 p.
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DLG 1103

Letter 8
Dec. 21, 1827. Mexico.

The president on the Congress closing its extraordinary session. Issued by Primera secretaria's del

Estado. Departamento del Interior. Signed by Juan José Espinosa de los Monteros. Sent to the alcalde

of Santa Barbara. 1 p.

DLG 1103

Letter 9
Dec. 24, 1827. Mexico.

The president on financial matters issued by the Secretaria de Hacienda Departamento de Gobierno

signed by José Ignacio Favon. Sent to the alcalde of Santa Barbara. 1 p.

DLG 1103

Letter 10
Dec. 29, 1827. Mexico.

The president on the obligation of all Mexicans to come to the defense of the country. Issued by

Primera Secretaria del Estado. Departamento Interior. Sent to the alcalde of Santa Barbara. 4 pp.

DLG 1103

Letter 11
Mexico. 1828.

Discourse pronounced by President Victoria at the solemn opening of the ordinary session of the

general Congress. Printed. 7 pp.

DLG 1103

Letter 12
May 13, 1830. Mexico.

Decree of President Anastasio Bustamante on the establishment of customs houses at ports and on the

frontier. Sent out by the Ministerio de Hacienda, signed by José María Echeandía and sent to the

sub-prefect of Presidio Santa Barbara. 2 pp.

DLG 1103

Letter 13
Apr. 25, 1832. Mexico.

The Vice-president on pardoning Mexicans for political crimes. Issued by the Secretaria de Guerra y

Marina. Signed by José Cacho. 2 pp.

DLG 1103

Letter 15
Nov. 20, 1833. Mexico.

The president on the conclusion of a treaty with Peru. Signed by Carlos García. Signed by José

Figueroa at Monterey, May 26, 1834. There is a different print than in the rest of the document. 5 pp.

DLG 1103

Letter 16
Dec. 20, 1833. Mexico.

Vice-president, Valentín Gómez Farias to Juan José del Corral on the former being authorized furnish

15,000 pesos for the needs of the public treasury. In longhand an added note signed at Monterey, May

26, 1834, by Governor José Figueroa and Agustín Zamorano, secretary. 2 pp.

DLG 1103

Letter 17

Dec. 27, 1836. Mexico.

The president on constitutional laws, Sent by Primera Secretaria del Estado. Departamento del

Interior, and sent to Fray Narciso Durán, O.F.M. 3 pp.

DLG 1103

Letter 18
Jan. 17, 1837. Mexico.

The president on the types of metals to be used in minting money. Signed by José María Cervantes of

the Secretaria de Hacienda and sent to the judge of the district of Monterey. 2 pp.

DLG 1103

Letter 19
Febr. 9, 1837. Mexico.

The president on the ceasing of reductions on ships duties. Signed by José María Cervantes and sent

to Durán. 1 p.

DLG 1103

Letter 20
Febr. 25, 1837. Mexico.

Decree of the president concerning the effects of nationals and foreigners. Signed by José María

Cervantes. Sent to Durán. 4 pp.
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DLG 1103

Letter 21
Apr. 1, 1837. Mexico.

The president on a commission for examining the election of deputies. Printed signature of Joaquín de

Iturbide and issued by the ministry of the Interior. Sent to Durán. 1 p.

DLG 1103

Letter 22
Apr. 27, 1837. Mexico.

President Bustamante on courts-martial. Sent by the ministry of the Interior with the imprint of Peña y

Peña. Sent to Durán. 4 pp.

DLG 1103

Letter 23
Jan. 16, 1833. Mexico.

Decree of President Manuel Gómez de Pedraza on the observance of the law of March 20, 1829,

expelling Spaniards. Gives list of those who are exempted. Issued by the Primera Secretaria del

Estado. Departamento del Interior. Signed by Gómez Pedraza. 28 pp.

DLG 1103

Letter 24
March 21, 1846. Mexico.

The latest communications between the government of Mexico and the extraordinary minister

plenipotentiary of the United States concerning Texas. Signed by Mariano Paredes y Arrillaga. 20 pp.

DLG 1103

Letter 25
August 8, 1867

A speech by Samuel Beach Axtell to the residents of Santa Barbara as a candidate for Congress. 4 pp.

DLG 1103a

Letter 1 -

MISSING

Documents and powers of Don Antonio Maria de Hercilla, conferred to Don José de la Guerra y

Noriega. Spanish. 33 pp.

DLG 1104

Letter 1
Printed articles.

A petition from Alphaeus B. Thompson to Governor Victoria translated by Dr. Mackenzie Brown and

published by the Santa Barbara Historical Society. 1947. 4 pp.

DLG 1104

Letter 2
Fourth Annual Exhibition and Examination of the Students of the Franciscan College [Santa Barbara]

June 22, 1871. This copy was sent to Pablo de la Guerra by Father Joseph Jeremas O'Keefe, O.F.M.

Printed. Business card of Pablo de la Guerra. Partial article "Toreadores." English. 3 pp.

DLG 1104

Letter 3
Santa Barbara Gazette, Vol. I, No. 1. May 24, 1855.

La Voz del Nuevo Mundo, San Francisco, Oct. 3, 1871. vol. XIX. No. 939. sent to Pablo de la Guerra

and contains a discourse given by him at San Luís Obispo on the sixty-first anniversary of the

declaration of independence by Mexico. Spanish and English. 4 pp.

DLG 1104

Letter 4
The Santa Barbara Weekly Press. Vol. V. No. 13. Sept. 27, 1873.

Contains a cut of the general view of the city of Santa Barbara with places identified and a map of the

coastal section of Santa Barbara County. 8 pp.

DLG 1104

Letter 5
"A Sketch of Santa Barbara" by Albert F. Webster. Office of the Santa Barbara Press, 1876. Printed.

16 pp.

DLG 1104

Letter 6
The Examiner, San Francisco. Dec. 25, 1891.

Christmas at the Old Mission by Henry Bigelow. 1 p.

DLG 1104

Letter 7
December 11, 1886.

The "Centennial of Mission Santa Barbara," Weekly Independent, Santa Barbara. 1 pp.

DLG 1104

Letter 8
"A Notable Event." The Centennial of 1886. The Morning Call, San Francisco. 1 p.
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DLG 1104

Letter 9 -

MISSING

Overland Monthly. Vol. LXVIII. No. 6. Dec. 1916. pp. 443-524. Contains much on the history and

personages of California. Various photographs of members of the de la Guerra family and their

relations. Photo of the de la Guerra house. (These have been placed among photographs.)

DLG 1104a

Letter 1 -

MISSING

1833- Mexico- Decree re the observance of the Law of 1829, expelling Spaniards; with lists of those

exempted from expulsion.

1824-Mexico-Provisional instructions for the General Commissaries to administer relations with the

U.S. in Mexico.


